
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 


Agenda Item 5.5 


Board of Education Informational Item 
June 8, 2021 


Topic: 
Consideration of Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) for Madera 
County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) 


Background:  
The Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) is a required component 
of the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF). It describes the goals and 
specific activities that Madera County Superintendent of Schools will put 
into action to educate all students and for certain identified subgroups of 
students. The LCAP must address the priorities as determined by the 
State Board of Education and indicate the funding needed to implement 
the activities. As required, the LCAP will be reviewed and revised each 
year. An important part of the LCAP is input from parents, students, 
staff, and community members. 


Financial Impact: 
$976,904.00 


Resource: 
Hugo Sanchez 
Program Director 
Career & Alternative Education Services 


Jessica Drake 
Executive Director 
Student Programs and Services 







 


Local Control Accountability Plan 
 
The instructions for completing the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) follow the template. 
 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
(Endeavor / Voyager)            


Hugo Sanchez           
Program Director - Career and Alternative 
Education Services 


hsanchez@mcsos.org           
(559) 662-6211 


 


Plan Summary [2021-22] 
 
General Information 
 


A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students. 
 


The mission of the Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS), is to identify and provide programs, services and resources for the 
benefit of students, families, school districts, agencies and the community with the vision of enhancing the quality of life through education. 
 
Believing that all students can learn, MCSOS: 


• Supports teachers, schools, and districts in their efforts to foster student success 
• Values caring teachers with high professional standards who are supported with meaningful professional development 
• Advocates, supports, and reinforces civic and personal values in students such as responsibility, mutual respect, tolerance, honesty, 


integrity, compassion, critical thinking and problem solving skills, and a strong work ethic 
• Supports rigorous academic and vocational curriculum toward student achievement for college and career readiness 
• Supports students to become nurturing, committed, caring, and connected adults 
• Develops meaningful partnerships and active family participation in their student’s education 


 
The Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) serves students who have been placed in Juvenile Hall (Endeavor) or the Cadet 
Academy (Voyager) in Madera County. 
 
The goal of MCSOS's Career and Alternative Education Services is to help these students return to their districts of residence by 
encouraging them to attend school on a regular basis, to earn passing grades with a “C” or better in all classes, and to be model citizens. 
 
It is estimated that approximately 25 students will be enrolled in Juvenile Hall/Correctional Academy programs. Enrollment fluctuates due to 
the student population served, and given the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, enrollment numbers have been significantly down from 
previous years. Demographically, approximately 68% of students are Hispanic, 8% White, 5% African American, 5% American Indian, and 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 2 of 60


14% other or declined to state. Twenty-nine percent (29%) of students enrolled in Juvenile Hall and the Correctional Academy are English 
Learners(EL) with Spanish being the primary language. All students participate in the school lunch program as wards of the court. 
Approximately 20% of the students have identified special needs. Of these students identified, the majority enter Alternative Education 
programs with existing Individualized Education Programs (IEPs). Service delivery models include one-on-one instruction, small group, and 
whole classroom instruction utilizing special education staff to support student learning in an inclusive setting. Instructional strategies and 
actions/services are implemented that benefit all student groups including those specifically identified in this document. 
 
All students have access to instructional materials that are aligned to the California State Standards. Teachers' professional development 
focuses on continued implementation of the Common Core State Standards(CCSS) through appropriate instructional strategies and 
materials. Alternative Education programs have been very successful in helping students with credit recovery and graduating with a high 
school diploma. These instructional achievements are more appropriate and realistic for students served. Currently, students in alternative 
education programs do not participate in either the Early Assessment Program or Advanced Placement Exams. 
 
As stated above, the student population of the correctional facility is highly transient. Typically, students are enrolled anywhere from a few 
days to 60 days in Juvenile Hall, and from four to six months in the Cadet Academy. As such, many state metrics are not available for 
alternative schools. Given the short term placement in these programs, the educational goal is to maintain progress on core coursework and 
address gaps in educational credits in order to achieve a high school diploma, either in the correctional facility program or, once released, in 
their district of residence or county program. Students who would need access to University of California (UC) approved courses or 
Advanced Placement can be accommodated on an individual basis online. However, as an alternative school, the school does not receive 
school AP or UC completion rates for purposes of accountability. Additionally, the school does review State testing scores in ELA and Math, 
with a focus on needs of students who are low income, foster youth, English Learners and special needs students, and receives Dashboard 
Alternative School Status (DASS) results for academic indicators in English Language Arts and Math, Suspension rates, Graduation rates, 
EAP, College and Career Indicators, and will soon start receiving DASS reports for English Learner Progress. The schools in Juvenile Hall 
and the Cadet Academy do not expel students; thus there is no expulsion rate, school attendance is mandatory, so attendance rates are very 
high and there is not a student drop-out rate during the student’s time in the correctional facility programs. As an alternative school, 
graduation rates are not calculated on a four-year graduation cohort, however, the programs are accountable for graduation rates on a one-
year cohort basis. In order to have a better measure of the one year cohort, academic counselors have grade-level reclassified students 
according to credits earned instead of years in school. Gathering data form California School Dashboard is challenging, since not enough 
students are eligible for state assessments, which are administered once during high school, or as in the case of English Learners 
Proficiency Assessments of California (ELPAC), yearly for EL students until reclassified. 
 
Attendance rates are high for both Juvenile Hall and Cadet Academy. All students are required to attend school which is closely monitored by 
juvenile probation. If a student is unable to be a part of the classroom, instruction is provided to that student through alternative means. 
Working closely with other county agencies such as Madera County Probation Department and Madera County Behavioral Health leads to 
increased student success. 
 
Partnering with the nine (9) school districts in the county, MCSOS strives to ensure that all foster youth have access to the same educational 
rights and resources as all other students. Any youth residing in the county who is officially in the foster care system or in out-of-home care is 
eligible to receive services from MCSOS that emphasize Training, Education, Advocacy, and Mentorship (TEAM). Working collaboratively 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 3 of 60


with Madera County Probation Department, Madera County Department of Social Services, Local Education Agencies (LEA), Foster Family 
Agencies (FFA), and the local community college, specific services for foster youth include case management, academic counseling, life 
skills training, vocational education, and self-advocacy training. Goals of the foster youth program are to increase stability and to improve 
student engagement and student outcomes. 
 


 
 
Reflections: Successes 
 


A description of successes and/or progress based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 
 


When COVID-19 shut schools down in March of 2020, Juvenile Hall was able to quickly make arrangements to meet technology needs.  
Overwhelmingly, students did not have the needed technology to move to distance learning. Based on this feedback, technology in the form 
of Chromebooks, GoGuardian, and access to the Zoom platform was deployed.   After several days of professional learning based in the 
Zoom platform and from Hattie, Fisher, and Frey's book, The Distance Learning Playbook, teachers were back meeting with students 
virtually. The site based team was able to additionally solve the issue of sending and receiving schoolwork through collaboration with  
correctional staff each week. 
 
During the 2020-21 school year, Juvenile Hall staff learned a lot about the social-emotional impact of the pandemic on students. Madera 
County Superintendent of Schools and Madera County Behavioral Health department provided multiple professional learning opportunities 
focused student social-emotional needs during and continuing after the pandemic. Through those trainings, the staff of MCSOS has been 
able better address the needs of the students, even making more notifications to the site psychologist and the Student Study Team to help 
develop supports for students that are struggling. This current year has shown an increase in these notifications and local mental health 
experts anticipate long lasting impacts of the pandemic, driving the continued investment in learning and resources to support the social-
emotional needs of incarcerated students. 
 
One of the greatest successes for students in both programs at Juvenile Hall has been the implementation of i-Ready assessments for ELA 
and Math.  Aside from providing data on subskill strengths and areas of growth, i-Ready also assigns individualized prescriptive lessons to 
support each student's progress toward grade-level proficiency.  Since the enrollment at Juvenile Hall is relatively small, Dashboard data is 
not available, as very few enrolled students are required to take state assessments for students in grades, 7, 8, and 11.  Of the students 
assessed in ELA, 43.9% grew by at least one-year toward grade-level proficiency, while the math assessment also indicated that 43.9% of 
assessed students grew by at least one-year.  According to DataQuest data for school year 2019-20, the suspension rate for Juvenile Hall 
was 2.6%, which is slightly less than Madera County's 3.6% suspension rate.  Furthermore, the suspension rate for Juvenile Hall is at a 
decline of 63.4% from the previous year.  Professional Development continues to focus on relationship building and supporting the Social 
and Emotional Learning needs of students and continues to contribute toward a learning environment that is physically, emotionally, and 
cognitively safe for students.  PowerSchool, the Student Information System (SIS) for Juvenile Hall, indicates an attendance rate of 99.8%.  A 
new supplemental curriculum, with online access was implemented in school year 2020-21 and will provide academic supports for students 
to continue to grow toward proficiency. 
         


 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 4 of 60


Reflections: Identified Need 
 


A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including any areas of low 
performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any steps taken to address those areas. 
 


As indicated from the most recent i-Ready Assessment Data, all students show significant deficits in student achievement. Few students 
were on grade level on certain ELA domains, but overall, were at least two years behind grade-level. For mathematics, only 14.3% of all 
students tested were on grade level.  Addressing the literacy needs will require intensive and targeted intervention in the coming years, as 
will increase student support in mathematics. New ELA/ELD supplemental curriculum was purchased to help address students' literacy 
needs, and staff received increased support through professional development for ELA/ELD instructional practices. Technology access for all 
students has increased access to the ELA/ELD supplemental curriculum and support, as well as other online curriculum resources.   MCSOS 
will continue to prioritize access to technology for all students allowing for greater access to curriculum resources and online assessments.  
Professional development is being planned for the 2021-22 school year to begin to address grade level deficiencies experienced by our 
students. Career Technical Education course completion is an area for needed growth for Juvenile Hall students, even though the majority 
are enrolled for fewer than 30 days. 
 
Access to virtual welders and instruction by a welding teacher will increase access to CTE instruction, and assist in preparing students to be 
Career Ready.  The LCAP Survey (Spring 2021) indicated that 71.4% of students are interested in welding as a CTE pathway, followed by 
construction with 57.1%.  Adding additional requested CTE courses based on student and parent surveys will increase interest and 
completion, along with facilitating a transition back to their school of residence's CTE offerings. 
 
Although most students are assessed through i-Ready upon entering Juvenile Hall and prior to their release, there are several that are 
released without being assessed.  This year has shown greater challenges for assessing, because safety precautions for COVID-19 did not 
allow access to students for at least 10 days.  Communication with correctional staff continues to be a strength of Juvenile Hall's educational 
program and contributes to creating opportunities to collect student achievement data.  According to a supervising mental health clinician 
from Madera County Behavioral Health Services, the students in alternative education programs, specifically those in Juvenile Hall, are at 
"ground zero" in terms of needing trauma informed practices and SEL best practices.  The effects on these students as a result of the 
pandemic are unknown, but indications are that impact will be long-lasting and require extensive interventions. 
         


 
 


LCAP Highlights 
 


A brief overview of the LCAP, including any key features that should be emphasized. 
 


The 2021-24 LCAP is written with input from members of each stakeholder group of Madera County Superintendent of Schools. Our 
stakeholders input aligns with the three LCAP goals of the previous LCAP, including the three goals outlined below, and will allow MCSOS to 
continue focusing on efforts to support all students.  Increased efforts will be made to focus on the specific needs of foster or homeless 
youth, English Learners, and socio-economically disadvantaged students, representing 100% of the Endeavor/Voyager student population. 
These three goals also address the ten state priorities, which are: 1)Student Achievement, 2) Student Engagement, 3) Student Outcomes, 4) 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 5 of 60


School Climate, 5) Parent Involvement, 6) Basic Services, 7) Implementation of the Common Core State Standards, 8) Course Access, 9) 
Expelled Youth, and 10) Foster Youth. 
 
Several key features listed in PTC's LCAP for the 2021-22 school year include: Social-Emotional Foundational awareness for teachers and 
students, improved academic supports, targeted academic support, and CTE pathway enrichment and completion. 
 
Goal 1: Juvenile Hall (Endeavor/Voyager) students will stay on track to becoming college and career ready through state adopted standards 
instructions. 
 
Key actions in the LCAP supporting this goal include increasing grade-level on i-Ready ELA and math assessments through targeted, 
accelerated interventions, improved academic support, access to CTE introductory courses, and low teacher to student ratios. Based on 
student survey results, virtual welding will be available to students in the Cadet Academy (Voyager), which will support students acquiring 
technical skills for welding and facilitate transition into CTE courses at their districts of residence.  COVID-19 forced instruction to move to 
Distance Learning for most of the 2020-21 school year and now MCSOS must prepare to bring all students back on site for direct instruction 
and optimizing the time spent with students while supporting students' social-emotional learning needs.  A key learning from distance 
learning was the use of a variety of instructional strategies and feedback to ensure optimized learning opportunities and drive instruction. 
Those learnings will be the foundation that MCSOS will build on as those students return to classrooms for seat-based instruction.  To 
support these changes; ELA, ELD, and mathematics professional development will be planned and conducted throughout the year to support 
increased student achievement through improved instructional practices. Keeping the student to teacher ratio low is imperative for students 
to receive differentiated instruction to meet their individual needs. 
 
Goal 2: MCSOS will provide resources and services to to improve the social-emotional well-being of each student and provide a safe 
environment conducive to learning. 
 
Moving into the 2021-22 school year, MCSOS is unsure of the specific social-emotional needs of staff and students, but planned professional 
development will assist staff in identifying and supporting students and provide awareness of local supports from county behavioral health 
department.  Partnerships with internal and external sources provide the support and resource platform that will be built upon. This is key to 
learning and growth for Juvenile Hall students as we provide support for the whole child, knowing that if students do not feel physically and 
emotionally "safe" then learning will not occur.  As the COVID-19 pandemic created educational challenges and the need for Distance 
Learning, students' social-emotional well-being was the forefront of most professional growth and development for staff. 
 
Goal 3: Increase parent involvement by developing meaningful partnerships and participation. 
 
The emphasis on building and maintaining stronger family and community engagement, will continue with local community partnerships, 
parent-teacher conferences, parent academic and informational workshops and continued correspondence through ParentSquare. An 
additional emphasis is building stronger family and community engagement. COVID-19 provided MCSOS an opportunity to evaluate and 
refine communication protocols with teachers, correctional staff, parents, and administration. Those protocols for communication have been 
carried over into the new school years and will be built upon going forward. Parent workshops are being planned to help with current and 
future needs for students ranging from transition support, and attendance policies and requirements for college enrollment and financial aid. 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 6 of 60


Providing external learning opportunities like visiting a business or college, historical sites and museums, and community volunteer 
experiences will help teach and support developing well-rounded students.  The involvement of parents in the educational process of 
students who are incarcerated can present unique challenges. To enhance this involvement, staff will make positive contacts with parents 
which will be monitored and documented through logs and communication templates. As students prepare to transition from the correctional 
facilities, staff will conduct transitional meetings that will include the students, his/her parents/guardians, teachers, counselors, and probation. 
To improve parent participation on formal and informal committees, staff will make personal contacts through phone calls or face to face 
meetings to encourage involvement.  The combined Career Alternative Education Services (CAES) Division's combined School Site Council 
(SSC) has created greater opportunities for students, parents, and correctional/probation staff to provide valuable input in the decision-
making and approval process for specific funding. 
 
Goal 4: Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of students in foster care. 
 
The Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) will continue its high commitment to serving foster youth within the county. MCSOS 
will take the lead in the coordination of services for foster youth throughout the county with various agencies in the county including, but not 
limited to, Madera County Department of Social Services and Local Education Agencies (LEA). Meetings and trainings will be conducted for 
the foster youth parents to provide them with information that will assist the children in their care as they participate in school and prepare to 
exit the foster youth program. A greater emphasis will be placed on providing services to students who are identified as foster youth that 
attend school in the correctional facilities which will include increased counseling as appropriate, FAFSA completion, and reviewing a 
community college matriculation process. 
 
Goal 5:Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of students in foster care. 
 
Working with nine (9) districts, MCSOS maintains the countywide collaborative process for developing and revising the plan to address the 
educational services for expelled youth while offering charter school options for expelled youth as well. 
         


 


Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
 


An LEA with a school or schools eligible for comprehensive support and improvement must respond to the following prompts. 
 


Schools Identified 
 


A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 
 


         
 
Support for Identified Schools 
 


A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 
 


         
 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 7 of 60


Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
 


A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 
 


         
 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 8 of 60


Stakeholder Engagement 
 
 


A summary of the stakeholder process and how the stakeholder engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP.  
 


MCSOS believes that stakeholder input drives the development of the LCAP. We consulted parents, students, all school personnel, local 
bargaining units, and the community over the course of a year conducting 9 meetings and administering surveys to employees, community 
members, all students, and all parents. 
 
To obtain stakeholder input in the writing and approval of the MCSOS LCAP, MCSOS held a series of stakeholder input meetings that were 
scheduled exclusively for input and feedback: 
 
2/11/21 - All CAES Staff LCAP Survey sent out by email (7:30-9:00 a.m.) 
2/16/21 - 2/23/21 - Hard Copies of Parent and Student Surveys were distributed in student work packets and through an electronic Parent 
Square link. 
2/25/21 - CAES Parent Advisory Committee (PAC) Stakeholder Input Zoom (11:00–12:00 and 4:00–5:00 p.m.) 
3/1/21- Parent Square / Email invite to all PTC / MCIA and MCSOS (Juvenile  Hall) for the following: 
3/9/21 - Stakeholder Input – MCIA (Zoom) (10:00–11:00 and 4:30–5:30 p.m.) 
3/10/21 - Stakeholder Input – PTC (Zoom) (10:00–11:00 and 4:30–5:30 p.m.) 
3/11/21 - Stakeholder Input – MCSOS (Zoom) (10:00–11:00 and 4:30–5:30 p.m.) 
3/18/21 - Stakeholder Input - CAES SSC Meeting #3 (Zoom) 1:00–2:00 p.m. 
3/18/21 - Stakeholder Input – CAES ELAC Meeting #3 (Zoom) 2:00–3:00 p.m. 
4/8/21 - LCAP Stakeholder Feedback Analysis / Needs Assessment (8:00–12:00 p.m.) Cogan, Sanchez. Macedo and Ellingson 
6/1/21 - SELPA Stakeholder Meeting with Executive Director - CAES division and SLPA Program Director (12:45 - 1:30 p.m.) 
 
Due to state and local restrictions; parent, community, and student meetings were held via Zoom. Stakeholders could participate either by 
phone or by logging into the Zoom platform. Translation services were provided at each meeting as needed. MCSOS made all efforts to 
assure voices were heard from stakeholders through these meeting that represented English Learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, 
and foster/homeless students. In each of the input meetings, i-Ready diagnostic assessment data from Juvenile Hall, as well at MCIA and 
PTC, in the areas of ELA and Math, was shared with the stakeholders. 
 
Once all stakeholder input was collected, the administrative team analyzed the feedback and used it to draft the LCAP. The most common 
topics of successes and needs were collected throughout the feedback process and then given priority in the writing of the LCAP, although 
many other topics were addressed. 
         


 
A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups. 
 


A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholders (Parent and students) is attached to this LCAP, by percentage.  
 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 9 of 60


PTC Madera Parents responses = 23% 
PTC Madera Student responses = 30% 
PTC Chowchilla Parent responses = 44% 
PTC Chowchilla Student responses = 57% 
MCIA Parent responses = 50% 
MCIA Student responses = 44% 
Juvenile Hall Student responses = 100% 


 ----------------------------------------------------- 
Total = Parents = 31% (includes anonymous surveys sent to all parents via ParentSquare) 
Total = Students (Juvenile Hall) = 100% 


 ----------------------------------------------------- 
Average Total Responses = 35% 
 
Stakeholder input: 
Meetings were held on several days and different time of day to ensure that all stakeholders had the opportunity to provide input. In order to 
comply with health and safety guidelines, these meetings were held virtually through the Zoom platform where parents could participate by 
phone or through the online platform. The qualitative data that was collected during these meetings, along with comments from our staff, 
student, and parent surveys indicate stakeholders feel our greatest areas of strength include: 
1) 90% of students feel safe at school 
2)71.4% of students are interested in CTE welding courses 
3) 57.1% of students are interested in CTE construction courses 
4) More than 80% of students feel that Juvenile Hall teachers want them to be successful 
 
During those same meetings, the stakeholders feel our greatest are of identified needs are: 
1) Increased student achievement 
2) Access to technology 
3) Safe learning environment 
4) Opportunities for parent engagement and communication 
 


 
A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific stakeholder input. 
 


The five goals of the LCAP were originally created with stakeholder input. This year, stakeholder input continues to demonstrate that our 
efforts are focused in the right areas.  The following will continue to remain the focus of this plan: 
 
1) Juvenile Hall (Endeavor/Voyager) students will stay on track to becoming college and career ready through state adopted standards 
instructions. 
2) MCSOS will provide resources and services to improve the social-emotional well-being of each student and provide a safe environment 
conducive to learning. 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 10 of 60


3) Increase parent involvement by developing meaningful partnerships and participation. 
4) Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of students in foster care. 
5) Coordinate the instruction of Expelled Pupils and facilitate the collaborative process for developing and revising the countywide plan to 
address the educational services for expelled youth and their transition to district of residence or charter school. 
 
Continued aspects of the LCAP influenced by specific stakeholder Input: 
Goal 1: Juvenile Hall (Endeavor/Voyager) students will stay on track to becoming college and career ready through state adopted 
standards instructions. 
Continued aspects of the LCAP influenced by specific stakeholder Input (see attached parent and student surveys and overview above): 
1) Juvenile Hall students are still not performing academically at grade level and need to be ready for post-graduation options - Goal 1 Action 
2, 6, 7, 9, 11 
2) Professional Development for staff continuing in the areas of ELA, ELD, and social-emotional learning. Parents and students reported 
agreeing with statements that the school promotes success for all students and teachers are well qualified to teach students - Goal 1 Action 
1, 5 Goal 2 Action 2 
Goal 2: MCSOS will provide resources and services to improve the social-emotional well-being of each student and provide a 
safe environment conducive to learning. 
1) Effects of prolonged isolation from family's impact on SEL Goal 2 Action 1, 2, 7 
2) Reduce suspension rate and safe classroom environment Goal 2 Action 1, 5, 7 
Goal 3: Increase parent involvement by developing meaningful partnerships and participation. 
1) Parents not participating in advisory committees Goal 3 Action 3, 4, 5, 6 
2) Low participation from EL students' parents Goal 3 Action 6 
Goal 4:  Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of students in foster care. 
Goal 5: Coordinate the instruction of Expelled Pupils and facilitate the collaborative process for developing and revising the countywide plan 
to address the educational services for expelled youth and their transition to district of residence or charter school. 
 
New aspects of the LCAP influenced by specific stakeholder input: 
1) Acceleration labs to increase student achievement 
2) Social-Emotional Services expanded to SED 
3) Virtual welding class for Cadet Academy students 
4) School events for parent participation at Juvenile Hall 
         


 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 11 of 60


Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 


Goal # Description 
1 Juvenile Hall (Endeavor/Voyager) students will stay on track to becoming college and career ready through state adopted 


standards instructions.         
 


An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 


Students are enrolled in Juvenile Hall from school districts in Madera, as well as districts in other counties.  The length of enrollment varies 
greatly, so fulfilling this goal helps ensure students to not fall behind academically.         


 


Measuring and Reporting Results 
 


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


1. Number of 
professional 
development sessions 
attended by teachers.        


100% of teachers and 
staff receive 
professional 
development of 90 
minutes embedded 
into the weekly 
instructional schedule 
throughout the school 
year.  In addition, 
teachers accessed 
additional professional 
development. 


   100% of teachers and 
staff will participate 
annually in 
professional 
development on 
California Common 
Core State Standards 
in ELA, Mathematics, 
Social Science, and 
Science, either 
through MCSOS or 
other professional 
educational 
organizations 
 


2. Number of students 
earning additional 
credits beyond those 
earned in seat-time 
classes per semester.        


To be established in 
Fall semester 2021. 


   Odysseyware or other 
online curriculum will 
be the primary method 
for students to recover 
credits.. 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 12 of 60


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


3. Number of students 
completing Individual 
Graduation Progress 
Plan and Career 
Assessment Survey.        


Number to be 
established in Fall 
2021. 


   All students who are 
in Juvenile Hall longer 
than 15 days will 
receive 
an Individual 
Graduation Progress 
Plan and a career 
assessment survey. 
 


4. Number of English 
Learner (EL) 
reclassifications.        


No EL students have 
been reclassified in 
the last three years. 


   10% of EL students 
will be reclassified 
annually. 


5. Instruction and 
materials aligned with 
Common Core State 
Standards (CCSS).        


100% of students 
standards based 
instruction and 
instructional materials. 


   100% of students 
receive standards 
based instruction and 
instructional materials. 


6. Number of students 
meeting or exceeding 
standard on SBAC.        


No students met or 
exceeded standard on 
the last SBAC 
assessment 
administered. 


   Continue to decrease 
points below meeting 
standard or meet 
standard.. 


7. Number of students 
on track to graduate 
with a high school 
diploma.        


3 Students graduated 
in 2019-20. 


   All students will be 
able to transfer back 
to their home-district 
on track to graduate 
with their class or 
graduate from 
Endeavor/Voyager. 


8. Number of students 
receiving intervention 
and supports.        


All students with an 
IEP receive 
interventions and 
supports identified on 
their IEP. 


   Continue to ensure 
that all students with 
an IEP will receive 
interventions identified 
on their IEP. 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 13 of 60


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


9. Growth on i-Ready 
assessments in ELA 
and Math.        


To be established in 
Fall 2021. 


   All Juvenile Hall 
students with valid 
scores will show 
individual growth 
between diagnostic 
assessments on ELA 
and Math for i-Ready 
and LAS Links 
assessments toward 
meeting or exceeding 
grade level. 


10. Number of 
students qualifying for 
modified graduation 
track or grade level 
reclassification.        


All students in grades 
11 and 12 will be 
screened; 9 students 
were qualified in 20-
21 school year. 


   All students in 11th 
and 12th grades will 
be assessed or 
screened to determine 
qualification for grade 
level reclassification 
or modified graduation 
requirements. 


11. Number of 
students enrolled in 
Career Technical 
Education (CTE) 
introductory welding 
course.        


0 students accessing 
virtual welding course 
during 20-21. 


   Increase the number 
of students in the 
Cadet Academy 
taking virtual welding 
course will increase 
annually. 


 


Actions 
 
Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 


1 Address on-going 
Professional 
Development needs        


Professional development for Endeavor/Voyager is designed around 
meeting the academic, social, and emotional needs of students to 
maximize academic achievement. Professional development will also 
focus on identifying and implementing best instructional practices 
principally directed at meeting the needs of Unduplicated Pupils. 
Professional development is designed for teachers, administrators, 


$4,500.00 
 


X 
 Yes     







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 14 of 60


Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
counselors, and other support staff. Teachers are encouraged to seek 
professional development opportunities or conferences provided by 
other educational organizations, aside from those provided by 
MCSOS. 
 
 


2 Provide Credit 
Recovery Options for 
All Students        


Students enrolled in Juvenile Hall come from various districts from 
Madera and other counties.  Furthermore, the majority of students are 
significantly behind in credits.  To help students recover the credits 
needed to fulfill the graduation requirement, online courses such as 
Odysseyware will be used.  Students needing to complete A-G 
courses will also have the option.  Teachers and instructional assistant 
will be able to provide additional support.  Partial credits will be 
awarded for students who get released prior to the end of the 
semester.  Academic counselor, counseling specialist, and 
administrator will ensure academic records are obtained in a timely 
manner. 
 
 


$241,365.00 
X 
 
 No      


3 Create Individual 
Progress Plans and 
Career Assessment 
Surveys        


Academic Counselor will meet with all students in the Cadet Academy, 
and students enrolled in Endeavor for more than 15 days to complete 
Individual Progress Plan and  Career Assessment Survey.  Academic 
Counselor will also assist graduating high school students with 
registration at Madera Community College and completing FAFSA 
documents. 
 
 


 
X 
 
 No      


4 Reclassify EL 
Students        


To support EL students in achieving English Language 
reclassification, Juvenile Hall educational staff will use LAS Links 
English Language Proficiency Assessment as one of our local 
assessments to meet reclassification criteria. LAS Links provides 
English Language proficiency results in speaking, listening, reading, 
and writing domains.  An ELPAC score of "4" is required for EL 
reclassification, along with three other criteria required by the state. 
The fourth criteria allows for use of local assessments for 
reclassification. The Program Director (Bilingual Coordinator), along 
with the academic counselor will review assessment results and 


$40,334.00 
 


X 
 Yes     







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 15 of 60


Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
consult with teacher. Parental opinion and consultation is also a 
requirement. Currently, 0% of these students have been reclassified in 
the last three school years. 
 
 


5 Provide CCSS 
Curriculum and 
Materials for all 
students        


Endeavor/Voyager will provide all students with high-quality standards 
aligned instructional support materials in ELA, Math, ELD, social 
science, and science. Materials will include textbooks, StudySynch 
(books and software), and other online software/curriculum, including 
Odysseyware. 
 
 


$5,000.00 
 


X 
 Yes     


6 Improve academic 
proficiency of SED 
Students on SBAC 
Math and ELA 
assessments        


Based on poor academic achievement of SED students in ELA and 
Math, Endeavor/Voyager staff will provide instruction and instructional 
materials to support SED students' academic growth as measured by 
SBAC ELA and Math assessments. Summative SBAC and Interim 
Assessment Blocks (IABs) will be administered by teachers and 
results are to be analyzed by administrators, teachers, and academic 
counselors.  Additional copies of instructional materials will be 
provided for students for home use. 
 
 


$3,730.00 
 


X 
 Yes     


7 Maintain students on 
track for Graduation        


Counseling specialist to maintain communication with home districts of 
all students enrolled in Endeavor/Voyager to ensure appropriate 
credits are assigned and minimize loss of credits toward graduation.  
Academic Counselor to facilitate updated Credit Evaluation so that 
teachers can assign coursework.  All students enrolled in Juvenile Hall 
at least 15 days are eligible to earn partial credits, which will be 
forwarded to home district upon release. 
 
 


$1,000.00 
X 
 
 No      


8 Support students with 
IEPs        


All teachers receive a daily roster of students with IEPs, which allows 
teacher to make appropriate accommodations.  In addition, the RSP 
teacher meets individually or in small groups with all students with 
IEPs.  Regular communication between core academic teachers and 
RSP teacher ensures student is receiving appropriate support.  


$4,590.00 
 


X 
 No      







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 16 of 60


Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
Support for students can be push-in or pull-out to provide additional 
options for students. 
 
 


9 SED students to 
make academic 
progress as 
measured by i-Ready 
assessments        


To support improved student academic performance, i-Ready 
assessments are used to show academic progress. Teachers will use 
formative i-Ready assessments and prescriptive lessons to help 
students become more academically proficient. Teachers will assign i-
Ready lessons as part of the required classwork to support learning 
and increase academic proficiency. The instructional assistant will 
assist low-performing students with additional support.  Additional 
instructional materials will be purchased to support classroom 
instruction, as needed. 
 
 


$25,277.00 
 


X 
 Yes     


10 Modify Graduation 
Requirements and 
Grade Level 
Reclassification        


Academic Counselor to grade level reclassify all qualifying students 
based on credits earned, as opposed to years in high school.  In 
addition, academic counselors screen students for AB2306 or other 
appropriate ABs to determine qualification for modified graduation 
requirements.  Upon satisfying requirements for any of the programs, 
appropriate courses will be assigned, as the graduation requirements 
may change.  Counselor to inform counseling specialist and teachers 
to ensure records are updated and enrollment in appropriate courses. 
 
 


 
X 
 
 No      


11 Increase students 
completing CTE 
Introductory Course        


In order to increase the number of students enrolled in CTE courses, 
an introduction to welding course will be provided to Juvenile Hall 
students due to a recent student survey (February 2021) in which 
71.4% of students stated an interest in enrolling in a CTE Welding 
Course. To assist and implement this instruction in a safe manner 
within the Juvenile Hall building, virtual welders will be used. The 
virtual welders allow the CTE instructor to create a near-real life 
welding scenario in a safe environment for the learner in absence of 
an actual welding shop.  The course will require hardware, software, 
materials and online resources.  In addition, teacher will receive 
professional development to maximize use of virtual welders. 
 


$39,433.00 
X 
 
 No      







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 17 of 60


Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
 


12 Maintain low student 
to teacher ratio        


Student to teacher ratio should be 16:1, but during the 2020-21 school 
year, the ratio was below 7:1. Having an extra teacher allows students 
to receive increased support from all teachers, since their case loads 
are lower. SED students will improve academic achievement in ELA 
and Math through the increased support. 
 
 


$129,522.00 
X 
 
 No      


13 Maintain low student 
to teacher ratio        


Student to teacher ratio should be 20:1, but during the 2020-21 school 
year, we were below 8:1.  Having an extra teacher allows students to 
receive increased individualized support from all teachers, since the 
student to teacher ration is significantly lower.  SED students will 
improve academic achievement in ELA and Math through the 
increased support.  The additional teacher allows students to benefit 
from increased in-person course offerings. 
 
 


$119,276.00 
X 
 
 Yes     


 


Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 18 of 60


A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table. 
 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 19 of 60


Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 


Goal # Description 
2 MCSOS will provide resources and services to to improve the social-emotional well-being of each student and provide a 


safe environment conducive to learning.         
 


An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 


Many incarcerated students have a history of academic struggles and high absenteeism rates.  This goal aims to target the whole child to 
account for academic, social-emotional, and behavioral well-being.         


 


Measuring and Reporting Results 
 


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


1. Student to teacher 
ratio.        


Student to teacher 
ratio is 7:1 


   Maintain student to 
teacher ratio no 
greater than 12:1. 


2. Number of 
presentations to 
students annually.        


Two presentations 
were made in school 
year 20-21 


   Maintain or increase 
presentations to 
students on topics of 
interest and need. 


3. Attendance rate.        Current attendance 
rate is 100% as 
measure by school 
attendance system 


   Maintain 100% 
attendance. 


4. Facilities Inspection 
Tool (FIT)  score        


FIT in October 2020 
scored 
Endeavor/Voyager in 
"Good Repair" 


   Maintain FIT score of 
"good Repair" 
annually. 


5. Suspension rate.        Suspension rate was 
2.6% in SY 19-20 per  
DataQuest 


   Suspension rate will 
be 0% annually. 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 20 of 60


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


6. Learning 
opportunities outside 
of the classroom.        


In school year 19-20, 
100% of students 
participated in 
classroom and 
extended learning 
opportunities, which 
included field trips, 
essay and poetry 
contest, as well as 
athletic competitions 


   100% of students will 
be encouraged to 
participate in 
classroom learning 
and extended learning 
opportunities. 
 
 


7. Percentage of 
students indicating a 
positive school 
environment        


LCAP Survey in 
Spring 2021 data 
shows 95% of 
students feel 
encouraged to 
succeed 


   100% of students will 
state they are 
encouraged to 
succeed annually. 


 


Actions 
 
Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 


1 Maintain a low 
Teacher to Student 
Ratio        


MCSOS will maintain a low teacher to student ratio to better support 
students academically, socially, emotionally, and behaviorally.  
Current is lower than 10:1 and will not exceed 7:1.  In addition, an 
Instructional Assistant provides additional support to Unduplicated 
Students.  Program Director maintains communication with Deputy 
Chief Probation Officer to discuss changes in student enrollment. 
 
This Action is address in Goal 1, Action 12 
 
 
 


 
X 
 
 No      


2 Counseling 
Presentations        


Academic counselors to present or invite guest presenters to provide 
information on resources and services available to students upon their 
release, and some that may be available during their incarceration.  
Information covers topics including, workforce, college registration, 


 
X 
 
 No      







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 21 of 60


Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
financial aid, Job Corps, and other topics of interest.  In addition, 
Rotary Club speakers are invited by the ELA teacher to provide 
valuable information on resources in Madera County.  Wreaths Across 
America is also invited to present, so that students can support the 
organizations efforts. 
 
 


3 Increase Attendance 
Rate        


Students in Juvenile Hall have historically high levels of truancy and 
academic struggles.  All teachers will create a positive learning 
environment to encourage students to attend class.  Although students 
are incarcerated, they have the option to not attend class.  Teachers, 
academic counselor and program director to participate in Treatment 
Team meeting with Juvenile Hall staff to learn of issues and supports 
for students who are struggling with incarceration, which can impact 
school attendance.  Meetings are held monthly. 
 
 


$500.00 
X 
 
 No      


4 Maintain access to 
technology        


Students in Juvenile Hall will have access to online curriculum and 
resources in a a cybersafe environment and use technology 
appropriately.  Students will be more prepared to access online 
assessments, such as ELPAC and SBAC state assessments, along 
with local assessments.  In addition, online courses will allow students 
to stay on course to graduate in accordance with home district 
requirements.  Teachers will have access to upgraded hardware and 
software to support student learning and academic proficiency.  
Professional Learning will continue to provide pedagogy and 
resources for all teachers and students. 
 
 


$4,700.00 
X 
 
 No      


5 Reduce Suspension 
Rate        


Reduce suspensions by creating opportunities for students to increase 
connectedness to school. Regular communication with teachers, 
administrators, and families will help support students' needs. 
Behavioral concerns will be addressed and communicated swiftly. 
Parent conferences help ground communication between home and 
school, as well as student report cards, progress reporting and regular 
calls home.  Communication and collaboration with correctional staff 
will also contribute to students feeling more connected to school. 


$3,500.00 
X 
 
 No      







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 22 of 60


Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
 
NOTE: Included in teachers' salary 
 
 
 


6 Increase Student 
Participation        


Extended learning opportunities, such as field trips and guest 
presentations for students have been well attended. Teachers will plan 
field trips and guest presenters that enhance student learning and 
increase connectedness to school. Field trips now allow for virtual 
access, which can also contribute to learning goals. 
 
 


$1,000.00 
 


X 
 Yes     


7 Maintain a Positive 
Learning 
Environment        


When students feel physically, cognitively, and emotionally safe, they 
are better able to optimize their learning capacity. ParentSquare 
allows safe and effective communication between the school and 
students or parents. Teachers will teach, model, and practice social-
emotional skills that promote a safe learning environment. Academic 
counselors will provide lessons on a variety of topics that affect social-
emotional learning and better equip students to cope with challenges 
to academic achievement.  Academic counselor, RSP teacher and 
school psychologist to provide services to students to support 
academic needs and teach skills to cope with difficulties.  A small 
student to teacher ratio also contributes to positive school environment 
by allowing teachers to develop stronger teacher to student 
relationships. 
 
 


$7,260.00 
 


X 
 Yes     


 


Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 23 of 60


 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table. 
 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 24 of 60


Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 


Goal # Description 
3 Increase parent involvement by developing meaningful partnerships and participation.         


 


An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 


         
 


Measuring and Reporting Results 
 


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


1. Average number of 
FY caregiver 
participation in 
monthly workshops        


To be established Fall 
2021 


   On average, 25% of 
caregivers/parents will 
participate in monthly 
parent workshops 


2. Percentage of 
caregivers who 
believe they have the 
capacity to meet the 
educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of students in 
foster care (via Annual 
Caregiver feedback 
survey)        


To be established Fall 
2021 


   100% of surveyed 
caregivers believe 
they have the capacity 
to meet the 
educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of students in 
foster care 


3. PowerSchool Log 
Entries        


Teachers do not 
maintain call log in 
PowerSchool 


   100% of teachers will 
maintain 
communication log 
entries in 
PowerSchool. 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 25 of 60


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


4. Attendance by 
parents to school 
events.        


No parents attended 
school events or 
advisory committee 
meetings. 


   Increase parent 
attendance to school 
events or advisory 
meetings by 10% 
annually. 


5. Number of parents 
using ParentSquare to 
communicate with 
school.        


No parents completed 
surveys sent via 
Parent Square 


   Increase parent 
participation/completio
n of school surveys by 
10% annually. 


6. Number of EL 
students attending 
Endeavor/Voyager in 
parent advisory 
committees.        


No parents of EL 
students attend parent 
advisory meetings 


   Parent participation 
for EL students will 
increase at least 10% 
annually. 


 


Actions 
 
Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 


1 Build CAES Foster 
and Homeless 
parent/caregiver 
capacity to support 
the educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of youth.        


Coordinate monthly workshops to inform caregivers about the unique 
needs of Foster and Homeless Youth.  Workshop topics include 
AB490/McKinney-Vento, Overview of Resources and Support 
Services, Trauma Informed Strategies for Behavior at Home, Ensuring 
Healthy Relationships for Youth, Suicide Awareness, Supporting 
Youth through Early College Awareness and Preparation, the Special 
Education Process, and Human Trafficking Awareness; Ensure 
caregiver accessibility by providing virtual opportunities to participate. 
 
 


$273,445.00 
X 
 
 No      


2 Document Home-
School 
Communication        


Documentation of all communication in PowerSchool by teachers on a 
daily basis for students on their schedule. Administrators, counselors, 
and other support staff will also log communication with students on 
parents. Documentation will contribute to effective communication by 
all staff, especially administrators and academic counselors, while 
meeting with parents to discuss successes or concerns about their 
child's academic progress. 


 
X 
 
 No      







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 26 of 60


Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
 
 


3 Endeavor/Voyager 
School Events        


Increase parent participation at school events and informational 
meetings to support identified needs of families. Voyager hosts Cadet 
Academy Graduation ceremonies throughout the year and parents will 
be invited to attend.  Parents can attend athletic competitions or 
essay/poetry competitions as well.  There are additional advisory 
committees that provide opportunities for students and families to 
provide input on programmatic improvements. Families requiring 
transportation will be provided tickets/vouchers to access 
transportation to attend school events. 
 
 


$200.00 
X 
 
 No      


4 Parents Attending 
School Events        


Program Director to work with correctional staff to make 
accommodations for school/student related meeting to be held on-site 
to increase parent attendance.  Input from families will help establish 
informational meeting topics of interest to provide families with 
resources and skills to support their student's academic and social-
emotional needs.  Partnerships with Madera County Department of 
Public/Behavioral Health will provide local resources accessible to 
families in Madera County. 
 
 


 
X 
 
 No      


5 Promote School 
Communication with 
Families        


ParentSquare, which allows for two-way communication between 
school and home, and phone calls for school events  will be used to 
contact all families. All communication will be translated to families' 
preferred languages, currently English and Spanish. Translations of 
announcements and documents through ParentSquare will also 
provide opportunities for parents to provide feedback through surveys 
distributed through ParentSquare. 
 
 


 
X 
 
 No      


6 Increase feedback 
from EL Parents        


MCSOS will increase participation of EL parents through personal 
invitations via phone calls from administrators, academic counselors, 
or other support staff. Parent consultation and feedback meetings for 
the purpose of EL reclassification will also provide opportunities for 
parents to provide feedback. ParentSquare translates communications 


$28,987.00 
X 
 
 No      







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 27 of 60


Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
to the language of EL students' parents.  Administrator, academic 
counselor, instructional assistant and support staff are Spanish-
speaking, which is the primary language of more than 99% of EL 
students enrolled in Endeavor/Voyager. 
 
 


 


Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table. 
 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 28 of 60


Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 


Goal # Description 
4 Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of students in foster care.         


 


An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 


The educational outcomes of students in foster care continue to be of concern not only statewide, but, locally as well.  A low percentage of 
students in foster care graduate from high school, and, although most Foster Youth say they want to go to college, very few do.  Of those 
who enroll in a post-secondary program, very few successfully complete.  Additionally, students in foster care often change placements, 
impacting their academic and social-emotional success and well-being.  Students if foster care consistently perform low in ELA and Math 
state assessments.  Ensuring students in foster care receive the necessary information and support to graduate from high school and to be 
prepared for college/career is vital.  Due to the high mobility of Foster Youth, establishing county-wide policies and procedures to address 
school stability and the immediate enrollment of Foster Youth is critical.  Providing LEAs and other stakeholders with information about the 
unique needs of Foster Youth, trainings, and support to develop their capacity to advocate for and support this group of youth is critical for 
the stability and success off our students in foster care.         


 


Measuring and Reporting Results 
 


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


1. Percentage of 
LEA/district liaisons 
who feel they have the 
capacity to meet the 
academic and social-
emotional needs of 
Foster Youth in their 
district (via Annual 
LEA feedback survey)        


To be established Fall 
2021 


   100% of district 
liaisons feel they have 
the capacity to meet 
the academic and 
social-emotional 
needs of Foster Youth 


2. School mobility rate 
(as defined by number 
of school placement 
changes)        


To be established Fall 
2021 


   50% of eligible Foster 
Youth who experience 
a change in home 
placement will remain 
in their school of origin 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 29 of 60


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


if it is in their best 
interest 


3. Number of 
stakeholder 
professional 
development and 
training opportunities 
provided in areas 
relevant to Foster 
Youth        


8 professional 
development and 
training opportunities 
provided in 
19-20 and included in 
Foster Youth Services 
Coordinating Program 
(FYSCP) EOY Report 
data 
 


   The number of 
professional 
development/training 
opportunities for 
liaisons and other 
stakeholders will be 
maintained or 
increased 


4. 
Development/sharing 
of best practices for 
immediate enrollment, 
school stability, 
engagement, 
grade/credit 
protection, and grade 
level transition support 
services.        


Best practices in the 
identified areas have 
not been collected. 


   Best practices for 
immediate enrollment, 
school stability, 
engagement, 
grade/credit 
protection, and grade 
level transition support 
services will be 
developed and 
disseminated to all 
district liaisons and 
relevant community 
stakeholders 


5. Number of Foster 
Youth served through 
case management 
services        


120 Foster Youth 
served in 
19-20 
 


   60% of Foster Youth 
will be served through 
case management 
services 


6. Number of liaisons 
who utilize the Foster 
Focus Database to 
track school mobility        


3 liaisons utilized 
Foster Focus 
Database in 19-20 


   100% of district 
liaisons will utilize the 
Foster Focus 
database to track 
school mobility 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 30 of 60


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


7. Number of college 
visits and other 
student event/activity 
opportunities        


9 college visits and 
student 
events/activities held 
in 19-20 


   Opportunities to visit 
colleges and to 
participate in various 
student 
events/activities will 
be available for all 
Foster Youth in 
grades 1st-12th 
grade.   Provide 10 
opportunities per year 


8. Number of youth 
who participate in the 
Skills4Success work 
experience program        


12 youth participated 
in work experience 
program 


   Maintain or increase 
the number of work 
experience 
opportunities for 
Foster Youth 


9. Number of students 
who participate in the 
annual College and 
Career Fair        


34 students 
participated in annual 
fair held in 18-19 
school year 


   60% of all Foster 
Youth grades 7th-12th 
grade will participate 
in the annual College 
and Career Fair 


10. Number of seniors 
who participate in the 
Senior Support 
Workshop Series        


No prior data.  
Baseline will be 
established 2021-22 


   100% of seniors 
interested in 
completing the 
community college 
matriculation process 
will participate in the 
Senior Support 
Workshop Series 


11. Development and 
dissemination of best 
practices to ensure 
access to 
college/career 
readiness courses 
and services (i.e. 


Best practices in the 
identified areas have 
not been collected 


   Best practices to 
ensure access to 
college/career 
readiness courses 
and services (i.e. 
summer school, credit 
recovery, dual 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 31 of 60


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


summer school, credit 
recovery, dual 
enrollment, A-G and 
CTE courses, etc.)        


enrollment, A-G and 
CTE courses, etc.) will 
be developed and 
disseminated to all 
liaisons and pertinent 
school staff 


12. Number of youth 
who participate in 
grade level transition 
and SEL activities        


No prior data. 
Baseline will be 
established during the 
2022-2023 SY as 
2021-2022 will be 
used to research and 
gather best practices 
for the identification of 
services/activities. 


   100% of Foster Youth 
identified for SEL 
support will participate 
in SEL activities; 
100% of Foster Youth 
in K, 6th, 8th, and 
12th grades will 
receive grade level 
transition support 


13.Number of trauma-
informed professional 
development and 
training opportunities        


4 trauma-informed 
professional 
development and 
training opportunities 
in 19-20 


   Maintain or increase 
the number of trauma-
informed trainings and 
professional 
development 
opportunities for 
liaisons and other 
school staff 


14. Gathering and 
sharing of SEL 
resources with 
stakeholders        


SEL resources have 
not been compiled 


   SEL resources will be 
gathered and regularly 
shared with 
stakeholders and will 
be 
maintained/updated 
as necessary 


15.Development and 
sharing of best 
practices to increase 
Foster Youth access 
to school-based SEL 


Best practices on how 
to increase Foster 
Youth access to 
school-based SEL 
resources and 


   Best practices on how 
to increase Foster 
Youth access to 
school-based SEL 
resources and 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 32 of 60


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


resources and 
interventions        


interventions have not 
been compiled 


interventions will be 
gathered and shared 
with liaisons and other 
pertinent school staff 
regularly and as 
requested 


16. Gathering and 
sharing of best 
practices/evidence-
based mentoring 
programs        


Best 
practices/evidence-
based mentoring 
programs have not 
been compiled 


   Best practices in 
mentoring and 
evidence-based 
mentoring program 
options will be 
gathered and shared 
with LEAs; support will 
be provided as 
requested for the 
development and 
implementation of 
local programs, 
services or activities 


17. Number of youth 
who participate in 
mentoring activities        


No prior data.  
Baseline will be 
established during the 
2022-2023 SY as 
2021-2022 will be 
used to research and 
gather best 
practices/evidence-
based program 
information for the 
identification of 
services/activities. 


   100% of Foster Youth 
identified for 
mentoring will 
participate in 
mentoring activities 


18. Average number 
of caregiver 
participation in 
monthly workshops        


Average number of 
caregiver participation 
in monthly workshops 


   On average, 25% of 
caregivers will 
participate in monthly 
parent workshops 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 33 of 60


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


is 21 participants in 
19-20 


19. Percentage of 
caregivers who 
believe they have the 
capacity to meet the 
educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of students in 
foster care (via Annual 
Caregiver feedback 
survey)        


To be established Fall 
2021 


   100% of surveyed 
caregivers believe 
they have the capacity 
to meet the 
educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of students in 
foster care 


20. Average number 
of students who 
participate in quarterly 
College & Career 
Readiness Workshops        


Average of 12 
students participated 
in quarterly College & 
Career Readiness 
Workshops 


   On average, 30% of 
Foster Youth in 
grades 7th-12th will 
participate in quarterly 
College & Career 
Workshops 


 


Actions 
 
Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 


1 Build LEA capacity to 
support the 
educational needs of 
Foster Youth.        


Provide professional development and training opportunities to LEAs 
in areas relevant to foster youth; gather and share best practices for 
immediate enrollment, school stability, youth engagement, 
grade/credit protection, engagement in extracurricular activities, etc.; 
Assist LEAs to review policies and practices in areas that impact foster 
youth (i.e. discipline, attendance, behavior, enrollment); gather and 
share grade-level transition support best practices and provide LEA 
assistance to implement transition support services;  provide case 
management support; provide academic/tutorial support as requested; 
continue facilitating monthly Executive Advisory Council meetings. 
 
 


$2,000.00 
X 
 
 Yes     







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 34 of 60


Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
2 Ensure school 


stability by minimizing 
changes in school 
placement if in the 
best interest of the 
youth.        


Provide accessibility to and training on Foster Focus (a Foster Youth 
database) to all liaisons to help monitor school mobility; Facilitate the 
completion and implementation of a county-wide interagency 
agreement that includes a best-interest determination check-list and a 
school of origin transportation plan and provide relevant stakeholders 
with training/overview of the agreement; develop and share best 
practices to increase school stability and provide staff training to 
implement school stability; continue facilitating monthly Executive 
Advisory Council meetings where stakeholders are able to discuss 
individual youth and work to ensure the best school placement option. 
 
 


$9,000.00 
X 
 
 Yes     


3 Develop and 
coordinate college 
and career readiness 
and awareness 
support services and 
activities.        


Develop and share best practices to ensure access to summer school, 
credit recovery, dual enrollment, A-G and CTE enrollment, academic 
counseling, etc.; develop and provide support for grade level transition 
services; provide support for work experience opportunities; 
coordinate and facilitate post-secondary preparation support services 
and activities; provide case management support; coordinate college 
visits and other student event opportunities; coordinate and facilitate 
monthly caregiver workshops to ensure post-secondary preparation 
knowledge; coordinate and facilitate an annual College and Career 
Fair; coordinate and facilitate Senior Support workshops; coordinate 
other academic/social-emotional enrichment activities. 
 
 


$10,800.00 
X 
 
 Yes     


4 Build LEA capacity to 
support the social-
emotional needs of 
Foster Youth.        


Ensure staff working with Foster Youth have adequate knowledge, 
trauma-informed training, and resources to meet the SEL needs of 
Foster Youth; gather and share best practices on ways to increase 
access to and participation in available school-based SEL resources 
and intervention systems and extra-curricular activities; assist to 
review policies/practices to ensure that Foster Youth experiencing 
school discipline receive priority access to positive behavior supports, 
Pupil Services counseling, mental health services, and other positive 
behavior modification services; Provide assistance for case managers; 
research, gather and share best practices in mentoring programs and 
share with LEAs; support LEAs to develop and implement local 
mentoring programs as needed. 


$5,000.00 
X 
 
 Yes     







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 35 of 60


Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
 
 


5 Build caregiver 
capacity to support 
the educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of Foster 
Youth.        


Coordinate monthly workshops to inform caregivers about the unique 
needs of Foster Youth.  Workshop topics include AB490, Overview of 
Resources and Support Services, Trauma Informed Strategies for 
Behavior at Home, Ensuring Healthy Relationships for Youth, Suicide 
Awareness, Supporting Youth through Early College Awareness and 
Preparation, the Special Education Process, and Human Trafficking 
Awareness; Ensure caregiver accessibility by providing virtual 
opportunities to participate. 
 
 


$800.00 
X 
 
 Yes     


 


Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table. 
 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 36 of 60


Goals and Actions 
 
Goal 
 


Goal # Description 
5 Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of students in foster care.         


 


An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
 


In order to enhance the quality of life for all students, MCSOS ensures that expelled students are considered and included in this vision.  That 
said, it will lead the coordination to develop the countywide Expelled Youth Plan to ensure the academic success of expelled youth and 
minimize learning loss as they transition from their home district to another school site, and back to their home district.         


 


Measuring and Reporting Results 
 


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


1.Madera County 
Student Expulsion 
Rate        


Madera County 
currently has a 0.13% 
expulsion rate 


   Maintain or reduce the 
expulsion rate 
annually. 


2. Annual Review of 
Plan        


Meetings for updates 
are held every three 
years 


   MCSOS will facilitate 
three meetings 
annually to review and 
monitor plan. 


 


Actions 
 
Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 


1 Triennial Meetings        MCSOS will provide personnel for full cooperation to oversee and 
monitor the Expelled Youth Plan and lead the process on a triennial 
basis to develop this plan in collaboration with the nine districts in 
Madera County.  The Executive Director, Career Alternative Education 
Services (CAES) Division, will lead the process with representatives 
from each of the other districts in Madera County. 
 
 


$15,685.00 
X 
 
 No      







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 37 of 60


Action # Title  Description Total Funds Contributing 
2 Annual Reviews        Annual review and monitoring of Expelled Youth Plan to ensure 


implementation and identify possible gaps, along with effective 
strategies for serving expelled youth.  All efforts will be made to 
effectively support expelled students to return to district of residence 
by satisfactorily meeting the stipulations of the expulsion. 
 
 


  


 


Goal Analysis [2021-22] 
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 
 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle.         
 
A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table. 
 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 38 of 60


 


Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students [2021-22] 
 


Percentage to Increase or Improve Services  Increased Apportionment based on the Enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students  


34.43% $262,654         
 
The Budgeted Expenditures for Actions identified as Contributing may be found in the Increased or Improved Services Expenditures 
Table. 
 
Required Descriptions 
 


For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of 
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the goals for these students. 
 


startcollapse 
 
A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required. 
 


The actions included in the LCAP marked as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement for foster youth, English 
Learners, and socio-economically disadvantaged students are being provided on a site wide basis and are consistent with 5 CCR Section 
15496(b). As described in the LCAP instructions, MCSOS has ensured they are principally directed towards Unduplicated Pupils and 
effective in meeting their needs as addressed within the goals and actions of this plan. Using the calculation tool provided by the state, 
MCSOS has calculated that it will received $262,654 in supplemental and concentration funding under the Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF).  Currently MCSOS has $65,458 remaining S&C funds for usage.  MCSOS is partnering with juvenile probation to identify other 
needs resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic to address student academic learning loss and social-emotional needs. 
 
In determining the need for increased services for MCSOS's Unduplicated Pupils (socio-economically disadvantaged, English learners, foster 
youth), MCSOS examined valuable data for objective indicators of academic risk. Because the assessments that would normally be given in 
the Spring of 2020 were not able to reliably conducted, the most recent local data from i-Ready for English Language Arts and mathematics 
was used. Input from stakeholders was also a significant consideration in determining students' needs, actions, and potential effectiveness. 
for unduplicated student groups are monitored and reported internally and with stakeholders to ensure the focus and determination of 
effectiveness remains centered on the outcomes for these students. 
 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 39 of 60


2020-21 ELA i-Ready Diagnostic #2 data showed that 100% of Juvenile students are at least one below grade level their current grade level. 
2020-21 Mathematics i-Ready Diagnostic #2 data showed that 100% of PTC students are at least two grade level or more below their current 
grade level. These scores, and 100% of PTC students being unduplicated students, shows a tremendous need due to the amount of 
students below grade level in mathematics and reading skills. MCSOS also referenced the available research on learning loss, which 
indicated that "Preliminary COVID slide estimates suggest students will return in the fall of 2020 with roughly 70% of the learning gains in 
reading relative to a typical school year. However, in mathematics, students are likely to show much smaller learning gains, returning with 
less than 50% of the learning gains and in some grades, nearly a full year behind what we would observe in normal conditions." (NWEA, 
Collaborative for Student Growth, April, 2020). The details of the required justifications for how MCSOS is increasing and improving services 
for the unduplicated student groups is contained in the Goals, Actions and Services section of this plan. The contributing titles are: 
 
Goal 1, Action #1 - To meet the diverse learning needs of Juvenile Hall students and the deficiencies they currently possess, as based on i-
Ready results (see data in attached files) and zero percent of students at or exceeding standard in mathematics on the CA Dashboard, 
increased and continuing professional development focused needs to be provided to all staff in the content area of mathematics. In the white 
paper, Raising Student Achievement Through Professional Development (see attached) from Generation Ready, effective professional 
development is: 1) Planned over time, sustained, rigorous and embedded within the context of the school; 2) Uses data to directly link to the 
school goals; 3) Is evidence-based and data driven both to guide improvement and measure impact; and 4) Is differentiated and ensures an 
intensive focus on the teaching learning relationship. Keeping in mind that 100% of Juvenile students are SED students, a practice of 
continued and responsive professional development provided by county office curriculum and instruction content specialists and site leaders 
will inform and address the needs of Juvenile Hall's greatest population. This focused professional development will help address Goal 1 by 
improving instructional practices through sustained trainings grounded in the current standards and frameworks, which will lead to greater 
achievement in mathematics and improved graduation rates. Growth and achievement will be measured through local assessments like i- 
Ready (measured by number of students below grade level) and on CAASPP data collected on the CA Dashboard (measured by growth 
toward standard). 
 
Goal 1, Action #4 - To support EL students in achieving English Language reclassification, Juvenile Hall educational staff will use LAS Links 
English Language Proficiency Assessment as one of our local assessments to meet reclassification criteria. LAS Links provides English 
Language proficiency results in speaking, listening, reading, and writing domains.  An ELPAC score of "4" is required for EL reclassification, 
along with three other criteria required by the state. The fourth criteria allows for use of local assessments for reclassification. The Program 
Director (Bilingual Coordinator), along with the academic counselor will review assessment results and consult with teacher. Parental opinion 
and consultation is also a requirement. Currently, 0% of these students have been reclassified in the last three school years. 
 
Goal 1, Action #5 - Endeavor/Voyager will provide all students with high-quality standards aligned instructional support materials in ELA, 
Math, ELD, social science, and science. Materials will include textbooks, StudySynch (books and software), and other online 
software/curriculum, including Odysseyware. 
 
Goal 1, Action #6 - Based on poor academic achievement of SED students in ELA and Math, Endeavor/Voyager staff will provide instruction 
and instructional materials to support SED students' academic growth as measured by SBAC ELA and Math assessments. Summative 
SBAC and Interim Assessment Blocks (IABs) will be administered by teachers and results are to be analyzed by administrators, teachers, 
and academic counselors.  Additional copies of instructional materials will be provided for students for home use. 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 40 of 60


 
Goal 1, Action #9 - To support improved student academic performance, i-Ready assessments are used to show academic progress. 
Teachers will use formative i-Ready assessments and prescriptive lessons to help students become more academically proficient. Teachers 
will assign i-Ready lessons as part of the required classwork to support learning and increase academic proficiency. The instructional 
assistant will assist low-performing students with additional support.  Additional instructional materials will be purchased to support classroom 
instruction, as needed. 
 
Goal 1, Action #13 - Student to teacher ratio should be 20:1, but during the 2020-21 school year, we were below 8:1.  Having an extra 
teacher allows students to receive increased individualized support from all teachers, since the student to teacher ration is significantly lower.  
SED students will improve academic achievement in ELA and Math through the increased support.  The additional teacher allows students to 
benefit from increased in-person course offerings. 
 
Goal 2, Action #6 - Extended learning opportunities, such as field trips and guest presentations for students have been well attended. 
Teachers will plan field trips and guest presenters that enhance student learning and increase connectedness to school. Field trips now allow 
for virtual access, which can also contribute to learning goals. 
 
Goal 2, Action #7 - When students feel physically, cognitively, and emotionally safe, they are better able to optimize their learning capacity. 
ParentSquare allows safe and effective communication between the school and students or parents. Teachers will teach, model, and practice 
social-emotional skills that promote a safe learning environment. Academic counselors will provide lessons on a variety of topics that affect 
social-emotional learning and better equip students to cope with challenges to academic achievement.  Academic counselor, RSP teacher 
and school psychologist to provide services to students to support academic needs and teach skills to cope with difficulties.  A small student 
to teacher ratio also contributes to positive school environment by allowing teachers to develop stronger teacher to student relationships. 
 
All actions and expenditures of funds marked as contributing to increased or improved services were developed focusing on the needs, 
conditions, or circumstances of the unduplicated population with further consideration of the actions design, content, method, and/or location 
that best meets the identified needs. All actions were developed using a careful analysis of data and input from stakeholders. These 
contributing actions are principally directed toward the unduplicated student population to help them be effective in meeting the identified 
LCAP goals and the identified needs of the unduplicated student groups. In the goals section of this plan, each action marked "yes" for 
contributing contains a detailed explanation of how that action is directed toward the unduplicated student population and effective in helping 
close equity and performance gaps, and meet the goals of MCSOS. MCSOS incorporated the language required by 5 CCR Section 15496 
into the description of each specific actions language because each response is unique and specific to each contributing action in this plan. 
MCSOS's intention in doing this is to increase transparency for stakeholders when reading this plan so they can better understand the 
rationale behind each unique site-wide action. These actions and services are being performed on a schoolwide basis in order to increased 
their overall efficiency and effectiveness. 
         


 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 41 of 60


 
Total Expenditures Table 
 


LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 


$350,704.00         $47,659.00 $95,882.00 $482,659.00 $976,904.00 


 


Totals: Total Personnel Total Non-personnel 


Totals:          $858,164.00 $118,740.00 


 
Goal Action # Student Group(s) Title LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 


1 1 X Low Income        Address on-going Professional 
Development needs        


$2,000.00 
  


$2,500.00 $4,500.00 


1 2 X All        Provide Credit Recovery Options 
for All Students        


$158,463.00 
  


$82,902.00 $241,365.00 


1 3 X All        Create Individual Progress Plans 
and Career Assessment Surveys        


     


1 4 X English Learners        Reclassify EL Students        
   


$40,334.00 $40,334.00 


1 5 X Low Income        Provide CCSS Curriculum and 
Materials for all students        


$5,000.00 
   


$5,000.00 


1 6 X Low Income        Improve academic proficiency of 
SED Students on SBAC Math and 
ELA assessments        


$3,730.00 
   


$3,730.00 


1 7 X All        Maintain students on track for 
Graduation        


$1,000.00 
   


$1,000.00 


1 8 X Students with 
Disabilities        


Support students with IEPs        $4,590.00 
   


$4,590.00 


1 9 X Low Income        SED students to make academic 
progress as measured by i-Ready 
assessments        


   
$25,277.00 $25,277.00 


1 10 X All        Modify Graduation Requirements 
and Grade Level Reclassification        


     


1 11 X All        Increase students completing CTE 
Introductory Course        


$24,000.00 
  


$15,433.00 $39,433.00 


1 12 X All        Maintain low student to teacher 
ratio        


   
$129,522.00 $129,522.00 


1 13 X Low Income        Maintain low student to teacher 
ratio        


$119,276.00 
   


$119,276.00 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 42 of 60


Goal Action # Student Group(s) Title LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 
2 1 X All        Maintain a low Teacher to Student 


Ratio        


     


2 2 X All        Counseling Presentations        
     


2 3 X All        Increase Attendance Rate        $500.00 
   


$500.00 


2 4 X All        Maintain access to technology        $4,700.00 
   


$4,700.00 


2 5 X All        Reduce Suspension Rate        $3,500.00 
   


$3,500.00 


2 6 X Low Income        Increase Student Participation        $1,000.00 
   


$1,000.00 


2 7 X Low Income        Maintain a Positive Learning 
Environment        


$7,260.00 
   


$7,260.00 


3 1 X All        Build CAES Foster and Homeless 
parent/caregiver capacity to 
support the educational and social-
emotional needs of youth.        


 
$47,659.00 $95,882.00 $129,904.00 $273,445.00 


3 2 X All        Document Home-School 
Communication        


     


3 3 X All        Endeavor/Voyager School Events        
   


$200.00 $200.00 


3 4 X All        Parents Attending School Events        
     


3 5 X All        Promote School Communication 
with Families        


     


3 6 X All        Increase feedback from EL 
Parents        


   
$28,987.00 $28,987.00 


4 1 X Foster Youth        Build LEA capacity to support the 
educational needs of Foster Youth.        


   
$2,000.00 $2,000.00 


4 2 X Foster Youth        Ensure school stability by 
minimizing changes in school 
placement if in the best interest of 
the youth.        


   
$9,000.00 $9,000.00 


4 3 X Foster Youth        Develop and coordinate college 
and career readiness and 
awareness support services and 
activities.        


   
$10,800.00 $10,800.00 


4 4 X Foster Youth        Build LEA capacity to support the 
social-emotional needs of Foster 
Youth.        


   
$5,000.00 $5,000.00 


4 5 X Foster Youth        Build caregiver capacity to support 
the educational and social-
emotional needs of Foster Youth.        


   
$800.00 $800.00 


5 1 X All        Triennial Meetings        $15,685.00 
   


$15,685.00 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 43 of 60


Goal Action # Student Group(s) Title LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 
5 2 


 
Annual Reviews        


     


 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 44 of 60


 
Contributing Expenditures Tables 
 


Totals by Type Total LCFF Funds Total Funds 


Total:         $138,266.00 $233,977.00 


LEA-wide Total:         $119,276.00 $146,876.00 


Limited Total:         $0.00 $0.00 


Schoolwide Total:         $18,990.00 $87,101.00 
 
 


Goal Action # Action Title Scope Unduplicated 
Student Group(s) 


Location LCFF Funds Total Funds 


1 1 Address on-going 
Professional 
Development needs 


X Schoolwide        X Low Income        
 


$2,000.00 $4,500.00 


1 4 Reclassify EL 
Students 


X Schoolwide        X English Learners        
  


$40,334.00 


1 5 Provide CCSS 
Curriculum and 
Materials for all 
students 


X Schoolwide        X Low Income        X All Schools        $5,000.00 $5,000.00 


1 6 Improve academic 
proficiency of SED 
Students on SBAC 
Math and ELA 
assessments 


X Schoolwide        X Low Income        X All Schools        $3,730.00 $3,730.00 


1 9 SED students to 
make academic 
progress as 
measured by i-Ready 
assessments 


X Schoolwide        X Low Income        
  


$25,277.00 


1 13 Maintain low student 
to teacher ratio 


X LEA-wide        X Low Income        X All Schools        $119,276.00 $119,276.00 


2 6 Increase Student 
Participation 


X Schoolwide        X Low Income        
 


$1,000.00 $1,000.00 


2 7 Maintain a Positive 
Learning 
Environment 


X Schoolwide        X Low Income        
 


$7,260.00 $7,260.00 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 45 of 60


Goal Action # Action Title Scope Unduplicated 
Student Group(s) 


Location LCFF Funds Total Funds 


4 1 Build LEA capacity to 
support the 
educational needs of 
Foster Youth. 


X LEA-wide        X Foster Youth        X All Schools        
 


$2,000.00 


4 2 Ensure school 
stability by minimizing 
changes in school 
placement if in the 
best interest of the 
youth. 


X LEA-wide        X Foster Youth        X All Schools        
 


$9,000.00 


4 3 Develop and 
coordinate college 
and career readiness 
and awareness 
support services and 
activities. 


X LEA-wide        X Foster Youth        X All Schools        
 


$10,800.00 


4 4 Build LEA capacity to 
support the social-
emotional needs of 
Foster Youth. 


X LEA-wide        X Foster Youth        X All Schools        
 


$5,000.00 


4 5 Build caregiver 
capacity to support 
the educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of Foster 
Youth. 


X LEA-wide        X Foster Youth        X All Schools        
 


$800.00 


 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 46 of 60


 
Annual Update Table Year 1 [2021-22] 
 
Annual update of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 
 


Last Year's 
Goal # 


Last Year's 
Action # Prior Action/Service Title 


Contributed to 
Increased or Improved 


Services? 
Last Year's Total Planned 


Expenditures 
Total Estimated Actual 


Expenditures 


      
 


Totals: Planned Expenditure Total Estimated Actual Total 


Totals:           


 
 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 47 of 60


Instructions 
 
Plan Summary 


Stakeholder Engagement 


Goals and Actions 


Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students 


For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the LCAP template, please contact the local COE, or the 
California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at 
lcff@cde.ca.gov. 


Introduction and Instructions 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) requires LEAs to engage their local stakeholders in an annual planning process to evaluate their 
progress within eight state priority areas encompassing all statutory metrics (COEs have ten state priorities). LEAs document the results of this 
planning process in the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) using the template adopted by the State Board of Education.  


The LCAP development process serves three distinct, but related functions:  


 Comprehensive Strategic Planning: The process of developing and annually updating the LCAP supports comprehensive strategic planning 
(California Education Code [EC] 52064(e)(1)). Strategic planning that is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and learning 
performance data. Local educational agencies (LEAs) should continually evaluate the hard choices they make about the use of limited resources to 
meet student and community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all students. 


 Meaningful Stakeholder Engagement: The LCAP development process should result in an LCAP that reflects decisions made through meaningful 
stakeholder engagement (EC 52064(e)(1)). Local stakeholders possess valuable perspectives and insights about an LEA's programs and services. 
Effective strategic planning will incorporate these perspectives and insights in order to identify potential goals and actions to be included in the 
LCAP. 


 Accountability and Compliance: The LCAP serves an important accountability function because aspects of the LCAP template require LEAs to 
show that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, most notably: 


o Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students in proportion to 
the amount of additional funding those students generate under LCFF (EC 52064(b)(4-6)). 


o Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the statutory priority areas and statutory metrics (EC 
52064(b)(1) & (2)).  



mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov





2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 48 of 60


o Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals (EC 52064(b)(7)). 


The LCAP template, like each LEA’s final adopted LCAP, is a document, not a process. LEAs must use the template to memorialize the 
outcome of their LCAP development process, which should: (a) reflect comprehensive strategic planning (b) through meaningful engagement 
with stakeholders that (c) meets legal requirements, as reflected in the final adopted LCAP. The sections included within the LCAP template 
do not and cannot reflect the full development process, just as the LCAP template itself is not intended as a stakeholder engagement tool.  


If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of education and the governing board of 
the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single LCAP consistent with the requirements in EC sections 52060, 52062, 
52066, 52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of schools) all 
budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 


The revised LCAP template for the 2021–22, 2022–23, and 2023–24 school years reflects statutory changes made through Assembly Bill 
1840 (Committee on Budget), Chapter 243, Statutes of 2018. These statutory changes enhance transparency regarding expenditures on 
actions included in the LCAP, including actions that contribute to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for foster youth, 
English learners, and low-income students, and to streamline the information presented within the LCAP to make adopted LCAPs more 
accessible for stakeholders and the public. 


At its most basic, the adopted LCAP should attempt to distill not just what the LEA is doing, but also allow stakeholders to understand why, 
and whether those strategies are leading to improved opportunities and outcomes for students. LEAs are strongly encouraged to use 
language and a level of detail in their adopted LCAPs intended to be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s diverse stakeholders and the 
broader public. 


In developing and finalizing the LCAP for adoption, LEAs are encouraged to keep the following overarching frame at the forefront of the 
strategic planning and stakeholder engagement functions:  


Given present performance across the state priorities and on indicators in the California School Dashboard, how is the LEA using its 
budgetary resources to respond to student and community needs, and address any performance gaps, including by meeting its 
obligation to increase or improve services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students? 


LEAs are encouraged to focus on a set of metrics or a set of actions that the LEA believes, based on input gathered from stakeholders, 
research, and experience, will have the biggest impact on behalf of its students.  


These instructions address the requirements for each section of the LCAP, but may include information about effective practices when 
developing the LCAP and completing the LCAP itself. Additionally, information is included at the beginning of each section emphasizing the 
purpose that each section serves. 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 49 of 60


Plan Summary 


Purpose 
A well-developed Plan Summary section provides a meaningful context for the LCAP. This section provides information about an LEA’s 
community as well as relevant information about student needs and performance. In order to provide a meaningful context for the rest of the 
LCAP, the content of this section should be clearly and meaningfully related to the content included in the subsequent sections of the LCAP. 
 
Requirements and Instructions 
General Information – Briefly describe the students and community. For example, information about an LEA in terms of geography, 
enrollment, or employment, the number and size of specific schools, recent community challenges, and other such information as an LEA 
wishes to include can enable a reader to more fully understand an LEA’s LCAP. 


Reflections: Successes – Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, and any other information, what progress is the LEA 
most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success? This may include identifying specific examples of how past 
increases or improvements in services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students have led to improved performance for these 
students. 


Reflections: Identified Need – Referring to the Dashboard, identify: (a) any state indicator for which overall performance was in the “Red” or 
“Orange” performance category or any local indicator where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating AND (b) 
any state indicator for which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. 
What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas of low performance and performance gaps? Other needs may be identified 
using locally collected data including data collected to inform the self-reflection tools and reporting local indicators on the Dashboard. 


LCAP Highlights – Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 


Comprehensive Support and Improvement – An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 


● Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  


● Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA has or will support the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included 
a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed 
through the implementation of the CSI plan. 


● Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of 
the CSI plan to support student and school improvement. 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 50 of 60


Stakeholder Engagement 
Purpose 
Significant and purposeful engagement of parents, students, educators, and other stakeholders, including those representing the student 
groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Consistent with statute, such stakeholder 
engagement should support comprehensive strategic planning, accountability, and improvement across the state priorities and locally 
identified priorities (EC 52064(e)(1)). Stakeholder engagement is an ongoing, annual process.  


This section is designed to reflect how stakeholder engagement influenced the decisions reflected in the adopted LCAP. The goal is to allow 
stakeholders that participated in the LCAP development process and the broader public understand how the LEA engaged stakeholders and 
the impact of that engagement. LEAs are encouraged to keep this goal in the forefront when completing this section.  


Statute and regulations specify the stakeholder groups that school districts and COEs must consult when developing the LCAP: teachers, 
principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the LEA, parents, and students. Before adopting the LCAP, school 
districts and COEs must share it with the Parent Advisory Committee and, if applicable, to its English Learner Parent Advisory Committee. The 
superintendent is required by statute to respond in writing to the comments received from these committees. School districts and COEs must 
also consult with the special education local plan area administrator(s) when developing the LCAP. Statute requires charter schools to consult 
with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in developing the LCAP. The LCAP should also be 
shared with, and LEAs should request input from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., schoolsite councils, English Learner 
Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between schoolsite and district-level goals and actions.  


Information and resources that support effective stakeholder engagement, define student consultation, and provide the requirements for 
advisory group composition, can be found under Resources on the following web page of the CDE’s website: https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/. 


Requirements and Instructions 
Below is an excerpt from the 2018–19 Guide for Annual Audits of K–12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, which is 
provided to highlight the legal requirements for stakeholder engagement in the LCAP development process: 


Local Control and Accountability Plan: 
For county offices of education and school districts only, verify the LEA: 


a) Presented the local control and accountability plan to the parent advisory committee in accordance with Education Code section 
52062(a)(1) or 52068(a)(1), as appropriate. 


b) If applicable, presented the local control and accountability plan to the English learner parent advisory committee, in accordance 
with Education Code section 52062(a)(2) or 52068(a)(2), as appropriate. 



https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/





2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 51 of 60


c) Notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit comments regarding specific actions and expenditures proposed to 
be included in the local control and accountability plan in accordance with Education Code section 52062(a)(3) or 52068(a)(3), 
as appropriate. 


d) Held at least one public hearing in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(1) or 52068(b)(1), as appropriate. 


e) Adopted the local control and accountability plan in a public meeting in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(2) or 
52068(b)(2), as appropriate. 


Prompt 1: “A summary of the stakeholder process and how the stakeholder engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP.” 


Describe the stakeholder engagement process used by the LEA to involve stakeholders in the development of the LCAP, including, at a 
minimum, describing how the LEA met its obligation to consult with all statutorily required stakeholder groups as applicable to the type of LEA. 
A sufficient response to this prompt must include general information about the timeline of the process and meetings or other engagement 
strategies with stakeholders. A response may also include information about an LEA’s philosophical approach to stakeholder engagement.  


Prompt 2: “A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.” 


Describe and summarize the stakeholder feedback provided by specific stakeholders. A sufficient response to this prompt will indicate ideas, 
trends, or inputs that emerged from an analysis of the feedback received from stakeholders. 


Prompt 3: “A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.” 


A sufficient response to this prompt will provide stakeholders and the public clear, specific information about how the stakeholder engagement 
process influenced the development of the LCAP. The response must describe aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by or developed in 
response to the stakeholder feedback described in response to Prompt 2. This may include a description of how the LEA prioritized 
stakeholder requests within the context of the budgetary resources available or otherwise prioritized areas of focus within the LCAP. For the 
purposes of this prompt, “aspects” of an LCAP that may have been influenced by stakeholder input can include, but are not necessarily limited 
to: 


 Inclusion of a goal or decision to pursue a Focus Goal (as described below) 
 Inclusion of metrics other than the statutorily required metrics 
 Determination of the desired outcome on one or more metrics 
 Inclusion of performance by one or more student groups in the Measuring and Reporting Results subsection 
 Inclusion of action(s) or a group of actions 
 Elimination of action(s) or group of actions  
 Changes to the level of proposed expenditures for one or more actions 
 Inclusion of action(s) as contributing to increased or improved services for unduplicated services 
 Determination of effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the goal 
 Determination of material differences in expenditures 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 52 of 60


 Determination of changes made to a goal for the ensuing LCAP year based on the annual update process 
 Determination of challenges or successes in the implementation of actions 


Goals and Actions 
Purpose 
Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to stakeholders what the LEA plans to accomplish, what the LEA plans to do in order to 
accomplish the goal, and how the LEA will know when it has accomplished the goal. A goal statement, associated metrics and expected 
outcomes, and the actions included in the goal should be in alignment. The explanation for why the LEA included a goal is an opportunity for 
LEAs to clearly communicate to stakeholders and the public why, among the various strengths and areas for improvement highlighted by 
performance data and strategies and actions that could be pursued, the LEA decided to pursue this goal, and the related metrics, expected 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures. 


A well-developed goal can be focused on the performance relative to a metric or metrics for all students, a specific student group(s), narrowing 
performance gaps, or implementing programs or strategies expected to impact outcomes. LEAs should assess the performance of their 
student groups when developing goals and the related actions to achieve such goals. 


Requirements and Instructions 
LEAs should prioritize the goals, specific actions, and related expenditures included within the LCAP within one or more state priorities. LEAs 
should consider performance on the state and local indicators, including their locally collected and reported data for the local indicators that 
are included in the Dashboard in determining whether and how to prioritize its goals within the LCAP. 


In order to support prioritization of goals, the LCAP template provides LEAs with the option of developing three different kinds of goals: 


 Focus Goal: A Focus Goal is relatively more concentrated in scope and may focus on a fewer number of metrics to measure improvement. A Focus 
Goal statement will be time bound and make clear how the goal is to be measured. 


 Broad Goal: A Broad Goal is relatively less concentrated in its scope and may focus on improving performance across a wide range of metrics. 


 Maintenance of Progress Goal: A Maintenance of Progress Goal includes actions that may be ongoing without significant changes and allows an 
LEA to track performance on any metrics not addressed in the other goals of the LCAP. 


At a minimum, the LCAP must address all LCFF priorities and associated metrics. 


Focus Goal(s) 
Goal Description: The description provided for a Focus Goal must be specific, measurable, and time bound. An LEA develops a Focus Goal 
to address areas of need that may require or benefit from a more specific and data intensive approach. The Focus Goal can explicitly 
reference the metric(s) by which achievement of the goal will be measured and the time frame according to which the LEA expects to achieve 
the goal. 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 53 of 60


Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal. An explanation must be 
based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data. LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including 
relevant consultation with stakeholders. LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to pursue a 
focus goal. 


Broad Goal 
Goal Description: Describe what the LEA plans to achieve through the actions included in the goal. The description of a broad goal will be 
clearly aligned with the expected measurable outcomes included for the goal. The goal description organizes the actions and expected 
outcomes in a cohesive and consistent manner. A goal description is specific enough to be measurable in either quantitative or qualitative 
terms. A broad goal is not as specific as a focus goal. While it is specific enough to be measurable, there are many different metrics for 
measuring progress toward the goal. 


Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA developed this goal and how the actions and metrics grouped 
together will help achieve the goal. 


Maintenance of Progress Goal 
Goal Description: Describe how the LEA intends to maintain the progress made in the LCFF State Priorities not addressed by the other goals 
in the LCAP. Use this type of goal to address the state priorities and applicable metrics not addressed within the other goals in the LCAP. The 
state priorities and metrics to be addressed in this section are those for which the LEA, in consultation with stakeholders, has determined to 
maintain actions and monitor progress while focusing implementation efforts on the actions covered by other goals in the LCAP. 


Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain how the actions will sustain the progress exemplified by the related metrics. 


Measuring and Reporting Results: 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs are encouraged to 
identify metrics for specific student groups, as appropriate, including expected outcomes that would reflect narrowing of any existing 
performance gaps.  


Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year 
of the three-year plan. LEAs may use data as reported on the 2019 Dashboard for the baseline of a metric only if that data represents the 
most recent available (e.g. high school graduation rate). 


Using the most recent data available may involve reviewing data the LEA is preparing for submission to the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS) or data that the LEA has recently submitted to CALPADS. Because final 2020–2021 outcomes on 
some metrics may not be computable at the time the 2021–24 LCAP is adopted (e.g. graduation rate, suspension rate), the most recent data 
available may include a point in time calculation taken each year on the same date for comparability purposes. 


The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. 


Complete the table as follows: 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 54 of 60


● Metric: Indicate how progress is being measured using a metric. 


● Baseline: Enter the baseline when completing the LCAP for 2021–22. As described above, the baseline is the most recent data 
associated with a metric. Indicate the school year to which the data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 


● Year 1 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2022–23, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 


● Year 2 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2023–24, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 


● Year 3 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2024–25, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. The 2024–25 LCAP will be the first year in the next three-year cycle. Completing 
this column will be part of the Annual Update for that year. 


● Desired Outcome for 2023-24: When completing the first year of the LCAP, enter the desired outcome for the relevant metric the LEA 
expects to achieve by the end of the 2023–24 LCAP year. 


  







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 55 of 60


Timeline for completing the “Measuring and Reporting Results” part of the Goal. 


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome 


for Year 3 
(2023-24) 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021–
22. 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021–
22. 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2022–
23. Leave blank 
until then. 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2023–
24. Leave blank 
until then. 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2024–
25. Leave blank 
until then. 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021–
22. 


The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative; but at minimum, an LEA’s LCAP must include goals that are measured using all of the 
applicable metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA. To the extent a state priority does not 
specify one or more metrics (e.g., implementation of state academic content and performance standards), the LEA must identify a metric to 
use within the LCAP. For these state priorities, LEAs are encouraged to use metrics based on or reported through the relevant self-reflection 
tool for local indicators within the Dashboard. 


Actions: Enter the action number. Provide a short title for the action. This title will also appear in the expenditure tables. Provide a description 
of the action. Enter the total amount of expenditures associated with this action. Budgeted expenditures from specific fund sources will be 
provided in the summary expenditure tables. Indicate whether the action contributes to meeting the increase or improved services requirement 
as described in the Increased or Improved Services section using a “Y” for Yes or an “N” for No. (Note: for each such action offered on an 
LEA-wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA will need to provide additional information in the Increased or Improved Summary Section to address 
the requirements in California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Section 15496(b) in the Increased or Improved Services Section of the 
LCAP). 


Actions for English Learners: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant English learner student 
subgroup must include specific actions in the LCAP related to, at a minimum, the language acquisition programs, as defined in EC 
Section 306, provided to students and professional development activities specific to English learners. 


Actions for Foster Youth: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant Foster Youth student 
subgroup are encouraged to include specific actions in the LCAP designed to meet needs specific to Foster Youth students. 


Goal Analysis: 


Enter the LCAP Year 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 56 of 60


Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective in 
achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed. 


● Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and 
successes experienced with the implementation process. This must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned 
action or implemented a planned action in a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP.  


● Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures do 
not need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required. 


● Describe the effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. In some cases, not all 
actions in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal. When responding to this 
prompt, LEAs may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the context of performance on a 
single metric or group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). Grouping actions with metrics will allow for 
more robust analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified set of metrics is working and increase transparency 
for stakeholders. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach when goals include multiple actions and metrics that are not closely 
associated. 


● Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable. 


Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students  
Purpose 
A well-written Increased or Improved Services section provides stakeholders with a comprehensive description, within a single dedicated 
section, of how an LEA plans to increase or improved services for its unduplicated students as compared to all students and how LEA-wide or 
schoolwide actions identified for this purpose meet regulatory requirements. Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be 
sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of stakeholders to facilitate their ability to provide input. An LEA’s description in this 
section must align with the actions included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing.  


Requirements and Instructions 
This section must be completed for each LCAP year.  


When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, copy the “Increased or Improved Services” section and enter the appropriate LCAP year. 
Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for the relevant LCAP year. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three 
years within the LCAP. 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 57 of 60


Percentage to Increase or Improve Services: Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 


Increased Apportionment based on the enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students: Specify the estimate 
of the amount of funds apportioned on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated pupils for the LCAP year. 


Required Descriptions: 


For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an 
explanation of (1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how 
these actions are effective in meeting the goals for these students. 


For each action included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement for unduplicated 
pupils and provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA must include an explanation consistent with 5 CCR Section 15496(b). For 
any such actions continued into the 2021–24 LCAP from the 2017–2020 LCAP, the LEA must determine whether or not the action was 
effective as expected, and this determination must reflect evidence of outcome data or actual implementation to date. 


Principally Directed and Effective: An LEA demonstrates how an action is principally directed towards and effective in meeting the LEA’s 
goals for unduplicated students when the LEA explains how: 


● It considers the needs, conditions, or circumstances of its unduplicated pupils; 


● The action, or aspect(s) of the action (including, for example, its design, content, methods, or location), is based on these 
considerations; and 


● The action is intended to help achieve an expected measurable outcome of the associated goal. 


As such, the response provided in this section may rely on a needs assessment of unduplicated students. 


Conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further explanation 
as to how, are not sufficient. Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does 
not meet the increase or improve services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 


For example, if an LEA determines that low-income students have a significantly lower attendance rate than the attendance rate for all 
students, it might justify LEA-wide or schoolwide actions to address this area of need in the following way: 


After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students, we learned that the attendance rate of our low-
income students is 7% lower than the attendance rate for all students. (Needs, Conditions, Circumstances [Principally Directed]) 


In order to address this condition of our low-income students, we will develop and implement a new attendance program that is 
designed to address some of the major causes of absenteeism, including lack of reliable transportation and food, as well as a school 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 58 of 60


climate that does not emphasize the importance of attendance. Goal N, Actions X, Y, and Z provide additional transportation and 
nutritional resources as well as a districtwide educational campaign on the benefits of high attendance rates. (Contributing Action(s)) 


These actions are being provided on an LEA-wide basis and we expect/hope that all students with less than a 100% attendance rate 
will benefit. However, because of the significantly lower attendance rate of low-income students, and because the actions meet needs 
most associated with the chronic stresses and experiences of a socio-economically disadvantaged status, we expect that the 
attendance rate for our low-income students will increase significantly more than the average attendance rate of all other students. 
(Measurable Outcomes [Effective In]) 


COEs and Charter Schools: Describe how actions included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement on an 
LEA-wide basis are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as 
described above. In the case of COEs and charter schools, schoolwide and LEA-wide are considered to be synonymous. 


For School Districts Only: 


Actions Provided on an LEA-Wide Basis: 


Unduplicated Percentage > 55%: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, describe how these actions are 
principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as described above. 


Unduplicated Percentage < 55%: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%, describe how these actions 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the 
actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this determination, 
including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience, or educational theory. 


Actions Provided on a Schoolwide Basis: 


School Districts must identify in the description those actions being funded and provided on a schoolwide basis, and include the required 
description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis. 


For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these actions are principally directed to and effective in 
meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 


For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% enrollment of unduplicated pupils: 
Describe how these actions are principally directed to and how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for foster 
youth, English learners, and low-income students in the state and any local priorities. 


“A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the 
percentage required.” 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 59 of 60


Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved 
by at least the percentage calculated as compared to the services provided for all students in the LCAP year. To improve services means to 
grow services in quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. Services are increased or improved by those actions in 
the LCAP that are included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement. This 
description must address how these action(s) are expected to result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for 
unduplicated pupils as compared to the services the LEA provides to all students for the relevant LCAP year. 


Expenditure Tables 
Complete the Data Entry table for each action in the LCAP. The information entered into this table will automatically populate the other 
Expenditure Tables. All information is entered into the Data Entry table. Do not enter data into the other tables. 


The following expenditure tables are required to be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body: 


 Table 1: Actions 


 Table 2: Total Expenditures 


 Table 3: Contributing Expenditures 


 Table 4: Annual Update Expenditures 


The Data Entry table may be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body, but is not required to be 
included. 


 In the Data Entry table, provide the following information for each action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 


 Goal #: Enter the LCAP Goal number for the action. 


 Action #: Enter the action’s number as indicated in the LCAP Goal. 


 Action Title: Provide a title of the action.  


 Student Group(s): Indicate the student group or groups who will be the primary beneficiary of the action by entering “All”, or by 
entering a specific student group or groups. 


 Increased / Improved: Type “Yes” if the action is included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services; OR, type 
“No” if the action is not included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services. 


 If “Yes” is entered into the Contributing column, then complete the following columns: 







2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) Page 60 of 60


o Scope: The scope of an action may be LEA-wide (i.e. districtwide, countywide, or charterwide), schoolwide, or limited. An action 
that is LEA-wide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of the LEA. An action that is schoolwide in scope upgrades 
the entire educational program of a single school. An action that is limited in its scope is an action that serves only one or more 
unduplicated student groups.  


o Unduplicated Student Group(s): Regardless of scope, contributing actions serve one or more unduplicated student groups. 
Indicate one or more unduplicated student groups for whom services are being increased or improved as compared to what all 
students receive. 


o Location: Identify the location where the action will be provided. If the action is provided to all schools within the LEA, the LEA 
must indicate “All Schools”. If the action is provided to specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must 
enter “Specific Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all 
high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 


 Time Span: Enter “ongoing” if the action will be implemented for an indeterminate period of time. Otherwise, indicate the span of time 
for which the action will be implemented. For example, an LEA might enter “1 Year”, or “2 Years”, or “6 Months”. 


 Personnel Expense: This column will be automatically calculated based on information provided in the following columns: 


o Total Personnel: Enter the total amount of personnel expenditures utilized to implement this action.  


o Total Non-Personnel: This amount will be automatically calculated. 


 LCFF Funds: Enter the total amount of LCFF funds utilized to implement this action, if any. LCFF funds include all funds that make up 
an LEA’s total LCFF target (i.e. base grant, grade span adjustment, supplemental grant, concentration grant, Targeted Instructional 
Improvement Block Grant, and Home-To-School Transportation).  


 Other State Funds: Enter the total amount of Other State Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 


 Local Funds: Enter the total amount of Local Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 


 Federal Funds: Enter the total amount of Federal Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 


 Total Funds: This amount is automatically calculated based on amounts entered in the previous four columns. 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 1 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


 
 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and 
Accountability Plan 


 


Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year 


LEA Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
(Endeavor / Voyager)            


Hugo Sanchez            
Program Director - Career and Alternative 
Education Services 


hsanchez@mcsos.org            
(559) 662-6211 


 
The following is the local educational agency’s (LEA’s) analysis of its goals, measurable outcomes and actions and services from the 
2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). 
 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 2 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Goal 1 
Goal 1: All students will achieve at high levels to prepare for college and career readiness          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        


X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 9: Expelled Pupils – COEs Only (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 10: Foster Youth – COEs Only (Conditions of Learning)        


Local Priorities:   N/A        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Individual Graduation Progress plan        
19-20 
100% of students will be put on individual graduation progress 
plan        
Baseline 
All students in the Cadet Academy and students with longer 
sentences will have an Individual Graduation Progress Plan.        


CAES academic counselor met each weekly with all students in 
the Cadet Academy to track graduation credit progress and 
discuss career options. All students were placed on individual 
plans. Meetings have been established within 30 days prior to 
release to have a transition plan in place to facilitate effective 
transition back to school of residence. In addition, screening for 
eligibility for modified graduation requirements was part of these 
meetings.  Graduation plan involves probation, behavioral health 
services and other appropriate agencies as needed to ensure the 
best opportunity for support and success 
 
 
 


Metric/Indicator 
Career interest Assessment Juvenile Hall.        
19-20 


The CAES Counseling Department and Leadership Team has 
created a survey but full implementation has been limited due to 
technical issues with making the survey available as a digital 
format. Additional options are currently being surveyed.  Despite 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 3 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Expected Actual 


100% of students in the facility for more than 15 days will be 
given career interest survey        
Baseline 
To be Developed-No current data        


school closures resulting from COVID-19, student surveys were 
administered to all students in Juvenile Hall. 
 
 
 


Metric/Indicator 
Students in the correctional academy will complete a career 
assessment within the first month of them being in the cadet 
academy.Career Interest Assessment Correctional Academy        
19-20 
100% of students in cadet academy will be given career 
assessment survey        
Baseline 
To Be Developed-No current data        


The career assessment of the California Career Zone was given to 
all students in cadet academy per the planned action. 


Metric/Indicator 
El student reclassification        
19-20 
All EL students will take the ELPAC and be evaluated on 
reclassification criteria        
Baseline 
There is no relevant data for Alternative school reclassification 
due to the short term placement of students in the programs. To 
be established        


The CAES Counseling Team and EL Program Director, have 
identified all students who qualify for EL support. All teachers in 
the CAES division were trained during designated Professional 
Growth and Development days and given follow-up support to 
ensure all students received appropriate integrated and 
designated ELD instruction. 


Metric/Indicator 
Standards Aligned Instructional Materials        
19-20 
100% of students access to Standards aligned instructional 
materials. Students will improve grades and more credits will be 
earned.        
Baseline 
100% students have access to Standards aligned instructional 
materials. Reported on Williams Annual Report New curriculum 
purchased, and staff has continued to receive professional 


Staff meetings for the Juvenile Hall and cadet Academy were held 
as quarterly meetings. At these meeting the staff met to discuss 
curriculum and its effectiveness. Assistance was also provided by 
a Program Director to best 
implement the curriculum in the classroom. In addition, teachers, 
administrator, program director, and academic counselors worked 
together to update the schoolwide action plan as part of a WASC 
process. 
 
 
 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 4 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Expected Actual 


development in EL, common core, and other engagement 
strategies.        
Metric/Indicator 
State adopted content and performance standards        
19-20 
100% of students will receive instruction based on State adopted 
Common Core State Standards        
Baseline 
100% of students will receive instruction based on State adopted 
Common Core State Standards        


All students received state adopted content and performance 
standards-based instruction.  When schools closed for COVID-19 
pandemic, direct instruction was discontinued, but students 
continued to receive standards-aligned materials. 


Metric/Indicator 
Broad course of study        
19-20 
100 % students in Juvenile Hall and Academy have access to a 
course of study that allows them to earn credits that will transfer 
to meet diploma track graduation requirements        
Baseline 
100 % students in Juvenile Hall and Academy have access to a 
course of study that allows them to earn credits that will transfer 
to meet diploma track graduation requirements        


Based on the need to improve/increase student achievement in 
Math and ELA,  the focus for professional development was given 
to English Language Arts and Math professional growth and 
development. Teachers received two full days of training from the 
ELA/ ELD Director from MCSOS, focusing on writing and reading 
strategies. Other professional developments were focused on EL 
strategies, problem--based learning, use of Google Classroom, 
Reading and Writing strategies, higher levels of DOK (Depth of 
Knowledge) and Formative assessments / checking for 
understanding.  In addition, i-Ready assessments in ELA and 
Math provided proficiency levels and assigned prescriptive lessons 
to support each student's subskill weaknesses. 


Metric/Indicator 
Targeted support for Special Education students        
19-20 
Maintain Special Education support of each SPED student        
Baseline 
All SPED students receive targeted support and appropriate 
special education service        


All SPED students received targeted support and appropriate 
special education services. 


Metric/Indicator 
State CAASSP        
19-20 


N/A - CAASPP Testing suspended for the year 2019-20. 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 5 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Expected Actual 


State CAASPP Alternative Schools do not receive school score 
All students with valid scores will show individual growth on ELA 
and Math tests        
Baseline 
CAASSP 2018-19 scores        
Metric/Indicator 
API        
19-20 
Discontinued. API is no longer calculated and schools do not 
receive a score        
Baseline 
2018-19 CAASPP Scores        


N/A - CAASPP Testing suspended for the year 2019-20. 


Metric/Indicator 
UC / CSU eligibility        
19-20 
Students who would need access to UC approved courses can 
be accommodated on an individual basis online, however the 
school does not receive UC completion rates for purposes of 
accountability        
Baseline 
Alternative School does not offer A-G classes        


Endeavor/Voyager Alternative Educational School does not offer 
A-G courses but were available through online courses for 
students that planned to complete those courses through their 
home districts. 


Metric/Indicator 
ELPI        
19-20 
Alternative School does not receive ELPI score. In addition the 
ELPI score was suspended by State until 2020 as a result of new 
testing criteria Baseline for ELPAC EL progress will be 
determined        
Baseline 
Alternative School does not receive ELPI score. Establish 
baseline score for reclassification for students in the Academy.        


Endeavor/Voyager Alternative Educational School did not receive 
ELPI, since summative ELPAC not administered in Spring 2020 
due to school closures. 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 6 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
AP Exams        
19-20 
Students who would need access to Advanced placement could 
be accommodated on an individual basis online, however the 
school does not receive school AP rates for purposes of 
accountability        
Baseline 
Alternative School does not offer AP classes        


Endeavor/Voyager Alternative Educational School did not offer AP 
classes. 


Metric/Indicator 
EAP        
19-20 
Alternative School does not receive EAP score        
Baseline 
Alternative School does not receive EAP score        


Endeavor/Voyager Alternative Educational School does not 
receive EAP scores. 


Metric/Indicator 
Graduation Credit recovery        
19-20 
As an alternative school, graduation rates are not calculated 
because there will be no students in a four-year graduation 
cohort, however, the programs may become accountable for 
graduation rates if the new DASS school one-year cohort is 
adopted.        
Baseline 
Maintain student credit status for graduation at minimum. Earn 
additional credits to close gap when possible        


CAES Counselors work with Program Manager to maintain 
student credit status for graduation as a minimum requirement and 
earn additional credits to close gap when possible.  Many students 
enrolled in Juvenile Hall have been grade level reclassified based 
on number of credits instead of years in high school.  Very few 
students are enrolled for an entire school year. 


 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 7 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Actions / Services 
Planned 


Actions/Services 
Budgeted 


Expenditures 
Actual 


Expenditures 
The Career Alternative Education Services (CAES) Counseling 
department will develop an individual plan for students in the cadet 
academy to ensure graduation progress is met and postsecondary 
options are explored. The staff and designated counselor will implement 
the individual plan for students in the cadet academy. 


1.1 - Salary & Benefits ($3200 Inc 
in 1.1) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$4,000  


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$4,100 


Counseling department will use information to develop a resource list of 
career options locally and elsewhere. Maintain list based on results of 
previous interest surveys. 


1.2 - Salary & Benefits ($6,400 inc 
in 1.1) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$6,400  


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$6,600 


Salary & Benefits 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits LCFF Base 
$3,200  


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Base $3,400 


Services 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF Base $1,000  


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Base $700 


The Career Alternative Education Services counseling staff will 
implement career assessment with all students in the correctional 
academy within the first month of them being in the cadet academy. 


1.3 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $500  


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$500 


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $6,000  


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $6,000 


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$3,500  


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$3,500 


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $2,600  


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $2,800 


Improve the implementation of ELA standards, best instruction, and 
monitoring of EL progress for all English Learners. Counseling staff and 
teacher on assignment will maintain list of EL students that are long 
term commits in Juvenile Hall or  Cadet Academy to ensure that these 


1.4 3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits LCFF Base $4,300  


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $4,400 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 8 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Budgeted 
Expenditures 


Actual 
Expenditures 


students are accessing curriculum, receiving additional support and 
acquiring the language, which will facilitate their reclassification.  5000-5999: Services And Other 


Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Base $5,950  


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Base $4,300 


Given the need for strong engagement for students in the correctional 
facilities, new California standards aligned curriculum will be purchased 
and used in Juvenile Hall and the Cadet Academy to enhance the 
academic program and provide students with improved learning 
experience that has current information and practices. Curriculum in 
Juvenile Hall and the Cadet Academy will include online options and 
use of technology to access standards-aligned materials for students 
with special needs. 


1.5 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$201,900  


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$211,785 


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $70,200  


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $101,232 


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Title I 
$163,600  


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Title I 
$133,433 


MCSOS will recruit and retain appropriately credentialed teachers. 1.6 - Services & Travel 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Base $5,100  


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Base $743 


Services & Travel 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF Base $2,100  


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Base $0 


Salary & Benefits 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits LCFF Base 
$21,400  


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Base $24,000 


MCSOS will provide opportunities for professional development on 
designated days and attend external workshops and conferences. 
Professional development days will be used to address best practices 
and collaboration on topics relevant to the needs of individual programs  
The focus for professional development was on English Language Arts 
and Math. 


1.7 - $5,200 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures Title II $5,200  


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Title II 
$600 


 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 9 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Goal Analysis 
 
A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff. 
Funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were or not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, and staff, in the 
following ways: 
 
1.5 - Overspent = $10,750 (CCSS ELA/ELD StudySych Curriculum Purchased) 
1.6 -  Underspent = $26,900 (No Summer School during COVID-19 school closure) 
1.7 -  Underspent = $4,600 (No travel for PD during COVID-19 school closure) 
 
Funds for actions not implemented will be carried forward to 2021-22 to support the needs of Unduplicated Pupils. 
         
 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 
There were many successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve these actions for Goal #1. Distinct 
challenges to reaching all students, including the unduplicated incarcerated students not having at-home academic supports they 
would have had otherwise due COVID-19 school closures.  Teachers, academic counselors, and administrators increased 
communication with correctional staff and probation leadership to insure appropriate academic supports were available to all students 
in Juvenile Hall.  CAASPP and i-Ready testing was suspended due to SB 98 as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.  That said, all 
students and teachers were required to rely exclusively on "Paper packets" for students to work on from "home" (open pods) until the 
Distance Learning Model, until cohort instruction in October 2020. Successes of achieving Goal #1 include being able to do a needs 
assessment via parent surveys for all students.  Surveys were provided to students electronically, and available to parents in print.  
The feedback from the communities revealed the necessity of electronic devices and connectivity from home, where 2/3 of families 
stated they needed either a device, hotspot or both. In addition, individual graduation appointments were held to honor students who 
had completed their requirements, in a safe, individualized format, which allowed parents to attend for their children. Finally, teachers 
and instructional staff received additional training and professional growth and development in the areas of ELA / ELD, SEL and 
Technology integration, for the Distance Learning Model rollout for the Fall of 2020.         
 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 10 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Goal 2 
Goal 2: Students will be connected and committed to their education in a safe environment.          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        


X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 9: Expelled Pupils – COEs Only (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 10: Foster Youth – COEs Only (Conditions of Learning)        


Local Priorities:   N/A        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Teacher-Student ratio        
19-20 
Maintain a 1:12 student to teacher ratio        
Baseline 
teacher-student ratio = 1:12        


The Endeavor/Voyager Program maintains a low teacher to pupil 
ration of 1:12 or below. 


Metric/Indicator 
Presentations to help students be more connected to their 
community        
19-20 
Two presentations will be given each year.        
Baseline 
Two presentations        


Two presentations were given this year.  However, spring 
presentations were done through Zoom videoconferencing 
platform. 


Metric/Indicator 
School Attendance Rates        


Although students have the option to not attend class, attendance 
remained greater than 99%.  Some of the absences resulted from 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 11 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Expected Actual 


19-20 
100% attendance        
Baseline 
Attendance is mandatory (see above) Attendance baseline in 
99.8%        


court appearances or COVID-19 precautionary isolation.  Students 
in isolation did not have in-person contact with correctional staff or 
teachers, so many struggled with completing work. 


Metric/Indicator 
Chronic Absenteeism        
19-20 
0%        
Baseline 
None. Due to mandatory attendance requirement        


Although students have the option to not attend class, attendance 
remained greater than 99%.  Some of the absences resulted from 
court appearances or COVID-19 precautionary isolation.  Students 
in isolation did not have in-person contact with correctional staff or 
teachers, so many struggled with completing work.  There were 
not any students considered chronically absent. 


Metric/Indicator 
High School Drop Out Rates        
19-20 
0%        
Baseline 
None 
While in Juvenile Hall and Correctional Academy all students are 
required to maintain enrollment 
        


Endeavor/Voyager students are required to be enrolled in school 
but have the option to not attend class.  Aside from the great 
relationships that students establish with their teachers, another 
motivator is the potential effect increased absences can have on 
their probation status. 


Metric/Indicator 
High School Graduations Rates        
19-20 
As an alternative school, graduation rates are not calculated 
because there will be no students in a four-year graduation 
cohort, however, the programs may become accountable for 
graduation rates if the new DASS school one-year cohort is 
adopted.        
Baseline 
No school data available for program- see above Identified 
Need).        


According to CDE Dashboard, 4/5 students (26.7%) graduated in 
2019. 
 
 
 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 12 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Pupil Suspension Rates        
19-20 
0%        
Baseline 
Students in Juvenile Hall and the Correctional Academy are not 
suspended or expelled in the traditional sense. If inappropriate 
behavior occurs, Probation makes determination of the 
consequences of that action        


DataQuest data indicated 3.6% students suspended at least once 
in 2018-19, an increase from 2017-18, However, in school year 
2019-20 the suspension rate decreased by 1.3%. 


Metric/Indicator 
Pupil Expulsion Rates        
19-20 
0%        
Baseline 
Students in Juvenile Hall and the Correctional Academy are not 
suspended or expelled in the traditional sense. If inappropriate 
behavior occurs, Probation makes determination of the 
consequences of that action.        


There were no expulsions.  DataQuest data indicated 3.6% 
students suspended at least once in 2018-19, an increase from 
2017-18, However, in school year 2019-20 the suspension rate 
decreased by 1.3%. 


Metric/Indicator 
School Climate and Safety        
19-20 
Outcome for 2019-20 Maintain 95% on "safe or not unsafe" 
Score 90% on "supportive learning environment"        
Baseline 
Tool To Be Developed MCSOS provides educational services 
only. Classes are held in correctional facility and safety and 
environment administered by legal requirements and policies of 
the Probation Department        


More than 90% of students indicated feeling safe at school, as 
indicated on survey administered in Spring 2020. 


Metric/Indicator 
School Facilities Inspection Tool        
19-20 
Maintain facility status "good repair"        


Facilities for Juvenile Hall and the Correctional Academy are 
maintained by County Probation Department are kept in “good 
care” per inspection of MCSOS inspection 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 13 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Expected Actual 


Baseline 
Facilities for Juvenile Hall and the Correctional Academy are 
maintained by County Probation Department are kept in “good 
care” per inspection of MCSOS inspection        
Metric/Indicator 
Designate a CAES Counselor to work specifically with the 
students in the cadet academy.        
19-20 
Maintain Counselor        
Baseline 
One Counselor        


One CAES academic counselor is assigned to Endeavor / 
Voyager. 


Metric/Indicator 
Middle School Drop Out Rate        
19-20 
N/A        
Baseline 
N/A. While in Juvenile Hall and Correctional Academy, all 
students are required to maintain enrollment        


While in Juvenile Hall and Correctional Academy, all students are 
required to maintain enrollment 


 
Actions / Services 


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Budgeted 
Expenditures 


Actual 
Expenditures 


A positive working relationship with the Deputy Chief Probation Officer 
of the Madera County Juvenile facility and the educational administrator 
will ensure the number of teachers provided to Juvenile Hall and Cadet 
Academy will create a safe learning environment, not to exceed a 15:1 
student to teacher ratio. This number will remain in compliance with 
Title 15 and the California Educational Code. 


2.1 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$202,000  


salaries already in goal 1 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries LCFF Base $118,210 


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $70,200  


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $32,813 


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $1,800  


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $1,876 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 14 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Budgeted 
Expenditures 


Actual 
Expenditures 


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $1,900  


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $1,876 


Teachers will prepare one presentation each semester for students to 
gain a greater sense of connection and responsibility to the community. 


2.2 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$9,600  


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$10,200 


 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $5,100  


 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $800 


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$5,100  


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$250 


A CAES academic counselor will work with students through graduation 
from high school to develop a greater sense of trust of people and 
resources in the CAES division and community. 


2.3 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$6,100  


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF $6,200 


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$13,100  


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$13,200 


 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $25,200  


 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $11,446 


Speakers 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF Supplemental 
and Concentration $20,900  


 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures LCFF Supplemental 
and Concentration $0 


 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 15 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Goal Analysis 
 
A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff. 
2.1 - (Salaries are included in Goal 1) 
2.2 - Underspent = $8,550 (Due to COVID-19 school closure, this action could not be completed in second semester.) 
2.3 - Underspent = $34,454 (Budgeted expenditures identified were higher than actual needs.  Speaker services could not 
implemented due to COVID-19 school closures.) 
 
Goal 2 Action Salaries are included in Goal 1.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, part of Goal 2 Action 2 was not completed as a result 
of school closures.  Madera County Juvenile Probation Department limited contacts with probationary youth, resulting in fewer arrests 
for probation violations, and new arrests were for more serious charges only.  This contributed to one of the lowest student to teacher 
ratio in many years, as low as 6:1.  However, presentations on graduation requirements, Job Corps, career exploration, and 
community service were given in the first semester.  In addition, all enrichment and extension field trips, essay and poetry contests 
were cancelled. Since correctional staff fulfilled the role of parents during school closures, teachers and other educational staff 
communicated daily to monitor student progress and collect or distribute work packets.   Academic counselors met with students 
virtually through the Zoom platform, ensuring that progress toward graduation was monitored and appropriate courses were assigned. 
All students requiring specialized services received weekly support from from an RSP teacher.  Finally,  MCSOS was able to conduct 
an annual climate survey, which indicated the percentage of students who felt safe (90%+) at school, despite being incarcerated.  
MCSOS had provided professional learning focusing on building strong teacher to student relationships, which has also contributed to 
a positive school climate.  MCSOS provided resources and services to improve the social and emotional well-being of each student to 
create a safe learning environment upon returning to in-person instruction.  Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT) evaluated Juvenile Hall to 
be in "Good Repair."  Funds for actions not implemented will be carried forward to 2021-22 to support the needs of Unduplicated 
Pupils. 
         
 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve Goal #2 were similar to the actions and 
services. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, many services were implemented but in alternative and supplemental manners.  
Implementation of Distance Learning Model, required all enrichment and extension field trips were cancelled.  However, students in 
the Cadet Academy were able to participate in virtual poetry and essay contest with other students from the Central Valley.  Another 
challenge during the pandemic, was was in meeting the needs of unduplicated students since in-person support was not available.  In 
order to overcome this challenge, teachers, academic counselors, and administrators worked more closely with correctional staff to (in 
loco parentis) ensure meeting the needs of students.  The pandemic created the greatest challenges for newly incarcerated students, 
who had to be in isolation for 14 days, per COVID-19 regulations.  Another success in receiving feedback and input from parents was 
being able to conduct an annual climate survey to meet the local indicator and maintain the level of students who felt safe upon return.   
Although parent contact (virtual) was available more regularly, parents expressed safety concerns for their children.  MCSOS provided 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 16 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


informational workshops to address safety precautions in place, as well as protocols to prevents outbreaks.  During the school 
closures, not one Juvenile Hall or Cadet Academy student was infected with COVID-19.  Finally, MCSOS was also able to provide 
resources and services to improve the social and emotional well--being of each student to provide a safe learning environment during 
the 2020-2021 school year. The annual FIT report rated Juvenile Hall classrooms in good repair and had appropriate supply of PPE 
for all staff and students.         
 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 17 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Goal 3 
Goal 3: Increase parent involvement by developing meaningful partnerships and participation with community          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        


X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        
X Priority 9: Expelled Pupils – COEs Only (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 10: Foster Youth – COEs Only (Conditions of Learning)        


Local Priorities:   N/A        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Parent contacts for cadet academy students.        
19-20 
Facility teachers will utilize the call log and/or standard letter to 
increase parent communication for cadet academy students. This 
communication will occur a minimum of two times per semester.        
Baseline 
Two contacts per semester        


Two contacts per semester with follow up phone calls for progress. 


Metric/Indicator 
Parent participation on formal committees and informal events to 
provide input in making school decisions        
19-20 
Parent participation will maintain in 2018-19 to include at least 
two parents on site council. Parent attendance at workshops will 
total five parents        
Baseline 
To be established        


All parents are invited to participate in combined CAES School 
Site Council (SSC) which meets quarterly.  Teachers and 
correctional staff are also part of the SSC and some are voting 
members.  Some parents do not participate while their child is 
incarcerated because their sentence is seldom longer than a year.  
Instead, some parents choose to participate and provide input 
once their student enrolls in another CAES school. 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 18 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Transitional meetings for cadet academy students.        
19-20 
All parents of students who are transitioning from the cadet 
academy will participate in a transitional meeting that involves 
Probation and appropriate agencies.        
Baseline 
To Be determined Meeting for all students involving Madera 
County Probation and agencies        


All parents of students who are transitioning from the cadet 
academy, participate in a transitional meeting that involves 
Probation and all appropriate agencies. 


 
Actions / Services 


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Budgeted 
Expenditures 


Actual 
Expenditures 


The staff at Juvenile Hall and the Cadet Academy will communicate 
effectively with parents of regular and special education students in the 
home language. Staff will make a minimum of two parent contacts per 
semester for all Cadet Academy students. Bilingual services will be 
available to parents in all communications and at meetings, including all 
IEPs. 


3.1 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$4,650  


 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $4,800 


 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $100  


 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $200 


The unduplicated student population has some of the lowest rates of 
parent involvement. To address this need the staff will build on the 
relationships that have been created through positive contacts to 
personally invite parents and families to participate in formal 
committees, workshops and informal events. MCSOS will provide 
opportunities for parent input through surveys and participation in 
advisory committees, including Site Council, ELAC and other 
opportunities for feedback. This will increase parent involvement for 
unduplicated student population. Staff will also invite parents of special 
education students to attend events and committees to help them 
support their child's education. 


3.2 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
LCFF Base $5,500  


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Base $4,800 


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$6,300  


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$1,200 


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$4,700  


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$4,800 


 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $1,000  


 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $1,200 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 19 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Budgeted 
Expenditures 


Actual 
Expenditures 


Include parents in transitional meetings of Cadet Academy students to 
support their decisions for best placement. The transitional team will 
include designated CAES counselor, probation officer, and other 
community representatives that can positively impact Cadet placement. 


3.3 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$4,000  


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$4,200 


 
Goal Analysis 
 
A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff. 
3.2 - Underspent = $5,500 (explanation below) 
 
MCSOS was able to provide effective communication with parents for all students in their home languages regarding school 
administration, activities, student progress and concerns. Funds allocated for these expenditures were utilized to ensure that effective 
communication would occur through personal phone calls home, an updated and maintained website, mailers regarding educational 
and health matters, quarterly progress reports and semester report cards. Bilingual services for all parent meetings, including IEPs , 
504's, SSTs and parent conferences, were provided as well. However, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, community family events, 
back to school, in-person conferences and stake-holder meetings, were not held for safety reasons.  Funds for actions not 
implemented will be carried forward to 2021-22 to support the needs of Unduplicated Pupils. 
         
 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 
Some of the successes and challenges in implementing actions/services to achieve the goal in 2019-20 came primarily from COVID-
19 pandemic.  Daily communication with correctional staff was paramount as getting status updates on students was not possible 
directly from the teachers.  Parents were allowed to communicate virtually with their child, which was not the norm prior to school 
closures.  In order gain a better understanding of parent concerns, MCSOS developed a needs assessment survey, which was sent 
out to all parents in paper form, while students completed the survey while in custody.  As a result, greater resources were committed 
to updated technology and programs.  The success of this implementation of technology, provided better tools for Distance Learning, 
which was also required for cohort instruction provisions.  Finally, all stakeholder (SSC, ELAC, LCAP and PAC) meetings were 
facilitated virtually, via the Zoom platform and proved to be a success.  This arrangement allowed for parents to access all meetings 
with a telephone if they did not have access to technology, and facilitated participation of parents with mobility issues.         
 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 20 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Goal 4 
Goal 4: Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational needs of foster youth and expelled youth.          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        


X Priority 9: Expelled Pupils – COEs Only (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 10: Foster Youth – COEs Only (Conditions of Learning)        


Local Priorities:   N/A        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Number of cohort meetings and campus visits/special events 
conducted.        
19-20 
Provide 22 foster youth meetings, college visits, and special 
events.        
Baseline 
22 cohort meetings/campus visits/special events.        


Of the 22 cohort meetings / campus visits / special events, 
planned for 2019-20, 45% were accomplished this year.  Students 
visited various colleges and universities including California State 
University, Monterey Bay, Academy of Art University, Fresno City 
College, Reedley College, and Madera Community College.  In 
addition, students had the opportunity to participate in two of four 
scheduled quarterly College and Career Readiness workshops 
where they learned about high school graduation requirements, A-
G requirements, and became familiar with the four systems of 
higher education in California including the community college, 
California State University, University of California, and private 
system.  The remaining two workshops and several remaining 
college field trips and student events/activities were cancelled due 
to COVID-19.  Students also participate in a STEM Conference for 
girls where they learned about careers in science, technology, 
engineering, and math and had the opportunity to tour Fresno 
Pacific University.  Finally, a Back to School Kick Off and 
Backpack Drive was held were students listened to information 
about the importance of attendance, learned about resources, and 
learned about graduation requirements (high school students).  
Students received a backpack and school supplies.  A scheduled 
College and Career Fair was planned for March, 2020 but was 
cancelled due to COVID-19. 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 21 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Average score on Post-Secondary Knowledge Survey        
19-20 
Outcome Discontinued. Survey will continue to be given        
Baseline 
N/A        


Discontinued 


Metric/Indicator 
Development/Dissemination of a county-wide resource guide.        
19-20 
Outcome Discontinued. Use of Resource Guide will be included 
in Action 1        
Baseline 
TBD        


Discontinued. 


Metric/Indicator 
Number of CAES foster youth receiving individual counseling 
services.        
19-20 
100% of CAES foster youth will receive individualized counseling 
services.        
Baseline 
6        


100% of Foster Youth who enrolled in CAES programs through the 
regular enrollment process received individualized counseling 
services.  An academic counselor reviewed each student's 
transcript and conducted a credit evaluation.  Post-secondary 
plans and goals for how to reach the goal were discussed. 
Students and caregivers also learned about the high school 
graduation requirements.  In addition, an academic counselor 
screened all third and fourth year students for modified graduation.  
Upon approval, the counselor met with the students and the 
educational rights holder to review credits and how a modified 
graduation track would impact the student's graduation date and 
post-secondary planning.  Also, through regular After Care Team 
meetings facilitated by the Madera County Juvenile Detention 
Facility, youth pending release from the facility and their 
caregivers/educational rights holder participate in an after care 
meeting where support services are discussed including 
educational support, behavioral health, and substance abuse 
support.  The after care team meeting ensures a bridge between 
the support being provided within the detention facility and outside 
services, ensuring that student's don't get lost in the transition. 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 22 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Number of CAES senior FAFSA completions        
19-20 
100% of interested CAES foster youth seniors will complete the 
FAFSA application process.        
Baseline 
No Prior data available.        


100% of interested Foster youth seniors who were on track to 
graduate completed the Free Application for Federal Student Aid 
(FAFSA).  A total of three youth submitted the FAFSA. 


Metric/Indicator 
Number of CAES Seniors who complete the community college 
matriculation process.        
19-20 
100% of interested CAES seniors will complete the FAFSA 
application process.        
Baseline 
No prior data. To be established in 2017-18        


100% of interested CAES Foster youth seniors completed and 
submitted the State Center Community College matriculation 
process. A total of three youth completed the on-line community 
college application process. 


Metric/Indicator 
Number of School Placement changes        
19-20 
50% of eligible foster youth will remain in their school of origin if 
its in their best interest        
Baseline 
No data established prior to 2017-18        


During the 2019-20 school year, LEAs worked with the Madera 
County Department of Social Services to ensure that, upon a 
(potential) change in school placement, a "best interest 
determination" check-list was utilized to consider a child's age, 
grade, distance from school of origin, support services, 
extracurricular activities, time during the school year (i.e. mid-
semester or semester, testing windows, etc...), and school 
enrollment of other siblings, etc. when determining whether a 
change in school placement would benefit a child or whether 
remaining in his/her school of origin is in his best interest.  
Additionally, the Madera County Superintendent of Schools Foster 
Youth Services Program sets some funds aside to assist LEAs 
with school of origin transportation costs as needed.  One hundred 
percent of youth whose educational rights holders believed that 
remaining in the school of origin was in the child's/youth's best 
interest were given the opportunity to remain in the current school 
of enrollment and were provided with transportation as necessary 
to maintain school of origin. 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 23 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Average number of days for records transfer, including partial 
credits        
19-20 
Records will be transferred between 2 - 3 business days.        
Baseline 
3 (EOY) days        


Per AB490, LEAs in Madera County ensure the timely transfer of 
student records including transcripts, current grades, current 
classes, Individualized Education Plans (IEPs), partial credits, etc.. 
to the receiving school within 2-3 business days. 


Metric/Indicator 
Parents to attend the countywide foster youth parent workshops        
19-20 
20% of county foster youth parents will attend foster parent 
workshops        
Baseline 
8 (76 total – duplicated count)        


During the 2019-20 school year, the Madera County Foster Youth 
Services Coordinating Program offered monthly parent workshops 
focused on various topics from August - May.  Due to COVID-19, 
workshops scheduled for March, April, and May, 2020 were 
cancelled. However, on average, 25 parents participated in 
workshops held monthly beginning August, 2019 - February, 2020. 


Metric/Indicator 
Number of CAES foster youth monitored for attendance        
19-20 
100% of CAES foster youth will be monitored for attendance.        
Baseline 
2 students per counselor        


During the 2019-20 school year, a total of 19 Foster Youth 
enrolled in a CAES program at least once during the school year.  
One hundred percent of Foster Youth were monitored for 
attendance.  During the end of the 2019-20 school year, Foster 
Youth Services Coordinating Program staff contacted caregivers 
to encourage them to monitor distance learning attendance and to 
reach out for support services as needed. 


Metric/Indicator 
FY Attendance Rate for CAES foster youth        
19-20 
CAES foster youth attendance rate will be 50%        
Baseline 
No prior data-To Be Established in 2017-18        


Projected attendance was 50% prior to COVID-19 closures. 


Metric/Indicator 
Number of AB490/AB167/Credit Policy Trainings        
19-20 
Provide three AB490/AB167 policy trainings.        


Four trainings were held for district liaisons and other stakeholders 
including school staff (counselors, family liaisons, consultants, 
teachers, etc.), social workers, CASA advocates, and caregivers.  
Participants learned about AB490 mandates including immediate 
enrollment, school of origin, protection of credits and graduation, 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 24 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Expected Actual 


Baseline 
3        


role of educational rights holder, and best practices to implement 
AB490.  Participants also learned about Foster Youths right to be 
screened for modified graduation requirements (California state 
graduation requirements). 


Metric/Indicator 
Number of Advisory Council meetings        
19-20 
Facilitate 11 Executive Advisory Council stakeholder meetings.        
Baseline 
8        


Madera County Executive Advisory Council meetings were held 
quarterly (total of four meetings).  Advisory Council members 
received legislative updates/information and information about 
upcoming events.  In addition, members had the opportunity to 
share and receive best practices in identification, enrollment, 
support services, outreach, school of origin/transportation, and 
data collection. 


Metric/Indicator 
Transfer of health and education records/health education 
passport.        
19-20 
100% or students will have records transferred from school of 
enrollment to new school of enrollment        
Baseline 
8        


One hundred percent of records were transferred with 2-3 
business days to ensure the completion/update of health and 
education records. 


Metric/Indicator 
County-wide Expelled Youth Plan        
19-20 
Implement the Expelled Youth Plan that was adopted in 2018 and 
report on actions annually to district superintendents        
Baseline 
Operate Career Alternative Education Services Department.to 
oversee plan that coordinates services to all Madera County 
Districts and Charter Schools        


To be reviewed with Executive Director 


 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 25 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Actions / Services 
Planned 


Actions/Services 
Budgeted 


Expenditures 
Actual 


Expenditures 
Inform foster youth about postsecondary options by maintaining 
quarterly cohort meetings, opportunities to learn about various careers, 
supporting district level youth meetings, providing opportunities for 
campus/vocational program visits, continuing to provide individual 
counseling services to juvenile detention, independent study and 
charter school foster youth, and ensuring every middle and high school 
foster youth receives a Madera County Resource Guide. 


Foster Youth Funds 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Federal Funds $90,700  


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Federal Funds 
$123,559 


Foster Youth Funds 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Federal Funds 
$10,000  


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Federal 
Funds $24,627 


Foster Youth Funds 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Federal 
Funds $8,400  


 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Federal Funds $4,000 


Continue assisting high school seniors in completing the FAFSA by the 
March 2 deadline by continuing to conduct two student workshops and 
following up with individual students to ensure the process is complete; 
100% of seniors will complete the FAFSA application process. 


Foster Youth Funds 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries Title 
IV $90,700  


DSS grant 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Title IV 
$91,414 


Continue assisting students in the completion of the community college 
matriculation process by conducting community college workshops and 
the facilitation of assessment and advisory day dates and following up 
with individual students to ensure positive transition to the community 
college; 100% of interested CAES foster youth will complete the 
matriculation process. 


Foster Youth Funds 3000-3999: 
Employee Benefits Federal Funds 
$90,700  


 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Federal Funds $123,559 


Foster Youth Funds 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Federal Funds 
$135,422  


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Federal 
Funds  


Foster Youth Funds 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Federal 
Funds $28,800  


 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Federal Funds $4,000 


Continue to ensure school stability, immediate enrollment and transfer 
of credits received for newly enrolled foster youth by ensuring MCSOS 
staff is familiar with FYS board policy, ensuring that elements of the 
county-wide interagency agreement for foster youth support services 
are upheld, providing three AB490/AB167 and credit policy training 
opportunities for stakeholders, continuing to provide self-advocacy skills 
training to foster youth, ensuring foster youth “best interest” 
determination for school of origin decisions are considered, and 


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Federal Funds 
$90,700  


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Federal Funds 
$90,700 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 26 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Budgeted 
Expenditures 


Actual 
Expenditures 


continuing to host the Madera County Foster Youth Executive Advisory 
Council monthly meeting. 


Continue providing educational counseling and monitoring for the 
educational success of CAES foster youth by continuing the 
development of post-high school plans for every foster youth, 
conducting post postsecondary plan annual updates, continuing the 
academic evaluation of foster youth upon enrollment and annual 
academic evaluation review for current students, continuing AB167 
screenings, extending biweekly progress check and postsecondary 
school options information to include 9th and10th grade foster youth. 


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Federal Funds $0  


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Governors CTE Initiative: 
California Partnership Academies 
$0 


Continue facilitating the monthly Madera County Foster Youth Executive 
Advisory Council, which includes LEAs, Department of Social Services, 
Probation and other community stakeholders; and implement capacity 
building training opportunities based on feedback from 
stakeholders.Coordinate services with county child welfare and 
Probation by providing education-related information to the county child 
welfare agency to assist in the delivery of services to foster youth, and 
responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and 
working with the court to ensure the delivery and coordination of 
necessary educational services. 


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Federal Funds $0  


 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
Federal Funds $0 


Continue coordinating monthly foster parent workshop series and 
alternative viewing locations; increase outreach to foster parents and 
obtain 15% of county foster parent participation in workshop series. 


 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Federal Funds $8,400  


 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Federal Funds $4,000 


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Federal 
Funds   


 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Federal 
Funds  


 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Federal Funds   


 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Federal Funds $0 


The unduplicated student population has some of the highest expulsion 
rates and lowest transition rates. To address their needs MCSOS will 
provide personnel to oversee and monitor the services to expelled and 
provide personnel to assist in and the transition between districts to 
increase the success of unduplicated pupils who have been expelled. 


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Federal Funds 
$0  


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Federal Funds 
$0 


 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 27 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Goal Analysis 
 
A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff. 
Fourth quarter activities and events for the 2019-2020 school year were cancelled beginning March, 2020, due to COVID-19 including 
summer enrichment programming, college field trips, student conferences, caregiver workshops, etc.  As a result, funds were "rolled 
over" into the 2020-21 school year.  Funds were used for staff to ensure on-going communication and outreach to Foster Youth and 
caregivers, especially during the last quarter of the school year and throughout a portion of the summer.  In addition, a series of new 
caregiver workshops focused on providing caregivers with the information that Foster Youth Services staff would have normally 
provided Foster Youth during regular activities throughout the school year were developed.  These workshops were offered during the 
Fall 2021 and ensured caregivers had information about high school graduation requirements, the four systems of higher education in 
California, career technical education programs, and the financial aid process.  Additionally, information about trauma and the effects 
of trauma was provided.  In order to provide additional school-home contact and outreach, some funds were used for a school 
psychologist who provided weekly check-in with families to ensure academic as well as social-emotional support were provided.  Also, 
work experience opportunities that would have been fully utilized Summer, 2020 were extended into the 2021-22 school year, 
providing an incentive for Foster Youth to earn good grades in order to maintain work eligibility.         
 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 
The biggest challenge this year was school closure due to COVID-19.  The inability to meet in-person with youth resulted in all field 
trips and activities being cancelled the last quarter of the school year.  Doing so prohibited Foster Youth staff to continue the focus on 
college/career awareness and readiness.  Activities including college visits and on-going College and Career Readiness workshops 
play a significant role in providing Madera County Foster Youth with the information and skills required to plan and prepare for college 
or career.  The initial lack of technology for many families made it challenging to coordinate virtual workshops and activities.  Providing 
support for seniors to complete and submit the community college on-line application and Free Application For Federal Student Aid 
(FAFSA) was also challenging for the same reasons. While COVID-19 closures created challenges, Madera County was successful in 
collaborating to ensure that Foster Youth records were transferred within the time frame required under AB490, best interest 
determination was prioritized when considering school of origin decisions (helping to minimize changes in school placement), ensuring 
immediate enrollment, and supporting students through individual counseling and as needed.  Also, while not able to go on all 
scheduled field trip, Foster Youth did have the opportunity to visit six different colleges/universities.  Additionally, two of the four 
quarterly College and Career Readiness workshops were held where students learned about career technical education and about the 
A-G/high school graduation requirements.  Also, up until COVID-19 caused school closures, monthly caregiver workshops averaged 
25 - 30 parents per meeting, making this the most successful year the program has ever had!  In addition, with the assistance of a 
consultant (case manager) the monitoring of student attendance and grades was prioritized as was ensuring the social-emotional 
needs of Foster Youth were met.  Various trainings and professional development opportunities were provided to ensure that 
stakeholders become increasingly familiar with the unique needs of Foster Youth.  Training included AB490, truancy, trauma-informed 
strategies, and the Foster Youth Education summit.         
 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 28 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Goal 5 
Goal 5: Coordinate the instruction of Expelled Pupils and facilitate the collaborative process for developing and revising the 
countywide plan to address the educational services for expelled youth and their transition to district of residence or charter school          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 9: Expelled Pupils – COEs Only (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   N/A        


 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Madera County Expulsion Rate        
19-20 
Maintain or decrease the Countywide Expulsion Rate, which is 
0.13%, for baseline        
Baseline 
N/A        


Expulsion rate was decreased countywide in the year 2019-20. 


 
Actions / Services 


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Budgeted 
Expenditures 


Actual 
Expenditures 


MCSOS will provide personnel to oversee and monitor the services to 
expelled youth and the transition between districts to increase the 
success of unduplicated pupils. 


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$6,400  


 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$6800 


 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF Base $2,300  


 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF Base $2,400 


 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 29 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Goal Analysis 
 
A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff. 
Funds were implemented.         


 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 
Challenges: 
 
Transition meetings to support transition of expelled students from home districts to PTC and from PTC to home districts could not be 
held in fourth quarter due to school closures. 
 
Successes: 
 
Transitional meetings were held for the majority of the school year to support the transition of expelled youth between districts.  
Students satisfying stipulations of expulsion were supported in transition back to home district.  Expulsions decreased in 2019-20 
school year. 
         
 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 30 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 
 


The following is the local educational agency's (LEA's) analysis of its 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan (Learning 
Continuity Plan). 
 


In-Person Instructional Offerings 
 
Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings 


Description Total  
Budgeted Funds 


Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 


Contributing 


Online assessments, i-Ready and LAS Links, to measure academic 
growth. 


$25,200 $45,777 X Yes     


Technology upgrades for teachers to support distance learning, 
including laptops, second monitor, wireless headset, wireless mouse, 
and stylus. 


$9,000 $10,000 X Yes     


Purchase ZOOM for Educators to facilitate distance learning. $750 $1,200 X Yes     


Maintain a stock of PPE including, hand sanitizer, cleaning wipes, 
Vindicator spray, face masks and face shields to minimize risk of 
COVID-19 infection 


$8,000 $12,000 X Yes     


Technology upgrades for teachers to support learning, both in-person 
and distance learning. The new technology includes a touch screen 
laptop, second monitor, wireless headset and mouse. 


$98,500 $98,500 X Yes     


Maintain a stock of PPE which includes hand sanitizer, cleaning 
wipes, Vindicator spray, face masks in both adult and child sizes, face 
shields and barriers to minimize the risk of COVID-19 infection. 


$18,000 $18,000 X Yes     


The purchase of additional iPads for classroom use. $44,934 $22,000 X Yes     
 
A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for in-person instruction and 
what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 
The substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for in-person instruction was very little.  
Budgeted funds were utilized to meet the needs of PTC students for the 2020-21 school year. However, as the 1:1 Technology 
(Chromebooks) WiFi Hotspots, teacher-technology and training, were key during the distance learning model, the estimated actuals 
remained lower that initially predicted. A probably reason for this was the amount of Verizon Hotspots requested by parents and 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 31 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


students was much higher in the Spring of 2020, than the actual number of connectivity devices issued in the Fall of 2020. When 
Madera County was cleared for the return of students and in-person instruction on April 6th, approximately 20-25% of PTC students 
returned to campus for in-person instruction.         
 
Analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings 
 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing in-person instruction in the 2020-21 school year. 
There were more challenges than successes in implementing in-person instruction in the 2020-21 school year. Madera County was 
not cleared for in-person (Transition from the Purple to Red Tier) instruction until April 6th, 2021. Prior to this, the only in-person 
instruction for Juvenile Hall students was a small cohorts, with each teacher assigned an established group of students.  Two teachers 
divided up students in Juvenile Hall, while the third teacher was assigned to students in the Cadet Academy.  In-person instruction 
was held twice a week, while the other three days included working individually out of a book or on a computer.  Teachers and 
administrators communicated with correctional staff daily to deliver and collect student work.  The greatest challenges were with newly 
incarcerated students, who per COVID-19 safety protocols for Juvenile Hall, were kept in isolation until they could safely be integrated 
with the entire Juvenile Hall population.  These safety precautions ensured that not one student was infected with Covid-19 while in 
custody.  With the intent of being ready for the return of students, both teachers and students were provided with updated technology 
and programs to continue delivering quality instruction.  Despite the challenges created by depending on technology to provide 
instruction, teachers and students expressed appreciation and need to increase in-person interactions and support.  Technology 
issues were quickly resolved by the MCSOS Instructional Technology (IT) staff, who also provided teachers with instruction on how to 
use technology and access certain programs.  On April 6th, 2021, with appropriate safety precaution for COVID-19, all students in 
Juvenile Hall returned to daily in-person instruction.  However, students in isolation, per safety protocols, were not allowed to attend 
classes until they could be safely incorporated with the rest of the Juvenile Hall students.         
 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 32 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Distance Learning Program 
 
Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program 


Description Total  
Budgeted Funds 


Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 


Contributing 


i-Ready and LAS Links assessments to measure academic growth 
and support English language and math proficiency. 


$42,000 $45,777 X Yes     


Professional development for teachers and staff on effective distance 
learning practices. 


$6,000 $12,000 X Yes     


Upgraded technology for teachers, including laptops, second monitor, 
stylus, wireless headsets and mice. 


$9,000 $9,000 X Yes     


CAES academic Counselor to maintain academic records, screening 
for eligible programs, and making referrals to behavioral health 
counseling. 


$27,308 $28,000 X Yes     


StudySync ELA curriculum available digitally to support distance 
learning. 


$857 $1,475 X Yes     


The purchase of ZOOM for Educators licenses to facilitate distance 
learning. 


$5,400 $5,400 X Yes     


Professional development for teachers and staff on effective distance 
learning practices. 


$25,000 $25,000 X Yes     


Postage costs for mailing out student packets and IEP documents. $3,000 $3,000 X Yes     


Copies and packet supplies to ensure students have the materials 
needed to participate in distance learning. 


$9,600 $6,500 X Yes     


The purchase of additional technology needed for distance learning 
such as cameras and headphones. 


$11,150 $7,000 X Yes     


 
A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the distance learning 
program and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 
There were no substantive differences between the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures for the distance learning program 
and how it implemented and/or expended on the actions.         
 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 33 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Analysis of the Distance Learning Program 
 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing each of the following elements of the distance learning program in the 
2020-21 school year, as applicable: Continuity of Instruction, Access to Devices and Connectivity, Pupil Participation and Progress, 
Distance Learning Professional Development, Staff Roles and Responsibilities, and Support for Pupils with Unique Needs. 
Distance learning was provided for all Juvenile Hall and Cadet Academy students in 2020-21, but in-person cohort instruction started 
on October 20, 2020.  When cohort instruction began, all students received in-person instruction two days per week, and received 
Distance Learning lessons the rest of the week.  There were many challenges and success in implementing the following elements 
into the distance learning program. For continuity of instruction, teachers were assigned a set group of students to provide in-person 
instruction.  In regards to access to devices and connectivity, all students were supported academically with 1:1 devices 
(Chromebooks) to allow receiving synchronous virtual instruction virtually. Pupil participation and progress, was greatly dependent on 
daily communication with educational and correctional staff.  To support Distance Learning challenges, MCSOS provided ongoing 
Professional Growth and Development in the areas of SEL, ELA, ELD, technology integration and student supports.  In-person 
instruction resumed on April 6, 2021, allowing teachers and students to resume to their full day of instruction daily.  As for supporting 
pupils with unique needs (IEPs, #504's, Speech, etc.),  all services were provided in compliance with Ed. code and SELPA laws.  All 
stakeholders were provided a link to provide input via ParentSquare or paper copies of surveys, both were available in English and 
Spanish.  Zoom stakeholder input meetings and virtual parent-teacher conferences were also used to gather input.  Analysis of 
feedback proved positive as parents indicted that student technology needs were met, social-emotional support was provided and 
students had more opportunities to visit with parents through Zoom.  ParentSquare has also proven to be effective in providing two-
way communication between teachers and families, and will be the primary tool to get information to families regarding topics 
pertaining to academics, social-emotional health, and community resources, including documents from Juvenile Hall.         
 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 34 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Pupil Learning Loss 
 
Actions Related to the Pupil Learning Loss 


Description Total  
Budgeted Funds 


Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 


Contributing 


All students have access to devices. $9,000 $14,000 X No      


New ELA curriculum, StudySynch, will increase academic rigor and 
English Language proficiency. 


$857 $1,475 X Yes     


Training on Social-Emotional learning and trauma informed practices. $3,000 $3,000 X Yes     


Training on administering state assessments. $500 $500 X No      


Academic counselors provide parent/care-giver workshops on issues 
related to pupil learning loss. 


$1,200 $1,500 X Yes     


The purchase of additional technology and hotspots to ensure all 
students have connectivity and access to distance learning 
instruction. 


$67,250 $67,250 X Yes     


The purchase of Second Step materials to address student social 
emotional well-being. 


$17,000 $17,000 X Yes     


Additional supplemental software programs to add resources to the 
classroom instruction. 


$600 $500 X Yes     


 
A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for addressing pupil learning 
loss and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 
There were no substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for addressing pupil learning loss 
and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions.         
 
Analysis of Pupil Learning Loss 
 
A description of the successes and challenges in addressing Pupil Learning Loss in the 2020-21 school year and an analysis of the 
effectiveness of the efforts to address Pupil Learning Loss to date.  
Some of the challenges in addressing pupil learning loss in the 2020-21 school year included a significant decrease in student 
enrollment at Juvenile Hall, as Juvenile Probation staff limited contact with probationary youth and incarceration of youth was for 
serious crimes, and not just probation violations.  As a result, many students remained truant for a long time.  Distance Learning was 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 35 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


especially difficult for incarcerated students, as they did not have the academic support they would have had at home.  Instead, 
effective instruction was highly dependent on daily communication between teachers and correctional staff to monitor student progress 
and collect or distribute work.  Students in mandatory isolation for 14 days to prevent COVID-19 outbreaks were affected even more, 
as even correctional staff had limited contact to prevent the spread of the virus.  One of the greatest challenges during the COVID-19 
Pandemic was keeping all students engaged while  Distance Learning was in place.  On October 20, 2020, in-person instruction 
started twice a week in cohorts.  Teachers and students responded favorably, as increased support could be provided to students.  
Correctional staff continued to play a valuable role collecting and providing work between teachers and students.  MCSOS's greatest 
successes in mitigating pupil learning loss was the LEA's focus on addressing the social-emotional (SEL) wellness of students by 
providing several professional learning opportunities from Madera County Department of Behavioral Health.  Also, based on interim i-
Ready assessment (local indicator) results, students were assigned time to work on prescriptive i-Ready lesson in ELA and math to 
support subskill weaknesses in those content areas.  On April 6, 2021, Madera County received clearance from Madera County 
Department of Public Health, to allow students to return to daily in-person instruction.  Extensive planning between MCSOS 
administrators and correctional staff facilitated a smooth transition back to in-person instruction.  In the analysis of effectiveness in 
efforts to address Pupil Learning Loss, including for pupils who are English learners, low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional 
needs; and pupils who are experiencing homelessness, there is were that students who were struggling prior to the pandemic, showed 
similar patterns of behavior during the COVID-19 closure. Lost learning included students falling behind in assignments, students 
requesting in-person support and students stating they had lost motivation in learning.  Teachers noted that students did much better 
and were more engaged once daily in-person instruction resumed, since areas of struggle could be supported, resulting in students 
staying motivated to complete assignments.         
 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 36 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 
 
A description of the successes and challenges in monitoring and supporting mental health and social and emotional well-being in the 
2020-21 school year. 
There were many challenges and successes in monitoring and supporting mental health for social and emotional well-being in the 
2020-21 school year. To begin, Social - Emotional Learning (SEL) was the forefront of our Distance Learning model. All teachers and 
support staff were trained at the beginning of the pandemic with very focused professional growth and development in SEL. The 
appropriate literature provided to the CAES division was "The Distance Learning Playbook" by Hattie, Fisher and Frey. With this 
guidebook and training, teachers were better equipped to support students during these challenging times where students were 
isolated socially, unable to attend school in person, interact with friends or be engaged educationally where student teacher interaction 
is a critical component to student achievement.  To address the needs of students who required additional support, referrals were 
made for Student Study Teams (SSTs) to ensure that all avenues and resources were explored in the process.         
 
Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 
 
A description of the successes and challenges in implementing pupil and family engagement and outreach in the 2020-21 school year. 
There have been many challenges and successes this year in implementing pupil and family engagement and outreach in the 2020-21 
school year. A primary challenge and ultimately a success from years past, was 1:1 technology integration and incorporation of Zoom 
for Distance Learning. In the Spring of 2020, students were not equipped with 1:1 devices proper Distance Learning instruction.  
MCSOS's CAES Division sent out a needs assessment in the form of a survey in English and Spanish and yielded a need for 
technology.  As a result, new were issued to all students to ensure that all students had the ability to receive instruction in a Distance 
Learning model. Challenges for implementing pupil and family engagement and outreach in the 2020-21 included communicating 
effectively in a remote situation. As a result, the CAES division transitioned to ParentSquare as a parent communication portal in 
which school/parent communication was made accessible either through email, text or both. Parents were encouraged to download 
the free App on their phones or computers and all communication was provided in both English and Spanish, whichever parents 
indicated on their initial surveys. Efforts made to reach out to students and families when students were not meeting academic 
requirements or to share successes increased school to home communication with teachers. Additional training and Professional 
Development for teachers was provided to support students in a Distance Learning model.         
 
Analysis of School Nutrition 
 
A description of the successes and challenges in providing school nutrition in the 2020-21 school year. 
Daily nutrition was provided to all students through Madera County Juvenile Probation Department.         
 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 37 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Additional Actions and Plan Requirements 
 
Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan 


Section Description Total  
Budgeted Funds 


Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 


Contributing 


 startcollapse    
 
A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and budgeted expenditures for the additional plan 
requirements and what was implemented and expended on the actions. 
         
 
Overall Analysis 
 
An explanation of how lessons learned from implementing in-person and distance learning programs in 2020-21 have informed the 
development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP. 
         
 
An explanation of how pupil learning loss continues to be assessed and addressed in the 2021–24 LCAP, especially for pupils with 
unique needs. 
         
 
A description of any substantive differences between the description of the actions or services identified as contributing towards 
meeting the increased or improved services requirement and the actions or services implemented to meet the increased or improved 
services requirement. 
         
 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 38 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan  
 
A description of how the analysis and reflection on student outcomes in the 2019-20 LCAP and 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan have informed the development of the 21-22 through 23-24 LCAP. 
From the 2019-20 LCAP and 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan, an analysis and reflection on how student outcomes 
have informed the development of the 2021-22 through 2023-24 LCAP, is presented as follows: 
1) With extensive stakeholder input, Goals #1-3 from the 2019-20 LCAP remained the same as: (a) Student achievement is a top 
priority (b) Student social-emotional support/safe school environment and (c) Parent engagement, to address the needs of students 
and our community. 
 
2) Because 2019-20 CAASPP summative assessment and dashboard data was not available to support in the decision making 
process for the 2020-21 schoolyear, the shift to our local indicator, i-Ready, as a diagnostic, progress monitor and summative 
assessment, became our local indicator. MCSOS students were still required to take the 2020-21 CAASPP summative assessments, 
to assist in providing baseline data for the writing of the 2021-23 LCAP. 
3) Based on MCSOS's  limited CAASPP results  data, due to low number of students completing the assessments in 2018-19 in ELA 
and Math, these CORE areas were assessed using i-ready assessments.  These assessments revealed students were significantly 
behind grade-level.  In addition to ELA and Math, ELD will continue to be a focus of instructional development for staff professional 
growth and training for the 2021-22 school year. 
4) With the Distance Learning Model being implemented in the LCP of 2020-21, MCSOS will continue to provide 1:1 updated 
technology and software to ensure safe and appropriate use and help all students be successful academically. 
5) Additional Social-Emotional supports and training will continue to be provided to address the needs of students and staff as 
students transition back to a 100% in-person learning model for the school year 2021-22. 
6) Parent engagement and community partnerships will also be a continued focus and reflection of improvement as Juvenile Hall 
struggles historically in maintaining high rates of participation and involvement, since lengths of incarceration vary from a few days to a 
few months.  Seldom, are students in Juvenile Hall for more than a year. 
         
 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 39 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Instructions: Introduction 
The Annual Update Template for the 2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and the Annual Update for the 2020–21 
Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan must be completed as part of the development of the 2021-22 LCAP. In subsequent years, 
the Annual Update will be completed using the LCAP template and expenditure tables adopted by the State Board of Education. 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the LCAP template, please contact the local COE, or the 
California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at 
lcff@cde.ca.gov. 


Instructions: Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan 
Year 
Annual Update 
The planned goals, state and/or local priorities, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the approved 2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). Minor typographical errors may be corrected. 
Duplicate the Goal, Annual Measurable Outcomes, Actions / Services and Analysis tables as needed. 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each goal in 2019-20, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as compared to the expected annual measurable 
outcomes identified in 2019-20 for the goal. If an actual measurable outcome is not available due to the impact of COVID-19 provide a 
brief explanation of why the actual measurable outcome is not available. If an alternative metric was used to measure progress towards 
the goal, specify the metric used and the actual measurable outcome for that metric. 
Actions/Services 
Identify the planned Actions/Services, the budgeted expenditures to implement these actions toward achieving the described goal and 
the actual expenditures to implement the actions/services.  
Goal Analysis 
Using available state and local data and input from parents, students, teachers, and other stakeholders, respond to the prompts as 
instructed. 


 If funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were expended on other actions and services through the end 
of the school year, describe how the funds were used to support students, including low-income, English learner, or foster youth 
students, families, teachers and staff. This description may include a description of actions/services implemented to mitigate the 
impact of COVID-19 that were not part of the 2019-20 LCAP. 



mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov





Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 40 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


 Describe the overall successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services. As part of the description, specify which 
actions/services were not implemented due to the impact of COVID-19, as applicable. To the extent practicable, LEAs are 
encouraged to include a description of the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal. 


Instructions: Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance 
Plan 
Annual Update 
The action descriptions and budgeted expenditures must be copied verbatim from the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance 
Plan. Minor typographical errors may be corrected. 


Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings  
 In the table, identify the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures to implement actions related to in-person instruction and 


the estimated actual expenditures to implement the actions. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 


 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for in-person instruction and 
what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable.  


Analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings 


 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in implementing in-person instruction in the 2020-21 school year, as applicable. If in-
person instruction was not provided to any students in 2020-21, please state as such. 


Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program 
 In the table, identify the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures to implement actions related to the distance learning 


program and the estimated actual expenditures to implement the actions. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 


 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the distance learning 
program and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable.  


Analysis of the Distance Learning Program 


 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in implementing distance learning in the 2020-21 school year in each of the following 
areas, as applicable:  


o Continuity of Instruction,  
o Access to Devices and Connectivity,  







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 41 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


o Pupil Participation and Progress,  
o Distance Learning Professional Development,  
o Staff Roles and Responsibilities, and  
o Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs, including English learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full 


continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing homelessness 
To the extent practicable, LEAs are encouraged to include an analysis of the effectiveness of the distance learning program to 
date. If distance learning was not provided to any students in 2020-21, please state as such. 


Actions Related to Pupil Learning Loss 
 In the table, identify the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures to implement actions related to addressing pupil learning 


loss and the estimated actual expenditures to implement the actions. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 


 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for addressing pupil learning 
loss and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable.  


Analysis of Pupil Learning Loss 


 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in addressing Pupil Learning Loss in the 2020-21 school year, as applicable. To the 
extent practicable, include an analysis of the effectiveness of the efforts to address pupil learning loss, including for pupils who 
are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils who are experiencing homelessness, 
as applicable. 


Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 
 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 


the successes and challenges experienced in monitoring and supporting Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being of 
both pupils and staff during the 2020-21 school year, as applicable. 


Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 
 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 


the successes and challenges related to pupil engagement and outreach during the 2020-21 school year, including implementing 
tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who were absent from distance learning and the efforts of the LEA in reaching out to 
pupils and their parents or guardians when pupils were not meeting compulsory education requirements or engaging in 
instruction, as applicable. 


Analysis of School Nutrition 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 42 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in providing nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils during the 2020-21 school 
year, whether participating in in-person instruction or distance learning, as applicable. 


Analysis of Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan 
 In the table, identify the section, the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures for the additional actions and the estimated 


actual expenditures to implement the actions, as applicable. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 


 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the additional actions to 
implement the learning continuity plan and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable.  


Overall Analysis of the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 
The Overall Analysis prompts are to be responded to only once, following an analysis of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan. 


 Provide an explanation of how the lessons learned from implementing in-person and distance learning programs in 2020-21 
have informed the development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP.  


o As part of this analysis, LEAs are encouraged to consider how their ongoing response to the COVID-19 pandemic has 
informed the development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP, such as health and safety considerations, distance 
learning, monitoring and supporting mental health and social-emotional well-being and engaging pupils and families. 


 Provide an explanation of how pupil learning loss continues to be assessed and addressed in the 2021–24 LCAP, especially for 
pupils with unique needs (including low income students, English learners, pupils with disabilities served across the full 
continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing homelessness).  


 Describe any substantive differences between the actions and/or services identified as contributing towards meeting the 
increased or improved services requirement, pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496, and the 
actions and/or services that the LEA implemented to meet the increased or improved services requirement. If the LEA has 
provided a description of substantive differences to actions and/or services identified as contributing towards meeting the 
increased or improved services requirement within the In-Person Instruction, Distance Learning Program, Learning Loss, or 
Additional Actions sections of the Annual Update the LEA is not required to include those descriptions as part of this description. 


Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan 
The Overall Analysis prompt is to be responded to only once, following the analysis of both the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 
Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan.  


 Describe how the analysis and reflection related to student outcomes in the 2019-20 LCAP and 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan have informed the development of the 21-22 through 23-24 LCAP, as applicable. 


 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 43 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


California Department of Education 
January 2021 


 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 44 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


 


Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year 
Expenditure Summary 


 
Total Expenditures by Funding Source 


Funding Source 
2019-20 


Annual Update 
Budgeted 


2019-20 
Annual Update 


Actual 
All Funding Sources 1,456,722.00 1,201,223.00 
Federal Funds 463,122.00 374,445.00 
Governors CTE Initiative: California Partnership Academies 0.00 0.00 
LCFF 0.00 6,200.00 
LCFF Base 481,650.00 392,038.00 
LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 252,450.00 203,093.00 
Title I 163,600.00 133,433.00 
Title II 5,200.00 600.00 
Title IV 90,700.00 91,414.00 


 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 45 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Total Expenditures by Object Type 


Object Type 
2019-20 


Annual Update 
Budgeted 


2019-20 
Annual Update 


Actual 
All Expenditure Types 1,456,722.00 1,201,223.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 803,200.00 733,787.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 97,650.00 222,173.00 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 272,300.00 178,397.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 77,000.00 25,646.00 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures 206,572.00 41,220.00 
5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures 0.00 0.00 


 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 46 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 


Object Type Funding Source 
2019-20 


Annual Update 
Budgeted 


2019-20 
Annual Update 


Actual 
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 1,456,722.00 1,201,223.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Federal Funds 181,400.00 214,259.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries LCFF 0.00 6,200.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 430,800.00 351,695.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 27,400.00 28,200.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries Title I 163,600.00 133,433.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries Federal Funds 0.00 123,559.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 2,300.00 2,400.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 4,650.00 4,800.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries Title IV 90,700.00 91,414.00 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits Federal Funds 90,700.00 0.00 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits Governors CTE Initiative: California Partnership 


Academies 
0.00 0.00 


3000-3999: Employee Benefits LCFF Base 28,900.00 27,400.00 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 152,700.00 150,997.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies Federal Funds 45,600.00 12,000.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 31,400.00 13,646.00 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 


Federal Funds 145,422.00 24,627.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 


LCFF Base 19,650.00 10,543.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 


LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 36,300.00 5,450.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 


Title II 5,200.00 600.00 


5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 


LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 0.00 0.00 


  $0.00 $0.00 
 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 47 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Total Expenditures by Goal 


Goal 
2019-20 


Annual Update 
Budgeted 


2019-20 
Annual Update 


Actual 
Goal 1 506,950.00 508,093.00 
Goal 2 361,000.00 196,871.00 
Goal 3 26,250.00 21,200.00 
Goal 4 553,822.00 465,859.00 
Goal 5 8,700.00 9,200.00 


 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 







Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 48 of 48 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)


Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 
Expenditure Summary 
 


Total Expenditures by Offering/Program 


Offering/Program 2020-21 Budgeted 2020-21 Actual 


In-Person Instructional Offerings $204,384.00 $207,477.00 


Distance Learning Program $139,315.00 $143,152.00 


Pupil Learning Loss $99,407.00 $105,225.00 


Additional Actions and Plan Requirements   


All Expenditures in Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan $443,106.00 $455,854.00 
 


Expenditures by Offering/Program (Not Contributing to Increased/Improved requirement) 


Offering/Program 2020-21 Budgeted 2020-21 Actual 


In-Person Instructional Offerings   


Distance Learning Program   


Pupil Learning Loss $9,500.00 $14,500.00 


Additional Actions and Plan Requirements   


All Expenditures in Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan $9,500.00 $14,500.00 
 


Expenditures by Offering/Program (Contributing to Increased/Improved requirement) 


Offering/Program 2020-21 Budgeted 2020-21 Actual 


In-Person Instructional Offerings $204,384.00 $207,477.00 


Distance Learning Program $139,315.00 $143,152.00 


Pupil Learning Loss $89,907.00 $90,725.00 


Additional Actions and Plan Requirements   


All Expenditures in Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan $433,606.00 $441,354.00 







2021-22 LCFF Budget Overview for Parents Data Input Sheet 
 


Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) 


CDS Code: 20102070000000 


LEA Contact Information: Name: Hugo Sanchez 
Position:  Program Director - Career and Alternative Education Services 
Email: hsanchez@mcsos.org 
Phone: (559) 662-6211 


Coming School Year: 2021-22 


Current School Year: 2020-21 


 
*NOTE: The "High Needs Students" referred to in the tables below are Unduplicated Students for LCFF funding purposes. 


Projected General Fund Revenue for the 2021-22 School Year Amount 
Total LCFF Funds $13,110,649 
LCFF Supplemental & Concentration Grants $262,654 
All Other State Funds $12,384,242 
All Local Funds $11,632,088 
All federal funds $9,380,897 
Total Projected Revenue $46,507,876 


 
Total Budgeted Expenditures for the 2021-22 School Year Amount 
Total Budgeted General Fund Expenditures $41,030,440 
Total Budgeted Expenditures in the LCAP $960,724 
Total Budgeted Expenditures for High Needs Students in the LCAP $216,623 


Expenditures not in the LCAP $40,069,716 
 
Expenditures for High Needs Students in the 2020-21 School Year Amount 
Total Budgeted Expenditures for High Needs Students in the Learning Continuity Plan $1,111,738 
Actual Expenditures for High Needs Students in Learning Continuity Plan $1,200,000 


 


Funds for High Needs Students Amount 
2021-22 Difference in Projected Funds and Budgeted Expenditures $-46,031 


2020-21 Difference in Budgeted and Actual Expenditures $88,262 


 


Required Prompts(s) Response(s) 


Briefly describe any of the General Fund 
Budget Expenditures for the school year 
not included in the Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP).        


Total GF Budget is $46,507,876 and of the total, $40,069,716 is not 
included (Restricted - $37,008,287; Special Education - $30,329; $ESSA-
COE & Special Ed $369,644; STRS On-Behalf $916,720) due to restricted 
programs county offices operate on a county-wide or regional basis.  
General operations of Human Resources, Info. Services, Business 
Services, Operations/Facilities and General Administration total 
$9,734,037 and are also not included. 







The amount budgeted to increase or 
improve services for high needs 
students in the 2021-22 LCAP is less 
than the projected revenue of LCFF 
supplemental and concentration grants 
for 2021-22. Provide a brief description of 
the additional actions the LEA is taking 
to meet its requirement to improve 
services for high needs students.        


In 2021-2022, Madera County Superintendent of schools is projecting it 
will receive $406,303 based on the enrollment of foster youth, English 
learner, and low income students.  Madera County Superintendent of 
Schools must demonstrate the planned actions and services will increase 
or improve services for high needs students compared to the services all 
students receive in proportion to the increased funding it receives for high 
needs students.  In the LCAP Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
plans to spend $960,724 on actions to meet this requirement. 
 
 


 
 







LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / 
Voyager) 
CDS Code: 20102070000000 


School Year: 2021-22 


LEA contact information: 
Hugo Sanchez 
Program Director - Career and Alternative Education Services  
hsanchez@mcsos.org 
(559) 662-6211 


 
School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of 
funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based 
on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students). 
 


Budget Overview for the 2021-22 School Year 


 
This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor 


/ Voyager) expects to receive in the coming year from all sources. 
 
The total revenue projected for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) is 
$46,507,876, of which $13,110,649 is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $12,384,242 is other state 







funds, $11,632,088 is local funds, and $9,380,897 is federal funds.  Of the $13,110,649 in LCFF Funds, 
$262,654 is generated based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and 
low-income students). 
 
  







LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 
The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school 
districts must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students. 
 


 
This chart provides a quick summary of how much Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / 


Voyager) plans to spend for 2021-22. It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and 
services in the LCAP. 


 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) plans to spend $41,030,440 for the 
2021-22 school year. Of that amount, $960,724 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and $40,069,716 is 
not included in the LCAP. The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for 
the following: 
 
Total GF Budget is $46,507,876 and of the total, $40,069,716 is not included (Restricted - $37,008,287; 
Special Education - $30,329; $ESSA-COE & Special Ed $369,644; STRS On-Behalf $916,720) due to 
restricted programs county offices operate on a county-wide or regional basis.  General operations of 
Human Resources, Info. Services, Business Services, Operations/Facilities and General Administration 
total $9,734,037 and are also not included.        
 
Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2021-22 


School Year 
 
In 2021-22, Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) is projecting it will receive 
$262,654 based on the enrollment of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Madera 
County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) must describe how it intends to increase or 
improve services for high needs students in the LCAP.  Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
(Endeavor / Voyager) plans to spend $216,623 towards meeting this requirement, as described in the 
LCAP. 
 
In 2021-2022, Madera County Superintendent of schools is projecting it will receive $406,303 based on 
the enrollment of foster youth, English learner, and low income students.  Madera County Superintendent 
of Schools must demonstrate the planned actions and services will increase or improve services for high 
needs students compared to the services all students receive in proportion to the increased funding it 







receives for high needs students.  In the LCAP Madera County Superintendent of Schools plans to spend 
$960,724 on actions to meet this requirement. 
 
        
 
  







LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 


Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2020-21 


 
This chart compares what Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) budgeted last 


year in the Learning Continuity Plan for actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving 
services for high needs students with what Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / 
Voyager) estimates it has spent on actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving 


services for high needs students in the current year. 
 
In 2020-21, Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager)'s Learning Continuity Plan 
budgeted $1,111,738 for planned actions to increase or improve services for high needs students. Madera 
County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor / Voyager) actually spent $1,200,000 for actions to increase 
or improve services for high needs students in 2020-21. 
 
 





		Agenda Item 5.5 Board of Education Informational Item June 8, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:



		Local Control Accountability Plan

		Plan Summary [2021-22]

		General Information

		Reflections: Successes

		Reflections: Identified Need

		LCAP Highlights

		Comprehensive Support and Improvement

		Schools Identified

		Support for Identified Schools

		Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness





		Stakeholder Engagement

		Goals and Actions

		Goal

		Measuring and Reporting Results

		Actions

		Goal Analysis [2021-22]



		Goals and Actions

		Goal

		Measuring and Reporting Results

		Actions

		Goal Analysis [2021-22]



		Goals and Actions

		Goal

		Measuring and Reporting Results

		Actions

		Goal Analysis [2021-22]



		Goals and Actions

		Goal

		Measuring and Reporting Results

		Actions

		Goal Analysis [2021-22]



		Goals and Actions

		Goal

		Measuring and Reporting Results

		Actions

		Goal Analysis [2021-22]



		Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students [2021-22]

		Required Descriptions





		Total Expenditures Table

		Contributing Expenditures Tables

		Annual Update Table Year 1 [2021-22]

		Instructions

		Introduction and Instructions

		Plan Summary

		Purpose

		Requirements and Instructions



		Stakeholder Engagement

		Purpose

		Requirements and Instructions



		Goals and Actions

		Purpose

		Requirements and Instructions

		Focus Goal(s)

		Broad Goal

		Maintenance of Progress Goal

		Measuring and Reporting Results:

		Goal Analysis:





		Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students

		Purpose

		Requirements and Instructions



		Expenditure Tables



		Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan

		Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year

		Goal 1

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Goal Analysis

		Goal 2

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Goal Analysis

		Goal 3

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Goal Analysis

		Goal 4

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Goal Analysis

		Goal 5

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Goal Analysis



		Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan

		In-Person Instructional Offerings

		Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings

		Analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings



		Distance Learning Program

		Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program

		Analysis of the Distance Learning Program



		Pupil Learning Loss

		Actions Related to the Pupil Learning Loss

		Analysis of Pupil Learning Loss

		Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being

		Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach

		Analysis of School Nutrition



		Additional Actions and Plan Requirements

		Overall Analysis



		Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan



		Instructions: Introduction

		Instructions: Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year

		Annual Update

		Instructions: Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan

		Annual Update

		Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings

		Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program

		Actions Related to Pupil Learning Loss

		Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being

		Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach

		Analysis of Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan

		Overall Analysis of the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan



		Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan

		Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year Expenditure Summary

		Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan Expenditure Summary



		2021-22 LCFF Budget Overview for Parents Data Input Sheet

		LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

		Budget Overview for the 2021-22 School Year



		LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

		Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2020-21












 


  
 


 


      
 


  
 
 


 
 


   
  


 
 


    
    


  
 


  
    


   
    


 
    


   
  


    
  


   
 


   
 


 
     


 
 


    
       
  


 
 


  
   


   


Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


Agenda Item 5.6 


Board of Education 
Public Hearing for the Proposed Budget


Madera County Superintendent of Schools 2021-2022 
June 8, 2021 


Topic:
The Madera County Superintendent of School’s (MCSOS) Budget for the 
2021-2022 school year along with the Estimated Actual Budget Projections 
for the 2020-2021 year. 


Background:
The attached Madera Superintendent of School’s Proposed Budget for the 
2021-2022 school year, drawing from the Governor’s May Revision Budget 
information, is based upon the following assumptions: 


1. We assumed a 5.07% COLA (Cost-of-Living Adjustment) applied to 
the LCFF components and 4.05% for Special Education 
Components.  Remaining programs that are normally subject to 
COLA used the statutory COLA of 1.74%. The two subsequent years 
are estimated at 2.48% and 3.11% based on Department of Finance 
Estimates and School Services Dartboard. 


2. ADA used in the budget is 38.68 for Juvenile Hall and 289.4 for 
Special Education. 


3. Step and Column adjustments are assumed at 1.5% for each of the 
next two years. 


4. PERS rate increase is anticipated to go from 20.7% to 22.91% (or 
approximately $241,583) for the 2021-2022 year, then to 26.1% in 
the 2022-2023 year ($353,941) and then 27.1% in the 2023-2024 
year ($112,618). 


5. STRS rate increase is anticipated to go from 16.15% to 16.92% 
($78,630) for the 2021-2022 year, then to 19.1% in 2022-2023 
($225,955) and then 19.1% again in the 2023-2024 year. 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 



www.mcsos.org





 


 


 
   


 
    


  
  


   
  


     
     


 
    


   
 


   
 


     
   


    
  


 
   


 
  


      
  


    
       


 


  
  


      


 
 


 
 


 
 
  


  
 
 


6. Early Childhood Education funding is estimated at the same current year 
amounts for California State Preschool Program (CSPP), General Child Care 
(CCTR) and other programs. Standard Reimbursement Rate for CSPP/CCTR 
programs are estimated to remain flat. 


7. Estimated supply, services and equipment budgets have been designed to meet 
program and operational needs and have been aligned to program goals. 
Additional staff development is envisioned to support students from lower income 
households, English Learners, and Foster youth. 


8. The budget as it now stands reflects an increase to the ending Unrestricted 
General Fund balance of $961,431 and an increase of $2,870,321 in Restricted 
General Fund balance.  This brings the overall General Fund balance increase of 
$3,831,734.  


9. The Cash Flow report in the budget document reflects a Cash Deferral of funds 
as outlined in the Governor’s May Revise documents. This includes receiving all 
the deferrals of current year during their planned months next year and continues 
a deferral of June’s apportionment to July 2022. 


10. Ed Code 42127 requires that the minimum recommended reserve for economic 
uncertainties be identified along with amounts above the minimum and the 
assigned and unassigned ending balances which is included in the budget 
document. The required reserve for uncertainty represents only a few weeks of 
payroll.  The Government Finance Officers Association recommends reserves, at 
minimum, equal to two months of average general fund operating expenditures, 
or 17%. MCSOS is budgeted to end the 21-22 year with 15.5% reserves. 


Legislative leadership and the Governor will be working out a plan to move forward with 
for next year.  Significant changes may be part of that and may require a 45-day budget 
revision. More information will be available once the State Budget is enacted. 


Financial Impact:
Outlined above. 


Resource: 
Julie DeWall 
Chief Officer 
Business & Administrative Services 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  


 
 


      


      


       


       


      


 
 


      


      


      


       


         


      


          
           


           


      


    
       
           


   
 
      
          


          


      
         


         


     


        


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


A. REVENUES 


1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 6,878,610.00 6,232,039.00 13,110,649.00 6,302,442.00 6,239,408.00 12,541,850.00 -4.3% 


2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 680,000.00 8,700,897.00 9,380,897.00 480,000.00 8,474,010.00 8,954,010.00 -4.6% 


3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 81,707.00 12,302,535.00 12,384,242.00 88,958.00 13,185,166.00 13,274,124.00 7.2% 


4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 2,855,932.00 8,776,156.00 11,632,088.00 3,099,320.00 9,109,703.00 12,209,023.00 5.0% 


5) TOTAL, REVENUES 10,496,249.00 36,011,627.00 46,507,876.00 9,970,720.00 37,008,287.00 46,979,007.00 1.0% 


B. EXPENDITURES 


1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 2,057,535.00 8,275,280.00 10,332,815.00 2,012,638.00 8,480,464.00 10,493,102.00 1.6% 


2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 3,962,493.00 6,749,736.00 10,712,229.00 4,006,637.00 6,875,130.00 10,881,767.00 1.6% 


3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 2,456,558.00 7,003,422.00 9,459,980.00 2,605,381.00 7,570,246.00 10,175,627.00 7.6% 


4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 468,340.00 1,886,980.00 2,355,320.00 426,693.00 1,994,249.00 2,420,942.00 2.8% 


5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,115,973.00 5,407,897.00 6,523,870.00 1,048,850.00 6,253,347.00 7,302,197.00 11.9% 


6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 126,751.00 518,975.00 645,726.00 50,516.00 363,509.00 414,025.00 -35.9% 


7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299 
Costs) 7400-7499 1,122,018.00 122,156.00 1,244,174.00 1,137,683.00 122,156.00 1,259,839.00 1.3% 


8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (2,527,001.00) 2,283,327.00 (243,674.00) (2,941,510.00) 2,683,435.00 (258,075.00) 5.9% 


9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 8,782,667.00 32,247,773.00 41,030,440.00 8,346,888.00 34,342,536.00 42,689,424.00 4.0% 


C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 1,713,582.00 3,763,854.00 5,477,436.00 1,623,832.00 2,665,751.00 4,289,583.00 -21.7% 


D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 


1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 23,132.00 0.00 23,132.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 


b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 2,358,553.00 56,287.00 2,414,840.00 400,000.00 57,849.00 457,849.00 -81.0% 


2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


3) Contributions 8980-8999 (275,630.00) 275,630.00 0.00 (262,419.00) 262,419.00 0.00 0.0% 


4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (2,611,051.00) 219,343.00 (2,391,708.00) (662,419.00) 204,570.00 (457,849.00) -80.9% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 1 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  


      
       


   
 
       
              


          


                 


          


              


            


             
         
             


            


             


             


         


         
             


              


         


              


             


               


            


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + D4) (897,469.00) 3,983,197.00 3,085,728.00 961,413.00 2,870,321.00 3,831,734.00 24.2% 


F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 


1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 8,200,088.00 2,997,772.00 11,197,860.00 7,302,619.00 6,980,969.00 14,283,588.00 27.6% 


b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 8,200,088.00 2,997,772.00 11,197,860.00 7,302,619.00 6,980,969.00 14,283,588.00 27.6% 


d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 8,200,088.00 2,997,772.00 11,197,860.00 7,302,619.00 6,980,969.00 14,283,588.00 27.6% 


2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 7,302,619.00 6,980,969.00 14,283,588.00 8,264,032.00 9,851,290.00 18,115,322.00 26.8% 


Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 


Revolving Cash 9711 2,130.00 0.00 2,130.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 


Stores 9712 (6,501.45) 0.00 (6,501.45) 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 


Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


b) Restricted 9740 0.00 6,980,969.00 6,980,969.00 0.00 9,851,290.00 9,851,290.00 41.1% 


c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


d) Assigned 


Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 


Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 7,306,990.45 0.00 7,306,990.45 8,264,032.00 0.00 8,264,032.00 13.1% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 2 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  


 


     
           


                    


          


            


           


           


     


      


        


        


     


      


       


      


    


        


       


 


      


        


        


      


      


      


    


        


       


  


        


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


G. ASSETS 


1) Cash 
a) in County Treasury 9110 10,252,628.98 215,585.81 10,468,214.79 


1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 9111 0.00 0.00 0.00 


b) in Banks 9120 0.00 0.00 0.00 


c) in Revolving Cash Account 9130 2,130.00 0.00 2,130.00 


d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 9135 0.00 0.00 0.00 


e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 9140 0.00 0.00 0.00 


2) Investments 9150 0.00 0.00 0.00 


3) Accounts Receivable 9200 321,365.27 589,100.39 910,465.66 


4) Due from Grantor Government 9290 0.00 0.00 0.00 


5) Due from Other Funds 9310 0.00 0.00 0.00 


6) Stores 9320 (6,501.45) 0.00 (6,501.45) 


7) Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00 0.00 0.00 


8) Other Current Assets 9340 0.00 0.00 0.00 


9) TOTAL, ASSETS 10,569,622.80 804,686.20 11,374,309.00 


H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 


1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00 0.00 0.00 


2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 0.00 0.00 0.00 


I. LIABILITIES 


1) Accounts Payable 9500 2,107,819.29 61,180.76 2,169,000.05 


2) Due to Grantor Governments 9590 0.00 0.00 0.00 


3) Due to Other Funds 9610 407,525.00 0.00 407,525.00 


4) Current Loans 9640 0.00 0.00 0.00 


5) Unearned Revenue 9650 0.00 60.83 60.83 


6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 2,515,344.29 61,241.59 2,576,585.88 


J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 


1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00 0.00 0.00 


2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 0.00 0.00 0.00 


K. FUND EQUITY 


Ending Fund Balance, June 30 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 3 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  
          


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


(G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 8,054,278.51 743,444.61 8,797,723.12 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 4 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  


 
 
   
        


           


        


    
     


      


      


     
      


      


      


     


      
      


      
      


       
      


         


     
      


      


     
           
 


    
   


       
      


        
       


            


      


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


LCFF SOURCES 


Principal Apportionment 
State Aid - Current Year 8011 3,336,226.00 0.00 3,336,226.00 2,762,384.00 2,762,384.00 -17.2% 


Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 19,150.00 19,150.00 12,658.00 0.00 12,658.00 -33.9% 


State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Tax Relief Subventions 
Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 74,338.00 0.00 74,338.00 74,338.00 0.00 74,338.00 0.0% 


Timber Yield Tax 8022 474.00 0.00 474.00 724.00 0.00 724.00 52.7% 


Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


County & District Taxes 
Secured Roll Taxes 8041 9,126,506.00 0.00 9,126,506.00 9,126,155.00 0.00 9,126,155.00 0.0% 


Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 341,004.00 0.00 341,004.00 340,826.00 0.00 340,826.00 -0.1% 


Prior Years' Taxes 8043 15,605.00 0.00 15,605.00 32,428.00 0.00 32,428.00 107.8% 


Supplemental Taxes 8044 150,000.00 0.00 150,000.00 (35,897.00) 0.00 (35,897.00) -123.9% 


Education Revenue Augmentation 
Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Community Redevelopment Funds 
(SB 617/699/1992) 8047 47,346.00 0.00 47,346.00 228,234.00 0.00 228,234.00 382.1% 


Penalties and Interest from 
Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 8070 0.00 0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604) 
Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Less: Non-LCFF 
(50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Subtotal, LCFF Sources 13,110,649.00 0.00 13,110,649.00 12,541,850.00 0.00 12,541,850.00 -4.3% 
LCFF Transfers 


Unrestricted LCFF Transfers -
Current Year 0000 8091 19,150.00 19,150.00 12,658.00 12,658.00 -33.9% 


All Other LCFF Transfers -
Current Year All Other 8091 (19,150.00) 0.00 (19,150.00) (12,658.00) 0.00 (12,658.00) -33.9% 


Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Property Taxes Transfers 8097 (6,232,039.00) 6,232,039.00 0.00 (6,239,408.00) 6,239,408.00 0.00 0.0% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 5 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  


         


    


 
 


    


     


     


    


    


    


    


  


     


    
    


      


        
   


        


       
   


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 6,878,610.00 6,232,039.00 13,110,649.00 6,302,442.00 6,239,408.00 12,541,850.00 -4.3% 


FEDERAL REVENUE 


Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 3,992,501.00 3,992,501.00 0.00 3,992,501.00 3,992,501.00 0.0% 


Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 0.00 658,821.00 658,821.00 0.00 652,426.00 652,426.00 -1.0% 


Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Pass-Through Revenues from 
Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 505,600.00 505,600.00 520,979.00 520,979.00 3.0% 


Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 
Programs 3025 8290 343,501.00 343,501.00 281,942.00 281,942.00 -17.9% 


Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction 4035 8290 20,795.00 20,795.00 32,982.00 32,982.00 58.6% 


Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student 
Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 6 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  


       


   


      
    


        


  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  


    
   


       


    


  
 


    


     
       


       
       


       


           


           


      


      


         


      
          


          


          


      
      


         


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


Title III, Part A, English Learner 


Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Public Charter Schools Grant 
Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act 


3020, 3040, 3041, 
3045, 3060, 3061, 
3110, 3150, 3155, 
3177, 3180, 3181, 
3182, 3183, 3185, 
4037, 4050, 4123, 
4124, 4126, 4127, 
4128, 4204, 5510, 
5630 8290 1,500,203.00 1,500,203.00 1,791,455.00 1,791,455.00 19.4% 


Career and Technical 
Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 680,000.00 1,679,476.00 2,359,476.00 480,000.00 1,201,725.00 1,681,725.00 -28.7% 


TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 680,000.00 8,700,897.00 9,380,897.00 480,000.00 8,474,010.00 8,954,010.00 -4.6% 


OTHER STATE REVENUE 


Other State Apportionments 


ROC/P Entitlement 
Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Special Education Master Plan 
Current Year 6500 8311 7,637,984.00 7,637,984.00 7,587,814.00 7,587,814.00 -0.7% 


Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 0.00 1,068,004.00 1,068,004.00 0.00 1,068,004.00 1,068,004.00 0.0% 


All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 16,623.00 0.00 16,623.00 16,623.00 0.00 16,623.00 0.0% 


Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 51,699.00 18,625.00 70,324.00 58,950.00 19,257.00 78,207.00 11.2% 


Tax Relief Subventions 
Restricted Levies - Other 


Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Pass-Through Revenues from 
State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 7 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  


       


     
  


 


        


        
      


        


       


       


         


     


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 
6650, 6680, 6685, 


6690, 6695 8590 112,500.00 112,500.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 


California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Career Technical Education Incentive 
Grant Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Quality Education Investment Act 7400 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 13,385.00 3,465,422.00 3,478,807.00 13,385.00 4,510,091.00 4,523,476.00 30.0% 


TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 81,707.00 12,302,535.00 12,384,242.00 88,958.00 13,185,166.00 13,274,124.00 7.2% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 8 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  


  
 


    
       


        
          


          


           


          


        
           


         


        
           


         
         
       


    
        


        


        


        


      


    


          
       


      
        


       


         


       


       


          


      
         


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 


Other Local Revenue 
County and District Taxes 


Other Restricted Levies 
Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Non-Ad Valorem Taxes 
Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Community Redevelopment Funds 
Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Penalties and Interest from 
Delinquent Non-LCFF 
Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Sales 
Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 624.00 624.00 0.00 624.00 624.00 0.0% 


Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Leases and Rentals 8650 1,136,132.00 0.00 1,136,132.00 1,162,682.00 0.00 1,162,682.00 2.3% 


Interest 8660 100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.0% 


Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value 
of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Fees and Contracts 
Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Interagency Services 8677 1,468,515.00 2,878,696.00 4,347,211.00 1,485,353.00 2,810,319.00 4,295,672.00 -1.2% 


Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other Local Revenue 
Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 9 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  
             


        
        


         


  


     


    
         
            


          


         


       
            


          


         


         
             


           


          


              


     
 


 


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


(50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Pass-Through Revenues From 
Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other Local Revenue 8699 151,285.00 2,131,627.00 2,282,912.00 351,285.00 2,351,380.00 2,702,665.00 18.4% 


Tuition 8710 0.00 3,712,581.00 3,712,581.00 0.00 3,891,752.00 3,891,752.00 4.8% 


All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Transfers of Apportionments 
Special Education SELPA Transfers 
From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


From County Offices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


ROC/P Transfers 
From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


From County Offices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other Transfers of Apportionments 
From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 52,628.00 52,628.00 0.00 55,628.00 55,628.00 5.7% 


TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 2,855,932.00 8,776,156.00 11,632,088.00 3,099,320.00 9,109,703.00 12,209,023.00 5.0% 


TOTAL, REVENUES 10,496,249.00 36,011,627.00 46,507,876.00 9,970,720.00 37,008,287.00 46,979,007.00 1.0% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 10 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  


 
 


    


     


      


    


    


 
 


    


    


      


      


    


    


 
 


  


  


  


     


   


   


   


    


    


    


  
 


       


      


    


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


CERTIFICATED SALARIES 


Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 158,611.00 5,757,057.00 5,915,668.00 158,639.00 6,095,145.00 6,253,784.00 5.7% 


Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 641,981.00 208,593.00 850,574.00 656,574.00 205,314.00 861,888.00 1.3% 


Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 1,239,358.00 2,136,592.00 3,375,950.00 1,197,425.00 2,072,805.00 3,270,230.00 -3.1% 


Other Certificated Salaries 1900 17,585.00 173,038.00 190,623.00 0.00 107,200.00 107,200.00 -43.8% 


TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 2,057,535.00 8,275,280.00 10,332,815.00 2,012,638.00 8,480,464.00 10,493,102.00 1.6% 


CLASSIFIED SALARIES 


Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 3,354,515.00 3,354,515.00 0.00 3,485,978.00 3,485,978.00 3.9% 


Classified Support Salaries 2200 290,518.00 1,802,016.00 2,092,534.00 307,069.00 1,853,285.00 2,160,354.00 3.2% 


Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 1,570,255.00 196,679.00 1,766,934.00 1,519,930.00 194,440.00 1,714,370.00 -3.0% 


Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 2,100,080.00 1,207,284.00 3,307,364.00 2,179,638.00 1,152,143.00 3,331,781.00 0.7% 


Other Classified Salaries 2900 1,640.00 189,242.00 190,882.00 0.00 189,284.00 189,284.00 -0.8% 


TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 3,962,493.00 6,749,736.00 10,712,229.00 4,006,637.00 6,875,130.00 10,881,767.00 1.6% 


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 


STRS 3101-3102 325,528.00 2,104,180.00 2,429,708.00 336,878.00 2,317,566.00 2,654,444.00 9.2% 


PERS 3201-3202 804,191.00 1,487,038.00 2,291,229.00 910,531.00 1,699,320.00 2,609,851.00 13.9% 


OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 86,101.00 219,378.00 305,479.00 86,342.00 218,487.00 304,829.00 -0.2% 


Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 894,221.00 2,382,953.00 3,277,174.00 875,493.00 2,361,515.00 3,237,008.00 -1.2% 


Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 2,762.00 7,066.00 9,828.00 68,118.00 173,478.00 241,596.00 2358.2% 


Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 101,198.00 251,746.00 352,944.00 95,251.00 242,308.00 337,559.00 -4.4% 


OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 238,232.00 547,528.00 785,760.00 228,741.00 554,547.00 783,288.00 -0.3% 


OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 4,325.00 3,533.00 7,858.00 4,027.00 3,025.00 7,052.00 -10.3% 


TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2,456,558.00 7,003,422.00 9,459,980.00 2,605,381.00 7,570,246.00 10,175,627.00 7.6% 


BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 


Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 10,000.00 4,444.00 14,444.00 10,000.00 6,162.00 16,162.00 11.9% 


Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 3,301.00 2,158.00 5,459.00 3,601.00 2,158.00 5,759.00 5.5% 


Materials and Supplies 4300 339,602.00 1,346,560.00 1,686,162.00 299,918.00 1,733,273.00 2,033,191.00 20.6% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 11 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  


   


   


     


    


    


    


    


    


    
   


      
    


     


       


    
    


  


     
   


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 115,437.00 533,818.00 649,255.00 113,174.00 252,656.00 365,830.00 -43.7% 


Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 468,340.00 1,886,980.00 2,355,320.00 426,693.00 1,994,249.00 2,420,942.00 2.8% 


SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 


Subagreements for Services 5100 33,500.00 683,551.00 717,051.00 27,153.00 535,851.00 563,004.00 -21.5% 


Travel and Conferences 5200 91,174.00 279,859.00 371,033.00 100,030.00 289,255.00 389,285.00 4.9% 


Dues and Memberships 5300 30,240.00 3,842.00 34,082.00 32,022.00 3,842.00 35,864.00 5.2% 


Insurance 5400 - 5450 114,245.00 64,963.00 179,208.00 114,245.00 40,387.00 154,632.00 -13.7% 


Operations and Housekeeping 
Services 5500 191,331.00 256,792.00 448,123.00 187,331.00 257,256.00 444,587.00 -0.8% 


Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and 
Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 465,748.00 662,092.00 1,127,840.00 373,422.00 616,324.00 989,746.00 -12.2% 


Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 (1,263,191.00) 1,263,191.00 0.00 (1,160,723.00) 1,160,723.00 0.00 0.0% 


Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 (336,777.00) 0.00 (336,777.00) (326,047.00) 0.00 (326,047.00) -3.2% 


Professional/Consulting Services and 
Operating Expenditures 5800 1,600,653.00 2,099,216.00 3,699,869.00 1,511,974.00 3,286,176.00 4,798,150.00 29.7% 


Communications 5900 189,050.00 94,391.00 283,441.00 189,443.00 63,533.00 252,976.00 -10.7% 


TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER 
OPERATING EXPENDITURES 1,115,973.00 5,407,897.00 6,523,870.00 1,048,850.00 6,253,347.00 7,302,197.00 11.9% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 12 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  


 
 


  


   


      


        
        


  


   


   


    


      
 


  
        
        


      


         
           


         


        


       
          


        


       


         
          


        


       


       
          


        


       


        


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


CAPITAL OUTLAY 


Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 23,700.00 376,517.00 400,217.00 23,700.00 289,404.00 313,104.00 -21.8% 


Books and Media for New School Libraries 
or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Equipment 6400 37,051.00 142,458.00 179,509.00 26,816.00 74,105.00 100,921.00 -43.8% 


Equipment Replacement 6500 66,000.00 0.00 66,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 


Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 126,751.00 518,975.00 645,726.00 50,516.00 363,509.00 414,025.00 -35.9% 


OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 


Tuition 
Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict 
Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments 
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 
To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments 
To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments 
To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


To County Offices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 13 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  


        


            


     
         


          


         


      
 


      


        


         
 


 


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Debt Service 
Debt Service - Interest 7438 627,149.00 6,295.00 633,444.00 689,068.00 6,295.00 695,363.00 9.8% 


Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 494,869.00 115,861.00 610,730.00 448,615.00 115,861.00 564,476.00 -7.6% 


TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 1,122,018.00 122,156.00 1,244,174.00 1,137,683.00 122,156.00 1,259,839.00 1.3% 


OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 


Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 (2,283,327.00) 2,283,327.00 0.00 (2,683,435.00) 2,683,435.00 0.00 0.0% 


Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 (243,674.00) 0.00 (243,674.00) (258,075.00) 0.00 (258,075.00) 5.9% 


TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS (2,527,001.00) 2,283,327.00 (243,674.00) (2,941,510.00) 2,683,435.00 (258,075.00) 5.9% 


TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 8,782,667.00 32,247,773.00 41,030,440.00 8,346,888.00 34,342,536.00 42,689,424.00 4.0% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 14 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  


 


    


       


        


       


    


       


       


        
        


      


        


      


 


  


     
       


    


         
        


     
         


         
        


      
        
        


        


          


       


    


  


        
       


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


INTERFUND TRANSFERS 


INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 


From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 23,132.00 0.00 23,132.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 


(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 23,132.00 0.00 23,132.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0% 


INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 


To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 2,358,553.00 0.00 2,358,553.00 400,000.00 0.00 400,000.00 -83.0% 


To: State School Building Fund/ 
County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 56,287.00 56,287.00 0.00 57,849.00 57,849.00 2.8% 


(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 2,358,553.00 56,287.00 2,414,840.00 400,000.00 57,849.00 457,849.00 -81.0% 


OTHER SOURCES/USES 


SOURCES 


State Apportionments 
Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Proceeds 


Proceeds from Disposal of 
Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other Sources 
County School Bldg Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Transfers from Funds of 
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Long-Term Debt Proceeds 
Proceeds from Certificates 
of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


USES 


Transfers of Funds from 
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 15 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 







    
 


  
   


  
  


  
 


   
     


         


     


 


 
   


 
   


 


  


        


    


      


      


    
 


   
          


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools County School Service Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Unrestricted and Restricted Form 01 


Expenditures by Object 


2020-21 Estimated Actuals 2021-22 Budget 


Description Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 


Unrestricted 
(A) 


Restricted 
(B) 


Total Fund 
col. A + B 


(C) 
Unrestricted 


(D) 
Restricted 


(E) 


Total Fund 
col. D + E 


(F) 


% Diff 
Column 
C & F 


All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


CONTRIBUTIONS 


Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 (275,630.00) 275,630.00 0.00 (262,419.00) 262,419.00 0.00 0.0% 


Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS (275,630.00) 275,630.00 0.00 (262,419.00) 262,419.00 0.00 0.0% 


TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 
(a - b + c - d + e) (2,611,051.00) 219,343.00 (2,391,708.00) (662,419.00) 204,570.00 (457,849.00) -80.9% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-a (Rev 02/23/2021) Page 16 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:55 PM 





		Agenda Item 5.6

		Board of Education Public Hearing for the Proposed BudgetMadera County Superintendent of Schools 2021-2022 June 8, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:












 Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 


 


  
 
 


 
 


Agenda Item 5.7 
 


Board of Education Action Item 
June 8, 2021 


 
Topic: 
Consideration of Local Indicators Selection 
 


5.7.1 Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
5.7.2 Pioneer Technical Center 
5.7.3 Madera County Independent Academy 


 
Background:  
The Program Director of Career & Alternative Education Services will 
provide the Madera County Board of Education with local performance 
indicator reports.  This includes the appropriately assigned teachers, 
access to curriculum-aligned instructional materials, self-reflection tool 
for implementation of state academic standards and parent 
engagement, school climate, and access to a broad course of study. 
 
Financial Impact: 
No Impact 
 
Resource: 
Frederick Cogan 
Executive Director  
Career & Alternative Education Services 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools 


 
 
 
 


Local Performance 
Indicator Report 


 
Spring 2021


 


5.7.1







 


Contents 


 
Priority 1 Page 3 
Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum- 
Aligned Instructional Materials, and Safe, Clean and 
Functional School Facilities 


 
Priority 2 Page 4 
Self-Reflection Tool for Implementation of 
State Academic Standards 


 
Priority 3 Page 9 
Self-Reflection Tool for Parent Engagement 


 
Priority 6 Page 11 
School Climate 


 
Priority 9 Page 12 
Coordination of Services for Expelled Students (COE Only) 


 
Priority 10 Page 14 
Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) 







Priority 1 P a g e  3 | 16  


 


Priority 1 
Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum- 


Aligned Instructional Materials, and Safe, Clean and 
Functional School Facilities 


Standard: Local educational agency annually measures its progress in meeting the Williams 
settlement requirements at 100% at all of its school sites, as applicable, and promptly addresses 
any complaints or other deficiencies identified throughout the academic year, as applicable; and 
provides information annually on progress meeting this standard to its local governing board 
and to stakeholders and the public through the evaluation rubrics. 


1) Number/percentage of misassignment of teachers of English learners, total teacher 
misassignment, and vacant teacher positions: 0/0% 


2) Number/percentage of students without access to their own copies of standards-aligned 
instructional materials for use at school and at home: 0/0% 


3) Number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the “good repair” standard 
(including deficiencies and extreme deficiencies): 0 







Priority 2     P a g e  4 | 16  


Priority 2 
Self-Reflection Tool for Implementation of 


State Academic Standards 


Standard: Local educational agency annually measures its progress implementing state 
academic standards and reports the results to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled 
meeting of the local governing board and to stakeholders and the public through the evaluation 
rubrics. 


1) Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks: rate the local 
educational agency’s progress in providing professional learning for teaching to the recently 
adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below. 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts 
 1  2  3  4  5 


English Language Development (Aligned to English Language Arts Standards) 
 1  2   3  4  5 


Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Next Generation Science Standards 
 1  2  3  4  5 


History/Social Science 
 1  2  3  4  5 







Priority 2 P a g e  5 | 16  


2) Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks: rate the local 
educational agency’s progress in making instructional materials aligned to the recently 
adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below available in all 
classrooms where the subject is taught. 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts 
 1  2 3  4  5 


English Language Development (Aligned to English Language Arts Standards 
 1  2 3  4  5 


Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics 
1  2  3  4  5 


Next Generation Science Standards 
1  2  3  4  5 


History/Social Science 
1 2 3 4 5 







Priority 2 P a g e  6 | 16  


3) Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks: rate the local 
educational agency’s progress in implementing policies or programs to support staff in 
identifying areas where they can improve in delivering instruction aligned to the recently 
adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below (e.g., 
collaborative time, focused classroom walkthroughs, teacher pairing). 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts 
 1 2 3  4  5 


English Language Development (Aligned to English Language Arts Standards 
 1  2 3  4  5 


Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics 
 1  2 3  4  5 


Next Generation Science Standards 
 1 2  3  4  5 


History/Social Science 
 1  2 3  4  5 







Priority 2 P a g e  7 | 16  


4) Other Adopted Academic Standards: rate the local educational agency’s progress in 
implementing each of the following academic standards adopted by the State Board of 
Education for all students. 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


Career Technical Education 
1  2  3  4  5 


Health Education Content Standards 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Physical Education Model Content Standards 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Visual and Performing Arts 
 1  2  3  4  5 


World Language 
 1  2  3  4  5 







Priority 2 


 


P a g e  8 | 16  


5) Support for Teachers and Administrators: during the 2020-2021 school year (including 
summer of 2021), rate the local educational agency’s success at engaging in the following 
activities with teachers and school administrators. 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


Identifying the professional learning needs of groups of teachers or staff as a whole 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Identifying the professional learning needs of individual teachers 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Providing support for teachers on the standards they have not yet mastered 
 1  2  3  4  5 







Priority 3 P a g e  9 | 16 
 


Priority 3 
Self-Reflection Tool for Parent Engagement 


 
Standard: Local educational agency annually measures its progress in: (1) seeking input from 
parents in decision-making; and (2) promoting parental participation in programs, and reports 
the results to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting of the local governing 
board and to stakeholders and the public through the evaluation rubrics. 


1) The local educational agency's progress on at least one measure related to seeking input 
from parents/guardians in school and district decision making 


A) Measure of enactment of procedures designed to engage parents/guardians, stakeholders 
and advocates in advisory committees. 


B) Measure of parent/guardian, stakeholder and advocate participation in meetings of 
advisory committees. 


2) The local educational agency's progress on at least one measure related to promoting 
parental participation in programs 


A) Measure of whether school sites have access to interpretation and translation services to 
allow parents/guardians, stakeholders and advocates full participation in educational 
programs and individual meetings with school staff related to their child’s education. 


B) Measure of whether school sites provide trainings or workshops for parents/guardians, 
stakeholders and advocates linked to student learning and/or social-emotional 
development and growth. 


3) Why the local educational agency chose the selected measures and whether the findings 
relate to the goals established for other Local Control Funding Formula priorities in the Local 
Control and Accountability Plan







Priority 3 


 


P a g e  10 | 16  


  
Summary: 


LEA enacts procedures designed to engage parents/guardians, stakeholders, and advocates in 
advisory committees. These include holding elections for parent/guardian, stakeholder, and 
advocate members for the Combined School Site Council. 


LEA frequently notifies parent/guardian, stakeholder, and advocate groups regarding participation 
in meetings of advisory committees. Notifications include information shared at meetings as 
student’s transition to and from the facility and Court/Community School program; additional 
information is provided at parent visitations; graduation ceremonies; ParentSquare App; and other 
school activities. The tool for Priority 3 highlighted the need to support families in understanding 
and exercising legal rights to advocate for their children. 


School sites have access to interpretation and translation services to allow parents/guardians to 
fully participate in educational programs and individual meetings with school staff related to their 
child’s education and academic progress. This includes full translation of all informational and 
other notices and documents, in addition to in-person interpretation services provided by 
classified staff at meetings.  Virtual meetings facilitated participation for all families, especially 
those with mobility issues. 


Various school sites in the Career and Alternative Education Services Division provide trainings 
and/or workshops for parents/guardians, stakeholders, and advocates that are linked to student 
learning, progress, and/or social emotional development and growth. Increased collaboration 
with Madera County Department of Public Health has provided professional learning for staff to 
better support all students’ social-emotional needs. The Career and Alternative Education 
Services Counseling Division provides informational meetings to students on varied topics 
related to students’ academic needs, graduation progress, and post-secondary opportunities 
related to college and careers.  


These measures were selected because they accurately demonstrate the LEA seeks input from 
parents/guardians, stakeholders, and advocates in decision-making and promotes parental 
participation in programs in an ongoing attempt to engage parents in their students’ education. 
The continual nature of the LEA’s measures to promote parent involvement is based upon the 
transient nature of the student population and the individual needs of students and parents. 


These findings relate to LCAP Goal 3, which addresses parent/guardian and community 
engagement at all school sites. 







Priority 6 


 


P a g e  11 | 16  


 


Priority 6 
School Climate 


 
Standard: Local educational agency administers a local climate survey at least every other 
year that provides a valid measure of perceptions of school safety and connectedness, such 
as the California Healthy Kids Survey, to students in at least one grade within the grade 
span(s) that the local educational agency serves (e.g., K-5, 6-8, 9-12), and reports the results 
to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting of the local governing board 
and to stakeholders and the public through the evaluation rubrics. 


Summary: 


The LEA administered LCAP Survey in February 2021.  This local climate survey measured 
student perception of school safety and connectedness.   


The current school population is 84% male, 16% female, 68% Hispanic and 32% White.  From 
the students surveyed, 91% reported feeling safe at school or they do not feel unsafe.  In 
addition, 76% of students agreed or definitely agreed to being treated fairly by teachers or 
adults, and 86% felt they had clear behavioral expectations.  Overall, 81% of students surveyed 
reported received needed support from teachers.    


Analysis of the data demonstrates that students will continue to benefit from counseling and 
mentoring services from LEA staff and collaborative agencies, since 52% of students surveyed 
stated they were not planning to attend college or a vocational/trade school after high school, 
but 71% of students expressed wanting to participate in a welding course and 57% an interest 
in a construction course.   Areas of student need include substance and alcohol abuse 
counseling; gang intervention training; stopping acts of violence and criminal activity; 
decreasing truancy from school; and social emotional wellness education. Academic 
counselors have worked diligently to screen students to determine if they meet California 
state high school requirements, since many students have not made adequate progress 
toward graduation, as incarceration has affected the credits earned at their home schools.  
The LEA will continue to collaborate with outside agencies and utilize appropriate staff to 
address areas of need.  In addition, the lack of parent involvement and participation is 
comparable to the perception students have of their parents’ lack of concern for their 
schooling. The LEA will continue to collaborate and focus on increasing parent participation 
through outreach services and other efforts to facilitate increased involvement. 







Priority 7 
 


 


P a g e  12 | 16  


 


Priority 7 
Access to a Broad Course of Study 


Summary: LEA annually measures its progress in the extent to which students have access 
to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study that includes the adopted courses of study 
specified in the California Education Code (EC) for Grades 1-6 and Grades 7-12, as 
applicable, including the programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated 
students and individuals with exceptional needs; the LEA then reports the results to its local 
governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting and reports to stakeholders and the 
public through the Dashboard.  


 


 
All students have access to core classes along with credit recovery options to assist with progress 
toward graduation. An academic counselor is on site to meet with students regularly. The registrar 
provides updated transcripts to students within 2 weeks after course completion. An RSP teacher 
meets with students weekly as required by IEP documentation. All courses are assigned to keep 
students on track toward graduation with home district. I-Ready Math and ELA diagnostic 
assessments are used to support student areas of academic weakness through prescriptive lessons 
that address subskill weaknesses in those subjects.  Data from assessments is used to guide 
professional learning to increase student achievement. 
 
All academic course offerings across school sites are similar, as students are assigned courses 
relevant to grade level and graduation requirements of home districts. Students have 
opportunities for credit recovery through textbooks or online courses. Diagnostic assessments 
prescribe lessons to reduce academic gaps and increase access to grade-level curriculum for all 
students. 
 
Barriers to students continue to be the various schools and districts that feed into the LEA; 
however, the master schedule, credit recovery options, and online courses minimize those barriers 
to student access of curriculum.  
 
This LEA implements diagnostic assessments (pre-, post-) to provide support of increasing student 
academic achievement. Regular treatment team meetings and weekly meetings with academic 
counselors and teachers ensure appropriate courses and supports are provided to all students. 


  







Priority 7 
 


 


P a g e  12 | 16  


Priority 9 
Coordination of Services for Expelled Students 


COE Only 


Standard: County office of education annually measures its progress in coordinating instruction 
as required by Education Code Section 48926 and reports the results to its local governing 
board at a regularly scheduled meeting of the local governing board and to stakeholders and 
the public through the evaluation rubrics. 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


1) Assessing status of triennial plan for providing educational services to all expelled students 
in the county, including: 


A) Review of required data 
 1  2  3  4  5 


B) Identifying existing educational alternatives for expelled pupils, gaps in educational 
services to expelled pupils, and strategies for filling those service gaps. 
 1  2  3  4  5 


C) Identifying alternative placements for pupils who are expelled and placed in district 
community day school programs, but who fail to meet the terms and conditions of their 
rehabilitation plan or who pose a danger to other district pupils. 
 1  2  3  4  5 


2) Coordinating on development and implementation of triennial plan with all local educational 
agencies within the county. 
  1  2  3  4  5 







 


P a g e  13 | 16  Priority 9 


3) Establishing ongoing collaboration and policy development for transparent referral process 
for local educational agencies within the county to the county office of education or other 
program options, including dissemination to all local educational agencies within the county 
a menu of available continuum of services for expelled students. 
 1  2  3  4  5 


4) Developing memorandum of understanding regarding the coordination of partial credit 
policies between district of residency and county office of education. 
 1  2  3  4  5 


  
 







Priority 10 


 


P a g e  14 | 16  


Priority 10 
Coordination of Services for Foster Youth 


COE Only 


Standard: County office of education annually measures its progress in coordinating services for 
foster youth and reports the results to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled 
meeting of the local governing board and to stakeholders and the public through the evaluation 
rubrics web-based system (California School Dashboard). 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 


1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


1) Establishing ongoing collaboration and supporting policy development, including 
establishing formalized information sharing agreements with child welfare, probation, local 
educational agencies, the courts, and other organizations to support determining the proper 
educational placement of foster youth (e.g., school of origin versus current residence, 
comprehensive versus alternative school, and regular versus special education). 
 1  2  3  4  5 


2) Building capacity with local educational agency, probation, child welfare, and other 
organizations for purposes of implementing school-based support infrastructure for foster 
youth intended to improve educational outcomes (e.g., provide regular professional 
development with the Foster Youth Liaisons to facilitate adequate transportation services for 
foster youth). 
 1  2  3  4  5 


3) Providing information and assistance to local educational agencies regarding the 
educational needs of foster youth in order to improve educational outcomes. 
 1  2  3  4  5 







Priority 10 


 


P a g e  15 | 16 
 


4) Providing direct educational services for foster youth in local educational agency or 
county- operated programs provided the school district has certified that specified 
services cannot be provided or funded using other sources, including, but not 
limited to, Local Control Funding Formula, federal, state or local funding. 
 1  2  3  4  5 


5) Establishing ongoing collaboration and supporting development of policies and 
procedures that facilitate expeditious transfer of records, transcripts, and other 
relevant educational information. 
 1  2  3  4  5 


6) Facilitating the coordination of post-secondary opportunities for youth by 
engaging with systems partners, including, but not limited to, child welfare 
transition planning and independent living services, community colleges or 
universities, career technical education, and workforce development providers. 
 1  2  3  4  5 


7) Developing strategies to prioritize the needs of foster youth in the community, using 
community-wide assessments that consider age group, geographical area, and 
identification of highest needs students based on academic needs and placement 
type. 
 1  2  3  4  5 


8) Engaging in the process of reviewing plan deliverables and of collecting and 
analyzing local educational agency and county office of education level outcome 
data for purposes of evaluating effectiveness of support services for foster youth 
and whether the investment in services contributes to improved educational 
outcomes for foster youth. 
 1  2  3  4  5 


 







 
 
 
 


Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools 


 
 
 


Pioneer Technical Center 
Local Performance 
Indicator Report 


 
Spring 2021 


5.7.2







Contents 


 
Priority 1 Page 3 
Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum- 
Aligned Instructional Materials, and Safe, Clean and 
Functional School Facilities 


 
Priority 2 Page 4 
Self-Reflection Tool for Implementation of 
State Academic Standards 


 
Priority 3 Page 9 
Self-Reflection Tool for Parent Engagement 


 
Priority 6 Page 11 
School Climate 


 
 


Priority 7 Page 12 
Access to a Broad Course of Study 







Priority 1 


P a g e 3 | 12 Priority 1 


 


 


Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum- 
Aligned Instructional Materials, and Safe, Clean and 


Functional School Facilities 


Standard: Local educational agency annually measures its progress in meeting the Williams 
settlement requirements at 100% at all of its school sites, as applicable, and promptly addresses 
any complaints or other deficiencies identified throughout the academic year, as applicable; and 
provides information annually on progress meeting this standard to its local governing board 
and to stakeholders and the public through the evaluation rubrics. 


1) Number/percentage of misassignment of teachers of English learners, total teacher 
misassignment, and vacant teacher positions: 0/0% 


2) Number/percentage of students without access to their own copies of standards-aligned 
instructional materials for use at school and at home: 0/0% 


3) Number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the “good repair” standard 
(including deficiencies and extreme deficiencies): 0 







Priority 4 


P a g e 4 | 12 Priority 2 


 


 


Self-Reflection Tool for Implementation of 
State Academic Standards 


Standard: Local educational agency annually measures its progress implementing state 
academic standards and reports the results to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled 
meeting of the local governing board and to stakeholders and the public through the evaluation 
rubrics. 


1) Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks: rate the local 
educational agency’s progress in providing professional learning for teaching to the recently 
adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below. 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts 
 1  2  3  4  5 


English Language Development (Aligned to English Language Arts Standards 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Next Generation Science Standards 
 1  2  3  4  5 


History/Social Science 
 1 2  3  4  5 







5) Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks: rate the local 


P a g e 5 | 12 Priority 2 


 


 


educational agency’s progress in making instructional materials aligned to the recently 
adopted academic standards and / or curriculum frameworks identified below available in 
all classrooms where the subject is taught. 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts 
 1  2  3 4  5 


English Language Development (Aligned to English Language Arts Standards) 
 1  2  3 4  5 


Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Next Generation Science Standards 
 1  2  3  4  5 


History/Social Science 
 1  2  3  4  5 







6) Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks: rate the local 


P a g e 6 | 12 Priority 2 


 


 


educational agency’s progress in implementing policies or programs to support staff in 
identifying areas where they can improve in delivering instruction aligned to the recently 
adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below (e.g., 
collaborative time, focused classroom walkthroughs, teacher pairing). 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts 
 1  2  3 4  5 


English Language Development (Aligned to English Language Arts Standards) 
 1  2 3  4  5 


Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Next Generation Science Standards 
 1  2  3  4  5 


History/Social Science 
 1  2  2  4  5 







P a g e 7 | 12 Priority 2 


 


 


4) Other Adopted Academic Standards: rate the local educational agency’s progress in 
implementing each of the following academic standards adopted by the State Board of 
Education for all students. 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


Career Technical Education 
 1  2 3  4  5 


Health Education Content Standards 
 1 2  3  4  5 


Physical Education Model Content Standards 
 1 2  3  4  5 


Visual and Performing Arts 
 1 2  3  4  5 


World Language 
 1  2  3  4  5 







P a g e 8 | 12 Priority 2 


 


 


5) Support for Teachers and Administrators: during the 2018-2019 school year (including 
summer of 2018), rate the local educational agency’s success at engaging in the following 
activities with teachers and school administrators. 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


Identifying the professional learning needs of groups of teachers or staff as a whole 
 1  2 3  4  5 


Identifying the professional learning needs of individual teachers 
 1  2 3  4  5 


Providing support for teachers on the standards they have not yet mastered 
 1  2 3  4  5 







P a g e 9 | 12 Priority 3 


 


 


Priority 3 
Self-Reflection Tool for Parent Engagement 


 
Standard: Local educational agency annually measures its progress in: (1) seeking input from 
parents in decision-making; and (2) promoting parental participation in programs, and reports 
the results to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting of the local governing 
board and to stakeholders and the public through the evaluation rubrics. 


1) The local educational agency's progress on at least one measure related to seeking input 
from parents/guardians in school and district decision making 


A) Measure of enactment of procedures designed to engage parents/guardians, stakeholders 
and advocates in advisory committees. 


B) Measure of parent/guardian, stakeholder and advocate participation in meetings of 
advisory committees. 


2) The local educational agency's progress on at least one measure related to promoting 
parental participation in programs 


A) Measure of whether school sites have access to interpretation and translation services to 
allow parents/guardians, stakeholders and advocates full participation in educational 
programs and individual meetings with school staff related to their child’s education. 


B) Measure of whether school sites provide trainings or workshops for parents/guardians, 
stakeholders and advocates linked to student learning and/or social-emotional 
development and growth. 


3) Why the local educational agency chose the selected measures and whether the findings 
relate to the goals established for other Local Control Funding Formula priorities in the Local 
Control and Accountability Plan. 







P a g e 10 | 12 Priority 3 


 


 


Summary: 
 
PTC staff members enjoy a great working relationship with the Madera Probation 
Department and Public Health to facilitate various opportunities for parents. A significant 
collaborative effort is made with probation, behavioral health, teachers, administrators and 
academic counselors to support the needs of parents and families. Four PRIDE assemblies 
are held during the school year; staff, parents, and community members are invited to 
observe students receiving recognition for academics, attendance, athletics, or PRIDE 
character efforts. Parents, families, and community stakeholders are all invited to attend 
graduation ceremonies. Professional development is focused on building relationships with 
students and best practices for increased student achievement. Academic counselors include 
parents in transition plan meetings to understand placement and educational rights for 
incarcerated and expelled youth. Parent input is sought for possibility of students being on 
modified graduation track by qualifying for AB 2306 or others. Parent input also sought in 
reclassification of EL students. Surveys are provided to parents in English and Spanish to 
gather input on program, and surveys are accessible in printed or online versions. 
ParentSquare was used this year to increase communication with all families, and allows for 
messages to be emailed or texted, based on preferences.  Areas of focus moving forward 
include providing informational support meetings for parents and provide accommodations 
to facilitate participation for families with transportation, language barriers, or mobility 
issues. 
 
Pioneer Technical Center participates in a consolidated School Site Council for multiple 
school sites that support transiency of students and families through various MCSOS 
programs. On-going professional development for teachers, academic counselors, and 
administrators to improve continuously on best practices toward increased student 
achievement. Administrative Team Meetings with behavioral health, counselors, and 
administrators serve to ensure a comprehensive approach to educating kids is the continued 
focus of PTC program. 
 
PTC holds LCAP stakeholder meetings on different days, times, and sites with translation 
services provided to increase parent participation in guidance of school program. 







Priority 6 
 


 


Priority 6 P a g e 11 | 12 


School Climate 
 


Standard: Local educational agency administers a local climate survey at least every other 
year that provides a valid measure of perceptions of school safety and connectedness, such 
as the California Healthy Kids Survey, to students in at least one grade within the grade 
span(s) that the local educational agency serves (e.g., K-5, 6-8, 9-12), and reports the results 
to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting of the local governing board 
and to stakeholders and the public through the evaluation rubrics. 


   Summary:  


The LEA administered a school climate survey. The survey captured a valid measure of student 
perception of school safety and connectedness. A total of 114 students completed the printed 
survey at Pioneer Technical Center, Pioneer Technical Center Independent Study and Pioneer 
Technical Center Chowchilla. 


The current school population between both PTC Madera and PTC Chowchilla is 146 male (46%) 
and 170 (54%) female students. Of the 316 students, 63 (20%) are classified as English Language 
Learners. Of our students surveyed, 87% reported feeling safe at school, which was an increase of 
about 5% from the previous year. In addition, 84% of students reported that they felt “cared 
about” by teachers or adults at PTC, while 94% of students stated that PTC teachers want students 
to succeed. Moreover, 84% of students expressed that teachers or adults at PTC treat students 
fairly, and 71% of students felt they are part of PTC.  Specific items of particular relevance to  
school  safety and impact on student learning, include factors outside of the school setting, such 
as, social-emotional needs and support, substance and alcohol abuse, gang involvement and 
unstable family environment.  The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic will surely affect social-
emotional health of students and teachers. 


Analysis of the data demonstrates that students will continue to benefit from counseling and 
mentoring services from LEA staff and collaborative agencies. Areas of student need include 
substance and alcohol abuse counseling; gang intervention training; stopping acts of violence 
and criminal activity; decreasing truancy from school; and social-emotional wellness 
education. The LEA will continue to partner with local agencies and utilize appropriate staff to 
address areas of need. In addition, the limited parent involvement/participation is addressed 
by administrators and academic counselors through “CAES Homeruns.”  Families of students 
who have been difficult to reach are visited to determine additional supports or referral for 
best placement. LEA plans to continue to collaborate and focus on increasing parent 
participation through outreach services, Open House, and other efforts to facilitate 
meaningful parent involvement. 







Priority 7 
 


 


Access to a Broad Course of Study 
Summary: LEA annually measures its progress in the extent to which students have access to, and 
are enrolled in, a broad course of study that includes the adopted courses of study specified in the 
California Education Code (EC) for Grades 1-6 and Grades 7-12, as applicable, including the 
programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated students and individuals with 
exceptional needs; the LEA then reports the results to its local governing board at a regularly 
scheduled meeting and reports to stakeholders and the public through the Dashboard. 
 


Summary: 
Math and ELA diagnostic i-Ready assessments provide data on academic proficiency also 
provide prescriptive lessons to support each student’s subskill weaknesses. Students have 
access to Odysseyware online courses to increase offerings and intervention supports, along 
with other credit recovery options to continue progressing toward program completion and 
graduation.  
 
An academic counselor is on site to meet with students for counseling in the areas of 
academics as well as social/emotional needs. The PTC registrar provides updated transcripts 
for students completing coursework within two weeks of the date of completion. An RSP 
teacher meets with students as required by Individualized Education Program (IEP) goals and 
student needs. Courses are assigned to keep students on track to graduation with their 
home district.  
 
Course offerings across school sites are similar, as students are assigned courses relevant to 
grade level and graduation requirements of home district. Students also have opportunities 
for credit recovery through textbooks or online courses from Odysseyware. Diagnostic 
assessments prescribe lessons to reduce academic gaps and increase access to standards-
aligned grade-level curriculum. Although students come to PTC from various schools and 
districts with different graduation requirements, the independent study model allows for 
individualized grade-level appropriate courses, and online courses. This model provides 
greater learning opportunities for advanced or struggling students. 


 
Pioneer Technical Center staff implements diagnostic assessments and student results help 
diagnose and provide necessary supports to increase students’ academic achievement. Data 
from diagnostic assessments is used to guide instructional practices, plan relevant 
professional learning and discuss supports students require for greater academic success. 
PTC has a curriculum committee that supports exploring and adopting new curriculum. 


 







 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools 


 
 
 


Madera County 
Independent Academy  


Local Performance 
Indicator Report 


 
Spring 2021


 


5.7.3







 


Contents 


 
Priority 1 Page 3 
Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum- 
Aligned Instructional Materials, and Safe, Clean and 
Functional School Facilities 


 
Priority 2 Page 4 
Self-Reflection Tool for Implementation of 
State Academic Standards 


 
Priority 3 Page 9 
Self-Reflection Tool for Parent Engagement 


 
Priority 6 Page 11 
School Climate 
 
 
Priority 7          Page 12 
Access to a Broad Course of Study 


 







Priority 1 P a g e  3 | 12  


 


Priority 1 
Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum- 


Aligned Instructional Materials, and Safe, Clean and 
Functional School Facilities 


Standard: Local educational agency annually measures its progress in meeting the Williams 
settlement requirements at 100% at all of its school sites, as applicable, and promptly addresses 
any complaints or other deficiencies identified throughout the academic year, as applicable; and 
provides information annually on progress meeting this standard to its local governing board 
and to stakeholders and the public through the evaluation rubrics. 


1) Number/percentage of misassignment of teachers of English learners, total teacher 
misassignment, and vacant teacher positions: 0/0% 


2) Number/percentage of students without access to their own copies of standards-aligned 
instructional materials for use at school and at home: 0/0% 


3) Number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the “good repair” standard 
(including deficiencies and extreme deficiencies): 0 







Priority 2     P a g e  4 | 12  


Priority 2 
Self-Reflection Tool for Implementation of 


State Academic Standards 


Standard: Local educational agency annually measures its progress implementing state 
academic standards and reports the results to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled 
meeting of the local governing board and to stakeholders and the public through the evaluation 
rubrics. 


1) Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks: rate the local 
educational agency’s progress in providing professional learning for teaching to the recently 
adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below. 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts 
 1  2  3  4  5 


English Language Development (Aligned to English Language Arts Standards) 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics 
 1  2  3 4  5 


Next Generation Science Standards 
 1  2  3  4  5 


History/Social Science 
 1  2 3  4  5 







Priority 2 P a g e  5 | 12  


2) Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks: rate the local 
educational agency’s progress in making instructional materials aligned to the recently 
adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below available in all 
classrooms where the subject is taught. 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts 
 1  2  3  4  5 


English Language Development (Aligned to English Language Arts Standards) 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Next Generation Science Standards 
 1  2  3  4  5 


History/Social Science 
 1  2  3  4  5 







Priority 2 P a g e  6 | 12  


3) Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks: rate the local 
educational agency’s progress in implementing policies or programs to support staff in 
identifying areas where they can improve in delivering instruction aligned to the recently 
adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below (e.g., 
collaborative time, focused classroom walkthroughs, teacher pairing). 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts 
 1  2  3  4  5 


English Language Development (Aligned to English Language Arts Standards) 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Next Generation Science Standards 
 1  2  3  4  5 


History/Social Science 
 1  2  3  4  5 







Priority 2 P a g e  7 | 12  


4) Other Adopted Academic Standards: rate the local educational agency’s progress in 
implementing each of the following academic standards adopted by the State Board of 
Education for all students. 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


Career Technical Education 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Health Education Content Standards 
 1  2  3   4  5 


Physical Education Model Content Standards 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Visual and Performing Arts 
 1  2  3  4  5 


World Language 
 1  2  3  4  5 







Priority 2 


 


P a g e  8 | 12  


5) Support for Teachers and Administrators: during the 2018-2019 school year (including 
summer of 2018), rate the local educational agency’s success at engaging in the following 
activities with teachers and school administrators. 


Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 
1 – Exploration and Research Phase 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 


Identifying the professional learning needs of groups of teachers or staff as a whole 
 1 2 3 4  5 


Identifying the professional learning needs of individual teachers 
 1  2  3  4  5 


Providing support for teachers on the standards they have not yet mastered 
 1 2 3  4  5 







Priority 3     P a g e  9 | 12 
 


Priority 3 
Self-Reflection Tool for Parent Engagement 


 
Standard: Local educational agency annually measures its progress in: (1) seeking input from 
parents in decision-making; and (2) promoting parental participation in programs, and reports 
the results to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting of the local governing 
board and to stakeholders and the public through the evaluation rubrics. 


1) The local educational agency's progress on at least one measure related to seeking input 
from parents/guardians in school and district decision making 


A) Measure of enactment of procedures designed to engage parents/guardians, stakeholders 
and advocates in advisory committees. 


B) Measure of parent/guardian, stakeholder and advocate participation in meetings of 
advisory committees. 


2) The local educational agency's progress on at least one measure related to promoting 
parental participation in programs 


A) Measure of whether school sites have access to interpretation and translation services to 
allow parents/guardians, stakeholders and advocates full participation in educational 
programs and individual meetings with school staff related to their child’s education. 


B) Measure of whether school sites provide trainings or workshops for parents/guardians, 
stakeholders and advocates linked to student learning and/or social-emotional 
development and growth. 


3) Why the local educational agency chose the selected measures and whether the findings 
relate to the goals established for other Local Control Funding Formula priorities in the Local 
Control and Accountability Plan. 







Priority 3 


 


P a g e  10 | 12  


 Summary: 
 
 
A significant strength of MCIA is Teacher-student relationships. Staff is bilingual and 
culturally sensitive of all students. Students have numerous and varied opportunities (times, 
days, and locations) for engagement. MCIA staff utilizes multiple methods of notification for 
parents and families of MCIA activities. ParentSquare was instituted this year, and provided 
great data in regard to determining whether notifications were received by parents.  
Teachers and parents shared liking the ease of communication and accessibility through 
various devices.  Inclusion of parents, families, and community stakeholders in promotion 
and student recognition ceremonies as a regular occurrence. Professional development 
continued to focus on building relationships with all students. Parent input is included in 
reclassification of EL students, IEPs, and LCAP input meetings. Surveys are provided for all 
parents in English and Spanish to gather input about the MCIA program, and components. 
Seat time classes for K – 3, 4 – 6, and 7 - 8 students were available to support academic 
needs, develop behavioral/social-emotional skills and increase parent contact with MCIA 
staff. 
 
MCIA will work to increase parent participation for all students by providing more meetings 
that are informational related to preparing for high school and post-secondary options; 
MCIA staff will also increase time students need to attend school to develop a greater 
connectedness to the overall program, and student achievement.  To provide greater 
opportunities for parent engagement, MCIA help parent-teacher conferences to allow 
meeting each student’s parents/guardians.  Teachers also had a one-hour block of time 
reserved for office hours to create opportunities for parents to learn about their child’s 
progress, or behavioral and academic concerns. 
 
MCIA is part of a Consolidated School Site Council for multiple sites that supports transiency 
of students and families through various MCSOS programs. MCIA staff receive ongoing PD 
for teachers, academic counselors, and administrators to improve continuously on best 
practices toward increased student achievement. Electronic monitors in lobby provide 
updates on site student information, stakeholder meetings, and activities available to 
students. MCIA holds LCAP stakeholder meetings on different days, times, and sites with 
translation services provided to increase parent participation in guidance of school program.  







 


P r i o r i t y  6                                                  P a g e  11 | 12 
 


 
 
 
 


Priority 6 
School Climate 


 
Standard: Local educational agency administers a local climate survey at least every other 
year that provides a valid measure of perceptions of school safety and connectedness, such 
as the California Healthy Kids Survey, to students in at least one grade within the grade 
span(s) that the local educational agency serves (e.g., K-5, 6-8, 9-12), and reports the results 
to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting of the local governing board 
and to stakeholders and the public through the evaluation rubrics. 


Summary: 


The LEA administered a school climate survey.  The survey captured a valid measure of student 
perception of school safety and connectedness.   


The current school population is 56% males and 44% female, 31% in K – 3, 31% in 4 – 6, and 
38% of students are in grades 7 and 8.  Of the student’s surveyed, 74% percent reported 
feeling safe at MCIA, while 85% of surveyed parents shared that their child was safe on 
campus.  In addition, 94% of students reported that staff create a trusting and respectful 
relationships.  93% of students reported being happy at MCIA, yet only 70% feel like they are 
part of the school.  Survey data indicated that only 77% of students felt that their parents 
participate in school events.  Specific items of particular relevance to school safety and 
connectedness include factors outside of the school setting which include emotional needs, 
substance and alcohol abuse, gang involvement, transportation and challenging family 
environments.   


Analysis of the data demonstrates that students will continue to benefit from counseling and 
mentoring services from LEA staff and collaborative agencies.  Areas of student need include 
substance and alcohol abuse; gang involvement; participation in acts of violence and criminal 
activity; truancy from school; socialization; and emotional wellness concerns.  The LEA will 
continue to partner with collaborative agencies and utilize appropriate staff to address areas 
of need.  This year, MCIA collaborated more with Madera County Department of Public Heath 
to provide information and resources to all staff to be able to support the social-emotional 
and behavioral needs of all students.  The LEA plans to continue to collaborate and focus on 
increasing parent participation through outreach services and other efforts to facilitate 
increased involvement. 


  







 


P r i o r i t y  7                                                  P a g e  12 | 12 
 


 
Summary:   
 
MCIA has an academic counselor on site to meet with all students as needed. An RSP 
teacher meets with students as required by IEPs. Teachers use Math and ELA i-Ready 
diagnostic assessments results to guide instruction, diagnose and support areas of 
academic weaknesses for all students. Leadership team and teachers disaggregate 
student data to support effective instructional practices and strategies designed to 
increase student achievement.   
    
All students are assigned courses aligned to California Common Core State Standards 
and relevant to each grade level. MCIA offers seat-time classes for K – 3, 4 – 6, and 7-8 
cohorts to provide students support for their academic and social needs, in addition to 
weekly independent study appointments for each student.  Diagnostic assessments 
prescribe lessons to reduce academic gaps and increase access to grade-level curriculum.  


 
Barriers continue to be the various schools and districts that feed into the LEA; however, 
the independent study model allows for individualized grade-level appropriate courses, 
and online courses to minimize those barriers and provide greater learning opportunities 
for advanced or struggling students.  Almost all academic work is completed at home, 
requiring MCIA to support families and build capacity to ensure students are able to 
achieve at grade-level. 
 
MCIA staff implements diagnostic assessments and student results help design 
individualized lessons and provide necessary supports to increase students’ academic 
achievement. Data from diagnostic assessments is used to guide instructional practices 
and discuss support students require for greater academic success. 
 
 


Priority 7 
Access to a Broad Course of Study 


Summary: LEA annually measures its progress in the extent to which students have access to, and 
are enrolled in, a broad course of study that includes the adopted courses of study specified in the 
California Education Code (EC) for Grades 1-6 and Grades 7-12, as applicable, including the 
programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated students and individuals with 
exceptional needs; the LEA then reports the results to its local governing board at a regularly 
scheduled meeting and reports to stakeholders and the public through the Dashboard.  
  





		Agenda Item 5.7 Board of Education Action Item June 8, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:



		Local Performance Indicator Report

		Spring 2021

		Contents

		Priority 1

		Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum- Aligned Instructional Materials, and Safe, Clean and Functional School Facilities



		Priority 2

		Self-Reflection Tool for Implementation of State Academic Standards



		Priority 3

		Self-Reflection Tool for Parent Engagement



		Priority 6

		School Climate



		Priority 7

		Access to a Broad Course of Study



		Priority 9

		Coordination of Services for Expelled Students

		COE Only



		Priority 10

		Coordination of Services for Foster Youth

		COE Only



		Pioneer Technical Center Local Performance Indicator Report

		Spring 2021

		Contents

		Priority 1

		Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum- Aligned Instructional Materials, and Safe, Clean and Functional School Facilities



		Priority 4

		Self-Reflection Tool for Implementation of State Academic Standards



		Priority 3

		Self-Reflection Tool for Parent Engagement

		Summary:





		Priority 6

		School Climate



		Priority 7

		Access to a Broad Course of Study



		Madera County Independent Academy Local Performance Indicator Report Spring 2021

		Contents

		Priority 1

		Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum- Aligned Instructional Materials, and Safe, Clean and Functional School Facilities



		Priority 2

		Self-Reflection Tool for Implementation of State Academic Standards



		Priority 3

		Self-Reflection Tool for Parent Engagement



		Priority 6

		School Climate



		Priority 7

		Access to a Broad Course of Study








 


  
 


 


      
 


  
 
 


  
 


 
 


  
 


  
    
   


 
  


   
 


  
    


 
 


  
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
  


  


Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


Agenda Item 8.1 


Board of Education Action Item 
June 8, 2021 


Topic:
Consideration Issuance of Temporary County Certificates. 


Background:
Attached is a listing of the Temporary County Certificates (TCC) 
issued from May 1-28, 2021. TCC’s are issued in order to authorize the 
individual to work while the California Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing reviews his/her waiver request, emergency permit, initial 
and/or renewal credential application packet. 


Cecilia A. Massetti, Madera County Superintendent of Schools or an 
assigned designee, approved and signed each certificate. The Board is 
now requested to ratify this action. 


Financial Impact:
None 


Resource: 
Tricia Protzman 
Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 


Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Board ratify the issuance of Temporary County 
Certificates from May 1-28, 2021. 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 



www.mcsos.org





                  


       


MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT of SCHOOLS 
TEMPORARY COUNTY CERTIFICATES Issued  5/1/21 - 5/28/21 


Last Name First Name Credential Applied For Valid Dates of TCC Employing Date Issued Application 
District Type 


Ariam Amanda Preliminary Administrative Services 4/1/21 ‐ 4/1/22 Madera USD 5/28/2021 New 
Credential 





		Agenda Item 8.1

		Board of Education Action Item

		June 8, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:

		Recommendation:








1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 


Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


Agenda Item 8.2 


Board of Education Action Item 
June 8, 2021 


Topic: 
Consideration Disposition of Surplus/Obsolete Equipment. 


Background:  
MCSOS staff members have completed a review of other equipment 
not in use and have determined that these items cannot be used in 
alternative placements.  The equipment is shown on the attached list.  
Once declared obsolete, the items will be removed from our Fixed 
Asset Inventory and discarded.   


Financial Impact: 
None 


Resource: 
Julie DeWall 
Chief Officer  
Business & Administrative Services 


Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Board adopt the list of equipment to be declared 
obsolete. 







Description Make Model S/N Asset Tag Obsolete Non-operational
Laptop Dell Latitude E5450 8SB9662 25204 X
Laptop Dell Latitude E5520 81460S1 24290 X
Laptop Dell latitude E5540 JJ2WL12 24893 X
Desktop Dell Optiplex 980 1CCZNN1 24012 X
Desktop Dell Optiplex 745 BG6TMC1 22212 X
Chromebook HP Chroembook 14 5CD42949V7 24769 X
Laptop Dell Latitude 3590 C26GLP2 25611 X


Description Make Model S/N Asset Tag Obsolete Non-operational
Printer HP LaserJet 4240n CNGXH41976 21787 X


Other Items n
Description Make Model S/N Asset Tag Obsolete Non-operational
IPAD IPAD Apple iPad 3 (Wi-Fi) DMPJFFUTDJ8T 24369 X
iPad Apple Apple iPad 3 (Wi-Fii) DMPGMW7DDFHW 24192 X
Projector Dell 1420X BK16TS1 24607 X
Pro Smart Board Promethean Promethean ABV378PRO C0909301997 23780 X
Pro Smart Board Promethean Promethean ABV378PRO 5CD42949V7 23259 X
ActView Document Camera Promethean ActiView A03D02413 23900 X
Monitor Dell E198WFPF CN-0G424H-72872-861-40MS 23270A X
File Cabinet Hon - MCIA Black 24825 X
File Cabinet Hon - MCIA Grey X


Obsolete Items List -  For June 2021 Board
Computers


Printers





		Agenda Item 8.2 Board of Education Action Item June 8, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:

		Recommendation:



		Obsolete Items List - For June 2021 Board






Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 


Agenda Item 8.3 


Board of Education Action Item 
June 8, 2021 


Topic: 
Consideration Adoption of 2021-2022 School Calendars 


8.3.1 Endeavor Secondary (Juvenile Hall) & Voyager Secondary 
8.3.2 Pioneer Technical Center/Madera County Independent Academy 
8.3.3 Pioneer Technical Center – Chowchilla 
8.3.4 Madera County Superintendent of Schools Special Education 


(Gould) 


Background:  
The Madera County Board of Education annually approves school calendars 
for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) Alternative Education, 
Special Education and Charter School programs. 


All calendars for the Career and Alternative Education Programs will follow a 
calendar that has variations from Madera Unified School District (MUSD) due 
to the number of staff development days MUSD has that will negatively affect 
our calculation with Average Daily Attendance.  Pioneer Technical Center 
Chowchilla will follow the Chowchilla Union High School District’s calendar and 
Gould will follow MUSD.  


Financial Impact: 
None. 


Resource: 
Frederick Cogan 
Executive Director,  
Career & Alternative Education Services 


Jessica Drake 
Executive Director 
Student Programs and Services 


Recommendation: 
Acceptance of the calendars as presented. 







MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
 Endeavor School and Voyager School 


Endeavor / Voyager 
2021-2022 


Draft 
 
July 1-2 and 6-30 are instructional days. July 5th is a holiday. Total instructional days are 21.  
 
August 2-31 are instructional days. Total instructional days are 22.  
 
September 1- 3, 7-30 are instructional days. September 6th is a holiday. Total instructional days 
are 21.  
 
October 1-29 are instructional days. Total instructional days are 21.  
 
November 1-10,12-24, and 29-30 are instructional days. The 11th and 25-26 are holidays. Total 
instructional days are 19.  
 
December 1-22, and 27-29 are instructional days. December 23-24 and 30-31 are holidays. 
Total instructional days are 19.  
 
January 3-14 and 18-31 are instructional days. January 17 is a holiday. Total instructional days 
are 20.  
 
February 1-17 and 22-28 are instructional days. February 18th and 21st are school holidays. 
Total instructional days are 18.  
 
March 1-31 are instructional days. Total instructional days are 23.  
 
April 1-29 are instructional days.  Total instructional days are 21.  
 
May 2-27 and 31st are instructional days. May 30 is a holiday. Total instructional days are 21.  
 
June 1-30 are instructional days. Total instructional days are 22.  
 
Total instructional and total staff workdays for the year are 248. 


 


 


8.3.1







MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
 Madera County Independent Academy and 


Pioneer Technical Center 
2021-2022 


Draft 


July 1-2 and 6-30 are non-school days.  July 5th is a holiday. Total instructional days are 0. 


August 2-6 are non-school days.  August 4-6 are staff work days. August 9-31 are instructional 
days with August 9th being the first day of school. Total instructional days are 17, staff workdays 
are 3.  


September 1-3 and 7-30 are instructional days. September 6th is a holiday. Total instructional 
days are 21.  


October 1-8 and 12-29 are instructional days. October 11th is a non-school day.  Total 
instructional days are 20.  


November 1-10, 12-19, and 29-30 are instructional days. November 11th is a holiday. 
November 22-26 are non-school days. November 25-26 are holidays. Total instructional days 
are 16.  


December 1-17 are instructional days. December 20-22 and 28-30 are non-school days. 
December 24-25, 27TH and 31ST are holidays. Total instructional days are 13.  


January 3-10 are non-school days. January 10th is a staff work day. January 11-14, and 18-31 
are instructional days. January 17th is a holiday. Total instructional days are 14, staff workdays 
are 1.  


February 1-11, 15-17, 22-28 are instructional days. February 14th is a non-school day.  February 
18th and 21st are school holidays. Total instructional days are 17.  


March 1-31 are instructional days. Total instructional days are 23. 


April 1-8 and 19-29 are instructional days.  April 11-18 are non-school days.  Total instructional 
days are 15.  


May 2-27 and 31st are instructional days. May 30th is a holiday. Total instructional days are 21. 


June 1-3 are instructional days, with June 3rd as the last day of school. June 6-30 are non-
school days.  Total instructional days are 3.  


Total instructional days for the year are 180, non-instructional staff workdays are 4, and total 
staff workdays are 184. 


8.3.2







MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
Pioneer Technical Center (Chowchilla) 


2021-2022 
Draft 


July 1-2 and 6-30 are non-school days.  July the 5th is a holiday. Total instructional days are 0. 


August 2-16 are non-school days. August 4-6 and 16th are staff work days. August 17-31 are 
instructional days with August 17th being the first day of school. Total instructional days are 11, 
staff workdays are 4.  


September 1- 3, 7-30 are instructional days. September 6th is a holiday. Total instructional days 
are 21.  


October 1-29 are instructional days. Total instructional days are 21. 


November 1-10, November 12-19, and November 29-30 are instructional days. November 11th 
and 25-26 are holidays. The 22-26 are non-school days. Total instructional days are 16.  


December 1-17 are instructional days. December 20-31 are non-school days. December 23-24 
and 30-31 are holidays.  Total instructional days are 13.  


January 3-14, and 18-31 are instructional days. January 17th is a holiday. Total instructional 
days are 20.  


February 1-17,22-28 are instructional days. February 18th and 21st are school holidays. Total 
instructional days are 18.  


March 1-31 are instructional days. Total instructional days are 23. 


April 1-8 and 19-29 are instructional days. April 11-18 are non-school days. April 15 is a holiday. 
Total instructional days are 15.  


May 2-19, 23-27 and May 31st are instructional days. May 20 is a non-school day. May 30 is a 
holiday. Total instructional days are 20.  


June 1-2 are instructional days, with June 2nd as the last day of school. June 3-30 are non-
school days.  Total instructional days are 2.  


Total instructional days for the year are 180, non-instructional staff workdays are 4, and total 
staff workdays are 184. 


8.3.3







 
 


 


8.3.4


MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
GOULD EDUCATIONAL CENTER, MUSD AREA AND LIBERTY HIGH (SDC) 


2021-2022


Draft


July the 5th is a holiday. Total instructional days are 0. 


August 3rd, 4th, 5th, and 6th are staff workdays. The 9th through the 31st are days taught. Total 
instructional days are 17. 


September 1st through the 3rd are days taught. The 6th is a holiday. The 7th through the 30th are 
days taught. Total instructional days are 21. 


October 1st through the 8th are days taught. The 11th is a non-school day. The 12th through the 
29th are days taught. Total instructional days are 20. 


November 1st through the 10th are days taught. The 11th is a holiday. The 12th through the 19th 
are days taught. The 22nd through the 24th are non-school days. The 25th and 26th are holidays. 
The 29th and 30th are day taught. Total instructional days are 16. 


December 1st through the 17th are days taught. The 20th through the 22nd are non-school days 
and Gould Center will be closed. The 23rd through the 27th are holidays. The 28th through the 
30th are non-school days and Gould Center will be closed. The 31st is a holiday. Total 
instructional days are 13. 


January 3rd through the10th are non-school days. The 11th through the 14th are days taught. 
The 17th is a holiday. The 18th through the 31st are days taught. Total instructional days are 14. 


February 1st through the 11th are days taught. The 14th is a non-school day. The 15th through 
the 17th are days taught. The 18th and 21st are holidays. The 22nd through the 28th are days 
taught. Total instructional days are 17. 


March 1st through the 31st are days taught. Total instructional days are 23. 


April 1st through the 8th are days taught. The 11th through the 18th are non-school days. The 
19th through the 29th are days taught. Total instructional days are 15. 


May 2nd through the 27th are days taught. The 30th is a holiday. The 31st is a day taught. Total 
instructional days are 21.  


June 1st through the 3rd are days taught. June 3rd is the last day of school. Total instructional 
days are 3. 


Total instructional days for the year is 180, non-instructional staff workdays is 4, and total staff 
workdays are 184. 





		Agenda Item 8.3 Board of Education Action Item June 8, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:

		Recommendation:



		MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS Endeavor School and Voyager School Endeavor / Voyager 2021-2022 Draft

		MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS Madera County Independent Academy and Pioneer Technical Center 2021-2022 Draft

		MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS Pioneer Technical Center (Chowchilla) 2021-2022 Draft

		MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS GOULD EDUCATIONAL CENTER, MUSD AREA AND LIBERTY HIGH (SDC) 2021-2022Draft










 Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 


 


  
 
 


 
 


Agenda Item 8.4 
 


Board of Education Action Item 
June 8, 2021 


 
Topic: 
Consideration Ratification of Madera County School Boards Association 
(MCSBA) 2021-2022 Budget 
 
Background:  
Each member board is asked to ratify the proposed budget on a June or 
July Board agenda.  When a quorum of 7 member boards act to ratify 
the 2021-2022 budget, then MCSBA will have an operational budget. 
 
Notes from the MCSBA Budget and Finance Committee meeting 
delineate dues and budgeted expenses will remain the same. 
Scholarship income and expenses have been removed from the 
income/expenses Year to Date totals and are instead shown separately 
at the bottom of the budget report. “CSBA Workshops” has been 
changed to read “Workshops” since workshops may be available 
through other avenues. 
 
Financial Impact: 
Dues remain the same for 2021-2022 
 
Resource: 
Board  
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board approve the MCSBA 2021-2022 
budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





		Agenda Item 8.4 Board of Education Action Item June 8, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:

		Recommendation:








 


 Alview-Dairyland 
Union School District 


Bass Lake Joint 
Union School District 


Chawanakee Unified 
School District 


Chowchilla 
Elementary 
School District 


Chowchilla Union 
High School District 


Golden Valley 
Unified School 
District 


Madera County 
Board of Education 


Madera Unified 
School District 


Raymond-Knowles 
Union Elementary 
School District 


Yosemite Unified 
School District  


State Center 
Community College 
District 


    


1105 S. Madera Avenue 
Madera, CA  93637 
  
Voice: (559) 662-6274 
Fax:  (559) 673-5569 
E-mail: 
cmassetti@mcsos.org 
                              


Madera County School Boards Association 
Approval of Proposed 2021-2022 Budget 


 
District: Madera County Superintendent of Schools   
 
Executive Committee Representative:  Shelley Deniz   
 
District Superintendent/Chancellor: Dr. Cecilia A. Massetti  
 
 
     Approve    Disapprove 
 
 
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         
Superintendent’s/Chancellor’s Signature 
 
 
         
Executive Committee Representative’s Signature 
 
 
June 8, 2021         
Date of Board Meeting 
 
Please return this form immediately after your board meeting 
to Jennifer Pascale at Madera County Superintendent of 
Schools, 1105 S. Madera Avenue, Madera, CA 93637. 












Madera County School Boards Association


Budget Worksheet 2021-2022


PROPOSED 


INCOME


ITEM 2021-2022


17,765.44$             


Dues:


Alview-Dairyland (6) 360.00$                  


Bass Lake (6) 360.00                    


Chawanakee Unified (6) 360.00                    


Chowchilla Elem (6) 360.00                    


Chowchilla High (6) 360.00                    


Golden Valley USD (6) 360.00                    


Madera Unified (8) 480.00                    


Madera County Board (8) 480.00                    


Raymond-Knowles (6) 360.00                    


Yosemite Unified (6) 360.00                    


SCCCD-Madera (8) 480.00                    


Total Dues 4,320.00$               


Guest Dinners/No show $13


Guest Dinners/No show (outstanding)


Publication/Marketing  


TOTAL INCOME 4,320.00$               


PROPOSED 


EXPENSES


ITEM 2021-2022


Fall Meetings 700.00$                  


Winter Meetings 700.00                    


Spring Meetings 700.00                    


    Summer Meetings


CVEC Meeting 500.00                    


Workshop 1,500.00                 


Meeting Expenses/Postage 200.00                    


Awards 500.00                    


Board Member Development 2,000.00                 


Personal (eg. Condolences, etc.) 100.00                    


Publication/Marketing/Thank you Gifts 500.00                    


7,400.00$               


Beginning Balance: 17,765.44$             


Income: 4,320.00                 


Expenses: (7,400.00)                


Ending Balance: 14,685.44$             


13 scholarships x $120:  $              1,560.00 


 Available for Scholarships in June 


2022:  $                   385.00  $                                     -   


Budget:  $                           -   


Students Claimed:  $                           -   


MCSBA Scholarship Fund


2020-2021 Scholarships Awarded 2021-2022


I N C O M E


EXPENSES


TOTAL EXPENSES


Beginning Balance:


Budget Worksheet 2021-22 6/2/2021








 Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 


 


  
 
 


 
 


Agenda Item 8.5 
 


Board of Education Action Item 
June 8, 2021 


 
Topic: 
Consideration California School Boards Association (CSBA) Membership 
Dues for FY 2021-2022 
 
Background:  
Annual Membership Dues 
 
Financial Impact: 
CSBA Membership Dues 2021-2022 $5,885.00 
CCBE Membership Dues 2021-2022 $1,594.00 
Education Legal Alliance Membership Dues 2021-2022 $1,471.00 
Total $8,950.00 
 
Note: CSBA dues increased from last year by $188.00 and Education 


Legal Alliance increased from last year by $47.00 for a total 
overall increase of $235.00. 


 
Resource: 
Board 
 
Recommendation: 
Board Prerogative 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





		Agenda Item 8.5 Board of Education Action Item June 8, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:

		Recommendation:








 Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 


 


  
 
 


 
 


Agenda Item 8.6 
 


Board of Education Action Item 
July 8, 2021 


 
Topic: 
Annual Statement of Investment Policy 
 
Background:  
Section 53646 of the Government Code requires that the chief fiscal 
officer of each local agency render to the governing board a statement 
of investment policy, on an annual basis.  If all of an agency’s funds are 
placed in the county treasury, Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) or 
an FDIC-insured bank account, the most recent statement received from 
these institutions is considered acceptable for quarterly reports.  If an 
agency has any other investments, additional reporting is required. 
 
All Madera County Superintendent of Schools funds have been 
deposited in the Madera County Treasury. For the 2021-2022 fiscal 
year, we would like to continue with this policy.   Our County Tax 
Collector-Treasurer’s focus is on the safety of the investment pool, and 
we attend annual investment oversight meetings as a member of the 
Investment Committee. 
 
Financial Impact: 
Interest Earnings (Est. $30,000). 
 
Resource: 
Julie DeWall 
Chief Officer 
Business & Administrative Services 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Board approve the Madera County Superintendent 
of Schools Investment Policy for 2021-2022. 
 
 
 
 







8.6 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Investment Policy 
 
 
 


MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF 
SCHOOLS ANNUAL INVESTMENT POLICY 


2021-2022 
 


The Madera County Superintendent of Schools shall place all of its investments in 
the Madera County Co-Mingled Investment Pool. 





		Agenda Item 8.6 Board of Education Action Item July 8, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:

		Recommendation:



		MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS ANNUAL INVESTMENT POLICY 2021-2022






 


 
 


Meeting of  
Madera County Board of Education 
Tuesday, June 8, 2021, at 3:30 p.m. 


 
This meeting will be held at  


1105 South Madera Avenue, Conference Room 5,  
Madera, CA 93637 


 
** For those members of the public who plan to attend the meeting in person, the Conference 
Center will be open at 3:00 p.m.  As advised by the California Department of Public Health to 
limit the spread of COVID-19, only 100 attendees will be permitted in the Conference Center 
at one time in order to maintain a physical distance of 6 feet between those in attendance.  In 
addition, persons attending will need to complete the COVID-19 survey, use hand sanitizer, 
maintain and wear a mask as recommended by state and local public health guidance.  
Please contact Jennifer Pascale at (559) 662-6274 if you have any questions. 
 


How to Comment on Madera County Board of Education Agenda Items 
In Person: Members of the public who attend the meeting and wish to address the Board, 
may complete the form entitled, “Madera County Board of Education Request to Address the 
Board,” to be called to speak. 
 
By U.S. Mail to Jennifer Pascale, Madera County Board of Education 
1105 S. Madera Avenue, Madera, CA 93637 
 
By Email to jpascale@mcsos.org 
 
By Voice Message at (559) 662-6274 (voice message will be transcribed). 
• Public comment submitted by mail, e-mail, or voicemail must be received no later than 


9:00 a.m. on June 7, 2021. 
• Please include your name, agenda item number or subject matter being addressed, along 


with a statement of up to 300 words and no more than 3 minutes in length. 
• Submit a separate statement/voice message for each agenda item you wish to address 


and limit each statement to 300 words, not to exceed 3 minutes in length. 
• Statements and transcribed voice messages will be distributed to the Board of Education, 


read aloud during the Board meeting, and become part of the meeting’s official record. 
• Any portion of a statement exceeding 3 minutes will not be read aloud; but, will be 


included in the official record. 
 
By Phone (559) 662-6274 
• Please submit your name, agenda item, and phone number by mail, email, or voicemail 


no later than 9:00 a.m. on June 7, 2021, to Jennifer Pascale.  Jennifer Pascale will call 
you at the appropriate time during the meeting for comment. 


 



mailto:jpascale@mcsos.org





 


 
 


AGENDA 
 


Reasonable Accommodation for any Individual with Disability – Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability who requires reasonable 
accommodation to attend or participate in a meeting or function of the Madera County Board of Education, may 
request assistance by contacting the Office of the Madera County Superintendent of Schools.  All documents 
pertaining to open session agenda items are available to anyone upon request from the office at 1105 South 
Madera Avenue, Madera, CA 93637; Telephone: (559) 662-6274; FAX (559) 673-5569. 
 
1.0 Call to Order 


1.1  Flag Salute 
 
2.0 Consideration of Minutes 


2.1  Regular Meeting May 11, 2021 (Action) [Board] 
 
3.0 Adoption of Board Agenda (Action) [Board] 
 
4.0 Information 


4.1 Public Comment 
[This time is offered to members of the public wishing to 
address the Board on matters under the jurisdiction of the 
Board, but not listed on the agenda. Board members may 
listen to but not discuss matters not on the agenda. (G.C. 
54954.2) The Board will not take action on any items 
presented under public comment.  Speakers are limited 
to 3 minutes.] 


 
4.2 Letters and Communications 
 
4.3 Non-School Sources 


 
4.4 Madera County School Boards Association (MCSBA) 
           Executive Committee Meeting Report [Deniz] 


 
4.5  Madera County Foundation Board Report [Bustos] 


 
4.6  Member Report(s) [Member] 


 
5.0 Information from the Superintendent and Staff 


Public Hearing on Local Control Accountability Plan 
(LCAP) for Madera County Independent Academy (MCIA) 


 
5.1 Consideration of Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 


for Madera County Independent Academy (MCIA) 
 [Public hearing on LCAP for MCIA] [Sanchez] 







 


 
 


 
Public Hearing on Proposed 2021-2022 Budget  


for Madera County Independent Academy (MCIA) 
 


5.2 Consideration of Proposed 2021-2022 Budget for 
Madera County Independent Academy (MCIA) 


 [Public hearing on proposed 2021-2022 budget for MCIA] [DeWall] 
 


 
Public Hearing on Proposed 2021-2022 Budget  


for Pioneer Technical Center (PTC) 
 


5.4 Consideration of Proposed 2021-2022 Budget for 
Pioneer Technical Center (PTC) 


 [Public hearing on proposed 2021-2022 budget for PTC] [DeWall] 
 


 
Public Hearing on Proposed 2021-2022 Budget  


for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) 
 


5.6 Consideration of Proposed 2021-2022 Budget for 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS)  
[Public hearing on proposed 2021-2022 budget for MCSOS] [DeWall] 


 
5.7 Consideration of Local Indicators Selection 


[Presentation of local indicators for dashboard] (Action) [Cogan] 
5.7.1 Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
5.7.2 Pioneer Technical Center 
5.7.3 Madera County Independent Academy 


 


Public Hearing on Local Control Accountability Plan 
(LCAP) for Pioneer Technical Center (PTC) 


 
5.3 Consideration of Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 


for Pioneer Technical Center (PTC) 
 [Public hearing on LCAP for PTC] [Ellingson] 


Public Hearing on Local Control Accountability Plan 
(LCAP) for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) 


 
5.5 Consideration of Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 


for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) 
 [Public hearing on LCAP for MCSOS] [Sanchez/Drake] 







 


 
 


6.0 Old Business 
 
7.0 Closed Session 
 
8.0 New Business 


8.1 Consideration Issuance of Temporary County Certificates 
[Ratification of Temporary County Certificates  
issued previous month] (Action) [Protzman] 


 
8.2 Consideration Disposition of Surplus/Obsolete Equipment 


[Equipment to be declared obsolete and removed  
from inventory] (Action) [DeWall] 


 
8.3 Consideration Adoption of 2021-2022 School Calendars 


 [Annual approval of school calendars] (Action) [Cogan/Drake] 
8.3.1 Endeavor Secondary (Juvenile Hall) & 


Voyager Secondary 
8.3.2 Pioneer Technical Center/Madera County 


Independent Academy 
8.3.3 Pioneer Technical Center – Chowchilla 
8.3.4 Madera County Superintendent of Schools 


Special Education (Gould) 
 
8.4 Consideration Ratification of the 2021-2022 


Madera County School Boards Association 
Proposed Budget 


 [Board ratification of MCSBA budget] (Action) [Board] 
 


8.5 Consideration CSBA Membership Dues FY 2021-2022 
[Annual membership dues] (Action) [Board] 


 
8.6 Consideration Annual Statement of Investment Policy  


 [Acceptance of Madera County Superintendent of  
 Schools Investment Policy] (Action) [DeWall] 
 
9.0 Other 


9.1 CSBA Annual Conference 
September 10-12 in Monterey, CA 
[Early Bird registration open now-August 3, 2021] 
 


9.2 Special Board Meeting: June 29, 2021 
 


10.0  Adjournment 





		Meeting of Madera County Board of Education Tuesday, June 8, 2021, at 3:30 p.m.

		AGENDA

		1.0 Call to Order

		2.0 Consideration of Minutes

		3.0 Adoption of Board Agenda (Action) [Board]

		4.0 Information

		5.0 Information from the Superintendent and Staff

		6.0 Old Business

		7.0 Closed Session

		8.0 New Business

		9.0 Other

		10.0 Adjournment








 
 


     
 


  


  
 


 
   


  


  
 


 
  


   
    


 


   
  


 
 


 
 


 
 


Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


Agenda Item 5.1 


Board of Education Informational Item 
June 8, 2021 


Topic:
Consideration of Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) for Madera 
County Independent Academy (MCIA) 


Background:
The Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) is a required component 
of the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF). It describes the goals and 
specific activities that Madera County Superintendent of Schools will put 
into action to educate all students and for certain identified subgroups of 
students. The LCAP must address the priorities as determined by the 
State Board of Education and indicate the funding needed to implement 
the activities. As required, the LCAP will be reviewed and revised each 
year. An important part of the LCAP is input from parents, students, 
staff, and community members. 


Financial Impact:
$ 974.566.00 


Resource: 
Hugo Sanchez 
Program Director 
Career & Alternative Education Services 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 



www.mcsos.org





 


    
 


              
 


            
                           


      
  


           
  


 


   
 


  
 


          
 


                    
                           


                     
                   


                     
                    


                 
              


 
                      


                  
                 
                   


                  
                  


                 
               


 
                         


                      
                  


                  


Local Control Accountability Plan 
The instructions for completing the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) follow the template. 


Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Mr. Hugo Sanchez 


Program Director - Career and Alternative 
Education Services 


hsanchez@mcsos.org 
(559) 662-6211


Plan Summary [2021-22] 


General Information 
A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students. 


Madera County Independent Academy (MCIA) is a charter school authorized by the Madera County Board of Education. The school is 
located in the city of Madera, and it is authorized for student in grades pre K-12, however, students in grades K-8 are served at the site this 
year. MCIA is a school of choice and serves at-promise students in an independent study model, including middle school students expelled 
from their home district. This approach supports individual development, through the choice of curriculum aligned with state standards. The 
program allows students to set their own pace for learning and allows teachers to provide needed supports to minimize achievement gaps. 
Although the requirement is for students to meet with their independent study teacher independently for one hour per week, supplemental 
services are provided to ensure students have increased supports in developing academic, behavioral, and social-emotional skills. Students 
have access to courses through Common Core State Standards (CCSS) aligned curriculum and materials. 


Per Data Quest for 2020-21, 15.5% of MCIA students are English Learners with Spanish being their primary language. The student body is 
60.3% Hispanic, 15.5% White, and 8.6% African American, with 20.6% not reporting their ethnicity. California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS) identifies 86% of MCIA students as the Unduplicated Pupil Count (UPC), which includes Socio-
economically Disadvantaged (SED), English Learners and foster youth. Approximately 12% of students enrolled in the MCIA program have 
identified special needs, with the majority of these students entering MCIA with existing Individualized Education Programs (IEP’s), while 
others have been assessed and determined eligible for services. Service delivery models include one-on-one instruction, and small group 
instructional support, utilizing special education staff to support student learning in an inclusive setting. Instructional strategies and 
actions/services are implemented that benefit all student groups including those specifically identified in this document. 


MCIA opened its doors in 2008 with 10 students and grew to 75 students during its first year. The school’s current enrollment is 64 students, 
grades K-8. The key to student success is the assignment of a certificated teacher who leads students and parents through individualized 
curriculum and learning, and provides one-on-one, site-based instruction. This approach encourages students to be highly involved in their 
learning, becoming self-motivated, competent lifelong learners and requires a significant amount of support and structure from parents to 







 


                     
                  


                     
 


                     
                      


                       
                   


      
         


 
 


  
 


                   
 


                     
                    


                   
                       


                         
                        


                       
                  


 


   
 


                       
                   


 


                       
                          


                         
                   


                    
                      


                        
           


 


increase the academic success of the child. Students choose our program for a variety of reasons, including physical and emotional safety, 
family dynamics, discipline (expelled youth), or religious reasons. Although, prior to MCIA, these students traditionally attended school 50% 
to 60% of the time, a key success of the program is students are now attending school 85% of the time. 


Prior to SB98, MCIA’s attendance averaged 85% but California School Dashboard for 2019 shows 52.7% of students as "chronically absent". 
Efforts to increase student and family connections to MCIA continue to be a priority to decrease the number of students with high 
absenteeism rates. Based on our 2019 CAASPP data, MCIA students had growth of 9.7 points toward meeting standard in ELA, and 28.9 
point toward meeting standard in math. English Learners made significant progress toward English language proficiency (61.5%) compared 
to the state percentage of 48.3%. 


Reflections: Successes 
A description of successes and/or progress based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 


Based on our 2019 CAASPP data on the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), MCIA students had growth of 9.7 points toward meeting 
standard in ELA, and 28.9 point toward meeting standard in math. English Learners made significant progress toward English language 
proficiency (61.5%) compared to the state percentage of 48.3%. MCIA utilizes i-Ready common formative assessments, which provide 
prescriptive lessons to support subskill growth in ELA and Math. MCIA students showed a 16% growth in ELA, which means these students 
scored at grade level in January, 2021, after their first assessment in September, 2020. Meanwhile, there was an 8% growth in Math for the 
same time periods. Furthermore, the percentage of students that were two or more grade levels behind in ELA and Math decreased by 8% 
and 13%, respectively. Student data from Spring LCAP Survey indicates 97% of students plan on attending college or a trade school after 
high school graduation, and 93% stated being happy at MCIA. 


Reflections: Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including any areas of low 
performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any steps taken to address those areas. 


According to i-Ready results for 2020-21, there is a need to improve in academic proficiency in ELA and Math. Diagnostic results indicate 
that 26% of students are one year behind grade-level in ELA, while 32% of students are one year behind in Math. There are even more 
students who are two or more years behind in ELA and Math, specifically, 45% and 53%. Student and parent survey data indicates that 
students would benefit from additional support with academic work Considering students' academic deficits, MCIA will focus efforts on 
supporting students academic needs. Chronic absenteeism (52.7%) continues to be a concern, despite the small decline (2.8%) in this 
metric as measured on the Dashboard for 2019. During Distance Learning in 2020-21 school year, there was a significant number of 
students with increased absences. In order to achieve LCAP Goal 1 and prepare students to be academically ready for the next grade level, 
MCIA needs to increase attendance, which will positively affect academic proficiency. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 2 of 49 







 


                  
                     


                         
                             


                          
                        
           


 
                       


              
         


 
 


  
 


              
 


                      
                        
                     
                     


                      
                    


                     
                  


                
          


 
                      


                     
                    


                     
                       


                    
                  


                   
                      


                
         


 


Efforts to provide technology and Wi-Fi connectivity allowed all students to benefit from individualized instruction during Distance Learning 
and provided access to enrichment activities like virtual field trips and curriculum resources that would not have been accessible otherwise. 
According to LCAP Student Survey data (spring 2021), 93% of students stated that they are happy to be at MCIA. Other data also shows 
26% of students do not feel safe at school, and 74% do not feel they are part of MCIA. Survey data also shows that only 60% of MCIA 
students get excited to learn. It is also worth noting that only 44% of students and 50% of parents completed the survey, even though all 
students were provided a printed copy of the survey in the language spoken at home. The low number of surveys completed was concerning 
because other efforts to gather parent input have not proven successful. 


LCAP Parent Survey, administered in spring 2021, was sent to all parents in printed form (Spanish or English), shared with all parents via 
ParentSquare, and multiple reminders were sent out to encourage families to provide completed surveys. 


LCAP Highlights 
A brief overview of the LCAP, including any key features that should be emphasized. 


During the 2018-19 school year, MCIA increased the amount of time students in grades K-3 were on campus to received additional support, 
along with students in grades 4-6 the following year. During the 2020-21 school year, despite the barriers created by Distance Learning as a 
result of COVID-19, students in grades 7-8 also increased the time receiving academic support, which was more than the MCIA Independent 
Study charter requirement of one-hour per week. These efforts were to increase academic achievement, specifically in ELA and Math, as 
well as provide young students a physically and emotionally safe place to develop appropriate social skills and behaviors. MCIA has started 
using i-Ready as a common formative assessment for ELA and Math, which will provide excellent achievement data and progress toward 
grade-level proficiency. In addition, the online prescriptive lessons will allow students to work on their subskill weaknesses from home. 
MCIA will continue to require students meeting their teachers individually for their one-hour appointments, but will receive instructional 
support from instructional assistants to accelerate academic growth. Instructional assistants will incorporate prescriptive lessons and 
resources from i-Ready to provide targeted instruction to each student. 


The 2021-24 LCAP was informed by the outcomes of the Learning Continuity Plan (LCP), the 2019-20 LCAP Annual Update, and input from 
members of each stakeholder group at Madera County Independent Academy (MCIA) through the lens of what has been learned during the 
COVID-19 pandemic. Even during a pandemic, stakeholder input continues to align with the three overarching LCAP goals of the previous 
LCAP. The pandemic continues to drive several instructional changes that will be carried over after the end and beyond as evidenced 
through the additional actions added to each of the goals, as highlighted below. Shown in the three goals outlined below, MCIA will continue 
to focus and direct efforts in supporting all students, especially those who are foster or homeless youth, English Learners, and socio-
economically disadvantaged students, representing 90% of the MCIA student population. These three goals also address the eight state 
priorities, which are: 1) Student Achievement, 2) Student Engagement, 3) Student Outcomes, 4) School Climate, 5) Parent Involvement, 6) 
Basic Services, 7) Implementation of the Common Core State Standards, and 8) Course Access. Several key features listed in MCIA LCAP 
for the 2021-22 school year include: Social-Emotional Foundational awareness for teachers and students, improved academic supports, 
targeted academic support, and CTE pathway enrichment and completion. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 3 of 49 







 


                          
       


                    
                    


                     
                       


                       
                    


                        
                  


                 
     


 
                       


       
                      


                  
                   


                   
                         
                    


                 
     


 
                   


 
                 


             
                  


                  
                         


                  
                     
  


         
 


Goal 1: All students will be at or above grade level by the end of the school year academically, socially, and emotionally; all students in grade 
8 will be prepared for high school. 
Key actions in the LCAP supporting this goal include improved academic support in ELA and math, and assigning prescriptive i-Ready 
lessons targeting individual subskill weaknesses. Accelerated Reader has also contributed to academic gains in the current year. This 
model will be modified in 2021-22 based on identified needs from local and state indicators to address subskill weaknesses for student 
population that is 80% SED. COVID-19 forced instruction to move to Distance Learning for most of the 2020-21 school year and now MCIA 
must prepare to bring all students back on site for direct instruction, optimizing the time spent with students. A key finding from Distance 
Learning was the use of a variety of instructional strategies and feedback to ensure optimized learning opportunities and drive instruction. 
Those ideas will be the foundation that MCIA will build on as those students return to campus, leaving old and ineffective practices prior to 
the pandemic behind. To support these changes; ELA, ELD, and mathematics professional development will be planned and conducted 
throughout the year to support student improvement through improved instructional practices. Teachers will provide differentiated instruction 
to meet their individual needs. 


Goal 2: The MCIA program will provide resources and services to ensure the social and emotional well-being of every student and staff to 
provide a safe environment conducive to learning. 
Moving forward into the 2021-22 school year, MCIA is unsure of the specific social-emotional needs that will arise coming out of the COVID-
19 pandemic but have planned professional development for staff to identify and support students' social-emotional needs, while increasing 
awareness of local supports from Madera County Behavioral Health Department. MCIA can direct students and families toward these 
services when these needs/challenges cannot be met at school. Partnerships with internal and external sources provide the support and 
resource platform that will be built upon. This is key to learning and growth for MCIA students as we provide support for the whole child, 
knowing that if they are not physically and emotionally "safe" then earning cannot take place. As the COVID-19 pandemic created 
educational challenges and the need or Distance Learning, students' social-emotional well-being was the forefront of most professional 
growth and development for staff. 


Goal 3: MCIA staff will have greater stakeholder participation and input by developing and fostering meaningful parent and family 
relationships. 
The emphasis is building and maintaining stronger family and community engagement, will continue with local community partnerships, 
parent-teacher conferences, parent academic and informational workshops and continued correspondence through ParentSquare. An 
additional emphasis is building stronger family and community engagement. COVID-19 provided MCIA an opportunity to evaluate and refine 
communication protocols with students, parents, and administration. Those protocols for communication have been carried over into the new 
school years and will be the point we will build on going forward. Parent workshops are being planned to help with current and future needs 
for students ranging from homework support to attendance policies to career exploration and digital citizenship. Providing opportunities for 
external learning opportunities like visiting a businesses or colleges, historical sites and museums will help teach and support being a well 
rounded student. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 4 of 49 







 


    
 


                   
 


  
 


                
 


         
 


    
 


                    
 


         
 


    
 


                  
 


         
 


Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools eligible for comprehensive support and improvement must respond to the following prompts. 
Schools Identified 
A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 


N/A 


Support for Identified Schools 
A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 


N/A 


Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 


N/A 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 5 of 49 







 


  
 
 


                  
 


                   
                     


          
 


                        
      


 
               
                     


  
                  
               


                
                
                
               
               


                 
                    


  
 


                    
                       
               


                      
   


 
                     


                      
      


         
 


Stakeholder Engagement 
A summary of the stakeholder process and how the stakeholder engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP. 


Madera County Independent Academy (MCIA) believes that stakeholder input drives the development of the LCAP. MCIA staff consulted 
parents, students, all school personnel, local bargaining units, and the community over the course of a year conducting 9 meetings and 
administering surveys to all employees, all students, and all parents. 


To obtain stakeholder input in the writing and approval of the MCIA LCAP, MCIA staff held a series of stakeholder input meetings that were 
scheduled exclusively for input and feedback: 


2/11/21 - All CAES Staff LCAP Survey sent out by email (7:30 - 9:00 a.m.) 
2/16/21 - 2/23/21 - Hard Copies of Parent and Student Surveys were distributed in student work packets and through an electronic 
ParentSquare link. 
2/25/21 - CAES Parent Advisory Committee (PAC) Stakeholder Input Zoom (11:00 – 12:00 and 4:00 – 5:00 p.m.) 
3/1/21- Parent Square/Email invite to all PTC/MCIA and MCSOS CTA/CSEA representation for the following: 
3/9/21 - Stakeholder Input – MCIA via Zoom (10:00 – 11:00 and 4:30 – 5:30 p.m.) 
3/10/21 - Stakeholder Input – PTC via Zoom (10:00 – 11:00 and 4:30 – 5:30 p.m.) 
3/11/21 - Stakeholder Input – MCSOS via Zoom (10:00 – 11:00 and 4:30 – 5:30 p.m.) 
3/18/21 - Stakeholder Input - CAES SSC Meeting #3 via Zoom (1:00 – 2:00 p.m.) 
3/18/21 - Stakeholder Input – CAES ELAC Meeting #3 via Zoom (2:00 – 3:00 p.m.) 
4/8/21 - LCAP Stakeholder Feedback Analysis/Needs Assessment (8:00 – 12:00 p.m.) Site Leadership, Principals and Executive Director 
6/1/21 - SELPA Stakeholder Input - CAES Executive Director, Site Principal, Program Directors and Program Director of SELPA (12:45 -
1:30 p.m.) 


Due to state and local restrictions; parent, community, and student meetings were held via Zoom. Stakeholders could participate either by 
phone or by logging into the Zoom platform. Translation services were provided at each meeting as needed. MCIA made all efforts to assure 
voices were heard from stakeholders through these meeting that represented English Learners, socio-economically disadvantaged (SED), 
and foster/homeless students. In each of the input meetings, i-Ready diagnostic assessment data, in the areas of ELA and Math, was shared 
with the stakeholders. 


Once all stakeholder feedback was collected, the administrative team analyzed the feedback and used it to draft the LCAP. The most 
common topics of successes and needs were collected throughout the feedback process and then given priority in the writing of the LCAP, 
although many other topics were addressed. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 6 of 49 







 


          
 


                     
   


 
     
     


 
  


 
                    


                        
               


                      
    


 
                       


                      
      


 
  


                       
                    


                     
            


 
    


           
                 


   
             
           


 
    


         
              
           
            


 
                    


A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups. 


A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholders (Parent and students) is attached to this LCAP, by percentage. Data breaks 
down as follows: 


MCIA Parent responses = 50% 
MCIA Student responses = 44% 


Stakeholder input: 


Due to state and local restrictions; parent, community, and student meetings were held via Zoom. Stakeholders could participate either by 
phone or by logging into the Zoom platform. Translation services were provided at each meeting as needed. MCIA made all efforts to assure 
voices were heard from stakeholders through these meeting that represented English Learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and 
foster/homeless students. In each of the input meetings, i-Ready diagnostic assessment data from MCIA, in the areas of ELA and Math, was 
shared with the stakeholders. 


Once all the stake holder feedback was collected, the administrative team analyzed the feedback and used it to draft the LCAP. The most 
common topics of successes and needs were collected throughout the feedback process and then given priority in the writing of the LCAP, 
although many other topics were addressed. 


Stakeholder input: 
Meetings were held over several days and times to ensure all stakeholders had the opportunity to provide input. In order to comply with 
health and safety guidelines, these meetings were held virtually through the Zoom platform where parents could participate by phone or 
through the online platform. The qualitative data that was collected during these meetings, along with comments from MCIA staff, student, 
and parent surveys indicate stakeholders feel the greatest areas of strength include: 


From the parent survey. 
1. 91% believe their concerns are taken seriously by the school.
2. 97% agree the school supports multiple opportunities to engage in understandable and accessible two-way communication between
families and educators.
3. 91% agree that students learn skills that will help them in life.
4. 91% agree that MCIA promotes academic success for all students.


From the student survey. 
1. 74% of students feel safe while on campus.
2. 97% of students believe that teachers care for and want students to succeed.
3. 77% agree that there is enough time to complete work.
4. 97% agree that teachers are knowledgeable of the subjects they teach.


Input from stakeholder meetings (SSC, ELAC, PAC) combined with surveys, the a following areas were identified as areas of improvement: 
2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 7 of 49 







 


                 
          
         
        
     
                   


                  
 


                        
                      


                     
                


  
 


                     
                      


               
         


 
               


 


                      
                          


                          
                         
                     


             
 


                   
                    
                   


                    
                    


                     
                      


                   
                


 
          


1. Increasing opportunities for parents to be involved with school activities and events. Parents reported the following:
a) 43.8% wanted workshops to assist students with school work.
b) 21.8% want support with establishing a healthy lifestyle
c) 18.8% wanted increased social-emotional support for students.
d) 21.8% wanted math workshops.
e) 91% of parents agree the school is interested in family's strengths, culture, language, and goals for their children.
f) 91% of parents responding agreed that teachers are well prepared to meet the needs of students.


On the recent Local Indicator survey of Priorities 2 and 3, the staff identified MCIA's approach to ELA and ELD being fully implemented. On 
Priority 2, MCIA staff identified being in the Full implementation phase for Identifying the professional learning needs of groups of teachers or 
staff as a whole, Identifying the professional learning needs of individual teachers, and Providing support for teachers on the standards they 
have not yet mastered. Full Implementation in Mathematics, Initial implementation in Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS),and 
History Standards. 


For Priority 3, MCIA identified solidly in the "Full Implementation" phase for the areas of Building Relationships and Building Partnerships for 
Student Outcomes and their subset topics. For the section on Seeking Input for Decision Making, MCIA staff scored the survey "Beginning 
Development" level that is leaning closer towards "Initial Implementation," providing an area of increased focus. 


A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific stakeholder input. 


The three goals of the LCAP were originally created with stakeholder input for the previous LCAP. This year, stakeholder input continues to 
demonstrate that PTC's efforts are focused in the right areas and there is no change to the 3 goals. The following will continue to remain the 
focus of this plan: 1) All students will be at or above grade level by the end of the school year academically, socially, and emotionally; all 
students in grade 8 will be prepared for high school. 2) The MCIA program will provide resources and services to ensure the social and 
emotional well-being of every student and staff to provide a safe environment conducive to learning. 3) MCIA staff will have greater 
stakeholder participation and input by developing and fostering meaningful parent and family relationships. 


Continued aspects of the LCAP influenced by specific stakeholder Input (see attached parent and student surveys and overview above): 
1) MCIA students are not achieving academically at grade level. Goal 1 - Action 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7
2) Professional Development for staff continuing in the areas of ELA, ELD, and social-emotional learning. Parents and students reported
agreeing with statements that the school promotes success for all students and teachers are well qualified to teach students. Continued
Professional Development supports and increases staff confidence and proficiency as they support student learning. Goal 1 - Action 3, 7
3) The site is safe and well maintained to promote a positive learning environment for students. This addresses feedback about parent
concerns, accessible two-way communication, and decision making by ALL stakeholders. Goal 2 - Action 5, 7; Goal 3 - Action 2, 3.
4) Survey responses from parents continue to be lower than expected and increased communication with parents and opportunities for
parents to be involved with MCIA events can be greater. Goal 3 - Action 3, 4


New aspects of the LCAP influenced by specific stakeholder input: 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 8 of 49 







 


                        
                     


                     
                        


                      
          


                    
                   


               
         


 


1) Acceleration to 1:1 technology program. When looking to reopen schools in the spring of 2020, a survey was sent out to parents and
students asking what technology they owned currently, to meet the needs of video conferencing instead of face to face meetings. In
response, 2/3 of of families needed access to a Chromebook, Wi-Fi hotspot, or both. This need expressed from stakeholders accelerated a
technology plan that let to all students having access to a 1:1 digital access to student ratio. This need lead to Goal 1-Action 10.
2) Based on feedback from the Parent LCAP survey, Social-Emotional Services access and training will be expanded to meet the needs of
MCIA's staff and socio-economically disadvantaged (SED) families. Goal 2-Action 3.
3) Building on the feedback from teachers that is reinforced through parent and student data, expanding professional development in the
2021-22 school year will support student learning and achievement through staff quested PD and reinforcing feedback related to teacher
knowledge, parental support, and how MCIA supports student success. Goal 1 - Action 6, 7.


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 9 of 49 







 


   
 


 
 


   
                      


                  
 


          
 


                   
                          
            


 


    
 


              
 


    
   


    
      


    
    
     


   
  


     
    


    
   


   


    
  


        


    
   


    


       
   


 
    


  
 
        


    
  


 
   


  
   


   
   


    


       
   


   
 
  


  
   


   
   


Goals and Actions 


Goal 
Goal # Description 


1 All students will be at or above grade level by the end of the school year academically, socially, and emotionally; all 
students in grade 8 will be prepared for high school. 


An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
MCIA students are currently performing below grade levels as measured by i-Ready assessments. Reading assessment results indicate that 
74% of students are at least one or more years behind grade level, while math assessment results yield that 84% of K-8 are one year or 
more behind grade level. 


Measuring and Reporting Results 
Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 


2023–24 
1. Percentage of Base line results yield Grade-level 
students performing at that 26% of students proficiency will grow 
grade level in ELA are at grade level in by 10% annually. 
and Math on i-Ready. ELA, while math 


assessment results 
yield that 16% of K-8 
are at grade level. 


2. Number of
students being
reclassified.


No EL students have 
been reclassified in 
the last three years. 


10% of EL students 
will be reclassified 
annually. 


3. Percentage of 100% of teachers and 100% of teachers and 
teachers accessing staff receive staff will participate 
professional professional annually in 
development development of 90 


minutes embedded 
into the weekly 
instructional schedule. 
In addition, teachers 
and staff are strongly 


professional 
development on 
California Common 
Core State Standards 
in ELA, Mathematics, 
Social Science, and 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 10 of 49 







 


              
 


   
  


 
   


  
   


  
 


  
   


  
 
  


  
 


 
   


  
    


        


   
  
   


  


       
   


  
 


   
  


   
  


        


   
  
   


  


       
   


 


   
   


    
   


        


   
  
   


   
 


     
    
   


 


    
  


  
  


   
   


        


   
   


  
  


      
  


   
  


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


encouraged to access 
relevant professional 
development 
throughout the year. 


Science, either 
through MCSOS or 
other professional 
educational 
organizations. 
Increased number of 
teachers accessing 
professional 
development through 
other professional 
educational 
organizations. 


4. Academic 2019 SBAC ELA Increase by at least 
proficiency as Standard Scores 30 points toward 
measured by the ELA (currently 93 points standard met 
SBAC assessment. below standard). annually. 
5. Academic 2019 SBAC ELA Increase by 30 points 
proficiency as Standard Scores toward standard met 
measured by the (currently 156.7 points annually. 
SBAC Math below standard). 
assessment.
6. Academic
proficiency on the
SBAC ELA and Math
assessments for SED
students.


2019 SBAC ELA 
Standard Scores 
(currently 156.7 points 
below standard in 
math). 


Increase SBAC 
scores by 30 points 
toward standard met 
annually. 


7. Percentage of
students receiving
instruction and
instructional materials
aligned with Common
Core State Standards
(CCSS).


100% of students 
have standards based 
instruction and 
instructional materials. 


100% of students 
receive standards 
based instruction and 
instructional materials. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 11 of 49 







 


              
 


    
  


        


   
 
 


       
 
 


    
   


  
        


  
    


  
   


 
  


   
 


       
   


 
 


 


 
 


        
   


  
  


   
         


       
           


            
              


         
          


          
  


 
 


 
 
 


      


   
  


  
   


         


           
         
          


           
              


         
       


 
  


 


 
 


 
       


X


X


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


8. Number of
teachers appropriately
credentialed.


All teachers are 
appropriately 
credentialed. 


All teachers will be 
appropriately 
credentialed. 


9. Percentage of
students with access
to instructional
technology.


During 2020-2021 
school year, 100% of 
students were 
provided access to 
instructional 
technology, including 
1:1 Chromebooks and 
Hotspots. 


100% of students will 
have access to 
instructional 
technology. 


Actions 


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
1 Use i-Ready 


Assessments to 
measure grade-level 
proficiency in ELA 
and Math. 


To support improved student academic performance, i-Ready 
assessments are used to show academic growth. School year 20-21 
i-Ready results indicate 26% of MCIA students are on grade level in
ELA, and 16% on grade level in Math. Teachers will use formative i-
Ready assessments and prescriptive lessons to help students become
more academically proficient. Teachers will assign i-Ready lessons as
part of the required classwork to support learning and increase
academic proficiency.


$208,179.00 Yes 


2 Use i-Ready 
Assessments to 
measure grade-level 
proficiency in ELA 
and Math 


This action is a continuance of Action #1: Two part-time instructional 
assistants will be hired to assist low-performing students with 
additional instruction in small group settings and mitigate learning 
loss. Their support will be principally directed to Unduplicated Pupils 
in grades K - 8. Additional instructional materials will be purchased to 
support classroom instruction, as needed. Instructional assistants will 
provide individual or small group accelerated interventions. 


Title I 


$99,200.00 No 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 12 of 49 







 


        
 
 


   
  


  
   


         


            
          


          
        


             
          


         
           
         


         
   


 
 


 
 
 


      


     
    


 
        


              
        


         
          


          
           


           
             


        
        
          
           


           
         


           
       


 
  


 
 
 


 
 


 
       


X


X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 


3 Use i-Ready 
Assessments to 
measure grade-level 
proficiency in ELA 
and Math 


This action is a continuance of Action #1: Based upon observed low 
mathematics scores on SBAC for SED students, i-Ready and other 
data points, MCIA will contract with MCSOS, Director, Curriculum and 
Instruction, to provide focused, on-going professional development in 
math to all teachers and other staff to increase capacity to teach math 
effectively. Aside from the pedagogy to improve instruction, teachers 
will develop a mathematical mindset and understand the foundational 
math requirements to prepare students to be successful at the next 
grade level. This professional development will improve teachers' 
instructional practices and close the achievement gaps for SED 
students in mathematics. 


$15,920.00 Yes 


4 Use LAS Links and i-
Ready to increase EL 
Student 
Reclassification 


As MCIA has not reclassified any EL students in the last 3 years, to 
support EL students in achieving English Language reclassification, 
MCIA staff will use LAS Links English Language Proficiency 
Assessment as one of our local assessments to meet reclassification 
criteria. LAS Links provides English Language proficiency results in 
speaking, listening, reading, and writing domains. An ELPAC score of 
"4" is required for EL reclassification, along with three other criteria 
required by the state. The fourth criteria allows for use of local 
assessments for reclassification. The Program Director (bilingual 
coordinator), along with the academic counselor will review 
assessment results and consult with teacher. Parental opinion and 
consultation is also a requirement. Currently, no students have been 
reclassified in the last three school years. MCSOS ELA/ELD Program 
Director to work with teachers in incorporating increased instructional 
strategies to support EL students academically. The strategies will be 
implemented in individual or small group settings. 


Title I 


$108,946.00 No 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 13 of 49 







 


        
  


  
  


 
         


        
         
         
       


          
        


          
       


         
           


            
       


            
       


       
        


 
 


    
 
 
 


 
 


 
       


   
  


   
  


           


         
         


        
            


          
        


         
         


          
     


 
 


 
 


 
       


   
  


   


           
         


           


 
 
 


      


X


X


X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
5 Professional 


Development for 
Certificated and 
Classified 
Instructional Staff 


MCIA professional development is designed around meeting the 
academic, social, and emotional needs of students to maximize 
academic achievement. Professional development will also focus on 
identifying and implementing best instructional practices principally 
directed at meeting the needs of Unduplicated Pupils. Professional 
development is designed for teachers, administrators, counselors, and 
other support staff. Teachers are encouraged to seek professional 
development opportunities or conferences provided by other 
educational organizations, aside from those provided by MCSOS. 
Professional Development to be offered by MCSOS on a weekly basis 
for 90 minutes per week, aside from PD accessed by staff though 
other professional educational agencies. Professional development 
opportunities will be provided to all staff to support the use of 
standards-aligned curriculum and pedagogy; in conjunction with 
diagnostic, formative, and summative data disaggregation and 
application coordinated by a Program Director / Categorical 
Coordinator. 


Title I & II 


$71,182.00 No 


6 Providing Instruction 
and Instructional 
Materials to Increase 
Student Achievement 
in ELA and Math 


MCIA staff will provide instruction and instructional materials to 
support students' academic growth as measured by SBAC ELA 
assessment. Summative SBAC and Interim Assessment Blocks 
(IABs) will be administered by teachers, and results are to be analyzed 
by administrators, teachers, and academic counselors. MCIA staff will 
provide instruction and instructional materials to support students' 
academic growth as measured by SBAC Math assessment. 
Summative SBAC and Interim Assessment Blocks (IABs) will be 
administered by teachers, and results are to be analyzed by 
administrators, teachers, and academic counselors. 


$219,017.00 No 


7 Provide Instruction 
and Instructional 
Materials to Increase 


Based on poor academic achievement of SED students in ELA (95.2 
points below standard) and Math (156.7 points below standard), 
according to the most recent data on the California School Dashboard, 


$2,000.00 Yes 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 14 of 49 







 


        
  


         
         


           
         


            
       
         


    
 
 


   
 


  
        


        
    


 
 


 
 


 
       


   
        


         
          
          
          
   


 
 


 
 


 
       


   
   


        


          
           


          
          


             
         


          
         


         
       


 
 


 
 
 


      


    
    


          


            
             


           
           


     


 
 
 


      


X


X


X


X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
SED Student 
Achievement in ELA 


MCIA staff will provide instruction and instructional materials to 
support SED students' academic growth as measured by SBAC ELA 
and Math assessments. Summative SBAC and Interim Assessment 
Blocks (IABs) will be administered by teachers and results are to be 
analyzed by administrators, teachers, and academic counselors. 
Additional copies of instructional materials will be provided for 
students for home use. 


8 Provide and 
Purchase 
Accelerated Reader 
Program 


Materials will include textbooks, Accelerated Reader (books and 
software), and online software/curriculum. 


$45,000.00 No 


9 Retain Highly 
Effective Teachers 


MCIA will provide high quality professional development to increase 
teacher and staff effectiveness. Building teacher capacity in this 
manner will increase staff retention and contribute to a positive 
working environment. MCIA will also offer competitive salaries to 
increase teacher retention. 


No 


10 Provide Technology 
Access for SED 
Students 


All SED students will have access to technology (Chromebooks) to 
ensure equity, as recent survey results have shown that SED students 
do not have reliable technology at home. MCIA devices 
(Chromebooks and hotspots) are checked out annually by families and 
returned at the end of the year. Student learning is enhanced using 
Chromebook technology by the following: access to curriculum, peer 
to peer communication, training in digital citizenship, training in using 
all formative and summative online assessments. Additional needs 
may include curriculum to support core academic instruction, elective 
digital citizenship, and associated monthly service fees. 


$11,580.00 Yes 


11 Maintain Low Student 
to Teacher Ratio by 
Adding a Teacher 


Student to teacher ratio should be 29:1, but during the 2020-21 school 
year, we were below 22:1. Having an extra teacher allows students to 
receive increased support from all teachers, since their case loads are 
lower. SED students will improve academic achievement in ELA and 
Math through the increased support. 


$116,694.00 Yes 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 15 of 49 







 


        
 
 


 


   
             


               
 


                    
 


            
 


                    
 


               
 


                    
 


                      
    


 


                    
 


                    
 


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 


Goal Analysis [2021-22]
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 16 of 49 







 


   
 


 
 


   
                    


                 
 


          
 


                       
                   
              


 


    
 


              
 


     
   


  
  
   


         


   
     


  
  


  
  


   


       
   


  
  


   
 


   
  


    
         


   
  


   
   


 
 


      
  


    
 


  
  


  
 


   
  
  


   
    


  
   


      
  


  
  


Goals and Actions 


Goal 
Goal # Description 


2 The MCIA program will provide resources and services to ensure the social and emotional well-being of every student and 
staff to provide a safe environment conducive to learning. 


An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
In order to be a great learning environment for all students, each child must feel safe emotionally, physically, and cognitively. MCIA will 
maintain effective and supportive learning environments that assist families in feeling connected to the program, and increase participation in 
advisory committees and other feedback opportunities. 


Measuring and Reporting Results 
Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 


2023–24 
1. All students will
have external learning
opportunities to
participate in
classroom and outside
of school.


In school year 2019-
20, 100% of students 
participated in 
classroom and 
extended learning 
opportunities, which 
included field trips. 


100% of students will 
be encouraged to 
participate in 
classroom learning 
and extended learning 
opportunities. 


2. MCIA
transportation to
school for all students
in need.


MCIA staff provides 
MAX tickets/vouchers 
to access public 
transportation for all 
students. 


100% of students 
needing transportation 
to school will be 
provided 
vouchers/tickets for 
local public 
transportation to 
school. 


3. Percentage of All students have 100% of students 
students accessing access to academic or needing academic, 
academic and behavioral counseling 


services as needed. 
behavioral, or social-
emotional counseling 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 17 of 49 







 


              
 


  
        


   
  


    
   


   
        


   
     
  


    
 


       
  


   
   


     
    


    
   


    
   


        


  
   


    
   


   
 


       
    


    
 


   
   


        


  
    


    
    
   
  


     
    


 


    
   


   
   


        


    
   


     
    
   
   
   


   
   


   


       
    
    


   
    


    
    


   
  


   
         


  
  


      
   


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


behavioral health 
counseling services. 


will receive services 
on site. 


4. Number of school-
wide events annually
for parents and
families.


MCIA hosts Open 
house in the fall and 
Family Appreciation 
Day in the spring 
annually. 


Host at least two 
school-wide events 
annually to invite 
parents and families 
to our school, at least 
one in the fall 
semester and one in 
the spring semester. 


5. The Facilities
Inspection Tool (FIT)
Score


The Facilities 
Inspection Tool (FIT) 
tool results for 2020 
show MCIA campus 
graded as "Good 
Repair." 


The FIT will show 
MCIA evaluated to be 
in "Good Repair" 
annually. 


6. Chronic
absenteeism for SED
students.


Chronic absenteeism 
for SED students is 
53.5% as shown in 
Data Quest for the 
most recent available 
data (2018-19). 


Chronic absenteeism 
will decrease by 5% 
annually. 


7. Percentage of
students and parents
feeling safe and
supported by school
staff.


At least 90% of 
students report feeling 
safe at school, and at 
least 90% of students 
report feeling that 
MCIA staff cares 
about them according 
to survey data 
collected in Spring 
2021 LCAP Survey. 


100% of students will 
report feeling safe at 
school, and 100% of 
students will report 
feeling that MCIA staff 
cares about them on 
school surveys to be 
completed by all 
students annually. 


8. Student
suspension rate


SY 2019-2020 
showed MCIA 


Maintain 0% student 
suspension rate as 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 18 of 49 







 


              
 


   
 


  
 


   
         


  
   


    
    


  


      
  


    
  


 


 
 


        
   


  
         


         
          


           
           


         
         


         
         


 
 


 
 
 


      


  
 
 


        


        
          


           
        
 


 
  


 
 
 


 
 


 
       


  
  


        


         
          


          
         


 
 
 


      


X


X


X


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


suspension rate was 
0%. 


measured by 
PowerSchool. 


9. Student
attendance rate.


MCIA student 
attendance rate was 
85% for January 2020 
as reflected in Power 
School (SIS). 


All students will 
maintain seat-time 
attendance of at least 
90% annually. 


Actions 


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
1 Provide external 


learning opportunities 
for students. 


External learning opportunities, such as field trips and guest 
presentations for students have been well attended. Teachers will 
plan field trips and guest presenters that enhance student learning and 
increase connectedness to school. Field trips now allow for virtual 
access, which can also contribute to learning goals. Academic 
counselors to provide workshops on career exploration, SEL, and 
other relevant topics. Curriculum, materials, and other software 
programs to be purchased to support these increased interventions. 


$11,000.00 Yes 


2 Provide 
Student/Parent 
Transportation 
Assistance 


Bus tickets/vouchers will be provided to students/parents whose 
families have mobility issues or economic challenges to attend MCIA 
or MCIA events. School staff will provide vouchers to those 
requesting and document the amount given individually and 
collectively. 


Title I 


$500.00 No 


3 Provide Social-
Emotional Learning 
Services 


To support improved student outcomes in academic performance and 
school engagement and close gaps on state and local measures, 
MCIA will create school environments that welcome and support all 
student populations. Provide staff resources to teach, model, and 


$13,900.00 Yes 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 19 of 49 







 


        
         


           
         


        
             


            
           


          
          


         
      


 
 


    
        


          
      


         
 


 
 


 
 


 
       


   
        


             
         


        
           


            
 


 
 


 
 


 
       


   
        


       
          


            
       


         
      


 
 


 
 
 


      


    
        


         
            


 
 


 
       


X


X


X


X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
practice social-emotional learning skills that support a positive climate 
for learning and work. All teachers will incorporate Digital Citizenship 
lessons to teach and model appropriate, responsible use of 
technology. Professional Development for teachers and instructional 
staff will address their own SEL needs and equip them to evaluate and 
support the needs of students. All teachers will teach, model and 
support SEL behaviors. Academic counselors to provide lessons on a 
variety of topics that affect social-emotional learning and better equip 
students to cope with challenges to academic achievement. School 
psychologist to present on resources, services, procedures and best 
practices for students needing SEL interventions. 


4 Host Annual School 
Events 


At least two events held annually to support greater school 
connections. Administrators, academic counselors, teachers, and 
other staff plan to make preparations to provide engaging 
opportunities 


$600.00 No 


5 Maintain School 
Facilities 


The link between student learning and desire to be at school is a well-
maintained campus that fosters student learning. MCIA staff 
maintains quality learning facilities by ensuring good communication 
with maintenance and facilities staff. Work orders are submitted and 
attended to in a timely manner, while prioritizing any that pose safety 
concerns. 


$44,648.00 No 


6 Decrease Chronic 
Absenteeism 


Understanding that academic success increases dramatically when 
students attend school, MCIA staff believe all students achieve when 
they attend regularly. Our goal is to decrease chronic absenteeism 
through effective home-school communication using positive phone 
calls, mailers, ParentSquare, parent meetings, and home visits by 
administrators, academic counselors, and school psychologist. 


$1,500.00 Yes 


7 Maintain a Safe 
School Environment 


When students feel physically, cognitively, and emotionally safe at 
school, they are able to optimize their learning. Increase home to 


No 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 20 of 49 







 


        
          


          
         


         
          


 
 


   
        


         
       
        


         
        


           
    


 
 


 
 


 
       


   
        


        
          


           
         


     
 


  
 
 
 


 
 


 
       


 


   
             


               
 


                    
 


            
 


                    
 


X


X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
school communication to through purchase of Stop It (safety reporting 
web-based application) and ParentSquare to allow for safe and orderly 
communication between the school and students or parents. 
Teachers will have instant translated communication with parents to 
share victories, concerns, or invitations for parents to school events. 


8 Maintain Suspension 
Rate 


Maintain zero suspensions by creating opportunities for students to 
increase connectedness to school. Regular communication with 
teachers, administrators, and families will help support students' 
needs. Behavioral concerns will be addressed and communicated 
swiftly. Parent conferences help ground communication between 
home and school, as well as student report cards, progress reporting 
and regular calls home. 


No 


9 Increase Attendance 
Rate 


Increase student attendance rates by celebrating and recognizing 
positive behavior through the use of incentives. Each teacher 
recognizes a student of the month on a monthly basis. Additionally, 
students with perfect attendance will be celebrated monthly with 
certificates and other school incentives. 


Title I 


$1,200.00 No 


Goal Analysis [2021-22]
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 21 of 49 







 


               
 


                    
 


                      
    


 


                    
 


                    
 


An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 22 of 49 







 


   
 


 
 


   
                  


         
 


          
 


                      
 


    
 


              
 


    
   


     


   
     


   
    


   
 


       
 


  
  


 


     
  


        


   
   
  


 


       
   
 


    
   
   


         


   
   


  
   


   
 


     
    


   
 


    
    


   
        


    
  


  


     
    


    
 


 


Goals and Actions 


Goal 
Goal # Description 


3 MCIA staff will have greater stakeholder participation and input by developing and fostering meaningful parent and family 
relationships. 


An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
Parental support is paramount to students' academic success. Public and Behavioral health partnerships 


Measuring and Reporting Results 
Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 


2023–24 
1. Number of All teachers maintain 100% of teachers will 
teachers and staff a daily call log in maintain 
maintaining a call-log. PowerSchool for 


each student on their 
caseload with daily 
entries. 


communication log 
entries in 
PowerSchool. 


2. Number of parents
attending school
events.


1 Parent attended 
"Coffee with the 
Principal and 
Counselor." 


Number of parents will 
continue to increase 
annually. 


3. Percentage of 50% of parents Increase parent 
parents using Parent participate in school participation on school 
Square as an surveys as surveys by 10% 
interactive tool. demonstrated in the 


Spring 2021 LCAP 
Survey. 


annually. 


4. Percentage of
parents of EL students
in parent advisory
committees.


Less than 10% parent 
participation on 
advisory committees. 


Parent participation 
for EL students will 
increase at least 10% 
annually. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 23 of 49 







 


 
 


        
   


  
        


          
          
          


          
        


          
   


 
        


 
 
 


 
 


 
       


   
   


   
        


            
           
           


         
         


         
         


             
           


           
            


          
         
            


          
       


          
             


             
           


          
  


 


 
 


 
       


X


X


Actions 


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
1 Documenting School 


to Home 
Communication 


Logging of communication in PowerSchool by teachers on a daily 
basis for students on their schedule. Administrators, counselors, and 
other support staff will also log communication with students on 
parents. Documentation will contribute to effective communication by 
all staff, especially administrators and academic counselors, while 
meeting with parents to discuss successes or concerns about their 
child's academic progress. 


Note: Included in teacher salaries in Goal #1. 


No 


2 Increase Attendance 
of Parents and 
Guardians to School 
Events 


Very low rates of parent involvement at MCIA have been shown in 
rates of completion on 2021 LCAP surveys (50% of MCIA parents), 
which were sent home and also accessible through Parent Square. To 
increase parent involvement, MCIA will do the following: Academic 
Counselors will use Parent Square app/website to promote, deliver, 
and translate their multiple college preparation, financial aide and 
parent seminar and workshop flyers. Nights specifically designed for 
our EL community will be a priority, with 15% of the MCIA student 
population being an EL students. Printed flyers in both English and 
Spanish will be distributed on site. MCIA academic counselor will use 
the parent surveys and follow-up contact to determine a course of at 
least 3 parent seminars and workshops throughout the year. MCIA 
teachers will continue to hold parent-teacher conferences at the 
beginning of the Spring semester as a follow-up to the initial meetings 
at enrollment. These conferences will be focused on i-Ready data 
growth, academic progress, attendance updates, and general 
academic planning. Open house and Family appreciation days will be 
hosted; one event in the fall and one in the spring. ParentSquare will 
also be used more prominently to survey and poll all parents on a 
regular basis. MCIA administration team will set poll parameters and 
the program director will disaggregate and disseminate the data from 
those polls. 


$1,000.00 No 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 24 of 49 







 


        
 


   
  


        


       
            


             
          


        
       


         
        


            
           


    
  


 
 
 


 
 


 
       


   
    


        


         
        


          
          


        
         


 
 


 
 


 
       


 


   
             


               
 


                    
 


            
 


                    
 


X


X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 


3 Promote School 
Communication with 
Families 


ParentSquare, which allows for two-way communication between 
school and home, and phone calls for school events and student 
recognition, such as student of the month will be used to contact all 
families. All communication will be translated to families' preferred 
languages, currently English and Spanish. Translations of 
announcements and documents through ParentSquare will also 
provide opportunities for parents to provide feedback through surveys 
distributed through ParentSquare. Document Tracking Services (DTS) 
is also contracted to submit plans such as, LCAP, SPSA, LCP, ELO, 
and others. DTS also allows for rapid, accurate translations to 
Spanish of all documents. 
Title I 


$2,500.00 No 


4 Increase feedback 
from Parents of EL 
Students 


MCIA will increase participation of EL students' parents through 
personal invitations via phone calls by administrators, academic 
counselors, or other support staff. Parent consultation and feedback 
meetings for the purpose of EL reclassification will also provide 
opportunities for parents to provide feedback. ParentSquare 
translates communications to the language of EL students' parents. 


No 


Goal Analysis [2021-22]
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 25 of 49 







 


               
 


                    
 


                      
    


 


                    
 


                    
 


An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 26 of 49 







Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students [2021-22] 


Percentage to Increase or Improve Services Increased Apportionment based on the Enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students 


26.63% $527,043 


 


 


          
   


 


                   
   


          
 


                  
 


 
  


 


                        
                       


      
 


 
 


                     
 


 


                     
                    
                   


                    
                    


                
                       


                      
                   


                      
           


 
                


                     
                       


startcollapse


The Budgeted Expenditures for Actions identified as Contributing may be found in the Increased or Improved Services Expenditures
Table. 


Required Descriptions 
For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of 
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in
meeting the goals for these students. 


A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required. 


The actions included in the LCAP are marked as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement for foster youth, English 
learners, and socio-economically disadvantaged students are being provided on a site wide basis and are consistent with 5 CCR Section 
15496(b). As described in the LCAP instructions, the district has ensured they are principally directed towards Unduplicated Pupils and 
effective in meeting their needs by. Using the calculation tool provided by the state, Madera County Independent Academy has calculated 
that it will received $527,043 in supplemental and concentration funding under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF). In determining 
the need for increased services for MCIA's Unduplicated Pupils (socio-economically disadvantaged, English learners, foster youth), MCIA 
examined valuable data for objective indicators of academic risk. School closures in Spring 2020 did not allow for state assessments or local 
end of year summative assessments, so the most recent local data from i-Ready for English Language Arts and mathematics was used for 
the LCAP. Input from stakeholders was also a significant consideration in determining students' needs, actions, and potential effectiveness 
of this plan. Indicators for unduplicated student groups are monitored and reported internally and with stakeholders to ensure the focus and 
determination of effectiveness remains centered on the outcomes for these students. 


In determining the need for increased services for MCIA's Unduplicated Pupils (socio-economically disadvantaged, English learners, foster 
youth), MCIA examined valuable data for objective indicators of academic risk. Because the assessments that would normally be given in 
the Spring of 2020 were not able to reliably conducted, the most recent local data from i-Ready for English Language Arts and mathematics 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 27 of 49 







 


                  
                   


          
 


                        
                          


      
 


                    
                          


                       
                      


                     
           


 
                       


                      
                   


                       
                    


                     
             


 
                       
                   


                
                        


                      
                   
                    


   
 


                     
                      


                    
                   


                        
                     


was used. Input from stakeholders was also a significant consideration in determining students' needs, actions, and potential effectiveness. 
Indicators for unduplicated student groups are monitored and reported internally and with stakeholders to ensure the focus and determination 
of effectiveness remains centered on the outcomes for these students. 


2020-21 ELA i-Ready Diagnostic #2 data showed that 84% of MCIA students are at least one below grade below grade level, while 90% are 
at least one year behind grade level in math. Since 87% of MCIA students are unduplicated pupils, increased efforts will be made to support 
the academic needs of these students. 


Writing of this plan also included referencing the available research on learning loss, which indicated that "Preliminary COVID slide estimates 
suggest students will return in the fall of 2020 with roughly 70% of the learning gains in reading relative to a typical school year. However, in 
mathematics, students are likely to show much smaller learning gains, returning with less than 50% of the learning gains and in some grades, 
nearly a full year behind what we would observe in normal conditions." (NWEA, Collaborative for Student Growth, April, 2020). The details of 
the required justifications for how MCIA is increasing and improving services for the unduplicated student groups is contained in the Goals, 
Actions and Services section of this plan. The contributing titles are: 


Goal 1, Action #1-- To increase the academic proficiency of MCIA students, 87% of which are SED, students will be assessed using i-Ready 
assessments for ELA and math throughout the year. The prescriptive lessons provided by i-Ready will be a regular component of weekly 
assignments, and additional support will be provided through Instructional Assistants, who will facilitate lessons to address subskill areas of 
growth. Students will have access to a variety of in-person individual and small group instruction. In a policy brief from D.W. Schanzenbach 
(2014, see attached), the author states that "Smaller classes are particularly effective at raising achievement levels of low income and 
minority children. With our high concentration of SED (low income) and 78% of our students identifying as Hispanic or African American, 
small group acceleration lessons will help MCIA students progress and achieve grade-level proficiency. 


Goal 1, Action #3-- To meet the diverse learning needs of MCIA students and the deficiencies they currently possess, see data in attached 
files, increased and continuing professional development needs to be provided to all staff. In the article, Raising Student Achievement 
Through Professional Development (see attached) from Generation Ready, effective professional development is: 1) Planned over time, 
sustained, rigorous and embedded within the context of the school; 2) Uses data to directly link to the school goals; 3) Is evidence-based and 
data driven both to guide improvement and measure impact; and 4) Is differentiated and ensures an intensive focus on the teaching learning 
relationship. Keeping in mind that 90% of MCIA students are SED students, a practice of continued and responsive professional 
development provided by county office curriculum and instruction content specialists and site leaders will inform and address the needs of 
our greatest population. 


Goal 1, Action #7-- Currently, the SED student population for MCIA has no students meeting or exceeding standards on the state 
assessment in either ELA or Mathematics. To address this issue, MCIA will take a multi-faceted approach to meeting the diverse needs of 
this student group. Data from Interim Assessment Blocks (IABs) will also be used to guide instruction and drive professional development 
planning in conjunction with evidence from local indicators and formative and summative assessments, including i-Ready data. This data will 
be used to provide access and direction for students in Acceleration Labs for ELA and Mathematics to improve their skills and practices in a 
structured and prescriptive manner through the i-Ready platform. As is stated above in reference to PD, evidence and data both guide 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 28 of 49 







 


                     
                     


 
                        


                    
                      


                         
                     


                        
                  


             
 


                       
                      
                   


          
 


                      
                     


                    
                  


                    
                       


  
 


                      
                    


                    
                  


                       
                     


                     
                    


                      
     


 
                      


                      
                     


improvement and measure impact. Both of those criteria are met in this manner. Instructional Assistants will be assigned to each 
Acceleration Lab and will manage the data and practices based on the data from i-Ready and direction from the student's teacher. 


Goal 1, Action #10-- Based on local survey data of parents and students at MCIA, access to personal technology beyond a cell phone was 
limited. MCIA decided to used COVID-19 relief funds to bridge the technology divide for SED students lacking access to appropriate 
technology and internet connectivity. This trend was not just limited to Madera county, but far further. In a Pew Research article (see 
attached), it was noted that SED students tend to rely on phone use due to a lack of access computer and home broadband. With our 
continued move to online curriculum and supports, the need for increased technological access for our students is necessary to help bridge 
the digital divide they are opposite of. To do this, PTC provides any student in need a Chromebook and Verizon Hotspot for internet access. 
This allows for increased instructional effectiveness by providing access to digital curriculum, peer to peer communication, opportunities for 
learning more about digital citizenship, and use of online formative and summative assessments. 


Goal 1, Action #11-- MCIA will provide credentialed teachers to keep the student to teacher ratio below the LEA average of 30:1. Reducing 
student to teacher ratio, as cited above, benefits the 87% SED and 77% students of color. Those lower ratios provide opportunities for 
teachers to build stronger connections with students, help provide insights into their learning needs and motivations, and be more 
instructionally agile and responsive based on formative and summative assessments. 


Goal 2, Action #1-- MCIA will provide external learning opportunities for students to build a foundation for closing learning gaps by providing 
common experiences. In a study led by James Banks, see attached, SED students lack the same enrichment experiences as their middle 
and upper class peers. The suggestion is "schools should provide all students with opportunities to participate in extra- and co-curricular 
activities that develop knowledge, skills, and attitudes that increase academic achievement and foster positive interracial relationships." With 
87% of MCIA students being SED, these opportunities are vital to addressing learning gaps. We will provide external learning opportunities 
that include in person and virtual trips; bring in guest presenters of a variety of topics; provide experiences in career exploration, SEL, and 
college experiences. 


Goal 2, Action #3-- The COVID-19 Pandemic shut down schools initially and when they reopened, they were nothing like what students have 
experienced before. The drastic changes that students, families, and school staff have experienced have taken a toll on all students' social-
emotional well-being. In a 2020 survey done by Kaiser Family Foundation, young adults report the greatest percentage (56% of respondents) 
of anxiety and depressive disorders. Mental Health care facilitators report having doubled psychological evaluations in minors since the 
pandemic began. The 2021-22 school year is a mystery about the social-emotional well being students will arrive with in the fall. To address 
this, MCIA will continue to consult with the local county behavioral health department for professional development for staff to help identify 
students under duress. This will help make referenced notifications to the school psychologist for support and resources. Mental health is a 
focus, but related concerns are substance use and abuse (Ingoglia, 2020), anxiety and depression, suicide and prevention, anger and grief 
management, and access to counseling to overcome these issues also may need to be addressed. Historically, SED students have the least 
access to mental health services. 


Goal 2, Action #6-- Unduplicated pupils have some of the highest high school dropout rates. In addition, chronic absenteeism contributes to 
students not graduating with a high school diploma with their class. In order to decrease chronic absenteeism, MCIA will create more 
opportunities for students and families to build stronger relationships with school staff. Efforts to increase home to school communication will 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 29 of 49 







 


                     
                     
                   


                 
                     
    


 
                    


                  
                      


                 
                       


                    
                     


                      
                       


                    
         


         
 


include opportunities for parents to participate in various advisory committees, and student recognition ceremonies. In a study led by James 
Banks, see attached, SED students lack the same enrichment experiences as their middle and upper class peers. The suggestion is "schools 
should provide all students with opportunities to participate in extra- and co-curricular activities that develop knowledge, skills, and attitudes 
that increase academic achievement and foster positive interracial relationships" to create greater connectedness to school and reduce 
absences. With 87% of MCIA students being SED, these opportunities are vital to addressing learning gaps to minimize factors that 
contribute to poor attendance. 


All actions and expenditures of funds marked as contributing to increased or improved services were developed focusing on the needs, 
conditions, or circumstances of our unduplicated population with further consideration of the actions design, content, method, and/or location 
that best meets the identified needs. All actions were developed using a careful analysis of data and input from our stakeholders. These 
contributing actions are principally directed toward our unduplicated student population to help Madera County Independent Academy be 
effective in meeting the identified LCAP goals and the identified needs of the unduplicated student groups. In the goals section of this plan, 
each action marked "yes" for contributing contains a detailed explanation of how that action is directed toward the unduplicated student 
population and effective in helping close equity and performance gaps, and meet the goals of MCIA. We incorporated the language required 
by 5 CCR Section 15496 into the description of each specific actin's language because each response is unique and specific to each 
contributing action in this plan. Our intention in doing this is to increase transparency for stakeholders when reading this plan so they can 
better understand the rationale behind each unique site-wide action. These actions and services are being performed on a schoolwide basis 
in order to increased their overall efficiency and effectiveness. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 30 of 49 







 


 
   


 
           


          
 


  


 


     


            


 
                 


       
          
          


    
    


          


 
  


  


               
    


          


   
  


       
          
          


    
    


          


 
   


 


                 
   


        


   
  


              
   
         


 
  


  


              
    


     
        


 
   


 


               
    


           


 
   


 


               
         


  
  


 


                     
     


                
         


 
   


 


Total Expenditures Table 


LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 


$632,961.00 $35,000.00 $306,605.00 $974,566.00 


Totals: Total Personnel Total Non-personnel 


Totals: $651,015.00 $323,551.00 


Goal Action # Student Group(s) Title LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 
1 1 XEnglish Learners 


XFoster Youth 
XLow Income 


Use i-Ready Assessments to 
measure grade-level proficiency in 
ELA and Math. 


$182,902.00 $25,277.00 $208,179.00 


1 2 XAll Use i-Ready Assessments to 
measure grade-level proficiency in 
ELA and Math 


$99,200.00 $99,200.00 


1 3 XEnglish Learners 
XFoster Youth 
XLow Income 


Use i-Ready Assessments to 
measure grade-level proficiency in 
ELA and Math 


$15,920.00 $15,920.00 


1 4 XAll Use LAS Links and i-Ready to 
increase EL Student 
Reclassification 


$108,946.00 $108,946.00 


1 5 XAll Professional Development for 
Certificated and Classified 
Instructional Staff 


$1,000.00 $70,182.00 $71,182.00 


1 6 XAll Providing Instruction and 
Instructional Materials to Increase 
Student Achievement in ELA and 
Math 


$219,017.00 $219,017.00 


1 7 XLow Income Provide Instruction and 
Instructional Materials to Increase 
SED Student Achievement in ELA 


$2,000.00 $2,000.00 


1 8 XAll Provide and Purchase Accelerated 
Reader Program 


$10,000.00 $35,000.00 $45,000.00 


1 9 XAll Retain Highly Effective Teachers 


1 10 XLow Income Provide Technology Access for 
SED Students 


$11,580.00 $11,580.00 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 31 of 49 







 


                 
                 


            
 


   
 


               
          


 
   


 


             
         


   
  


               
        


 
   


 


                       
   


 


                      
   


 


            
          


          
   


 


               
        


     


                     
     


                      
   


 


               
        


     


               
           


 
   


 


              
         


   
  


                
         


     


 


Goal Action # Student Group(s) Title LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 
1 11 XLow Income Maintain Low Student to Teacher 


Ratio by Adding a Teacher 
$116,694.00 $116,694.00 


2 1 XLow Income Provide external learning 
opportunities for students. 


$11,000.00 $11,000.00 


2 2 XAll Provide Student/Parent 
Transportation Assistance 


$500.00 $500.00 


2 3 XLow Income Provide Social-Emotional Learning 
Services 


$13,900.00 $13,900.00 


2 4 XAll Host Annual School Events $600.00 $600.00 


2 5 XAll Maintain School Facilities $44,648.00 $44,648.00 


2 6 XFoster Youth 
XLow Income 


Decrease Chronic Absenteeism $1,500.00 $1,500.00 


2 7 XAll Maintain a Safe School 
Environment 


2 8 XAll Maintain Suspension Rate 


2 9 XAll Increase Attendance Rate $1,200.00 $1,200.00 


3 1 XAll Documenting School to Home 
Communication 


3 2 XAll Increase Attendance of Parents 
and Guardians to School Events 


$1,000.00 $1,000.00 


3 3 XAll Promote School Communication 
with Families 


$2,500.00 $2,500.00 


3 4 XAll Increase feedback from Parents of 
EL Students 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 32 of 49 







 


 
   


 


        


           


            


            


           
 
 


       
  


     


    
  


  
   


  


                
         


         


 
  


    
  


  
   


  


                
         


         


 
  


    
  


   
  


   


                 
 


  


    
   


 


                 
 


  


     
    


   


                 
 


  


    
  


  


                 
 


  


   
  


 


                 
 


  


Contributing Expenditures Tables 


Totals by Type Total LCFF Funds Total Funds 


Total: $355,496.00 $380,773.00 


LEA-wide Total: $0.00 $0.00 


Limited Total: $0.00 $0.00 


Schoolwide Total: $355,496.00 $380,773.00 


Goal Action # Action Title Scope Unduplicated
Student Group(s) 


Location LCFF Funds Total Funds 


1 1 Use i-Ready 
Assessments to 
measure grade-level 
proficiency in ELA 
and Math. 


XSchoolwide XEnglish Learners 
XFoster Youth 
XLow Income 


$182,902.00 $208,179.00 


1 3 Use i-Ready 
Assessments to 
measure grade-level 
proficiency in ELA 
and Math 


XSchoolwide XEnglish Learners 
XFoster Youth 
XLow Income 


$15,920.00 $15,920.00 


1 7 Provide Instruction 
and Instructional 
Materials to Increase 
SED Student 
Achievement in ELA 


XSchoolwide XLow Income $2,000.00 $2,000.00 


1 XSchoolwide 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 33 of 49 


Maintain Low Student 
to Teacher Ratio by 
Adding a Teacher 


XSchoolwide XLow Income 


Provide external 
learning opportunities 
for students. 


XSchoolwide XLow Income 


Provide Social-
Emotional Learning 
Services 


XSchoolwide XLow Income 


$11,580.00 
Access for SED 
Students 


10 Provide Technology XLow Income 


1 11 $116,694.00 


2 1 $11,000.00 


2 3 $13,900.00 


$11,580.00 


$116,694.00 


$11,000.00 


$13,900.00 







Goal Action # Action Title Scope Unduplicated
Student Group(s) 


Location LCFF Funds Total Funds 


2 6 Decrease Chronic 
Absenteeism 


XSchoolwide XFoster Youth 
XLow Income 


$1,500.00 $1,500.00 


 


       
  


     


    
 


                 
         


 
  


 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 34 of 49 







 


 
      


 
             


 


  
  


  
     


  
   


 
    


 
   


 


      
 


       


           


 
 


Annual Update Table Year 1 [2021-22] 


Annual update of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


Last Year's 
Goal # 


Last Year's 
Action # Prior Action/Service Title 


Contributed to 
Increased or Improved


Services? 
Last Year's Total Planned 


Expenditures 
Total Estimated Actual 


Expenditures 


Totals: Planned Expenditure Total Estimated Actual Total 


Totals: 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 35 of 49 







 


 
 


  


  


   


            


                     
                  


 


   
                     


                     
                     


           


                 
                 


                     
               


                   
                 


                      
 


                    
                 


                    
            


                   
    


Instructions 
Plan Summary 


Stakeholder Engagement 


Goals and Actions 


Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students 


For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the LCAP template, please contact the local COE, or the 
California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at 
lcff@cde.ca.gov. 


Introduction and Instructions 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) requires LEAs to engage their local stakeholders in an annual planning process to evaluate their 
progress within eight state priority areas encompassing all statutory metrics (COEs have ten state priorities). LEAs document the results of this 
planning process in the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) using the template adopted by the State Board of Education. 


The LCAP development process serves three distinct, but related functions: 


 Comprehensive Strategic Planning: The process of developing and annually updating the LCAP supports comprehensive strategic planning
(California Education Code [EC] 52064(e)(1)). Strategic planning that is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and learning
performance data. Local educational agencies (LEAs) should continually evaluate the hard choices they make about the use of limited resources to
meet student and community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all students.


 Meaningful Stakeholder Engagement: The LCAP development process should result in an LCAP that reflects decisions made through meaningful
stakeholder engagement (EC 52064(e)(1)). Local stakeholders possess valuable perspectives and insights about an LEA's programs and services.
Effective strategic planning will incorporate these perspectives and insights in order to identify potential goals and actions to be included in the
LCAP.


 Accountability and Compliance: The LCAP serves an important accountability function because aspects of the LCAP template require LEAs to
show that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, most notably:


o Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students in proportion to
the amount of additional funding those students generate under LCFF (EC 52064(b)(4-6)).


o Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the statutory priority areas and statutory metrics (EC
52064(b)(1) & (2)).


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 36 of 49 



mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov





 


               


                       
                 


                     
                        


                       
                       


                     
      


                   
                 


                     
                   


      


                         
                   


                       
  


                      
       


                     
                  
              


                         
              


                   
                    


     


o Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals (EC 52064(b)(7)).


The LCAP template, like each LEA’s final adopted LCAP, is a document, not a process. LEAs must use the template to memorialize the 
outcome of their LCAP development process, which should: (a) reflect comprehensive strategic planning (b) through meaningful engagement 
with stakeholders that (c) meets legal requirements, as reflected in the final adopted LCAP. The sections included within the LCAP template 
do not and cannot reflect the full development process, just as the LCAP template itself is not intended as a stakeholder engagement tool. 


If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of education and the governing board of 
the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single LCAP consistent with the requirements in EC sections 52060, 52062, 
52066, 52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of schools) all 
budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 


The revised LCAP template for the 2021–22, 2022–23, and 2023–24 school years reflects statutory changes made through Assembly Bill 
1840 (Committee on Budget), Chapter 243, Statutes of 2018. These statutory changes enhance transparency regarding expenditures on 
actions included in the LCAP, including actions that contribute to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for foster youth, 
English learners, and low-income students, and to streamline the information presented within the LCAP to make adopted LCAPs more 
accessible for stakeholders and the public. 


At its most basic, the adopted LCAP should attempt to distill not just what the LEA is doing, but also allow stakeholders to understand why, 
and whether those strategies are leading to improved opportunities and outcomes for students. LEAs are strongly encouraged to use 
language and a level of detail in their adopted LCAPs intended to be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s diverse stakeholders and the 
broader public. 


In developing and finalizing the LCAP for adoption, LEAs are encouraged to keep the following overarching frame at the forefront of the 
strategic planning and stakeholder engagement functions: 


Given present performance across the state priorities and on indicators in the California School Dashboard, how is the LEA using its 
budgetary resources to respond to student and community needs, and address any performance gaps, including by meeting its 
obligation to increase or improve services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students? 


LEAs are encouraged to focus on a set of metrics or a set of actions that the LEA believes, based on input gathered from stakeholders, 
research, and experience, will have the biggest impact on behalf of its students. 


These instructions address the requirements for each section of the LCAP, but may include information about effective practices when 
developing the LCAP and completing the LCAP itself. Additionally, information is included at the beginning of each section emphasizing the 
purpose that each section serves. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 37 of 49 







 


  


 
                   


                       
                       


 
   


                   
                    


              


                    
                   


                         
                    
 


                      
                         


                     
                       
                   


              


                   
            


                


                      
                


       


                  
         


Plan Summary 


Purpose 
A well-developed Plan Summary section provides a meaningful context for the LCAP. This section provides information about an LEA’s 
community as well as relevant information about student needs and performance. In order to provide a meaningful context for the rest of the 
LCAP, the content of this section should be clearly and meaningfully related to the content included in the subsequent sections of the LCAP. 


Requirements and Instructions 
General Information – Briefly describe the students and community. For example, information about an LEA in terms of geography, 
enrollment, or employment, the number and size of specific schools, recent community challenges, and other such information as an LEA 
wishes to include can enable a reader to more fully understand an LEA’s LCAP. 


Reflections: Successes – Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, and any other information, what progress is the LEA 
most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success? This may include identifying specific examples of how past 
increases or improvements in services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students have led to improved performance for these 
students. 


Reflections: Identified Need – Referring to the Dashboard, identify: (a) any state indicator for which overall performance was in the “Red” or 
“Orange” performance category or any local indicator where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating AND (b) 
any state indicator for which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. 
What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas of low performance and performance gaps? Other needs may be identified 
using locally collected data including data collected to inform the self-reflection tools and reporting local indicators on the Dashboard. 


LCAP Highlights – Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 


Comprehensive Support and Improvement – An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 


● Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI. 


● Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA has or will support the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included 
a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed 
through the implementation of the CSI plan. 


● Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of 
the CSI plan to support student and school improvement. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 38 of 49 







 


  
 
                


                     
               


            


                      
                   


                    


                   
                   


                      
                     


                    
                   


                  
                 


                
                  


   
                      


              


     
            


                   
     


                   
         


Stakeholder Engagement 
Purpose 
Significant and purposeful engagement of parents, students, educators, and other stakeholders, including those representing the student 
groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Consistent with statute, such stakeholder 
engagement should support comprehensive strategic planning, accountability, and improvement across the state priorities and locally 
identified priorities (EC 52064(e)(1)). Stakeholder engagement is an ongoing, annual process. 


This section is designed to reflect how stakeholder engagement influenced the decisions reflected in the adopted LCAP. The goal is to allow 
stakeholders that participated in the LCAP development process and the broader public understand how the LEA engaged stakeholders and 
the impact of that engagement. LEAs are encouraged to keep this goal in the forefront when completing this section. 


Statute and regulations specify the stakeholder groups that school districts and COEs must consult when developing the LCAP: teachers, 
principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the LEA, parents, and students. Before adopting the LCAP, school 
districts and COEs must share it with the Parent Advisory Committee and, if applicable, to its English Learner Parent Advisory Committee. The 
superintendent is required by statute to respond in writing to the comments received from these committees. School districts and COEs must 
also consult with the special education local plan area administrator(s) when developing the LCAP. Statute requires charter schools to consult 
with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in developing the LCAP. The LCAP should also be 
shared with, and LEAs should request input from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., schoolsite councils, English Learner 
Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between schoolsite and district-level goals and actions. 


Information and resources that support effective stakeholder engagement, define student consultation, and provide the requirements for 
advisory group composition, can be found under Resources on the following web page of the CDE’s website: https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/. 


Requirements and Instructions 
Below is an excerpt from the 2018–19 Guide for Annual Audits of K–12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, which is 
provided to highlight the legal requirements for stakeholder engagement in the LCAP development process: 


Local Control and Accountability Plan:
For county offices of education and school districts only, verify the LEA: 


a) Presented the local control and accountability plan to the parent advisory committee in accordance with Education Code section 
52062(a)(1) or 52068(a)(1), as appropriate. 


b) If applicable, presented the local control and accountability plan to the English learner parent advisory committee, in accordance 
with Education Code section 52062(a)(2) or 52068(a)(2), as appropriate. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 39 of 49 



https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/





 


                   
                  
  


                  


                    
   


                   


                     
                       


                     
                  


            


                   
              


                 


                    
                      


                     
                     


                       
 


               
          
           
                 
         
         
             
              
            
       


c) Notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit comments regarding specific actions and expenditures proposed to
be included in the local control and accountability plan in accordance with Education Code section 52062(a)(3) or 52068(a)(3),
as appropriate.


d) Held at least one public hearing in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(1) or 52068(b)(1), as appropriate.


e) Adopted the local control and accountability plan in a public meeting in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(2) or
52068(b)(2), as appropriate.


Prompt 1: “A summary of the stakeholder process and how the stakeholder engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP.” 


Describe the stakeholder engagement process used by the LEA to involve stakeholders in the development of the LCAP, including, at a 
minimum, describing how the LEA met its obligation to consult with all statutorily required stakeholder groups as applicable to the type of LEA. 
A sufficient response to this prompt must include general information about the timeline of the process and meetings or other engagement 
strategies with stakeholders. A response may also include information about an LEA’s philosophical approach to stakeholder engagement. 


Prompt 2: “A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.” 


Describe and summarize the stakeholder feedback provided by specific stakeholders. A sufficient response to this prompt will indicate ideas, 
trends, or inputs that emerged from an analysis of the feedback received from stakeholders. 


Prompt 3: “A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.” 


A sufficient response to this prompt will provide stakeholders and the public clear, specific information about how the stakeholder engagement 
process influenced the development of the LCAP. The response must describe aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by or developed in 
response to the stakeholder feedback described in response to Prompt 2. This may include a description of how the LEA prioritized 
stakeholder requests within the context of the budgetary resources available or otherwise prioritized areas of focus within the LCAP. For the 
purposes of this prompt, “aspects” of an LCAP that may have been influenced by stakeholder input can include, but are not necessarily limited 
to: 


 Inclusion of a goal or decision to pursue a Focus Goal (as described below)
 Inclusion of metrics other than the statutorily required metrics
 Determination of the desired outcome on one or more metrics
 Inclusion of performance by one or more student groups in the Measuring and Reporting Results subsection
 Inclusion of action(s) or a group of actions
 Elimination of action(s) or group of actions
 Changes to the level of proposed expenditures for one or more actions
 Inclusion of action(s) as contributing to increased or improved services for unduplicated services
 Determination of effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the goal
 Determination of material differences in expenditures


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 40 of 49 







 


                   
           


   
 


                      
                      


                         
                    


                      
    


                       
                  


             


   
                     


                     
                 


                      


                          
                


                         


                      
                


             


  
                      


                       
                        


  


 Determination of changes made to a goal for the ensuing LCAP year based on the annual update process 
 Determination of challenges or successes in the implementation of actions 


Goals and Actions 
Purpose 
Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to stakeholders what the LEA plans to accomplish, what the LEA plans to do in order to 
accomplish the goal, and how the LEA will know when it has accomplished the goal. A goal statement, associated metrics and expected 
outcomes, and the actions included in the goal should be in alignment. The explanation for why the LEA included a goal is an opportunity for 
LEAs to clearly communicate to stakeholders and the public why, among the various strengths and areas for improvement highlighted by 
performance data and strategies and actions that could be pursued, the LEA decided to pursue this goal, and the related metrics, expected 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures. 


A well-developed goal can be focused on the performance relative to a metric or metrics for all students, a specific student group(s), narrowing 
performance gaps, or implementing programs or strategies expected to impact outcomes. LEAs should assess the performance of their 
student groups when developing goals and the related actions to achieve such goals. 


Requirements and Instructions 
LEAs should prioritize the goals, specific actions, and related expenditures included within the LCAP within one or more state priorities. LEAs 
should consider performance on the state and local indicators, including their locally collected and reported data for the local indicators that 
are included in the Dashboard in determining whether and how to prioritize its goals within the LCAP. 


In order to support prioritization of goals, the LCAP template provides LEAs with the option of developing three different kinds of goals: 


 Focus Goal: A Focus Goal is relatively more concentrated in scope and may focus on a fewer number of metrics to measure improvement. A Focus 
Goal statement will be time bound and make clear how the goal is to be measured. 


 Broad Goal: A Broad Goal is relatively less concentrated in its scope and may focus on improving performance across a wide range of metrics. 


 Maintenance of Progress Goal: A Maintenance of Progress Goal includes actions that may be ongoing without significant changes and allows an 
LEA to track performance on any metrics not addressed in the other goals of the LCAP. 


At a minimum, the LCAP must address all LCFF priorities and associated metrics. 


Focus Goal(s)
Goal Description: The description provided for a Focus Goal must be specific, measurable, and time bound. An LEA develops a Focus Goal 
to address areas of need that may require or benefit from a more specific and data intensive approach. The Focus Goal can explicitly 
reference the metric(s) by which achievement of the goal will be measured and the time frame according to which the LEA expects to achieve 
the goal. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 41 of 49 







 


                       
                      


                  
  


  
                        


                   
                     


                          
     


                       
      


    
                       


                          
                       


                   


                      


    
                       


                  
   


                          
                          


        


                     
                   


                       
                  


          


     


Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal. An explanation must be 
based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data. LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including 
relevant consultation with stakeholders. LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to pursue a 
focus goal. 


Broad Goal 
Goal Description: Describe what the LEA plans to achieve through the actions included in the goal. The description of a broad goal will be 
clearly aligned with the expected measurable outcomes included for the goal. The goal description organizes the actions and expected 
outcomes in a cohesive and consistent manner. A goal description is specific enough to be measurable in either quantitative or qualitative 
terms. A broad goal is not as specific as a focus goal. While it is specific enough to be measurable, there are many different metrics for 
measuring progress toward the goal. 


Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA developed this goal and how the actions and metrics grouped 
together will help achieve the goal. 


Maintenance of Progress Goal
Goal Description: Describe how the LEA intends to maintain the progress made in the LCFF State Priorities not addressed by the other goals 
in the LCAP. Use this type of goal to address the state priorities and applicable metrics not addressed within the other goals in the LCAP. The 
state priorities and metrics to be addressed in this section are those for which the LEA, in consultation with stakeholders, has determined to 
maintain actions and monitor progress while focusing implementation efforts on the actions covered by other goals in the LCAP. 


Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain how the actions will sustain the progress exemplified by the related metrics. 


Measuring and Reporting Results:
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs are encouraged to 
identify metrics for specific student groups, as appropriate, including expected outcomes that would reflect narrowing of any existing 
performance gaps. 


Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year 
of the three-year plan. LEAs may use data as reported on the 2019 Dashboard for the baseline of a metric only if that data represents the 
most recent available (e.g. high school graduation rate). 


Using the most recent data available may involve reviewing data the LEA is preparing for submission to the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS) or data that the LEA has recently submitted to CALPADS. Because final 2020–2021 outcomes on 
some metrics may not be computable at the time the 2021–24 LCAP is adopted (e.g. graduation rate, suspension rate), the most recent data 
available may include a point in time calculation taken each year on the same date for comparability purposes. 


The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. 


Complete the table as follows: 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 42 of 49 







 


           


                     
                  


                       
       


                       
       


                       
                     


            


                       
           


  


● Metric: Indicate how progress is being measured using a metric.


● Baseline: Enter the baseline when completing the LCAP for 2021–22. As described above, the baseline is the most recent data
associated with a metric. Indicate the school year to which the data applies, consistent with the instructions above.


● Year 1 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2022–23, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the
data applies, consistent with the instructions above.


● Year 2 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2023–24, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the
data applies, consistent with the instructions above.


● Year 3 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2024–25, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. The 2024–25 LCAP will be the first year in the next three-year cycle. Completing
this column will be part of the Annual Update for that year.


● Desired Outcome for 2023-24: When completing the first year of the LCAP, enter the desired outcome for the relevant metric the LEA
expects to achieve by the end of the 2023–24 LCAP year.


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 43 of 49 







 


            


           
  


   
 


  
    


  
  


 


  
    


  
  


 


  
    


  
  


   
  


  
    


  
  


   
  


  
    


  
  


   
  


  
    


  
  


 


                       
                          


                     
                      
       


                        
                     


                   
                           


                     
                      


 


                  
                     


             


                  
                   


  


    


Timeline for completing the “Measuring and Reporting Results” part of the Goal. 


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome 


for Year 3 
(2023-24) 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021– 
22. 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021– 
22. 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2022– 
23. Leave blank 
until then. 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2023– 
24. Leave blank 
until then. 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2024– 
25. Leave blank 
until then. 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021– 
22. 


The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative; but at minimum, an LEA’s LCAP must include goals that are measured using all of the 
applicable metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA. To the extent a state priority does not 
specify one or more metrics (e.g., implementation of state academic content and performance standards), the LEA must identify a metric to 
use within the LCAP. For these state priorities, LEAs are encouraged to use metrics based on or reported through the relevant self-reflection 
tool for local indicators within the Dashboard. 


Actions: Enter the action number. Provide a short title for the action. This title will also appear in the expenditure tables. Provide a description 
of the action. Enter the total amount of expenditures associated with this action. Budgeted expenditures from specific fund sources will be 
provided in the summary expenditure tables. Indicate whether the action contributes to meeting the increase or improved services requirement 
as described in the Increased or Improved Services section using a “Y” for Yes or an “N” for No. (Note: for each such action offered on an 
LEA-wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA will need to provide additional information in the Increased or Improved Summary Section to address 
the requirements in California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Section 15496(b) in the Increased or Improved Services Section of the 
LCAP). 


Actions for English Learners: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant English learner student 
subgroup must include specific actions in the LCAP related to, at a minimum, the language acquisition programs, as defined in EC 
Section 306, provided to students and professional development activities specific to English learners. 


Actions for Foster Youth: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant Foster Youth student 
subgroup are encouraged to include specific actions in the LCAP designed to meet needs specific to Foster Youth students. 


Goal Analysis: 


Enter the LCAP Year 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 44 of 49 







 


                   
         


                    
                   


                      


                
            


                       
                       
                        


                       
                       


                     
 


                        
              


          
   


 
                 


                        
                 


                     
                


   
          


                       
                          
    


Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective in 
achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed. 


● Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and 
successes experienced with the implementation process. This must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned 
action or implemented a planned action in a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP. 


● Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures do 
not need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required. 


● Describe the effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. In some cases, not all 
actions in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal. When responding to this 
prompt, LEAs may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the context of performance on a 
single metric or group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). Grouping actions with metrics will allow for 
more robust analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified set of metrics is working and increase transparency 
for stakeholders. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach when goals include multiple actions and metrics that are not closely 
associated. 


● Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable. 


Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students 
Purpose 
A well-written Increased or Improved Services section provides stakeholders with a comprehensive description, within a single dedicated 
section, of how an LEA plans to increase or improved services for its unduplicated students as compared to all students and how LEA-wide or 
schoolwide actions identified for this purpose meet regulatory requirements. Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be 
sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of stakeholders to facilitate their ability to provide input. An LEA’s description in this 
section must align with the actions included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing. 


Requirements and Instructions 
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. 


When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, copy the “Increased or Improved Services” section and enter the appropriate LCAP year. 
Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for the relevant LCAP year. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three 
years within the LCAP. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 45 of 49 







 


                   
                      


                 
                     


  


                      
                    


           


                     
                      


                      
                 


                    
         


            


                     
  


                


                 


                     
                         
                  


                     
                  


                   
                 


                     
                      


Percentage to Increase or Improve Services: Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 


Increased Apportionment based on the enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students: Specify the estimate 
of the amount of funds apportioned on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated pupils for the LCAP year. 


Required Descriptions: 


For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an 
explanation of (1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how 
these actions are effective in meeting the goals for these students. 


For each action included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement for unduplicated 
pupils and provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA must include an explanation consistent with 5 CCR Section 15496(b). For 
any such actions continued into the 2021–24 LCAP from the 2017–2020 LCAP, the LEA must determine whether or not the action was 
effective as expected, and this determination must reflect evidence of outcome data or actual implementation to date. 


Principally Directed and Effective: An LEA demonstrates how an action is principally directed towards and effective in meeting the LEA’s 
goals for unduplicated students when the LEA explains how: 


● It considers the needs, conditions, or circumstances of its unduplicated pupils; 


● The action, or aspect(s) of the action (including, for example, its design, content, methods, or location), is based on these 
considerations; and 


● The action is intended to help achieve an expected measurable outcome of the associated goal. 


As such, the response provided in this section may rely on a needs assessment of unduplicated students. 


Conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further explanation 
as to how, are not sufficient. Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does 
not meet the increase or improve services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 


For example, if an LEA determines that low-income students have a significantly lower attendance rate than the attendance rate for all 
students, it might justify LEA-wide or schoolwide actions to address this area of need in the following way: 


After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students, we learned that the attendance rate of our low-
income students is 7% lower than the attendance rate for all students. (Needs, Conditions, Circumstances [Principally Directed]) 


In order to address this condition of our low-income students, we will develop and implement a new attendance program that is 
designed to address some of the major causes of absenteeism, including lack of reliable transportation and food, as well as a school 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 46 of 49 







 


                    
                  


                      
                   


                 
                   


    


                    
                       
                  


    


      


                     
                      


                    
                        


                       
          


      


                     
           


                     
              


                    
                          


             


                    
  


climate that does not emphasize the importance of attendance. Goal N, Actions X, Y, and Z provide additional transportation and 
nutritional resources as well as a districtwide educational campaign on the benefits of high attendance rates. (Contributing Action(s)) 


These actions are being provided on an LEA-wide basis and we expect/hope that all students with less than a 100% attendance rate 
will benefit. However, because of the significantly lower attendance rate of low-income students, and because the actions meet needs 
most associated with the chronic stresses and experiences of a socio-economically disadvantaged status, we expect that the 
attendance rate for our low-income students will increase significantly more than the average attendance rate of all other students. 
(Measurable Outcomes [Effective In]) 


COEs and Charter Schools: Describe how actions included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement on an 
LEA-wide basis are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as 
described above. In the case of COEs and charter schools, schoolwide and LEA-wide are considered to be synonymous. 


For School Districts Only: 


Actions Provided on an LEA-Wide Basis: 


Unduplicated Percentage > 55%: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, describe how these actions are 
principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as described above. 


Unduplicated Percentage < 55%: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%, describe how these actions 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the 
actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this determination, 
including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience, or educational theory. 


Actions Provided on a Schoolwide Basis: 


School Districts must identify in the description those actions being funded and provided on a schoolwide basis, and include the required 
description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis. 


For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these actions are principally directed to and effective in 
meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 


For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% enrollment of unduplicated pupils: 
Describe how these actions are principally directed to and how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for foster 
youth, English learners, and low-income students in the state and any local priorities. 


“A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the 
percentage required.” 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 47 of 49 







 


                    
                        


                       
                     


                    
                  


  
                      


                   


                      


    


     


     


      


                          
 


                     


           


             


          


                       
       


                      
                


              


Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved 
by at least the percentage calculated as compared to the services provided for all students in the LCAP year. To improve services means to 
grow services in quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. Services are increased or improved by those actions in 
the LCAP that are included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement. This 
description must address how these action(s) are expected to result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for 
unduplicated pupils as compared to the services the LEA provides to all students for the relevant LCAP year. 


Expenditure Tables 
Complete the Data Entry table for each action in the LCAP. The information entered into this table will automatically populate the other 
Expenditure Tables. All information is entered into the Data Entry table. Do not enter data into the other tables. 


The following expenditure tables are required to be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body: 


 Table 1: Actions


 Table 2: Total Expenditures


 Table 3: Contributing Expenditures


 Table 4: Annual Update Expenditures


The Data Entry table may be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body, but is not required to be 
included. 


In the Data Entry table, provide the following information for each action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 


 Goal #: Enter the LCAP Goal number for the action.


 Action #: Enter the action’s number as indicated in the LCAP Goal.


 Action Title: Provide a title of the action.


 Student Group(s): Indicate the student group or groups who will be the primary beneficiary of the action by entering “All”, or by
entering a specific student group or groups.


 Increased / Improved: Type “Yes” if the action is included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services; OR, type
“No” if the action is not included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services.


 If “Yes” is entered into the Contributing column, then complete the following columns:


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 48 of 49 







 


                    
                     


                         
    


                
                    
  


                        
                       
                     


       


                       
                     


                 


                


         


                         
                 


       


                   


                 


                 


                 


o Scope: The scope of an action may be LEA-wide (i.e. districtwide, countywide, or charterwide), schoolwide, or limited. An action 
that is LEA-wide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of the LEA. An action that is schoolwide in scope upgrades 
the entire educational program of a single school. An action that is limited in its scope is an action that serves only one or more 
unduplicated student groups. 


o Unduplicated Student Group(s): Regardless of scope, contributing actions serve one or more unduplicated student groups. 
Indicate one or more unduplicated student groups for whom services are being increased or improved as compared to what all 
students receive. 


o Location: Identify the location where the action will be provided. If the action is provided to all schools within the LEA, the LEA 
must indicate “All Schools”. If the action is provided to specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must 
enter “Specific Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all 
high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 


 Time Span: Enter “ongoing” if the action will be implemented for an indeterminate period of time. Otherwise, indicate the span of time 
for which the action will be implemented. For example, an LEA might enter “1 Year”, or “2 Years”, or “6 Months”. 


 Personnel Expense: This column will be automatically calculated based on information provided in the following columns: 


o Total Personnel: Enter the total amount of personnel expenditures utilized to implement this action. 


o Total Non-Personnel: This amount will be automatically calculated. 


 LCFF Funds: Enter the total amount of LCFF funds utilized to implement this action, if any. LCFF funds include all funds that make up 
an LEA’s total LCFF target (i.e. base grant, grade span adjustment, supplemental grant, concentration grant, Targeted Instructional 
Improvement Block Grant, and Home-To-School Transportation). 


 Other State Funds: Enter the total amount of Other State Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 


 Local Funds: Enter the total amount of Local Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 


 Federal Funds: Enter the total amount of Federal Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 


 Total Funds: This amount is automatically calculated based on amounts entered in the previous four columns. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA Page 49 of 49 







                          
      


         


         
    


   
     


   


        
    


    
   


   


   
   


    
   


     
    


   
 


    
   


    


  


 


    
    


    
     


    
   


 


    
   


     


   
 


 


    
   


    


  
  


 


    
   


     


   


 


    
  


    
    


  
  


   
  


   


   
   


    
   


  


 
 


   
   


    
    


   


  
 


   
   


    
    


    


MCIA LCAP Parent Survey (3/19/2021) Returned – 32 /64 = 50% (4 = In Spanish) 
1) Completed survey through Parent Square 5/64 = 8% 


2) My child attends MCIA 32/ 64 = 50% 


3) I Identify most closely with: White / Non Hispanic – 18/32 = 56% 
Hispanic or Latino – 2/32 = 6% 
White, non-hispanic – 7/32 = 22% 
Two or more races – 3/32 = 9% 
Prefer not to answer – 1/32 = 3% 


4) My child participates in the following: None of the above – 16/32 = 50% 
English Learner – 6/32 = 19% 
Not sure – 4/32 = 13% 
Free and reduced – 2/32 = 6% 
Special Education Services – 3/32 = 19% 


5) The staff at my school build a trusting and 
respectful relationship with families. 


Strongly Agree – 14/32 = 44% 
Agree – 16/32 = 50% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 
Strongly Agree – 1/32 = 3% 


6) My Child’s school has created a welcoming 
environment for all families. 


Strongly Agree – 15/32 = 47% 
Agree – 16/32 = 50% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 


7) The staff at my child’s school is interested in each 
family’s strength, culture, languages and goals for 
their children. 


Strongly Agree – 14/32 = 44% 
Agree – 15/32 = 47% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 2/32 6% 
Strongly Agree – 1/32 = 3% 


8) My child’s school supports multiple opportunities 
to engage in understandable and accessible 2 way 
communication between family and educators. 


Strongly Agree – 14/32 = 44% 
Agree – 17 / 32 = 53% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 1/32 3% 


9) My child’s school provides families with 
information and resources to support student 
learning at home. 


Strongly Agree – 17/32 = 53% 
Agree – 13/32 = 41% 
Neither Agree and Disagree – 2/32 = 6% 


10) My child’s school has policies for teachers to meet 
with families and students to discuss progress and 
ways to work together to support improved 
student outcomes. 


Strongly Agree – 17/32 = 53% 
Agree – 14/32 = 44% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 


11) My Child’s school helps families to understand and 
exercise their legal rights and advocate for their 
own students and all students, 


Strongly Agree – 12/32 = 38% 
Agree –15/32 = 47% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 4/32 = 13% 
Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 


12) My child’s school helps build and supports 
capacity of family members to successfully engage 
in advisory groups (School Site Council – SSC, 
English Learners Advisory Committees – ELAC, 
Parent Advisory, PAC and decision making process 


Strongly Agree -11/32 = 34% 
Agree – 14/32 = 44% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 6/32 = 19% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/32 = 


13) My Child’s School provides opportunities to have 
families work together to plan, design, implement 
and evaluate family engagement activities at 
school and district levels. 


Strongly Agree -12/32 = 38% 
Agree – 14/32 = 44% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 4/32 = 13% 
Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 
Strongly Disagree = 1/32 = 3% 


14) This school promotes academic success for all 
students. 


Strongly Agree -12/32 = 38% 
Agree – 17/32 = 53% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 2/32= 6% 
Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 







   
 


    
   


    
    


  
 


    
   


     
    


         
   


     


    
  


    
   


     
    


   


        
   


    
    


      


   
   


     
   


    
      


        
   


    
        


  
 


    
   


    
    


   


   
  


  
  


 
 


 
  


   
    


      
  


   
   


  
   


   
   


   
   


   
  


    


          


15) Teachers are able to meet the English Learner 
needs at my school 


Strongly Agree – 12/32 = 38% 
Agree – 14/32 = 44% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 5/32 = 16% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 


16) At my school, mu children learn skills that will help 
them in life 


Strongly Agree – 14/32 = 44% 
Agree – 15/32 = 47% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 2/32 = 6% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 


17) School Staff take parent concerns seriously Strongly Agree - 15/32 = 47% 
Agree – 14/32 = 44% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 3/32 = 9% 


18) Staff members at this school communicate well 
with the parents of this school. 


Strongly Agree – 11/32 = 34% 
Agree – 14/32 = 44% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 5/32 = 16% 
Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 


19) My child feels safe at this school. Strongly Agree – 14/32 = 44% 
Agree – 13/32 = 41% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 3/32 = 9% 
Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 


20) Teachers at this school are fair and have effective 
Conflict resolution skills to manage student issues. 


Strongly Agree – 10/32 = 31% 
Agree – 17/32 = 53% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 3/32 = 9% 
Disagree = 2/32 = 6% 


21) This school has clean, well maintained facilities Strongly Agree – 17/32 = 53% 
Agree – 10/32 = 31% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 4/32 = 13% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 


22) Teachers at this school are well-qualified to teach 
my children? 


Strongly Agree – 15/32 = 47% 
Agree – 14/32 = 44% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 
Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/32 = 3% 


23) In what events have you participated in the last 3 
years? 


Parent Conferences = 25 
Open House = 16 
Back to School =12 
Student of the Month Awards = 7 
Parent Nights = 4 
Family Appreciation Week = 3 
Sports / SSC / Coffee with the Principal = 2 each 
RTG / Career Tech Expo / District Advisory = 1 each 


24) I would like to see parent workshops in the 
following areas: 


Homework help - 14 
Healthy Lifestyles - 7 
Math - 7 
Social Emotional Support - 6 
Self advocacy - 4 
Parenting – 4 
Nutrition - 4 
Using Technology – 3 
Early Childhood - 2 
ESL – 2 
Community resource connection – 1 


25) My child participates in the  CTE pathways: Does not participate in CTE – 32 







 


 
    


  
  


    
  


    
  


   
    


   
  


  
 


   
  


 


26) I would like to see my child participate in the 
following CTE pathways 


My Child is not interested in participating in CTE - 7 
Child Development - 5 
Construction –5 
Digital Media and Graphic design - 4 
Medical - 4 
Cosmetology - 3 
Criminal Justice – 3 
Fire Fighting – 3 
Careers in Education - 3 
Welding – 3 
Culinary Arts – 1 


Additional Comments: I have no comments to say. I am very appreciated with 
this school. 







                   
     


    
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   


        
    


   
    


  


      
    


    
  


       


       
   


    
    


       
   


   


          
    


      


    
 


     
   


      
    


        
    


     


  
 


    
   


   
    


   


       
   


    
    


  


       
   


    


         
   


      
   


MCIA – LCAP STUDENT Surveys (3/19/21) Returned – 30/64 = 44% (2 in Spanish) 
1) I attend MCIA 30/64 = 44% 


2) My grade level is: K – 4 
1st – 3 
2nd – 1 
3rd – 4 
4th – 3 
5th – 2 
6th – 3 
7th – 3 
8th – 7 


3) I Identify most closely with: Hispanic or Latino = 17/30 = 57% 
White / Non Hispanic –5/30 = 17% 
Two or more races – 3/30 = 10% 
American Indian / Alaskan Native – 2/30 = 7% 
Prefer not to answer -2/30 = 7% 


4) I participate in the following: None of the programs = 16/30 = 53% 
English Learner – 6/30 = 20% 
Not sure – 5/30 = 17% 
Free and reduced –2/30 = 7% 
Special Education Services – 1/30 = 3% 


5) I feel safe at my school Strongly Agree – 11/30 = 17% 
Agree – 17/30 = 57% 
Neutral – 1/30 = 3% 
Disagree –1 /30 = 3% 


6) I feel like I am part of my school Strongly Agree – 9/30 = 30% 
Agree – 12/30= 40% 
Neutral – 9/30 = 30% 


7) Teachers at my school want students to succeed. Strongly Agree – 15/30 = 50% 
Agree – 14/30 = 47% 
Neutral - 1/30 = 3% 


8) Teachers at my school give me enough time to finish 
my schoolwork / homework. 


Strongly Agree – 10/30 = 33% 
Agree – 13/30 = 43% 
Neutral - 5/30 = 17% 
Strongly Disagree - 2/30 = 7% 


9) I get excited to learn. Strongly Agree – 9/30 = 30% 
Agree – 9/30 = 30% 
Neutral - 12/30 = 40% 


10) I would like more help with my schoolwork / 
homework. 


Strongly Agree – 4/30 = 13% 
Agree –8/30 = 27% 
Neutral -16/30 = 53% 
Disagree – 1/30 = 3% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/30 = 3% 


11) I get to work in groups with a partner in class Strongly Agree – 1/30= 3% 
Agree – 8/30 = 27% 
Neutral – 9/30 = 30% 
Disagree – 8/30 = 27% 
Strongly Disagree –4/30 = 13% 


12) At my school, I learn skills that help me in life. Strongly Agree – 8/30 = 27% 
Agree –14/30 = 47% 
Neutral - 8/30 = 27% 


13) My teachers talk to my parents on a regular basis. Strongly Agree – 10/30 = 33% 
Agree – 14/30 = 47% 
Neutral - 4/30 = 13% 
Disagree –2/30 = 7% 







       
   


  
   


     


  
  


      
   


   


  
 


     
   


     


  
 


     
  


   
   


   
 


    
    


    


       
   


    


 


 
     


    
    


      
     


    


        
   


    


      
   


   


               


       
   


   


       
   


     


        
   


    
    


         
   


    


    
   


 


  
 


   


   
 


 
   


  


14) My parents participate in school events Strongly Agree – 4/30 = 13% 
Agree – 12/30 = 40% 
Neutral -10/30 = 33% 
Disagree –3/30 = 10% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/30 = 3% 


15) My teachers are very knowledgeable of the subject 
they teach. 


Strongly Agree – 10/30 = 33% 
Agree – 19/30 = 63% 
Neutral – 1/30 = 3% 


16) My teachers explain lessons in a way that I 
understand. 


Strongly Agree – 9/30 = 30% 
Agree – 17/30 =57% 
Neutral - 4/30 = 13% 


17) I plan on attending college or some other school (trade 
school / technical school) after high school. 


Strongly Agree –14/30 = 47% 
Agree –15/30= 50% 
Neutral – 1/30 = 3% 
Disagree –2/30 = 7% 


18) My school makes it clear how students are expected 
to act. 


Strongly Agree – 10/30 = 33% 
Agree – 16/30 = 53% 
Neutral - 4/30 = 13% 


19) The teachers or adults at my school care about me. Strongly Agree – 12/30 = 40% 
Agree – 16/30 = 53% 
Neutral - 2/30 = 7% 


20) The teachers or adults at my school treat students 
fairly. 


Strongly Agree – 10/30 = 33% 
Agree – 16/30 = 53% 
Neutral – 4/30 = 13% 


21) The schoolyard and buildings are clean. Strongly Agree – 16/30 = 53% 
Agree – 11/30 = 37% 
Neutral - 3/30 = 10% 


22) My parents feel welcome to participate at my school. Strongly Agree – 12/30 = 40% 
Agree – 14/30 = 47% 
Neutral – 4/30 = 13% 


23) I am happy to be at my school. Strongly Agree – 25/30 = 83% 
Agree – 3/30 = 10% 
Neutral – 2/30 = 7% 


English Learner Program Target Questions *MCIA has 8 EL students 


24) I receive the support I need from teachers Strongly Agree – 12/30 = 40% 
Agree – 14/30 = 47% 
Neutral – 4/30 = 13% 


25) I feel comfortable talking in English in my classes Strongly Agree - 13/30 = 43% 
Agree – 13/30 = 43% 
Neutral - 4/30 = 13% 


26) I feel comfortable reading and writing in my classes. Strongly Agree – 14/30 = 47% 
Agree – 9/30 = 30% 
Neutral – 6/30 = 20% 
Disagree – 1/30 = 3% 


27) I am confident that I will improve in my classes. Strongly Agree – 14/30 = 47% 
Agree – 9/30 = 30% 
Neutral - 7/30 = 23% 


28) Please share any additional comments that will help 
you be more successful in school. 


• You are welcome. I think they should 
expand the front office. 


• I do not want to go to school. 


• I feel like I am already successful in school. 
Thanks to the teachers at my school for 
helping me grow successful in my school. 
Home schooling had made a big change in 
my life, Thanks to everyone of them. 







  
 


 


        


     
  


  
    


   
   


  
  


   
   


   


 


• I feel some new things that will help us be
more successful is if they teach us more
aldut (adult) things because that will
mature us in school as well.


29) I participate in the following CTE courses at my school. I not do participate in CTE – 30/30 = 100% 


30) I would like to participate in the following CTE courses I am not interested in participating in CTE -7 
Medical Careers - 5 
Child Development - 4 
Fire Fighting - 3 
Criminal Justice – 3 
Cosmetology - 2 
Digital Media - 2 
Careers in Education -1 
Construction – 1 
Culinary arts - 1 
Welding – 1 







    


 
 


         
  


 


           


         
     


            
              


      
  


            
  


 
                    


       
 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and
Accountability Plan 
Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year 
LEA Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Madera County Independent Academy -
MCIA 


Mr. Hugo Sanchez 
Program Director - Career and Alternative 
Education Services 


hsanchez@mcsos.org 
(559) 662-6211


The following is the local educational agency’s (LEA’s) analysis of its goals, measurable outcomes and actions and services from the 
2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 1 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


  
                              


 
        
                 


              
             
               
               


    
 


   


  


 
               


 
          


                
 


        


          
 


 
       
                


 
          


                
 


        


        
          


         
          


          
       
         


          
      


 
         


            


        
      


           


Goal 1 
Goal 1: Through highly qualified staff, students will achieve higher levels of learning to prepare them to be college and career ready. 


State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning) 


X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning) 
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes) 


Local Priorities: 


Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator
CTE courses will be offered to MCIA students. 
19-20
MCIA students will be college and career ready by completing
work that will place them at grade level proficiency.
Baseline 
N/A 


Discontinued - CTE courses are not available to PreK-8th grade 
students. 


Metric/Indicator
Through Odysseyware or other resources, credit- deficient 
students will recover credits to be able to graduate. 
19-20
MCIA students will be college and career ready by completing
work that will place them at grade level proficiency.
Baseline 
N/A 


Discontinued. MCIA is currently enrolling students in grades PreK-
8th, so credit recovery does not apply. MCSOS staff worked 
directly with teachers to align curriculum to CCSS, provide 
strategies to increase student achievement in the areas of reading 
and writing, and to support all students to become grade-level 
proficient. Teachers also shared effective strategies during 
PLC/TLCs throughout the school year. Students in need of 
additional support were able to access cohort and teacher office 
hours beyond their required instructional time. 


Metric/Indicator
Increase the number of reclassified EL students upon the 
completion of an alternative assessment. 


Purchased and utilized LAS Links ELD practice and 
intervention/assessment online program for English Language 
Learners. An exam was given to all students as a best-practice 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 2 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


  


 
       


                
 
       


         


         
       


          
         


 
        


            
 
        


           
 


              


        
        


         
           


          
       


       
       


         
       


 
         


 
          


              
 


          


        
          


         
     


 
          


 
          


              
 


          


        
          


         
     


         
          


Expected Actual 


19-20
Increase reclassification by developing or purchasing an
assessment to be used to satisfy reclassification criteria 4.
Baseline 
Establish baseline after completion of alternative assessment 
(LAS Links) 


indicator of the four domains, which mirrors the ELPAC 
Summative Assessment in Reading, Writing, Listening and 
Speaking. In addition, i-Ready was also used as a second 
indicator and provided prescriptive lessons to support EL students. 


Metric/Indicator
All teachers will continue to access professional development 
through internal and external agencies 
19-20
100% of teachers will have professional development on
Common Core State Standards
Baseline 
100% of teachers receive professional development annually 


All CAES teachers participated in Professional Growth and 
Development opportunities to improve their knowledge and skills 
in best instructional practices and delivery of curriculum in 
alignment with common core state standards. PDs are held every 
Friday from 7:30-8:45 a.m. and have included the following topics: 
Technology Integration, ELD standards and alignment, ELA 
standards and alignment, i-Ready Online formative, summative 
and intervention, LAS Links, CDE resources, Curriculum 
development, and data analysis of student achievement data, and 
Social-Emotional supports for all students and staff. 


Metric/Indicator
CAASPP Scores 
19-20
Increase the percent of students achieving a score of standard
met or higher in ELA to 15%
Baseline 
2018 CAASPP Scores 


Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, 2019-20 CAASPP Summative 
Assessments were not taken. However, MCIA students grade K-8 
did take a pre-diagnostic and mid-term formative assessment in 
ELA using the i-Ready program. 


Metric/Indicator
Increase student performance on the Math CAASPP assessment 
19-20
Increase the percent of students achieving a score of standard
met or higher to 5% in Math.
Baseline 
2018 CAASPP Scores 


Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, 2019-20 CAASPP Summative 
Assessments were not taken. However, MCIA students grade K-8 
did take a pre-diagnostic and mid-term formative assessment in 
Math using the i-Ready program. 


Metric/Indicator Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, 2019-20 CAASPP Summative 
Assessments were not taken. However, EL students grade K-8 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 3 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


  


         
           


 
          


                  
 
          


                  


         
       


 
       


         
 
        


 
       


         


        
  


 
           


 
        


 
        


        


         
 


 
              


 
        


 
        


            


 


Expected Actual 


Increase student performance on the CAASPP ELA and Math 
assessments for EL students. 
19-20 
Increase the percentage of student achieving a score of standard 
met or higher to 15% for ELA and 5% for Math 
Baseline 
Increase the percentage of student achieving a score of standard 
met or higher to 15% for ELA and 5% for Math 


did take a pre-diagnostic and mid-term formative assessment in 
Math and ELA using the i-Ready program. 


Metric/Indicator 100% of MCIA students received standards-based instruction and 
All students will receive standards-based instruction and instructional materials. 
instructional materials. 
19-20 
100% 
Baseline 
100% of students receive standards-based instruction and 
instructional materials. 
Metric/Indicator 100% of MCIA students were taught by appropriately credentialed 
All students will be taught be appropriately credentialed teachers. teachers. 


19-20 
100% 
Baseline 
100% of students are taught by appropriately credentialed 
teachers. 
Metric/Indicator
Access to a broad course of studies. 
19-20 
100% 
Baseline 
100% 


100% of MCIA students had access to a broad course of study. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 4 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


   
 


 
 


 
 


 
          


         
             


   
  


           
        


       
   


  


   
   


   
 


     
   


  


   
   


   
 


     
   


   
   


   
 


           
          


         
           


            
          


       
   


   
    


 
         


    
 


         
       


          
             


            
        


            
          


          
        


         
            


   


       
   


   
    


 
      
  


     
   


   
 


    
     


     
   


Actions / Services 
Planned 


Actions/Services 
Budgeted


Expenditures 
Actual 


Expenditures 
MCIA students will be college and career ready by completing 
assignments that will place them at grade level proficiency. 


1.1 - Services LCFF Base $6,000 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Base $6,000 


MCIA will provide support for EL students and professional develop in 1.2 - Salaries & Benefits LCFF 1000-1999: Certificated 
best practices will be provided to all staff. Supplemental and Concentration 


$6,100 


Salaries & Benefits LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$1,300 


Services LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $14,000 


Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$5,400 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$1,350 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$14,752 


MCIA will develop teams of teachers and administrators to analyze data 1.3 - Salaries & Benefits LCFF 1000-1999: Certificated 
and make recommendations to drive instruction. LAS Links will be Base $11,800 Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
implemented to assess students in reading, writing, speaking, and $49,200 
listening domains. The data gathered will be used as a common 
assessment to satisfy a critical area identified by WASC, and scores will 
be used to satisfy criteria for reclassification of English Learners. 


Services LCFF Base $1,500 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$3,700 


MCIA will provide opportunities for professional development for all 1.4 - Salaries & Benefits LCFF 1000-1999: Certificated 
staff. Scheduled staff meetings and designated professional Base $5,700 Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
development days will be used to address best practices and $5,700
collaboration on topics relevant to the needs of the MCIA staff and the 
needs of MCIA students. Teachers will also be encouraged to seek out 
professional development opportunities to address areas of individual 
growth. Content area specialists in ELA and Math from MCSOS will be 
used to provide professional development to improve instruction for all 


Training & Services LCFF Base 5000-5999: Services And Other 
$14,000 Operating Expenditures LCFF 


Supplemental and Concentration 
$14,000 


students. In addition, the CSI plan calls for professional development Services 4000-4999: Books And 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
and trainings for curriculum, formative assessments, and teaching Supplies CSI Grant $172,000 CSI Grant $95,397 
strategies, especially for the blended classes, particularly, the new 
blended class for students in grades 4-6 to supplement the services for 
independent study students. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 5 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


 
 


 
 


 
 


          
     


 
 


       
   


   
    


           
        


        


       
   


   
    


 
     


   
  


   
   


   
 


         
 


      
   


   
    


 
     


   
  


   
   


   
 


 
  


 
                   


  
         
                   


 
             
               


 
                     


            
         
 


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Budgeted
Expenditures 


Actual 
Expenditures 


MCIA administration will ensure all students are provided with needed 
technology resources to maximize learning. 


1.5 - Salaries & Benefits LCFF 
Base $3,000 


1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 0 


Academic supports will be provided to students to assist them in 1.6 - Salaries & Benefits LCFF 1000-1999: Certificated 
preparation of graduation. Students will have career exploration Base $7,100 Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
opportunities, and benefit from academic counseling, and tutoring. 


Salaries & Benefits LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$41,100 


$7,100 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$41,100 


MCIA will continue to recruit and retain appropriately credentialed 
teachers. 


1.7- Salaries & Benefits LCFF 
Base $179,400 


Salaries & Benefits LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$103,900 


1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$187,663 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$125,144 


Goal Analysis 


A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff. 
1.3 = Overspent $39,600 (Staff time was underestimated) 
1.4 = Underspent $76,603 (Remainder of 2019-20 CSI funding carried forward to 2020-21 school year due to COVID-19 school 
closure) 
1.5 = Underspent $3,000 (MCIA received Chromebooks from state during COVID-19 school closure) 
1.7 = Overspent $29,507 (Budgeted expenditure was an underestimation of salary and benefits) 


Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, funds budgeted for actions/services that were not implemented in 2019-20, will be used to support all 
students, including unduplicated, families, teachers, and staff in the 2021-22 school year. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 6 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


               
                   
                     


                
                  


                 
                     


                
                   


              
 


               
 


                       
   


                     
     


                    
         


 
     


 
                     


     
                    


      
                      


      
 


                     
                    


                     
                  


                   
             


         
 


A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 
Several actions/services were implemented to mitigate the impact of COVID-19, that were not part of the 2019-20 LCAP. These 
included the addition of 1:1 technology to ensure MCIA students had a greater ability to navigate through the new GO Math 
Curriculum and i-Ready assessments and intervention lessons. When COVID-19 stopped MCIA and other schools from in-person 
learning, MCIA students (including unduplicated students) had the advantage of having been already in possession of these devices, 
which supported them in the Distance Learning Model. Funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were 
expended on other actions and services through the end of the school year, were used to support: students, families, teachers and 
unduplicated students with the hardware and connectivity they needed to access daily instruction, appropriate training and 
professional development for all staff to support the social-emotional needs of all students and the addition of ParentSquare, to 
provide outreach, communication and engagement for the MCIA community, in both English and Spanish. 


There were several challenges in achieving the goals for Action #1, student achievement. These included: 


1) MCIA became a PreK-8th grade program exclusively in 2018-19, which required a shift in resources and staff to serve the needs of 
this student population. 
2) With the AB 93 policies implemented, focus on instruction followed a Distance Learning Model, which students and staff had never 
attempted in a pandemic situation. 
3) Based on 2018-19 CAASPP and i-Ready results, student achievement at MCIA remains the #1 priority for student success in 
CORE subject areas of ELD, ELA and Math. 


Successes in achieving Goal #1: 


1) Students and staff were equipped with 1:1 Chromebook laptops and Verizon hotspots to allow teaches to teach and students to 
learn in a Distance-learning model. 
2) To better support students, MCIA Staff were provided extensive professional growth in the area of ELD, Technology usage and 
integration, SEL and Distance Learning Model. 
3) MCIA teachers were given Friday PLC times (7:30 - 9:00 a.m.) to collaborate and disaggregate i-Ready data to help drive 
instruction and focus on targeted interventions. 


An analysis of the overall effectiveness of actions/services to achieve Goal #1 reveals that the initial Actions written into the MCIA 
LCAP required modification to address its actions specifically to a Prek-8 student body. Also, as unduplicated MCIA students were not 
able to attend in-person instruction from 3/15/20 - 4/6/21, they were able to remain connected to their teachers via a Distance 
Learning Model. Because all MCIA students were configured into classes with a seat-time model, students received direct instruction 
from a credentialed teacher, who was also able to provide differentiated instruction and interventions within the same instructional day, 
to address subskill weaknesses based on the diagnostic results from their i-Ready score. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 7 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


  
                      


           


 
        
                


             
             
               


    
 


   


  


 
          


               
 


              
 


          


        
        


 
          


        
 


          
        


 
            


         
        


 
         


               


         
       


        
       


Goal 2 
Goal 2: MCIA will provide resources and services to improve the social and emotional wellbeing of each student to provide a safe 
learning environment. 


State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning) 


X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement) 
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes) 


Local Priorities: 


Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator
MCIA will provide opportunities for all students to enhance their 
educational experience and develop a sense of belonging. 
19-20 
All students will have opportunity to participate. 
Baseline 
To be established 


Outside of COVID-19 restrictions, opportunities for all educational 
experiences were made available for all MCIA students. 


Metric/Indicator
MCIA will provide transportation to students in need of public 
transportation 
19-20 
Maintain or increase the number of students that are provided 
transportation. 
Baseline 
All students that need transportation. 


Due to the Distance Learning Model implemented during the 
COVID-19 Pandemic, no MCIA students requested MAX passes. 


Metric/Indicator
All students who are parenting teens, foster youth and/or 
homeless will have the opportunity to receive counseling. 


Even during the COVID-19 pandemic and implementation of the 
Distance Learning Model, CAES Counselors and School 
Psychologist continued to provide support and resources for 
Foster Youth, Teen parents and Homeless students. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 8 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


  


 
              
 


         
          


 
            
                 
 


          
 


          


         
          


   


 
               


 
         


 
               


            
     


 
           


         
 


             
 
         


        
        


   


 
          


        
 


           
             


            
   


Expected Actual 


19-20 
Maintain 100% of students receiving counseling services 
Baseline 
100% of parenting teens, foster youth and/or homeless students 
received counseling services 
Metric/Indicator MCIA planned and scheduled two events this year, however, 
MCIA will hold two school events for all students to participate in Open house and Parent Appreciation Day were cancelled due to 
order to build a sense of school pride and belonging. the COVID-19 Pandemic. 


19-20 
Two school events 
Baseline 
Two school events 
Metric/Indicator Based on the FIT report of October 2020, MCIA was rated "Under 
Update and maintain the annual facilities inspection and repairs. Good Repair and Well maintained." 


19-20 
Good Repair 
Baseline 
Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT); Score equals Good Repair 
Metric/Indicator Even though daily student attendance was taken, Chronic 
MCIA will reduce the number of students who are identified as Absenteeism was not recorded on the California School 
chronic absenteeism Dashboard for 2019-20. 


19-20 
Reduce chronic absenteeism to under 50% 
Baseline 
Establish baseline 
Metric/Indicator An annual survey was conducted in the Spring of 2020 and the 
MCIA will conduct an annual climate survey to meet local goal was met. 
indicator 
19-20 
Maintain 90% of students feeling safe at school Maintain 90% of 
students feeling staff cares about them 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 9 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


  


 
          


 
         


 
           
 


                


          
 


 
         


 
            


 
             


         
     


 
          
 


               
 


         


            


 
   


 
 


 
 


 
 


         
            


     
    


   
   


  


     
   


   
 


            
        


     
    


     
   


Expected Actual 


Baseline 
Conduct the survey 
Metric/Indicator MCIA had no suspensions (3-8th grade) for the 2019-20 school 
Suspension rate year. 


19-20 
Maintain 0% suspension rate 
Baseline 
Established at 0% of students suspended (17 - 18) 
Metric/Indicator MCIA Weekly average attendance dropped from an average of 
Attendance Rate 85.7% to 79.2% in 2019-20. 


19-20 
Seat time attendance of 85% 
Baseline 
Seat time attendance at 80.9% (2017) 
Metric/Indicator
Drop Out rate 
19-20 
Currently serving students in grades PreK through 8. 
Baseline 
14% (2017) 


Student PreK - 8th are not permitted to drop out of school. 


Actions / Services 
Planned 


Actions/Services 
Budgeted


Expenditures 
Actual 


Expenditures 
Teachers will seek out meaningful extended learning opportunities that 
include field trips to enhance the learning occurring at the school site. 


2.1 - Travel & Services 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$5,000 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$4,879 


To help ensure safe arrival to and from school MCIA will provide 
students with tickets for local transportation as needed. 


2.2 - Travel & Services 5000-
5999: Services And Other 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 10 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


 
 


 
 


 
 


   
   


  


   
 


        
         


          
        


        


     
    
   


   
    


 
     


   
  


   
   


   
 


   
    


   
   


   
  


   
   


   
 


     
   


     
   


  


         
         


        
 
 


       
        


   
    


 
       


     
   


   
   


   
 


             
         


 
 


       
   


   
    


 


           
     


 


       
   


     
   


  


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Budgeted
Expenditures 


Actual 
Expenditures 


Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$200 


Supplemental and Concentration 
$200 


MCIA will provide supplemental services to pregnant parenting, 2.3 - Salaries & Benefits 3000- 1000-1999: Certificated 
homeless, and foster youth students. Continued collaboration with the 3999: Employee Benefits LCFF Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
county office foster youth coordinator, personnel from public health, and Base $6,100 $6,100
other service agencies to facilitate students accessing services. 
Additional resources will contribute to students emotional well-being. Salaries & Benefits LCFF 


Supplemental and Concentration 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 


$3,800 


Salaries & Benefits 
$8600 Inc in 1.6 
1000-1999: Certificated 


Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$8,600 
Supplies LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $500 


Supplemental and Concentration 
$3,800 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
0 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration 


MCIA will coordinate with behavioral health, drug and alcohol 2.4 - Salaries & Benefits (Inc in 1000-1999: Certificated 
counseling, and school psychologist to ensure appropriate referrals are 1.6 & 2.3) LCFF Base $6,100 Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
being made for students in need of services. 


Salaries & Benefits (Inc in 1.6 & 
2.3) LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $41,100 


$6,100 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$42,100 


MCIA will hold two school events for all students to participate in order 
to build a sense of school pride and belonging. 


2.5 - Service & Supplies LCFF 1000-1999: Certificated 
Base $1,200 Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 


$1,200 


MCIA will provide and maintain a safe, clean, and quality learning 
facilities for students and staff. 


2.6 - Services & Supplies LCFF 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Base $102,100 Operating Expenditures LCFF 


Base $118,000 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 11 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


 
 


 
 


 
 


      
   


  


     
   


   
 


      
  


     


     
   


  


     
  


 
  


 
                   


  
                      
                   
                  


                      
 


 
         
              


 
                    


          
         
 


               
     


                  
      


                    
      


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Budgeted
Expenditures 


Actual 
Expenditures 


Services & Suplies LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$59,200 


Salaries & Benefits LCFF Base 
$18,500 
Salaries & Benefits LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$10,700 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$59,200 


LCFF Base $12,400 


LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $10,700 


Goal Analysis 


A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff. 
As MCIA's goal #2 actions and services were implemented to mitigate learning loss, this was not written in the 2019-20 MCIA LCAP. 
As a result, additional Social-Emotional support and training for staff and students, virtual teacher "office hours" provided for parents 
and students to contact teachers during the day for questions, if additional student support was necessary, Personal Protection 
Equipment (PPE) for students (and parents entering the MCIA site) when student were given the option to attend school in person on 
4/6/21. 


2.3 = Underspent $6,500 (Due to COVID-19 school closure) 
2.6 = Overspent $9,000 (Increased cost to maintain MCIA facility during the school year) 


Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, funds budgeted for actions/services that were not implemented in 2019-20, will be used to support 
students, families, teachers, and staff in the 2021-22 school year. 


A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 
Challenges in achieving Goal #2: 
1) With COVID-19, students were not able to attend in-person awards assemblies. However, students were recognized for their 
academic, attendance and achievements with certificates. 
2) While attendance rates dropped in the 2019-20 school year, the attendance for the 2020-21 school year recovered to approximately 
85% under the Distance Learning Model. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 12 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


                      
 


                
 


      
      
               
                  


 
                  


                     
                 


              
         
 


3) While survey results were quite favorable and positive in rankings, they remain low in overall percentage (50%) for MCIA parent 
input. 
4) Due to COVID-19, Parents and students were not able to attend in-person community events. 


Successes in achieving this Goal #2 
1) Suspension rates remained at 0%. 
2) Parent surveys show that 97% of parents feel their students feel safe at MCIA. 
3) MCIA Facilities remained in good repair and had the PPE necessary for students to return of 4/6/21. 


Additional services to achieve this goal, that were not implemented, due to COVID-19, included social-emotional (SEL) support and 
training for staff and students, virtual teacher "office hours" provided for parents and students to contact teachers during the day for 
questions and additional student support was necessary, Personal Protection Equipment (PPE) for students (and parents entering the 
site) when students were given the option to attend school in person on 4/6/21. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 13 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


  
                 


          


 
        
               


              
             
             


    
 


   


  


 
           


        
 
         


        
 
         


           
      


 
           


            
 


           
        


 
               


          
 


 
         


               


       
      


Goal 3 
Goal 3: MCIA will encourage greater stakeholder participation and input by developing meaningful relationships with parents and 
families. 


State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement) 


X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement) 


Local Priorities: 


Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator
Teachers and staff will maintain a call log for communication with 
parents/families. 
19-20 
100% will maintain a call log for communication with 
parents/families. 
Baseline 
Establish baseline 


100% of MCIA teachers maintained a contact log in Power school 
for communication with parents of families. 


Metric/Indicator The Spring 2020 event was cancelled due to the COVID-19 
Parents will be invited to attend more school events by mailers Pandemic. 
and personal phone calls home. 
19-20 
Maintain or increase the number of school events for parents to 
attend 
Baseline 
One event Fall Semester One event Spring Semester 
Metric/Indicator
Teachers and staff will make positive parent contacts regarding 
students to share positive behaviors and/or academic gains. 


Teachers maintained regular contact with parents regarding 
academic progress, SEL and positive behavior. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 14 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


  


 
            
        


        
 
         


 
   


 
 


 
 


 
 


          
         


         
          


   


       
      


   
    


 
           


   
  


       
    


    
   


           
         
           


       


       
      


    
   


           
   


       
    


    
    


           
   


  


          
        


         
       


       
      


   
    


 


 


Expected Actual 


19-20 
Teachers and staff will call a minimum of three parents per month 
regarding students to share positive behaviors and/or academic 
gains 
Baseline 
Establish baseline 


Actions / Services 
Planned 


Actions/Services 
Budgeted


Expenditures 
Actual 


Expenditures 
MCIA will provide effective communication with parents of regular and 
special education students in the home language regarding school 
administration, activities, student progress, and attendance. This will be 
maintained with phone calls, home visits, regular progress reports, and 
an updated website. 


3.1 - Salaries & Benefits (Inc in 
1.6) LCFF Base $9,400 


Services LCFF Base $1,000 


Salaries & Benefits (Inc in 1.6) 
LCFF Base $7,100 


1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$7,800 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Base $1,200 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 


LCFF Base $7,100 


3.2 - The unduplicated student population has some of the lowest 3.2 - Salaries & Benefits (Inc in 3000-3999: Employee Benefits 
parent participation rates of parent involvement. To address these 1.6) LCFF Base $9,400 LCFF Base $8,600 
needs, the LEA will provide classes and workshops, open house and 
family events to increase opportunities for involvement. Supplies LCFF Base $4,000 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 


LCFF Base $2,000 
Salaries & Benefits (Inc in 1.6) 
LCFF Base $7,100 
Services LCFF Base $2,000 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF Base $6,900 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Base $1,200 


MCIA will provide opportunities for parent input through surveys and 3.3 - Salaries & Benefits (Inc in 1000-1999: Certificated 
participation informal and informal advisory committees, including Site 1.6) LCFF Base $3,900 Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
Council, ELAC and other school engagement meetings. This will $3,200
increase parent involvement for unduplicated student population. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 15 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


  
 


                   
  


          
            
             


 
                   


                     
                     


                    
                 


                  
                   


                     
                  


                  
          


         
 


               
                     


                   
                    
  


 
                     


                      
                    


                    
                    


                     
         
 


Goal Analysis 


A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff. 
3.1 = Overspent $2,400 (Actual cost greater than budgeted amount) 
3.2 = Underspent $3,800 (All in-person community events cancelled due to COVID-19) 
3.3 = Underspent $700 (Not all parent outreach opportunities conducted due to COVID-19) 


All funds budgeted for actions and services were allocated to achieve Goal #3 to support, students (including unduplicated students) 
families, teachers and staff in the following ways Actions and services implemented to mitigate the impact of COVID-19 that were not 
part of the 2019-20 LCAP included, but were not limited to, the Parent Square application to communicate more effectively with the 
MCIA community, the addition of Zoom on the student Chromebook laptops and utilizing the Call Logs in PowerSchool, to provide 
daily entrees accessible to teachers, site administrators and academic counselors. These services enhanced support for the program 
by providing a better platform for parents to be informed of special announcements, school events, schedule changes, upcoming 
community input opportunities and direct communication with the teacher; all without relying the on making of phone calls. Installing 
the Zoom feature on school-issues devices allowed students to meet with their teachers in a virtual learning environment as well as 
teachers being able to meet with parents for Parent-Teacher conferences. Finally, MCIA teachers were better equipped in recording 
their interactions with students and parents during their learning day by documenting all interactions into the PowerSchool database. 
This provided easy access for teachers, site leaders and counselors. 


A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 
The challenges for the MCIA program to achieve Goal #3 include: In person SSC / ELAC participation and stakeholder input being 
difficult at the end of the year with the COVID-19 shutdown. In-person community events were either postponed indefinitely or 
cancelled due to the COVID-19 pandemic and in-person parent workshops were cancelled during the Spring of 2020 due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 


The successes of the MCIA program in achieving Goal #3 include: the transition from call logs to documentation in ParentSquare in 
recording at a Program-level database. Also, as discussion for 1:1 devices had been initiated at the end of the 2019-20 school year, 
the transition to Distance Learning was in motion and rolled out easily to accommodate student learning needs and parents were 
invited to attend virtual workshops and trainings via Zoom to mitigate the in-person opportunity for community training and input. The 
overall effectiveness of actions of these services provided to achieve goal were significant in that, even through parents and students 
were not on campus the majority of the 2020-21 school year, the remained in close contact with their instructors via Zoom. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 16 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


          
 


                  
  


 


   
 


      


   
  


 
 


 
 


        
 


         


         
         


     


         
      


          
           
  


         


 
                 


        
                


                   
                  


                   
                     


                     
                 


 
     


 
                


                  
                     


X


X
X


X


Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 
The following is the local educational agency's (LEA's) analysis of its 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan (Learning 
Continuity Plan). 


In-Person Instructional Offerings 


Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings 


Description Total 
Budgeted Funds 


Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 


Contributing 


Three teachers, new laptops, chromebooks, hotspots, new online 
software, 


$314,272 $279,919 No 


Online assessment, i-Ready, LAS Links, GO Math, SAVVAS Learning 
and Accelerated Reader (AR) to measure academic growth and 
support language and math proficiency. 


$45,000 $32,036 No 
Yes 


Maintain a stock of PPE, including, hand sanitizer, cleaning wipes, 
Vindicator spray, face masks, and face shields to minimize risk of 
COVID-19 infection. 


$18,000 $23,219 No 


A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for in-person instruction and 
what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 
The substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for in-person instruction (and what was 
implemented and/or expended on the actions) included the cost of three teachers, student laptops, hotspots and new online software 
(- $34,353) online assessments: i-Ready and LAS Links, GO Math, SAVVAS Learning and Accelerated Reader (AR) to measure 
academic growth and support language and Math proficiency (-$12,964) and maintaining a stock of PPE (+5,219) including, hand 
sanitizer, cleaning wipes, vindicator spray, face masks, and face shields, to maintain the highest level of safety for staff and students. 
Planned actions for all students receiving in-person instruction, will be included in the 2021 school year, with the roll-over of these 
supplemental and concentration funds, for the 2021-22 school year. 


Analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings 


A description of the successes and challenges in implementing in-person instruction in the 2020-21 school year. 
There were many challenges and successes in implementing in-person instruction in the 2020-21 school year. Madera County was 
not cleared for in-person (Red tier) instruction until April 6th, 2021. But, prior to this, both teachers and students implemented the 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 17 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


                   
                     
                  


                        
                     


                    
                    


                      
                  


                     
               


 


Distance Learning Model and were provided with technology and Wifi hotspots for connectivity to enable this to occur effectively. 
While this distance learning model was put into place, maintaining a schedule for students to adhere to meeting their teachers via 
Zoom proved both challenging and very rewarding. Some students, who enjoyed the distance learning model, were very comfortable 
with the format of being in a 1:1 teacher to student ratio or small group Zoom setting. Other students were initially quite shy and 
reserved about being the only student in the virtual class as well communicating via camera with their teacher. When students were 
cleared to attend in person on 4/6/21, Successes included CAES leadership sending to parents, an online and paper-copy survey to 
determine how many students would return and how MCIA would prepare for their return. Initially, parents expressed concern and only 
20-25% stated they would sent their children back for in-person learning. To date, that percentage has risen slightly to 35%; even with 
the clearance from CDC, Madera County Health and MCSOS regarding safety guidelines. MCIA students who have returned since 
4/6/21, enjoy seeing and being taught by their teacher, as indicated in their attendance rates. MCIA looks forward to having all 
students attend in-person in the Fall 2021. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 18 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


   
 


       


   
  


 
 


 
 


         
  


        


           
            


      


        


        
         


        


           
  


        


        
     


        


          
         


        


 
                 


          
                 


                  
                   


                    
                      


 
      


 
                     


                 
               
                  


                  


X


X


X


X


X


X


Distance Learning Program 


Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program 


Description Total 
Budgeted Funds 


Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 


Contributing 


Professional development for teachers and staff on effective distance 
learning practices. 


$3,600 $2,800 Yes 


Teachers will have block classes twice a week to provide additional 
support to all students, as survey data demonstrates a need for more 
instructional time on a weekly basis. 


$5,600 $5,600 Yes 


Create 7,8 cohort for classroom instruction via videoconferencing 
twice a week, in addition to individual one-hour appointments. 


$5,600 $5,600 Yes 


i-Ready and LAS Links, along with other digital software to support 
distance learning. 


$8,200 $8,500 Yes 


Upgraded technology for teachers, including laptops, second monitor, 
stylus, wireless headsets and mice. 


$5,400 $6,400 Yes 


Training and workshops for parents on distance learning demands on 
families and increasing technology skills to support student learning. 


$6,000 $1,500 Yes 


A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the distance learning 
program and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 
There were no major substantive differences between the planned actions and budgeted expenditures for the distance learning 
program and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. This included:$800 less for professional development, a slight 
increase of $300 for digital software, a $1,000 increase for teacher technology. However, the greatest difference was the actual 
expenditures for parent training workshops being at $4,500 under budget due primarily to the pandemic and inability to host in-person 
events. These remaining funds will be rolled into the 2021-22 supplemental and concentration funds. 


Analysis of the Distance Learning Program 


A description of the successes and challenges in implementing each of the following elements of the distance learning program in the 
2020-21 school year, as applicable: Continuity of Instruction, Access to Devices and Connectivity, Pupil Participation and Progress, 
Distance Learning Professional Development, Staff Roles and Responsibilities, and Support for Pupils with Unique Needs. 
Although there were many challenges during the 2020-21 school year, MCIA students and staff persevered with success in 
implementing the following elements into the distance learning program. For continuity of instruction, MCIA maintained a 1:1 device 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 19 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


                    
                  
                 


                 
               


                  
                    


                    
                    


                     
                   
                      


 


program during the COVID -19 pandemic. This allowed students to access content remotely. In regards to access to devices and 
connectivity, all students continued to be supported academically with their 1:1 devices (Chromebooks) and Verizon Hotspots for Wifi 
connectivity. To address pupil participation and progress, teachers and students adapted to the distance learning model by 
maintaining weekly classes in small cohorts and ATT appointments, that focused attention on social-emotional learning (SEL) guided 
instruction, on-line expectations and ongoing assessments. For support in distance learning, professional development, the CAES 
division of MCSOS provided ongoing Professional Growth and Development in the areas of SEL, ELA, ELD, Technology integration 
and student supports. To maintain staff roles and responsibilities, all staff were required to adhere to scheduled work hours, whether 
at home or on site, and ATT appointments for students, via a Zoom format. In-person instruction resumed on 4/6/21 with 
approximately 20-30% of all students returning to school in person. By May, 2021, approximately 70% of all students remained online 
with the teacher of record on-site for instruction. Finally, to address the support for pupils with unique needs (IEPs, #504's, Speech, 
etc.) all services were provided in compliance with California Educational Code and SELPA laws. Local data and stakeholder input 
were both integrated into the analysis of the effectiveness of the distance learning program. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 20 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


   
 


       


   
  


 
 


 
 


              


                


           
       


        


        
      


        


              


       
           
   


        


 
                 


          
                


                   
                    


                   
                       


                        
 


     
 


                      
            


                   
                    


                      


X


X


X


X


X


X


Pupil Learning Loss 


Actions Related to the Pupil Learning Loss 


Description Total 
Budgeted Funds 


Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 


Contributing 


Increasing classroom cohorts for grades 7-8. $5,600 $0 Yes 


1:1 device program with WIFI hotspots as needed. $4,500 $6,800 Yes 


Digital software, including i-Ready and LAS Links, to provide data an 
learning loss and growth for all students. 


$42,000 $38,000 Yes 


Training on Social-Emotional learning and trauma informed practices 
for all teachers, staff, and administrators. 


$10,000 $3,000 Yes 


Training on administering state assessments. $500 $500 No 


Academic counselors to provide parent/care-giver workshops in 
English and Spanish on issues related to pupil learning loss and 
distance learning requirements. 


$15,779 $14,800 Yes 


A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for addressing pupil learning 
loss and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 
There were two major substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for addressing pupil 
learning loss and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. The two greatest areas of actual estimated expenditures 
being utilized less were Trauma informed training and the increase in cost for technology. The primary differences for these two 
amounts was the inability to host any In-person Professional Growth and Development training ($7,000) and the additional need for 
computer software either being already in place ($4,000) for the school year or reduced in price due to renewal fees. These funds will 
be rolled over to the 2021-22 school year in the supplemental and concentration budget, to serve the needs of all unduplicated pupils. 


Analysis of Pupil Learning Loss 


A description of the successes and challenges in addressing Pupil Learning Loss in the 2020-21 school year and an analysis of the 
effectiveness of the efforts to address Pupil Learning Loss to date. 
Some of the challenges presented in Pupil Learning Loss for the 2020-21 school year included student attendance and participation 
rates during the Distance Learning Model. After over a year of distance learning via Zoom, attendance rates dropped significantly from 
an average of 85.4% on a weekly basis to about 75% absenteeism rate. As teachers made numerous attempts to contact students via 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 21 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


                  
                    


                     
                    


                    
                      


                      
                 


     
 


                     
                  


                      
                     


                      
                        


                  
                  


                  
                   
                 


  
         
 


Zoom, phone and/or Parent Square, students missing consecutive appointments reached an all-time high in the MCIA program. To 
combat this, MCIA conducted weekly Zoom lessons and documented attendance of student interaction to ensure that students SEL 
and academic needs were met as a high priority. Students were also invited to attend content specific intervention times that were 
open throughout the day and week. Finally, parents were invited to attend Parent/Teacher conferences in the Spring of 2021. After 
4/6/21, Madera County received clearance from the CDC and Madera County Health, to allow students to return to in-person learning. 
Prior to this notification of clearance, a parent survey was sent out to inquire how many parents were interested in sending their 
students back to school for in-person learning. Approximately 40% of all parents agreed to and sent students back to school with the 
necessary precautions with PPE, masks, temperature checks, plexiglass partitions and required distances of 3' between students and 
6' between adults and students. 


In analyzing the effectiveness of efforts to address Pupil Learning Loss, there is recognition that students who were struggling prior to 
the pandemic, showed similar patterns of attendance during the COVID-19 closure. Lost learning included students falling behind in 
assignments, failure to attend weekly lessons and pick up or submit work or engagement records on a weekly basis, were the two 
primary issues with our pupils. In meeting with these students via Zoom or conducting home visits, students stated their lack of 
motivation stemmed from having to meet virtually instead of in person, not adhering to a daily schedule, as parents were either away 
at work or not being supervised like in a traditional school day, as they were prior to COVID. Teachers noted that students who had 
good study habits, good to basic parental supports, an established schedule and most importantly, a trusting and respectful 
relationship with their teacher, did much better and were motivated to be successful, compete their assignments and demonstrate 
mastery learning. Additional efforts to address pupil learning loss, including for pupils who are English learners; low-income; foster 
youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils who are experiencing homelessness, are discussed by staff and leadership in weekly 
PLCs, to address specifically. the needs of these unduplicated students, based on attendance, academic progress, participation and 
success rates. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 22 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


         
 


                    
   


                   
                   


                    
                   


                 
                  


                     
                    


                 
                     


                     
                 


                   
                     


                  
                    


 
        


 
                    


                    
                      


                   
                      


                    
                       


                
                  


                  
                  


                      
                  
                  


Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 


A description of the successes and challenges in monitoring and supporting mental health and social and emotional well-being in the 
2020-21 school year. 
There were many challenges and successes in monitoring and supporting mental health for social and emotional well-being in the 
2020-21 school year. To begin, social-emotional learning (SEL) was the forefront of our Distance Learning model. All teachers and 
support staff were trained at the beginning of the pandemic with very focused professional growth and development in SEL. The 
appropriate literature provided to the CAES division was "The Distance Learning Playbook" by Hattie, Fisher and Frey. With this 
guidebook and training, teachers were better equipped to support students during these challenging times where students were 
isolated socially, unable to attend school in person, interact with friends or be engaged educationally where student-teacher interaction 
is a critical component to student achievement. To ensure students' SEL needs were met, teachers dedicated the first 10 minutes of 
their ATT appointments to "check in" with how students were coping with these challenges. The ATT appointment then continued with 
academic instruction, assessment/data review, and finished with a frontload for the next appointment. Students remained in contact 
with their teachers and, on several occasions, reached out beyond their scheduled times to attend additional or extended time that day 
or during the open intervention times that teachers offered by content and in "open intervention" setting. Additional state and local data 
and stakeholder input helped tremendously in guiding this learning structure as parents expressed concern over students losing 
motivation during the pandemic and were excited to return, but reluctant to return 100% in-person with apprehensions of having 
students be in small cohorts or be in near proximity with other students. These concerns were addressed in frequent contact parents 
and community via ParentSquare, in English and Spanish, to inform parents of MCIA/CAES/ MCSOS safety quidelines that students 
and staff would follow in 2020-21 and during the reopening on 4/6/21. 


Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 


A description of the successes and challenges in implementing pupil and family engagement and outreach in the 2020-21 school year. 
There have been many challenges and successes this year in implementing pupil and family engagement and outreach in the 2020-21 
school year. The primary challenge this year from years prior, was the digital format of Zoom for student instruction. Prior to the 
COVID-19 shut down on March 13, 2020, students were not equipped with 1:1 devices and adequate connectivity for proper long-
distance instruction. Based on the MCIA parent survey results in the Spring of 2020, the need for WiFi, Chromebooks, or both, was 
made very apparent. As a result, new Chromebook laptops and Verizon hotspots were purchase and issued to students, based on 
need, to ensure that all students had the ability to receive instruction in a distance learning model. In reflecting on the school year 
2020-21, while Distance learning training for teachers was provided, student engagement and participation results were mixed. 
Challenges included students not "zooming" in for their scheduled appointments on time, completion and submission of assigned work 
and/or maintaining with fidelity, the submission of Daily Engagement Activity Records of "Green Sheets." Successes from the 2020-21 
school year included a higher outreach for parent engagement through Parent-Teacher conferences in the Spring of 2021, "Coffee 
with the Principal" and the adoption and utilization of Parent Square. By far the greatest parent engagement success came from the 
scheduled Parent/Teacher conferences, where parents were invited to attend a short conference with their child's teacher during their 
scheduled ATT meeting. During this conference, parents and teachers were able to discuss their child's SEL needs, academic 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 23 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


                  
                   


                    
                     


                 
                    


                      
                      


                           
                      
                       
                    


         
 


    
 


                
                      


                    
                 


 


progress, attendance and any additional concerns. The outcome of the conferences was to strengthen our school and community 
partnership and maintain a positive outreach with our students and families during the pandemic. Bilingual services were also provided 
in Spanish for our Spanish-speaking community members and all CAES families were notified by the recent addition of Parent Square 
in both English and Spanish. Students who continue to struggle or not meet the academic requirements or continue to struggle 
instructionally, are supported with tiered reengagement strategies after being absent from distance learning. These tiers include a 
basic universal intervention of weekly, if not daily check-ins with students, by the teacher, to ensure they are completing assignments 
on a regularly scheduled basis. Students who fail this criteria a bound by the CAES 3-step protocol (BP 5220) which has student 
maintain weekly engagement, receive a truancy letter if behind 10 more days, and meet with the Program Director is they exceed 15 
absences. At this meeting, it is determined by the Site Leader, parent and or student, it the program is a good fit for the student or if 
they are to be returned to their home school of residence. Students are also assessed academically an through the ability to maintain 
their studies. Students who continue to struggle may be referred to a Student Study Team (SST) to determine if there are other factors 
that are affecting the child's progress, and may require additional assessment for a possible section #504 or Special Education 
services. 


Analysis of School Nutrition 


A description of the successes and challenges in providing school nutrition in the 2020-21 school year. 
Meals were provided by MUSD at designated times, sites and days. MCIA students and parents were able to access meals by picking 
up breakfast and lunches at these sites. This information was shared with all MCIA parents and community members via school 
websites, ParentSquare in English and Spanish and home mailers. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 24 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


     
 


        


    
  


 
 


 
 


     
 


                 
          


         
 


  
 


                  
         


                    
                    


                      
                      


                 
                    


                     
                        


 
                     


  
                   


                      
                  


                   
                   


                    
                   


                    


startcollapse


Additional Actions and Plan Requirements 


Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan 


Section Description Total 
Budgeted Funds 


Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 


Contributing 


A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and budgeted expenditures for the additional plan 
requirements and what was implemented and expended on the actions. 
N/A 


Overall Analysis 


An explanation of how lessons learned from implementing in-person and distance learning programs in 2020-21 have informed the 
development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP. 
From the distance learning and in-person models used at MCIA in 2020-21, the challenges and successes of distance learning and 
the return to in-person learning, during the COVID-19 pandemic, informed greatly, the development of the goals and actions for the 
2021–24 LCAP. As part of this analysis, MCIA utilized its ongoing response to the COVID-19 pandemic to ensure that health and 
safety considerations were of highest priority to students returning to school in the Fall of 2021. During the distance learning model of 
2019-20, students were monitored academically, socially-emotionally and for attendance and will continue to be for the upcoming 
school year, to ensure higher engagement, attendance and academic success. As a result, goals and actions were specified to meet 
the needs of all students returning to in-person instruction in the Fall of 2021. Finally, as indicated from local indicators, engagement 
remains a high priority for MCIA, as this area has proven traditionally low in the program. 


An explanation of how pupil learning loss continues to be assessed and addressed in the 2021–24 LCAP, especially for pupils with 
unique needs. 
To address pupil learning loss, MCIA will include in the 2021-24 LCAP, the following best practices, programs and interventions. 
Similar to the 4/6/21 start, in-person learning is scheduled to continue the Fall of 2021. For this start, social-emotional supports will be 
provided for all pupils; particularly those with unique needs (including low income students, English learners, pupils with disabilities 
served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing homelessness.) 1:1 student 
technology will also be continued for the 2021-22 school year to allow all students to access content through technology-driven 
instruction and have an accessible mode of Zoom communication if necessary. i-Ready and LAS links will be utilized as local 
indicators to addressed in the 2021–24 LCAP, to diagnose loss learning, utilize the data from these formative assessments and 
provide appropriate accelerated interventions for students who are behind in grade level. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 25 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


 
                  


                   
  


                
                   


                   
                    


                     
                
                     


               
 


A description of any substantive differences between the description of the actions or services identified as contributing towards 
meeting the increased or improved services requirement and the actions or services implemented to meet the increased or improved 
services requirement. 
Descriptions of the substantive differences between the actions and/or services identified as contributing towards meeting the 
increased or improved services requirement, pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496, and the 
actions and/or services that the LEA implemented to meet the increased or improved services requirement. Because of the COVID-19 
pandemic, all actions and services could not be fulfilled and therefore, supplemental and concentration funds will roll over into next 
year's budget to serve the needs of unduplicated pupils. MCIA has provided a description of substantive differences to actions and/or 
services identified as contributing towards meeting the increased or improved services requirement within the In-person Instruction, 
distance learning program, learning Loss, or Additional Actions sections of the Annual Update the LEA is not required to include those 
descriptions as part of this overall analysis. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 26 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


            
   


 
                    


            
                   


                  
                       


                        
                     
                    


              
                      


                   
                    
                     


                     
                    


                
                       


                   
                  


                     
                   


               
                


                      
 


Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and
Attendance Plan 
A description of how the analysis and reflection on student outcomes in the 2019-20 LCAP and 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan have informed the development of the 21-22 through 23-24 LCAP. 
From the 2019-20 MCIA LCAP and 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan, an analysis and reflection on how student 
outcomes have informed the development of the 2021-22 through 23-24 LCAP, is presented as follows: With extensive stakeholder 
input, and a modification of the MCIA program to serve PreK-8th grades, Goals #1-3 were modified to the following: All students will be 
at or above grade level by the end of the school year academically, socially, and emotionally; all students in grade 8 will be prepared 
for high school. The MCIA program will provide resources and services to ensure the social and emotional well-being of every student 
and staff to provide a safe environment conducive to learning. MCIA staff will have greater stakeholder participation and input by 
developing and fostering meaningful parent and family relationships Because 2019-20 CAASPP summative assessment and 
dashboard data were not available to support in the decision making process for the 2020-21 schoolyear, the shift to i-Ready, as a 
local indicator, serves as a diagnostic, progress monitor and summative assessment, became our primary growth indicator. MCIA 3rd -
8th grade students were still required to take the 2020-21 CAASPP summative assessments, to assist in providing baseline data for 
the writing of the 2021-23 LCAP. Based on MCIA's CAASPP results from 2018-19 in ELA and Math, these CORE areas, including 
ELD, will continue to be a focus of instructional development for staff professional growth and training for the 2021-22 school year. 
With the Distance Learning Model being implemented in the LCP of 2020-21, MCIA will continue to provide 1:1 technology and 
connectivity to students to ensure students are successful academically for the School 2021-22. Additional Social-Emotional supports 
and training will continue to be provided to address the needs of students and staff as students transition back to a 100% in-person 
learning model for the school year 2021-22. Parent engagement and community partnerships will also be a continued focus and 
reflection of improvement as MCIA struggles in maintaining high rates of parent participation and community involvement. Finally pupil 
learning loss will continue to be assessed and addressed in the 2021–24 LCAP, particularly for pupils with unique needs (including low 
income students, English learners, pupils with disabilities served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and 
pupils who are experiencing homelessness) with Madera County interagency collaboration, continued monitoring of student academic 
progress and attendance monitoring, SEL supports from CAES counselors and homeless the CAES liaison academic interventions 
based on interim i-Ready diagnostic assessments and regularly scheduled SSTs, IEPs and Section #504's. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 27 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


  
                    


                    
                    
                     


                  
 


           
 


  
                


                 
              


   
                   


                       
                     


              
 


                 
        


  
                    


 


                    
                    


                 
           


Annual Measurable Outcomes


Actions/Services


Instructions: Introduction 
The Annual Update Template for the 2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and the Annual Update for the 2020–21 
Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan must be completed as part of the development of the 2021-22 LCAP. In subsequent years, 
the Annual Update will be completed using the LCAP template and expenditure tables adopted by the State Board of Education. 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the LCAP template, please contact the local COE, or the 
California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at 
lcff@cde.ca.gov. 


Instructions: Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan
Year 
Annual Update 
The planned goals, state and/or local priorities, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the approved 2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). Minor typographical errors may be corrected. 
Duplicate the Goal, Annual Measurable Outcomes, Actions / Services and Analysis tables as needed. 


For each goal in 2019-20, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as compared to the expected annual measurable 
outcomes identified in 2019-20 for the goal. If an actual measurable outcome is not available due to the impact of COVID-19 provide a 
brief explanation of why the actual measurable outcome is not available. If an alternative metric was used to measure progress towards 
the goal, specify the metric used and the actual measurable outcome for that metric. 


Identify the planned Actions/Services, the budgeted expenditures to implement these actions toward achieving the described goal and 
the actual expenditures to implement the actions/services. 
Goal Analysis 
Using available state and local data and input from parents, students, teachers, and other stakeholders, respond to the prompts as 
instructed. 


 If funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were expended on other actions and services through the end 
of the school year, describe how the funds were used to support students, including low-income, English learner, or foster youth 
students, families, teachers and staff. This description may include a description of actions/services implemented to mitigate the 
impact of COVID-19 that were not part of the 2019-20 LCAP. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 28 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 



mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov





    


                  
                  


                


          
 


  
                 


       


       
                    


                


                
           


     


                  
                 


              


       
                    


                  


                
             


      


                  
                   


    
     
       


Analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings


Analysis of the Distance Learning Program


 Describe the overall successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services. As part of the description, specify which 
actions/services were not implemented due to the impact of COVID-19, as applicable. To the extent practicable, LEAs are 
encouraged to include a description of the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal. 


Instructions: Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance
Plan 
Annual Update 
The action descriptions and budgeted expenditures must be copied verbatim from the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance 
Plan. Minor typographical errors may be corrected. 


Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings 
 In the table, identify the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures to implement actions related to in-person instruction and 


the estimated actual expenditures to implement the actions. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 


 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for in-person instruction and 
what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable. 


 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in implementing in-person instruction in the 2020-21 school year, as applicable. If in-
person instruction was not provided to any students in 2020-21, please state as such. 


Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program 
 In the table, identify the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures to implement actions related to the distance learning 


program and the estimated actual expenditures to implement the actions. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 


 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the distance learning 
program and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable. 


 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in implementing distance learning in the 2020-21 school year in each of the following 
areas, as applicable: 


o Continuity of Instruction, 
o Access to Devices and Connectivity, 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 29 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


      
      
       
                  


             
                    


                


      
                    


                  


                
             


     


                  
                   


                    
                


  


         
                  


                 
           


        
                  


                 
                     
                 


   


    


Analysis of Pupil Learning Loss


o Pupil Participation and Progress, 
o Distance Learning Professional Development, 
o Staff Roles and Responsibilities, and 
o Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs, including English learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full 


continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing homelessness 
To the extent practicable, LEAs are encouraged to include an analysis of the effectiveness of the distance learning program to 
date. If distance learning was not provided to any students in 2020-21, please state as such. 


Actions Related to Pupil Learning Loss 
 In the table, identify the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures to implement actions related to addressing pupil learning 


loss and the estimated actual expenditures to implement the actions. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 


 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for addressing pupil learning 
loss and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable. 


 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in addressing Pupil Learning Loss in the 2020-21 school year, as applicable. To the 
extent practicable, include an analysis of the effectiveness of the efforts to address pupil learning loss, including for pupils who 
are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils who are experiencing homelessness, 
as applicable. 


Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 
 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 


the successes and challenges experienced in monitoring and supporting Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being of 
both pupils and staff during the 2020-21 school year, as applicable. 


Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 
 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 


the successes and challenges related to pupil engagement and outreach during the 2020-21 school year, including implementing 
tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who were absent from distance learning and the efforts of the LEA in reaching out to 
pupils and their parents or guardians when pupils were not meeting compulsory education requirements or engaging in 
instruction, as applicable. 


Analysis of School Nutrition 
Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 30 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


                  
                 


           


          
                     


                


                 
                 


          
                     


                  
             
                    


                  
              


                     
                 


              


                
                   


                   
                
               
                     


            
  


                      
      


                    
              


 


 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in providing nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils during the 2020-21 school 
year, whether participating in in-person instruction or distance learning, as applicable. 


Analysis of Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan 
 In the table, identify the section, the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures for the additional actions and the estimated 


actual expenditures to implement the actions, as applicable. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 


 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the additional actions to 
implement the learning continuity plan and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable. 


Overall Analysis of the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 
The Overall Analysis prompts are to be responded to only once, following an analysis of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan. 


 Provide an explanation of how the lessons learned from implementing in-person and distance learning programs in 2020-21 
have informed the development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP. 


o As part of this analysis, LEAs are encouraged to consider how their ongoing response to the COVID-19 pandemic has 
informed the development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP, such as health and safety considerations, distance 
learning, monitoring and supporting mental health and social-emotional well-being and engaging pupils and families. 


 Provide an explanation of how pupil learning loss continues to be assessed and addressed in the 2021–24 LCAP, especially for 
pupils with unique needs (including low income students, English learners, pupils with disabilities served across the full 
continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing homelessness). 


 Describe any substantive differences between the actions and/or services identified as contributing towards meeting the 
increased or improved services requirement, pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496, and the 
actions and/or services that the LEA implemented to meet the increased or improved services requirement. If the LEA has 
provided a description of substantive differences to actions and/or services identified as contributing towards meeting the 
increased or improved services requirement within the In-Person Instruction, Distance Learning Program, Learning Loss, or 
Additional Actions sections of the Annual Update the LEA is not required to include those descriptions as part of this description. 


Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and
Attendance Plan 
The Overall Analysis prompt is to be responded to only once, following the analysis of both the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 
Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan. 


 Describe how the analysis and reflection related to student outcomes in the 2019-20 LCAP and 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan have informed the development of the 21-22 through 23-24 LCAP, as applicable. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 31 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


    
  


 


California Department of Education 
January 2021 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 32 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


 


           
  


 
     


  
 


  
 


 
  


 
     


    
   
    
      


   
 
            


  


Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year
Expenditure Summary 


Total Expenditures by Funding Source 


Funding Source 
2019-20 


Annual Update
Budgeted 


2019-20 
Annual Update


Actual 
All Funding Sources 873,900.00 859,185.00 
CSI Grant 172,000.00 95,397.00 
LCFF 0.00 0.00 
LCFF Base 406,400.00 441,163.00 
LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 295,500.00 322,625.00 


0.00 $4,879.00 


* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 33 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


     


  
 


  
 


 
  


 
     


   
      
      
     
      
        


 
            


  


Total Expenditures by Object Type 


Object Type 
2019-20 


Annual Update
Budgeted 


2019-20 
Annual Update


Actual 
All Expenditure Types 873,900.00 859,185.00 


682,000.00 23,100.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 8,600.00 511,409.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 0.00 6,900.00 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 6,100.00 15,700.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 172,000.00 97,397.00 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures 5,200.00 204,679.00 


* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 34 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


        


    
 


  
 


 
  


 
        


     
       


       
        
          
        
       
        
        
     


 
    


     
 


      


    
 
            


  


Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 


Object Type Funding Source 
2019-20 


Annual Update
Budgeted 


2019-20 
Annual Update


Actual 
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 873,900.00 859,185.00 


LCFF Base 400,300.00 12,400.00 
LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 281,700.00 10,700.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries LCFF 0.00 0.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 0.00 277,763.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 8,600.00 233,646.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 0.00 6,900.00 
3000-3999: Employee Benefits LCFF Base 6,100.00 15,700.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies CSI Grant 172,000.00 95,397.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies LCFF Base 0.00 2,000.00 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 


LCFF Base 0.00 126,400.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 


LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 5,200.00 78,279.00 


0.00 4,879.00 


* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 35 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


    


 
 


  
 


 
  


 
    
    
    


 
            


Total Expenditures by Goal 


Goal 
2019-20 


Annual Update
Budgeted 


2019-20 
Annual Update


Actual 
Goal 1 566,900.00 556,506.00 
Goal 2 263,100.00 264,679.00 
Goal 3 43,900.00 38,000.00 


* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 36 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







    


          
  


 
    


     


     


     


     


       


          
 


        


     


     


     


     


       


          
 


       


     


     


     


     


       


          


Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan
Expenditure Summary 


Total Expenditures by Offering/Program 


Offering/Program 2020-21 Budgeted 2020-21 Actual 


In-Person Instructional Offerings $377,272.00 $335,174.00 


Distance Learning Program $34,400.00 $30,400.00 


Pupil Learning Loss $78,379.00 $63,100.00 


Additional Actions and Plan Requirements N/A 


All Expenditures in Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan $490,051.00 $428,674.00 


Expenditures by Offering/Program (Not Contributing to Increased/Improved requirement) 


Offering/Program 2020-21 Budgeted 2020-21 Actual 


In-Person Instructional Offerings $332,272.00 $303,138.00 


Distance Learning Program 


Pupil Learning Loss $500.00 $500.00 


Additional Actions and Plan Requirements 


All Expenditures in Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan $377,772.00 $335,674.00 


Expenditures by Offering/Program (Contributing to Increased/Improved requirement) 


Offering/Program 2020-21 Budgeted 2020-21 Actual 


In-Person Instructional Offerings $45,000.00 $32,036.00 


Distance Learning Program $34,400.00 $30,400.00 


Pupil Learning Loss $77,879.00 $62,600.00 


Additional Actions and Plan Requirements 


All Expenditures in Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan $157,279.00 $125,036.00 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 37 of 37 
Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 







         
 


           


   


       
          


  
   


    


    


 
                  


          
    
      


     
    
    


    
 


         
      
       
           


      
 


           
             


           
 


      
         


        


 


   


       
      


       
          


             
          
            


         
  


 
 


2021-22 LCFF Budget Overview for Parents Data Input Sheet 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 


CDS Code: 20102070117184 


LEA Contact Information: Name: Mr. Hugo Sanchez 
Position: Program Director - Career and Alternative Education Services 
Email: hsanchez@mcsos.org 
Phone: (559) 662-6211 


Coming School Year: 2021-22 


Current School Year: 2020-21 


*NOTE: The "High Needs Students" referred to in the tables below are Unduplicated Students for LCFF funding purposes. 


Projected General Fund Revenue for the 2021-22 School Year Amount 
Total LCFF Funds $696,771 


LCFF Supplemental & Concentration Grants $166,562 


All Other State Funds $57,486 


All Local Funds $17,841 


All federal funds $18,358 


Total Projected Revenue $790,456 


Total Budgeted Expenditures for the 2021-22 School Year Amount 
Total Budgeted General Fund Expenditures $1,032,585 


Total Budgeted Expenditures in the LCAP $974,566 


Total Budgeted Expenditures for High Needs Students in the LCAP $380,773 


Expenditures not in the LCAP $58,019 


Expenditures for High Needs Students in the 2020-21 School Year Amount 
Total Budgeted Expenditures for High Needs Students in the Learning Continuity Plan $245,757 


Actual Expenditures for High Needs Students in Learning Continuity Plan $255,864 


Funds for High Needs Students Amount 


2021-22 Difference in Projected Funds and Budgeted Expenditures $214,211 


2020-21 Difference in Budgeted and Actual Expenditures $10,107 


Required Prompts(s) Response(s) 


Briefly describe any of the General Fund
Budget Expenditures for the school year
not included in the Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP). 


Total General Fund Budget is $1,032,585 and of the total $58,019 is not 
included due to general operations of charter, such as expenditures 
including, but not limited to, annual building rental fee, daily expenses of 
office and classroom supplies. Fiscal and Operations/Facilities costs were 
not included. 







     
 


           


   


   


   
   


         
 


  
 


              
                 


                 
              


 
       


 
              


          
 


               
                


LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 


CDS Code: 20102070117184 


School Year: 2021-22 


LEA contact information: 
Mr. Hugo Sanchez 
Program Director - Career and Alternative Education Services 
hsanchez@mcsos.org 
(559) 662-6211 


School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of 
funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based 
on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students). 


Budget Overview for the 2021-22 School Year 


This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA 
expects to receive in the coming year from all sources. 


The total revenue projected for Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA is $790,456, of which 
$696,771 is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $57,486 is other state funds, $17,841 is local funds, 



mailto:hsanchez@mcsos.org





                  
            


 
  


and $18,358 is federal funds. Of the $696,771 in LCFF Funds, $166,562 is generated based on the 
enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income students). 







     
 


                 
                


              
 


 
                 


                    
 


                
                  
                


 
                 


                
                    


 
              


  
 


                
             


                  
                


      
 
  
  


LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school 
districts must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students. 


This chart provides a quick summary of how much Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA plans to 
spend for 2021-22. It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP. 


Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA plans to spend $1,032,585 for the 2021-22 school year. Of 
that amount, $974,566 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and $58,019 is not included in the LCAP. 
The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the following: 


Total General Fund Budget is $1,032,585 and of the total $58,019 is not included due to general 
operations of charter, such as expenditures including, but not limited to, annual building rental fee, daily 
expenses of office and classroom supplies. Fiscal and Operations/Facilities costs were not included. 


Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2021-22 
School Year 


In 2021-22, Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA is projecting it will receive $166,562 based on 
the enrollment of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Madera County Independent 
Academy - MCIA must describe how it intends to increase or improve services for high needs students in 
the LCAP. Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA plans to spend $380,773 towards meeting this 
requirement, as described in the LCAP. 







     
 


            


 
               


               
                


                
  


 
             
               


                
   


 
 


LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2020-21 


This chart compares what Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA budgeted last year in the 
Learning Continuity Plan for actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for 
high needs students with what Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA estimates it has spent on 
actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students in the 


current year. 


In 2020-21, Madera County Independent Academy - MCIA's Learning Continuity Plan budgeted $245,757 
for planned actions to increase or improve services for high needs students. Madera County Independent 
Academy - MCIA actually spent $255,864 for actions to increase or improve services for high needs 
students in 2020-21. 





		Agenda Item 5.1 Board of Education Informational Item June 8, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:



		Local Control Accountability Plan

		Plan Summary [2021-22]

		General Information

		Reflections: Successes

		Reflections: Identified Need

		LCAP Highlights

		Comprehensive Support and Improvement

		Stakeholder Engagement

		Goals and Actions

		Measuring and Reporting Results

		Actions

		Goal Analysis [2021-22]



		Goals and Actions

		Goal

		Measuring and Reporting Results

		Actions

		Goal Analysis [2021-22]



		Goals and Actions

		Goal

		Measuring and Reporting Results

		Actions

		Goal Analysis [2021-22]





		Increased or Improved Service s for Foster Youth, English Learners , and Low- Income Students [2021 -22]

		Required Descriptions

		Total Expenditures Table

		Instructions

		Introduction and Instructions

		Plan Summary

		Purpose

		Requirements and Instructions



		Stakeholder Engagement

		Purpose

		Requirements and Instructions



		Goals and Actions

		Purpose

		Requirements and Instructions



		Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students

		Purpose

		Requirements and Instructions

		For School Districts Only:



		Expenditure Tables

		Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control andAccountability Plan

		Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year



		Goal 1

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services

		Goal Analysis



		Goal 2

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services

		Goal Analysis

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services

		Goal Analysis



		Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan

		In-Person Instructional Offerings

		Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings

		Analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings



		Distance Learning Program

		Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program

		Analysis of the Distance Learning Program



		Pupil Learning Loss

		Actions Related to the Pupil Learning Loss

		Analysis of Pupil Learning Loss

		Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being

		Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach

		Analysis of School Nutrition



		Additional Actions and Plan Requirements

		Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan

		Overall Analysis



		Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity andAttendance Plan

		Instructions: Introduction

		Instructions: Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability PlanYear Annual Update

		Instructions: Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and AttendancePlan Annual Update

		Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings

		Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program

		Actions Related to Pupil Learning Loss

		Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being

		Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach

		Analysis of School Nutrition

		Analysis of Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan

		Overall Analysis of the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan

		Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity andAttendance Plan

		Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan YearExpenditure Summary



		Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance PlanExpenditure Summary

		2021-22 LCFF Budget Overview for Parents Data Input Sheet

		LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

		Budget Overview for the 2021-22 School Year



		LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

		LCFF Budget Overview for Parents










 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


UNADOPTED 


Minutes of 
Madera County Board of Education 


May 11, 2021 


Present: Cathie Bustos, Shelley Deniz, Tammy Loveland, Zimri Padilla, Brian 
Ramirez, Alfred Soares, Jr., Joe Vived, Dr. Cecilia A. Massetti, Executive 
Secretary 


Absent: None 


Also Present: Kristen Anderson, Fred Cogan, Julie DeWall, Jessica Drake, Jennifer 
Pascale, Tricia Protzman, Kellie Stiles, Dianna Young 


1.0 Call to Order 
1.1 Flag Salute 
President Alfred Soares, Jr., called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m., followed by the 
flag salute. 


2.0 Consideration of Minutes 
2.1 Regular Meeting April 13, 2021
Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item. 


Tammy Loveland moved to approve the minutes of April 13, 2021, seconded by Shelley 
Deniz and carried by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: Bustos 
Absent: None 


3.0 Adoption of Board Agenda
Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item. 


Shelley Deniz moved to adopt the agenda as presented, seconded by Cathie Bustos 
and carried by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


4.0 Information
4.1 Public Comment 
President Soares, Jr., stated this time is offered to members of the public wishing to 
address the Board on matters under the jurisdiction of the Board, but not listed on the 
agenda. Board members may listen to, but not discuss matters not on the agenda.  


1 of 8 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


UNADOPTED 


(G.C. 54954.2) The Board will not take action on any items presented under public 
comment. Speakers are limited to three minutes. 


Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item.  
No one came forward to address the Board. 


4.2 Letters and Communications 
Executive Secretary Massetti reported: 


 Jaime Brock of Sherman Thomas Charter School sent an e-mail detailing her 
gratitude for the work and professionalism of Kristi Winter and Dianna Marsh on 
the Math Competition.  She commented, “They run it with excellence and there is 
definitely a competitiveness and a seriousness in the integrity of the tests and 
process.” 


 Pioneer Technical Center (PTC) Principal Scott Ellingson received a letter from 
Western Association of Schools and Colleges explaining that PTC meets the 
Accrediting Commission for Schools criteria for accreditation.  PTC will no longer 
be on probation. Accreditation status will continue through June 30, 2025, with a 
mid-cycle visit in 2021-2022. 


 The Madera Community College “Academic Village 2” ground breaking 
ceremony was held May 7, 2021. 


4.3 Non-School Sources 
None 


4.4 Madera County School Boards Association (MCSBA) Executive Committee 
Meeting Report
Mrs. Deniz reported that the Executive Committee and Budget and Finance Committee met 
on April 30, 2021.  The Committee discussed ramping up the scholarship fund. They talked 
about collecting $20 from each member from all of the boards. The next meeting is scheduled 
for August 25th in the Bass Lake Joint Union Elementary School District. Dr. Massetti added 
the program would center around COVID: what we learned and how schools opened.  A 
panel of superintendents will talk about the opening process and then questions will be 
distributed to the group for a table talk session. Mrs. Protzman will help facilitate the table 
talk. Kirk Delmas, Jim Sargent, and Dianna Marsh will also present. 


A professional development opportunity will be available on a Saturday in September.  A 
survey will be sent to MCSBA members to see which Saturday works best.  Dr. Linda Jordan 
of The International Center for Leadership in Education will present on Hope in Learning and 
Social Emotional Learning (SEL): Philosophy to Action. 


4.5 Madera County Foundation Board Report 
None 


4.6 Member Report(s)
Mr. Vived recommended an article from California Schools, which talked about school 


2 of 8 







 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


UNADOPTED 


choices: in-person, online, or hybrid opportunities.  COVID taught us that some students 
actually do better with online courses. The article offers ideas on how schools can be 
competitive and offer more options. 


5.0 Information from the Superintendent and Staff 
5.1 Revision for the Governor’s Budget 
Mrs. DeWall stated the governor revises the January State budget proposals in May.  
Usually, the information comes out all at once.  This year, the governor has been 
releasing “sneak peaks” of the revision at press conferences held this week.  On 
Monday, he talked about direct tax rebates as well as renters and utilities support. 
Tuesday, he talked about putting supports in place for the homeless. The full budget 
revision should be out by Friday.  Right now, iIt looks as though the budget will have a 
surplus of about $76 billion. 


Two workshops will be offered:  


 May 20: Presented by School Services of California, “May Revision Workshop.”  
The cost to attend is $230. 


 May 27: Capitol Advisors May Revise Webinar is free to attend. 


5.2 MCSOS’ Report on Williams Complaints
Dr. Massetti reported no complaints have been received. 


5.3 Assignment Monitoring 
Mrs. Protzman introduced Coordinator, Human Resources and Credentials Kristen 
Anderson. Ms. Anderson reviewed the Assignment Monitoring process. Until 2019-
2020 assignment monitoring consisted of monitoring ¼ of the certificated assignments 
in the county and the Williams Schools (deciles 1-3).  Reports were submitted to the 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) by June 30 each year.  The process was 
not technologically based.  In the future, it will be much more streamlined and will utilize 
several database systems. 


The California Statewide Assignment Accountability System (CalSAAS) is the new 
system of Assignment Monitoring, which will allow annual monitoring of all certificated 
educator assignments. The system automates the identification of questionable 
assignments, or “exceptions,” doing away with the cumbersome paper monitoring 
process of manually reviewing.  CalSAAS works through the comparison of the 
California Department of Education’s California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data 
System (CalPADS) assignment data and the Commission’s Credential authorization 
data by educator’s California Statewide Educator Identifier (SEID).  Through this 
comparison, the system identifies exceptions, and provides Local Educational Agencies 
(LEAs) and County Offices of Education with an opportunity to address anomalies, and 
correct verified misassignments.  


Once the report is released, school districts have 60 days to review their data.  The 
County Office of Education has another 30 days for a total of 90.  This year’s data will 


3 of 8 







 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


UNADOPTED 


be received at the end of May. The snapshot will be taken on the first Wednesday in 
October. 


Consequences of misassignments have not been detailed.  However, districts will 
receive a letter listing the misassignments. The misassignments are also reported in 
the audit. It is public information and it is reported in the School Accountability Report 
Cards (SARCs). 


6.0 Old Business 
None 


7.0 Closed Session 
None 


8.0 New Business 
8.1 Consideration Issuance of Temporary County Certificates
Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item. 


Mrs. Protzman asked the Board to ratify the issuance of Temporary County Certificates 
(TCCs) from April 1-30, 2021. TCCs are issued in order to authorize the individual to 
work while the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing reviews his/her waiver 
request, emergency permit, initial and/or renewal credential application packet. 


Brian Ramirez moved to ratify the TCCs, seconded by Cathie Bustos and carried by 
unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


8.2 Consideration Disposition of Surplus/Obsolete Equipment 
Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item. 


Mrs. DeWall provided the Board with a list of equipment declared obsolete.  Items 
included: Chromebooks, laptops, Apple IPDs, and a Dell projector. 


Tammy Loveland moved to approve the list of equipment declared obsolete, seconded 
by Zimri Padilla and carried by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


4 of 8 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


UNADOPTED 


8.3 Consideration of Investment Performance Statement 
Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item. 


Mrs. DeWall reported the County Treasurer-Tax Collector’s investments continue to 
provide as favorable a rate of return as can be expected in the current financial market.  
The rate is 0.57%. Compared to last year (2.16%) there has been a decrease of 1.59%. 


Cathie Bustos moved to adopt the Investment Performance Statement as presented, 
seconded by Zimri Padilla and carried by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


8.4 Consideration Resolution No. 5, Education Protection Act 
Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item. 


Mrs. DeWall stated Article XIII, Section 36 of the California Constitution requires that 
school districts, county office of education, and community college districts determine 
how the moneys received from the Education Protection Account (EPA) are spent within 
their schools, provided that the governing board makes the spending determinations in 
an open session of a public meeting. 


The EPA revenue for 2021-2022 for Madera County Superintendent of Schools is 
estimated to be $15,974, for Pioneer Technical Center $619,329, and Madera County 
Independent Academy the estimate is $136,963.  In all three settings, funds will be used 
to fund direct instructional services such as instructional salaries and benefits. 


Tammy Loveland moved to adopt Resolution No. 5, 2021-2022 Education Protection 
Account, seconded by Brian Ramirez and carried by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


8.5 Consideration Expenditure Plan for SB/AB 86 Funds for Expanded
Learning Opportunities Grant 
8.5.1 Pioneer Technical Center 
8.5.2 Madera County Independent Academy 
8.5.3 Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item. 


Mr. Cogan reviewed the Expenditure Plan for SB/AB 86 funds. Supplemental instruction 
and supports will be provided to low-income students, English learners, foster youth, 


5 of 8 







 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


UNADOPTED 


homeless students, students with disabilities, students at risk of abuse, neglect, or 
exploitation, disengaged students, and students who are below grade level. 
Mr. Vived asked about the social emotional training provided to staff.  Julia Garcia of 
Madera County Behavioral Health provided the training. No one is certain what to 
expect coming out of the pandemic. What is certain is that students and families have 
dealt with loss of loved ones, food scarcity, poverty, etc.  Those issues will impact 
student learning and having educators informed on behaviorsthings to look for and how 
to address coping skills will be beneficial to students. 


Mr. Cogan reported only 30% of CAES students returned to in-person instruction.  Ms. 
Drake said that 70% of special education students returned.  


Ms. Drake explained that the social emotional element is built in to the Apollo mental 
health programs. Behaviors may have regressed for severely disabled students.  Staff 
trainings look different depending on the students being served.  


Mr. Cogan added the training for staff and families is needed and so is training for 
families. Workshops regarding students with depression and suicide prevention are 
needed. 


President Soares, Jr., asked if the funds must be used now. Dr. Massetti explained the 
funding may be spent between now and August 2022.  There are different funding pots 
and each comes with stipulations on what they can be used for and when they must be 
spentused. 


President Soares, Jr., asked when traditional school without an online option will begin.  
Dr. Massetti stated we are waiting for the State to pass legislation and for the Governor 
to announce his proposal. 


Cathie Bustos moved to accept the Expenditure Plans as presented, seconded by 
Tammy Loveland and carried by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


8.6 Consideration of Apportionment of Forest Reserve 
Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item. 


Mrs. DeWall stated every year MCSOS is told the Forest Reserve will be going away.  
However, for the last six years we have received it, just later in the year than usual.  The 
County Board of Education must approve the amounts apportioned to each school 
district before the distribution of funds can be made. 


She explained that money is generated from the lumber that is cut. Districts lose money 


6 of 8 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


UNADOPTED 


on forestry land and the Forest Reserve helps to offset the loss. 


Brian Ramirez moved to adopt the Forest Reserve Apportionment for 2020-2021, 
seconded by Shelley Deniz and carried by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


9.0 Other
9.1 Consideration Madera County Board of Education Bylaw 9350 Member 
Participation in Conferences
Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item. 


Dr. Massetti reported that the “waiver of attendance” was asked about during the last 
Board meeting., so sShe located two policies that discuss attendance and brought them 
to the Board for review. 


Board Bylaw 9350 outlines the meeting attendance requirements for Board members to 
attend conferences. Board members must attend 75% of meetings in order to have the 
opportunity to go to conferences.  Dr. Massetti suggested removing item number two of 
the policy. 


The Board discussed this suggestion and concluded that excusing the absence of a 
Board member was unnecessary because they should attend all meetings. , but that
kKeeping the requirement of attending meetings at least 75% in order to go to 
conferences should remain in the policy. 


Tammy Loveland moved to remove item number two of the Madera County Board of 
Education Bylaw 9350, seconded by Cathie Bustos and carried by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


9.2 Review of MCBE BB 9221 Filling of Vacancies 
Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item. 


Dr. Massetti explained that the filling of vacancies is specified in the law.  However, 
there is a line in item seven of Board Bylaw 9221 that reads, “or when otherwise 
excused by the Board.”  For clarity, Dr. Massetti suggested removing this line.  
President Soares, Jr., commented that removing the line would clean-up the policy.  
Mrs. Loveland noted that another Board she served on had similar guidelines and that a 
vacancy when a member “ceases to discharge the duties of his/her office for the period 


7 of 8 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 


 


UNADOPTED 


of three (3) consecutive months,” is typical. 


Cathie Bustos moved to remove, “or when otherwise excused by the Board,” from item 
seven of Madera County Board of Education Board Bylaw 9221, seconded by Tammy 
Loveland and carried by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


9.3 Consideration Excusing Member from Absence at a Meeting for Purposes 
of Member Participation in Conference(s)
No longer applicable. 


10.0 Adjournment
Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item. 


Dr. Massetti reminded the Board that a special meeting will be held June 29, 2021. 


Shelley Deniz moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Cathie Bustos and carried by 
unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


The meeting adjourned at 4:50 p.m. 


Respectfully submitted, 


Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools 


8 of 8 








 


  
 


 


      
 


  
 
 


 
 


   
  


 
 


    
    


  
 


  
   


   
   


 
    


   
 


    
 


     
 


 
    


    
  


 
  


    
  


Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


Agenda Item 5.2 


Board of Education 
Public Hearing for the Proposed Budget


Madera County Independent Academy 2021-2022
June 8, 2021 


Topic:
The Madera County Independent Academy (MCIA) Budget for the 2021-
2022 school year along with the Estimated Actual Budget Projections for the 
2020-2021 year. 


Background:
The attached Madera County Independent Academy’s Proposed Budget for 
the 2021-2022 school year, drawing from the Governor’s May Revision 
Budget information, is based upon the following assumptions: 


1. We assumed a 5.07% COLA (Cost-of-Living Adjustment) applied to 
the LCFF components 


2. ADA used in the budget is 58.75 and 1.64 


3. Step and Column adjustments are assumed at 1.5% for each of the 
next two years. 


4. PERS rate increase is anticipated to go from 20.7% to 22.91% for the 
2021-2022 year, then to 26.1% in the 2022-2023 year and then 
27.1% in the 2023-2024 year. 


5. STRS rate increase is anticipated to go from 16.15% to 16.92% for 
the 2021-2022 year, then to 19.1% in 2022-2023 and then 19.1% 
again in the 2023-2024 year. 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 



www.mcsos.org





 


 


 
  


  
    


     
 


         
   


 


  
  


     


 
 


 
 


 
 
  


  
 
 


6. Estimated supply, services and equipment budgets have been designed to meet 
program and operational needs and have been aligned to program goals. 
Additional staff development is envisioned to support students from lower income 
households, English Learners, and Foster youth. 


7. The budget as it now stands reflects a decrease to the ending fund balance of 
$242,129.  


Legislative leadership and the Governor will be working out a plan to move forward with 
for next year.  Significant changes may be part of that and may require a 45-day budget 
revision. More information will be available once the State Budget is enacted. 


Financial Impact:
Outlined above. 


Resource: 
Julie DeWall 
Chief Officer 
Business & Administrative Services 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


 
 


      


      


       


       


      


 
 


      


      


      


       


         


      


           
          


           


      


    
        
            


   
 
      
          


          


       
         


         


     


        


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


A. REVENUES 


1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 663,522.00 696,771.00 5.0% 


2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 85,215.00 18,358.00 -78.5% 


3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 15,272.00 57,486.00 276.4% 


4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 17,841.00 17,841.00 0.0% 


5) TOTAL, REVENUES 781,850.00 790,456.00 1.1% 


B. EXPENDITURES 


1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 294,157.00 324,846.00 10.4% 


2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 101,432.00 107,623.00 6.1% 


3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 163,712.00 184,749.00 12.9% 


4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 75,845.00 44,943.00 -40.7% 


5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 317,913.00 327,535.00 3.0% 


6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 42,700.00 41,311.00 -3.3% 


7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299, 
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 6,485.00 1,578.00 -75.7% 


9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 1,002,244.00 1,032,585.00 3.0% 


C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) (220,394.00) (242,129.00) 9.9% 


D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 


1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 1 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:23 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


     
        


   
 
       
              


          


                 


          


              


           
            
         
              


             


              


              


         


         
              


              


          
              


          
               


             


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + D4) (220,394.00) (242,129.00) 9.9% 


F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 


1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 


b) Audit Adjustments 


c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 


d) Other Restatements 


e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 


2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 
Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 


Revolving Cash 


Stores 


Prepaid Items 


All Others 


b) Restricted 


c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 


Other Commitments 


d) Assigned 
Other Assignments 


e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 


Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 


9791 


9793 


9795 


9711 


9712 


9713 


9719 


9740 


9750 


9760 


9780 


9789 


9790 


1,935,234.00 1,714,840.00 -11.4% 


0.0% 


-11.4% 


0.0% 


-11.4% 


-14.1% 


0.00 0.00 


1,935,234.00 1,714,840.00 


0.00 0.00 


1,935,234.00 1,714,840.00 


1,714,840.00 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


1,472,711.00 


0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.0% 


0.0% 0.00 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


45,241.00 47,789.00 5.6% 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.0% 


0.0% 


0.0% 


-14.7% 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


1,669,599.00 1,424,922.00 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 2 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:23 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


 
     
           


                   


          


            


           


           


     


      


        


        


     


      


       


     


    


        


       


 


      


        


        


      


      


     


    


        


       


  


        
          


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


G. ASSETS 
1) Cash 


a) in County Treasury 


1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 


b) in Banks 


c) in Revolving Cash Account 


d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 


e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 


2) Investments 


3) Accounts Receivable 


4) Due from Grantor Government 


5) Due from Other Funds 


6) Stores 


7) Prepaid Expenditures 


8) Other Current Assets 


9) TOTAL, ASSETS 


9110 


9111 


9120 


9130 


9135 


9140 


9150 


9200 


9290 


9310 


9320 


9330 


9340 


1,587,419.55 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


42,545.00 


0.00 


40,929.00 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


1,670,893.55 


H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 


1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 


2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 


9490 0.00 


0.00 


I. LIABILITIES 


1) Accounts Payable 


2) Due to Grantor Governments 


3) Due to Other Funds 


4) Current Loans 


5) Unearned Revenue 


6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 


9500 


9590 


9610 


9640 


9650 


5,887.69 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


5,887.69 


J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 


1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 


2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 


9690 0.00 


0.00 


K. FUND EQUITY 


Ending Fund Balance, June 30 
(G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 1,665,005.86 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 3 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:23 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


 


   
        


           


        


   


         


           


            


      


         


    


 


    


     


     


    


    


     


      


        
   


        


       
   


        
   


       


         


  
  
  
  
  


   


     


      


    


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


LCFF SOURCES 


Principal Apportionment 
State Aid - Current Year 8011 447,222.00 480,471.00 7.4% 


Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 134,536.00 134,536.00 0.0% 


State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


LCFF Transfers 


Unrestricted LCFF Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other LCFF Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 81,764.00 81,764.00 0.0% 


Property Taxes Transfers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 663,522.00 696,771.00 5.0% 


FEDERAL REVENUE 


Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 
Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction 4035 8290 2,409.00 4,490.00 86.4% 


Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student 
Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Title III, Part A, English Learner 
Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Public Charter Schools Grant Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act 


3020, 3040, 3041, 
3045, 3060, 3061, 
3150, 3155, 3180, 
3181, 3182, 3185, 
4037, 4124, 4126, 


4127, 4128, 5510, 5630 8290 79,147.00 13,868.00 -82.5% 


Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 3,659.00 0.00 -100.0% 


TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 85,215.00 18,358.00 -78.5% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 4 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:23 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


   


    


       
       


       


          


          


      


      


         


         


       


      


        


       


      


     


       


     


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


OTHER STATE REVENUE 


Other State Apportionments 


Special Education Master Plan 
Current Year 


Prior Years 


All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 


All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 


Child Nutrition Programs 


Mandated Costs Reimbursements 


Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 


After School Education and Safety (ASES) 


Charter School Facility Grant 


Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 


California Clean Energy Jobs Act 


Career Technical Education Incentive 


Grant Program 


Specialized Secondary 


All Other State Revenue 


TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 


6500 


6500 


All Other 


All Other 


6010 


6030 


6690, 6695 


6230 


6387 


7370 


All Other 


8311 


8319 


8311 


8319 


8520 


8550 


8560 


8590 


8590 


8590 


8590 


8590 


8590 


8590 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.0% 


842.00 842.00 0.0% 


9,938.00 10,348.00 4.1% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


4,492.00 46,296.00 930.6% 


15,272.00 57,486.00 276.4% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 5 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:23 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


  


    
        


        


        


        


      


    


            


      


         


        
       


       


          


         


  


     


    
         
            


          


         


         
             


           


          


              


     


 


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 


Sales 
Sale of Equipment/Supplies 


Sale of Publications 


Food Service Sales 


All Other Sales 


Leases and Rentals 


Interest 


Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 


Fees and Contracts 


Child Development Parent Fees 


Transportation Fees From 
Individuals 


Interagency Services 


All Other Fees and Contracts 


All Other Local Revenue 


Tuition 


All Other Transfers In 


Transfers of Apportionments 
Special Education SELPA Transfers 


From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 


From County Offices 6500 


From JPAs 6500 


Other Transfers of Apportionments 
From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 


From County Offices All Other 


From JPAs All Other 


All Other Transfers In from All Others 


TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 


8631 


8632 


8634 


8639 


8650 


8660 


8662 


8673 


8675 


8677 


8689 


8699 


8710 


8781-8783 


8791 


8792 


8793 


8791 


8792 


8793 


8799 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


500.00 500.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


17,341.00 17,341.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


17,841.00 17,841.00 0.0% 


TOTAL, REVENUES 781,850.00 790,456.00 1.1% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 6 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:23 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


 
 


    


     


      


    


    


 
 


    


    


      


      


    


    


  
  


  


  


  


     


   


   


   


    


    


    


  
 


       


      


    


   


   


     


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


CERTIFICATED SALARIES 


Certificated Teachers' Salaries 


Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 


Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 


Other Certificated Salaries 


TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 


1100 


1200 


1300 


1900 


227,132.00 256,929.00 13.1% 


11,987.00 11,866.00 -1.0% 


55,038.00 56,051.00 1.8% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


294,157.00 324,846.00 10.4% 


CLASSIFIED SALARIES 


Classified Instructional Salaries 


Classified Support Salaries 


Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 


Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 


Other Classified Salaries 


TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 


2100 


2200 


2300 


2400 


2900 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


13,670.00 15,644.00 14.4% 


5,843.00 6,705.00 14.8% 


81,919.00 85,274.00 4.1% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


101,432.00 107,623.00 6.1% 


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 


STRS 


PERS 


OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 


Health and Welfare Benefits 


Unemployment Insurance 


Workers' Compensation 


OPEB, Allocated 


OPEB, Active Employees 


Other Employee Benefits 


TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 


3101-3102 


3201-3202 


3301-3302 


3401-3402 


3501-3502 


3601-3602 


3701-3702 


3751-3752 


3901-3902 


45,020.00 54,953.00 22.1% 


17.4% 


9.4% 


2.3% 


2583.1% 


2.2% 


3.1% 


20,998.00 24,656.00 


5,291.00 5,790.00 


69,787.00 71,373.00 


183.00 4,910.00 


6,461.00 6,600.00 


15,785.00 16,280.00 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.0% 


12.9% 


187.00 187.00 


163,712.00 184,749.00 


BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 


Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 


Books and Other Reference Materials 


Materials and Supplies 


Noncapitalized Equipment 


Food 


TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 


4100 


4200 


4300 


4400 


4700 


6,440.00 2,640.00 -59.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


56,316.00 29,219.00 -48.1% 


13,089.00 13,084.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


75,845.00 44,943.00 -40.7% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 7 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:23 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


    


    


    


    


  


     


        


      


       


    
    


  


       


 


  


   


      


        
        


   


   


   


    


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 


Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Travel and Conferences 5200 4,618.00 6,504.00 40.8% 


Dues and Memberships 5300 1,115.00 1,115.00 0.0% 


Insurance 5400-5450 6,780.00 6,780.00 0.0% 


Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 37,920.00 37,920.00 0.0% 


Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 82,448.00 82,448.00 0.0% 


Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 100,449.00 102,589.00 2.1% 


Professional/Consulting Services and 
Operating Expenditures 5800 81,438.00 87,034.00 6.9% 


Communications 5900 3,145.00 3,145.00 0.0% 


TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 317,913.00 327,535.00 3.0% 


CAPITAL OUTLAY 


Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Land Improvements 6170 17,250.00 17,250.00 0.0% 


Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 17,500.00 17,500.00 0.0% 


Books and Media for New School Libraries 
or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Equipment 6400 7,950.00 6,561.00 -17.5% 


Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 42,700.00 41,311.00 -3.3% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 8 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:23 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


      


  
        
        


         
           


         


        


    


      


          


   


       


        


         


      


     


        


         
 


 


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 


Tuition 
Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict 
Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments 
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other Transfers Out 


All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Debt Service 


Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 


Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 6,485.00 1,578.00 -75.7% 


TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 6,485.00 1,578.00 -75.7% 


TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 1,002,244.00 1,032,585.00 3.0% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 9 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:23 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


 
 


    
 


        


      


    
 


        


      


 
 


  
 


     


         
        


      


        


       


    


  
 


       
      


       


    


 


      


      


    
 


   
          


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


INTERFUND TRANSFERS 


INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 


Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 


Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


OTHER SOURCES/USES 


SOURCES 


Other Sources 


Transfers from Funds of 
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Long-Term Debt Proceeds 


Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


USES 


Transfers of Funds from 
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


CONTRIBUTIONS 


Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 
(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 10 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:23 PM 





		Agenda Item 5.2 Board of Education Public Hearing for the Proposed BudgetMadera County Independent Academy 2021-2022June 8, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:












  
 


     
 


  
 
 


 
 


  
 


  
 


 
 


    
 


 
  


 
 


  
   


    
 


   
  


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
  


 
 
 
 
 
 


Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


Agenda Item 5.3 


Board of Education Informational Item 
June 8, 2021 


Topic:
Consideration of Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) for Pioneer 
Technical Center (PTC) 


Background:
The Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) is a required component 
of the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF). It describes the goals and 
specific activities that Madera County Superintendent of Schools will put 
into action to educate all students and for certain identified subgroups of 
students. The LCAP must address the priorities as determined by the 
State Board of Education and indicate the funding needed to implement 
the activities. As required, the LCAP will be reviewed and revised each 
year. An important part of the LCAP is input from parents, students, 
staff, and community members. 


Financial Impact:
$ 3,804,764.00 


Resource: 
Scott Ellingson 
Principal 
Pioneer Technical Center 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 







 


    
 


              
 


            
      


            
               
      


             
   


 


   
 


  
 


          
 


                   
                    


                    
          


 
                         


                  
                      


                   
                      


           
 


                     
                   


                    
                   


                      
                       


                       
                       


                 
                        


                   


Local Control Accountability Plan 
The instructions for completing the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) follow the template. 


Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and 
Chowchilla 


Mr. Scott Ellingson - Principal 
Mr. Alan Macedo - Program Director 


sellingson@mcsos.org (559-) 661-4636 
amacedo@mcsos.org (559) 706-3095 


Plan Summary [2021-22] 


General Information 
A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students. 


Pioneer Technical Center (PTC) is a charter school authorized by the Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) and serves 
students from pre-Kindergarten through high school. The main PTC campus serves students grades 9 through 12, countywide. In the 2017-
2018 school year, students grades 9 through 12, from the Madera County Independent Academy (MCIA), transferred to PTC allowing them 
to also have access to Career and Technical Educational Programs. 


The two PTC sites are located in the cities of Madera and Chowchilla and serve a combined average of 354 students. PTC's population is 
approximately 17% English Language Learners with Spanish being their primary language. According to CBEDs data, the current student 
body of PTC Madera and Chowchilla is 66.4% Hispanic, 15.9% Caucasian, 1.8% African American, 2% with two or more races, 0.8% Native 
American, 0.8% Asian and 11.5% not reported. The majority of PTC students are socioeconomically disadvantaged (SED) given 90% qualify 
for the National Lunch Program. Approximately 8% of PTC students have been identified as special needs, with the vast majority of these 
students enrolling with existing Individualized Education Programs (IEPs) from other districts. 


The PTC program offers a Full Independent Study (FIS) program and a Blended Independent Studies (BIS) program to serve student needs. 
Beginning each school year, students and parents/guardians meet with the assigned teacher/advisor to review and sign the school master 
contract. During the meeting, the teacher/advisor reviews the designated appointment time and day in addition to the class schedule. Full 
Independent Study (FIS) Students are required to attend their 1-hour advisory period and submit their Daily Engagement Activity Record, 
also known as the “Green Sheet”, to receive full credit for attendance and work submitted. Students needing additional support in academics 
may enroll in the BIS Program and attend class in the Core subjects of Math, Science, Social Studies, and English offered on campus. 
Students enrolled in BIS will also be required to attend their 1-hour advisory period and submit their weekly contract. This approach allows 
for the incorporation of instruction in core academic courses, full independent studies, or a choice of an occupational program in one of three 
Career and Technical Education (CTE) pathways. The CTE programs in Careers in Education/Child Development, Interior and Exterior 
Construction, and Welding are a key part of the overall PTC program to engage students in three CTE pathways. The CTE program is 
aligned to and partners with Fresno County Office of Education’s Regional Occupational Program (ROP). Students are enrolled in academic 







 


                       
                      


                     
 


                         
                        


                     
                     


                    
                        


  
 


                     
                   


                       
                     


                      
            


 
                          


                          
                        
                     


                
                    


                       
                     


                  
                    


                      
                  


      
         


 
 


classes and have a choice of a vocational trade course. Starting with the 2018-2019 school year, students will have more flexibility with class 
scheduling, thus ensuring they are in a program that allows them to be successful, while providing students with CTE learning. Although 
many students may choose to go to college, a main goal is to prepare students to be college and career ready. 


Student transiency is a key concern at PTC. Some students attend PTC with the intention of only staying for a short time, perhaps to recover 
credits or recover from some kind of personal setback, then return to their comprehensive high school. PTC also serves as a pathway for 
expelled youth in Madera County. While the majority of PTC students come from Madera Unified School District (MUSD), students from the 
other 8 school districts in Madera County attend as well. PTC serves students currently on probation; which can greatly effect their 
enrollment, as violating the terms of their probation may result in becoming incarcerated. A transient student population effects the enrollment 
data tremendously, as students can add and drop multiple times per year. As a result, PTC can serve over 400 individual students within a 
year’s time. 


The number of English Language Learners (EL) has fluctuated over the years, and EL students, along with RFEP students, comprise a 
significant percentage of the student population. In addition to having designated ELD classes, teachers integrate ELD standards in their 
daily lessons, which benefit all students, but are necessary for ELs. For all students to meet the CCSS standards, increased rigor in the 
classroom is necessary for students to be on grade level. Professional Development has been dedicated to connect ELA and ELD standards 
to core content areas. Finally, as the ELPAC has greater language demands in the speaking, listening, writing, and reading domains, focus 
on these areas specifically has been increased in daily instruction as well. 


As stated on 2019 CDE Dashboard, PTC graduated 77.9% of students. This is an increase of +22.7% from the 55.2% reported in 2018. 
Attendance is a vital key to student success. Prior to SB98, PTC’s attendance averaged 85% for the two programs and still continues to 
recognize the issues of chronic absenteeism and dropouts as a growth area. Based on the 2019 CAASPP data, student growth in ELA was 
significant, with an overall improvement of +47.1 points compared to the previous year. Leading this improvement are the Hispanic student 
group improving +57.2 points, the English Only (EO) student populations improving +80.7 points, and Socio-Economically Disadvantaged 
(SED) students increased +43.5 points. EL students made significant progress in ELPAC testing and student redesignations to RFEP are 
anticipated to increased based on 45.9% of EL students progressing at least one ELPI Level on the 2019 ELPAC reporting on the CDE 
Dashboard. PTC students' mathematics scores improved +25.7 points from the previous year, as indicated on the 2019 CA Dashboard, 
which is a one band improvement. Socio-economically disadvantaged (SED) and English Only (EO) students did make significant 
improvements in their scores compared to previous years. When comparing 2019 data to previous years, Preparedness for College and 
Career decreased 7%, leaving a total of 92.6% designated Not Prepared for college. Of the 8 College/Career indicators for readiness, PTC 
offers 4 potential measures: Career Technical Education Pathway Completion, Grade 11 SBAC ELA and mathematics scores, a-g 
completion, and College Credit Course completion. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 2 of 57 







 


  
 


                   
 


                          
                         


                       
                      


                
                      


                       
                     
                     


                     
                      


                  
                     


   
 


                     
                     


                     
                       


                   
                     


                     
                       


                         
                         


         
 


                     
                


                      
                      


                     
                    


                    
                   


         


Reflections: Successes 
A description of successes and/or progress based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 


According to the 2019 CDE Dashboard, PTC graduated 77.9% of students. This is an increase of +22.7%, up from 55.2% reported in 2018. 
Attendance is a vital key to student success. Prior to SB98, PTC’s attendance averaged 85% for the PTC and PTC Chowchilla programs 
and the staffs continue to recognize the issues of chronic absenteeism and dropouts as a growth area. Based on 2019 CAASPP data, 
student growth in ELA was significant, with an overall improvement of +47.1 points compared to the previous year. The Hispanic student 
group improved +57.2 points, the English Only (EO) student populations improved +80.7 points, and Socio-Economically Disadvantaged 
(SED) students increased +43.5 points. EL students made significant progress in ELPAC testing and it is anticipated that there will be 
increases in student redesignations to RFEP, as 45.9% of EL students progressed at least one ELPI Level on the 2019 ELPAC reporting on 
the CDE Dashboard. PTC students’ mathematics scores improved +25.7 points from the previous year (2019 CA Dashboard), which is a 
one band improvement. SED and EO students did make significant improvements in their scores compared to previous years. When 
comparing 2019 data to previous years, Preparedness for College and Career decreased 7% leaving a total of 92.6% of students designated 
as Not Prepared for college. Of the 8 College/Career indicators for readiness, PTC offers 4 potential measures: Career Technical Education 
Pathway Completion, Grade 11 SBAC ELA and mathematics scores, a-g completion, and College Credit Course completion. As indicated 
from the i-Ready Assessment Data #2 results in ELA and Math (see attachments) both PTC Madera and Chowchilla show significant deficits 
in student achievement. 


When the COVID-19 school closure took effect, PTC was able to quickly survey parents and students for their technology needs. 
Overwhelmingly, students did not have the needed technology to easily move to Distance Learning. Based on this feedback, technology in 
the form of Chromebooks, WiFi Hotspots, and access to the Zoom platform was deployed to students. PTC began by distributing 
Chromebook from site based computer carts and from other schools in the CAES division. The nature of Independent Study lends itself to 
Distance Learning quite easily, which reduced the challenges facing teachers to quickly acclimate to an online platform for continuing 
individual weekly appointments. After several days of professional learning based in the Zoom platform and from Hattie, Fisher, and Frey's 
book, The Distance Learning Playbook, teachers were back meeting with students virtually. The site based team was able to additionally 
solve the issue of sending and receiving homework each week by creating teacher "homework boxes" that held student work at least a day 
prior to their scheduled appointment, and could be picked up when dropping off completed work in a library-style outdoor drop box. Moving 
to the 2021-22 school year, the 24 hour drop box for homework will continue to be used, with the home distribution plan being continued or 
paused based on local and state health department requirements. 


During the 2020-21 school year, PTC learned a lot about the social-emotional impact of the pandemic on students. Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools office and Madera County Behavioral Health department provided multiple professional learning opportunities 
focused on social-emotional needs during and continuing after the pandemic for students and staff alike. Through those trainings, the staff of 
PTC has better addressed the needs of the students, even making more notifications to the site psychologist and utilizing Student Study 
Team to help develop supports for struggling students. This current year has shown an increase in notifications and Madera County 
Behavioral Health advises to be prepared to address with longer lasting impacts of the pandemic, driving the continued investment in 
learning and resources to support the social-emotional needs of PTC students. PTC's professional learning has also assisted staff members 
in understanding signs of fatigue, concern, etc. in themselves and in supporting family members as provided by these trainings. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 3 of 57 







 


 


   
 


                       
                   


 


                       
                      


                   
     


 
                     


                      
                       


                   
 


                    
                        


                        
                      


                    
                     


                       
                   


                    
             


 
                     


                     
                  
                   


        
 


                 
                    


                       
                  


                    
               


         


Reflections: Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including any areas of low 
performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any steps taken to address those areas. 


The COVID-19 pandemic helped PTC more thoroughly identify areas of need for students and families. The pandemic drove a move to 1:1 
device to student ratio much sooner than planned, but was very necessary. As PTC moves through and beyond the pandemic, the 
1:1program been proven necessary and will continue forward as PTC evolves to paperless work program implementing online core and 
supplemental curriculum in the future. 


While PTC was quite successful in beginning to meet the social-emotional needs of students through out this past year, continued training 
and instruction for students will continue as the need will increase through the foreseeable future. Partnerships with site, County Office of 
Education, and County Behavioral Health continue to support the needs of students and families served by PTC and will help keep the staff 
up to date on current trends, and how to begin to address student, and potentially their own social-emotional needs. 


The i-Ready Assessment Data #2 results in ELA and Math (see attachments) for both PTC Madera and Chowchilla illustrate significant 
deficits in student achievement. Only 14% of all students tested in ELA were on grade level. For mathematics, only 10% of all students 
tested were on grade level. This is reflected within the PTC student body, with 78% of students being credit deficient as well. Addressing 
literacy needs will require intensive and targeted support in the coming years, as will mathematics. New ELA/ELD supplemental curriculum 
was chosen to help address student literacy needs and was supported by professional development for ELA/ELD instructional practices. 1:1 
device allocation for students in need has increased access to the ELA/ELD supplemental curriculum and support. Instructional changes will 
be needed as the program transitions back to site based learning . To instructionally address student needs, acceleration labs for ELA and 
Mathematics are being developed to help students accelerate their learning to help progress towards achieving grade level master, and 
support access to core and elective courses. Professional development is being planned for the 2021-22 school year to continue addressing 
grade level content deficiencies experienced by PTC students compounded by the COVID-19 pandemic. 


Career Technical Education course completion is an identified area of needed growth for PTC students. Increasing completers next year and 
expanding pathway depth and options will help address the need to improve the College and Career Readiness Indicator. To address 
completion rates, enrollment practices will be refined to require CTE course completion and academic counselors will monitor throughout 
enrollment. Expanding additionally requested CTE pathways based on student and parent surveys will increase interest and completion. 
Currently 31% of students complete a CTE pathway. 


Without consistent attendance, students academic proficiency cannot improve. Chronic Absenteeism is being addressed and reducing the 
rates of absenteeism will lead to improvements in Drop Out rates, Mathematics and ELA CAASPP scores, College and Career Readiness, 
and EL reclassifications. With over 50% of PTC's Chronically Absent students being identified as being EL students, the PTC staff can 
focus strategies on this student group for improvement as addressed in the 2021-24 LCAP including intervention, increased communication, 
and parent education. The pandemic has greatly impacted overall attendance rates, decreasing over 15% compared to last year, and 
planning for improvement in this area has begun, building on the plans for EL students. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 4 of 57 







 


 
 


  
 


              
 


                      
                      


                      
                     
                          


                  
                     


                    
              


 
                  


        
 


               
                   


                      
                     


                    
                       
                     


                         
                       


                      
                    


                 
                      


  
 


                       
           


                    
                    
                        


                           


LCAP Highlights 
A brief overview of the LCAP, including any key features that should be emphasized. 


The 2021-24 LCAP was informed by the outcomes of the Learning Continuity Plan (LCP), the 2019-20 LCAP Annual Update, and input from 
members of each stakeholder group at Pioneer Technical Center through the lens of what has been learned during the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Even during a pandemic, stakeholder input continues to align with the three overarching LCAP goals of the 2017-20 LCAP. The pandemic 
continues to drive several instructional changes that will continue at the conclusion of the pandemic and beyond as evidenced through the 
additional actions added to each of the goal, as highlighted below. Shown in the three goals outlined below, PTC will continue to focus and 
direct efforts in supporting all students, especially those who are foster or homeless youth, English Learners, and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students, all of which represent 90% of the PTC student population. These three goals further address the eight state 
priorities, which are: 1) Student Achievement, 2) Student Engagement, 3) Student Outcomes, 4) School Climate, 5) Parent Involvement, 6) 
Basic Services, 7) Implementation of the Common Core State Standards, and 8) Course Access. 


Several key features listed in the 2021-24 LCAP include: Social-Emotional training for teachers and students, improved and targeted 
academic supports, and CTE pathway enrichment and completion. 


Goal 1 - All PTC students will graduate and be college and career ready. 
Key actions in the LCAP supporting this goal include CTE pathway enrichment, improved academic support, requiring students to complete 
20 credits of CTE coursework, and low student to teacher ratios. Based on student, parent, and community feedback, further CTE pathways 
will be explored along with increasing current pathway offerings within the current in-person and virtual CTE courses. Adding additional CTE 
pathways based on feedback will increase motivation and access for PTC students. Improved academic support during the 2020-21 school 
year included open interventions in each CORE subject area. This model will be modified in 2021-22 based on identified needs from local 
and state indicators to address subskill weaknesses for the student population that is 80% SED. COVID-19 forced instruction to move to 
distance learning for most of the 2020-21 school year and now PTC staff must prepare to bring all students back on site for direct instruction, 
optimizing time spent with students. A key revelation from distance learning was the use of a variety of instructional and feedback strategies 
to ensure students had optimized learning opportunities. Further, using these strategies will be the foundation that PTC teachers will build on 
as students return to campus, thus abandoning ineffective practices of pre-pandemic times. To support these changes; ELA, ELD, and 
mathematics professional development will be planned and conducted throughout the year to support student learning through improved 
instructional practices. Keeping the student to teacher ratio low is an imperative for students to receive differentiated instruction to meet their 
individual needs. 


Goal 2 - PTC will provide resources and services to ensure the social and emotional wellbeing for students and staff and staff, while 
providing a safe learning environment and coupled with effective learning opportunities. 
Moving forward into the 2021-22 school year, PTC is unsure of specific student, and staff, social-emotional needs and have planned 
professional development to help identify and support all, and become further aware of further supports from the county behavioral health 
department. PTC can direct students and families to these supports as they become available. Access to supports and resources is key to 
learning and growth for PTC students as we provide for the needs of the whole child. PTC staff knows that if students are not physically and 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 5 of 57 







 


                      
                  


 
                  


 
                 


              
                   


                   
                     


                  
                   


         
 


    
 


                   
 


  
 


                
 


         
 


    
 


                    
 


         
 


    
 


                  
 


         
 


emotionally "safe" then no learning can take place. As the COVID-19 pandemic created educational challenges and the need for distance 
learning, students' social-emotional well-being was at the forefront of most professional growth and development for all staff members. 


Goal 3 - PTC will encourage greater stakeholder participation and input by developing meaningful community, parent and family 
relationships. 
The emphasis for building and maintaining stronger family and community engagement, will continue with local community partnerships, 
parent-teacher conferences, parent academic and informational workshops, and continued correspondence through ParentSquare. An 
additional emphasis is building stronger family and community engagement. COVID-19 provided PTC an opportunity to evaluate and refine 
communication protocols with students, parents, and administration. Those protocols for communication have been carried over into the new 
school year. Parent workshops will be conducted to help inform parents of current and future student needs, including: homework support, 
attendance policies, college enrollment, and financial aid. Providing opportunities for external learning opportunities like visiting a business 
or college, historical sites and museums, and community volunteer experiences will help teach and create well rounded students. 


Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools eligible for comprehensive support and improvement must respond to the following prompts. 
Schools Identified 
A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 


N/A 


Support for Identified Schools 
A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 


N/A 


Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 


N/A 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 6 of 57 







 


  
 
 


                  
 


                    
              


               
                


 
                        


      
 


                              
                   


  
                           


                           
                                    


   
                                   


   
                              
    


         
                         
                         


                            
                            


 
                     


                        
               


                     
          


 
                       


                      
      


Stakeholder Engagement 
A summary of the stakeholder process and how the stakeholder engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP. 


Pioneer Technical Center believes that stakeholder input drives the development of the LCAP. PTC staff consulted individual parents and 
students, parent groups (PAC-Parent Advisory Committee, SSC-School Site Council, ELAC-English Learner Advisory Committee), SELPA 
administrator, school site personnel (including classified, certificated, and administration/principal), local bargaining units, and the community 
over the course of a year, conducting 9 meetings and administering surveys to all mentioned above. 


To obtain stakeholder input in the writing and approval of the PTC LCAP, PTC staff held a series of stakeholder input meetings that were 
scheduled exclusively for input and feedback: 


2/11/21 All CAES Staff LCAP Survey sent out via email from Executive Director (7:30-9:00 a.m.) 
2/16/21-2/23/21 Hard Copies of Parent and Student Surveys were distributed in student work packets and through an electronic 
ParentSquare link. 
2/25/21 CAES Parent Advisory Committee (PAC) Stakeholder Input Zoom (11:00-12:00 and 4:00-5:00 p.m.) 
3/1/21 ParentSquare/Email invite to all PTC/MCIA and MCSOS for the following: 
3/9/21 Stakeholder Input – MCIA - Principal, Teachers, Academic Counselors, Classified, and SpEd Staff (Zoom) (10:00-11:00 
and 4:30-5:30 p.m.) 
3/10/21 Stakeholder Input – PTC (Zoom) Principal, Teachers, Academic Counselors, Classified, and SpEd Staff (10:00-11:00 
and 4:30-5:30 p.m.) 
3/11/21 Stakeholder Input – MCSOS (Zoom) Principal, Teachers, Academic Counselors, Classified, SpEd Staff, Madera County 
Juvenile Probation Staff, MCSOS 
Certificated and Classified Bargaining Units (10:00-11:00 and 4:30-5:30 p.m.) 
3/18/21 Stakeholder Input - CAES SSC Meeting #3 (Zoom) 1:00-2:00 p.m. 
3/18/21 Stakeholder Input – CAES ELAC Meeting #3 (Zoom) 2:00-3:00 p.m. 
4/8/21 LCAP Stakeholder Feedback Analysis/Needs Assessment (8:00-12:00 p.m. (District and Site Administrators) 
6/1/21 SELPA LCAP Consultation (Executive Director of CAES/Madera County Director of SELPA) 


Due to state and local restrictions; parent, community, and student meetings were held via Zoom. Stakeholders could participate either by 
phone or by logging into the Zoom platform. Translation services were provided at each meeting as needed. PTC made all efforts to assure 
voices were heard from stakeholders through these meetings that represented English Learners, socio-economically disadvantaged, and 
foster/homeless students. In each of the input meetings, i-Ready diagnostic assessment data from both PTC Chowchilla and Madera, in the 
areas of ELA and Math, was shared with the stakeholders. 


Once all the stakeholder feedback was collected, the administrative team analyzed the feedback and used it to draft the LCAP. The most 
common topics of successes and needs were collected throughout the feedback process, and then given priority in the writing of the LCAP, 
although many other topics were addressed. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 7 of 57 







 


 
         


 
          


 


                      
   


 
      
      
      
      
  
      
     
  


      
 


  
                       


                    
                     


            
 


    
            
                  


   
              
            
 


    
           
               
            
             
 


                   
  


                  


A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups. 


A summary of the specific feedback provided by stakeholders, parent and student is also attached to this LCAP The percentage breaks down 
as follows: 


PTC Madera Parents responses = 23% 
PTC Madera Student responses = 30% 
PTC Chowchilla Parent responses = 44% 
PTC Chowchilla Student responses = 57% 


• ------------------------------------------------------
Total = Parents = 31% 
Total = Students = 39% 


 ------------------------------------------------------
Average Total Responses = 35% 


Stakeholder input: 
Meetings were held over several days and times to ensure all stakeholders had ample opportunity to provide input. In order to comply with 
health and safety guidelines, these meetings were held virtually through the Zoom platform where parents could participate by phone or 
through the online platform. The qualitative data that was collected during these meetings, along with comments form PTC staff, student, and 
parent surveys indicate stakeholders feel the greatest areas of strength include: 


From the parent survey: 
1. 93% believe their concerns are taken seriously by the school. 
2. 91% agree the school supports multiple opportunities to engage in understandable and accessible two-way communication between 
families and educators. 
3. 91% agree that students learn skills that will help them in life. 
4. 94% agree that PTC promotes academic success for all students. 


From the student survey: 
1. 88% of students feel safe while on campus. 
2. 94% of students believe that teachers care for and want students to succeed. 
3. 86% agree that there is enough time to complete work. 
4. 89% agree that teachers are knowledgeable of the subjects they teach. 


Combining input from stakeholder meetings (SSC, ELAC, PAC) with survey feedback, the following areas were identified as areas of 
improvement: 
1. Increasing opportunities for parents to be involved with school activities and events. Parents reported the following: 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 8 of 57 







 


       
          
          
          
                          


      
                     
                   
 


                      
                 


                   
               


 
                        


                      
                     
                 


                   
                      
    


 
                     


                        
          


 
 


               
 


                       
                           


                             
                      


              
 


                   
                      


                        


a) 27% wanted help using technology 
b) 26% want support with establishing a healthy lifestyle 
c) 25% wanted increased socio-emotional support for students. 
d) 22% want help supporting their student with homework. 
2. 61% of PTC students do not participate in any CTE pathways or courses based on parent responses. 17% of parents would like to see 
some sort of medical CTE pathway. 
3. 82% of parents agree the school is interested in family's strengths, culture, language, and goals for their children. 
4. 57% of parents responding agreed that teachers are prepared to meet the needs of EL students. 


From a WASC survey given to staff in January of 2021, key data emerged in connection to content-driven professional development. 72% of 
staff identified mathematics as an area they would like pedagogical and instructional professional development. To better meeting social-
emotional needs of students, 48% of staff identified substance abuse identification and intervention professional learning as another area of 
need. Another area of improvement identified is 24% of students leave PTC prepared for college. 


On the recent Local Indicator survey of Priorities 2 and 3, the staff identified PTC's approach to ELA and ELD being fully implemented. On 
Priority 2, PTC staff identified being in the initial implementation phase for identifying the professional learning needs of groups of teachers or 
staff as a whole, Identifying the professional learning needs of individual teachers, and Providing support for teachers on the standards they 
have not yet mastered. Implementation in Mathematics, Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS), History Standards, were also identified 
as ranging between beginning development and initial implementation, with NGSS receiving the lowest level of implementation of the core 
subjects. In other adopted academic standards, CTE is viewed as being in the initial implementation phase and all others were in the 
beginning development phase. 


For Priority 3, PTC identified solidly in the "Initial Implementation" phase for the areas of Building Relationships and Building Partnerships for 
Student Outcomes and their subset topics. For the section on Seeking Input for Decision Making, the average score is 2.65, which is in the 
"Beginning Development" level, providing an area for increased focus. 


A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific stakeholder input. 


The three goals of the LCAP were originally created with stakeholder input for the previous LCAP. This year, stakeholder input continues to 
demonstrate that PTC's efforts are focused in the right areas and there is no change to the 3 goals. The following will continue to remain the 
focus of this plan: 1) All PTC students will graduate and be college and career ready. 2) PTC will provide resources and services to ensure 
the social-emotional well being of students and staff while providing a safe learning environment and learning opportunities. 3) PTC will 
encourage greater stakeholder participation and input by developing meaningful community, parent and family relationships. 


Continued aspects of the LCAP influenced by specific stakeholder Input (see attached parent and student surveys and overview above): 
1) PTC students are still not participating in CTE course offering either through in person/ROP course or online through Odysseyware, as 
stated in the data previously. This ongoing action can be improved upon by greater completion and expanded offerings. Goal 1 - Action 1 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 9 of 57 







 


                      
                     


                     
  
                       


                      
                     


              
 


          
                          


                      
                      
                         


                       
          


                   
                   


                    
 
         


 


2) Professional Development for staff continuing in the areas of ELA, ELD, and social-emotional learning. Parents and students reported 
agreeing with statements that the school promotes success for all students and teachers are well qualified to teach students. Continued 
Professional Development supports and increases staff confidence and proficiency as they support student learning. Goal 1 - Action 3, 4, 5, 
7, 13 
3) The site is safe and well maintained to promote a positive learning environment for students. This addresses feedback about parent 
concerns, accessible two-way communication, and decision making by ALL stakeholders. Goal 2 - Action 4, 7, 9; Goal 3 - Action 3. 
4) Survey responses continue to be lower than expected and increased communication with parents and opportunities for parents to be 
involved with site events can be greater. Goal 3 - Action 1, 2 


New aspects of the LCAP influenced by specific stakeholder input: 
1) Acceleration to 1:1 technology program. When looking to reopen schools in the spring of 2020, a survey was sent out to parents and 
students asking what technology they owned currently, to meet the needs of video conferencing instead of face to face meetings. In 
response, 2/3 of of families needed access to a Chromebook, Wi-Fi hotspot, or both. This need expressed from stakeholders accelerated a 
technology plan that let to all students having access to a 1:1 digital access to student ratio. This need lead to Goal 1-Action 12. 
2) Based on feedback from the Parent LCAP survey, Social-Emotional Services access and training will be expanded to meet the needs of 
PTC's staff and socio-economically disadvantaged families. Goal 2-Action 2, 5. 
3) Building on the feedback from teachers that is reinforced through parent and student data, expanding mathematics professional 
development in the 2021-22 school year will support student learning and achievement through staff quested PD and reinforcing feedback 
related to teacher knowledge, parental support, and how PTC supports student success. Goal 1 - Action 5, 7, 11. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 10 of 57 







 


   
 


 
 


   
                    


 


          
 


                    
                          


                       
                            


                           
                      


                   
 
 
         


 


    
 


              
 


   
  


         


   
   


  
 


       
    
   


    
   


         


    
   
    
  


       
  


 


    
  
   


        


    
   


   
  
  


       
   


   
   


Goals and Actions 


Goal 
Goal # Description 


1 All PTC students will graduate and be college and career ready. 


An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
Based on state and local assessment data, stakeholder consultation, and other collected data the site identifies this goal and subsequent 
actions as priorities for the site. Goal 1 is a broad goal focused on improving performance across a wide range of metrics listed below. 
Currently, the students of Pioneer Technical Center have not show to be college and career ready on the CA Dashboard reporting with a 
zero percent ready. As PTC continues to increase CTE pathways, it is only one of the 8 ways to be college and career ready. To increase 
the metric on College and Career Readiness, PTC students will need to meet one of the 4 criteria for doing so. To be college and career 
ready, PTC students can: 1) Complete a CTE pathway; 2) Score met or exceeds standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessments in ELA and Mathematics; 3) Complete College Course Credit; or 4) Complete an A-G approved course of study. 


Measuring and Reporting Results 
Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 


2023–24 
1. Percentage of 
students completing 
CTE course. 


20% of students 
complete a CTE 
course before 
graduation. 


80% of students will 
take a CTE course 
prior to graduation. 


2. Percentage of SED 
students who are 
credit deficient. 


72% of SED students 
enrolling are credit 
deficient based on the 
2019-20 schoolyear. 


Less than 40% of 
credit deficient 
students 


3. Percentage of EL 
students making 
progress towards EL 
proficiency. 


Based on ELPI data 
from the CA 
Dashboard, 45/9% of 
students made 
progress towards 


90% of EL students 
will be making 
progress towards EL 
proficiency based on 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 11 of 57 







 


              
 


  
 


   
 


    
  


  
 


        


    
     
  


  


        
   


 
  


 
    


    
        


    
   


    
   


  
   


   
   


  


       
   


   
     
  


    
  


  
     


  
        


    
    


    
   
 


       
    


     
 


   
     


   
        


    
   
    


  
  


   
   


 


       
   
   


    
    


 


    
         


    
   


 
   


       
   


  
   


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


English Language 
Proficiency 


CA Dashboard ELPI 
score. 


4. Number of teacher 
Professional growth 
and development 
opportunities 
presented. 


All PTC staff received 
a minimum of 4 days 
of professional 
development annually. 


PTC staff will attend a 
minimum of 4 
Professional 
Development days 
annually. 


5. Academic growth in In 2019, PTC students Increase by at least 
ELA and Math in scored 94.5 points 30 points toward 
SBAC assessments. below standard in ELA 


on the SBAC 
assessment and 
scored 199.7 points 
below standard in 
Mathematics on the 
SBAC assessment. 


standard met annually 
in ELA and 50 points 
in Math. 


6. Percentage of EL 
students meeting 
grade-level proficiency 
in ELA and Math on 
the i-Ready 
assessments. 


1% of EL students 
scored at grade level 
in ELA and zero 
percent Math in i-
Ready. 


Improve by at least 
30% toward standard 
met in ELA and Math 
annually. 


7. Academic growth In 2019, SED students SED students will 
for SED in ELA and were 98.5 points improve 30 points 
Math on SBAC below standard on the towards standard in 
assessments. ELA SBAC 


Assessment and 
203.5 below standard 
on the Mathematics 
portion. 


ELA and 50 Math 
points on the SBAC 
assessment. 


8. Percent of students 60.4% of all students Reduce 5% of all 
chronically absent. who are chronically 


absent 
69.5% SED 


students who are 
chronically absent 
54.5% SED 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 12 of 57 







 


              
 


   
   
    


 
  


 
 


   
   
    


 


    
   


 
    


    
   


 
  


     
 


  


   
   


    
      


    
    


   
   


      
  


    
   


   
   


   
        


   
    


  
   


 
  


   
  


      
   


   
 


   
  


        


    
   


   
  


   
   


 
  


 
 


  
 


       
   
    


   
   
   
   


 
 
 
 
 


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


81.9% EL 66.9% EL 
72.2% Homeless 57.2% Homeless 
62.5% Foster youth 


2018-19 Dataquest 
Data 


47.2% Foster youth 


9. Number of 
students taught by 
appropriately 
credentialed teachers. 


100% of students will 
be taught by 
appropriately 
credentialed teachers. 


Maintain 100% 
appropriately 
credentialed teachers. 


10. Number of 100% of PTC students Maintain 100% of 
students who have will have access and students receive 
access and receive a receive a broad access to a broad 
broad course of study. course of study. course of study. 
11. Number of 
students who have 
access to Instructional 
technology. 


During the 2020-21 
school year, 100% of 
students were 
provided access to 
Instructional 
Technology, including 
1:1 Chromebooks and 
WiFi hotspots. 


All students will 
continue to have 
access to Instructional 
Technology. 


12. Percentage of 
students achieving 
graduation. 


82.6% of all students 
graduation rate 
81.9% SED 
82.4% EL 


 - Homeless* 
 - Foster 


Youth* 
77.9% Hispanic 
students. 


2019-20 DASS 
reporting 


Increase by 6% each 
year, leading to 
100% of all PTC 
students will graduate. 
100% SED 
100% EL 
100% Hispanic 
Students 


. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 13 of 57 







 


              
 


    
     
   


 
 


 
 


        
    


   
        


        
           


         
         


         
          


          
           


           
  


 
 


 
 
 


      


   
 


   
        


             
           


         
          


          
          


         
            


           
  


 
  


 
 
 


 
 


 
       


X


X


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


* Student groups are 
too small for data to 
be collected. 


Actions 


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
1 Increase CTE Course 


Completion for SED 
student population. 


90% of PTC students are identified as Socio-Economically 
Disadvantaged (SED) and 0% of those students have met the College 
and Career Readiness indicator on the 2019 CA Dashboard. 
Expanding CTE pathways will endure that unduplicated students are 
given the opportunity to complete graduation requirements and to 
provide academic support. To address this need, these students will 
be required to successfully complete a CTE course before graduation. 
To support the SED students in CTE, an additional Instructional Aide 
(I/A) is in place to specifically ensure improved CTE opportunities for 
SED students. 


$223,996.00 Yes 


2 Provide Credit 
Recovery 
opportunities for SED 
students 


As indicated by local data, 72% of enrolled SED students at PTC are 
credit deficient. To help these students recover credits needed to fulfill 
the graduation requirement, CAES counselors will register students in 
appropriate in-person and online courses such as Odysseyware. This 
will require academic counselors to update credit evaluations on a 
regular bases after each grading period, along with academic planning 
sessions with students to develop a comprehensive plan to 
graduation. Professional development time of up to 3 hours can be 
provided for teachers needing support in access and use of the 
Odysseyware platform. 


Title I-II 


$39,000.00 No 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 14 of 57 







 


        
   


        
             


           
           


          
          


          
      


 
  


 
 
 


 
 


 
       


   
  


  
        


           
           


        
           


           
         


        
            


       
           
           
     


 
 


 
 
 


      


   
  


   
  


           


          
          


         
        


           
        


        
             


          
          


  


 
 


 
       


X


X


X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
3 Reclassify English 


Learners 
PTC has a 0% reclassification rate of EL students over the past 3 
years. Based on ELPAC and i-Ready data, EL students need greater 
support in ELA and Mathematics. This will be supported through 
placement in Accelerated ELA and Mathematics labs that will be 
embedded within the school day. These learning labs will target 
specific needs through a designed learning acceleration plan to be 
followed within the i-Ready online platform. 


Title 1 


$25,000.00 No 


4 Provide Instructional 
Staff Professional 
Growth and 
Development 


Based on traditionally low mathematics scores on SBAC for SED and 
EL students, i-Ready and other data points, PTC will contract with 
MCSOS, Director, Curriculum and Instruction, to provide focused, on-
going professional development in math to all teachers and other staff 
to increase capacity to teach math effectively. Aside from the 
pedagogy to improve instruction, teachers will develop a mathematical 
mindset and understand the foundational math requirements to 
prepare students to be successful at the next grade level. This 
professional development will improve teachers' instructional practices 
and close the achievement gaps for SED students in mathematics. 
This action has resulted in increases in achievement on state and 
local assessments since its inception. 


$16,920.00 Yes 


5 Provide instruction 
and instructional 
materials to increase 
student achievement 
in ELA and Math. 


To increase all student performance in ELA and Mathematics, PTC 
staff will provide instruction and be provided instructional materials to 
support students' academic growth as measured by SBAC ELA 
assessment. Summative SBAC and Interim Assessment Blocks (IABs) 
will be administered by teachers throughout the year. Results will be 
analyzed by administrators, teachers, and academic counselors to 
improve instruction and close achievement gaps. Replacement of 
books in the school book repository will be needed for all student to 
have access to the necessary subjects for credit recovery and 
advancement. Access to texts and instructional materials will improve 
academic performance. 


$1,898,904.00 No 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 15 of 57 







 


        
 
 


    
  


        


          
          


           
             


         
          


    
 
 


 
 
 


      


    
   


         


            
          


          
        


         
          


  
 


       
          


            
            


         
         


          
          


         
           


           
             


       
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


      


X


X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 


6 Reduce student to 
teacher caseload 
ratio. 


Charter requirements require student to teacher ratio to remain below 
the current LEA ratio of 30:1, identifying four teachers. Unduplicated 
student groups learn and perform at the highest levels when class 
sizes are low. To address this need, PTC will reduce the teacher 
caseloads by reorganizing the current PTC structure, allowing more 
time spent with students and providing a better mechanism for 
measuring student success. 


$690,357.00 Yes 


7 Improve SED student 
achievement in ELA 
and Math 


Based upon 0% proficiency in ELA and Math for SED students, PTC 
staff will provide instruction and instructional materials to support SED 
students' academic growth as measured by SBAC ELA and Math 
assessments. State assessment results on Summative SBAC and 
Interim Assessment Blocks (IABs) will be administered by teachers 
and results are to be analyzed by administrators, teachers, and 
academic counselors. 


To support improved student academic performance, i-Ready 
assessments are used to show academic growth. School year 20-21 i-
Ready results indicate 16% of PTC students are on grade level in 
ELA, and 9% on grade level in Math. Teachers will use formative i-
Ready assessments and prescriptive lessons to help students become 
more academically proficient. Teachers will assign i-Ready lessons as 
part of the required classwork to support learning and increase 
academic proficiency. Two teachers will be assigned to the 
Acceleration Labs to manage student education plans, report progress 
to administration and IS case manager, and plan targeted small group 
instruction and support of students assigned to the Acceleration Labs. 
Students assigned to the Labs will be designated by being 2 or more 
grade levels behind on the i-Ready assessment. 


$41,694.00 Yes 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 16 of 57 







 


        
    


   
         


            
           


         
           


        
         


        
  


 
  


 
 
 


 
 


 
       


   
        


         
          
          
          
   


 
 


 
 


 
       


   
   


   
        


           
         


 
 
 


  
 
 
 


 
 


 
       


   
  


   
        


        
        


       
 


  
 
 
 


 
 


 
       


X


X


X


X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
8 Improve SED student 


achievement in ELA 
and Math 


This action is a contributing action from Action #7. Two teachers will 
be assigned and two instructional assistants will be hired to assist low-
performing students with additional instruction in small group settings 
and mitigate learning loss. Their support will be principally directed to 
Unduplicated Pupils in grades 7-12. Additional instructional materials 
will be purchased to support classroom instruction, as needed. 
Instructional assistants will provide individual or small group 
accelerated interventions. 


Title I 


$3,000.00 No 


9 Retain Highly 
Effective Teachers 


PTC will provide high quality professional development to increase 
teacher and staff effectiveness. Building teacher capacity in this 
manner will increase staff retention and contribute to a positive 
working environment. PTC will also offer competitive salaries to 
increase teacher retention. 


$17,500.00 No 


10 Improve student 
opportunities for a 
broader course of 
study. 


Students will have greater opportunity to access a broad course of 
study to meet graduation requirements through the use of 
Odysseyware. 


Title I 


$34,000.00 No 


11 Provide intervention 
and instructional 
support for struggling 
learners 


Students identified as needing additional supports beyond the 
parameters of the Independent Study appointment are provided 
greater support from PTC Chowchilla instructional aid. 


Title I 


$20,847.00 No 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 17 of 57 







 


        
    


 
   


         


            
           


             
         


          
            
         


          
         


        
         


         
 


 
 


 
 
 


      


   
  


  
        


          
            


       
           


          
 


  
 
 
 


 
 


 
       


   
   


  
        


         
           


         
       


 
  


 
 
 


 
 


 
       


 


X


X


X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
12 Provide access to 


Instructional 
Technology for all 
SED students. 


90% of PTC students are SED and recent survey results have shown 
that SED students do not have access to reliable personal technology 
at home. PTC will improve the use of and access to technology by 
continuing providing and maintaining a one to one student-device 
ratio. PTC devices (Chromebooks and hotspots) are checked out 
annually by families and returned at the end of the year. Student 
learning is enhanced using Chromebook technology by the following: 
access to curriculum, peer to peer communication, training in digital 
citizenship, training in using all formative and summative online 
assessments. PTC will increase instructional effectiveness by 
identifying online training, coaching, new hardware, or other support 
teachers may need to support student learning and effective 
interventions. 


$43,120.00 Yes 


13 Provide Instructional 
Staff Professional 
Growth and 
Development 


Professional Development to be offered by MCSOS on a weekly 
basis, including for 90 minutes per week, aside from PD accessed by 
staff though other professional educational agencies. Ongoing 
professional development days provided to all staff to support the use 
of standards aligned curriculum and pedagogy in ELA and ELD. 


Title I 


No 


14 Provide academic 
and SEL counseling 
for at-promise 
students 


Academic counseling for new and existing students, SED, transitioning 
students from Juvenile Hall to PTC, and other at-promise students. 
The academic counselor provides for the academic planning, credit 
evaluation and class placement for all students. 


Title I 


$133,657.00 No 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 18 of 57 







 


   
             


               
 


                    
 


            
 


                    
 


               
 


                    
 


                      
    


 


                    
 


                    
 


Goal Analysis [2021-22]
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 19 of 57 







 


   
 


 
 


   
                    


               
 


          
 


                    
                          


                       
                    
                         


              
 


    
 


              
 


    
  


   
   


          


   
   
  


  
    


   
  


       
    
 


  
  


  
 


    
   


  
   
   


  
        


   
   


  
    


  
  


  
  


 


      
  


  
  
   


  
   


Goals and Actions 


Goal 
Goal # Description 


2 PTC will provide resources and services to ensure the social and emotional wellbeing of students and staff, while providing 
a safe learning environment and learning opportunities. 


An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
Based on state and local assessment data, stakeholder consultation, and other collected data the site identifies this goal and subsequent 
actions as priorities for the site. Goal 2 is a broad goal focused on improving performance across a wide range of metrics listed below. In 
order to be a effective learning environment for all students to connect with, each child must feel safe emotionally, physically, and cognitively. 
As PTC continues through the COVID-19 Pandemic, the future socio-emotional needs of PTC's students is unknown and preparing to meet 
the those needs, even at a general level, is paramount to the school success. Being prepared to meet these needs will help create the 
environment needed for learning to occur. 


Measuring and Reporting Results 
Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 


2023–24 
1. Number of times PTC staff provides 100% of students and 
transportation is Maxx vouchers or families in need are 
provided to school MUSD bus provided 
and/or returning home transportation to transportation or 
for SED students. students in need of 


transportation to and 
from school. 


vouchers/tickets for 
local public 
transportation. 


2. The percentage of 
parenting teens, foster 
youth and/or 
homeless students 
receiving academic 
and social-emotional 
services. 


19 parenting teens, 
foster youth, and/or 
homeless students 
had access to receive 
intervention and 
support services, 
including social 
emotional and 
counseling. 


Maintain 100% of 
parenting, foster 
youth, and/or 
homeless students 
accessing and 
receiving intervention 
and support services. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 20 of 57 







 


              
 


    
  


  
         


   
   


  
 
  


 
 


       
   


   
 
   


 


   
          


   
  


   
   


   
 


       
    


    
 


    
   


         


    
    


       
    


   
   


  
  


    
   


        


   
  


 


       
   
   


   
    


         


   
    


   
  


       
     


 


      
         


    
  


   
   


    


       
    


   


   
  


   


   
     


  


       
   


  


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


3. The number of PTC staff conducted PTC will maintain or 
student recognition four assemblies to increase the number 
assemblies conducted recognize students' of student recognition 
throughout the year. academics, 


attendance, and 
citizenship 
performance. 


assemblies 
throughout the school 
year. 


4. Facilities Inspection The October 2020 The FIT will show 
Tool (FIT) score. Facilities Inspection 


Tool (FIT) Score 
shows the PTC 
facilities in "Good 
Repair." 


PTC evaluated to be 
in "Good Repair" 
annually. 


5. The number of To be established in PTC will maintain an 
students that access the Fall of 2021. open pathway for all 
support services. students to be 


identified and receive 
intervention support 
services listed. 


6. The number of 
suspensions for all 
students. 


In 2019-20, PTC 
suspended 17 
students. 


PTC will have fewer 
than 5 suspension 
each year . 


7. Percentage of 
students that feel safe 
on campus. 


2020-21 LCAP survey 
has 86% of students 
reported feeling safe 
on site. 


95% of student will 
state they feel safe at 
school. 


8. Drop out rate for all 2019-20 drop out data PTC will reduce the 4-
PTC students. from ed-data.org 


reports the 4-year 
cohort drop-out rate 
for PTC at 28.4%. 


year cohort drop out 
to under 15%. 


9. Percentage of 
students participating 
in external learning 


In school year 2019-
20, 15% of students 
participated in 


30% of students will 
participate in external 
learning opportunities. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 21 of 57 







 


              
 


 
  


  
   
        


  
  


    
  


 


 
 


        
   


  
    


        


        
         


           
           
         


 
 


 
 
 


      


   
  
  


   
        


           
          


         
       
       


      
        


          
              


         
 
 


 
 


 
       


   
  
        


        
          


           
          


       
           


 
 


 
       


X


X


X


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


opportunities, 
enrichment activities, 
athletic competitions 
and educational field 
trips. 


extended learning 
opportunities, which 
included field trips and 
sporting events. 


Actions 


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
1 Provide student 


transportation as 
needed to and from 
school 


With 90% of PTC students being Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
(SED) PTC will provide transportation for students whose families 
have mobility issues or economic challenges to attend PTC or PTC 
events. School staff will provide transportation for students in need 
through MUSD bussing or vouchers for local public transportation. 


$11,400.00 Yes 


2 Expand Support 
Services for 
Parenting Teens, 
Foster and Homeless 
Youth 


Based upon the increased SEL needs of students who are parents 
themselves and other at-risk youth; all parenting teens, foster youth 
and/or homeless students will have the opportunity to receive 
increased academic and social-emotional services provided by 
academic interventions and service referrals from teachers, 
counseling, school psychologist, foster/homeless youth coordinator, 
and connections/referrals to Madera County Health services. 
Professional Development is provided to PTC staff to better support 
students' SEL needs. This PD will be offered at least three times per 
year by mental health professionals, including the school psychologist. 


$328,216.00 No 


3 Continue Positive 
Student Recognition 
Program 


PTC administration, academic counselors, teachers, and other staff 
will plan and conduct 4 student recognition assemblies throughout the 
year to build a connection to the school community, positive school 
culture, and outreach to parents. Students are recognized for 
academic progress, attendance, and P.R.I.D.E. citizenship awards, 
and parents are invited to attend the assemblies. Teachers recognize 


$1,500.00 No 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 22 of 57 







 


        
           


       
 
 


   
        


            
            
        


          
            


      
 
 


 
 


 
       


   
  


     


         
          
        


         
         


           
           


    
 
 


 
 
 


      


   
         


          
        


        
          


       
          


         
        


        
         


    
 
 


 
 


 
       


    
   


           
             


 
 


 
       


X


X


X


X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
and nominate students. Support staff to contact students and parents. 
Students and parents contacted using Parent Square 


4 Maintain School 
Facilities 


PTC staff will help provide a clean and attractive campus that fosters 
student learning and pride in the facilities. This is done through 
regularly scheduled facilities inspections, communication with site and 
maintenance staff to identify problems, and address those problems in 
a timely manner. Work orders are submitted and attended to while 
prioritizing any that pose safety concerns. 


$147,171.00 No 


5 Provide Behavioral 
Health Intervention 
and Support Services 


PTC staff will coordinate with behavioral health and School 
Psychologist in the areas of: substance abuse, anger and grief 
management, suicide prevention and stress, anxiety and depression, 
drug and alcohol counseling. Professional Development aligned to 
substance use and abuse identification and prevention will be 
provided to all PTC. When necessary, support from outside agencies 
may be explored and provided to individual students or groups with 
common areas of intervention. 


$25,000.00 Yes 


6 Reduce overall 
suspension rate 


PTC will reduce the overall suspension rate by creating opportunities 
for students to increase connectedness to school. Regular 
communication with teachers, administrators, and families will help 
support students' needs. Behavioral concerns will be addressed and 
communicated swiftly. Parent conferences help ground 
communication between home and school, as well as student report 
cards, progress reporting and regular calls home. Professional 
development provided by PTC, MCSOS specialists, and outside 
educational agencies in the areas of behavior intervention, de-
escalation strategies, and other intervention practices will be provided 
to all PTC staff. 


$8,500.00 No 


7 Increase number of 
annual climate survey 


On the 2020-21 LCAP parent and student feedback surveys with 214 
of 660 returned, 80% of parents agreed that their student feels safe on 


$65,182.00 No 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 23 of 57 







 


        
  


  
        


            
           


             
          


         
          


        
       


           
        


           
          


 
  


 
 
 


   
   


      


          
               


           
            
            


        
         


         
         


          
           
      


 
         


          
        


 
 


          
      


 


 
 


 
       


X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
responses and campus and 86% of students reported feeling safe on campus. To 
improve survey address how to increase the percentages on both surveys in the 
results future, data will be disaggregated as a staff, led by the project director 


and site administration. Stakeholder input will be solicited through 
School Site Council, ELAC, and Parent Advisory Committee meetings. 
Surveys and polls will be administered through Parent Square and 
information from students and parents through teacher communication 
and parent-teacher conferences. Feedback and professional 
development in the areas of site and student safety will be 
administered by PTC leadership, MCSOS specialists, or outside 
agencies with expertise in school and student safety. Surveys will be 
mailed home to all stakeholders. Printing cost to be included. 


Title I 


8 Reduce EL, 
Homeless, and SED 
student drop out rate 


Based on Ed-data.org 2019-20 data, 28.4% of PTC students dropped 
out of their 4 year cohort. Of those that dropped out, 50% were EL, 
29% SED, and 15.8% were homeless (some student groups overlap). 
To address drop out rates, PTC will do the following: Administrators 
and Academic Counselors will make home visits to students in need of 
intervention. Academic counselors and teachers will maintain 
communication to intervene with students who are falling behind 
academically or have attendance issues. Communication with English 
and Spanish speaking parents will be made by administration, 
academic counseling, teachers and other staff to ensure parents are 
aware of academic and attendance issues in a timely manner through 
phone calls, conferences, and Parent Square. 


Administration and academic counseling can plan and provide parent 
education nights to inform and give strategies parents to help 
intervene and support their students academics and attendance 
issues. 


Site Administration and academic counselor will maintain a priority list 
of students to monitor for intervention. 


$1,800.00 No 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 24 of 57 







 


        
 
 


    
        


            
           


            
            


         
          


         
   


 
        


         
        


          
 
 
 


 
 


 
       


   
  


         


         
          


          
          


         
         


        
         


 
 
 


 
 
 


      


 


   
             


               
 


                    
 


X


X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 


9 Maintain a Safe 
Campus 


87% of PTC students reported, via 2021 survey, feeling safe while on 
campus. To continue and improve this percentage, PTC will continue 
to provide active and proactive supervision, by all staff, to create a 
safe and secure learning environment for students. This will be done 
by maintaining regular supervision schedules before school and during 
breaks and lunch and professional development in: conflict resolution, 
restorative justice, substance use and abuse awareness, and other 
social emotional topics. 


Professional development may be provided by PTC leadership, 
MCSOS specialists, or outside sources which could include Madera 
County Probation, Madera County Behavioral Health, Specialists from 
other County Offices of Education, or other specialists as needed. 


No 


10 Provide external 
learning opportunities 
for students. 


External learning opportunities, such as field trips and guest 
presentations for students have been well attended. Teachers will plan 
field trips and guest presenters that enhance student learning and 
increase connectedness to school. Field trips now allow for virtual 
access, which can also contribute to learning goals. Academic 
counselors to provide workshops on career exploration, SEL, and 
other relevant topics. Curriculum, materials, and other software 
programs to be purchased to support these increased interventions. 


$25,000.00 Yes 


Goal Analysis [2021-22]
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 25 of 57 







 


            
 


                    
 


               
 


                    
 


                      
    


 


                    
 


                    
 


An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 26 of 57 







 


   
 


 
 


   
                


         
 


          
 


                    
                          


                     
                       


             
 


                   
               


         
 


    
 


              
 


   
   


         


    
 


    
   


  


      
  


 
    


   
  


   
         


    
    


   


      
    


   
   


   
  


   
         


   
   
 


     
   


  


Goals and Actions 


Goal 
Goal # Description 


3 PTC will encourage greater stakeholder participation and input by developing meaningful community, parent and family 
relationships. 


An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
Based on state and local assessment data, stakeholder consultation, and other collected data the site identifies this goal and subsequent 
actions as priorities for the site. Goal 3 is a broad goal focused on improving performance across a wide range of metrics listed below. 
Opportunities for parents and community to participate and communicate effectively need to continue to grow in order for students to reach 
their academic and social-emotional goals. parents also need to be supported in their efforts to become informed and education so they can 
actively participate in the PTC community and promote educational success for their children. 


PTC will maintain supportive learning environments that assist families in feeling connected to the program, increase participation in advisory 
committees, and provide other stakeholder feedback opportunities to guide PTC through the next 3 years. 


Measuring and Reporting Results 
Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 


2023–24 
1. Percentage of 
students contacted on 
a teacher caseload. 


Teachers log 82% of 
student/parent 
contacts on a weekly 
basis according to 
PowerSchool data. 


Teachers will log 
100% of 
student/parent 
contacts on a weekly 
basis in PowerSchool. 


2. Parent/family 
attendance will attend 
school events. 


Parents will attend a 
minimum of one event 
held each semester 


Maintain or increase 
the number of school 
events offered to 
parents and students. 


3. Increase the 
percentage parent 
and community input 
and participation. 


31% of parents 
returned surveys in 
2020-21. 


Increase the 
percentage of parent 
nd community 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 27 of 57 







 


              
 


   
 


  
 


        


    
  


      
   


    
   


 


 
 


        
   


 
        


           
       


          
         


            
            


            
         


            
  


 
        


         
        


        
         


        
         


        
   


 
          
          


      
 


 
 


 
       


X


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 


responses to over 
50%. 


4. Increase 
community 
partnerships. 


PTC currently has 2 
community partners 


Increase the number 
of community partners 
and connect them with 
families and students. 


Actions 


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
1 Increase Parent 


Communication 
frequency 


Based on a study for the Harvard Graduate School of Education 
written by Kraft and Dougherty, "teacher-family communication 
increased the odds that students completed their homework by 40%, 
decreased instances in which teachers had to redirect students’ 
attention to the task at hand by 25%, and increased class participation 
rates by15%. With 72% of the SED student population being credit 
deficient, 17% of the students are EL learners, and 29.7% of students 
be redesignated fluent English proficient (RFEP) with languages other 
than English being spoken at home, there is a need for increased 
teacher-parent communication. 


PTC administration, counseling, and teaching staff will provide 
effective communication with parents of regular, EL, and Special 
Education students in home language regarding school administration, 
activities, student progress and attendance. Communication will occur 
through personal phone calls, home visits, the Parent Square 
application/website, an updated and maintained school website, and 
quarterly progress reports and semester report cards; with all 
communication provided in primary languages translated by support 
staff where necessary. 


Bilingual translation provided by counseling and support staff will be 
available for all parent meetings including: IEPs, SSTs, #504 and 
Parent / Teacher / Student conferences. 


$2,500.00 No 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 28 of 57 







 


        
       


           
        


 
 
 


   
  


   
        


             
             


         
   


 
         


 
        


         
          


             
          


            
            
             


    
 


          
            


           
       


  
 


       
           


             
            


        
           
 


 


 
 


 
       


X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
Daily direct communication from administrative, counseling, teaching 
and support staff will be recorded in PowerSchool to maintain a 
accurate record of communication with students and families. 


2 Increase Parent 
Involvement and 
Attendance in School 
Functions 


Very low rates of parent involvement at PTC have been shown in rates 
of completion on 2021 LCAP surveys (28% of PTC parents) led by a 
program director, college preparation seminars offered 3-5 times a 
year by counseling, 


To increase parent involvement, PTC will do the following: 


Counseling will use ParentSquare app/website to promote, deliver, 
and translate their multiple college preparation, financial aide. and 
parent seminar and workshop flyers. Nights specifically designed for 
the EL community will be a priority, with 19.7% of the PTC student 
population being an EL student and RFEP (30% of enrollment) 
students. Printed flyers in both English and Spanish will be distributed 
on site. Two PTC counselors will use the parent surveys and follow-
up contact to determine a course of at least 3 parent seminars and 
workshops throughout the year. 


PTC teachers will continue to hold parent-teacher conferences at the 
beginning of the Spring semester as a followup to the initial meetings 
at enrollment. These conferences will be focused on iReady data 
growth, academic progress, attendance updates, and general 
academic planning. 


Administration, counseling, teaching, and leadership students will 
develop two PTC community nights such as family film nights or 
school carnivals, etc., on top of open house and back to school nights, 
during each year. Coordination of a career fair that include military 
representation, local community colleges, local employers, job corps, 
and the Madera County Workforce Development will take place once a 
year. 


No 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 29 of 57 







 


        
            


           
           


      
 
 
 


   
  


        


           
           


            
           


        
            


       
 


          
         


         
        


          
             


        
 


        
        
          
          


              
           


            
    


 
            


              
           


          
        


 


 
 


 
       


X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
ParentSquare will also be used more prominently to survey and poll all 
parents on a regular basis. PTC administration and program directors 
will set poll parameters and the program director will disaggregate and 
disseminate the data from those polls. 


3 Increase Stakeholder 
Input and 
Participation 


Increasing activity percentages is an important for PTC to be sure 
stakeholders are represented. With 31% of parents returning the most 
recent stakeholder survey, there is a gap in communication. In years 
prior, multiple letters sent home were returned. The 2020-21 school 
year has increased effectiveness when keeping and contacting 
parents through the mail. During the last progress report mailing, only 
6 of 265 progress reports were returned. 


PTC will provide opportunities for parent input through surveys and 
participation in formal and informal advisory committees, including the 
School Site Council, ELAC, Parent Advisory Committee and other 
school engagement meetings. This will increase parent involvement 
for unduplicated student population, which makes up 90% of PTC's 
student population. It is quite challenging to reach all of PTC families 
and extra efforts are made to do so. 


Increased communication from the principal, counselors, and teachers 
through the ParentSquare app/website keeps families informed and 
provides translation of all text information. The principal and 
counselor will send monthly newsletters to parents and students to 
keep information up to date. Phone calls to parents of EL students in 
Spanish will be made by support staff prior to all meeting 
opportunities. Parents of RFEP students will also be a specific group 
to increase the participation. 


ParentSquare will also be used more prominently to survey and poll all 
parents on a regular basis. There are currently only 4 parents not able 
to be contacted through the website. PTC administration and program 
directors will set poll parameters and the program director will 
disaggregate and disseminate the data from those polls. 


No 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 30 of 57 







 


        
 
 


   
  


        


           
         


          
           
          


          
         


 
 


          
           


        
       


        
          


         
          


        
            


          
 


 
          


         
         


           
           


          
         


          
        


           
          


    
 
 


 
 
 


      X


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 


4 Develop greater 
Community Outreach 
opportunities 


Currently, 23 PTC students are on probation, at least 3 current 
students have been involved in sexual exploitations, past students 
have been educated through Valley Children's Hospital, and with 90% 
of PTC students being SED and would benefit from PTC's participation 
in the Madera County Compact and their community connections. 
With the need for PTC students to have positive community 
interactions, building outreach opportunities will be beneficial to out 
students. 


PTC will establish partnerships and engage in community through staff 
outreach. To increase outreach, PTC leadership staff will continue to 
attend the quarterly Madera Compact Meetings, the monthly 
Commercially Sexually Exploited Children (CSEC) meetings, and 
quarterly Juvenile Justice Coalition (JJC) meetings with Madera 
County Probation. PTC counselors will continue to coordinate with 
both Madera Community College and Merced Community College to 
provide students with' 3-4 financial aid information nights, a 
Registration-to-Go information night each semester. Many SED 
students do not know the options available to them and outreach and 
connection to local community colleges can provide a powerful future 
opportunity. 


To build community outreach for students beyond supporting the Kids' 
Day fundraiser for Valley Children's Hospital, former partnerships with 
community groups like GRID Solar Solutions, and 4C's Construction 
need to be rekindled and expanded upon through exploration of other 
options within the community and led by the CTE coordinator. 
Attendance of one PTC administrator to the Madera County Compact 
can provide necessary contacts within the community to continue 
expanding student opportunities in the community. The Compact has 
utilized Leadership students (usually needing the Leadership Teacher 
and one administrator for supervision of event) for serving and hosting 
during their Compact Luncheon and PTC plans to continue this 
partnership in the future. 


$500.00 Yes 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 31 of 57 







 


        
 
 
 
 


 


   
             


               
 


                    
 


            
 


                    
 


               
 


                    
 


                      
    


 


                    
 


                    
 


Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 


Goal Analysis [2021-22]
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 


Analysis of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


A report of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Expenditures Table. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 32 of 57 







Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students [2021-22] 


Percentage to Increase or Improve Services Increased Apportionment based on the Enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income students 


26.09% $853,008 


 


 


          
   


 


                   
   


          
 


                  
 


 
  


 


                        
                       


      
 


                    
                     
                    


                        
                   
   


 
                


                     
                       
                    


                    
           


 
                        
                       


                      
            


 


The Budgeted Expenditures for Actions identified as Contributing may be found in the Increased or Improved Services Expenditures
Table. 


Required Descriptions 
For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of 
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the goals for these students. 


The actions included in the LCAP marked as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement for foster youth, English 
learners, and socio-economically disadvantaged students are being provided on a site wide basis and are consistent with 5 CCR Section 
15496(b). As described in the LCAP instructions, PTC has ensured they are principally directed towards Unduplicated Pupils and are 
effective in meeting their needs as addressed within the goals and actions of this plan. Using the calculation tool provided by the state, 
Pioneer Technical Center has calculated that it will received $853,008 in supplemental and concentration funding under the Local Control 
Funding Formula (LCFF). 


In determining the need for increased services for PTC's Unduplicated Pupils (socio-economically disadvantaged, English learners, foster 
youth), PTC examined valuable data for objective indicators of academic risk. Because the assessments that would normally be given in 
the Spring of 2020 were not able to reliably conducted, the most recent local data from i-Ready for English Language Arts and Mathematics 
was used. Input from stakeholders was also a significant consideration in determining students' needs, actions, and potential effectiveness. 
Indicators for unduplicated student groups are monitored and reported internally and to stakeholders in order to ensure the focus and 
determination of effectiveness remains centered on the outcomes for these students. 


2020-21 ELA i-Ready Diagnostic #2 data showed that 86% of PTC students are at least one below grade level their current grade level. 
2020-21 Mathematics i-Ready Diagnostic #2 data showed that 91% of PTC students are at least one grade level or more below their current 
grade level. These scores, and 90% of PTC students being unduplicated students, shows a tremendous need for academic support due to 
the amount of students below grade level in mathematics and reading skills. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 33 of 57 







 


                   
                         


                         
                 


 
                     


               
 


                        
                         


                        
                    


                      
                      
                      


                      
                       


                      
                         
                       


 
 


                       
                      


                       
             


                        
                      


                       
                 


                      
                 
                  


                     
  


 
                        


                      
                   


PTC also referenced the available research on learning loss, which indicated that "Preliminary COVID slide estimates suggest students will 
return in the fall of 2020 with roughly 70% of the learning gains in reading relative to a typical school year. However, in mathematics, 
students are likely to show much smaller learning gains, returning with less than 50% of the learning gains and in some grades, nearly a full 
year behind what we would observe in normal conditions." (NWEA, Collaborative for Student Growth, April, 2020). 


The details of the required justifications for how PTC is increasing and improving services for the unduplicated student groups is contained 
in the Goals, Actions and Services section of this plan. The contributing titles are: 


Goal 1, Action #1-- To increase the CTE completion rate for PTC students, 90% of which are SED, students are required to complete 20 
credits of a CTE course or pathway. Students will have access to a variety of in-person and online CTE courses, along with an Instructional 
Assistant to reduce the student to staff ratios in classes and support and monitor CTE progress. In a policy brief from D.W. Schanzenbach 
(2014, see attached), the author states that "Smaller classes are particularly effective at raising achievement levels of low income and 
minority children. With PTC's high concentration of SED (low income) and 84% of students being minority students, this will help students 
progress and achieve in CTE course completion. On the CTE Fact Sheet for School Leaders, "CTE increases engagement in school by 
involving students as decision makers and 'owners' of their education" and leads to higher high school graduation rates. Based on this 
information combined with the current rate of completion being at 20%, PTC will continue to support students by requiring CTE experiences 
within their time enrolled and the percentage of students completing a CTE course will increase to 80% or greater by the 2023-24 school 
year, increasing 20% each school year. This action supports Goal 1 by providing students an educational experience that will prepare them 
for their years beyond high school. This action is similar to the action from the 2017-2020 LCAP as was carried over based on feedback 
and connection to research. The new action focuses on the completion rate for PTC's large SED population in conjunction to graduation 
rates. 


Goal 1, Action #4-- To meet the diverse learning needs of PTC students and the deficiencies they currently possess, as based on i-Ready 
results (see data in attached files) and zero percent of students at or exceeding standard in mathematics on the CA Dashboard, increased 
and continuing professional development focused needs to be provided to all staff in the content area of mathematics. In the white paper, 
Raising Student Achievement Through Professional Development (see attached) from Generation Ready, effective professional 
development is: 1) Planned over time, sustained, rigorous and embedded within the context of the school; 2) Uses data to directly link to the 
school goals; 3) Is evidence-based and data driven both to guide improvement and measure impact; and 4) Is differentiated and ensures an 
intensive focus on the teaching learning relationship. Keeping in mind that 90% of PTC students are SED students, a practice of continued 
and responsive professional development provided by county office curriculum and instruction content specialists and site leaders will 
inform and address the needs of PTC's greatest population. This focused professional development will help address Goal 1 by improving 
instructional practices through sustained trainings grounded in the current standards and frameworks, which will lead to greater 
achievement in mathematics and improved graduation rates. Growth and achievement will be measured through local assessments like i-
Ready (measured by number of students below grade level) and on CAASPP data collected on the CA Dashboard (measured by growth 
toward standard). 


Goal 1, Action #6-- PTC will ensure credentialed teachers are available keep the student to teacher ratio below the LEA average of 30:1. 
Reducing student to teacher ratio, as sited above, benefits the 90% SED and 84% minority student populations. These lower ratios provide 
opportunities for teachers to build stronger connections with students, help provide insights into their learning needs and motivations, and 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 34 of 57 







 


                     
                  


                    
                     


                     
                       
       


 
                     


                         
                      
                    


                     
                     


                   
                         


                      
                       


   
 


                         
                        
                         


                         
                    
                      


                       
                   


                    
                        


             
 


                        
                    


                       
                  
                    


                        
                       


be more instructionally agile and responsive based on formative and summative assessments. Hattie in his work, Visible Learning, sites an 
effect size of 0.52 for student-teacher connection/relationship. Smaller class sizes allow for greater connections and greater connections 
lead to increased achievement and graduation rates. This helps support Goal 1 through increasing the graduation rate and student 
preparedness for beyond high school. To measure this, CTE completion rates will increase by 20% each year; ELA and Mathematics 
CAASPP distance from standard will decrease by 30 and 50 points ,respectively, each year; and data collected on student LCAP surveys 
will show growth in questions pertaining to teacher's belief of student student success, learning skills that will help students later in life, and 
that teachers and adults care about students. 


Goal 1, Action #7-- Currently, the SED student population for PTC has no students meeting or exceeding standards on the state 
assessment in either ELA or Mathematics. While this has been a metric in the prior LCAP, this is an action specifically written to address 
the achievement needs of PTC's students. To address this issue, PTC will take a multi-faceted approach to meeting the diverse needs of 
this student group. Instruction and professional development will be data driven by evidence from local indicators in conjunction with 
formative and summative assessments, including i-Ready data. This data will be used to provide access for students to Acceleration Labs 
in ELA and Mathematics to improve their skills and practices in a structured and prescriptive manner through the i-Ready platform to 
support academic achievement and improvement on state summative assessments. As is stated above in reference to PD, evidence and 
data both guide improvement and measure impact. Both of those criteria are met in this manner. A teacher will be assigned to each 
Acceleration Lab and will manage the data and practices based on the data from i-Ready. Progress will be measured through local 
indicator i-Ready data and CAASPP ELA and mathematics data as students should closer to standard and a rate of 30 and 50 points, 
respectively, each year. 


Goal 1, Action #12-- Based on local survey data of parents and students at PTC during the spring of 2020 and continuing on, access to 
personal technology beyond a cell phone was limited. PTC decided to used COVID-19 relief funds to being to bridge the gap for SED 
students and the need for access to technology and internet. In a Pew Research article (see attached), it was noted that SED students tend 
to rely on phone use due to a lack of access computer and home broadband. With continued movement to online curriculum and supports, 
the need for increased technological access (Chromebooks and WIFI hotspots) for students is necessary to help bridge the digital divide 
they are experiencing. Without this access, students rely on phone communication and do not have access to visual or tactile opportunities. 
To address this, PTC provides any student in need a Chromebook and Verizon Hotspot for internet access so the student to computer ratio 
is 1:1. This allows for increased instructional effectiveness by providing access to digital curriculum, peer to peer communication, 
opportunities for learning more about digital citizenship, and use of online formative and summative assessments. This impact can be 
measured as part of SED student group data is gathered in growth of 6% yearly in graduation rate, 20% growth year in CTE course 
completion, and growth on the CAASPP ELA and mathematics assessments previously mentioned above. 


Goal 2, Action #1-- PTC is an independent study charter school that meets with students for individual one hour appointments once a week. 
Attendance for the student is based on making this appointment each week, along with completion of homework between appointments. 
For PTC's SED student population, regular and consistent transportation can be a challenge. To help meet the needs of attending on a 
regular basis, PTC continues working with families to provide necessary transportation through the local school district, Madera Unified 
School District, or vouchers for local public transportation. This action is measured through attendance numbers gathered for MUSD bus 
riders and the number of vouchers used throughout the year for Madera public transportation. This is a carryover action item from the prior 
LCAP because the PTC families need this support and 8-12 students did use these services prior to the COVID-19 pandemic. This year 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 35 of 57 







 


                        
                          


       
 


                     
                        


                    
                    


                         
                     
                      


                    
                       


                        
                         


                        
          


 
                      


                     
                      


                
                      


                      
                     


                      
                       
                  


                       
    


 
                      


                     
                   


                     
                     
                 
                  


alone, attendance is down 15% from the previous and access to transportation was stopped for the majority of the year, thus leading to a 
need for PTC students. The action item helps support Goal 2 for the SED student group by providing what may not be available to the 
students and provides safe transportation to school. 


Goal 2, Action #5-- The COVID-19 Pandemic shut down schools initially and when they reopened, school was nothing like what students 
had experienced before. So much of what has changed has impacted their social-emotional well being. In a 2020 survey done by Kaiser 
Family Foundation, young adults report the greatest percentage (56% of respondents) of anxiety and depressive disorders. Mental Health 
care facilitators report having doubled psychological evaluations in minors since the pandemic began. The 2021-22 school year is a 
mystery about the social-emotional well being of students who will arrive with in the fall. To address this, PTC will continue to consult with 
the local county behavioral health department to provide professional development for staff to help identify students under duress. This will 
help staff make informed notifications to the school psychologist for support and resources. Mental health is a focus, but related concerns 
are substance use and abuse (Ingoglia, 2020), anxiety and depression, suicide and prevention, anger and grief management, and access to 
counseling to overcome these issues also may need to be addressed. PTC plans to use Madera County Behavioral Health services at their 
site until the number of students in need are great enough to potentially work with students on site. This action does support reducing 
student drop out rates by helping meet their variety of needs and directly relates to the focus of Goal 2 by ensuring opportunities to provide 
for the social-emotional needs of PTC students and staff. This action will be measured by the number of students that received from site 
support or were directed towards services provided outside of MCSOS. 


Goal 2, Action #10-- PTC will provide external learning opportunities for students to build a foundation upon for closing learning gaps by 
providing common experiences. In a study led by James Banks, see attached, SED students lack the same enrichment experiences as 
their middle and upper class peers. The suggestion is "schools should provide all students with opportunities to participate in extra- and co-
curricular activities that develop knowledge, skills, and attitudes that increase academic achievement and foster positive interracial 
relationships." With 90% of PTC students being SED, these opportunities are vital to addressing learning gaps. PTC will provide several 
external learning opportunities that include in person and virtual trips; bring in guest presenters of a variety of topics; provide experiences in 
career exploration, SEL, and college experiences. The metric for this action item would be the percentage of students participating in 
external learning opportunities through school. The participation rate will increase by 5% a year for this plan. Based on stakeholder 
feedback and the research provided above, this carryover action item from the prior LCAP is focused on the continuing need of PTC's SED 
students to increase their collective experiences. With the COVID-19 pandemic postponing the external learning opportunities, this action 
was not immediately effective since no opportunities were provided. The future opportunities are key in supporting Goal 2 and the need to 
teach the whole child. 


Goal 3, Action #4-- PTC strives to provide positive community interactions for students and staff, which is a particular challenge in the 
current COVID-19 world. In an AACU article from Christine M. Cress (2012), graduation rates increase and greater learning takes place 
when "thoughtfully and purposefully designed civic engagement activities" are available to students. Gent (2007) has argued that "civic 
engagement is one way to ensure that no student is left behind." PTC will provide opportunities for community engagement through 
business and CTE partnerships, community events, and look for others. Staff will be part of community partnerships which include local 
colleges and businesses, the Madera County Compact, and local youth guidance groups (Juvenile Justice Coalition, Commercially Sexually 
Exploited Children meetings, etc.). Currently, PTC has community partnerships with Madera County Compact and the Juvenile Probation 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 36 of 57 







 


                       
             


 
                    


                  
                       


                  
                        


                   
                     


                      
                       
                     


           
         


 
                     


 
 


                     
                     
                     


                  
                  


 
                   


                       
                    


                         
                            


                    
                      


   
 


                        
                     


                     
                        
                 


Department. Rekindling old partnerships or creating new ones each year is the metric to measure this action. By expanding the community 
partnerships, it directly address Goal 3 and build meaningful relationships with surrounding community. 


All actions and expenditures of funds marked as contributing to increased or improved services were developed focusing on the needs, 
conditions, or circumstances of the unduplicated population with further consideration of the actions design, content, method, and/or 
location that best meets the identified needs. All actions were developed using a careful analysis of data and input from stakeholders. 
These contributing actions are principally directed toward the unduplicated student population to help Pioneer Technical Center be effective 
in meeting the identified LCAP goals and the identified needs of the unduplicated student groups. In the goals section of this plan, each 
action marked "yes" for contributing contains a detailed explanation of how that action is directed toward the unduplicated student 
population and effective in helping close equity and performance gaps, and meet the goals of PTC. PTC incorporated the language 
required by 5 CCR Section 15496 into the description of each specific actions language because each response is unique and specific to 
each contributing action in this plan. PTC's intention in doing this is to increase transparency for stakeholders when reading this plan so 
they can better understand the rationale behind each unique site-wide action. These actions and services are being performed on a 
schoolwide basis in order to increased their overall efficiency and effectiveness. 


A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required. 


Using the calculation tool provided by the state, PTC has calculated that it will received $853,008 in Supplemental and/or Concentration 
funding under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF). The proportionality percent to increase or improve services has been calculated at 
26.09%. The CAES division has demonstrated that it has met the proportionality percentage by planning to expend all the supplemental 
and/or concentration funds on actions or services that are principally directed towards the 90% unduplicated student population as 
summarized in the prompt above and as explained in detail in each contributing action description within this plan. 


Pioneer Technical Center provides a basic instructional program designed to provide learning opportunities for all students. However, the 
budget of $3,141,101 in LCFF base funding constrains the services PTC is able to provide. After examining the needs of our unduplicated 
students, PTC will use its LCFF supplemental and concentration (S/C) funds of $853,008 and other resources to provide the additional 
actions and services as described above. Professional development is going to be a large part of the plan to address the needs of our 
unduplicated students. PD is on going for ELA and ELD to support the increase in literacy that is so greatly needed. PD is also increasing in 
the area of social-emotional awareness and support for PTC students during and after the COVID-19 pandemic subsides. New and 
increased PD is planned to address the needs of PTC students in mathematics, no students on grade level, and their progression towards 
grade level competency. 


While COVID-19 was the catalyst to accelerate the technology plan to reach one to one student to device ratios, the need for access to 
technology will be ongoing from here forward. The need for access to functioning Chromebooks and WiFi hotspots for unduplicated PTC 
students is great and providing this technology to students in need addresses and equity issue in education and provides opportunities that 
would not be there. PTC is continuing to adopt and use new standards aligned curriculum that will have a virtual components, making the 
access necessary. Using S/C funds to continue providing access is key to student improvement and growth. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 37 of 57 







 


 
                    


                        
                     


                      
  


 
                      


                   
                      
  


 
                         
                       


                     
                  
                    


  
 


                  
                   


                    
 


                     
                  


                     
                


 
                  
                     


         
 


The pandemic has shown a need for social-emotional awareness as students are dealing with loss, substance abuse, increased anxiety and 
depression. The overall impact is not going to be known quickly and the need to address students' and staff members' emotional well being 
is paramount to being able to address the learning environment. Using S/C funds to address this issue through professional development 
and support of staff and students going forward is necessary and sets a tone for increased learning once the socio-emotional issues have 
been addressed. 


CTE course completion is a cornerstone to PTC's education mission and vision. Using S/C funds to reduce class sizes and provide 
additional opportunities for students to gain increased CTE skills and understanding that will support their learning beyond high school 
graduation is a great investment. With only 31% of students completing a CTE course, improvement in completion will lead to greater 
graduation rates. 


Chronic absenteeism has always been a challenge for PTC. This year, attendance is down overall and the rate is expected to be higher than 
normal. Addressing chronic absenteeism is a building block issue, especially for PTC's EL population. With 50% of PTC's EL students being 
chronically absent; efforts to educate parents, improve services, and support students in reclassification are areas S/C funds will be used. 
So many of our unduplicated student are also chronically absent and addressing this through increased parent involvement, communication, 
and external learning opportunities for students can help build a supportive community atmosphere for learning and help motivate students to 
attend regularly. 


All increased/improved services are LEA-Wide initiatives aimed at increasing success for all students by using strategies principally directed 
to improve the educational outcomes of unduplicated students These actions and services would not be provided, or increased and/or 
improved to the degree to which they are available to our high-needs students without the availability of the S/C funds. 


While all students may receive some of the services, the actions/services described in this section are principally directed at increasing or 
improving services and outcomes for unduplicated students. We believe no action provides a disproportionate increase or improvement in 
services for the 10% of students not included in the unduplicated student groups. The percentage of all increased/improved services for 
high-needs students is equal to or exceeds the 26.09% noted at the top of this section. 


By directing all the supplemental and concentration funding toward actions principally directed toward our unduplicated students, the district 
has increased or improved services by at least the percentage calculated above as compared to the services provided for all students. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 38 of 57 







 


 
   


 
           


             


 


     


            


 
                 


                
           


  
  


 


              
           


 
  


  


                     
   


  


       
          


   
   
        


 
   


 


              
    


     
        


 
   


 


                
         


 
   


 


                
           


   
  


               
           


 
   


 


                      
  


  


                
           


   
  


              
    


        


   
  


                
           


 
   


 


              
   
        


     


Total Expenditures Table 


LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 


$3,141,101.00 $168,132.00 $95,882.00 $399,649.00 $3,804,764.00 


Totals: Total Personnel Total Non-personnel 


Totals: $3,460,097.00 $344,667.00 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 39 of 57 


1 2 XAll Provide Credit Recovery 
opportunities for SED students 


$5,000.00 $34,000.00 $39,000.00 


1 3 XAll Reclassify English Learners $25,000.00 $25,000.00 


1 4 XEnglish Learners 
XLow Income 


Provide Instructional Staff 
Professional Growth and 
Development 


$16,920.00 $16,920.00 


1 5 XAll Provide instruction and 
instructional materials to increase 
student achievement in ELA and 
Math. 


$1,898,904.00 $1,898,904.00 


1 6 XLow Income Reduce student to teacher 
caseload ratio. 


$690,357.00 $690,357.00 


1 7 XLow Income Improve SED student achievement 
in ELA and Math 


$41,694.00 $41,694.00 


1 8 XAll Improve SED student achievement 
in ELA and Math 


$3,000.00 $3,000.00 


1 9 XAll Retain Highly Effective Teachers $5,000.00 $12,500.00 $17,500.00 


1 10 XAll Improve student opportunities for a 
broader course of study. 


$34,000.00 $34,000.00 


1 11 XAll Provide intervention and 
instructional support for struggling 
learners 


$20,847.00 $20,847.00 


1 12 XLow Income Provide access to Instructional 
Technology for all SED students. 


$43,120.00 $43,120.00 


1 13 XAll Provide Instructional Staff 
Professional Growth and 
Development 


Goal Action # Student Group(s) Title LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 
1 1 XLow Income Increase CTE Course Completion 


for SED student population. 
$203,149.00 $20,847.00 $223,996.00 







Goal Action # Student Group(s) Title LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 
1 14 XAll Provide academic and SEL 


counseling for at-promise students 
$133,657.00 $133,657.00 


2 1 XLow Income Provide student transportation as 
needed to and from school 


$11,400.00 $11,400.00 


2 2 XAll Expand Support Services for 
Parenting Teens, Foster and 
Homeless Youth 


$54,780.00 $147,285.00 $95,882.00 $30,269.00 $328,216.00 


2 3 XAll Continue Positive Student 
Recognition Program 


$1,500.00 $1,500.00 


2 4 XAll Maintain School Facilities $147,171.00 $147,171.00 


2 5 XLow Income Provide Behavioral Health 
Intervention and Support Services 


$25,000.00 $25,000.00 


2 6 XAll Reduce overall suspension rate $8,500.00 $8,500.00 


2 7 XAll Increase number of annual climate 
survey responses and improve 
survey results 


$65,182.00 $65,182.00 


2 8 XAll Reduce EL, Homeless, and SED 
student drop out rate 


$1,800.00 $1,800.00 


2 9 XAll Maintain a Safe Campus 


2 10 XLow Income Provide external learning 
opportunities for students. 


$25,000.00 $25,000.00 


3 1 XAll Increase Parent Communication 
frequency 


$2,500.00 $2,500.00 


3 2 XAll Increase Parent Involvement and 
Attendance in School Functions 


3 3 XAll Increase Stakeholder Input and 
Participation 


3 4 XEnglish Learners 
XFoster Youth 
XLow Income 


Develop greater Community 
Outreach opportunities 


$500.00 $500.00 


 


                 
               


      


   
  


                
            


 
   


 


               
    
         


     


              
         


 
   


 


                      
   


 


               
          


 
   


 


                       
   


 


                
    
         


   
  


                
           


 
   


 


                      
     


               
          


 
   


 


              
        


   
  


               
          


     


               
        


     


       
          
          


   
         


 
   


 


 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 40 of 57 







 


 
   


 


        


           


            


            


           
 
 


       
  


     


     
   


  


                            


    
  


  
 


                
         


           


     
  


 


                 
 


  


     
   


  


                          
 


 


     
 
   


  


                            


    
  


    
 


                            


    
  


   


                 
 


  


    
  


  


                            


Contributing Expenditures Tables 


Totals by Type Total LCFF Funds Total Funds 


Total: $1,015,446.00 $1,077,987.00 


LEA-wide Total: $0.00 $0.00 


Limited Total: $0.00 $0.00 


Schoolwide Total: $1,015,446.00 $1,077,987.00 


Goal Action # Action Title Scope Unduplicated
Student Group(s) 


Location LCFF Funds Total Funds 


1 1 Increase CTE Course 
Completion for SED 
student population. 


XSchoolwide XLow Income XAll Schools $203,149.00 $223,996.00 


1 4 Provide Instructional 
Staff Professional 
Growth and 
Development 


XSchoolwide XEnglish Learners 
XLow Income 


XAll Schools $16,920.00 $16,920.00 


1 6 Reduce student to 
teacher caseload 
ratio. 


XSchoolwide XLow Income $690,357.00 $690,357.00 


1 7 Improve SED student 
achievement in ELA 
and Math 


XSchoolwide XLow Income XAll Schools $41,694.00 


1 12 Provide access to 
Instructional 
Technology for all 
SED students. 


XSchoolwide XLow Income XAll Schools $43,120.00 $43,120.00 


2 1 Provide student 
transportation as 
needed to and from 
school 


XSchoolwide XLow Income XAll Schools $11,400.00 $11,400.00 


2 5 Provide Behavioral 
Health Intervention 
and Support Services 


XSchoolwide XLow Income $25,000.00 $25,000.00 


2 10 Provide external 
learning opportunities 
for students. 


XSchoolwide XLow Income XAll Schools $25,000.00 $25,000.00 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 41 of 57 







Goal 


 


       
  


     


    
  


 


                
         


         


           


 


Action # Action Title Scope Unduplicated
Student Group(s) 


Location LCFF Funds Total Funds 


3 4 Develop greater XSchoolwide $500.00 XEnglish Learners 
XFoster Youth 
XLow Income 


$500.00 
Community Outreach 
opportunities 


XAll Schools 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 42 of 57 







 


 
      


 
             


 


  
  


  
     


  
   


 
    


 
   


 


      
 


       


           


 
 


Annual Update Table Year 1 [2021-22] 


Annual update of the 2021-22 goals will occur during the 2022-23 update cycle. 


Last Year's 
Goal # 


Last Year's 
Action # Prior Action/Service Title 


Contributed to 
Increased or Improved


Services? 
Last Year's Total Planned 


Expenditures 
Total Estimated Actual 


Expenditures 


Totals: Planned Expenditure Total Estimated Actual Total 


Totals: 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 43 of 57 







 


 
 


  


  


   


            


                     
                  


 


   
                     


                     
                     


           


                 
                 


                     
               


                   
                 


                      
 


                    
                 


                    
            


                   
    


Instructions 
Plan Summary 


Stakeholder Engagement 


Goals and Actions 


Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students 


For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the LCAP template, please contact the local COE, or the 
California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at 
lcff@cde.ca.gov. 


Introduction and Instructions 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) requires LEAs to engage their local stakeholders in an annual planning process to evaluate their 
progress within eight state priority areas encompassing all statutory metrics (COEs have ten state priorities). LEAs document the results of this 
planning process in the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) using the template adopted by the State Board of Education. 


The LCAP development process serves three distinct, but related functions: 


 Comprehensive Strategic Planning: The process of developing and annually updating the LCAP supports comprehensive strategic planning 
(California Education Code [EC] 52064(e)(1)). Strategic planning that is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and learning 
performance data. Local educational agencies (LEAs) should continually evaluate the hard choices they make about the use of limited resources to 
meet student and community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all students. 


 Meaningful Stakeholder Engagement: The LCAP development process should result in an LCAP that reflects decisions made through meaningful 
stakeholder engagement (EC 52064(e)(1)). Local stakeholders possess valuable perspectives and insights about an LEA's programs and services. 
Effective strategic planning will incorporate these perspectives and insights in order to identify potential goals and actions to be included in the 
LCAP. 


 Accountability and Compliance: The LCAP serves an important accountability function because aspects of the LCAP template require LEAs to 
show that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, most notably: 


o Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students in proportion to 
the amount of additional funding those students generate under LCFF (EC 52064(b)(4-6)). 


o Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the statutory priority areas and statutory metrics (EC 
52064(b)(1) & (2)). 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 44 of 57 







 


               


                       
                 


                     
                        


                       
                       


                     
      


                   
                 


                     
                   


      


                         
                   


                       
  


                      
       


                     
                  
              


                         
              


                   
                    


     


o Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals (EC 52064(b)(7)). 


The LCAP template, like each LEA’s final adopted LCAP, is a document, not a process. LEAs must use the template to memorialize the 
outcome of their LCAP development process, which should: (a) reflect comprehensive strategic planning (b) through meaningful engagement 
with stakeholders that (c) meets legal requirements, as reflected in the final adopted LCAP. The sections included within the LCAP template 
do not and cannot reflect the full development process, just as the LCAP template itself is not intended as a stakeholder engagement tool. 


If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of education and the governing board of 
the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single LCAP consistent with the requirements in EC sections 52060, 52062, 
52066, 52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of schools) all 
budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 


The revised LCAP template for the 2021–22, 2022–23, and 2023–24 school years reflects statutory changes made through Assembly Bill 
1840 (Committee on Budget), Chapter 243, Statutes of 2018. These statutory changes enhance transparency regarding expenditures on 
actions included in the LCAP, including actions that contribute to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for foster youth, 
English learners, and low-income students, and to streamline the information presented within the LCAP to make adopted LCAPs more 
accessible for stakeholders and the public. 


At its most basic, the adopted LCAP should attempt to distill not just what the LEA is doing, but also allow stakeholders to understand why, 
and whether those strategies are leading to improved opportunities and outcomes for students. LEAs are strongly encouraged to use 
language and a level of detail in their adopted LCAPs intended to be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s diverse stakeholders and the 
broader public. 


In developing and finalizing the LCAP for adoption, LEAs are encouraged to keep the following overarching frame at the forefront of the 
strategic planning and stakeholder engagement functions: 


Given present performance across the state priorities and on indicators in the California School Dashboard, how is the LEA using its 
budgetary resources to respond to student and community needs, and address any performance gaps, including by meeting its 
obligation to increase or improve services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students? 


LEAs are encouraged to focus on a set of metrics or a set of actions that the LEA believes, based on input gathered from stakeholders, 
research, and experience, will have the biggest impact on behalf of its students. 


These instructions address the requirements for each section of the LCAP, but may include information about effective practices when 
developing the LCAP and completing the LCAP itself. Additionally, information is included at the beginning of each section emphasizing the 
purpose that each section serves. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 45 of 57 







 


  


 
                   


                       
                       


 
   


                   
                    


              


                    
                   


                         
                    
 


                      
                         


                     
                       
                   


              


                   
            


                


                      
                


       


                  
         


Plan Summary 


Purpose 
A well-developed Plan Summary section provides a meaningful context for the LCAP. This section provides information about an LEA’s 
community as well as relevant information about student needs and performance. In order to provide a meaningful context for the rest of the 
LCAP, the content of this section should be clearly and meaningfully related to the content included in the subsequent sections of the LCAP. 


Requirements and Instructions 
General Information – Briefly describe the students and community. For example, information about an LEA in terms of geography, 
enrollment, or employment, the number and size of specific schools, recent community challenges, and other such information as an LEA 
wishes to include can enable a reader to more fully understand an LEA’s LCAP. 


Reflections: Successes – Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, and any other information, what progress is the LEA 
most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success? This may include identifying specific examples of how past 
increases or improvements in services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students have led to improved performance for these 
students. 


Reflections: Identified Need – Referring to the Dashboard, identify: (a) any state indicator for which overall performance was in the “Red” or 
“Orange” performance category or any local indicator where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating AND (b) 
any state indicator for which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. 
What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas of low performance and performance gaps? Other needs may be identified 
using locally collected data including data collected to inform the self-reflection tools and reporting local indicators on the Dashboard. 


LCAP Highlights – Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 


Comprehensive Support and Improvement – An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 


● Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI. 


● Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA has or will support the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included 
a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed 
through the implementation of the CSI plan. 


● Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of 
the CSI plan to support student and school improvement. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 46 of 57 







 


  
 
                


                     
               


            


                      
                   


                    


                   
                   


                      
                     


                    
                   


                  
                 


                
                  


   
                      


              


     
            


                   
     


                   
         


Stakeholder Engagement 
Purpose 
Significant and purposeful engagement of parents, students, educators, and other stakeholders, including those representing the student 
groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Consistent with statute, such stakeholder 
engagement should support comprehensive strategic planning, accountability, and improvement across the state priorities and locally 
identified priorities (EC 52064(e)(1)). Stakeholder engagement is an ongoing, annual process. 


This section is designed to reflect how stakeholder engagement influenced the decisions reflected in the adopted LCAP. The goal is to allow 
stakeholders that participated in the LCAP development process and the broader public understand how the LEA engaged stakeholders and 
the impact of that engagement. LEAs are encouraged to keep this goal in the forefront when completing this section. 


Statute and regulations specify the stakeholder groups that school districts and COEs must consult when developing the LCAP: teachers, 
principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the LEA, parents, and students. Before adopting the LCAP, school 
districts and COEs must share it with the Parent Advisory Committee and, if applicable, to its English Learner Parent Advisory Committee. The 
superintendent is required by statute to respond in writing to the comments received from these committees. School districts and COEs must 
also consult with the special education local plan area administrator(s) when developing the LCAP. Statute requires charter schools to consult 
with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in developing the LCAP. The LCAP should also be 
shared with, and LEAs should request input from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., schoolsite councils, English Learner 
Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between schoolsite and district-level goals and actions. 


Information and resources that support effective stakeholder engagement, define student consultation, and provide the requirements for 
advisory group composition, can be found under Resources on the following web page of the CDE’s website: https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/. 


Requirements and Instructions 
Below is an excerpt from the 2018–19 Guide for Annual Audits of K–12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, which is 
provided to highlight the legal requirements for stakeholder engagement in the LCAP development process: 


Local Control and Accountability Plan:
For county offices of education and school districts only, verify the LEA: 


a) Presented the local control and accountability plan to the parent advisory committee in accordance with Education Code section 
52062(a)(1) or 52068(a)(1), as appropriate. 


b) If applicable, presented the local control and accountability plan to the English learner parent advisory committee, in accordance 
with Education Code section 52062(a)(2) or 52068(a)(2), as appropriate. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 47 of 57 







 


                   
                  
  


                  


                    
   


                   


                     
                       


                     
                  


            


                   
              


                 


                    
                      


                     
                     


                       
 


               
          
           
                 
         
         
             
              
            
       


c) Notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit comments regarding specific actions and expenditures proposed to 
be included in the local control and accountability plan in accordance with Education Code section 52062(a)(3) or 52068(a)(3), 
as appropriate. 


d) Held at least one public hearing in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(1) or 52068(b)(1), as appropriate. 


e) Adopted the local control and accountability plan in a public meeting in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(2) or 
52068(b)(2), as appropriate. 


Prompt 1: “A summary of the stakeholder process and how the stakeholder engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP.” 


Describe the stakeholder engagement process used by the LEA to involve stakeholders in the development of the LCAP, including, at a 
minimum, describing how the LEA met its obligation to consult with all statutorily required stakeholder groups as applicable to the type of LEA. 
A sufficient response to this prompt must include general information about the timeline of the process and meetings or other engagement 
strategies with stakeholders. A response may also include information about an LEA’s philosophical approach to stakeholder engagement. 


Prompt 2: “A summary of the feedback provided by specific stakeholder groups.” 


Describe and summarize the stakeholder feedback provided by specific stakeholders. A sufficient response to this prompt will indicate ideas, 
trends, or inputs that emerged from an analysis of the feedback received from stakeholders. 


Prompt 3: “A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific stakeholder input.” 


A sufficient response to this prompt will provide stakeholders and the public clear, specific information about how the stakeholder engagement 
process influenced the development of the LCAP. The response must describe aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by or developed in 
response to the stakeholder feedback described in response to Prompt 2. This may include a description of how the LEA prioritized 
stakeholder requests within the context of the budgetary resources available or otherwise prioritized areas of focus within the LCAP. For the 
purposes of this prompt, “aspects” of an LCAP that may have been influenced by stakeholder input can include, but are not necessarily limited 
to: 


 Inclusion of a goal or decision to pursue a Focus Goal (as described below) 
 Inclusion of metrics other than the statutorily required metrics 
 Determination of the desired outcome on one or more metrics 
 Inclusion of performance by one or more student groups in the Measuring and Reporting Results subsection 
 Inclusion of action(s) or a group of actions 
 Elimination of action(s) or group of actions 
 Changes to the level of proposed expenditures for one or more actions 
 Inclusion of action(s) as contributing to increased or improved services for unduplicated services 
 Determination of effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the goal 
 Determination of material differences in expenditures 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 48 of 57 







 


                   
           


   
 


                      
                      


                         
                    


                      
    


                       
                  


             


   
                     


                     
                 


                      


                          
                


                         


                      
                


             


  
                      


                       
                        


  


 Determination of changes made to a goal for the ensuing LCAP year based on the annual update process 
 Determination of challenges or successes in the implementation of actions 


Goals and Actions 
Purpose 
Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to stakeholders what the LEA plans to accomplish, what the LEA plans to do in order to 
accomplish the goal, and how the LEA will know when it has accomplished the goal. A goal statement, associated metrics and expected 
outcomes, and the actions included in the goal should be in alignment. The explanation for why the LEA included a goal is an opportunity for 
LEAs to clearly communicate to stakeholders and the public why, among the various strengths and areas for improvement highlighted by 
performance data and strategies and actions that could be pursued, the LEA decided to pursue this goal, and the related metrics, expected 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures. 


A well-developed goal can be focused on the performance relative to a metric or metrics for all students, a specific student group(s), narrowing 
performance gaps, or implementing programs or strategies expected to impact outcomes. LEAs should assess the performance of their 
student groups when developing goals and the related actions to achieve such goals. 


Requirements and Instructions 
LEAs should prioritize the goals, specific actions, and related expenditures included within the LCAP within one or more state priorities. LEAs 
should consider performance on the state and local indicators, including their locally collected and reported data for the local indicators that 
are included in the Dashboard in determining whether and how to prioritize its goals within the LCAP. 


In order to support prioritization of goals, the LCAP template provides LEAs with the option of developing three different kinds of goals: 


 Focus Goal: A Focus Goal is relatively more concentrated in scope and may focus on a fewer number of metrics to measure improvement. A Focus 
Goal statement will be time bound and make clear how the goal is to be measured. 


 Broad Goal: A Broad Goal is relatively less concentrated in its scope and may focus on improving performance across a wide range of metrics. 


 Maintenance of Progress Goal: A Maintenance of Progress Goal includes actions that may be ongoing without significant changes and allows an 
LEA to track performance on any metrics not addressed in the other goals of the LCAP. 


At a minimum, the LCAP must address all LCFF priorities and associated metrics. 


Focus Goal(s)
Goal Description: The description provided for a Focus Goal must be specific, measurable, and time bound. An LEA develops a Focus Goal 
to address areas of need that may require or benefit from a more specific and data intensive approach. The Focus Goal can explicitly 
reference the metric(s) by which achievement of the goal will be measured and the time frame according to which the LEA expects to achieve 
the goal. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 49 of 57 







 


                       
                      


                  
  


  
                        


                   
                     


                          
     


                       
      


    
                       


                          
                       


                   


                      


    
                       


                  
   


                          
                          


        


                     
                   


                       
                  


          


     


Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal. An explanation must be 
based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data. LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including 
relevant consultation with stakeholders. LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to pursue a 
focus goal. 


Broad Goal 
Goal Description: Describe what the LEA plans to achieve through the actions included in the goal. The description of a broad goal will be 
clearly aligned with the expected measurable outcomes included for the goal. The goal description organizes the actions and expected 
outcomes in a cohesive and consistent manner. A goal description is specific enough to be measurable in either quantitative or qualitative 
terms. A broad goal is not as specific as a focus goal. While it is specific enough to be measurable, there are many different metrics for 
measuring progress toward the goal. 


Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA developed this goal and how the actions and metrics grouped 
together will help achieve the goal. 


Maintenance of Progress Goal
Goal Description: Describe how the LEA intends to maintain the progress made in the LCFF State Priorities not addressed by the other goals 
in the LCAP. Use this type of goal to address the state priorities and applicable metrics not addressed within the other goals in the LCAP. The 
state priorities and metrics to be addressed in this section are those for which the LEA, in consultation with stakeholders, has determined to 
maintain actions and monitor progress while focusing implementation efforts on the actions covered by other goals in the LCAP. 


Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain how the actions will sustain the progress exemplified by the related metrics. 


Measuring and Reporting Results:
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs are encouraged to 
identify metrics for specific student groups, as appropriate, including expected outcomes that would reflect narrowing of any existing 
performance gaps. 


Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year 
of the three-year plan. LEAs may use data as reported on the 2019 Dashboard for the baseline of a metric only if that data represents the 
most recent available (e.g. high school graduation rate). 


Using the most recent data available may involve reviewing data the LEA is preparing for submission to the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS) or data that the LEA has recently submitted to CALPADS. Because final 2020–2021 outcomes on 
some metrics may not be computable at the time the 2021–24 LCAP is adopted (e.g. graduation rate, suspension rate), the most recent data 
available may include a point in time calculation taken each year on the same date for comparability purposes. 


The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. 


Complete the table as follows: 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 50 of 57 







 


           


                     
                  


                       
       


                       
       


                       
                     


            


                       
           


  


● Metric: Indicate how progress is being measured using a metric. 


● Baseline: Enter the baseline when completing the LCAP for 2021–22. As described above, the baseline is the most recent data 
associated with a metric. Indicate the school year to which the data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 


● Year 1 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2022–23, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 


● Year 2 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2023–24, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 


● Year 3 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2024–25, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. The 2024–25 LCAP will be the first year in the next three-year cycle. Completing 
this column will be part of the Annual Update for that year. 


● Desired Outcome for 2023-24: When completing the first year of the LCAP, enter the desired outcome for the relevant metric the LEA 
expects to achieve by the end of the 2023–24 LCAP year. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 51 of 57 







 


            


           
  


   
 


  
    


  
  


 


  
    


  
  


 


  
    


  
  


   
  


  
    


  
  


   
  


  
    


  
  


   
  


  
    


  
  


 


                       
                          


                     
                      
       


                        
                     


                   
                           


                     
                      


 


                  
                     


             


                  
                   


  


    


Timeline for completing the “Measuring and Reporting Results” part of the Goal. 


Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome 


for Year 3 
(2023-24) 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021– 
22. 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021– 
22. 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2022– 
23. Leave blank 
until then. 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2023– 
24. Leave blank 
until then. 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2024– 
25. Leave blank 
until then. 


Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021– 
22. 


The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative; but at minimum, an LEA’s LCAP must include goals that are measured using all of the 
applicable metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA. To the extent a state priority does not 
specify one or more metrics (e.g., implementation of state academic content and performance standards), the LEA must identify a metric to 
use within the LCAP. For these state priorities, LEAs are encouraged to use metrics based on or reported through the relevant self-reflection 
tool for local indicators within the Dashboard. 


Actions: Enter the action number. Provide a short title for the action. This title will also appear in the expenditure tables. Provide a description 
of the action. Enter the total amount of expenditures associated with this action. Budgeted expenditures from specific fund sources will be 
provided in the summary expenditure tables. Indicate whether the action contributes to meeting the increase or improved services requirement 
as described in the Increased or Improved Services section using a “Y” for Yes or an “N” for No. (Note: for each such action offered on an 
LEA-wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA will need to provide additional information in the Increased or Improved Summary Section to address 
the requirements in California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Section 15496(b) in the Increased or Improved Services Section of the 
LCAP). 


Actions for English Learners: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant English learner student 
subgroup must include specific actions in the LCAP related to, at a minimum, the language acquisition programs, as defined in EC 
Section 306, provided to students and professional development activities specific to English learners. 


Actions for Foster Youth: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant Foster Youth student 
subgroup are encouraged to include specific actions in the LCAP designed to meet needs specific to Foster Youth students. 


Goal Analysis: 


Enter the LCAP Year 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 52 of 57 







 


                   
         


                    
                   


                      


                
            


                       
                       
                        


                       
                       


                     
 


                        
              


          
   


 
                 


                        
                 


                     
                


   
          


                       
                          
    


Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective in 
achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed. 


● Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and 
successes experienced with the implementation process. This must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned 
action or implemented a planned action in a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP. 


● Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures do 
not need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required. 


● Describe the effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. In some cases, not all 
actions in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal. When responding to this 
prompt, LEAs may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the context of performance on a 
single metric or group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). Grouping actions with metrics will allow for 
more robust analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified set of metrics is working and increase transparency 
for stakeholders. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach when goals include multiple actions and metrics that are not closely 
associated. 


● Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable. 


Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students 
Purpose 
A well-written Increased or Improved Services section provides stakeholders with a comprehensive description, within a single dedicated 
section, of how an LEA plans to increase or improved services for its unduplicated students as compared to all students and how LEA-wide or 
schoolwide actions identified for this purpose meet regulatory requirements. Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be 
sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of stakeholders to facilitate their ability to provide input. An LEA’s description in this 
section must align with the actions included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing. 


Requirements and Instructions 
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. 


When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, copy the “Increased or Improved Services” section and enter the appropriate LCAP year. 
Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for the relevant LCAP year. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three 
years within the LCAP. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 53 of 57 







 


                   
                      


                 
                     


  


                      
                    


           


                     
                      


                      
                 


                    
         


            


                     
  


                


                 


                     
                         
                  


                     
                  


                   
                 


                     
                      


Percentage to Increase or Improve Services: Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 


Increased Apportionment based on the enrollment of Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students: Specify the estimate 
of the amount of funds apportioned on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated pupils for the LCAP year. 


Required Descriptions: 


For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an 
explanation of (1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how 
these actions are effective in meeting the goals for these students. 


For each action included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement for unduplicated 
pupils and provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA must include an explanation consistent with 5 CCR Section 15496(b). For 
any such actions continued into the 2021–24 LCAP from the 2017–2020 LCAP, the LEA must determine whether or not the action was 
effective as expected, and this determination must reflect evidence of outcome data or actual implementation to date. 


Principally Directed and Effective: An LEA demonstrates how an action is principally directed towards and effective in meeting the LEA’s 
goals for unduplicated students when the LEA explains how: 


● It considers the needs, conditions, or circumstances of its unduplicated pupils; 


● The action, or aspect(s) of the action (including, for example, its design, content, methods, or location), is based on these 
considerations; and 


● The action is intended to help achieve an expected measurable outcome of the associated goal. 


As such, the response provided in this section may rely on a needs assessment of unduplicated students. 


Conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further explanation 
as to how, are not sufficient. Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does 
not meet the increase or improve services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 


For example, if an LEA determines that low-income students have a significantly lower attendance rate than the attendance rate for all 
students, it might justify LEA-wide or schoolwide actions to address this area of need in the following way: 


After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students, we learned that the attendance rate of our low-
income students is 7% lower than the attendance rate for all students. (Needs, Conditions, Circumstances [Principally Directed]) 


In order to address this condition of our low-income students, we will develop and implement a new attendance program that is 
designed to address some of the major causes of absenteeism, including lack of reliable transportation and food, as well as a school 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 54 of 57 







 


                    
                  


                      
                   


                 
                   


    


                    
                       
                  


    


      


                     
                      


                    
                        


                       
          


      


                     
           


                     
              


                    
                          


             


                    
  


climate that does not emphasize the importance of attendance. Goal N, Actions X, Y, and Z provide additional transportation and 
nutritional resources as well as a districtwide educational campaign on the benefits of high attendance rates. (Contributing Action(s)) 


These actions are being provided on an LEA-wide basis and we expect/hope that all students with less than a 100% attendance rate 
will benefit. However, because of the significantly lower attendance rate of low-income students, and because the actions meet needs 
most associated with the chronic stresses and experiences of a socio-economically disadvantaged status, we expect that the 
attendance rate for our low-income students will increase significantly more than the average attendance rate of all other students. 
(Measurable Outcomes [Effective In]) 


COEs and Charter Schools: Describe how actions included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement on an 
LEA-wide basis are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as 
described above. In the case of COEs and charter schools, schoolwide and LEA-wide are considered to be synonymous. 


For School Districts Only: 


Actions Provided on an LEA-Wide Basis: 


Unduplicated Percentage > 55%: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, describe how these actions are 
principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as described above. 


Unduplicated Percentage < 55%: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%, describe how these actions 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the 
actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this determination, 
including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience, or educational theory. 


Actions Provided on a Schoolwide Basis: 


School Districts must identify in the description those actions being funded and provided on a schoolwide basis, and include the required 
description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis. 


For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these actions are principally directed to and effective in 
meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 


For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% enrollment of unduplicated pupils: 
Describe how these actions are principally directed to and how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for foster 
youth, English learners, and low-income students in the state and any local priorities. 


“A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the 
percentage required.” 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 55 of 57 







 


                    
                        


                       
                     


                    
                  


  
                      


                   


                      


    


     


     


      


                          
 


                     


           


             


          


                       
       


                      
                


              


Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved 
by at least the percentage calculated as compared to the services provided for all students in the LCAP year. To improve services means to 
grow services in quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. Services are increased or improved by those actions in 
the LCAP that are included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement. This 
description must address how these action(s) are expected to result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for 
unduplicated pupils as compared to the services the LEA provides to all students for the relevant LCAP year. 


Expenditure Tables 
Complete the Data Entry table for each action in the LCAP. The information entered into this table will automatically populate the other 
Expenditure Tables. All information is entered into the Data Entry table. Do not enter data into the other tables. 


The following expenditure tables are required to be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body: 


 Table 1: Actions 


 Table 2: Total Expenditures 


 Table 3: Contributing Expenditures 


 Table 4: Annual Update Expenditures 


The Data Entry table may be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body, but is not required to be 
included. 


In the Data Entry table, provide the following information for each action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 


 Goal #: Enter the LCAP Goal number for the action. 


 Action #: Enter the action’s number as indicated in the LCAP Goal. 


 Action Title: Provide a title of the action. 


 Student Group(s): Indicate the student group or groups who will be the primary beneficiary of the action by entering “All”, or by 
entering a specific student group or groups. 


 Increased / Improved: Type “Yes” if the action is included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services; OR, type 
“No” if the action is not included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services. 


 If “Yes” is entered into the Contributing column, then complete the following columns: 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 56 of 57 







 


                    
                     


                         
    


                
                    
  


                        
                       
                     


       


                       
                     


                 


                


         


                         
                 


       


                   


                 


                 


                 


o Scope: The scope of an action may be LEA-wide (i.e. districtwide, countywide, or charterwide), schoolwide, or limited. An action 
that is LEA-wide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of the LEA. An action that is schoolwide in scope upgrades 
the entire educational program of a single school. An action that is limited in its scope is an action that serves only one or more 
unduplicated student groups. 


o Unduplicated Student Group(s): Regardless of scope, contributing actions serve one or more unduplicated student groups. 
Indicate one or more unduplicated student groups for whom services are being increased or improved as compared to what all 
students receive. 


o Location: Identify the location where the action will be provided. If the action is provided to all schools within the LEA, the LEA 
must indicate “All Schools”. If the action is provided to specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must 
enter “Specific Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all 
high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 


 Time Span: Enter “ongoing” if the action will be implemented for an indeterminate period of time. Otherwise, indicate the span of time 
for which the action will be implemented. For example, an LEA might enter “1 Year”, or “2 Years”, or “6 Months”. 


 Personnel Expense: This column will be automatically calculated based on information provided in the following columns: 


o Total Personnel: Enter the total amount of personnel expenditures utilized to implement this action. 


o Total Non-Personnel: This amount will be automatically calculated. 


 LCFF Funds: Enter the total amount of LCFF funds utilized to implement this action, if any. LCFF funds include all funds that make up 
an LEA’s total LCFF target (i.e. base grant, grade span adjustment, supplemental grant, concentration grant, Targeted Instructional 
Improvement Block Grant, and Home-To-School Transportation). 


 Other State Funds: Enter the total amount of Other State Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 


 Local Funds: Enter the total amount of Local Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 


 Federal Funds: Enter the total amount of Federal Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 


 Total Funds: This amount is automatically calculated based on amounts entered in the previous four columns. 


2021-22 Local Control Accountability Plan for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla Page 57 of 57 







 


 


DIVERSITY WITHIN UNITY 
Essential Principles for Teaching and Learning 


in a Multicultural Society 


Ja m e s  A .  B a n k s  


P e t e r  C o o k s o n  


G e n e va  G ay  


Wi l l i s  D.  H aw l e y  


Ja c q u e l i n e  J o r d a n  I r v i n e  


S o n i a  N i e t o  


Ja n e t  Wa r d  S c h o f i e l d  


Wa lt e r  G .  S t e p h a n  


Center for Multicultural Education, College of Education 


University of Washington, Seattle 







 


 


 


Copyright  © 2001 by Center for Multicultural Education, University of Washington, Seattle 


All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced or utilized in any form or by any 


means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying, recording, or by any information storage 


retrieval system, without written permission from the copyright holder. 


Center for Multicultural Education 
College of Education 
University of Washington 
110 Miller 
Box 353600 
Seattle, WA 98195-3600 


PHONE: 206-543-3386 
E-MAIL: centerme@u.washington.edu 
WEB SITE: http://depts.washington.edu/centerme/home.htm 







 


 


1


DIVERSITY WITHIN UNITY 


Essential Principles for Teaching and Learning 


in a Multicultural Society 


Ja m e s  A .  B a n k s  


P e t e r  C o o k s o n  


G e n e va  G ay  


Wi l l i s  D.  H aw l e y  


Ja c q u e l i n e  J o r d a n  I r v i n e  


S o n i a  N i e t o  


Ja n e t  Wa r d  S c h o f i e l d  


Wa lt e r  G .  S t e p h a n  


A publication of the Center for Multicultural Education, 


College of Education, University of Washington, Seattle 







2


C O N T E N T S  


Executive Summary 3 


Teacher Learning 5 


Student Learning 7 


Intergroup Relations 9 


School Governance, Organization, and Equity 10 


Assessment 12 


Conclusion 13 


Essential Principles Checklist 14 


References 19 


The Authors 25 


2 







 


3


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


A consensus panel of interdisciplinary scholars worked over a four-year period to determine what we know from 
research and experience about education and diversity. The panel was cosponsored by the Center for Multicultural 
Education at the University of Washington and the Common Destiny Alliance at the University of Maryland.  The 
panel was supported by a grant from the Carnegie Corporation of New York and chaired by James A. Banks. The 12 
major findings of the panel, which are called essential principles, constitute this publication. They are presented in this 
Executive Summary. 


This publication also contains a checklist designed to be used by educational practitioners to determine the extent to 
which their institutions and environments are consistent with the essential principles. 


Teacher Learning 


Principle 1: Professional development programs should 
help teachers understand the complex characteristics of 
ethnic groups within U.S. society and the ways in which 
race, ethnicity, language, and social class interact to 
influence student behavior. 


Student Learning 


Principle 2: Schools should ensure that all students have 
equitable opportunities to learn and to meet high 
standards. 


Principle 3: The curriculum should help students 
understand that knowledge is socially constructed and 
reflects researchers’ personal experiences as well as the 
social, political, and economic contexts in which they live 
and work. 


Principle 4: Schools should provide all students with 
opportunities to participate in extra- and cocurricular 
activities that develop knowledge, skills, and attitudes that 
increase academic achievement and foster positive 
interracial relationships. 


Intergroup Relations 


Principle 5: Schools should create or make salient 
superordinate crosscutting group memberships in order 
to improve intergroup relations. 


Principle 6: Students should learn about stereotyping and 
other related biases that have negative effects on racial 
and ethnic relations. 


Principle 7: Students should learn about the values shared 
by virtually all cultural groups (e.g., justice, equality, 
freedom, peace, compassion, and charity). 


Principle 8: Teachers should help students acquire the 
social skills needed to interact effectively with students 
from other racial, ethnic, cultural, and language groups. 


Principle 9: Schools should provide opportunities for 
students from different racial, ethnic, cultural, and 
language groups to interact socially under conditions 
designed to reduce fear and anxiety. 


School Governance, Organization, and Equity 


Principle 10: A school’s organizational strategies should 
ensure that decision-making is widely shared and that 
members of the school community learn collaborative 
skills and dispositions in order to create a caring 
environment for students. 


Principle 11: Leaders should develop strategies that 
ensure that all public schools, regardless of their locations, 
are funded equitably. 


Assessment 


Principle 12: Teachers should use multiple culturally 
sensitive techniques to assess complex cognitive and social 
skills. 


3 







                                                                                                                                                                                                     


4


niteT tatthnic, cultural, versit


nation’ choo r onsiderably. Betwee lion


iche, 2000),immigr ntere nite siatat


imat lionmerica. T .S. Censat


tat oreseeabimmigr il nte urenite


nrolle(Riche, 2000).  Thirty-fiv erce f ion’sude


schoo er ude f co ittenhouse, 1998). If current


il f theontinue, studedemogr f core


allas, Natriello,nation’ cDill, 1989).ude


DIVERSITY WITHIN UNITY 
Essential Principles for eaching and Learning in a Multicultural SocietyEssential Principles for Teaching and Learning in a Multicultural Society 


The e and language di y in the United S es and in thehe ethnic, cultural, and language diversity in the U d States and in the 


nation’s ss schools is incrls is inc easing c n 1991 and 1998, 7.6 mileasing considerably. Between 1991 and 1998, 7.6 million 


immigrants eants entered the United the U d S es (Riche, 2000), most from nations in Ad States (R most from nations in Asia 


and L in America. The U us estimates that more than one millionand Latin A he U.S. Census est es that more than one mil 


immigrants wants will entel e r the U d States each year for the foreseeable futr the United S es each year for the f le future 


(Riche, 2000). Thirty-five pe percent ofnt o  the st nts enrolled in the natthe students e d in the nation’s 


schools in 1995 wls in 1995 were studee st nts o lor (Pratt & Rnts of color (Pratt & Rittenhouse, 1998). If current 


demographic t nds continue, students o lor will make up 46% of theaphic trends c nts of color w l make up 46% o 


nation’s st nts in 2020 (Pallas, Natriello, & Ms students in 2020 (P & McDill, 1989). 


4 







 


 
 


  


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


Many of the students entering our nation’s schools speak 
a first language other than English. The 1990 census indi-
cated that 14% of the nation’s school-age youth lived in 
homes in which the primary language was not English. In 
addition to the increase of racial, ethnic, and language di-
versity among the student population, more and more 
students are poor. The percentage of children living in 
poverty rose from 16.2% in 1979 to 18.7% in 1998 (Terry, 
2000). The gap between rich and poor students is also 
increasing. While the student population is becoming 
increasingly diverse, the teaching force remains predomi-
nantly White, middle-class, and female. In 1996, 90.7% of 
the nation’s teachers were White, and almost three-
quarters (74.4%) were female (National Education 
Association, 1997). Consequently, a wide cultural, racial, 
and economic gap exists between teachers and a growing 
percentage of the nation’s students. 


The increasing diversity within the nation and its schools 
poses serious challenges as well as opportunities (Gay, 
2000; Hawley & Jackson, 1995). An important goal of the 
schools should be to forge a common nation and destiny 
from the tremendous ethnic, cultural, and language diver-
sity. To forge a common destiny, educators must respect 
and build upon the cultural strengths and characteristics 
that students from diverse groups bring to school. At the 
same time, educators must help all students acquire the 
knowledge, skills, and values needed to become partici-
pating citizens of the commonwealth. Cultural, ethnic, 
and language diversity provide the nation and the schools 
with rich opportunities to incorporate diverse perspec-
tives, issues, and characteristics into the nation and the 
schools in order to strengthen both. 


WHAT WE KNOW ABOUT DIVERSITY AND EDUCATION 


What do we know about education and diversity and how 
do we know it? This two-part question guided the 
Multicultural Education Consensus Panel that was spon-
sored by the Center for Multicultural Education at the 
University of Washington and the Common Destiny Alli-
ance at the University of Maryland. Diversity Within Unity 
is the product of a four-year project during which the 
panel reviewed and synthesized research related to diver-
sity.  The panel’s work was supported by a grant from the 
Carnegie Corporation of New York. The panel members 
are specialists in race relations and multicultural educa-
tion. An interdisciplinary group, it was made up of two 
psychologists, a political scientist, a sociologist, and four 


multicultural education specialists. The panel was mod-
eled after the consensus panels that develop and write re-
ports for the National Academy of Sciences. In Academy 
panels, an expert group decides, based on research and 
practice, what is known about a particular problem and 
the most effective actions that can be taken to solve it. 


The findings of the Multicultural Education Consensus 
Panel, which are called essential principles in this publica-
tion, describe ways in which educational practice related 
to diversity can be improved. These principles are derived 
from research and practice. They are designed to help 
educational practitioners in all types of schools increase 
student academic achievement and improve intergroup 
skills. Another aim is to help schools successfully meet the 
challenges of and benefit from the diversity that charac-
terizes the United States and its schools. 


We believe that schools can make a difference in the lives 
of students and are a key to maintaining a free and demo-
cratic society. Democratic societies are fragile and are 
works-in-progress. Their existence depends upon a 
thoughtful citizenry that believes in democratic ideals and 
is willing and able to participate in the civic life of the na-
tion-state (Dahl, 1998). We realize that the public schools 
are experiencing a great deal of criticism. However, we be-
lieve that they are essential to maintaining our democratic 
way of life. 


We have organized these twelve essential principles into 
five categories:  (1) Teacher Learning; (2) Student Learn-
ing; (3) Intergroup Relations; (4) School Governance, 
Organization, and Equity; and (5) Assessment. Although 
these categories overlap to some extent, we think that this 
organization will be helpful to readers. 


TEACHER LEARNING 


Principle 1: Professional development programs should help 
teachers understand the complex characteristics of ethnic 
groups within U.S. society and the ways in which race, 
ethnicity, language, and social class interact to influence stu-
dent behavior. 


Most educators, like most other U.S. citizens, are social-
ized within homogeneous communities and have few op-
portunities to interact with people from other racial, eth-
nic, language, and social-class groups. The formal cur-
riculum in schools, colleges, and universities provides 
educators with scant and inconsistent opportunities to 


5 







 


 


 


 


 


 


acquire the knowledge and skills needed to work effec-
tively in culturally diverse educational settings. 


Although significant gains have been made since the 
1960s and 1970s in incorporating ethnic and cultural 
content into the teacher education curriculum, many stu-
dents complete their programs with incomplete knowl-
edge about the cultural, racial, ethnic, and language diver-
sity that characterize today’s classrooms and schools 
(Banks & Banks, 1995; Ladson-Billings, 2000). 


Continuing education about diversity is especially impor-
tant for educators because of the increasing cultural and 
ethnic gap that exists between the nation’s teachers and 
students. Effective professional development programs 
should help educators to: (1) uncover and identify their 
personal attitudes toward racial, ethnic, language, and 
cultural groups; (2) acquire knowledge about the histories 
and cultures of the diverse racial, ethnic, cultural, and lan-
guage groups within the nation and within their schools; 
(3) become acquainted with the diverse perspectives that 
exist within different ethnic and cultural communities; 
(4) understand the ways in which institutionalized knowl-
edge within schools, universities, and popular culture can 
perpetuate stereotypes about racial and ethnic groups; 
and (5) acquire the knowledge and skills needed to de-
velop and implement an equity pedagogy, defined by 
Banks (1995) as instruction that provides all students 
with an equal opportunity to attain academic and social 
success in school. 


Within the popular and academic communities ethnic 
groups are often described in ways that give little atten-
tion to the enormous diversity that exists within each. 
Some interpretations of the educational literature itself, 
especially that written during the late 1960s and 1970s, re-
inforce these static and essentialized conceptions of ethnic 
groups. Notable among the educational literature pub-
lished during this period is the learning style research 
(Ramírez & Castañeda, 1974; Shade, 1989). It is often the 
interpretation of such research that results in misleading 
and over-generalized conceptions of ethnic group behav-
ior, rather than the research itself. Many educators inter-
pret this research to mean that ethnic status can predict 
learning style, yet the researchers give a much more com-
plex interpretation of their findings. Cox and Ramírez 
(1981) lament the ways in which their work has often 
been interpreted and used by educational practitioners. 


Professional development programs should help teachers 
understand the complex characteristics of ethnic groups 


and how variables such as social class, religion, region, 
generation, extent of urbanization, and gender strongly 
influence ethnic and cultural behavior. These variables in-
fluence the behavior of groups both singly and interac-
tively. Social class is one of the most important variables 
that mediate and influence behavior. In his widely dis-
cussed book The Declining Significance of Race, Wilson 
(1978) argues that class is becoming increasingly impor-
tant in the lives of African Americans. The increasing sig-
nificance of class rather than the declining significance of 
race is a more accurate description of the phenomenon 
that Wilson describes. Racism continues to affect African 
Americans in every social-class group, although it does so 
in complex ways that to some extent—but by no means 
always—reflect social-class status (Feagin & Sikes, 1994). 


The widening gap between the rich and poor that is a sa-
lient characteristic of American society today is affecting 
all racial, ethnic, cultural, and social-class groups. The top 
1% of households in the U.S. have doubled their share of 
national wealth since the 1970s (Collins, Leondar-Wright, 
& Sklar, 1999). The class schism within the United States 
is strikingly manifested within ethnic communities of 
color. African Americans and Latinos join the exodus to 
the suburbs when they experience social–class mobility. 


Low-income members of these groups are left in urban 
communities and have few interactions with the upper-
status members of their ethnic groups (Wilson, 1987). So-
cial class strongly influences the opportunities and possi-
bilities of ethnic group members such as Asian Ameri-
cans, Latinos, and African Americans. However, it does 
not protect them from institutional and structural racism 
(Feagin & Sikes, 1994). 


If teachers are to increase learning opportunities for all 
students, they must be knowledgeable about the social 
and cultural contexts of teaching and learning. Although 
students are not solely products of their cultures and vary 
in the degree to which they identify with them, there are 
some distinctive cultural behaviors that are associated 
with ethnic groups (Boykin, 1986; Deyhle, 1986; Irvine & 
York, 1995). Teachers should become knowledgeable 
about the distinctive cultural backgrounds of their stu-
dents. They should also acquire the skills needed to trans-
late that knowledge into effective instruction and an en-
riched curriculum (Gay, 2000). Teaching should be 
culturally responsive to students from diverse racial, 
ethnic, cultural, and language groups (Gay, 2000; Ladson-
Billings, 1995; Valdés, 2001). 


6 







 


   


Making teaching culturally responsive involves strategies 
such as constructing and designing relevant cultural 
metaphors and multicultural representations to help 
bridge the gap between what students already know and 
appreciate and what they will be taught. Culturally re-
sponsive instructional strategies transform information 
about the home and community into effective classroom 
practice (Gay, 2000; Ladson-Billings, 1994; Villegas, 1991) 
and use community members and parents as resources 
(Moll, 1990). 


Research on learning styles emphasizes the powerful, yet 
often overlooked, social and cultural factors that influence 
both the teaching and learning processes (Cazden & 
Mehan, 1989; Irvine & York, 1995; Nieto & Rolon, 1997; 
Villegas, 1991). These cultural factors influence the values, 
beliefs, norms, languages, and symbols of students and 
teachers. Effective teachers for a multicultural society 
contextualize instruction by first understanding how their 
own teaching styles and preferences may hinder the learn-
ing of students who have different learning styles and 
preferences. In addition to being self-aware, teachers 
should probe and reflect upon the existing knowledge and 
cultural experiences of their students and use those in-
sights to increase access to knowledge (Giroux, 1992). 
Rather than relying on essentialized and generalized no-
tions of ethnic groups that can be misleading, effective 
teachers use knowledge of their students’ culture and 
ethnicity as a framework for inquiry. They also use cultur-
ally responsive activities, resources, and strategies to 
organize and implement instruction. 


STUDENT LEARNING 


Principle 2: Schools should ensure that all students 
have equitable opportunities to learn and to meet 
high standards. 


Schools can be thought of as collections of opportunities 
to learn (Hawley, Hultgren, & Abrams, 1996). A good 
school maximizes the learning experiences of students. 
One might judge the fairness of educational opportunity 
by comparing the learning opportunities students have 
within and across schools. The most important of these 
opportunities to learn are: (1) teacher quality (indicators 
include experience, preparation to teach the content being 
taught, participation in high-quality professional devel-
opment, verbal ability, and teacher rewards and incen-
tives); (2) a safe and orderly learning environment; (3) 


time actively engaged in learning; (4) student-teacher 
ratio; (5) rigor of the curriculum; (6) grouping practices 
that avoid tracking and rigid forms of student assignment 
based on past performance; (7) sophistication and 
currency of learning resources and information 
technology used by students; and (8) access to extra-
curricular activities. 


Although the consequences of these different 
characteristics of schools vary with particular conditions, 
the available research suggests that when two or more 
cohorts of students differ significantly in their access to 
opportunities to learn, differences in the quality of 
education also exist (Darling-Hammond, 1995; Dreeban 
& Gamoran, 1986). Such differences affect student 
achievement and can undermine the prospects for 
positive intergroup relations. 


The content that comprises the lessons students are 
taught influences the level of student achievement.  This 
is hardly surprising, but the curriculum students experi-
ence, and the expectation of teachers and others about 
how much of the material students are expected to learn, 
varies from school to school (Darling-Hammond, 1995). 
In general, students taught curricula that are more rigor-
ous learn more than their peers with similar prior knowl-
edge and backgrounds who are taught less rigorous cur-
ricula. For example, early access to algebra leads to greater 
participation in higher math and increased academic 
achievement. 


Most researchers agree that tracking, in which students 
are grouped by interest, prior performance, and presumed 
ability into curricular tracks that define most or all of 
their academic experiences, has a negative effect on the 
achievement of many students in lower tracks and does 
not particularly benefit those in higher tracks (Oakes, 
1985; Levine & Lezotte, 1995). There is an ongoing debate 
about whether this generalization applies to the 3% to 5% 
of students who are most able academically (Kulik & 
Kulik, 1982). A number of effective instructional strate-
gies do group students by past academic performance for 
limited and particular purposes (Mosteller, Light, & 
Sachs, 1996). These practices, commonly but inappropri-
ately called ability grouping, can become unproductive if 
they result in continuous assignment to the same groups, 
cluster students by performance levels for all subjects, or 
restrict student access to more demanding curricula 
(Oakes, 1990).  There are many alternatives to tracking 
and unproductive ability grouping, including various ap-


7 







 


 


 


 


 


  


proaches to cooperative learning, peer tutoring, and 
multi-aged classrooms (Cohen, 1994). 


Principle 3: The curriculum should help students under-
stand that knowledge is socially constructed and reflects 
researchers’ personal experiences as well as the social, po-
litical, and economic contexts in which they live and work. 


In curriculum and teaching units and in textbooks, stu-
dents often study historical events, concepts, and issues 
only or primarily from the points of view of the victors 
(Sleeter & Grant, 1991). The perspectives of the van-
quished are frequently silenced, ignored, or marginalized. 
This kind of teaching privileges mainstream students— 
who most often identity with the victors or dominant 
groups—and cause many students of color to feel left out 
of the American story. 


Concepts such as the discovery of America, the westward 
movement, and pioneers are often taught primarily from 
the points of view of the European Americans who con-
structed them. The curriculum should help students to 
understand how these concepts reflect the values and per-
spectives of European Americans as well as their experi-
ences in the United States. Teaches should help students 
learn how these concepts have very different meanings for 
groups indigenous to America and for groups such as Af-
rican Americans who came to America in chains. 


In teaching concepts and topics such as the westward 
movement, teachers should help students to raise and dis-
cuss these kinds of questions: What is the westward 
movement? Who invented this concept? Why? Who ben-
efits from this concept? Who loses? Teachers should help 
students to understand that the westward movement has 
very different meanings for Native Americans who were 
indigenous to the West and for European Americans who 
migrated to the West. The West was not the west for Na-
tive Americans who lived there but was their homeland 
and the center of the universe. The West represented 
hope, possibilities, and progress for most of the European 
American migrants who went there. For the Native 
Americans, the West often meant death, destruction, 
and defeat. 


Teaching students the different and often conflicting 
meanings of concepts and issues for the diverse groups 
that make up the United States will help them to better 
understand the complex factors that contributed to the 
birth, growth, and development of the nation, to develop 
empathy for the points of views and perspectives that are 
normative within various groups, and to increase their 
ability to think critically (Banks, 1996). These kinds of 
lessons will also help students to understand the powerful 
ways in which personal and cultural experiences influence 
and mediate the construction of knowledge. Students 
should also be provided opportunities to construct 
knowledge themselves in order to deepen their under-
standing of the ways in which point of view influences the 
construction of knowledge and to become more critical 
consumers of the knowledge within the popular, aca-
demic, and school communities (Banks, 2001). 


Principle 4: Schools should provide all students with op-
portunities to participate in extra- and cocurricular ac-
tivities that develop knowledge, skills, and attitudes that 
increase academic achievement and foster positive inter-
racial relationships. 


Research evidence that links student achievement to 
participation in extra- and cocurricular activities is 
increasing in quantity and consistency (Braddock, 1991; 
Eccles & Barber, 1999; Gutiérrez et al., 1999; Jordan, 1999; 
Mahiri, 1998). There is significant research that supports 
the proposition that participation in after-school 
programs, sports activities, academic associations like 
language clubs, and school-sponsored social activities 
contributes to academic performance, reduces high 
school drop-out rates and discipline problems, and 
enhances interpersonal skills among students from 
different ethnic backgrounds.  Gutiérrez and her 
colleagues, for example, found that “non-formal learning 
contexts,” such as after-school programs, are useful in 
bridging home and school cultures for students from 
diverse groups. Braddock concluded that involvement in 
sports activities was particularly beneficial for African 
American male high school students. When designing 
extracurricular activities, educators should give special 
attention to recruitment, selection of leaders and teams, 
the cost of participating, allocation of school resources, 
and opportunities for cooperative equal-status intergroup 
contact (Allport, 1954). 


8 







 


 


 


  


  


INTERGROUP RELATIONS those stereotypes.  In addition, people often enhance their 


Principle 5: Schools should create or make salient 
superordinate crosscutting group memberships in order to 
improve intergroup relations. 


Creating superordinate groups, or groups with which 
members of all the other groups in a situation identify, 
improves intergroup relations (Gaertner, Rust, Dovidio, 
Bachman, & Anastasio, 1994; Sherif, 1966). When 
membership in superordinate groups is salient, other 
group differences become less important. Creating 
superordinate groups stimulates liking and cohesion, 
which can mitigate pre-existing animosities. 


In school settings there are many superordinate group 
memberships that can be created or made salient.  For ex-
ample, it is possible to create superordinate groups 
through extracurricular activities.  There are also many 
existing superordinate group memberships that can be 
made more salient: the classroom, the grade level, the 
school, the community, the state, and even the nation. 
The most immediate superordinate groups are likely to be 
the most influential (e.g., students or members of the 
school chorus rather than Californians), but identifica-
tion with any superordinate group can decrease prejudice. 


Another potentially useful approach to improving inter-
group relations is to create or make salient crosscutting 
group memberships (Commins & Lockwood, 1978). 
These are aspects of identity (religion, age, sex) that 
people share with some of the members of their own ra-
cial or ethnic group but not with other members. Making 
crosscutting group memberships salient can reduce preju-
dice because it is hard to dislike people with whom you 
share important aspects of your identity. 


Principle 6: Students should learn about stereotyping and 
other related biases that have negative effects on racial 
and ethnic relations. 


We use categories in perceiving our environment because 
categorization is a natural part of information processing. 
But the mere act of categorizing people as ingroup and 
outgroup members can result in stereotyping, prejudice, 
and discrimination (Tajfel, 1970; Tajfel & Turner, 1986). 
Specifically, making distinctions between groups often 
leads to perceiving the other group as more homogenous 
than one’s own group and to an exaggeration of the ex-
tent of the perceived group differences (Tajfel & Turner, 
1986; Linville, Salovey, & Fischer, 1986).  Thus, categoriz-
ing leads to stereotyping and to behaviors influenced by 


self-esteem by favorably evaluating the groups to which 
they belong (Tajfel & Turner, 1986). Unfortunately, this is 
often accomplished by negatively evaluating other racial 
and ethnic groups. 


Intergroup contact can counteract stereotypes if the situa-
tion allows members of each group to behave in a variety 
of ways across different contexts so that their full human-
ity and diversity are displayed.  Negative stereotypes can 
also be modified in noncontact situations by providing 
ingroup members with information about multiple 
outgroup members who disconfirm the stereotype across 
a variety of situations (Crocker, Hannah, & Weber, 1983; 
Johnston & Hewstone, 1992; Mackie, Allison, Worth, & 
Asuncion, 1992; Rothbart & John, 1985). Experiential ex-
ercises can also be used.  One well-known technique that 
increases the participants’ intentions to act in nondis-
criminatory ways is a simulation that divides students by 
eye color and demonstrates to them the arbitrariness of 
intergroup distinctions (Byrnes & Kiger, 1990). 


Principle 7: Students should learn about the values shared 
by virtually all cultural groups (e.g., justice, equality, free-
dom, peace, compassion, and charity). 


Teaching students about the values that virtually all 
groups share, such as those described in the UN Universal 
Bill of Rights (Banks, 1997a; Kohlberg, 1981; Schwartz & 
Bilsky, 1990), can provide a basis for perceived similarity 
that can promote favorable intergroup relations. In addi-
tion, the values themselves serve to undercut negative in-
tergroup relations by discouraging injustice, inequality, 
unfairness, conflict, and a lack of compassion or charity. 


The value of egalitarianism deserves special emphasis 
since a number of theories suggest that it can help to un-
dermine stereotyping and prejudice (Allport, 1954) and 
to restrict the direct expression of racism (Gaertner & 
Dovidio, 1986; Katz, Glass, & Wackenhut, 1986). An em-
phasis on egalitarianism, both as a value and in actual in-
teraction, counteracts one of the most invidious aspects 
of ethnocentrism: the idea that the ingroup is superior to 
the outgroup.  There are ways to promote egalitarianism 
in schools. For example, Cohen (1990; Cohen & Roper, 
1972) uses cooperative groups to accomplish this goal, 
combined with treatments designed to counteract nega-
tive stereotypes of the ability of minority group members. 
Other cooperative techniques have attempted to equalize 
the roles played by the participants of different back-
grounds by assigning them roles of equal importance or 


9 







 


 


 


 


rotating the more important roles (e.g., teacher, learner) 
(Aronson, Blaney, Stephan, Sikes, & Snapp, 1978). 


Principle 8: Teachers should help students acquire the so-
cial skills needed to interact effectively with students from 
other racial, ethnic, cultural, and language groups. 


One of the most effective techniques for improving 
intercultural relations is to teach members of the cultural 
groups the social skills necessary to interact effectively 
with members of another culture (Bochner, 1986; 1993). 
Students need to learn how to perceive, understand, and 
respond to group differences.  They need to learn not to 
give offense and not to take offense.  They also need to 
be helped to realize that when members of other groups 
behave in ways that are inconsistent with ingroup 
norms these individuals are not necessarily behaving 
antagonistically. 


Being the target of stereotyping, prejudice, and discrimi-
nation is a painful experience. People react in a variety of 
ways, many of them potentially damaging.  For instance, 
people respond with anger, rage, and violence, they recip-
rocate the prejudice and discrimination, or they can ac-
cept the stereotypes as potentially applicable to them. One 
intergroup relations trainer (Kamfer & Venter, 1994) asks 
members of the minority and majority groups to discuss 
what it feels like to be the target of stereotyping, preju-
dice, and discrimination.  Sharing such information in-
forms the majority group of the pain and suffering their 
intentional or thoughtless acts of discrimination cause. 
It also allows the members of minority groups to share 
their experiences with one another.  Other techniques that 
involve sharing experiences through dialogue have also 
been found to improve intergroup relations (Zúñiga & 
Nagda, 1993). 


Conflict resolution is a skill that can be taught in the 
schools in order to improve intergroup relations (Deutsch, 
1993). Learning to resolve conflicts involves understanding 
their origins, which might include disputes over resources 
(e.g., power and resources), differences in values, beliefs, 
and norms, or inability to meet basic human needs (e.g., 
respect, security, affirmation). Students should also learn 
how to avoid conflicts by using techniques of de-escalation 
such as negotiation, bargaining, making concessions, or 
giving apologies or explanations (Fisher, 1994). A number 
of school districts throughout the United States are teach-
ing students to act as mediators for disputes among other 
students (Deutsch, 1993).  This type of mediation holds 
promise as one approach to resolving certain intergroup 
conflicts in schools. 


Principle 9: Schools should provide opportunities for 
students from different racial, ethnic, cultural, and lan-
guage groups to interact socially under conditions de-
signed to reduce fear and anxiety. 


One of the primary causes of prejudice is fear (Gaertner 
& Dovidio, 1996;  Katz, Glass, & Wackenhut, 1986; 
McConahay, 1986; Sears, 1988; Stephan & Stephan, 1996). 
Fear leads members of social groups to avoid interacting 
with outgroup members and causes them discomfort 
when they do (Stephan & Stephan, 1996). 


Fears about members of other groups often stem from 
concern about realistic and symbolic threats to the 
ingroup—that the ingroup will lose some or all of its 
power or resources or that its very way of life will be un-
dermined.  Many such fears have little basis in reality or 
are greatly exaggerated. 


To reduce uncertainty and anxiety concerning interaction 
with outgroup members, the contexts in which interac-
tion takes place should be relatively structured, the bal-
ance of members of the different groups should be as 
equal as possible, the probabilities of failure should be 
low, and opportunities for hostility and aggression should 
be minimized (Stephan & Stephan, 1985). 


Providing factual information that contradicts 
misperceptions can also counteract prejudice based on a 
false sense of threat. Undercutting myths about the values 
of outgroups can also facilitate social interaction with 
members of the other group.  Stressing the value similari-
ties that exist between groups should also reduce the de-
gree of symbolic threat posed by outgroups and thus re-
duce fear and prejudice. 


SCHOOL GOVERNANCE, ORGANIZATION, AND EQUITY 


Principle 10: A school’s organizational strategies should 
ensure that decision-making is widely shared and that 
members of the school community learn collaborative 
skills and dispositions in order to create a caring environ-
ment for students. 


School policies and practices are the living embodiment 
of a society’s underlying values and educational philoso-
phy. They also reflect the values of those who work within 
schools. Whether in the form of curriculum, teaching 
strategies, assessment procedures, disciplinary policies, or 
grouping practices, school policies do not emerge from 
thin air;  they embody a school’s beliefs, attitudes, and ex-


10 







   


 


  


pectations of its students (Nieto, 1999). This is true 
whether the school is one with extensive or limited finan-
cial resources, with a relatively monocultural or a richly 
diverse student body, or located in a crowded central city 
or an isolated rural county. 


School organization and leadership can either enhance or 
detract from developing learning communities that pre-
pare students for a multicultural and democratic society. 
School models of pluralism and democracy can serve as 
apprenticeships of these values for students, or conversely, 
they can distort the messages of democracy and pluralism 
that are conveyed in exalted mission statements and bi-
ased textbooks. Thus, for example, if schools are rigidly 
authoritarian, students might learn that democracy is a 
lofty ideal but an elusive practice. Likewise, if diversity is 
celebrated in superficial and meaningless activities but 
important knowledge continues to be defined as that 
which is found in a static and monocultural canon, the 
message to students is that diversity is irrelevant in learn-
ing (Banks, 1993). 


Schools that are administered from the top-down are 
unlikely to create collaborative, caring cultures.  Too often 
schools talk about democracy but fail to practice shared 
decision-making. Powerful multicultural schools are 
organizational hubs that include a wide variety of 
stakeholders, including students, teachers, administrators, 
parents, and community members. There is convincing 
research evidence that parental involvement, in particular, 
is critical in enhancing student learning (Fruchter, 
Galleta, & White, 1992; Klimes-Dougan, Lopez, Nelson, 
& Adelman, 1992). A just multicultural school is 
receptive to working with all members of the students’ 
communities. 


One formative step in creating a school that encourages 
collaborative skills and dispositions is the process by 
which shared decision-making is institutionalized in 
school governance. Opening schools up to an honest and 
productive form of discourse is an important step in 
creating schools in which diversity is valued. 


Issues of institutional power and privilege in society are 
played out in daily interactions in a school through its 
policies and practices. Unfortunately, these issues are 
rarely made part of the public discourse in schools 
(Freire, 1985; Fine, 1991). Instead, individual merit, am-
bition, talent, and intelligence are touted as the only 
source of academic success, with little consideration given 
to the impact of structural inequality based on race, 


ethnicity, gender, social class, and other differences. 
Students whose difference may relegate them to a 
subordinate status in society are often blamed for their 
lack of achievement (Nieto, 2001). Although it is true that 
individual differences are also important in explaining 
relative academic success or failure, they must be 
understood in tandem with the power and privilege of 
particular groups in society (McIntosh, 1988). 


Leaders in schools can confront issues of power and privi-
lege in a number of ways. Teachers and other school per-
sonnel, for example, can be encouraged to individually 
reflect on their own status, values, perspectives, biases, 
and experiences and how these might influence their rela-
tionships with students and with students’ families 
(Cummins, 1989). Racism and other manifestations of 
both individual and institutional discrimination need to 
be considered in terms of their impact on policy decisions 
and on classroom and school-wide practices. It follows 
that teachers and administrators need to continually 
examine the personal, social, and cognitive consequences 
of policies and practices in order to promote equity in 
their schools. Thus, for example, retention, ability group-
ing, and testing are policies laden with value judgments 
about students’ capabilities (Darling-Hammond, 1991). 
Tracking is generally supported by a privileged few whose 
children might benefit from it. Consequently, it continues 
even though it might jeopardize the opportunity to learn 
for the majority of students (Oakes, 1990). Also, the cur-
riculum can explicitly focus on issues of power and privi-
lege through the countless examples found in history, lit-
erature, art, science, and other disciplines (Banks, 1997a). 


Including a study of racism and social justice as part of 
the curriculum is not enough. It needs to be accompanied 
by structural changes in the school and changes in peda-
gogical assumptions and strategies. Thus, recruitment and 
retention of a diverse staff is an important part of chang-
ing a school; changing decision-making structures to be 
more democratic is another. Pedagogical strategies that 
promote social responsibility and action, as well as equi-
table relations of power in the classroom, are also needed. 
In the final analysis, all those who work in schools need to 
analyze critically how their policies and practices benefit 
some students and jeopardize others, and make changes 
that will contribute to promoting learning among greater 
numbers of students. 


11 







  


  


 


  


  


Principle 11: Leaders should develop strategies that ensure 
that all public schools, regardless of their locations, are 
funded equitably. 


School finance equity is a critical condition for creating 
just multicultural schools.  The current inequities in the 
funding of public education are startling (Kozol, 1991). 
Two neighborhoods, adjacent to one another, can provide 
wholly different support to their public schools, based on 
property values and tax rates (McCall, 1996).  Students 
who live in poor neighborhoods are punished because 
they must attend schools that are underfunded when 
compared to the schools located in more affluent 
neighborhoods. 


Some policy makers and researchers argue that variations 
in funding are not strongly correlated with variations in 
student learning (Hanushek, 1994). This literature has 
convinced some policy makers and politicians that fund-
ing is not a critical issue in improving America’s schools. 
Investigators who have examined this situation more 
carefully have found that when funds are used for instruc-
tional purposes there are positive effects on student learn-
ing (Dreeben & Gamoran, 1986).  Thus, schools that have 
adequate supplies and learning aids such as computers are 
more likely to increase student learning than schools 
without these supplies and aids. While this finding may 
seem obvious, it has been obscured by those who wish to 
substantially reduce funding for public education. 


There is considerable debate on whether money makes a 
difference in the quality of education (Burtless, 1996). 
However, there is growing agreement among researchers 
that when money is allocated to enhance student oppor-
tunities to learn and is used well, the consequence is, on 
average, improved student performance (Hedges, Laine, & 
Greenwald, 1995). Of course, as is true for many other in-
vestments, educational expenditures are often poorly 
spent and are sometimes allocated to nonproductive pri-
orities (Murnane & Levy, 1996). Equity does not mean 
sameness. It focuses attention on need. Thus, students 
with needs for special assistance to ensure that they maxi-
mize their potential should receive additional learning 
opportunities (usually involving greater expenditures) if 
their education is to be equitable. The failure of schools 
and school systems to provide all students with equitable 
resources for learning will, of course, work to the disad-
vantage of those receiving inadequate resources and will, 
usually, widen the achievement gap in schools.  Since 


achievement correlates highly with student family in-
come, and since persons of color are disproportionately 
low income, inequity in opportunities to learn contribute 
to the achievement gap between students of color and 
students who are White. 


ASSESSMENT 


Principle 12: Teachers should use multiple culturally sensi-
tive techniques to assess complex cognitive and social 
skills. 


Evaluating student progress is one of the most frequent 
instructional behaviors performed by teachers. If done ef-
fectively, assessment enhances student learning and per-
formance. However, unidimensional and cursory assess-
ments not only delay achievement but can also reduce the 
confidence and self-esteem of students. Evaluating the 
progress of students from diverse racial, ethnic, and so-
cial-class groups is complicated by differences in lan-
guage, learning styles, and cultures. Hence, the use of a 
single method of assessment will likely further disadvan-
tage students from particular social classes and ethnic 
groups. 


Teachers should adopt a range of formative and 
summative assessment strategies that give students an op-
portunity to demonstrate mastery. These strategies should 
include observations, oral examinations, performances, 
and teacher-made as well as standardized measures and 
assessments.The intellectual, affective, and action skills re-
quired to adequately prepare students for a multicultural 
future are diverse and complex. Students must be able to 
know, think, feel, believe, and behave in ways that demon-
strate respect for people, experiences, issues, and per-
spectives that are different from their own.  They must be 
informed, critical, socially conscious, and ethical change 
agents who are committed to social, political, cultural, 
and educational equality.  Other goals include self-knowl-
edge and acceptance, understanding other cultures, im-
proving intergroup relations, combating racism and other 
forms of oppression, and increasing the academic 
achievement of students of color. Diverse strategies and 
programs are required to attain these goals. 


This range and complexity of skills defy a single standard, 
indicator, or measure of achievement or competence. Al-
though test scores on knowledge about the contributions 
of ethnic groups can provide an indication of how much 
factual information a student has acquired, they provide 


12 







  


 


 


 


 
 


 


few insights into how well individuals can relate to people 
from other racial and ethnic groups. They also provide 
little information about a student’s sense of moral out-
rage about racial, gender, and social-class inequities, or 
about her or his will and skill to oppose racism (Howell & 
Rueda, 1994; Moreland, 1994; Padilla & Medina, 1994). 
Yet, these abilities, along with many others, are essential 
for the nation’s multicultural future. Schools must help 
students develop them and must use some systemic 
ways of determining the degree to which they have been 
attained. 


Students learn and demonstrate their competencies in 
different ways.  The preferred mode of demonstrating 
task mastery for some is writing, while others do better 
speaking, visualizing, or performing; some are stimulated 
by competitive and others by cooperative learning 
arrangements; some prefer to work alone while others like 
to work in groups (Shade, 1989; Barbe & Swassing, 1979; 
Lazear, 1994).  Consequently, a variety of assessment pro-
cedures and outcomes that are compatible with different 
learning, performance, work, and presentation styles 
should be used to determine if students are achieving the 
levels of skill mastery needed to function effectively in a 
multicultural society. These assessments might include a 
combination of  observations, performance behaviors, 
self-reflections, portfolios, writing assignments, case study 
analyses, critical thinking, problem-solving, creative 
productions, real and simulated social and political ac-
tions, and acts of crosscultural caring and sharing. 


Assessment should go beyond traditional measures of 
subject matter knowledge and include  complex cognitive 
and social skills. Effective citizenship in a multicultural 
society requires individuals who have values and abilities 
to promote equality and justice among culturally diverse 
groups. This empowerment encompasses a complex and 
wide-ranging set of personal, social, intellectual, moral, 
and political knowledge, beliefs, ethics, and skills. It is not 
enough simply to teach isolated facts about the national 
origins, cultural contributions, historical experiences, and 
social problems of a few highly visible ethnic groups in 
several subjects at selected times during the school year. 
Nor should only one or a few aspects of the educational 
enterprise, such as social studies or language arts, bear the 
responsibility for teaching multicultural  knowledge and 
skills. Rather, schools should use systemic and holistic re-
form strategies, in which all of their component parts are 


directly involved. All classroom teachers in all subject 
areas, along with all administrators, counselors, policy 
makers, and support staffs, should be actively involved in 
and held accountable for preparing students for a multi-
cultural future (Banks & Banks, 2001; Bennett, 1995). 


CONCLUSION 


Powerful multicultural schools help students from diverse 
racial, cultural, ethnic, and language groups to experience 
academic success. Academic knowledge and skills are es-
sential in today’s global Internet society. However, they 
are not sufficient. Students must also develop the knowl-
edge, attitudes, and skills needed to interact positively 
with people from diverse groups and to participate in the 
nation’s civic life (Banks, 1997b). Students must be com-
petent in intergroup and civic skills to function effectively 
in today’s complex and ethnically polarized nation and 
world. 


Diversity in the nation’s schools is both an opportunity 
and a challenge. The nation is enriched by the ethnic, cul-
tural, and language diversity among its citizens and 
within its schools. However, whenever diverse groups in-
teract, intergroup tension, stereotypes, and institutional-
ized discrimination develop (Howard, 1999; Stephan, 
1999). Schools must find ways to respect the diversity of 
their students as well as help to create a unified nation-
state to which all of the nation’s citizens have allegiance. 
Structural inclusion into the nation-state and power shar-
ing will engender feelings of allegiance among diverse 
groups. E pluribus unum–diversity within unity–is the 
delicate goal toward which our nation and its schools 
should strive. We offer these design principles with the 
hope that they will help educational practitioners realize 
this elusive and difficult but essential goal of a democratic 
and pluralistic society. 


ACKNOWLEDGMENT 


We would like to acknowledge the contributions of these 
scholars who gave us thoughtful comments on an earlier 
draft of this publication: Cherry A. McGee Banks (Uni-
versity of Washington, Bothell), Kris Gutiérrez (University 
of California, Los Angeles), Gloria Ladson-Billings (Uni-
versity of Wisconsin, Madison), and Jeffrey D. Milem 
(University of Maryland, College Park). 


13 







Diversity Within Unity 
Essential Principles Checklist 


Principles 
Hardly at All 


Rating 
Somewhat Strongly 


1. 0 Do professional development programs in your school district help 
teachers understand the complex characteristics of U.S. ethnic, 
racial, and cultural groups? 


1.1 Do professional programs help teachers to understand the ways 
in which race, ethnicity, culture, language, and social class interact 
in complex ways to influence student behavior? 


1.2 Do professional programs help teachers to uncover and identify 
their personal attitudes toward different racial, ethnic, language, 
and social-class groups? 


1.3 Do professional programs help teachers to uncover and identify 
their behaviors related to diverse racial, ethnic, language, and 
social-class groups? 


1.4 Do they help teachers acquire knowledge about the history and 
cultures of diverse ethnic, racial, and cultural groups? 


1.5 Do they help teachers become knowledgeable about the diverse 
perspectives on historical and current events within different 
ethnic, racial, language, and cultural communities? 


1.6 Do they help teachers develop the knowledge and skills needed 
to modify their instruction so that students from diverse ethnic, 
racial, cultural, and language groups will have an equal 
opportunity to learn in their classrooms? 


2.0 Do the schools in your district ensure that all students have  equitable 
opportunities to learn and to meet high standards? 


2.1 Are the teachers and administrators in schools with large minority 
and low-income populations comparable in terms of experience, 
degrees held, and endorsements with teachers and administrators 
in other schools in the district? 


2.2 Are the curricula in schools with large minority and low-income 
populations as rigorous as the curricula in other schools in the 
district? 


2.3 Do schools in your district avoid tracking and rigid forms of 
student assignment? 


2.4 Are the learning resources and information technology in schools 
with large minority and low-income populations comparable to 
those of other schools in the district? 


2.5 Is access to technology distributed equitably within the school 
among students from different ethnic, cultural, and social-
class backgrounds? 


14 







Principles Rating 
Hardly at All Somewhat Strongly 


2.6 Are the opportunities for access to extra- and cocurricular activities 
comparable in schools throughout the district? 


2.7 Are language minority students provided with the extra services 
and support they need to achieve academic success? 


2.8 Are schools with large minority and low-income populations given 
extra services that provide students with the support they need to 
attain high levels of academic achievement? 


2.9 Are language minority students, students of color, and low-income 
students represented proportionately in particular schools and 
classrooms? 


3.0 Does the curriculum in your school help students to understand that 
knowledge is socially constructed and reflects the personal 
experiences and the social, political, and economic contexts in 
which they live and work? 


3.1 Does the curriculum help students to understand historical events 
from the perspectives of various racial, ethnic, and cultural groups? 


3.2 Does the curriculum help students understand the ways in which 
the unique experiences of peoples or groups cause them to view 
the same historical and social events differently? 


3.3 Do the instructional materials used in your district, such as 
textbooks, supplementary books, and videotapes, describe 
historical, social, and political events from the perspectives of 
different racial, ethnic, cultural, and language groups? 


3.4 Are the textbooks and other instructional materials used in your 
school written by authors from different racial, ethnic, and cultural 
groups? 


4.0 Do the schools in your district provide all students with opportunities 
to participate in extra- and cocurricular activities that are congruent 
with the academic goals of the school and that develop knowledge, 
skills, and attitudes that increase academic achievement and foster 
positive interracial relationships? 


4.1 Do students who attend schools with large minority and low-
income populations have as many opportunities to participate in 
extra- and cocurricular activities as students who attend other 
schools in the district? 


4.2 Are ethnic and language minority students represented 
proportionately in the extra- and cocurricular school activities? 


4.3 Are deliberate actions taken by the school staff to make sure that 
ethnic and language minority students are represented 
proportionately in the school’s extra- and cocurricular activities? 


4.4 Do fees and other policies and practices inadvertently exclude many 
minority and low-income students from participating in specific 
extra- and cocurricular activities? 


15 







 


Principles Rating 
Hardly at All Somewhat Strongly 


4.5 Does the school staff take deliberate steps to make sure that students 
from different racial, ethnic, language, and social-class groups 
experience cooperative equal status in extra- and cocurricular 
activities? 


4.6 Are some extra- and cocurricular activities in the school stratified 
by race or social class? 


5.0 Do teachers and school administrators act to create or make salient 
superordinate and crosscutting group memberships in order to 
improve intergroup relations in the school? 


5.1 Do teachers in your school take steps to make extra- and 
cocurricular activities interracial and crossethnic so that 
superordinate group memberships can be created? 


5.2 Do the schools in your school have rituals, exercises, or activities 
that highlight or emphasize crosscutting group memberships that 
exist in the classroom and school? 


5.3 Do teachers in your school organize activities and projects that 
enable students from diverse racial, ethnic, cultural, and language 
groups to work together cooperatively and develop a superordinate 
group identity? 


6.0 Are students in your school taught about stereotyping and other 
related biases that have negative effects on racial and ethnic relations? 


6.1 Are the students taught social science information about how 
stereotyping and categorization can result in prejudice and 
discrimination? 


6.2 Are students given opportunities to have meaningful contact with 
students from other racial and ethnic groups in order to observe 
them behaving in a variety of ways across different contexts? 


6.3 Are students provided information about  individuals from outside 
ethnic and racial groups who refute the stereotypes about these 
groups? 


6.4 Do the students have opportunities to participate in simulations, 
role-playing, and other activities that enable them to experience 
what it is like to be a victim of discrimination? 


7.0 Are students taught about the values shared by virtually all cultures, 
such as justice, equality, freedom, peace, compassion, and charity? 


7.1 Are students taught about the values that undergird the founding 
documents of the United States, such as the Declaration of 
Independence, the Constitution, and the Bill of Rights? 


7.2 Do teachers implement democratic values, such as egalitarianism 
and social justice, in their interactions with students and colleagues? 


7.3 Do teachers use teaching strategies, such as cooperative groups, to 
promote and teach egalitarianism? 


16 







Principles Rating 
Hardly at All Somewhat Strongly 


7.4 Do teachers require students to act in ways consistent with 
democratic values when interacting with each other? 


8. 0 Do teachers help students to acquire the social skills that are needed 
to interact effectively with students from other racial, ethnic, and 
cultural groups? 


8.1 Do teachers in your school talk openly and constructively about 
race with students? 


8.2 Do teachers encourage students from different ethnic and racial 
groups to talk openly and constructively about race? 


8.3 Do teachers help students to acquire the knowledge and skills they 
need to have thoughtful, constructive, and heartfelt discussions 
about race? 


8.4 Do teachers encourage students from different racial and ethnic 
groups to have open and constructive conversations about being 
victims of racism and discrimination? 


8.5 Do teachers encourage students from different racial and ethnic 
groups to discuss the benefits and costs to groups who are the 
perpetuators of racial discrimination? 


8.6 Do teachers in your school talk openly and constructively about 
race with each other? 


9.0 Does your school provide opportunities for students from different 
racial, ethnic, cultural, and language groups to interact socially under 
conditions designed to reduce fear and anxiety? 


9.1 Do teachers structure interracial cooperative groups that enable 
students from different racial and ethnic groups to become 
acquainted as individuals? 


9.2 Are students provided with factual information in the social 
studies or other subjects that contradicts misconceptions about 
ethnic and racial groups? 


9.3 When teaching about ethnic and cultural differences, do teachers 
point out the important ways in which all human groups are 
similar? 


10.0 Does the organizational structure of the school ensure that decision-
making is widely shared and that members of the school community 
learn collaborative skills in order to create a caring environment 
for students? 


10.1 Is decision-making within the school widely shared among school 
administrators, teachers, parents, and students? 


10.2 Do members of the school community learn collaborative skills? 


10.3 Do the adults in the school community create a collaborative and 
caring environment for the students? 


17 







Principles Rating 
Hardly at All Somewhat Strongly 


10.4 Are parents involved in meaningful ways in school policy and 
decision-making? 


10.5 Do teachers and administrators continually examine the personal, 
social, and cognitive consequences of policies and practices in order 
to promote equity in their schools? 


10.6 Does the school curriculum include a focus on issues of power and 
privilege through examples in history, art, science, and other 
disciplines? 


10.7 Are structural changes being made in the school to make it a more 
affirming and just environment for students from different racial, 
ethnic, cultural, language, and social-class groups? 


10. 8 Are changes being made in teaching strategies to accomodate 
students from different racial, ethnic, cultural, language, and 
social-class groups? 


10.9 Are successful efforts being made at the district and school level to 
recruit a racially, culturally, and ethnically diverse administrative 
and teaching staff? 


11.0 Are leaders developing strategies to ensure that all public schools, 
regardless of their locations, are funded equitably? 


11.1 Are school administrators endeavoring to help state legislators and 
other state policy makers to understand the significant influence 
that funding has on student outcomes? 


11.2 Are teacher organizations endeavoring to educate state legislators 
and other state policy makers about the influence of funding on 
student outcomes? 


11.3 Are parent and community groups endeavoring to ensure that 
schools are funded equitably? 


11.4 Are state and district level officials endeavoring to provide 
additional funding for schools with low-income populations? 


12.0 Do school district policies encourage the use of multiple ways of 
assessing student learning that are culturally sensitive and that 
measure complex cognitive and social skills? 


12.1 Do teachers use a range of formative and summative assessment 
strategies that give students opportunities to demonstrate their 
mastery of knowledge and skills? 


12.2 Do teachers use a variety of assessment devices to ensure that 
students from diverse racial, ethnic, cultural, and language groups 
meet rigorous standards in the academic subjects? 


12.3 Do teachers use a variety of assessment devices to measure student 
outcomes that are related to improved race relations? 


12. 4 Does assessment go beyond traditional measures of subject matter 
knowledge to include complex cognitive and social skills? 


18 







 
 


   


   


 


 
 


 
 


  
   


 
 


 


  


   
 


  


 


  
 


  


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


  


  


 


 


 


 
 


  


19


REFERENCES 


Alford, C. F. (1994). Group psychology and political theory. 
New Haven: Yale University Press. 


Allport, G. W. (1954). The nature of prejudice. Reading, 
MA: Addison-Wesley. 


Aronson, E., Blaney, N., Stephan, C., Sikes, J., & Snapp, 
M. (1978). The jigsaw classroom. Beverly Hills, CA: Sage. 


Banks, J. (1993). The canon debate, knowledge 
construction, and multicultural education. Educational 
Researcher, 22(5), 4-14. 


Banks, J. A. (1995). Multicultural education: Historical 
development, dimensions, and practice. In J. A. Banks & 
C. A. M. Banks (Eds.), Handbook of research on 
multicultural education (pp. 1-24). New York: Macmillan. 


Banks, J. A. (Ed.). (1996). Multicultural education, 
transformative knowledge, and action. New York: Teachers 
College Press. 


Banks, J. (1997a). Teaching strategies for ethnic studies (6th 
ed.). Boston: Allyn & Bacon. 


Banks, J. A. (1997b). Educating citizens in a multicultural 
society. New York: Teachers College Press. 


Banks, J. A. (2001). Cultural diversity and education: 
Foundations, curriculum and teaching (4th ed.). Boston: 
Allyn and Bacon. 


Banks, J. A., & Banks, C. A. M. (Eds.). (1995). Handbook 
of research on multicultural education. New York: 
Macmillan. 


Banks, J. A., & Banks, C. A. M. (Eds.). (2001). 
Multicultural education: Issues and perspectives (4th ed.). 
Boston: Allyn and Bacon. 


Barbe, K. H. P., & Swassing, R. H. (1979). Teaching 
through modality strengths: Concepts and practice. 
Columbus, OH: Zaner-Bloser. 


Bennet, C. I. (1995). Comprehensive multicultural 
education: Theory and practice. Boston: Allyn and Bacon. 


Bennett, M. J. (1986). A developmental approach to 
training for intercultural sensitivity. International Journal 
of Intercultural Relations, 10, 179-196. 


Bochner, S. (1982). The social psychology of cross-
cultural relations. In S. Bochner (Ed.), Cultures in contact: 
Studies in cross-cultural interaction (pp. 5-44). London, 
England: Pergamon Press. 


Bochner, S. (1986). Training intercultural skills. In C. R. 
Hollins and P. Trower (Eds.), Handbook of social skills 
training: Applications across the life span (Vol. 1). Oxford: 
Pergamon. 


Bochner, S. (1993). Culture shock. In W. Lonner and R. 
Malpass (Eds.), Psychology and culture (pp. 245-252). 
Boston: Allyn and Bacon. 


Boykin, A. W. (1986). The triple quandary and the 
schooling of Afro-American children. In U. Neisser (Ed.), 
The school achievement of minority children: New 
perspectives (pp. 57-92). Hillsdale, NJ: Lawrence Erlbaum. 


Braddock, J. (1991).  Bouncing back: Sports and academic 
resilience among African-American males. Education and 
Urban Society, 24(1), 113-131. 


Burtless, G. (Ed.). (1996). Does money matter? The effect of 
school resources on student achievement and adult success. 
Washington, DC: Brookings Institution. 


Byrnes, D. A., & Kiger, G. (1990). The effect of a 
prejudice-reduction simulation on attitude change. 
Journal of Applied Social Psychology, 20, 341-356. 


Cazden, C. B., & Mehan, H. (1989). Principles from 
sociology and anthropology: Context, code, classroom, 
and culture. In M. C. Reynolds (Ed.), Knowledge base 
for the beginning teacher (pp. 47-57). Oxford, England: 
Pergamon Press. 


Code, L. (1991). What can she know? Feminist theory and 
the construction of knowledge. Ithaca: Cornell University 
Press. 


Cohen, E. (1990). Teaching in multiculturally 
heterogeneous classrooms. McGill Journal of Education, 
26, 7-22. 


Cohen, E. (1994). Designing groupwork: Strategies for 
heterogeneous classrooms (2nd ed.).  New York: Teachers 
College Press. 


19 







 
 
 


 


 
  


 


 


  


  
 


 
 


 
 


  


   


 
  


 
  


 


 
 


  


 
 


 
 


  


 


  


  
 


 
 


 


  
 


  
 


 
  


  
 


   


 


 


 


  
 


 


20


Cohen, E., & Roper, S. (1972). Modification of interracial 
interaction disability: An application of status 
characteristics theory. American Sociological Review, 37, 
643-657. 


Collins, C., Leondar-Wright, B., & Sklar, H. (1999). 
Shifting fortunes: The perils of the growing American 
wealth gap. Boston: United for a Fair Economy. 


Comer, J. P., & Haynes, N. M. (1991). Parent involvement 
in schools: An ecological approach. The Elementary School 
Journal, 91, 271-277. 


Commins, B., & Lockwood, J. (1978). The effects on 
intergroup relations of mixing Roman Catholics and 
Protestants: An experimental investigation. European 
Journal of Social Psychology, 8, 383-386. 


Cox, B. G., & Ramírez, M., III. (1981). Cognitive styles: 
Implications for multiethnic education. In J. A. Banks 
(Ed.), Education in the 80s: Multiethnic education (pp. 61-
71). Washington, DC: National Education Association. 


Crocker, J., Hannah, D. B., & Weber, R. (1983). Personal 
memory and causal attributions. Journal of Personality 
and Social Psychology, 44, 55-66. 


Cummins, J. (1989). Empowering minority students. 
Sacramento, CA: California Association for Bilingual 
Education. 


Dahl, R. (1998). On democracy. New Haven, CT: Yale 
University Press. 


Darling-Hammond, L. (1991). The implications of testing 
policy for quality and equality. Phi Delta Kappan, 73(3), 
220-225. 


Darling-Hammond, L. (1995). Inequality and access to 
knowledge. In J. A. Banks & C. A. M. Banks (Eds.), 
Handbook of research on multicultural education (pp. 465-
483). New York: Macmillan. 


Darling-Hammond, L., & Ancess, J. (1994). Graduation by 
portfolio at Central Park East Elementary School. New 
York: NCREST. 


Davidman, L., & Davidman, P. T. (1994). Teaching with a 
multicultural perspective: A practical guide. New York: 
Longman. 


Dawkins, M. (1999, April). Sports involvement as a 
protective factor in drug abuse prevention among African 
American youth. Paper presented at the meeting of the 
American Education Research Association, Montreal, 
Canada. 


Deutsch, M. (1993). Cooperative learning and conflict 
resolution in an alternative high school. Cooperative 
Learning, 13, 2-5. 


Deyhle, D. (1986). Success and failure: A micro-
ethnographic comparison of Navajo and Anglo students’ 
perceptions of testing. Curriculum Inquiry, 16, 365-389. 


Diaz, C. (Ed.).  (2001). Multicultural education for the 21st 
century.  New York: Longman. 


Dreeben, R., & Gamoran, A. (1986). Race, instruction, 
and learning. American Sociological Review, 51(5), 660-
669. 


Eccles, J. S., & Barber, B. L. (1999). Student council, 
volunteering, basketball, or marching band: What kind of 
extracurricular involvement matters? Journal of 
Adolescence Research, 14(1), 10-43. 


Feagin, J. R., & Sikes, M. P. (1994). Living with racism: The 
Black middle-class experience. Boston: Beacon Press. 


Fine, M. (1991). Framing dropouts: Notes on the politics of 
an urban high school. Albany: State University of New 
York. 


Fisher, R. (1994). General principles for resolving 
intergroup conflict. Journal of Social Issues, 50, 47-66. 


Freire, P. (1985). The politics of education: Culture, power, 
and liberation. New York: Bergin & Garvey. 


Frutcher, N., Galleta, A., & White, L. (1992). New forms of 
parent involvement: A policy study. Submitted to the Lily 
Endowment. New York: Academy for Educational 
Development. 


Gaertner, S. L., & Dovidio, J. F. (1986). The aversive form 
of racism. In  J. F. Dovidio & S. L. Gaertner (Eds.), 
Prejudice, discrimination, and racism (pp. 61-90). 
Orlando, FL: Academic Press. 


Gaertner, S. L., Dovidio, J. F., Nier, J. A., Ward, C. M., & 
Banker, B. S. (1999). Across cultural divides: The value of 
superordinate identity. In D. A. Prentice and D. T. 


20 







 


 


  


  


  
 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


   


    


 


 


  
    


 
 


  
  


 


    


 
 


 


  


 


  


  


  
 


  
 


 


  
  


 


21


Miller (Eds.), Cultural divides: Understanding and 
overcoming group conflict (pp. 173-212). New York: 
Russell Sage Foundation. 


Gaertner, S., Rust, M., Dovidio, J., Bachman, B., & 
Anastasio, P. (1994). The contact hypothesis: The role of 
a common ingroup identity on reducing intergroup bias. 
Small Group Research, 25, 224-249. 


Gardner, H. (1983). Frames of mind: The theory of 
multiple intelligences.  New York: Basic Books. 


Gay, G. (2000). Culturally responsive teaching: Theory, 
research, and practice. New York: Teachers College Press. 


Giroux, H. A. (1992). Educational leadership and  the 
crisis of democratic government. Educational Researcher, 
21, 4-11. 


Gutiérrez, K. D., Paquedano-Lopez, P., Alvarez, H. H., & 
Chiu, M. M. (1999).  Building a culture of collaboration 
through hybrid language practices. Theory into Practice, 
38(2), 87-93. 


Hanushek, E. A. (1994). School resources and student 
performance. In G. Burtless (Ed.), Does money matter? 
The effect of school resources on student achievement and 
adult success (pp. 43-73). Washington, DC: Brookings. 


Harding, S. (1991). Whose science? Whose knowledge? 
Thinking from women’s lives. Ithaca: Cornell University 
Press. 


Hawley, W. D., & Jackson, A. (Eds.). (1995). Toward a 
common destiny: Improving race and ethnic relations in 
America. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass. 


Hawley, W. D., Hultgren, F., & Abrams, A. (1996). The 
characteristics of effective schools. Report to the Maryland 
State Department of Education. College Park: University 
of Maryland. 


Hedges, L. V., Laine, R. D., & Greenwald, R. (1995). Does 
money matter? A meta-analysis of studies of the effects of 
a differential school inputs on school outcomes. 
Educational Researcher, 23, 5-14. 


Howard, G. (1999). We can’t teach what we don’t know: 
White teachers, multiracial schools. New York: Teachers 
College Press. 


Howell, K. W., & Rueda, R. (1994). Achievement testing 
with culturally linguistic diverse students. In L. A. Suzuki, 
P. J. Meller, & J. G. Ponterotto (Eds.), Handbook of 
multicultural assessment (pp. 253-290). San Francisco: 
Jossey-Bass. 


Irvine, J. J., & York, D. E. (1995). Learning styles and 
culturally diverse students: A literature review. In J. A. 
Banks & C. A. M. Banks (Eds.), Handbook of research on 
multicultural education (pp. 484-497). New York: 
Macmillan. 


Johnston, L., & Hewstone, M. (1992). Cognitive models 
of stereotype change. Journal of Experimental Social 
Psychology, 28, 360-386. 


Jordan, W. J. (1999, April). Sports and schooling: Athletics 
matter in comprehensive high schools. Paper presented at 
the annual meeting of the American Educational 
Research Association, Montreal, Canada. 


Kamfer, L., & Venter, J. L. (1994). First evaluation of a 
stereotype reduction workshop. South African Journal of 
Psychology, 24, 13-20. 


Katz, I., Glass, D. C., & Wackenhut, J. (1986). An 
ambivalence-amplification theory of behavior toward the 
stigmatized. In S. Worchel & W. G. Austin (Eds.), 
Psychology of intergroup relations (2nd ed., pp. 103-117). 
Chicago: Nelson-Hall. 


Klimes-Dougan, B., Lopez, J. A., Nelson, P., & Adelman, 
H. S. (1992). Two studies of low-income parents’ 
involvement in schooling. The Urban Review, 24, 185-202. 


Kohlberg, L. (1981). Essays on moral development. New 
York: Harper and Row. 


Kozol, J. (1991). Savage inequalities: Children in America’s 
schools. New York: Crown Publishers. 


Kulik, C. C., & Kulik, J. A. (1982). Effects of ability 
grouping on secondary school students: A meta-analysis 
of evaluation findings. American Educational Research 
Journal, 19, 451-428. 


Ladson-Billings, G. (1994). The dreamskeepers: Successful 
teachers of African American children. San Francisco: 
Jossey-Bass. 


Ladson-Billings, G. (1995). Toward a theory of culturally 
relevant pedagogy. American Educational Research 
Journal, 32(3), 465-491. 


21 







 


  


  
 


 
    


 


   


 


  
 


 


 


 
 


   


 
  


   
 


 


   


 
 


 


 
  


  


 
   


 


 


  


 
 


  


  
  


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


  


   


 
 


22


Ladson-Billings, G.  (2000). Preparing teachers for 
diversity: Historical perspectives, current trends, and 
future directions. In L. Darling-Hammond & G. Sykes, 
(Eds.), Teaching as the learning profession: Handbook of 
policy and practice (pp. 86-123). San Francisco: Jossey-
Bass. 


Lazear, D. (1994). Multiple intelligence approaches to 
assessment: Solving the assessment conundrum. Tuscon, AZ: 
Zephyr Press. 


Levine, D. U., & Lezotte, L. (1995). Effective schools 
research. In J. A. Banks & C. A. M. Banks (Eds.). Handbook 
of research on multicultural education (pp. 525-547). 
New York: Macmillan. 


Linville, P. W., Salovey, P., & Fischer, G. W. (1986). 
Stereotyping and perceived distributions of social 
characteristics: An application to ingroup-outgroup 
perception. In J. Dovidio & S. L. Gaertner (Eds.), 
Prejudice, discrimination, and racism (pp. 165-208).  New 
York: Academic Press. 


McCall, C. H. (1996). An agenda for equitable and cost-
effective school finance reform. New York State Office of 
the State Comptroller. Albany, NY: Public Information 
Office. 


McConahay, J. G. (1986). Modern racism, ambivalence, 
and the modern racism scale. In J. F. Dovidio & S. L. 
Gaertner (Eds.), Prejudice, discrimination, and racism (pp. 
91-125). Orlando, FL: Academic Press. 


McIntosh, P. (1988). White privilege and male privilege: A 
personal  account of coming to see correspondences 
through work in women’s studies. Working paper no. 
189. Wellesley, MA: Wellesley College Center for Research 
on Women. 


Mackie, D. M., Allison, S. T., Worth, L. T., & Asuncion, A. 
G., (1992). Social decision-making processes: The 
generalization of outcome-biased counter-stereotypic 
inferences. Journal of Experimental Social Psychology, 28, 
23-42. 


Mahiri, J. (1998). Shooting for excellence. New York: 
Teachers College Press. 


Mehan, H. (1992). Understanding inequality in schools: 
The contribution of interpretive studies. Sociology of 
Education, 65, 1-20. 


Meier, D. (1994). Transforming schools into powerful 
communities. Teachers College Record, 3, 654-658. 


Moll, L. C. (Ed.). (1990). Vygotsky and education: 
Instructional implications and applications of sociohistorical 
psychology. New York: Cambridge University Press. 


Moreland, K. L. (1994). Persistent issues in multicultural 
assessment of social and emotional functioning. In L. A. 
Suzuki, P. J. Meller, & J. G. Ponterotto (Eds.), Handbook of 
multicultural assessment (pp. 51-76). San Francisco: 
Jossey-Bass. 


Mosteller, F., Light, R. J., & Sachs, J. A. (1996). Sustained 
inquiry in education: Lessons from skill grouping and 
class size. Harvard Educational Review, 66, 797-828. 


Murnane, R. J., & Levy, F. (1996). Teaching the new basic 
skills: Principles for educating children in a changing 
economy.  New York: Free Press. 


National Education Association (1997, July). Status of the 
American public school teacher, 1995-96. Washington, DC: 
Author. 


Nieto, S. (1999). The light in their eyes: Creating 
multicultural learning communities. New York: Teachers 
College Press. 


Nieto, S. (2001). School reform and student learning: A 
multicultural perspective. In J. A. Banks & C. A. M. Banks 
(Eds.), Multicultural education: Issues and perspectives (4th 
ed., pp. 381-401). Boston: Allyn & Bacon. 


Nieto, S., & Rolon, C. (1997). Preparation and 
professional development of teachers: A perspective from 
two Latinas. In J. J. Irvine (Ed.), Critical knowledge for 
diverse teachers and learners (pp. 93-128). Washington, 
DC: American Association of Colleges for Teacher 
Education. 


Oakes, J. (1985). Keeping track: How schools structure 
inequality. New Haven, CT: Yale University Press. 


Oakes, J. ( 1990). Multiplying inequalities: The effects of 
race, social class, and tracking on opportunities to learn 
mathematics and science. Santa Monica, CA: Rand. 


Padilla, A. M., & Medina, A. (1994). Cross-cultural 
sensitivity in assessment: Using tests in culturally 
appropriate ways. In L. A. Suzuki, P. J. Meller, & J. G. 
Ponterotto (Eds.), Handbook of multicultural assessment 
(pp. 3-28). San Francisco: Jossey-Bass. 


22 







 


 


 
 


  
   


  


 


 
 


 


 
 


  


  


 
 


  
 


 


   


    
  


  


  
  


 


  


 
 


    
  


   
 


 
 


 
 


  


  
   


 


  


  
 


   
 


   
 


  


23


Pallas, A. M., Natriello, G., & McDill, E. L. (1989). The 
changing nature of the disadvantaged population: 
Current dimensions and future trends. Educational 
Researcher, 18(5), 16-22. 


Pratt, R., & Rittenhouse, G. (Eds.). (1998). The condition 
of education, 1998. Washington, DC: U.S. Government 
Printing Office. 


Quattrone, G. A. (1986). On the perception of a group’s 
variability. In S. Worchel & W. G. Austin (Eds.), Psychology 
of intergroup relations (pp. 25-48). Chicago: Nelson-Hall. 


Ramírez, M., III ,& Castañeda, A. (1974). Cultural 
democracy, bicognitive development, and education. New 
York: Academic Press. 


Riche, M. F. (2000). America’s diversity and growth: 
Signposts for the 21st century. Population Bulletin, 55(2), 
1-43. Washington, DC: Population Reference Bureau. 


Rothbart, M., & John, O. P. (1985). Social categorization 
and behavioral episodes: A cognitive analysis and the 
effects of intergroup contact. Journal of Social Issues, 41, 
81-104. 


Schwartz, S. H., & Bilsky, W. (1990). Toward a theory of 
the universal content and structure of values: Extensions 
and cross-cultural replications. Journal of Personality and 
Social Psychology, 58, 878-891. 


Sears, D. O. (1988). Symbolic racism. In P. A. Katz and D. 
A. Taylor (Eds.), Eliminating racism: Profiles in controversy 
(pp. 53-85). New York: Plenum. 


Shade, B. J. R. (Ed.).  (1989). Culture, style, and the 
educative process. Springfield, IL: Charles C. Thomas. 


Sherif, M. (1966). Group conflict and cooperation. London: 
Routledge and Kegan Paul. 


Sikkema, M., & Niyekawa, A. M. (1987). Design for cross-
cultural learning. Yarmouth, MA: Intercultural Press. 


Sizer, T. R. (1985). Horace’s compromise. Boston: 
Houghton Mifflin. 


Sleeter, C. E., & Grant, C. A. (1991). Race, class, gender, 
and disability in current textbooks. In M. W. Apple & L. 
K. Christian-Smith (Eds.), The politics of the textbook (pp. 
78-101). New York: Routledge. 


Stephan, W. (1999). Reducing prejudice and stereotyping in 
schools. New York: Teachers College Press. 


Stephan, W. G., & Stephan, C. (1985). Intergroup anxiety. 
Journal of Social Issues, 41,  57-176. 


Stephan, W. G., & Stephan, C. W. (1996). Intergroup 
relations. Boulder, CO: Westview Press. 


Stephan, W. G., & Stephan, C. W. (2000). An integrated 
threat theory of prejudice. In S. Oskamp (Ed.), Reducing 
prejuice and discrimination (pp. 23-46). Hillsdale, NJ: 
Erlbaum. 


Tajfel, H. (1970, November). Experiments in intergroup 
discrimination. Scientific American, 96-102. 


Tajfel, H., & Turner, J. C. (1986). The social identity 
theory of intergroup behavior. In S. Worchel & W. G. 
Austin (Eds.), Psychology of intergroup relations (2nd ed). 
Chicago: Nelson-Hall. 


Teddlie, C., & Stringfield, S. (1993). Schools make a 
difference: Lessons learned from a 10-year study of school 
effects. New York: Teachers College Press. 


Terry, D. (2000, August 11). U.S. child poverty rate fell as 
economy grew, but is above 1979 level. New York Times, p. 
A10. 


United States Bureau of the Census (1991). Statistical 
abstract of the United States: 1991 (111th ed.). 
Washington, DC: U.S. Government Printing Office. 


Valdés, G. (2001). Learning and not learning English: ESL 
classrooms as sites of struggle. New York: Teachers College 
Press. 


Villegas, A. M. (1991). Culturally responsive pedagogy for 
the 1990s and beyond. Washington, DC: American 
Association of Colleges for Teacher Education. 


Wilson, W. J. (1978). The declining significance of race: 
Blacks and changing American institutions. Chicago: 
University of Chicago Press. 


Wilson, W. J. (1987). The truly disadvantaged: The inner 
city, the underclass, and public policy. Chicago: University 
of Chicago Press. 


Zúñiga, X., & Nagda, B. (1993).  Dialogue groups: An 
innovative approach to multicultural learning.  In D. 
Schoem, L. Frankel, X. Zúñiga, & E. Lewis (Eds.), 
Multicultural teaching in the university (pp. 233-248). 
Westport, CT, and London:  Praeger. 


23 







 


24


Multicultural education is an idea, an educational reform movement, and 


a process. As an idea, multicultural education seeks to create equal 


educational opportunities for all students, including those from different 


racial, ethnic, and social-class groups. Multicultural education tries to 


create equal educational opportunities for all students by changing the 


total school environment so that it will reflect the diverse cultures and 


groups within society and within the nation’s classrooms. Multicultural 


education is a process because its goals are ideals that teachers and 


administrators should constantly strive to achieve. 


The Center for Multicultural Education focuses on research projects and activi-


ties designed to improve practice related to equity issues, intergroup relations, 


and the achievement of students of color. The Center also engages in services 


and teaching related to its research mission. 


24 







 
 


 


 


 


  


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


THE AUTHORS 


James A. Banks is Professor and Director of the Center for 
Multicultural Education at the University of Washington, 
Seattle. A specialist in social studies and in multicultural 
education, he has written widely in these two fields. His 
books include Educating Citizens in a Multicultural Society 
and Cultural Diversity and Education: Foundations, 
Curriculum, and Teaching. Professor Banks is a member of 
the National Academy of Education. 


Peter Cookson is a faculty member at Teachers College, 
Columbia University, and President of Teachers College 
Enterprises. A sociologist who specializes in education, he is 
the author or co-author of 14 books on education reform, 
including School Choice: The Struggle for the Soul of 
American Education. 


Geneva Gay is Professor of Education and Faculty 
Associate of the Center for Multicultural Education at the 
University of Washington, Seattle. A specialist in general 
curriculum and multicultural education, she has written 
more than 100 articles and 3 books, including At the Essence 
of Learning: Multicultural Education  and Culturally 
Responsive Teaching. 


Willis D. Hawley is Professor of Education and Public 
Affairs at the University of Maryland, where he served as 
Dean of the College of Education from 1993 to 1998. 
Hawley has published numerous books, articles, and book 
chapters, including Toward A Common Destiny (co-edited 
with Anthony W. Jackson). 


Jacqueline Jordan Irvine is the Charles Howard Candler 
Professor of Urban Education at Emory University, Atlanta. 
Her research interests are multicultural education and 
urban teacher education. Her books include Black Students 
and School Failure, which received two national awards, and 
Critical Knowledge for Diverse Learners, published by the 
American Association of Colleges for Teacher Education. 


Sonia Nieto is Professor of Language, Literacy, and 
Culture in the School of Education, University of 
Massachusetts, Amherst.  She is the author of numerous 
publications in bilingual education and in multicultural 
education, including Affirming Diversity: The Sociopolitical 
Context of Multicultural Education, and The Light in Their 
Eyes: Creating Multicultural Learning Communities. 


Janet Ward Schofield is Professor of Psychology and a 
Senior Scientist in the Learning Research and Development 
Center at the University of Pittsburgh. She is a social 
psychologist whose major interest has been social processes 
in desegregated schools. Black and White in School: Trust, 
Tension or Tolerance? is one of her best-known publications. 


Walter Stephan is Professor of Psychology at New Mexico 
State University. He has published articles on attribution 
processes, cognition and affect, intergroup relations, and 
intercultural relations. He wrote Reducing Prejudice and 
Stereotyping in Schools and is co-author (with Cookie White 
Stephan) of Improving Intergroup Relations. 







 


 
 


  
  


 


 


 


 


Center for Multicultural Education 


focuses on research projects and activities designed to improve practice related to equity issues, intergroup 
relations, and the achievement of students of color.  The Center also engages in services and teaching related to its 
research mission. 


Research related to race, ethnicity, class, and education represents the central mission of the Center.  This research 
contributes to the improvement of practice in schools, colleges, and universities through the synthesis and 
dissemination of findings in multicultural education and the development of guiding principles for the field. 


Publications such as the Handbook of Research on Multicultural Education (1995), edited by James A. Banks and 
Cherry A. McGee Banks, provide remarkable depth and breadth and an impressive look at research and scholarship 
in the field. 


The Symposium-Lecture Series focuses attention on topics related to race, ethnicity, class, and education.  The 
symposium-lecture series features prominent scholars and outstanding practitioners such as Shirley Brice Health, 
Linda Darling-Hammond, Claude M. Steele, and Lisa Delpit. 


Graduate Study with top university scholars at the master’s and doctoral levels prepares educators for working in 
an increasingly diverse nation and world. At the master’s level, practicing teachers and other education 
professionals acquire essential knowledge and skills necessary to work in multicultural environments. At the 
doctoral level, researchers and scholars develop expert knowledge and leadership skills necessary to teach in 
colleges and universities or lead educational institutions and agencies. 


A wide range of courses in multicultural education offers opportunities to build a broad and deep understanding 
of the issues confronting our society and the world and the means to reconcile them.  Courses run throughout the 
regular academic year.  In addition, the Center offers several short summer courses, institutes, and workshops. 
Examples of courses include Educating Ethnic Minority Youths; Teaching the Bilingual-Bicultural Student; and 
Race, Gender, and Knowledge Construction: Curriculum Considerations. 


Multicultural 
CENTER FOR 


Education 
College of Education 
University of Washington 
110 Miller 
Box 353600 
Seattle, WA 98195-3600 


PHONE: 206-543-3386 
E-MAIL: centerme@u.washington.edu 
WEB SITE: http://depts.washington.edu/centerme/home.htm 







   


5/20/2021 CTE Fact Sheet for School Leaders - General Information (CA Dept of Education) 


Home / Teaching & Learning / Career Technical Education / General Information 


CTE Fact Sheet for School Leaders 
Career Technical Education (CTE) fact sheet for school leaders and Local Control Accountability 
Plans. 


Career technical education (CTE), is an important program that will help local educational agencies 
(LEA) meet new requirements outlined in Local Control Accountability Plans (LCAP). 


Whether a school district or county office of education is considering maintaining an existing CTE 
program or starting a new one, administrators will find that CTE is a critical component of a broad 
and deep school curriculum that helps prepare all students to be career and college ready. 


CTE practitioners and experts concur that the discipline provides relevance and real world content 
for academic studies while promoting teamwork and cooperative learning. It builds teacher, 
counselor, parent, business, and community engagement. 


It also encourages students to see a high school diploma and readiness for college or other 
postsecondary study as a foundation for the future rather than as an end in and of itself. 


CTE provides proven models for assisting LEAs in offering programs and curricula consistent with 
the following LCAP requirements: 


Conditions Of Learning 


Basic 


stCTE provides students with real world 21  century skills that make them career and college 
ready. 
The State offers more than 10,000 CTE courses that meet a-g requirements necessary for 
entrance into the UC college system. 
CTE provides students with not only career and academic skills, but soft skills that are needed 
for the modern workplace, such as: critical thinking; communication; team work; citizenship, 
integrity, and ethical leadership; research tools; creativity; and innovation. 
CTE helps satisfy the California Education Code (Ed Code) language encouraging districts to 
provide all pupils with a rigorous academic curriculum that integrates academic and career 
skills, incorporates applied learning in all disciplines, and prepares all pupils for high school 
graduation and career entry. 


State Standards Implementation 


CTE courses help LEAs comply with Ed Code requiring a course of study that provides an 
opportunity for those pupils to attain entry-level employment skills in business or industry upon 


https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/ct/gi/cteschoolleaderfacts.asp 1/4 







5/20/2021 CTE Fact Sheet for School Leaders - General Information (CA Dept of Education) 


graduation from high school. 
All CTE programs are prepared in line with CTE Model Curriculum Standards and newly 
instituted Common Core State Standards requirements. 


Course Access 


CTE courses help school districts comply with education code requirements to prepare youth 
for gainful employment in the occupations and in the numbers that are appropriate to the 
personnel needs of the state and community served. 
CTE courses offer articulation agreements and dual enrollment options for schools to partner 
with local colleges so students have an early awareness that college is a possibility. 
CTE brings specialized instructors into class, and offers industry-specific courses so students 
get an intimate understanding of what it is like to work in that industry sector. 
CTE provides more creative opportunities for students to participate in online blended courses 
and modules focused on given industry sectors. 


Pupil Outcomes 


Pupil Achievement 


Students in California Partnership Academies (CPA) were much more likely than their high 
school peers to complete academic a-g courses needed for admission to California’s public 
colleges and universities - 57 percent to 36 percent. 
Attendance more than doubled the rate of college entrance for minority students and 
increased college enrollment rates for all student populations compared to local and state 
student populations. 
Students who complete a rigorous academic core coupled with a career concentration have 
test scores that equal or exceed “college prep” students; are more likely to pursue 
postsecondary education; have a higher grade point average (GPA) in college; and are less 
likely to drop out the first year of college. 
80 percent of students taking a college prep academic curriculum with rigorous CTE met 
college and career readiness goals, compared to 63 percent of students who did not take 
CTE. 
Average national graduation rate in 2008 for students concentrating in CTE was 90 percent; 
other students, 75 percent. 
CPA students beat state averages in passing the California high school exit exam. 
CPA seniors graduate on time at a rate of 95 percent — 10 percent higher than the state 
average. 


Other Pupil Outcomes 


57 percent of CPA students met UC a-g requirements — 21 percent higher than non-CPA 
students. 


Engagement 


Parent Involvement 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/ct/gi/cteschoolleaderfacts.asp 2/4 







5/20/2021 CTE Fact Sheet for School Leaders - General Information (CA Dept of Education) 


Parents are an important part of each LEA’s CTE advisory committee and their active 
involvement is required per US Education Code. 
Each CPA must have an advisory committee made up of all stakeholder groups, including 
parents. 


Pupil Engagement 


CTE increases engagement in school by involving students as decision-makers and “owners” 
of their education process. 
CTE significantly increases not only the high school graduation rate, but also results in a 
higher percentage of students going to college and persisting through graduation. 
Students taking both academic and technical courses have lower dropout rates and better 
achievement gains than other students. 
Students of Regional Occupational Centers and Programs were typically from lower achieving 
and lower socioeconomic status than peers, but were just as likely to enroll in postsecondary 
education and eventually earn higher wages. 
Students have a decreased risk of dropping out of high school as they add CTE courses to 
their curriculum. 
High-risk students are 8 to 10 times less likely to drop out in grades ten and eleven if they 
enroll in a CTE program instead of a general program. 
The National Dropout Prevention Center/Network states quality CTE and related guidance 
programs are “essential for all students” and coupled with other strategies have the most 
impact on the dropout rate. 


School Climate 


CTE has been found to increase school connectedness, reduce behavioral problems related to 
suspensions and expulsions, and reduce dropout rates among all student groups — especially 
among students most at risk of dropping out. 


College and Career Readiness and Success 


CTE has also been proven to help students become college and career ready, as listed under the 
State Priorities in the ED Code. Specifically, CTE does the following: 


Improves success in college 


More likely to go to college or postsecondary program — 79 percent go within two years 
Maintain a higher GPA 
More likely to stay in college 


Improves success in work and life 


95 percent of CTE students who did not go to college worked for pay within two years of high 
school graduation. 


Increases Career Readiness 


https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/ct/gi/cteschoolleaderfacts.asp 3/4 







 
 


 


 
 


 


5/20/2021 CTE Fact Sheet for School Leaders - General Information (CA Dept of Education) 


Experts project 47 million job openings in the decade ending in 2018. About one-third will 
require an associate’s degree or certificate and nearly all will require real world skills that can 
be mastered through CTE. 


Professional State Leadership in CTE 


The California Department of Education provides education program consultants who cover the 15 
Industry Sectors, as well as the California Partnership Academies, Linked Learning Program, 
Regional Occupational Centers and Programs, and California Career Pathways Trust Grant 
Program. 


For help in preparing your LCAP, or for more information about included statistics, program 
information, and research within this fact sheet, please feel free to contact us. We would be more 
than happy to help! 


LCAP/LCFF Information: 
Local Agency Systems Support Office 
Email: LCFF@cde.ca.gov 
Phone: 916-319-0809 


CTE Program Information: 
Career and College Transition Division 
Email: cte@cde.ca.gov 
Phone: 916-445-2652 


Questions: Career and College Transition Division | 916-445-2652 


Last Reviewed: Tuesday, September 22, 2020 


https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/ct/gi/cteschoolleaderfacts.asp 4/4 







 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


    


   


  


  


    


       


   


   


  


 


 


                


         


 
 


 


  


DOES CLASS SIZE MATTER? 


Diane Whitmore Schanzenbach 


Northwestern University 


February 2014 


National Education Policy Center 


School of Education, University of Colorado Boulder 


Boulder, CO 80309-0249 


Telephone: (802) 383-0058 


Email: NEPC@colorado.edu 


http://nepc.colorado.edu 


This is one of a series of briefs made possible in part by funding from 


The Great Lakes Center for Education Research and Practice. 


http://www.greatlakescenter.org 


GreatLakesCenter@greatlakescenter.org 







http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


             


              


          


 


    


   


            


     


                


                 


      


Kevin Welner 


Project Director 


Don Weitzman 


Academic Editor 


William Mathis 


Managing Director 


Erik Gunn 


Managing Editor 


Briefs published by the National Education Policy Center (NEPC) are blind peer -reviewed by 


members of the Editorial Review Board. Visit http://nepc.colorado.edu to find all of these briefs. 


For information on the editorial board and its members, visit: http://nepc.colorado.edu/editorial -


board. 


Publishing Director: Alex Molnar 


Suggested Citation: 


Schanzenbach, D.W. (2014). Does Class Size Matter? Boulder, CO: National Education Policy 


Center. Retrieved [date] from http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter. 


This material is provided free of cost to NEPC's readers, who may make non -commercial use of 


the material as long as NEPC and its author(s) are credited as the source. For inquiries about 


commercial use, please contact NEPC at nepc@colorado.edu. 







 


    


      


  


               


             


             


               


                  


          


           


             


               


               


             


        


            


 


               


             


  


              


             


             


     


            


              


  


            


               


      


DOES CLASS SIZE MATTER? 


By Diane Whitmore Schanzenbach, Northwestern University 


Executive Summary 


Public education has undergone major reforms in the last 30 years with the rise in high-


stakes testing, accountability, and charter schools, as well as the current shift toward 


Common Core Standards. In the midst of these reforms, some policymakers have argued 


that class size does not matter. This opinion has a popular proponent in Malcolm Gladwell, 


who uses small class size as an example of a “thing we are convinced is such a big 
advantage [but] might not be such an advantage at all.” 


These critics are mistaken. Class size matters. Research supports the common-sense 


notion that children learn more and teachers are more effective in smaller classes. 


This policy brief summarizes the academic literature on the impact of class size and finds 


that class size is an important determinant of a variety of student outcomes, ranging from 


test scores to broader life outcomes. Smaller classes are particularly effective at raising 


achievement levels of low-income and minority children. 


Considering the body of research as a whole, the following policy recommendations 


emerge: 


 Class size is an important determinant of student outcomes, and one that can be 


directly determined by policy. All else being equal, increasing class sizes will harm 


student outcomes. 


 The evidence suggests that increasing class size will harm not only children’s test 
scores in the short run, but also their long-run human capital formation. Money 


saved today by increasing class sizes will result in more substantial social and 


educational costs in the future. 


 The payoff from class-size reduction is greater for low-income and minority 


children, while any increases in class size will likely be most harmful to these 


populations. 


 Policymakers should carefully weigh the efficacy of class-size policy against other 


potential uses of funds. While lower class size has a demonstrable cost, it may prove 


the more cost-effective policy overall. 







 


    


    


 


               


             


             


             


              


               


                


                  


   


               


             


            


               


            


               


        


   


               


           


            


               


               


  


     


             


           


            


              


            


            


            


             


DOES CLASS SIZE MATTER? 


Introduction 


Public education has undergone major reforms in the last 30 years with the rise in high-


stakes testing, accountability, and charter schools, as well as the current shift toward 


Common Core Standards. The availability of new datasets that follow large numbers of 


students into the workforce has allowed researchers to estimate the lifetime impact of 


being taught by teachers who increase students’ standardized test scores. 1 In the midst of 


these new reforms and policy concerns, some have argued that class size does not matter. 


This opinion has a popular proponent in Malcolm Gladwell, who uses small class size as an 


example of a “thing we are convinced is such a big advantage [but] might not be such an 
advantage at all.” 


The critics are mistaken. Class size matters. Class size is one of the most-studied education 


policies, and an extremely rigorous body of research demonstrates the importance of class 


size in positively influencing student achievement. This policy brief first reviews the 


research on class size. Special attention is given to the literatures in economics and related 


fields that use designs aimed at disentangling causation from correlation. It then 


documents the recent rise in class size and considers how to compare the effects of class -


size reduction with other commonly discussed policy alternatives. 


Review of research 


Research shows that students in the early grades perform better in small classes. This is 


especially the case for students who come from disadvantaged backgrounds, who 


experience even larger performance gains than average students when enrolled in smaller 


classes. Small class sizes enable teachers to be more effective, and research has shown that 


children who attend small classes in the early grades continue to benefit over their entire 


lifetime.2 


The importance of research design 


Isolating the causal impact of policies such as class-size reduction is critical, but 


challenging, for researchers. Sometimes people will argue based on less sophisticated 


analyses that class size does not matter. Simple correlational arguments may be 


misleading, though. Since variation in class size is driven by a host of influences, the 


simple correlation between class size and outcomes is confounded by other factors. 


Perhaps the most common misinterpretation is caused by low-achieving or special needs 


students being systematically assigned to smaller classes. In these cases, a simple 


correlation would find class size is negatively associated with achievement, but such a 


http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter 1 of 15 







 


    


                


             


              


             


              


               


            


                 


          


           


           


   


               


              


            


             


            


               


              


            


              


              


            


               


           


  


              


              


            


            


             


            


              


               


            


                 


             


            


          


    


finding could not be validly generalized to conclude that class size does not matter or that 


smaller classes are harmful. Instead, because class size itself is correlated with other 


variables that also have an impact on achievement, such as students’ special needs status, 


the estimated relationship between class size and outcomes would be severely biased. 


The academic research has many examples of poor-quality studies that fail to isolate the 


causal impact of class size, most of them written and published prior to the so-called 


“credibility revolution” in economics.3 Eric Hanushek has surveyed much of the early 


research on class size, as well as other educational inputs such as per-pupil spending, in a 


Importantly, small classes have been found to have positive impacts 


not only on test scores during the duration of the class-size 


reduction experiment, but also on life outcomes in the years after 


the experiment ended. 


pair of older but influential articles from 1986 and 1997, which have been revived in 


Gladwell’s popularized book.4 Based on these surveys, he concluded at the time that “there 
is not a strong or consistent relationship between student performance and school 


resources” such as class size or spending. In a thorough re-analysis of Hanushek’s 
literature summary, Krueger demonstrates that this conclusion relies on a faulty summary 


of the data. In particular, Hanushek’s summary is based on 277 estimates drawn from 59 
studies, but while more estimates are drawn from some studies than others, each estimate 


is weighted equally. As a result, Hanushek’s literature summary places a disproportionate 


weight on studies that analyzed smaller subsets of data. Krueger argues that since studies, 


not individual estimates, are what are accepted for publication, weighting by study is more 


appropriate than weighting by the number of estimates. When Krueger re-analyzed the 


data giving each study equal weight, he found that there is indeed a systematic positive 


relationship between school resources and student performance in the literature surveyed 


by Hanushek. 


More troubling, many of the studies included in the survey employed research designs that 


would not allow researchers to isolate causal effects. For example, one-third of the studies 


ignored the relationship between different measures of school inputs, and held constant 


per-pupil spending while studying the “impact” of class size. Because smaller classes 
cannot be had without increased spending on teachers, it is inappropriate to include 


spending as a control variable and effectively hold spending constant when investigating 


class size. The resulting estimate does not provide insight about the impact of reducing 


class size, but instead estimates a convoluted value that is something like the impact of 


reducing class size while simultaneously paying teachers less, which is unrealistic. 5 Such 


evidence does not reflect the impact of class size and should not be used to inform policy.6 


Nonetheless, in his 2013 book David and Goliath, Malcolm Gladwell uncritically cites the 


Hanushek literature summary and its argument that the class size literature is 


inconclusive.7 As demonstrated below, well-designed studies generally—with a few notable 


exceptions—find strong class-size impacts. 


http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter 2 of 15 







 


    


             


          


            


             


           


         


   


              


                  


                  


            


         


      


              


          


              


            


              


          


             


                 


           


       


            


             


               


             


             


             


            


              


                


               


             


             


            


      


               


               


             


The modern research paradigm strongly prefers the use of research designs that can 


credibly isolate the cause-and-effect relationship between inputs and outcomes. Scholars 


generally agree that true randomized experiments, such as the Project STAR class-size 


experiment described below, are the “gold standard” for isolating causal impacts. When an 


experiment is not available, researchers are sometimes able to employ other techniques 


that mimic experiments—termed “quasi-experiments” in the literature—that can better 


infer causality. 


In implementing a quasi-experimental study, there must be some sort of variation in class 


size that is random or nearly random. Such variation is hard to come by, and in many cases 


there is no way for researchers to isolate the impact of class size. Thus, some of the older 


and better-designed studies inform the policy debate more accurately than newer studies 


that employ less sophisticated and simpler correlational designs. 


Evidence from Tennessee’s STAR randomized experiment 


The best evidence on the impact of reducing class sizes comes from Tennessee’s Student 
Teacher Achievement Ratio (STAR) experiment.8 A randomized experiment is generally 


considered to be the gold standard of social science research. In STAR, over 11,500 


students and 1,300 teachers in 79 Tennessee elementary schools were randomly assigned 


to small or regular-sized classes from 1985-89. The students were in the experiment from 


kindergarten through third grades. Because the STAR experiment employed random 


assignment, any differences in outcomes can be attributed with great confidence to being 


assigned to a smaller class. In other words, students were not more or less likely to be 


assigned to small classes based on achievement levels, socio-economic background, or 


more difficult-to-measure characteristics such as parental involvement.9 


The results from STAR are unequivocal. Students’ achievement on math and reading 
standardized tests improved by about 0.15 to 0.20 standard deviations (or 5 percentile 


rank points) from being assigned to a small class of 13-17 students instead of a regular-


sized class of 22-25 students.10 When the results were disaggregated by race, black 


students showed greater gains from being assigned to a small class, suggesting that 


reducing class size might be an effective strategy to reduce the black-white achievement 


gap.11 Small-class benefits in STAR were also larger for students from low socio-economic-


status families, as measured by eligibility for the free- or reduced-priced lunch program. 


A follow-up study of the most effective teachers in STAR found that teachers used a variety 


of strategies to promote learning and that small classes allowed them to be more effective 


in employing these strategies. For example, they closely monitored the progress of stude nt 


learning in their classes, were able to re-teach using alternative strategies when children 


did not learn a concept, had excellent organizational skills, and maintained superior 


personal interactions with their students.12 


Importantly, small classes have been found to have positive impacts not only on test scores 


during the duration of the class-size reduction experiment, but also on life outcomes in the 


years after the experiment ended. Students who were originally assigned to small classes 


http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter 3 of 15 







 


    


             


           


          


       


        


       


        


        


      


       


           


           


            


             


               


              


               


            


         


          


               


              


                


                


                 


                


                 


              


              


              


              


             


              


               


            


   


            


          


               


              


did better than their school-mates who were assigned to regular-sized classes across a 


variety of outcomes, including juvenile criminal behavior, teen pregnancy, high school 


graduation, college enrollment and completion, quality of college attended, savings 


behavior, marriage rates, residential location and homeownership.13 


Most other quasi-experimental evidence is consistent with STAR 


True randomized experiments such as Tennessee’s random assignment of students across an 
entire state to experimental and control groups are quite rare. Therefore, researchers must 


also look for quasi-experimental approaches that allow isolation of the causal impact of class-


size reduction. Other high-quality studies that isolate the effect of small class size in 


elementary school on student outcomes generally show results similar to those found in STAR. 


For example, a quasi-experimental approach was used to evaluate Wisconsin’s targeted 
class-size reduction program. In the Student Achievement Guarantee in Education (SAGE) 


program, high-poverty school districts could apply to implement a pupil-teacher ratio of 


15-to-1 in grades K-3.14 While most participating schools reduced class sizes, some schools 


chose to attain the target pupil-teacher ratio by using two-teacher teams in classes of 30 


students. Test scores of first-grade students in SAGE schools were higher in math, reading, 


and language arts compared with the scores of those in selected comparison schools in the 


same districts with average pupil-teacher ratios of 22.4 to 24.5. Attending small classes 


improved student achievement by approximately 0.2 standard deviations.15 


The most famous quasi-experimental approach to studying class-size reduction comes 


from Angrist and Lavy’s use of a strict maximum-class-size rule in Israel and a regression 


discontinuity (RD) approach.16 In Israel, there is a strict maximum class size of 40 


students. As a result, class size drops dramatically when enrollment in a grade in a school 


approaches the point when the rule requires the school to add a new classroom—i.e., when 


enrollment tips above a multiple of 40. For example, if a grade has 80 students, then a 


school could offer as few as 2 classrooms, with the maximum allowable class size of 40 


students in each. If a grade has 81 students, however, the school is required to offer at 


least 3 classrooms, and consequently the maximum average class size falls to 27 students. 


In practice, some schools add an additional classroom prior to hitting the 40 -student cap. 


Nonetheless the maximum-class-size rule is a good predictor of actual class sizes and can 


be used in an instrumental-variables research design to isolate the causal impact of class 


size on student achievement. Using the variation in narrow bands around enrollment sizes 


that are multiples of 40 students, Angrist and Lavy find strong improvements overall in 


both math and reading scores, of a magnitude nearly identical to that of Project STAR’s 
experimental results. Consistent with the STAR results, they also find larger improvements 


among disadvantaged students. 


Several subsequent papers have identified the impact of smaller class sizes using 


maximum class-size rules in other international settings.17 (Note that quasi-experimental 


approaches tend to require large datasets and data spanning a large number of years. Such 


datasets are more likely to derive from settings outside the United States.) Most recently, 


http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter 4 of 15 







 


    


               


              


             


             


              


            


               


             


             


                


     


             


             


             


                


                  


            


              


            


            


               


           


     


               


           


               


                


               


             


               


               


           


                 


               


               


            


              


      


              


             


Fredriksson et al. evaluated the long-term impact of class size using data from students in 


Sweden between ages 10 and 13 who were facing a maximum-class-size rule of 30 


students.18 At age 13, students in smaller classes had higher cognitive and non-cognitive 


skills, such as effort, motivation and self-confidence. In adulthood (between ages 27 and 


42), those who had been in smaller classes had higher levels of completed education, 


wages, and earnings. Urquiola used a similar regression discontinuity approach in Bolivia 


and found that a one standard-deviation reduction in class size (about 8 students in his 


data) improves test score performance by 0.2 to 0.3 standard deviations.19 Browning and 


Heinesen derive similar results from data from Denmark, even though the average class 


size is much smaller in their study (20 pupils per classroom, compared with 31 students in 


Angrist and Lavy’s Israeli data).20 


A different quasi-experimental approach is to use variation in enrollment driven by small 


variations in cohort sizes across different years. Hoxby takes this approach using data 


from the state of Connecticut, finding no statistically significant positive effect of smaller 


class size.21 One drawback of the Connecticut study is that test scores are only measured in 


the fall, so the impact of the prior year’s class size may be somewhat mitigated by the time 
spent away from school in the summer. The discrepancy between Hoxby’s Connecticut 
results and those of other studies that also use research designs capable of uncovering 


causal relationships is an unresolved puzzle. Despite the overwhelming pattern in the 


literature of positive class-size impacts, Malcolm Gladwell, intent on supporting his point 


about what he calls the “theory of desirable difficulty,” described only the Hoxby results in 
his description of research on class size in his recent book.22 


Results from statewide class-size-reduction policies 


Based in part on the research evidence on the impact of class-size reduction, several U.S. 


states, including California, Texas and Florida, have implemented class-size caps. The 


most widely studied of these policies is the 1996 California law that gave strong monetary 


incentives to schools to reduce class size in grades K-3 to 20 or fewer students. Sometimes 


when a new policy is introduced it is phased in slowly across locations, which gives 


researchers the opportunity to compare outcomes in schools that have adopted the policy 


with those that have not yet done so. In California, however, the policy was nearly 


universally adopted within a short period of time, so there was very little opportunity to 


compare early implementers with later implementers. Furthermore, test scores are only 


available starting in grade 4, so any evaluation of the policy is forced to use test scores 


from later than the year in which the reduced class size was experienced. Although there 


were positive impacts on achievement due to class-size reductions on the order of 0.05 to 


0.10 standard deviations, these impacts may have been offset because many inexperienced 


teachers had to be hired to staff the new classrooms, reducing average teacher quality.23 


Why are small classes more effective? 


The mechanisms at work linking small classes to higher achievement include a mixture of 


higher levels of student engagement, increased time on task, and the opportunity small 


http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter 5 of 15 







 


    


              


             


                


           


           


            


             


       


            


             


            


              


        


        


           


          


      


        


           


             


              


                


               


             


              


                


            


             


                


            


              


             


              


                


                


              


       


               


              


classes provide for high-quality teachers to better tailor their instruction to the students in 


the class. For example, observations of STAR classrooms found that in small classes 


students spent more time on task, and teachers spent more time on instruction and less on 


classroom management.24 Similar results have been found in other settings.25 However, 


qualitative research from the pupil-teacher ratio reduction in Wisconsin’s SAGE program 
indicates that such beneficial adaptations in teachers’ practices will not necessarily occur. 
It is important to provide professional-development support to instruct teachers on how to 


adapt their teaching practices to smaller classes.26 


In addition, small classes may have a positive impact on student “engagement behaviors,” 


which include the amount of effort put forth, initiative taken, and participation by a 


student. Not surprisingly, these characteristics have been shown to be important to 


classroom learning. Finn finds that students who were in small classes in STAR continued 


to have higher engagement ratings in subsequent grades.27 


It is sometimes argued that class size only matters for inexperienced or low-quality teachers 


because more effective teachers are better able to adapt their teaching styles to accommodate 


larger classrooms. The evidence suggests that the opposite is true. In STAR, the positive 


impacts of small classes were found to be larger for experienced teachers.28 Experienced 


teachers are better able to take advantage of smaller class sizes to make pedagogical changes. 


What does the evidence say about how small is small enough? 


The best evidence on class-size reduction is from the STAR experiment, which estimated 


substantial positive impacts from class-size reduction from an average of 22 to an average 


of 15. In fact, the class sizes targeted in STAR were informed by influential work by Glass 


and Smith that found strong impacts from class sizes below 20.29 Based on this, some 


researchers conclude that the evidence supports better outcomes only if classes are below 


some threshold number such as 15 or 20. Sometimes the argument is extended to suggest 


that reducing class size is not effective unless classes are reduced to within this range. The 


broader pattern in the literature finds positive impacts from class-size reductions using 


variation across a wider range of class sizes, including class-size reductions mandated by 


maximum class-size rules set at 30 (Sweden) or 40 (Israel). In fact, the per-pupil impact is 


reasonably stable across class-size reductions of different sizes and from different baseline 


class sizes. For example, when scaled by a 7-student class-size reduction as in the 


Tennessee experiment, the Israeli results imply a 0.18 standard deviation increase in math 


scores, which is nearly identical to the Tennessee results.30 The weight of the evidence 


suggests that class-size impacts might be more or less linear across the range of class sizes 


observed in the literature—that is, from roughly 15 to 40 students per class. It would be 


inappropriate to extrapolate outside of this range (as is done in the Gladwell book). 


Do small classes matter in later grades? 


Most of the high-quality evidence on class-size reduction is based on studies of the early 


grades. The available high-quality evidence on the impact of class size on outcomes in 


http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter 6 of 15 







 


    


                


              


              


               


               


          


  


             


              


              


             


 


 


          


       


   


              


                


               


                  


             


               


older grades is more limited, and more research in this area is needed. A notable exception 


is Dee and West, who estimate class-size effects using variation in class sizes experienced 


by students across classes in different subjects, and by students taking classes from the 


same teachers in different class periods. The study finds that smaller class sizes in eighth 


grade have a positive impact on test scores and measures of student engagement, and finds 


some evidence that these impacts are larger in urban schools.31 


Recent Developments 


Student-teacher ratios in public schools fell steadily over the past 40 years until recently. 


Between 2008 and 2010, however, the student-teacher ratio increased by 5%, from 15.3 to 


16.0 (see Figure 1). Note that actual class sizes are typically larger than student-teacher 


ratios, because these ratios include special teachers who are not included in class-


16.2 


16.0 


15.8 


15.6 


15.4 


15.2 


15.0 


14.8 
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 


Source: Digest of Education Statistics (table 78, 2012; table 69, 2011) 


Figure 1. Student/Teacher Ratios in Public Elementary 


and Secondary Schools 


size counts, such as teachers for students with disabilities.32 For example, imagine a grade 


level in a school that contains three “regular” classes with 24 students in each and one 
compensatory class with only 12. This school would have a pupil-teacher ratio of 21, even 


though most of the students in that grade (in fact, 85% of them) are in classes with 24 


students. This is a reason why simple correlations between class size and student outcomes 


may be misleading. If some students are placed in smaller classes because they have low 


http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter 7 of 15 







 


    


             


 


              


               


             


              


                


      


       


     


    
  


   
  


    
  


     
  


  


       


       


       


       


       


       


       


       


       


         


 


              


            


               


              


             


                


                  


                


            


                


              


               


performance levels, this biases the estimate of the positive effect of small classes 


downward.33 


According to the Schools and Staffing Survey, in 2011-12 the average United States class 


size for public primary school teachers in self-contained classes was 21.6, up from 20.3 in 


2007-08.34 During this time frame, the recession forced California to abandon its class -size 


reduction policy, which had provided incentives for districts to adopt a 20 -student cap in 


grades K through 3.35 In response, the average K-3 class size increased from 23 students in 


2008-09 to 26 students in 2012-13. 


Table 1. Hypothetical Distribution of Students 


with Different Numbers of Teachers 


Allocation with 
24 teachers 


Allocation with 
23 teachers 


Grade Enrollment Number 
of classes 


Class size Number 
of classes 


Class size 


K 100 4 25 4 25 


1 100 4 25 4 25 


2 100 4 25 4 25 


3 100 4 25 4 25 


4 100 4 25 4 25 


5 100 4 25 3 33.3 


Total 600 24 23 


Average class size 25 26.4 


Average pupil-teacher ratio 25 26.1 


Small increases in average class sizes can mask large class-size increases in some districts 


and schools. For example, sometimes policymakers will calculate the cost savings from 


increasing the average class size by a single student, arguing or implying that the impact 


on test scores from this “modest” one-student increase will be negligible.36 This line of 


reasoning is misleading because actual classes and teachers are not easily divisible into 


fractions.37 As illustrated in Table 1, imagine a K-5 school that has 100 students in each 


grade with four classrooms for each grade. Each of the 24 classes in the school has a class 


size of 25 students. If this school had to lay off one fifth-grade teacher, the aggregate 


numbers would not increase very much. The average pupil-teacher ratio would increase 


only slightly, from 25.0 to 26.1, while the average class size would increase from 25.0 to 


26.4. These averages mask the sharp increase in class size experienced by the fifth-grade 


students, from 25 to 33.3. The negative impact of increasing class size by 8 students in 


http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter 8 of 15 







 


    


                 


           


   


           


           


             


             


          


             


             


              


          


             


           


              


               


                


             


              


               


                 


               


            


              


               


              


               


            


               


                  


               


                


                


                 


              


                 


              


              


               


               


                


fifth grade would be expected to be sizeable, but it might not raise alarms to the average 


parent told that the pupil-teacher ratio increased by only 1 student.38 


Discussion and Analysis 


Recently some policymakers and education analysts have argued that manipulating other 


educational inputs would be more effective or more cost-effective than class-size 


reduction. By and large, though, these suggestions do not pit class-size reductions against 


some other policy alternative that has been implemented and evaluated. It is only 


appropriate to compare effectiveness across a variety of policy alternatives. 


For example, recent studies have found that teachers with high value added on 


standardized test scores also have an impact on such subsequent outcomes for their 


students as wage earnings.39 Based on these findings, some argue that giving students a 


high-test-score value-added teacher is more cost-effective than class-size policy. The 


problem with this suggestion is that there are few—if any—policies that have been 


designed, implemented and evaluated that increase the availability of teachers with high -


test-score value added and result in higher student achievement. It’s one thing to measure 
the impact of teachers on their students’ standardized test scores, but it is a separate 
challenge to design a policy lever to bring more teachers into the classroom who can raise 


test scores. A recent report from the Institute of Education Sciences documents that 


disadvantaged students are taught by teachers with lower value added on tests.40 At this 


point we know relatively little about how to increase teacher quality, much less how much 


it will cost to induce more high-quality teachers to work and stay in the schools that need 


them. Much more needs to be done in terms of pilot programs, policy design and 


evaluation before improving teacher quality can be considered a viable policy option. 


Another proposal has been floated (e.g. by Bill Gates) to pay high-quality teachers bonus 


payments for taking on extra students.41 It is certainly possible that such a reallocation of 


students could increase overall achievement, but it is also possible that it would backfire. 


For example, imagine a school with a grade containing two classes. One teacher is an 


excellent, experienced teacher, while the other is an untested, first -year “rookie” teacher. 
One option would be for both teachers to get classes with 25 students. Another option 


would be to pay the experienced teacher a bonus to take a class of 29 students, leaving the 


rookie teacher with a class of 21 students. All else equal, children in the experienced 


teacher’s class would likely record lower test score gains if there were 29 students than if 


there were 25, but these gains would be enjoyed by more students. Perhaps the 21 students 


in the rookie teacher’s classroom would be better off than if they would have been in a 
classroom of 25 students, though the research is less clear about whether the rookie 


teacher will be more effective in a small class. In this hypothetical case, it is possible that 


the aggregate test score gains could be larger when the classrooms have unequal sizes, 


especially if the experienced teacher is substantially more skilled at raising test scores than 


the rookie teacher. Whether it is an effective policy, however, hinges crucially on a variety 


of factors: how large the skill differential is between teachers, how large a bonus payment 


is required to induce the experienced teacher to accept a larger class, what the next best 


http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter 9 of 15 







 


    


                 


              


               


 


 


             


           


            


     


           


               


             


  


              


             


              


     


            


               


          


             


          


  


use is for the funds used for the bonus payment, and whether the gains persist over time. 


While this is a potentially interesting area for policy development, much more pilot testing 


needs to be done before it could be considered a credibly policy alternative to class-size 


reduction. 


Recommendations 


The academic literature strongly supports the common-sense notion that class size is an 


important determinant of student outcomes. Class-size reduction has been shown to 


improve a variety of measures, ranging from contemporaneous test scores to later-life 


outcomes such as college completion. 


Based on the research literature, I offer the following policy recommendations: 


 Class size is an important determinant of student outcomes and one that can be 


directly influenced by policy. All else being equal, increasing class sizes will harm 


student outcomes. 


 The evidence suggests that increasing class size will harm not only children’s test 
scores in the short run but also their long-term human capital formation. Money 


saved today by increasing class sizes will be offset by more substantial social and 


educational costs in the future. 


 The payoff from class-size reduction is larger for low-income and minority children, 


while any increases in class size will likely be most harmful to these populations. 


 Policymakers should carefully weigh the efficacy of class-size-reduction policy 


against other potential uses of funds. While lower class size has a demonstrable 


cost, it may prove the more cost-effective policy overall. 


http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter 10 of 15 







 


    


   


 


 
                


            


  


 


               


            


 


               


             


 


            


   


 


                   


              


 


                


             


 


 


               


            


  


 


               


           


  


 


                 


          


 


                 


             


  


 


                  


      


 


                


  


 


               


    


 


Notes and References 


1 Chetty, R., Friedman, J.N., Hilger, N., Saez, E., Schanzenbach, D.W., & Yagan D. (2011). How does your 


kindergarten classroom affect your earnings? Evidence from Project STAR. Quarterly Journal of Economics, 


126(4), 1593-1660; 


Chetty, R., Friedman, J.N., & Rockoff J. (2013). Measuring the impacts of teachers II: Teacher value-added and 


student outcomes in adulthood (Working Paper No. 19424). Cambridge, MA: National Bureau of Economic 


Research. 


2 Word, E., Johnston, J., Bain, H.P., et al. (1990). Student/Teacher Achievement Ratio (STAR): Tennessee’s K-3 


class size study. Final summary report 1985-1990. Nashville: Tennessee State Department of Education; 


Krueger, A.B. (1999). Experimental estimates of education production functions. Quarterly Journal of 


Economics, 115(2), 497-532; 


Krueger, A.B., & Whitmore, D. (2001). The effect of attending a small class in the early grades on college test-


taking and middle school test results: Evidence from Project STAR. Economic Journal, 111, 1-28; 


Krueger, A.B., & Whitmore, D. (2002). Would smaller classes help close the black-white achievement gap? In J. 


Chubb & T. Loveless (Eds.), Bridging the Achievement Gap (11-46). Washington, DC: Brookings Institution 


Press; 


Chetty, R., Friedman, J.N., Hilger, N., Saez, E., Schanzenbach, D.W., & Yagan D. (2011). How does your 


kindergarten classroom affect your earnings? Evidence from Project STAR. Quarterly Journal of Economics, 


126(4), 1593-1660; 


Dynarski, S., Hyman, J., & Schanzenbach, D.W. (2013). Experimental evidence on the effect of childhood 


investments on postsecondary attainment and degree completion. Journal of Policy Analysis and Management, 


32(4), 692-717; 


Finn, J., Gerber, S., & Boyd-Zaharias, J. (2005). Small classes in the early grades, academic achievement, and 


graduating from high school. Journal of Educational Psychology, 97(2), 214-223; 


Molnar, A., Smith, P., Zahorik, J., Palmer, A., Halbach, A., & Ehrle, K. (1999). Evaluating the SAGE program: A 


pilot program in targeted pupil-teacher reduction in Wisconsin. Educational Evaluation and Policy Analysis, 


21(2), 165-77; 


Angrist, J.D., & Lavy, V. (1999). Using Maimonides’ rule to estimate the effect of class size on scholastic 


achievement. Quarterly Journal of Economics, 114(2), 533-575; 


Fredriksson, P., Öckert, B., & Oosterbeek, H. (2013). Long-term effects of class size. The Quarterly Journal of 


Economics, 128(1), 249-285; 


Urquiola, M. (2006). Identifying class size effects in developing countries: Evidence from rural Bolivia. Review of 


Economics and Statistics, 88(1), 171-177; 


http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter 11 of 15 







 


    


 
              


    


                  


  


                 


             


              


      


 


              


      


            


 


            


 


               


              


             


                 


   


                


  


                


            


  


               


            


 


           


   


 


                   


              


                


              


 


                   


                    


        


             


   


 


                   


              


Browning, M., & Heinesen, E. (2007). Class Size, teacher hours and educational attainment. The Scandinavian 


Journal of Economics, 109(2), 415-438. 


2 Fredriksson, P., Öckert, B., & Oosterbeek, H. (2013). Long-term effects of class size. The Quarterly Journal of 


Economics, 128(1), 249-285. 


3 Angrist, J. D., & Pischke, J. S. (2010). The credibility revolution in empirical economics: How better research 


design is taking the con out of econometrics. The Journal of Economic Perspectives, 24(2), 3-30. 


4 Hanushek, E.A. (1986, September). The economics of schooling: Production and efficiency in public schools. 


Journal of Economic Literature, 24, 1141-77; 


Hanushek, E.A. (1997). Assessing the effects of school resources on student performance: An Update. 


Educational Evaluation and Policy Analysis, 19(2), 141-64. 


5 See the following for more detailed descriptions of this problem: 


Krueger, A.B. (2003). Economic considerations and class size. Economic Journal, 113(485), F34-F63; 


Angrist, J. D., & Pischke, J. S. (2010). The credibility revolution in empirical economics: How better research 


design is taking the con out of econometrics. The Journal of Economic Perspectives, 24(2), 3-30. 


6 Krueger, A.B. (2003). Economic considerations and class size. Economic Journal, 113(485), F34-F63. 


7 Gladwell, M. (2013). David and Goliath: Underdogs, Misfits, and the Art of Battling Giants . New York: Little, 


Brown & Company. 


8 Mosteller, Frederick (1995). The Tennessee study of class size in the early school grades. The Future of Children, 


5(2), 113-127. 


9 Chetty, R., Friedman, J.N., Hilger, N., Saez, E., Schanzenbach, D.W., & Yagan D. (2011). How does your 


kindergarten classroom affect your earnings? Evidence from Project STAR. Quarterly Journal of Economics, 


126(4), 1593-1660. 


10 Word, E., Johnston, J., Bain, H.P., et al. (1990). Student/Teacher Achievement Ratio (STAR): Tennessee’s K-3 


Class Size Study. Final summary report 1985-1990. Nashville: Tennessee State Department of Education; 


Krueger, A.B. (1999). Experimental estimates of education production functions. Quarterly Journal of 


Economics, 115(2), 497-532; 


Krueger, A.B., & Whitmore, D. (2001). The effect of attending a small class in the early grades on college test -


taking and middle school test results: Evidence from Project STAR. Economic Journal, 111, 1-28. 


11 Krueger, A.B., & Whitmore, D. (2002). Would smaller classes help close the black-white achievement gap? In J. 


Chubb & T. Loveless (Eds.), Bridging the Achievement Gap (11-46). Washington, DC: Brookings Institution 


Press. 


12 Bain, H., Lintz, N., & Word, E. (1989). A study of fifty effective teachers whose class average gain scores 


ranked in the top 15% of each of four school types in Project STAR. ERIC Clearinghouse; paper presented at the 


American Educational Research Association 1989 meeting, San Francisco, CA. 


13 Krueger, A.B. (1999). Experimental estimates of education production functions. Quarterly Journal of 


Economics, 115(2), 497-532; 


Krueger, A.B., & Whitmore, D. (2001). The effect of attending a small class in the early grades on co llege test-


taking and middle school test results: Evidence from Project STAR. Economic Journal, 111, 1-28; 


http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter 12 of 15 







 


    


 
                


              


 


 


               


            


  


 


               


          


  


 


                 


          


                  


             


  


                  


             


  


                  


       


                  


  


 


               


    


 


               


    


                  


  


              


     


               


    


                  


     


                


           


             


     


 


               


         


Krueger, A.B., & Whitmore, D. (2002). Would smaller classes help close the black-white achievement gap? In J. 


Chubb & T. Loveless (Eds.), Bridging the Achievement Gap (11-46). Washington, DC: Brookings Institution 


Press; 


Chetty, R., Friedman, J.N., Hilger, N., Saez, E., Schanzenbach, D.W., & Yagan D. (2011). How does your 


kindergarten classroom affect your earnings? Evidence from Project STAR. Quarterly Journal of Economics, 


126(4), 1593-1660; 


Dynarski, S., Hyman, J., & Schanzenbach, D.W. (2013). Experimental evidence on the effect of childhood 


investments on postsecondary attainment and degree completion. Journal of Policy Analysis and Management, 


32(4), 692-717; 


Finn, J., Gerber, S., & Boyd-Zaharias, J. (2005). Small classes in the early grades, academic achievement, and 


graduating from high school. Journal of Educational Psychology, 97(2), 214-223. 


14 Molnar, A., Smith, P., Zahorik, J., Palmer, A., Halbach, A., & Ehrle, K. (1999). Evaluating the SAGE program: A 


pilot program in targeted pupil-teacher reduction in Wisconsin. Educational Evaluation and Policy Analysis, 


21(2), 165-77. 


15 Molnar, A., Smith, P., Zahorik, J., Palmer, A., Halbach, A., & Ehrle, K. (1999). Evaluating the SAGE program: A 


pilot program in targeted pupil-teacher reduction in Wisconsin. Educational Evaluation and Policy Analysis, 


21(2), 165-77. 


16 Angrist, J.D., & Lavy, V. (1999). Using Maimonides’ rule to estimate the effect of class size on scholastic 


achievement. Quarterly Journal of Economics, 114(2), 533-575. 


17 Fredriksson, P., Öckert, B., & Oosterbeek, H. (2013). Long-term effects of class size. The Quarterly Journal of 


Economics, 128(1), 249-285; 


Urquiola, M. (2006). Identifying class size effects in developing countries: Evidence from rural Bolivia. Review of 


Economics and Statistics, 88(1), 171-177; 


Browning, M., & Heinesen, E. (2007). Class Size, teacher hours and educational attainment. The Scandinavian 


Journal of Economics, 109(2), 415-438. 


18 Fredriksson, P., Öckert, B., & Oosterbeek, H. (2013). Long-term effects of class size. The Quarterly Journal of 


Economics, 128(1), 249-285. 


19 Urquiola, M. (2006). Identifying class size effects in developing countries: Evidence from rural Bolivia. Review 


of Economics and Statistics, 88(1), 171-177. 


20 Browning, M., & Heinesen, E. (2007). Class Size, teacher hours and educational attainment. The Scandinavian 


Journal of Economics, 109(2), 415-438. 


21 Hoxby, C. M. (2000). The effects of class size on student achievement: New evidence from population variation. 


The Quarterly Journal of Economics, 115(4), 1239-1285. 


22 “Desirable difficulties,” according to Gladwell, are ones that force an individual to adapt to a disadvantage, and 


in that adaptation enable them to be better prepared to overcome future challenges. 


23 Unlu, F. (2005). California class size reduction reform: New findings from the NAEP . Princeton, NJ: 


Department of Economics, Princeton University; 


Jepsen, C., & Rivkin, S. (2009). Class size reduction and student achievement: The potential tradeoff between 


teacher quality and class size. Journal of Human Resources, 44(1), 223-250. 


http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter 13 of 15 







 


    


 
                  


     


                   


       


                 


    


               


 


                   


     


            


      


 


           


               


      


             


       


                  


   


 


                


  


              


        


 


                 


   


               


     


 


              


               


          


            


                


         


                   


                  


                    


                 


        


24 Evertson, C., & Randolph, C. (1989). Teaching practices and class size: A new look at an old issue. Peabody 


Journal of Education, 67(1), 85-105 


25 Blatchford, P., Goldstein, H., Martin, C., & Browne, W. (2002). A study of class size effects in English school 


reception year classes. British Educational Research Journal, 28(2), 169-185. 


26 Graue, E., Hatch, K., Rao, K., & Oen, D. (2007). The wisdom of class size reduction. American Educational 


Research Journal, 44(3), 670-700. 


27 Finn, J.D. (1997). Class Size: What does research tell Us? Spotlight on Student Success #207; 


Finn, J., Pannozzo, G., & Achilles, C. (2003). The ‘why’s’ of class size: Student behavior in small classes. Review 


of Educational Research, 73(3), 321-368. 


28 Schanzenbach, D.W. (2007). What have researchers learned from Project STAR? Brookings Papers on 


Education Policy. Washington, DC: Brookings Institution; 


Lazear, E.P. (2001). Educational Production. Quarterly Journal of Economics, 116(3), 777-803. 


29 Glass, G.V., & Smith, M.L. (1979). Meta-analysis of research on class size and achievement. Educational 


Evaluation and Policy Analysis, 1(1), 2-16. 


30 Angrist, J.D., & Pischke, J.S. (2009). Mostly Harmless Econometrics: An Empiricist’s Companion. Princeton, 


NJ: Princeton University Press. See page 267. 


31 Boozer, M., & Rouse, C. (2001). Intraschool variation in class size: Patterns and implications. Journal of Urban 


Economics, 50(1), 163-189; 


Dee, T., & West, M. (2011). The non-cognitive returns to class size. Educational Evaluation and Policy Analysis, 


33(1), 23-46. 


32 Executive Office of the President (2012, August). Investing in our future: Returning teachers to the classroom. 


Washington, DC: Author. Retrieved January 10, 2014, from 


http://www.whitehouse.gov/sites/default/files/Investing_in_Our_Future_Report.pdf. 


33 Boozer, M., & Rouse, C. (2001). Intraschool variation in class size: patterns and implications. Journal of Urban 


Economics, 50(1), 163-189. 


34 National Center for Education Statistics (2013). Schools and staffing survey: 2011-12 (Table 7). Washington, 


DC: U.S. Department of Education; 


National Center for Education Statistics (2009). Characteristics of public, private, and Bureau of Indian 


Education elementary and secondary school teachers in the United States: Results from the 2007-08 schools and 


staffing survey (Table 8). Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Education. 


35 Yamamura, K. (2013, January). California retreats on class-size reduction. The Sacramento Bee, 1A. 


36 Whitehurst, G.J., & Chingos, M.M. (2011). Class Size: What research says and what it means for state policy. 


Washington, DC: Brown Center on Education Policy at the Brookings Institution. 


37 Indeed, this is why provisions such as the maximum class-size rule in Israel are so effective: when a school sees 


an enrollment increase from 40 to 41, it has to hire an entire additional teacher and cannot instead hire a fraction 


of one. As a result, average class size declines sharply when a second teacher is hired (from 40 to 41/2=20.5). 


38 Sims, D. (2008). A strategic response to class size reduction: Combination classes and student achievement in 


California. Journal of Policy Analysis and Management, 27(3), 457-478. 


http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter 14 of 15 







 


    


 
                


            


  


               


              


      


               


 


            


    


 


 


39 Chetty, R., Friedman, J.N., Hilger, N., Saez, E., Schanzenbach, D.W., & Yagan D. (2011). How does your 


kindergarten classroom affect your earnings? Evidence from Project STAR. Quarterly Journal of Economics, 


126(4), 1593-1660. 


40 NCEE Evaluation Brief (2014). Do disadvantaged students get less effective teaching? Key findings from recent 


Institute of Education Sciences studies. Washington, DC: Institute of Education Sciences, U.S. Department of 


Education. Retrieved January 20, 2014, from http://ies.ed.gov/ncee/pubs/20144010/pdf/20144010.pdf. 


41 Dillon, S. (2011, March). Tight budgets mean squeeze in classrooms. The New York Times, A1; 


Gates, B. (2011, February). How teacher development could revolutionize our schools. The Washington Post. 


Retrieved January 27, 2014, from 


http://www.washingtonpost.com/wp-dyn/content/article/2011/02/27/AR2011022702876.html. 


http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/does-class-size-matter 15 of 15 







                 


 
  


   
 


 
  


  


 


    


 


 


  


 


 


 


  


    


   


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


Diagnostic Results 
School PTC - CHOWCHILLA 
Subject Reading 
Academic Year 2020 - 2021 
Diagnostic Diagnostic #2 
Prior Diagnostic None 
Placement Definition Standard View 


Students Assessed/Total: 48/58 


Overall Placement 


Switch Table View 


Placement Summary 


Showing 5 of 5 


At Risk for Tier 3 


65% 


Tier 2 


27% 


Tier 1 


8% 


Show Results By 


Grade 


Placement By Domain 


Phonological Awareness (PA) 


Phonics (PH) 


High-Frequency Words (HFW) 


Vocabulary (VOC) 


Comprehension: Literature (LIT) 


Comprehension: Informational Text (INFO) 


Grade Overall Grade-Level Placement 
Students 


Assessed/Total 


Grade 7 2/3 


Grade 8 6/6 


Grade 9 14/18 


Grade 10 15/17 


Grade 11 11/14 


50% 50% 


50% 33% 17% 


86% 14% 


47% 33% 20% 


73% 27% 


© Curriculum Associates, LLC, All Rights Reserved. | i-Ready.com 05/20/21 | Page: 1/1 







                 


 
  


   
 


 
  


  


 


    


 


 


  


 


 


 


  


    


   


 


  


 


 


 


 


Diagnostic Results 
School PTC - MADERA 
Subject Reading 
Academic Year 2020 - 2021 
Diagnostic Diagnostic #2 
Prior Diagnostic None 
Placement Definition Standard View 


Students Assessed/Total: 153/284 


Overall Placement 


Switch Table View 


Placement Summary 


Showing 4 of 4 


At Risk for Tier 3 


66% 


Tier 2 


18% 


Tier 1 


16% 


Show Results By 


Grade 


Placement By Domain 


Phonological Awareness (PA) 


Phonics (PH) 


High-Frequency Words (HFW) 


Vocabulary (VOC) 


Comprehension: Literature (LIT) 


Comprehension: Informational Text (INFO) 


Grade Overall Grade-Level Placement 
Students 


Assessed/Total 


Grade 9 45/104 


Grade 10 58/91 


Grade 11 40/65 


Grade 12 10/24 


67% 22% 11% 


71% 16% 14% 


53% 23% 25% 


90% 10% 


© Curriculum Associates, LLC, All Rights Reserved. | i-Ready.com 05/20/21 | Page: 1/1 







 


 


 


 


 


 


Visible Learningplus 250+ Infuences on Student Achievement 


STUDENT ES CURRICULA ES 
Reading, writing and the arts 


HOME ES 
Family structure 


SCHOOL ES 
Leadership Prior knowledge and background The Visible Learning 


Field independence 0.68 Comprehensive instructional 0.72 Adopted vs non-adopted care 0.25 Collective teacher efcacy 1.57 
programs for teachers research synthesises


Non-standard dialect use -0.29 Engaged vs disengaged fathers 0.20 Principals/school leaders 0.32 
Comprehension programs 0.47 fndings from 1,400


Piagetian programs 1.28 Intact (two-parent) families 0.23 School climate 0.32 
Drama/arts programs 0.38 meta-analyses of 80,000 Prior ability 0.94 Other family structure 0.16 School resourcing 
Exposure to reading 0.43 


Prior achievement 0.55 Home environment External accountability systems 0.31 studies involving 300 
Music programs 0.37 


Relating creativity to achievement 0.40 Corporal punishment in the home -0.33 Finances 0.21 million students, into what 
Phonics instruction 0.70 


Relations of high school to 0.60 Early years’ interventions 0.44 Types of school works best in education. 
university achievement Repeated reading programs 0.75 


Home visiting 0.29 Charter schools 0.09 
Relations of high school achievement to 0.38 Second/third chance programs 0.53 


Moving between schools -0.34 Religious schools 0.24 
career performance 


Sentence combining programs 0.15 
Parental autonomy support 0.15 Single-sex schools 0.08 


Self-reported grades 1.33 
Spelling programs 0.58 


Parental involvement 0.50 Summer school 0.23 
Working memory strength 0.57 Key for rating Visual-perception programs 0.55 


Parental military deployment -0.16 Summer vacation efect -0.02 
Beliefs, attitudes and dispositions 


Vocabulary programs 0.62 
Positive family/home dynamics 0.52 School compositional efects Potential to considerably Attitude to content domains 0.35 


Whole language approach 0.06 
Television -0.18 College halls of residence 0.05 accelerate student achievement


Concentration/persistence/ engagement 0.56 
Writing programs 0.45 


Family resources Desegregation 0.28 
Grit/incremental vs. entity thinking 0.25 Potential to accelerate Math and sciences 


Family on welfare/state aid -0.12 Diverse student body 0.10 
Mindfulness 0.29 student achievement 


Manipulative materials on math 0.30 
Non-immigrant background 0.01 Middle schools’ interventions 0.08 


Morning vs. evening 0.12 
Mathematics programs 0.59 Likely to have positive impact Parental employment 0.03 Out-of-school curricula experiences 0.26 


Perceived task value 0.46 on student achievementScience programs 0.48 
Socio-economic status 0.52 School choice programs 0.12 


Positive ethnic self-identity 0.12 
Use of calculators 0.27 


School size (600-900 students at 0.43 Likely to have small positive 
Positive self-concept 0.41 


Other curricula programs secondary) impact on student achievement 
Self-efcacy 0.92 


Bilingual programs 0.36 Other school factors 
Stereotype threat 0.33 Likely to have a negative impact 


Career interventions 0.38 Counseling efects 0.35 
on student achievementStudent personality attributes 0.26 


Chess instruction 0.34 Generalized school efects 0.48 
Motivational approach, orientation 


Conceptual change programs 0.99 Modifying school calendars/ 0.09 ES Efect size calculated using 
Achieving motivation and approach 0.44 timetables Cohen’s d 
Boredom -0.49 Pre-school programs 0.28 


Creativity programs 0.62 


Diversity courses 0.09 
Deep motivation and approach 0.69 Suspension/expelling students -0.20 


Extra-curricula programs 0.20 
Depression -0.36 


Integrated curricula programs 0.47 
Lack of stress 0.17 


Juvenile delinquent programs 0.12 
Mastery goals 0.06 


Motivation/character programs 0.34 
Motivation 0.42 


Outdoor/adventure programs 0.43 
Performance goals -0.01 


Perceptual-motor programs 0.08 
Reducing anxiety 0.42 


Play programs 0.50 
Surface motivation and approach -0.11 


Social skills programs 0.39 
Physical infuences 


Tactile stimulation programs 0.58 
ADHD -0.90 


ADHD – treatment with drugs 0.32 


Breastfeeding 0.04 


Deafness -0.61 


Exercise/relaxation 0.26 


Gender on achievement 0.08 


Lack of illness 0.26 


Lack of sleep -0.05 


Full compared to pre-term/low birth weight 0.57 


Relative age within a class 0.45 
The Visible Learningplus program materials are licensed from the Visible Learning Limited Partnership and Cognition Education Group 


PAGE 1 of 2 | November 2017 



ShaunH

Sticky Note

Marked set by ShaunH







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Visible Learningplus 250+ Infuences on Student Achievement 


CLASSROOM ES 
Classroom composition efects 


TEACHER ES 
Teacher attributes 


TEACHING: Focus on ES 
teaching/instructional 
strategies  
Strategies emphasizing learning intentions 


TEACHING: Focus on ES 
implementation 
method 
Implementations using technologies 


Detracking 0.09 Average teacher efects 0.32 


TEACHING: Focus 
on student learning 
strategies 


ES 


Strategies emphasizing student meta-cognitive/ Mainstreaming/inclusion 0.27 Teacher clarity 0.75 
self-regulated learning 


Appropriately challenging goals 0.59 Clickers 0.22 Multi-grade/age classes 0.04 Teacher credibility 0.90 
Elaboration and organization 0.75 


Behavioral organizers 0.42 Gaming/simulations 0.35 Open vs. traditional classrooms 0.01 Teacher estimates of achievement 1.29 
Elaborative interrogation 0.42 


Clear goal intentions 0.48 Information communications 0.47 Reducing class size 0.21 Teacher expectations 0.43 
Evaluation and refection 0.75 technology (ICT)


Cognitive task analysis 1.29Retention (holding students back) -0.32 Teacher personality attributes 0.23 
Meta-cognitive strategies 0.60 Intelligent tutoring systems 0.48 


Concept mapping 0.64 Small group learning 0.47 Teacher performance pay 0.05 
Help seeking 0.72 Interactive video methods 0.54 


Goal commitment 0.40 Tracking/streaming 0.12 Teacher verbal ability 0.22 
Self-regulation strategies 0.52 Mobile phones 0.37 


Learning goals vs. no goals 0.68 Within class grouping 0.18 Teacher-student interactions 
Self-verbalization and 0.55 One-on-one laptops 0.16 


Learning hierarchies-based 0.19 School curricula for gifted students Student rating of quality of teaching 0.50 self-questioning 
approach Online and digital tools 0.29 


Ability grouping for gifted students 0.30 Teachers not labeling students 0.61 Strategy monitoring 0.58 
Planning and prediction 0.76 Programmed instruction 0.23 


Acceleration programs 0.68 Teacher-student relationships 0.52 Transfer strategies 0.86 
Setting standards for self-judgement 0.62 Technology in distance education 0.01 


Enrichment programs 0.53 Teacher education Student-focused interventions 
Strategies emphasizing success criteria Technology in mathematics 0.33 


Classroom infuences Initial teacher training programs 0.12 Aptitude/treatment interactions 0.19 
Mastery learning 0.57 Technology in other subjects 0.55 


Background music 0.10 Micro-teaching/video review 0.88 Individualized instruction 0.23 
Worked examples 0.37 Technology in reading/literacy 0.29 of lessonsBehavioral intervention programs 0.62 Matching style of learning 0.31 
Strategies emphasizing feedback Technology in science 0.23 Professional development 0.41 Classroom management 0.35 Student-centered teaching 0.36 programs Classroom discussion 0.82 Technology in small groups 0.21 


Cognitive behavioral programs 0.29 Student control over learning 0.02 Teacher subject matter knowledge 0.11 Diferent types of testing 0.12 Technology in writing 0.42 
Decreasing disruptive behavior 0.34 Strategies emphasizing student perspectives 


Feedback 0.70 Technology with college students 0.42 
Mentoring 0.12 in learning 


Providing formative evaluation 0.48 Technology with 0.44 
Positive peer infuences 0.53 Peer tutoring 0.53 


elementary students
Questioning 0.48 


Strong classroom cohesion 0.44 Volunteer tutors 0.26 
Technology with high 0.30 


Response to intervention 1.29 
school studentsStudents feeling disliked -0.19 Learning strategies 


Teaching/instructional strategies 
Deliberate practice 0.79 Technology with learning 0.57 


Adjunct aids 0.32 needs students
Efort 0.77 


Collaborative learning 0.34 Use of PowerPoint 0.26 
Imagery 0.45 Key for rating The Visible Learning Competitive vs. 0.24 Visual/audio-visual methods 0.22 
Interleaved practice 0.21 


individualistic learning 
Web-based learning 0.18 research synthesises Mnemonics 0.76 Potential to considerably Cooperative learning 0.40 
Implementations using out-of-school learningaccelerate student achievement fndings from 1,400 Note taking 0.50 


Cooperative vs. competitive learning 0.53 
After-school programs 0.40 


Outlining and transforming 0.66 meta-analyses of 80,000 Cooperative vs. 0.55 Potential to accelerate Distance education 0.13 
Practice testing 0.54 individualistic learningstudent achievement studies involving 300 


Home-school programs 0.16 
Record keeping 0.52 Direct instruction 0.60 


million students, into what Homework 0.29 Likely to have positive impact Rehearsal and memorization 0.73 Discovery-based teaching 0.21 
on student achievement works best in education. Service learning 0.58 


Spaced vs. mass practice 0.60 Explicit teaching strategies 0.57 
Implementations that emphasize school-wideLikely to have small positive Strategy to integrate with prior 0.93 Humor 0.04 
teaching strategies


impact on student achievement knowledge 
Inductive teaching 0.44 


Co- or team teaching 0.19 
Study skills 0.46 


Inquiry-based teaching 0.40 Likely to have a negative impact Interventions for students with 0.77 
Summarization 0.79 


on student achievement Jigsaw method 1.20 learning needs 
Teaching test taking and coaching 0.30 


Philosophy in schools 0.43 Student support programs – 0.21 
ES Efect size calculated using Time on task 0.49 collegeProblem-based learning 0.26 


Cohen’s d Underlining and highlighting 0.50 Teaching creative thinking 0.34 Problem-solving teaching 0.68 


Whole-school improvement 0.28 Reciprocal teaching 0.74 
programs 


Scafolding 0.82 


Teaching communication skills 0.43 
and strategies 


The Visible Learningplus program materials are licensed from the Visible Learning Limited Partnership and Cognition Education Group 
PAGE 2 of 2 | November 2017 







                 


 
  


   
 


 
  


  


 


    


 


 


  


  


   


  


    


   


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


Diagnostic Results 
School PTC - CHOWCHILLA 
Subject Math 
Academic Year 2020 - 2021 
Diagnostic Diagnostic #2 
Prior Diagnostic None 
Placement Definition Standard View 


Students Assessed/Total: 49/58 


Overall Placement 


Switch Table View 


Placement Summary 


Showing 5 of 5 


At Risk for Tier 3 


80% 


Tier 2 


10% 


Tier 1 


10% 


Show Results By 


Grade 


Placement By Domain 


Number and Operations (NO) 


Algebra and Algebraic Thinking (ALG) 


Measurement and Data (MS) 


Geometry (GEO) 


Grade Overall Grade-Level Placement 
Students 


Assessed/Total 


Grade 7 2/3 


Grade 8 6/6 


Grade 9 14/18 


Grade 10 16/17 


Grade 11 11/14 


50% 50% 


67% 17% 17% 


71% 14% 14% 


81% 6% 13% 


100% 


© Curriculum Associates, LLC, All Rights Reserved. | i-Ready.com 05/20/21 | Page: 1/1 







                 


 
  


   
 


 
  


  


 


    


 


 


  


  


   


  


    


   


 


  


 


 


 


 


Diagnostic Results 
School PTC - MADERA 
Subject Math 
Academic Year 2020 - 2021 
Diagnostic Diagnostic #2 
Prior Diagnostic None 
Placement Definition Standard View 


Students Assessed/Total: 146/284 


Overall Placement 


Switch Table View 


Placement Summary 


Showing 4 of 4 


At Risk for Tier 3 


85% 


Tier 2 


6% 


Tier 1 


9% 


Show Results By 


Grade 


Placement By Domain 


Number and Operations (NO) 


Algebra and Algebraic Thinking (ALG) 


Measurement and Data (MS) 


Geometry (GEO) 


Grade Overall Grade-Level Placement 
Students 


Assessed/Total 


Grade 9 45/104 


Grade 10 57/91 


Grade 11 35/65 


Grade 12 9/24 


82% 7% 11% 


81% 9% 11% 


94% 6% 


89% 11% 


© Curriculum Associates, LLC, All Rights Reserved. | i-Ready.com 05/20/21 | Page: 1/1 







                 
           


        


         
    


    
  


          
    


    
    


   


   
   


    
    


    


  
 


    
   


    
    


  


 


      
   


      


    
   


 


      
   


      


   
 


 


     
   


   


  
  


 


      
  


   


   


 


     
    


      


  
  


   
  


    


   
   


      


  


 


   
   


     


    


  
 


  
   


         


   
 


     
   


     


  
 


    
   


    


PTC Chowchilla – LCAP Parent Survey Returned - 25 / 60 = 42% (1 = Spanish) 
1) Completed survey through Parent Square No, but submitted paper copy - 25 / 60 = 42% 


2) My child attends PTC Chowchilla 25 / 60 = 42% 


3) I Identify most closely with: White / Non Hispanic - 11 /25 = 44% 
Hispanic or Latino - 9/25 = 36% 
Two or more races – 4/25 = 16% 
Prefer not to answer = 1/25 = 4% 


4) My child participates in the following: None of the above – 14/25 = 56% 
English Learner – 4/25 = 16% 
Not sure – 4/25 = 16% 
Free and reduced – 2/25 = 8% 
Special Education Services – 1/25 = 4% 


5) The staff at my school build a trusting and 
respectful relationship with families. 


Strongly Agree - 17/25 = 68% 
Agree - 7/25 = 28% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 1/25 = 4% 


6) My Child’s school has created a welcoming 
environment for all families. 


Strongly Agree – 12/25 = 48% 
Agree – 11/25 = 44% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 1/25 = 4% 
Disagree – 1/25 = 4% 


7) The staff at my child’s school is interested in each 
family’s strength, culture, languages and goals for 
their children. 


Strongly Agree – 11 / 25 = 44% 
Agree – 12/25 = 48% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 2 /25 = 8% 


8) My child’s school supports multiple opportunities 
to engage in understandable and accessible 2 way 
communication between family and educators. 


Strongly Agree – 12 / 25 = 48% 
Agree – 11/25 = 44% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 2 /25 = 8% 


9) My child’s school provides families with 
information and resources to support student 
learning at home. 


Strongly Agree – 11 / 25 = 44% 
Agree – 14/25 = 56% 
Neither Agree and Disagree – 0% 


10) My child’s school has policies for teachers to meet 
with families and students to discuss progress and 
ways to work together to support improved 
student outcomes. 


Strongly Agree – 11 / 25 = 44% 
Agree – 12 / 25 = 48% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 2/25 = 8% 


11) My Child’s school helps families to understand and 
exercise their legal rights and advocate for their 
own students and all students, 


Strongly Agree – 8 / 25 = 32% 
Agree – 14 / 25 = 56% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 3/25 = 12% 


12) My child’s school helps build and supports 
capacity of family members to successfully engage 
in advisory groups (School Site Council – SSC, 
English Learners Advisory Committees – ELAC, 
Parent Advisory, PAC and decision making process 


Strongly Agree -9/25 = 36% 
Agree – 13/25 = 52% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 3/25 = 12% 


13) My Child’s School provides opportunities to have 
families work together to plan, design, implement 
and evaluate family engagement activities at 
school and district levels. 


Strongly Agree -9/25 = 36% 
Agree – 13/25 = 52% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 3/25 = 12% 


School Culture 
14) This school promotes academic success for all 


students. 
Strongly Agree -11/25 = 44% 
Agree – 13/25 = 52% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 1 / 25 = 4% 


15) Teachers are able to meet the English Learner 
needs at my school 


Strongly Agree – 8 / 25 = 32% 
Agree – 12 / 25 = 48% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 5/25 = 20% 


16) At my school, mu children learn skills that will help 
them in life 


Strongly Agree – 10/25 = 40% 
Agree – 13/25 = 52% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 1/25 = 4% 







    


      
  


      
   


    
 


    
   


      


        
   


      


   
   


      
   


      


        
   


        


  
 


       
     


      


   
  


 
 


 
   
 


     


      
  


  
 


  
   
 


 
 


  
 


 
 


     
  


    
  


      


 


 
   


  
  


  
  
  


 
  


 


  
 


   


   


 


Disagree - 1/25 = 4% 


17) School Staff take parent concerns seriously Strongly Agree - 12 / 25 = 48% 
Agree – 12 / 25 = 48% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 1 / 25 = 16% 
Disagree – 0% 


18) Staff members at this school communicate well 
with the parents of this school. 


Strongly Agree – 10/25 = 40% 
Agree – 11/25 = 44% 
Neither Agree or Disagree = 4 / 25 = 1% 


19) My child feels safe at this school. Strongly Agree – 14/25 = 56% 
Agree – 8/25 = 32% 
Neither Agree or Disagree -3 /25 = 12% 


20) Teachers at this school are fair and have effective 
Conflict resolution skills to manage student issues. 


Strongly Agree – 11 /25 = 44% 
Agree – 12/25 = 48% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 2/25 = 8% 


21) This school has clean, well maintained facilities Strongly Agree -9/25 = 36% 
Agree – 12/25 = 48% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 4/25 = 16% 


22) Teachers at this school are well-qualified to teach 
my children? 


Strongly Agree -15 / 25 = 60% 
Agree – 8 / 25 = 32% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 2 / 25 = 8% 


23) In what events have you participated in the last 3 
years? 


Parent Conferences = 20 
Back to School = 5 
Open House = 4 
Awards = 3 
Sports = 2 
Parent Advisory / IEP / Family Appreciation / = 1 each 


24) I would like to see parent workshops in the 
following areas: 


Homework help = 7 
Social Emotional Support = 5 
Using Technology = 5 
Healthy Lifestyles = 5 
Early Childhood = 4 
Math = 4 
Self advocacy = 2 
Parenting = 2 
Nutrition = 2 
Financial Lit. = 2 
ESL = 2 


25) My child participates (d) in the following CTE 
pathways: 


Does not participate in CTE – 21 
Child development – 3 
Welding / Careers in Education / Construction – 1 each 


26) I would like to see my child participate in the 
following CTE pathways 


My Child is not interested in participating in CTE = 11 
Medical = 4 
Cosmetology = 4 
Criminal Justice = 3 
Careers in Education = 2 
Child Development = 2 
Culinary = 2 
Construction = 1 
Not due to COVUS 


Additional Comments: • When are classes resuming in person? 


• When is CTE resuming in person? (COVID) 







                 
    


      
    
   


    
   
   


       
    


   
 


        
    


    
   


     


         
  


   
    


         
   


    


          
   


    


    
 


    
   


    
   


         
    


     
  


    


  
 


    
   


    
    


          
   


   
  


    


       
   


    
    


   


         
   


    
  


PTC Chowchilla – LCAP Student Survey (3/19/21) Returned - 34 / 60 = 57% 
1) I attend PTC Chowchilla 34/60 = 57% return 


2) My grade level is: 7th – 2/34 = 6% 
8th – 6/34 = 18% 
9th – 7/34= 21% 
10th – 5/34 = 15% 
11th – 9/34= 26% 
12th – 5/34= 15% 


3) I Identify most closely with: Hispanic or Latino = 14/34 = 41% 
White / Non Hispanic – 12/34 = 35% 
Two or more races – 6/34 = 18% 
Prefer not to answer = 2/34 =6% 


4) I participate in the following: None of the above – 23/34 = 68% 
Not sure – 4/34 = 11% 
English Learner 3/34 = 9% 
Free and reduced – 3/34 =9% 
Special Education Services – 1/34 = 3% 


5) I feel safe at my school Strongly Agree – 15 /34 = 43% 
Agree – 16/34 =48% 
Neutral - 2/34 =6% 
Disagree – 1/34 =3% 


6) I feel like I am part of my school Strongly Agree – 10 / 34 = 29% 
Agree – 18/34 = 53% 
Neutral – 6/34 = 18% 


7) Teachers at my school want students to succeed. Strongly Agree – 21/34 = 62% 
Agree – 11/34 = 32% 
Neutral - 2/34 = 6% 


8) Teachers at my school give me enough time to finish 
my schoolwork / homework. 


Strongly Agree – 19/34 = 56% 
Agree – 10/34 = 29% 
Neutral - 2/34 = 6% 
Disagree –1/34 = 3% 


9) I get excited to learn. Strongly Agree – 3/34 = 9% 
Agree – 10/34 = 29% 
Neutral - 13/34 =38% 
Disagree –4/34 =12% 
Strongly Disagree – 2/34 = 6% 


10) I would like more help with my schoolwork / 
homework. 


Strongly Agree – 4/34 =12% 
Agree – 7/34 = 21% 
Neutral - 15/34 = 44% 
Disagree – 6/34 = 18% 


11) I get to work in groups with a partner in class Strongly Agree – 2/34 = 6% 
Agree – 4/34= 12% 
Neutral - 16/34=48% 
Disagree –8/34 =24% 
Strongly Disagree – 3/34 = 9% 


12) At my school, I learn skills that help me in life. Strongly Agree – 5/34 = 15% 
Agree – 19/34 = 56% 
Neutral - 8/34 = 24% 
Disagree – 1/34 = 3% 
Strongly Disagree - 1/34 = 3% 


13) My teachers talk to my parents on a regular basis. Strongly Agree – 9/34 = 27% 
Agree – 10/34 = 30% 
Neutral - 13/34 = 38% 
Disagree –2/34=6% 







 


        
   


  
   


    


  
  


    
   


    


   
 


    
   


    
  


  
 


    
  


    
   


   
 


    
   


   


     
   


    
    


 


 
    


   
   


     
  


    


        
  


  


      
   


    
   


                 


       
  


       
  


    


       
  


   
  


        
  


   


    
   


 


     


    


   


   


14) My parents participate in school events Strongly Agree – 3/34 = 9% 
Agree – 5/34 = 15% 
Neutral -15/34 = 44% 
Disagree –9/34 = 27% 
Strongly Disagree – 3/34 = 9% 


15) My teachers are very knowledgeable of the subject 
they teach. 


Strongly Agree – 13/34 = 38% 
Agree – 19/34 = 56% 
Neutral - 1/34 = 3% 


16) My teachers explain lessons in a way that I 
understand. 


Strongly Agree – 18/34 = 53% 
Agree – 12/34 = 35% 
Neutral - 3/34 = 9% 
Strongly Disagree -1/34 = 3% 


17) I plan on attending college or some other school (trade 
school / technical school) after high school. 


Strongly Agree – 9/34 =26% 
Agree – 12/34 =35% 
Neutral - 10/34 =29% 
Disagree –3/34 = 9% 


18) My school makes it clear how students are expected 
to act. 


Strongly Agree – 12/34 = 35% 
Agree – 21/34 =62% 
Neutral - 1/34 =3% 


19) The teachers or adults at my school care about me. Strongly Agree – 15/34 = 44% 
Agree – 16/34 = 47% 
Neutral - 2/34 = 6% 
Disagree –1/34 = 3% 


20) The teachers or adults at my school treat students 
fairly. 


Strongly Agree – 12/34 = 35% 
Agree – 20/34 = 59% 
Neutral - 2/34 =6% 


21) The schoolyard and buildings are clean. Strongly Agree – 13/34 =39% 
Agree – 15/34 =45% 
Neutral - 5/34 = 15% 


22) My parents feel welcome to participate at my school. Strongly Agree – 14/34 = 41% 
Agree – 15/34 =45% 
Neutral – 5/34 =14% 


23) I am happy to be at my school. Strongly Agree – 12/34 = 35% 
Agree – 14/34 =41% 
Neutral - 5/34 = 15% 
Strongly Disagree -1/34 = 3% 


English Learner Program Target Questions *PTCC has 4 EL students 


24) I receive the support I need from teachers Strongly Agree – 14 
Agree – 11 


25) I feel comfortable talking in English in my classes Strongly Agree - 16 
Agree - 8 
Neutral - 3 


26) I feel comfortable reading and writing in my classes. Strongly Agree - 13 
Agree - 10 
Neutral - 4 
Strongly Disagree – 1 


27) I am confident that I will improve in my classes. Strongly Agree - 12 
Agree - 12 
Neutral - 3 


28) Please share any additional comments that will help 
you be more successful in school. 


• I feel very confident at my school. 


• I am very comfortable in my school 


• This school is good, no need for anything 


• Please, from now, give us less work! 







        
  


   
   


   


    
   
   


   
   


  
  


  
     


  
 


 


29) I participate in the following CTE courses at my school. I not do participate in CTE – 23 
Child development – 2 
Welding – 1 
Construction - 1 
Careers in Education – 0 


30) I would like to participate in the following CTE courses I am not interested in participating in CTE = 15 
Welding - 7 
Medical - 3 
Construction - 3 
Cosmetology - 3 
Digital Media - 3 
Careers in Education = 1 
Child Development = 1 
Fire Fighting - 1 
Criminal Justice = 1 
Culinary = 1 







                
         
       
         


    
      


    
    


    
   


         
    


    
   


     
     


   
   


    
   


     
    


       
   


 
   


   
     


    
     


    
 


 


    
   


     
    


       
    


    
  


     
   


     
    


       
    


  
 


    
   


     
    
    


    
   


   
  


     
   


      
    
   


    


 


    
  


     
     


     
   


   
    


   
  


     
   


PTC Madera – LCAP Parent Survey Returned - 75/270 = 28% 
1) Completed survey through Parent Square No, but submitted paper copy 61/270 = 23% 
2) My child attends PTC Madera 75/270 = 28% 
3) I Identify most closely with: Hispanic or Latino - 56/75 =74.7% 


White  / Non-hispanic - 5/75 = 6.7% 
Other / White – Hispanic – 5/75 =6.7% 
Black or African-American – 2/75 = 2.7% 
Asian or Asian American - 2/75 = 2.7% 
Two or more races – 3/75 = 4.0% 
Prefer not to answer = 2/75 = 2.7% 


4) My child participates in the following: None of the above – 50/75 = 66.7% 
Free and reduced – 11/75 = 14.7% 
English Learner – 5/75 = 6.7% 
Not sure –6/75 = 8.0% 
Special Ed. Services – 2/75 = 2.7% 
Other: Section 504 – 1/75 = 1.3% 


5) The staff at my school build a trusting and 
respectful relationship with families. 


Strongly Agree – 25/75 = 33.3% 
Agree – 35/75 = 46.7% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 12/75 = 16.0% 
Disagree – 2/75 = 2.7% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/75 = 1.3% 


6) My Child’s school has created a welcoming 
environment for all families. 


Strongly Agree –25/75 = 33.3% 
Agree – 35 /75 = 46.7% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 12/75 = 16.0% 
Disagree – 2/75 = 2.7% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/75 = 1.3% 


7) The staff at my child’s school is interested in each 
family’s strength, culture, languages and goals for 
their children. 


Strongly Agree – 24/75 = 32.0% 
Agree – 35/75 = 46.7% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 13/75 = 17.3% 
Disagree – 2/75 = 2.7% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/75 = 1.3% 


8) My child’s school supports multiple opportunities 
to engage in understandable and accessible 2 way 
communication between family and educators. 


Strongly Agree – 30/75 = 40.0% 
Agree – 38/75 = 50.7% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 5/75 = .7% 
Disagree – 1/75 = 1.3% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/75 = 1.3% 


9) My child’s school provides families with 
information and resources to support student 
learning at home. 


Strongly Agree – 29/75 = 38.7% 
Agree – 30/75 = 40.0% 
Neither Agree and Disagree – 10/75 = 13.3% 
Disagree – 4/75 = 5.3% 
Strongly Disagree = 2/75 = 2.7% 


10) My child’s school has policies for teachers to meet 
with families and students to discuss progress and 
ways to work together to support improved 
student outcomes. 


Strongly Agree – 28/74 = 37.8% 
Agree – 35/75 = 46.7% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 8/75 = 10.7% 
Disagree – 5/75 = 6.7% 
Strongly Disagree = 2/75 = 2.7% 


11) My Child’s school helps families to understand and 
exercise their legal rights and advocate for their 
own students and all students, 


Strongly Agree – 23/75 = 30.7% 
Agree –32/75 = 42.7 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 17/75 = 22.7% 
Disagree - 3/75 = 4.0% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/75 = 1.3% 


12) My child’s school helps build and supports 
capacity of family members to successfully engage 
in advisory groups (School Site Council – SSC, 


Strongly Agree – 25/75 = 33.3% 
Agree – 30/75 =40.0% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 15/75 = 20.0% 
Disagree -3/75 = 4.0% 







   
    


        


    
  


  


    
   


     
    


     
 


  
    


   
     


    
     


   
  


     
   


     
    


     
  


    
   


     
    


    
       


   
     


    
   


 
     


   
     


   
   


        
   


     
    


     
     


   
    


   
     


    
         


        
   


      
    


  
    


   
    


    
     


  
  


  
  


  
     


    
 
  


English Learners Advisory Committees – ELAC, 
Parent Advisory, PAC and decision-making process 


Strongly Disagree – 2/75 = 2.7% 


13) My Child’s School provides opportunities to have 
families work together to plan, design, implement 
and evaluate family engagement activities at 
school and district levels. 


Strongly Agree – 15/75 = 20.0% 
Agree – 40/75 = 53.3% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 14/75 = 18.7% 
Disagree – 2/75 = 2.6% 
Strongly Disagree – 4/75 = 5.3% 


14) This school promotes academic success for all 
students. 


Strongly Agree – 30/75 = 40.0% 
Agree – 35/75 = 46.7% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 8/75 = 10.7% 
Disagree = 1/75 = 1.3% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/75 = 1.3% 


15) Teachers are able to meet the English Learner 
needs at my school 


Strongly Agree – 22/75 = 29.3% 
Agree – 15/75 = 20.% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 17/75 = 22.7% 
Strongly Disagree – 2/75 = 2.6% 


16) At my school, mu children learn skills that will help 
them in life 


Strongly Agree – 30/75 = 40.0% 
Agree – 35/75 = 46.7% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 5/75 = 6.7% 
Disagree – 3/75 = 4.0% 
Strongly Disagree - 2/75 = 2.6% 


17) School Staff take parent concerns seriously Strongly Agree – 33/75 = 44.0% 
Agree – 35/75 = 46.7% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 5/75 = 6.7% 
Disagree – 2/75 = 2.6% 


18) Staff members at this school communicate well 
with the parents of this school. 


Strongly Agree – 25/75 = 33.3% 
Agree – 33/75 = 44.0% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 14/75 = 18.7% 
Disagree - 2/75 = 2.6% 
Strongly Disagree = 1/75 = 1.3% 


19) My child feels safe at this school. Strongly Agree – 25/75 = 33.3% 
Agree – 35/75 = 46.7% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 12/75 = 16.0% 
Disagree – 2/75 = 2.6% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/75 = 1.3% 


20) Teachers at this school are fair and have effective 
Conflict resolution skills to manage student issues. 


Strongly Agree – 30/75 = 40.0% 
Agree – 25/75 = 33.3% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 15/75 = 20.0% 
Disagree – 3/75 = 4.0% 
Strongly Disagree – 2/75 = 2.6% 


21) This school has clean, well maintained facilities Strongly Agree – 33/75 = 44.0% 
Agree – 35 / 75 = 46.7% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 7/75 = 9.3% 


22) Teachers at this school are well-qualified to teach 
my children? 


Strongly Agree - 33/75 = 44.0% 
Agree – 30/75 = 40.0% 
Neither Agree or Disagree – 8/75 = 10.7% 
Disagree – 4/75 = 5.3% 


23) In what events have you participated in the last 3 
years? 


Parent Conferences = 45 
Back to School = 14 
Open House = 9 
Sports = 8 
Family Appreciation = 7 
Student of the Month = 5 
SSC = 4 
School Parent Night = 3 







  
  


  
 


 
     


  
 


  
 


   
 


 
  


   
  


   
  


  
      


  
     


   
  


   
   


  
  


  
   


  
  


  
  


  
   


   
 


   
  


 
   


   
  


     
   


   
   


   
     
    


  
    


 
 


Career Tech Expo =2 
Parent Advisory = 1 
DELAC = 1 
ELAC = 1 
DAC = 1 


24) I would  like to see parent workshops in the 
following areas: 


Using Technology = 22 
Healthy Lifestyles = 21 
Social Emotional Support = 20 
Homework help = 15 
Math = 15 
Nutrition = 14 
Early Childhood = 9 
Self advocacy = 9 
Parenting = 9 
Financial Lit. = 4 
Other = 4 (Did not state) 
ESL = 3 


25) My child participates (d) in the following CTE 
pathways: 


Does not participate in CTE – 37 
Child development – 6 
Welding – 6 
Construction – 2 
Careers in Education – 1 


26) I would like to see my child participate in the 
following CTE pathways 


Medical = 13 
My Child is not interested in participating in CTE = 11 
Criminal Justice = 9 
Welding = 9 
Cosmetology = 8 
Construction = 7 
Careers in Education = 5 
Child Development = 5 
Culinary Arts and Hospitality Management = 6 
Digital Media = 5 
Fire fighting = 5 


Additional Comments: • Follow up on special assistance. My child was 
offered special support (in SpEd) but it never 
happened. 


• A student portal would be helpful. 
• Honestly, PTC is a great school for kids. I have 


never seen another school like it. 
• Thanks PTC Madera. My kids love school 


Thanks to Mr. Glines and the program here. 
• Grateful for the teachers here at PTC Madera. 
• My child is doing very well because of teachers 


like Mrs. Steinmetz. We need more like her. 
• Have more teachers like the one my son had 


take the time to explain Math. 







                 
       
     


   
   
   


          
    
    
      


    
   


    
         


    
     


    
       


   
   


       
          


   
   


    
   


       
    


   
      


   
  


    
   


    
    
     


      
    


     
    


      
    


 
    


   
   


    
     


        
  


   
   


       
       


   
    
    


      


PTC MADERA - LCAP STUDENT Survey Returned – 80/270 = 31% 
1) I attend PTC Madera 80/270 =31% returned on paper 
2) My grade level is: 9th – 15 


10th – 20 
11th – 30 
12th – 15 


3) I Identify most closely with: Hispanic or Latino – 60/80 = 75% 
Black – 1/80 = 1% 
Asian – 2/80 = 3% 
White / Non Hispanic – 9/80 = 11% 
Two or more races – 3/80 = 4% 
Prefer not to answer - 4/80 = 5% 
Other – 1/80 = 1% 


4) I participate in the following: None of the above – 54/80 = 68% 
Not sure – 13/80 = 16% 
English Learner – 6/80 =8% 
Free and reduced - 7/80 = 9% 


5) I feel safe at my school Strongly Agree – 22/80 = 28% 
Agree – 47/80 = 59% 
Neutral – 10/80 = 13% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/80 = 1% 


6) I feel like I am part of my school Strongly Agree - 10/80 = 13% 
Agree – 46/80 = 58% 
Neutral – 20/80 = 25% 
Disagree - 1/80 = 1% 
Strongly Disagree – 3/80 = 4% 


7) Teachers at my school want students to succeed. Strongly Agree –42/80 = 53% 
Agree – 33/80 = 41% 
Neutral – 4/80 = 5% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/80 = 1% 


8) Teachers at my school give me enough time to finish 
my schoolwork / homework. 


Strongly Agree – 34/80 = 43% 
Agree – 35/80 = 44% 
Neutral - 8/80 = 10% 
Disagree – 2/80 = 3% 
Strongly Disagree -1/80 = 1% 


9) I get excited to learn. Strongly Agree – 6/80 =8% 
Agree – 34/80 = 43% 
Neutral - 28/80 = 35% 
Disagree – 6/80 = 8% 
Strongly Disagree – 6/80 = 8% 


10) I would like more help with my schoolwork / 
homework. 


Strongly Agree – 5/80 = 6% 
Agree – 12/80 = 15% 
Neutral – 47/80 = 59% 
Disagree – 25/80 = 31% 
Strongly Disagree = 1/80 = 1% 


11) I get to work in groups with a partner in class Strongly Agree – 26/80 = 33% 
Agree – 7/80 = 9% 
Neutral – 23/80 = 29% 
Disagree –17/80 = 21% 
Strongly Disagree -7/80 = 9% 


12) At my school, I learn skills that help me in life. Strongly Agree – 20/80 = 25% 
Agree – 38/80 = 48% 
Neutral - 19/80 = 24.0% 
Disagree – 2/80 = 2.5% 
Strongly Disagree - 1/80 = 1.3% 







          
   


   
   


     
       


   
  


   
      


  
 


    
  


    
    
    


   
 


   
   


   
    


     
    


 
    


   
    
    


     
     


  
    


   
    
    
   


      
   


   
    


   
  


    
   


   
    


     
      


   
    


   
        


   
   


     
       


  
   


    
  


         
       


  


13) My teachers talk to my parents on a regular basis. Strongly Agree – 7/80 = 8.8% 
Agree – 30/80 = 37.5% 
Neutral – 28/80 = 35.0% 
Disagree 13/80 = 16.3% 
Strongly Disagree – 2/80 = 2.5% 


14) My parents participate in school events Strongly Agree – 2/80 = 2.5% 
Agree – 7/80 = 8.8% 
Neutral -30/80 = 37.5% 
Disagree –30/80 = 37.5% 
Strongly Disagree – 11/80 = 13.8% 


15) My teachers are very knowledgeable of the subject 
they teach. 


Strongly Agree – 30/80 = 37.5% 
Agree – 40/80 =50.0% 
Neutral - 3/80 = 4.0% 
Disagree – 6/80 = 8.0% 
Strongly – 1/80 = 1.3% 


16) My teachers explain lessons in a way that I 
understand. 


Strongly Agree –25/80 = 31.3% 
Agree – 41/80 = 41.3% 
Neutral – 8/80 = 10.0% 
Disagree – 2/80 = 2.5% 
Strongly Disagree – 4/80 = 5.0% 


17) I plan on attending college or some other school (trade 
school / technical school) after high school. 


Strongly Agree – 24/80 = 30.0% 
Agree – 36/80 = 45.0% 
Neutral - 8/80 = 10.0% 
Disagree – 10/80 = 13.0% 
Strongly Disagree = 2/80 = 2.5% 


18) My school makes it clear how students are expected 
to act. 


Strongly Agree – 17/80 = 21.0% 
Agree – 46/80 = 57.5% 
Neutral - 12/80 = 15.0% 
Disagree – 4/80 = 5.0% 
Strongly Disagree = 1/80 = 1.3% 


19) The teachers or adults at my school care about me. Strongly Agree – 18/80 = 22.5% 
Agree – 47/80 = 58.8% 
Neutral – 14/80 = 17.5% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/80 = 1.3% 


20) The teachers or adults at my school treat students 
fairly. 


Strongly Agree – 24/80 = 30.0% 
Agree – 43/80 = 53.8% 
Neutral – 10/80 = 13.0% 
Disagree – 1/80 = 1.3% 
Strongly Disagree – 2/80 = 3.0% 


21) The schoolyard and buildings are clean. Strongly Agree – 25/80 = 31.3% 
Agree – 37/80 = 46.3% 
Neutral - 14/80 = 17.5% 
Strongly Disagree = 1/80 = 1.3% 


22) My parents feel welcome to participate at my school. Strongly Agree – 10/80 =13.0% 
Agree – 49/80 = 61.3% 
Neutral – 20/80 = 25.0% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/80 = 1.3% 


23) I am happy to be at my school. Strongly Agree – 18/80 = 22.5% 
Agree –43/80 = 53.8% 
Neutral – 16/80 = 20.0% 
Disagree – 2/80 = 2.5% 
Strongly Disagree – 1/80 = 1.3% 


English Learner Program Target Questions *PTCM has 46 EL students 
24) I receive the support I need from teachers Strongly Agree – 13 


Agree – 34 







  
   


       
  


  
   


   
       


  
  


   
          


  
   
   


    
   


 


     
   
    


  
  


    
 


  
        


   
  


  
    


     
 


   
  


 
  


   
  


   
  


  
 


Neutral – 6/80 
Strongly Disagree – 6 


25) I feel comfortable talking in English in my classes Strongly Agree - 11 
Agree - 38 
Neutral - 5 
Disagree – 2 
Strongly Disagree – 1 


26) I feel comfortable reading and writing in my classes. Strongly Agree -19 
Agree - 31 
Neutral - 8 
Strongly Disagree –1 


27) I am confident that I will improve in my classes. Strongly Agree - 14 
Agree - 30 
Neutral - 6 
Disagree – 2 


28) Please share any additional comments that will help 
you be more successful in school. 


• I would like a lot more help. 
• Nothing much. Just that I learn really slow. 
• Not having to do stuff on line would be great 


since doing stuff online is really hard. 
It’s hard for many reasons, and I mean many. 


• I have to wake up early for Zoom and make 
sure I don’t forget about logging in cuz it’s 
very important to log in the morning. 


29) I participate in the following CTE courses at my school. I not do participate in CTE – 54 
Child development – 9 
Careers in Education –7 
Welding – 5 
Construction – 4 


30) I would like to participate in the following CTE courses Culinary Arts = 18 
Medical = 18 
I am not interested in participating in CTE = 16 
Construction = 15 
Child Development = 15 
Criminal Justice = 15 
Cosmetology = 14 
Digital Media = 11 
Fire Fighting  = 10 
Welding = 10 
Careers in Education = 6 







Raising Student Achievement Through 
Professional Development 
Recent extensive research has highlighted the shortcomings of the one-off workshops that many school 
districts tend to provide and has also found that the ongoing, job-embedded, collaborative, professional 
learning that is proven to be highly effective overseas is not widely used across the United States. 


The most powerful way to raise student 


achievement is through professional 


learning. More than ever before, 


students need effective teaching if they 


are to develop the higher order thinking 


skills they will need to be career and 


college ready in the 21st century.  At 


the same time the expectations for 


student achievement are being raised, 


the student population in schools 


is becoming increasingly diverse. 


This means the need for effective 


professional development for schools 


and teachers is critical.  Research has 


shown that what distinguishes high 


performing, high poverty schools from 


lower performing schools is effective 


collaborative professional development 


for teachers1. 


Professional development serves three, 


often overlapping, functions: 


� To improve school performance 


� To improve the quality of classroom 


instruction 


� To support the implementation of 


new initiatives 


Professional development is a 


comprehensive, ongoing, and intensive 


approach to improving teachers’ and 


principals’ effectiveness in raising 


student achievement.  While most 


teachers across the country take part in 


professional development every year, 


current state, district and school 


approaches to professional learning 


vary widely.  The impact of the 
professional development in terms 


of turning schools around and raising 


student achievement has also varied 


greatly2. Like other countries, teachers 


in the United States are provided 


with opportunities for professional 


development in the form of workshops, 


but they fall significantly behind high 


performing countries when it comes to 


opportunities to take part in extended 


and collaborative professional 


development3. 


For twenty years, we have been working 


to raise student achievement through 


providing quality professional 


development for school communities in 


ways that support and sustain effective 


classroom practice. This experience 


and a solid research base have 


highlighted the characteristics of 


professional development that result in 


improved teaching and increased 


student achievement. Effective 


professional development: 


� Is planned over time, sustained, 


rigorous and embedded within the 


context of the school 


� Fosters collaboration within 


schools and across districts 


� Uses data to directly link to the 


school goals 


� Is evidence-based and data-


driven both to guide improvement 


and measure impact 


� Is differentiated and ensures an 


intensive focus on the teaching-


learning relationship. 







Ongoing and embedded within 
the context of the school 


Significant and sustainable change in 


practice is an ongoing process and it 


takes time to implement and reflect on 


new practices.  Current research shows 


that intensive ongoing professional 


development for administrators and 


teachers leads to an increase in student 


achievement4. 


Research shows that teachers need 


on-the-job support to make the new 


ideas part of their daily practice5. This 


evidence suggests that states reap 


greater benefits in terms of student 


achievement when they invest in 


classroom-based coaching as opposed 


to more costly changes such as smaller 


classes6. 


Site based professional development 


is embedded in the teachers’ daily 


practice. It has meaning and relevance 


to them, as it is about their students and 


will help them to facilitate the learning 


of these students today.   


Our professional development is planned 


over time and embedded within the 


context of the school to ensure sustained 


impact. 


Fosters collaboration within and 
across schools 


For the last three decades research has 


consistently shown that where there 


is a shared responsibility throughout 


the district or school community for 


student achievement positive changes 


are more likely to be sustained.  A five 


year study of 1,500 schools undergoing 


comprehensive reform showed that 


in schools where professional learning 


communities were established 


achievement increased.  Furthermore, 


the collaboration and shared 


responsibility for student achievement 


narrowed the achievement gap in 


schools with students from low income 


homes7. 


The greater the challenge of the school 


context, the greater the need for a 


deliberate leadership focus on student 


learning and well-being. Very rarely have 


schools been turned around without 


the leadership from a principal who 


has set clear priorities and goals that 


are followed through with professional 


learning. Many other factors contribute 


to positive change in schools, but 


leadership is the catalyst8. 


Although the principal is in a critical 


position to lead change, he or she 


cannot do it alone. Empowering others 


throughout the school to develop and 


exercise leadership roles and to share 


 in the leadership of change is both 


desirable and achievable. 


Our professional development is planned 


collaboratively with the principal and 


staff to create structures that sustain 


professional learning. 


Evidence-based and data-driven 
both to guide improvement and 
measure impact 


Focused effort in a school is important 


if school-wide teaching and student 


learning are to improve.  Professional 


development is an ongoing cycle of 


improvement, where data is used 


to encourage reflection, inquiry, and 


dialogue in a collaborative learning 


community.  It is the analysis of 


data about students, teachers, 


principals, and systems from both 


formal accountability systems and 


internal monitoring programs that 


drives decisions about the purpose 


and content of effective professional 


development9. 


When professional development 


starts with an analysis of data about 


students and educators, it will be more 


closely aligned to the school goals and 


meet the unique needs of educators 







and their students by differentiating 


learning for individuals and teams of 


educators. Data drives the planning 


and implementation of effective 


professional development  and is also 


used to monitor and evaluate the 


quality and results of  individual, team, 


and school-wide professional learning. 


All change processes benefit from being 


evidence-informed and having regular 


review of progress and impact. 


Our professional development uses 


district, school, and student data to 


drive the content and purpose of the 


professional development. Data from 


clients is used to monitor and evaluate 


the quality and effects of our professional 


development. 


Differentiated to ensure an 
intensive focus on the teaching– 
learning relationship 


Effective professional development 


targets classroom instruction and 


is research-based in terms of both 


content and pedagogy. Successful 


professional learning immerses 


teachers in the content they teach and 


provides research-based knowledge 


about how students learn. 


The need for professional development 


to focus on instruction comes from the 


critical assumption that the quality of 


instruction is the key determinant of 


variation in student achievement10. In 


order to support excellent teaching, 


school leaders and teachers need to 


acquire and develop expertise about 


what constitutes powerful instruction.  


School-based professional 


development, then, needs to support 


principals in developing the vision, the 


language, and the tools to observe, 


analyze, and lead for high-quality 


instruction in every classroom. 


Ongoing, intensive professional 


development that focuses on 


supporting teachers’ planning and 


instruction has a greater chance of 


influencing teaching practice and in 


turn, raising student achievement11. 


Just as students have diverse 


learning needs, so do their teachers. 


Professional development needs to be 


differentiated and take into account 


teachers’ previous experiences and 


learning styles, and build on their 


current understandings. There is no 


one-size-fits-all answer12. 


Any professional development needs to 


provide in-school support for teachers 


in: 


� Engaging all students in a rigorous, 


standards-based core academic 


curriculum 


� Emphasizing project-based 


learning and other engaging, 


inquiry-based teaching methods 


that provide opportunities for 


students to master academic 


content, think critically, and 


develop personal strengths; 


� Customizing teaching and learning 


using new technologies 


� Differentiating instruction and 


providing supports that meet the 


varied learning needs of diverse 


student populations 


� Connecting curriculum to real-


world contexts that build upon 


student and community resources 


� Using multiple measures to assess 


student outcomes, including 


performance-based assessments 


� Developing coherence and 


consistency in teaching practices 


Our differentiated professional 


development supports teachers in 


becoming more effective practitioners 


by focusing on instructional strategies, 


curriculum design, student learning and 


assessment practices. 


In conclusion, we provide professional 


development that is comprehensive, 


ongoing, intensive and designed to 


improve teachers’ and principals’ 


effectiveness in raising student 


achievement. 







References 


American Federation of Teachers. 
(2011, May 19). Recommendations 
of the AFT Ad Hoc Committee on 
standards rollout. Washington, DC.  


Bryk, A., Camburn, E., & Louis, K. (1999). 
Professional community in Chicago 
elementary schools: Facilitating factors 
and organizational consequences. 
Educational Administration Quarterly, 
35, 751-781. 


Calkins, A., Guenther, W., Belfiore, 
G., & Lash, D. (2007). The turnaround 
challenge: Why America’s best 
opportunity to dramatically improve 
student achievement lies in our worst-
performing schools. Boston, MA: Mass 
Insight Education & Research Institute. 


Elmore, R. (2002) Bridging the gap 
between standards and achievement: 
The imperative for professional 
development in Education. Washington 
DC: Albert Shanker Institute. 


Goddard, Y. L., Goddard, R. D., 
& Tschannen-Moran, M. (2007). 
Theoretical and empirical investigation 
of teacher collaboration for school 
improvement and student achievement 
in public elementary schools. Teachers 
College Record 109(4), 877-896. 


Hammond, L., Wei, R., Andree, A., 
Richardson, N., and Orphanos, S. (2009) 
Professional learning in the learning 
profession: A status report on teacher 
development in the United States 
and abroad. NSDC and the School 
of Redesign Network at Stanford 
University. 


Hattie, J. (2009). Visible learning: A 
synthesis of over 800 meta-analyses 
relating to achievement. London:  
Routledge. 


Joyce, B. & Showers, B. (2002). Student 
achievement through professional 
development. In B. Joyce & B. Showers 
(Eds.), Designing training and peer 
coaching: Our need for learning. 
Alexandria, VA: ASCD 


Knapp.M.S. (2003) Professional 
Development as a policy pathway. 
Review of Research in Education 27 (1), 
109-157 


Killion, J. (2012) Meet the promise 
of content standards: Professional 
learning required. Oxford, OH: Learning 
Forward. 


Marzano, R. J., Waters, T., & McNulty, B. 
(2005). School leadership that works: 
From research to results.  Aurora, CO: 
ASCD and McREL. 


NSDC POLICY POINTS: Information 
for policy makers about professional 
development that improves student 
results, Vol. 1, No. 2,  April 2009 


Silva, E. (2008). The bentwood plan: 
A lesson in comprehensive teacher 
reform. Washington, DC Education 
Sector 


Supovitz, J. A., & Christman, J. B. 
(2003). Developing communities of 
instructional practice: Lessons for 
Cincinnati and Philadelphia. CPRE Policy 
Briefs, pp. 1-9. Pennsylvania: University 
of Pennsylvania.  


Timperley, H., Wilson, A., Barrar, H., & 
Fung, I. (2007). Teacher professional 
learning and development: Best 
Evidence Synthesis Iteration.  
Wellington: Ministry of Education. 


Weiss, I., & Pasley. J., (2006). Scaling 
up instructional improvement through 
teacher professional development: 
Insights from the local systemic change 
initiative. Philadelphia, PA. Consortium 
for Policy Research in Education (CPRE) 
Policy Briefs. 


Wenglinsky, H. (2000). How teaching 
matters: Bringing the classroom back 
into discussions of teacher quality. 
Princeton, NJ: Milken Family Foundation 
and Educational Testing Service. 


Yoon, K. S., Duncan, T., Lee, S. W.Y., 
Scarloss, B., & Shapley, K. (2007). 
Reviewing the evidence on how 
teacher professional development 
affects student achievement (Issues & 
Answers Report, REL 2007-No. 033). 
Washington, DC. 


Endnotes 


1Silva, 2008 
2Hammond et al., 2009 
3Hammond et al., 2009 
4Yoon et al., 2007 
5Joyce & Showers, 2002 
6Odden et al., 2007 
7Calkins, Guenther, Belfiore, & Lash,  
  2007; Goddard, Goddard & Tschannen- 
  Moran, 2007; Supovitz & Christman, 
2003 


8Marzano et al., 2005 
9Learning Forward, 2011 
10Wenglinsky, 2000; Hattie, 2009 
11Knapp, 2003; Supovitz, Mayer & 
Kahle, 2000; Weiss & Pasley, 2006 


12Hattie 2009 







  


     
     


5/20/2021 Lower-income Americans still lag in tech adoption | Pew Research Center 


MAIN MORE  


NEWS IN THE NUMBERS 


MAY 7, 2019 


Digital divide persists even as lower-
income Americans make gains in tech
adoption 
BY MONICA ANDERSON AND MADHUMITHA KUMAR 


Thirty years after the debut of the World Wide Web, internet use, broadband adoption and 


smartphone ownership have grown rapidly for all Americans – including those who are 


less well-off financially. But even as many aspects of the digital divide have narrowed over 


time, the digital lives of lower- and higher-income Americans remain markedly different. 


https://www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/2019/05/07/digital-divide-persists-even-as-lower-income-americans-make-gains-in-tech-adoption/ 1/5 







5/20/2021 Lower-income Americans still lag in tech adoption | Pew Research Center 


Roughly three-in-ten adults with household incomes below $30,000 a year (29%) don’t 
own a smartphone. More than four-in-ten don’t have home broadband services (44%) or a 


traditional computer (46%). And a majority of lower-income Americans are not tablet 
owners. By comparison, each of these technologies is nearly ubiquitous among adults in 


households earning $100,000 or more a year. 


Higher-income Americans are also more likely to have multiple devices that enable them 


to go online. Roughly two-thirds of adults living in high-earning households (64%) have 


home broadband services, a smartphone, a desktop or laptop computer and a tablet, 
compared with 18% of those living in lower-income households. 


https://www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/2019/05/07/digital-divide-persists-even-as-lower-income-americans-make-gains-in-tech-adoption/ 2/5 







5/20/2021 Lower-income Americans still lag in tech adoption | Pew Research Center 


With fewer options for online access at their disposal, many lower-income Americans are 


relying more on smartphones. As of early 2019, 26% of adults living in households earning 


less than $30,000 a year are “smartphone-dependent” internet users – meaning they own 


a smartphone but do not have broadband internet at home. This represents a substantial 
increase from 12% in 2013. In contrast, only 5% of those living in households earning 


$100,000 or more fall into this category in 2019. 


This reliance on smartphones also means that the less affluent are more likely to use them 


for tasks traditionally reserved for larger screens. For example, lower-income smartphone 


owners were especially likely to use their mobile device when seeking out and applying for 


jobs, according to a 2015 Pew Research Center report. 


The disparity in online access is also apparent in what has been called the “homework gap” 


– the gap between school-age children who have access to high-speed internet at home 


and those who don’t. In 2015, 35% of lower-income households with school-age children 


did not have a broadband internet connection at home, according to a Pew Research 


Center analysis of U.S. Census Bureau data. 


The digital divide has been a central topic in tech circles for decades with researchers, 
advocates and policymakers examining this issue. Federal Communications Commission 


Chairman Ajit Pai reiterated his commitment to bringing high-speed internet services to 


https://www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/2019/05/07/digital-divide-persists-even-as-lower-income-americans-make-gains-in-tech-adoption/ 3/5 







 


  


   


  


  


  


    
      


           


    


    


5/20/2021 Lower-income Americans still lag in tech adoption | Pew Research Center 


lower-income communities, though there are partisan differences in views of how this 


should be carried out. 


Note: See full topline results and methodology here. This is an update of a post originally 


published March 22, 2017. 


Read the other posts in our digital divide series: 


Disabled Americans are less likely to use technology 


Digital gap between rural and nonrural America persists 


Smartphones help blacks, Hispanics bridge some – but not all – digital gaps with whites 


Topics Emerging Technology Impacts, Technology Adoption, Socioeconomic Class, Digital Divide, 


Income Inequality, Income 


Monica Anderson is an associate director of research at Pew Research Center. 


POSTS BIO TWITTER EMAIL 


Madhumitha Kumar is an intern at Pew Research Center. 


POSTS BIO EMAIL 


Add Pew Research Center to your Alexa 


Say “Alexa, enable the Pew Research Center flash briefing” 


ADD TO ALEXA 


RELATED 


REPORT | MAY 31, 2019 


Digital gap between rural and nonrural America persists 


REPORT | JAN 12, 2017 


Record shares of Americans now own smartphones, have home broadband 


https://www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/2019/05/07/digital-divide-persists-even-as-lower-income-americans-make-gains-in-tech-adoption/ 4/5 







5/20/2021 Lower-income Americans still lag in tech adoption | Pew Research Center 


REPORT | OCT 26, 2018 


Nearly one-in-�ve teens can’t always �nish their homework because of the 
digital divide 


REPORT | APR 7, 2017 


Disabled Americans are less likely to use technology 


REPORT | JUN 28, 2017 


10 facts about smartphones as the iPhone turns 10 


P OPULAR ON PE W RES EARCH 


    


    


    


   


     


     


    


    


     


FACT TANK | JAN 21, 2020 


Do state laws on abortion re�ect public opinion? 


FACT TANK | JAN 17, 2019 


De�ning generations: Where Millennials end and Generation Z begins 


FEATURE | MAY 19, 2021 


Americans and ‘Cancel Culture’: Where Some See Calls for Accountability, 
Others See Censorship, Punishment 


FEATURE | OCT 14, 2017 


Quiz: Are you a Core Conservative? A Solid Liberal? Or somewhere in 
between? 


DATA ESSAY | MAY 14, 2020 


What We Know About Gen Z So Far 


https://www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/2019/05/07/digital-divide-persists-even-as-lower-income-americans-make-gains-in-tech-adoption/ 5/5 







    


 
 


         
  


 


           


         
      


            
                
      


             
   


 
                    


       
 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and
Accountability Plan 
Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year 
LEA Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and 
Chowchilla 


Mr. Scott Ellingson - Principal 
Mr. Alan Macedo - Program Director 


sellingson@mcsos.org (559) 661-4636 
amacedo@mcsos.org (559) 706-3095 


The following is the local educational agency’s (LEA’s) analysis of its goals, measurable outcomes and actions and services from the 
2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 1 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


  
                             


 
        
                 


              
             
               
               


    
 


   


  


 
            


           
 


             
            


 
                   


          
         


           
          


         
         


 


 
        
                


 
           
 


            


         
         


 
                


          
       


        


Goal 1 
Goal 1 - PTC students will achieve higher levels of learning to prepare them to be college and career ready. 


State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning) 


X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning) 
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes) 


Local Priorities: 


Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator
The majority of all 11th and 12th graders at PTC will successfully 
complete a CTE course. 
19-20 
80% of all PTC 11th and 12th grader PTC student to complete a 
CTE course before graduation. 
Baseline 
11th and 12th graders enrolled at the start of the school year 


PTC has a CTE program with relevant pathways in Construction, 
Child Development and Welding that prepare students with career 
and life skills. The CTE building was completed in 2018-19. Staff 
and administration will continue to explore the possibility of adding 
additional viable career pathways. Online CTE courses is offered 
through Odysseyware. The 80% CTE participation goal was not 
met. 


Metric/Indicator
Through the online program, Odysseyware, and other resources, 
students will recover credits to be able to graduate. 
19-20 
Increase one-year graduation rate 
Baseline 
2018-19 graduation rate is 77.9% 


According to the DASS (Dashboard for Alternative School Status) 
the graduation rate at PTC in 2019-20 was 82.6% 


Metric/Indicator
We will increase the number of EL students reclassified. 


PTC provided targeted support for EL students in both Designated 
and Integrated ELD through supplemental ELA/ELD Curriculum. 
Ongoing Professional Development in best practices was provided 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 2 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


  


 
              


 
         


            
         


          
   


 
        


              
 
        


 
         


        


       
          


 
          


 
          
          
 


           


          
  


 
       


        
 


          
          
 


          


          
  


 
         


           
 


          
  


Expected Actual 


19-20 
To reclassify 20% of eligible EL students 
Baseline 
4 students 


to all staff. The MCSOS EL master plan was updated with support 
from the CAES Bilingual Coordinator and ELD Director from 
MCSOS. ELPAC testing was started and not competed in the 
Spring of 2020. 


Metric/Indicator
All teachers will continue to access professional development 
through PTC, MCSOS, or other school agencies. 
19-20 
100% 
Baseline 
100% of our teachers receive professional development (4 days) 
annually. 


100% of CAES teachers received professional development 
during regularly scheduled PDs on Fridays (7:30 - 8:45 a.m.) 


Metric/Indicator
Increase student performance on the CAASPP ELA assessment. 
19-20 
Increase the percent of students achieving a score of met 
standards to 20% 
Baseline 
2018-19 ELA CAASPP Scores 


2019-2020 CAASPP Testing was suspended by CDE due to the 
COVID-19 outbreak. 


Metric/Indicator
Increase student performance on the CAASPP Math 
assessment. 
19-20 
Increase the percent of students achieving a score of met 
standards to 15% 
Baseline 
2018-19 CAASPP Scores 


2019-2020 CAASPP Testing was suspended by CDE due to the 
COVID-19 outbreak. 


Metric/Indicator 2019-2020 CAASPP Testing was suspended by CDE due to the 
Increase student performance on the CAASPP ELA and Math 
assessment for EL students. 
19-20 


COVID-19 outbreak. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 3 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


  


           
                
 


          
 


        
         


 
        


 
        


         


          
 


 
           


 
        


 
        


        


        
 


 
              


 
        


 
            


           
          


 


 
           
 
        


 


         
         


         
       


Expected Actual 


Increase the percent of EL students achieving a score of met 
standards to 15% in ELA and 5% in Math 
Baseline 
2018-19 CAASPP Scores 
Metric/Indicator
All students will receive standards based instruction and 
instructional materials. 
19-20 
100% 
Baseline 
100% of students receive standards based instruction and 
instructional materials 


All CAES instruction was driven by California Common Core State 
Standards. 


Metric/Indicator
All students will be taught by appropriately credentialed teachers. 
19-20 
100% 
Baseline 
100% of students are taught by appropriately credentialed 
teachers 


All CAES students were taught by appropriately credentialed 
teachers. 


Metric/Indicator
Access to a broad course of study 
19-20 
100% 
Baseline 
Access for 100% of students 


All CAES students were provided access to a broad course of 
study in either Blended (BIS) or Full Independent (FIS) studies 
programs. 


Metric/Indicator During the Pandemic, PTC provided virtual elective classes for 
Broad course of study students in Art, Child Development, Careers in Education and 


19-20 
100% 


Interior construction and provided a broad curriculum to teach 
valuable life, college preparatory and career skills. 


Baseline 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 4 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


  


        
 


   
 


 
 


 
 


 
            


          
            


             
          


         
        


     
       


  


   
    


 


         
            


         


    
 


     
   


     
   


   
 


           
   


   
   


  


   
   


   
 


            
         


            
          


 


     
   


     


   
    


 


          
         


          
             


            
        


            


     
   


     


   
    


 
   


   
     


     
   


  


Expected Actual 


100% 


Actions / Services 
Planned 


Actions/Services 
Budgeted


Expenditures 
Actual 


Expenditures 
PTC will continue to offer a CTE program with relevant pathways in 
Construction and Child Development, with welding as a new career 
pathway. The new CTE building is scheduled to open in the Spring 
2019, and the CTE programs will be moved into the new facility during 
the school year 2019--20. Staff and administration will continue to 
explore the possibility of adding additional viable career pathways. 
Online CTE courses will be offered through Odysseyware. 


1.1 - Salaries & Benefits 
($161,900 Inc in 1.6) LCFF Base 
$185,200 


1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$210,976.56 


PTC will provide targeted support for EL students. Professional 
development in best practices will be provided to all staff and support 
will be provided by an EL consultant from MCSOS. 


1.2 -Salaries & Benefits 
Services 
LCFF Supplemental and 


Concentration $16,700 
Title I $48,000 


1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$29,300 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$14,752 


Title I 0.00 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$29,504 


PTC will develop teams of teachers and administrators in PLC format to 
analyze data and make recommendations to drive instruction. Teachers 
will have collaboration time and will share findings with staff to highlight 
successes and deficiencies in the area of curriculum and standardized 
tests. 


1.3 - Salaries & Benefits 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries LCFF Base $15,800 


1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$18,000 


PTC will provide opportunities for professional development for all staff. 1.4 - Salaries & Benefits 1000- 1000-1999: Certificated 
Scheduled staff meetings on reduced days and designated professional 1999: Certificated Personnel Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
development days will be used to address best practices and Salaries LCFF Base $54,100 $54,100 
collaboration on topics relevant to the needs of the PTC staff and the 
needs of PTC students. Teachers will also be encouraged to seek out 
professional development opportunities to address areas of individual 
growth. Content area specialists in ELA and Math will be used through 


Services 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF Base $21,000 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Base $21,000 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 5 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


 
 


 
 


 
 


         
  


         
           


         
          


          
          


          


     
   


     


   
    


 
    
     


     
   


           
          


       
        


          
     


     
   


    
   


   
   


   
 


          


           
     


     
   


    
   


   
   


   
 


   
    
  


   
    
 


          
           


   


      
 


     
   


     


    


         
           
            


       


     
     
     


     


    


 


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Budgeted
Expenditures 


Actual 
Expenditures 


MCSOS to provide professional development to improve instruction for 
all students. 


Administration and staff will review and provide updated standards 1.5 - Salaries & Benefits 1000- 1000-1999: Certificated 
aligned curriculum to ensure that it promotes higher levels of learning 1999: Certificated Personnel Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
including A-G offerings, and teachers are providing engaging rigorous Salaries LCFF Base $8,000 $8,000
lessons that incorporate the use of technology. PTC administration will 
ensure all students are provided with needed technology resources to 
maximize learning. Special focus will be on development of blended 


Supplies 4000-4999: Books And 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplies LCFF Base $20,500 LCFF Base $21,000 


independent study program in core areas with project based learning. 


Academic supports will be provided to students to assist them in 1.6 - Salaries & Benefits 1000- 1000-1999: Certificated 
preparation of graduation. Students will be prepared for college and/or 1999: Certificated Personnel Personnel Salaries LCFF 
career opportunities. Supports will include academic counseling Salaries LCFF Supplemental and Supplemental and Concentration 
services, tutoring, credit recovery, career technical education, and Concentration $141,700 $113,700 
summer school programs and academic support classes in EL and 
Math for independent study students. LCFF Base $15,400 


PTC will continue to recruit and retain credentialed teachers & maintain 
low teacher to student ratios. 


1.7 - Salaries & Benefits 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $449,300 
1000-1999: Certificated 


Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$1,414,100 


1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$458,300 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$1,516,299 


PTC will provide a blended learning independent study option for 
students that provides support in the four core content subjects four 
days a week. 


1.8 - LCFF-Base $449,300 (Inc in 
1.7) 
LCFF-S&C $1,414,100 (Inc in 1.7) 
Salaries & Benefits 


PTC will provide classroom based elective classes for independent 
study students in key areas such as financial literacy, leadership, art, 
music and other elective areas to provide a broad curriculum and teach 
valuable life, college preparatory and career skills. 


1.9 - Salaries & Benefits 
LCFF-Base $45,000 (Inc in 1.7) 
LCFF-S&C $141,400 (Inc in 1.7) 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 6 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


  
 


                   
  


              
                    


  
                


  
                    


              
 
 


               
                  


                     
                  
                       
                   


          
 


                  
                     
                 


                  
                  


      
         
 


Goal Analysis 


A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff. 
1.1 = Overspent $25,776 (for CTE Virtual Welders purchased and Instructional Aide hired) 
1.2 = Underspent $48,000 (EL consultant position not filled in 2019-20, however days of service used CSI funding on separate 
contract) 
1.6 = Underspent $28,000 and $15,000 = $43,400 (No Summer School held due to COVID-19 pandemic) 


• ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, funds budgeted for actions/services that were not implemented in 2019-20, will be used to support 
students (including unduplicated students) families, teachers, and staff in the 2021-22 school year. 


A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 
Challenges: Reaching all students, including the unduplicated population, via technology, was the greatest challenge. PTC was not a 
1:1 technology program prior to the COVID-19 shutdown, and indicated by parent feedback in the Spring of 2020, the purchase of 
technology and Wifi connectivity, had not been initiated prior to the pandemic. CAASPP and i-Ready Assessments were also 
suspended due to SB 93 and the shutdown for the COVID-19 pandemic. As a result, all students and teachers were required to rely 
exclusively on "Paper packets" for students to complete assignments from home until the full Distance Learning Model, with the 
support of technology, was rolled out in August of 2020. 


Successes: An annual needs assessment was given via parent survey. The feedback from the PTC communities revealed the 
necessity of electronic devices and connectivity, where 2/3 of families stated they needed either a device, hotspot or both. In addition, 
individual graduation appointments were held to honor students who had completed their requirements, in a safe, individualized 
format, which allowed parents to attend for their children. Finally, teachers and instructional staff received additional training and 
professional growth and development in the areas of ELA/ELD, SEL and Technology integration, for the Distance Learning Model 
rollout for the Fall of 2020. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 7 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


  
                      


           


 
        
                


             
             
               


    
 


   


  


 
          


            
 


          
        


 
            


          
        


         


 
         


        
        


 
              
 


         
          


         
          


         
         


       
       
        


        
          
         


      


Goal 2 
Goal 2: PTC will provide resources and services to improve the social and emotional well--being of each student to provide a safe 
learning environment. 


State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning) 


X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement) 
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes) 


Local Priorities: 


Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator
PTC will provide transportation to students who qualify for MUSD 
bussing or local public transportation. 
19-20 
Maintain or increase the number of students who are provided 
transportation. 
Baseline 
All students who need transportation. 


Prior to the Pandemic, the contracted bus service though MUSD 
provided bus transportation and tickets for public transportation 
were provided. After March 13th, 2020, it was discontinued. 


Metric/Indicator
All students that are parenting teens, foster youth and/or 
homeless will have the opportunity to receive counseling 
services. 
19-20 
Maintain 100% of students receiving counseling services 


PTC’s School psychologist did not meet with pregnant and 
parenting teens to ensure their academic and emotional needs of 
the parent and child were being addressed. Referrals to 
appropriate agencies were made, but child care services and 
expenses were not provided. Through the Foster/Homeless 
Liaison, qualifying students received counseling services to 
support their SEL needs. Established working relationships with 


Baseline 
100% of parenting teens, foster youth and/or homeless students 
received counseling services 


the public health department support providers allowed for 
pregnant and parenting teens to receive services as needed. In 
addition, an office was provided for health department personnel 
to meet with students as needed. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 8 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


  


 
         


            
 


         
        


 
            


           
        
       


   


 
         


           
 
         


 
               


          
      


 
           


        
 


               
 


              


        
    
    
    


 


 
           


         
 


             
 


          


    
     
     
     
     


 


 
             


           
         


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator
PTC will conduct 4 Positive Behavior Intervention & Supports 
(PBIS) assemblies throughout the year. 
19-20 
Maintain or increase the number of PBIS boosters and/or 
assemblies 
Baseline 
4 PBIS assemblies were conducted 


Due to the pandemic, PTC was not able to conduct PRIDE 
assemblies during the school year. However, students were 
recognized quarterly for attendance, PRIDE and academic 
achievement with certificates. 


Metric/Indicator
Update and maintain the annual facilities inspection and repairs 
on a regular basis. 
19-20 
Good repair 
Baseline 
Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT); Score = Good Repair 


Both PTC Facilities Inspection Tool (FIT); Scored = Good Repair 
for the 2019-20 School year. 


Metric/Indicator
PTC will reduce the total number of suspensions in the blended 
programs. 
19-20 
PTC will lower its suspension rate to 6% 
Baseline 
Suspension rate in 2018-29 dropped to 5% 


The target goal was achieved in reducing suspensions: 
2017-18 = 55 suspensions 
2018-19 = 22 suspensions 
2019-20 = 17 suspensions 


Metric/Indicator Attendance rates by comparison: 
PTC will reduce the number of students who are identified as PTC Madera 2018-19 = 79% 
chronically absent. PTC Madera 2019-20 = 85% 


19-20 
Reduce Chronic absenteeism to under 50%. 


PTC Chowchilla 2018-19 = 88% 
PTC Chowchilla 2019-20 = 78% 


Baseline 
55.9% Chronically Absent 
Metric/Indicator
PTC will conduct an annual climate survey to meet local indicator 


End of year stakeholder survey was conducted. 92% of all 
responding parents indicated their students felt safe at school. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 9 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


  


 
                 
 


         
 


         
 


            
 


     
     


        


     
     


 


 
          
 
         


 
        


            
     


 
   


 
 


 
 


 
 


         
           


        
           


  
 


 


     
    


   
   


  


     
   


   
 


             
       


          


    
    


     


     
   


  


Expected Actual 


19-20 
Maintain the level of students who feel safe at school 
Baseline 
Conduct survey 
Metric/Indicator
Attendance rate 
19-20 
Increase seat time to 85% 
Baseline 
PTC Madera 2018-19 = 79% 
PTC Chowchilla 2018-19 = 88% 


PTC Madera 2019-20 = 86% 
PTC Chowchilla 2019-20 = 79% 


Metric/Indicator The drop out rate could not be established with just three quarters 
Drop out rate of the 2019-20 school year. 


19-20 
Under 15% 
Baseline 
19% 


Actions / Services 
Planned 


Actions/Services 
Budgeted


Expenditures 
Actual 


Expenditures 
Teachers will seek out meaningful extended learning opportunities that 
include field trips to enhance the learning occurring in the classroom. 
Additionally, students will benefit from opportunities through CTE 
courses. School athletics will continue to be an incentive based option 
for student 
participation. 


2.1 - Services & Supplies 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$10,500 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$8,558 


To help ensure safe arrival to and from school, PTC will coordinate with 
Madera Unified transportation to provide qualified students 
transportation to and from school. Local public transportation will also 


2.2 - Services 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF Base $24,600 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Base $5,812 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 10 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


 
 


 
 


 
 


            
       


   
   


  


     
  


        
         


          
        


         


     
   


    
   


   
   


   
 


     
   


   
   


   
   


   
 


    
    


   


     
  


          
           


       


       
 


      
  


   
     


    


          
             


           
 


     
    


   
   


     
   


  


            
    


     
   


     


   
    


 
    


    
   


    
    


  


            
     


     
   


     


    
    


Planned 
Actions/Services 


Budgeted
Expenditures 


Actual 
Expenditures 


be a resource, as students will be provided tickets to cover the 
transportation costs. 5000-5999: Services And Other 


Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$200 


LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration 0 


PTC will provide supplemental services to pregnant, parenting, 2.3 - Salaries & Benefits 1000- 1000-1999: Certificated 
homeless, and foster youth students. Continued collaboration with the 1999: Certificated Personnel Personnel Salaries LCFF 
county office foster youth coordinator, personnel from public health, and Salaries LCFF Supplemental and Supplemental and Concentration 
other service agencies to facilitate students accessing services. Concentration $13,900 $8,500
Additional resources will contribute to students’ emotional well- being. 


($7900 inc in 1.6) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $61,900 
Supplies 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $500 


1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration 
$54,780 


LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration 0.00 


PTC will coordinate with behavioral health, drug and alcohol counseling, 
and school the psychologist to ensure appropriate referrals are being 
made for students in need of services. 


2.4 - LCFF Base ($13,900) (Inc in 
2.3) 
LCFF Sup & Con ($113,700) (Inc 
in 1.6) 
Salaries & Benefits 


PTC will conduct a minimum of 4 PBIS boosters/assemblies throughout 
the year to commend students for positive behavior in and out of the 
classroom. Additionally, parents will be invited to see their child get 
recognized. 


2.5 - Services & Supplies 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Base $4,900 


5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Base 0 


PTC will provide and maintain a safe, clean, and quality learning facility 
for students and staff. 


2.6 - Salaries & Benefits 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries LCFF Base $13,500 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 


Salaries LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $42,700 


1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$10,700 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration $59,455 


PTC staff will provide supervision and oversight that creates a safe and 
secure learning environment for students. 


2.7 - Salaries & Benefits 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF Base $12,200 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF Base $12,200 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 11 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


 
  


 
                   


  
                   


                 
                   
                  


                  
       


                   
            


                  
 


                    
             


 
                     


                         
                       


                     
                    


                      
                     


                       
                     


  
         
 


               
                   


                 
                   


                      
                    
                


Goal Analysis 


A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff. 
2.1 = Underspent $19,042 (Because of the Distance Learning Model being implemented, all enrichment and extension field trips were 
cancelled, but students were able to remain connected to their teachers on a weekly basis via Zoom) 
2.2 = Underspent $18,988 (The necessity of providing transportation to school for students was also eliminated, but students were 
able to pick up and drop off assignments in folders and a drop box placed outside each campus) 
2.3 = Underspent $13,020 (Supplemental services for Homeless, Foster Youth, Pregnant and Parenting Teens Event was not held in-
person; rather it was held in person) 
2.5 = Underspent $4,900 (Positive Behavior Intervention & Supports (PBIS) in-person assemblies were cancelled, but students still 
received praise via certificates presented for good academics, grades and PTC PRIDE) 
2.6 = Overspent $13,955 (To maintain a safe and clean campus for students during COVID-19) 


Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, funds budgeted for actions/services, that were not implemented in 2019-20, will be used to support 
all students (including unduplicated) families, teachers, and staff in the 2021-22 school year. 


With students off campus in a virtual learning environment, the suspension rates dropped towards the end of the 2019-20 school year 
and will be well below 1% by the end of the 2021 school year. However there was 1 suspension during a Zoom lesson that involved 
the use of "vape." Therefore, a target focus for the upcoming year will be drug and alcohol abuse at home during the pandemic. 
Another focus for meeting the needs of unduplicated students will be to reduce the number of students who are identified as 
chronically absent from the distance-learning lessons or submitting work within their given deadlines. This proved to be a major issue 
and was met by administration and academic counselors having to go out to households on a bi-monthly basis to make contact with 
students with excessive absences. Finally, PTC was able to conduct an annual climate survey to meet the local indicator and maintain 
the level of students who felt safe (88%) at their respective school sites upon return. PTC was also able to provide resources and 
services to improve the social and emotional well--being of each student to provide a safe learning environment upon return on April 
6th, 2021. 


A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 
Challenges: Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, many services were not able to be implemented, but alternatives were provided in 
supplemental manners. Because of the Distance Learning Model being implemented, all enrichment and extension field trips were 
cancelled, but students were provided CORE enrichment activities by their teachers in their lessons via Zoom. The necessity of 
providing transportation to school for students was also eliminated as students were able to pick up and drop off their assignments in 
folders and a "drop box" mounted outside each campus front. Another challenge that was remedied with success was replacing in-
person assemblies with distinguished award certificates presented quarterly for good academics, grades and PTC PRIDE. PTC 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 12 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


                         
                       


                    
                    


                  
                       
        


 
                     


                     
                       


                     
                   


                    
         
 


suspension rates dropped towards the last quarter of the 2019-20 school year and will be well below 1% by the end of the 2021 school 
year. However as there was one suspension issued during a Zoom lesson that involved the student use of "vape" a challenge for the 
upcoming year will be addressing the drug and alcohol abuse issues at home during the pandemic. A major challenge which 
presented itself during the pandemic, was was meeting the needs of unduplicated students, by reducing the number of students who 
were identified as chronically absent from their distance-learning lessons or submitting work within their given deadlines. This proved 
to be a major challenge and was met by administration and academic counselors having to go out to households on a bi-monthly basis 
to make contact with students with excessive absences. 


Successes: In receiving feedback and input from parents, PTC was able to conduct an annual climate survey to meet the local 
indicator and maintain the level of students who felt safe (90%+) at their respective school sites upon return. However, parents were 
apprehensive in having their children return to full in-person instruction, and as a result, only 35-40% of PTC students returned after 
April 6th to in-person instruction. Finally, PTC was also able to provide resources and services to improve the social and emotional 
well--being of each student to provide a safe learning environment during the 2020-2021 school year. The annual facilities inspection 
and repairs rated both campuses in good repair and in adequate supply of appropriate PPE for all staff and students. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 13 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


  
                    


 
        
               


              
             
             


    
 


   


  


 
           


         
 
             


        
 
         


         
         


 
           


            
 


           
        


 
                 


           
            


   


 
         


               


        
          


Goal 3 
Goal 3: PTC will encourage greater stakeholder participation and input by developing meaningful relationships with parents and family 


State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement) 


X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes) 
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement) 
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement) 


Local Priorities: 


Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator
All teachers and staff will maintain a call log for communication 
with parents/families 
19-20 
100% of teachers will maintain a call log for phone calls home to 
parents. 
Baseline 
Establish baseline 


100% of teachers maintained call log for attendance, recognition 
and particularly, during the COVID-19 closure of our schools. 


Metric/Indicator PTC hosted one event in the Fall Semester 2019 and planned 
Parents will be invited to attend more school events by mailers another event in the Spring of 2020. This event was cancelled due 
and personal phone calls home. to the COVID-19. 


19-20 
Maintain or increase the number of school events for parents to 
attend 
Baseline 
One event in Fall Semester One event in Spring Semester 
Metric/Indicator
Teachers and staff will make positive parent contacts regarding 
students to share positive behaviors and/or academic gains. 


Teachers and staff made positive outreach parent contacts 
regarding students to check in on their well-being and progress; 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 14 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


  


 
            
        


        
 
         


         
 


 
   


 
 


 
 


 
 


          
        


       
         


         
         


      


       
   


    
  


    
    


           
          


          
   


       
   


    
  


   
    


 


    
     


     
  


   
   


     


     
   


  


          
         


          
       


       
   


    
  


   
    


 


 


Expected Actual 


19-20 
Teachers and staff will call a minimum of three parents per month 
regarding students to share positive behaviors and/or academic 
gains 
Baseline 
Establish baseline 


particularly after the COVID-19 closure of all Madera County 
schools. 


Actions / Services 
Planned 


Actions/Services 
Budgeted


Expenditures 
Actual 


Expenditures 
PTC will provide effective communication with parents of regular and 
Special Education students in home language regarding school 
administration, activities, student progress and attendance. This 
communication will occur through personal phone calls home, an 
updated and maintained website, home visits, and regular progress 
reports and semester report cards. Bilingual services for parent 
meetings, including IEPs, will be provided. 


3.1 - Salaries & Benefits (Inc in 
1.6) 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$20,800 


2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries LCFF Base $25,800 


The unduplicated student population has some of the lowest rates of 
parent involvement To address these needs PTC will provide seminars 
and workshops, open house, and ongoing family events to increase 
opportunities for engagement. 


3.2 - Salaries & Benefits (Inc in 
1.6) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$5,400 
Supplies 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies LCFF Base $4,100 
Services 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF Base $2,000 


1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
$3,800 


4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
LCFF $2,600 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures LCFF 
Base $1,200 


PTC will provide opportunities for parent input through surveys and 3.3 - Salaries & Benefits (Inc in 1000-1999: Certificated 
participation in formal and informal advisory committees, including the 1.6) 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 
Site Council, ELAC and other school engagement meetings. This will Personnel Salaries LCFF Base $3,600
increase parent involvement for unduplicated student population. $3,500 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 15 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


  
 


                   
  


                    
               


                  
                  


            
                   


           
 


                    
            


         
 


               
                    


                    
                       


                        
                  


 
                  


                   
                        


        
         
 


Goal Analysis 


A description of how funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were used to support students, families, teachers, 
and staff. 
3.1 = Overspent $5,000 (PTC was able to provide effective communication with parents of regular and Special Education students in 
their home language regarding school administration, activities, student progress and attendance. Funds allocated for these 
expenditures were utilized to ensure that effective communication would occur through personal phone calls home, an updated and 
maintained website, home visits with quarterly progress reports and semester report cards. Bilingual services for all parent meetings, 
including IEPs , 504's, SSTs and parent conferences, were provided as well) 
3.2 = Underspent $3,900 (Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, all community family events, back to school, in-person conferences and 
stake-holder meetings, were not able to be held for safety concerns) 


Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, funds budgeted for actions/services that were not implemented in 2019-20, will be used to support 
students (including unduplicated) families, teachers, and staff in the 2021-22 school year. 


A description of the successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services to achieve the goal. 
Challenges: First, the ability to communicate with parents and students became a top priority. As a result, teachers shifted from 
weekly, hand written, call logs, to entering all communication into the Powerschool database. Next, to gain a better understanding of 
our community, a needs assessment survey was sent out to all parents in paper form, to assess the needs of students and parents. 
From these surveys, it was revealed that 2/3 of all CAES students were in need of technology in the form of either a Chromebook 
laptop or Verizon Hotspot, or both. This shaped the need for 1:1 technology for the 2020-21 school year. 


Successes: Included implementation of technology, provided better tools for distance learning, 1:1 instruction via Zoom and a platform 
for parents, teachers and students to communicate in a remote and safe virtual learning environment. All stakeholder (SSC, ELAC, 
LCAP and PAC) meetings were facilitated in the Zoom format. This proved to be a success with being able to have the community of 
all unduplicated students communicate remotely, instead of in-person. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 16 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


          
 


                  
  


 


   
 


      


   
  


 
 


 
 


         
   


        


               


        
        


        


          
            
  


         


 
                 


        
                


                     
                


                     
                       


                    
            


 


X


X


X


X


Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 
The following is the local educational agency's (LEA's) analysis of its 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan (Learning 
Continuity Plan). 


In-Person Instructional Offerings 


Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings 


Description Total 
Budgeted Funds 


Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 


Contributing 


Providing devices (Chromebooks) for students who need them for 
digital learning opportunities. 


$12,000 $16,400 Yes 


Providing Wifi "Hotspots" for students without internet. $12,000 $11,500 Yes 


All teachers received new technology, including touch-screen laptops, 
dual desktop monitor, camera and a wireless headset. 


$30,600 $22,800 Yes 


Maintaining a stock of PPE including: hand sanitizer, cleaning wipes, 
vindicator spray, face masks and face shields, to minimize risk of any 
COVID-19 infection. 


$12,000 $15,600 No 


A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for in-person instruction and 
what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 
The substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for in-person instruction was very little. 
Budgeted funds were utilized to meet the needs of PTC students for the 2020-21 school year. However, as the 1:1 Technology 
(Chromebooks) WiFi Hotspots, teacher-technology and training, were key during the distance learning model, the estimated actuals 
remained lower that initially predicted. A reason for this was the amount of Verizon Hotspots requested by parents and students was 
much higher in the Spring of 2020, than the actual number of connectivity devices issued in the Fall of 2020. When Madera County 
was cleared for the return of students and in-person instruction on April 6th, approximately 20-25% of PTC students returned to 
campus for in-person instruction. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 17 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


     
 


                
                  


                      
                       
                      


                   
                    


                  
                        


                     
                    


                 
                   


                      
                   


                    
                           


 


Analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings 


A description of the successes and challenges in implementing in-person instruction in the 2020-21 school year. 
There were more challenges than successes in implementing in-person instruction in the 2020-21 school year. Madera County was 
not cleared for in-person (Transition from the Purple to Red Tier) instruction until April 6th, 2021. Prior to this, the only in-person 
instruction for PTC was a small cohort (9) of students, who enrolled into the CTE Welding pathway at the beginning of the 2nd 
semester. This group was solicited by survey and interest in attending in-person welding classes. With the intent of being ready for the 
return of students, both teachers and students were provided with remote technology and students were provided Wifi Hotspots for 
connectivity. While this distance learning model was put into place, maintaining a schedule for students to adhere to meeting their 
teachers via Zoom proved both challenging and rewarding. Students who enjoyed the distance learning model were comfortable with 
the format of being in a 1:1 teacher to student ratio setting. Other students were initially reserved about being the only student in the 
virtual class as well as being on camera with their teacher, and many students struggled with the interaction and challenges of 
receiving content instruction in a digital format where engagement was difficult due to connectivity issues, echoes or delay in the 
sound when the transmission stopped functioning properly. However, any technology issues were quickly resolved by the MCSOS 
Tech support and Hotline, provided for students and parents. Finally, prior to in-person instruction resuming on April 6th, 2021, 
stakeholder was sent in the form of a parent survey via ParentSquare, to inquire how many parents were interested in sending their 
children back to school sites for in-person instruction with appropriate safety precautions, etc. Survey results revealed the that only 20-
30% of all PTC parents were interested in transitioning from virtual instruction, back to in-person instruction. As the 4th quarter 
progressed to the end of the year, the percentage of in-person instruction grew slightly higher to 35-40% student participation. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 18 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


   
 


       


   
  


 
 


 
 


               


        
 


        


         
     


        


 
                 


          
                  


                 
 


      
 


                     
                 
               
                    
                


                   
                 


                 
                 


                
                   


                    
                    
                      


                      
                 


X


X


X


Distance Learning Program 


Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program 


Description Total 
Budgeted Funds 


Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 


Contributing 


i-Ready Online Diagnostics, Assessment and intervention Program. $42,200 $46,400 Yes 


Purchase of supplemental McGraw-Hill StudySync ELA and ELD 
curriculum. 


$66,006 $66,006 Yes 


Ongoing weekly Professional Growth and Development with focus on 
StudySynch ELA and ELD curriculum. 


$20,400 $20,400 Yes 


A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the distance learning 
program and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 
There were no substantive differences between the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures for the distance learning program 
and how it implemented and/or expended on the actions. 


Analysis of the Distance Learning Program 


A description of the successes and challenges in implementing each of the following elements of the distance learning program in the 
2020-21 school year, as applicable: Continuity of Instruction, Access to Devices and Connectivity, Pupil Participation and Progress, 
Distance Learning Professional Development, Staff Roles and Responsibilities, and Support for Pupils with Unique Needs. 
Distance learning was provided for all PTC students in 2020-21. But, there were many challenges and success in implementing the 
following elements into the distance learning program. For continuity of instruction, PTC maintained its one-to-one Independent 
studies instructional program during the COVID -19 pandemic. In regards to access to devices and connectivity, all students were 
supported academically with 1:1 devices (Chromebooks) and Verizon Hotspots for Wifi connectivity. To address pupil participation and 
progress, teachers and students adapted to the distance learning model by maintaining weekly ATT appointments that included 
attention to social emotional learning (SEL) guided instruction, on-line expectations and ongoing assessments. For support in distance 
learning professional development, the CAES division of MCSOS provided ongoing Professional Growth and Development in the 
areas of SEL, ELA, ELD, Technology integration and student supports. To maintain staff roles and responsibilities, all staff were 
required to adhere to scheduled work hours and ATT appointments for students via a Zoom format. In-person instruction resumed on 
4/6/21 with approximately 20-30% of all students returning to school in person. By May, 2021, approximately 70% of all students 
remain online with the teacher of record on-site for instruction. Finally, in regards to support for pupils with unique needs (IEPs, #504's, 
Speech, etc.) all services were provided in compliance with Ed. code and SELPA laws. To ensure that all stakeholder was input was 
given via ParentSquare link, paper hard copies, Zoom stakeholder input meetings and virtual parent-teacher conferences. Analysis of 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 19 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


                  
                    


              
 


this feedback proved positive as parents indicted that student technology needs were met, social-emotional support was provided and 
students who were anxious about returning in person (70%) dropped 5-10% as more students returned to in-person instruction at the 
end of the 2020-21 school year. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 20 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


   
 


       


   
  


 
 


 
 


           
           
 


        


 
                 


          
                 


                  
 


     
 


                      
            


                    
                    


                    
                  


                      
                       


                    
                     
                       


                  
                 


 
                   


                    
                   


                   
                     


X


Pupil Learning Loss 


Actions Related to the Pupil Learning Loss 


Description Total 
Budgeted Funds 


Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 


Contributing 


The primary action change is serving the digital instructional needs of 
students by providing a chromebook or wifi hotspot, or both, if 
needed. 


$14,000 $16,400 Yes 


A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for addressing pupil learning 
loss and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 
There were no major substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for addressing pupil learning 
loss and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions. 


Analysis of Pupil Learning Loss 


A description of the successes and challenges in addressing Pupil Learning Loss in the 2020-21 school year and an analysis of the 
effectiveness of the efforts to address Pupil Learning Loss to date. 
Some of the challenges in addressing pupil learning loss in the 2020-21 school year included a distinct decrease in student 
attendance and engagement in the the Distance Learning Model. After almost a year of distance learning via Zoom, attendance rates 
dropped significantly from an average of 80-85% weekly basis to about a 60% of chronically absent students. As teachers made 
numerous attempts to contact students via Zoom, phone and / or Parent Square, students missing consecutive appointments reached 
an all-time high in our program. To combat this, CAES Leadership created 4 teams of two (one Administrator and one counselor with 
bi-lingual ability) to physically drive to 3-4 student residents and ascertain the reason given for these students who were not / had not 
been engaged in Distance Learning during the pandemic. Reasons given by truants for lack of participation included, but were not 
limited to, students having to work to support their families financially instead of focusing on their schoolwork, students having to 
babysit siblings during the day while parent (s) were at work and students not structured into a daily routine that required a guided 
schedule of studying independently. As a result, our greatest challenge during the COVID-19 Pandemic was keeping all students 
engaged in a distance learning model, students completing and submitting work on time for credit and attendance. 


PTC's greatest successes in mitigating pupil learning loss was the LEA's focus on addressing the social-emotional (SEL) wellness of 
students. This was included in the weekly check-in and documentation of student interaction to ensure that students' SEL needs were 
met as a priority. Also, based on interim i-Ready assessment (local indicators) results, students were recommended to attend content 
specific (ELA, Math, Science) intervention hours, which were open to all students, throughout the day and week. Finally, students 
were encouraged by their teachers, to attend additional time beyond their scheduled appointment, if it didn't conflict with their other 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 21 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


                  
                       


                     
                  


                     
        


 
                    


                   
                 


                     
                     


                    
                      


                       
                 


                  
                  


  
         
 


scheduled 1:1 student appointments. After 4/6/21, Madera County received clearance from the CDC and Madera County Health, to 
allow students to return to in-person learning. Prior to this notification of clearance, a parent survey was sent out to inquire how many 
parents were interested in sending their students back to school for in-person learning. About 25-30% of all parents agreed to and 
sent students back to school with the necessary precautions of: PPE, masks, temperature checks, plexiglass partitions and required 
distances of 3' between students and 6' between adults and students. As a result. the majority of students remained on the Distance-
Learning model, utilizing Zoom as an educational platform. 


In the analysis of effectiveness in efforts to address Pupil Learning Loss, including for pupils who are English learners, low-income; 
foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils who are experiencing homelessness, students who were struggling prior to the 
pandemic, showed similar patterns of behavior during the COVID-19 closure. Lost learning included students falling behind in 
assignments, failing to attend weekly Zoom or in-person meetings, pick up or submit work or engagement records on a weekly basis, 
and students stating they had lost motivation in on-line learning process. In meeting with these students and parents via Zoom Parent 
/ Teacher Conferences or home visits, both students and parents stated their lack of motivation stemmed from many reasons. These 
included, having to meet virtually, instead of in person, even though devices and connectively were not an obstacle, not adhering to a 
daily schedule or study regime, as parents were either away at work, and students were not being supervised as they were prior to 
COVID. Teachers also noted from stakeholder input and feedback that students who had adequate supervision, established study 
habits, parental support, an established schedule or routines in the household, and most importantly, a trusting and respectful 
relationship with their teacher, did much better and were motivated to be successful, compete their assignments and demonstrate 
mastery learning. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 22 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


         
 


                    
   


                   
                     


                    
                   


                 
                  


                     
                    


                   
                     


                     
                   


              
 


        
 


                    
                    
                    


                    
                        


                  
                      


                     
                  


                
                    


                   
                    


                    
                 


                  
                     


Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 


A description of the successes and challenges in monitoring and supporting mental health and social and emotional well-being in the 
2020-21 school year. 
There were many challenges and successes in monitoring and supporting mental health for social and emotional well-being in the 
2020-21 school year. To begin, Social - Emotional Learning (SEL) was the forefront of our Distance Learning model. All teachers and 
support staff were trained at the beginning of the pandemic with very focused professional growth and development in SEL. The 
appropriate literature provided to the CAES division was "The Distance Learning Playbook" by Hattie, Fisher and Frey. With this 
guidebook and training, teachers were better equipped to support students during these challenging times where students were 
isolated socially, unable to attend school in person, interact with friends or be engaged educationally where student-teacher interaction 
is a critical component to student achievement. To ensure students' SEL needs were met, teachers dedicated the first 10 minutes of 
their ATT appointments to "check in" with how students were coping with these challenges. The ATT appointment then continued with 
academic instruction, assessment / data review, and finished with a frontload for the next appointment. Students remained in contact 
with their teachers and, on several occasions, reached out beyond their scheduled times to attend additional or extended time that day 
or during the open intervention times that teachers offered by content and in "open intervention" setting. To address the needs of 
students who required additional support, referrals were made for Student Study Teams (SSTs) to ensure that all avenues and 
resources were explored in the process. 


Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 


A description of the successes and challenges in implementing pupil and family engagement and outreach in the 2020-21 school year. 
There have been many challenges and successes this year in implementing pupil and family engagement and outreach in the 2020-21 
school year. A primary challenge and ultimately a success from years past, was 1:1 technology integration and incorporation of Zoom 
for Distance Learning. In the Spring of 2020, students were not equipped with 1:1 devices and adequate connectivity for proper 
instruction. So, PTC and all schools in the CAES Division distributed out a parent / student needs assessment in the form of a survey 
in English and Spanish. Although survey responses were approximately 30% return, the need for WiFi connectivity, Chromebooks, or 
both, was made the most apparent. As a result, new devices and Verizon hotspots were issued to students, based on request, to 
ensure that all students had the ability to receive instruction in a distance learning model. Challenges for implementing pupil and family 
engagement and outreach in the 2020-21 included communicating effectively in remote situations. As a result, the CAES division 
transitioned to ParentSquare as a parent communication portal in which school/parent communication was made accessible either 
through email, text or both; whichever parents preferred. Parents were encouraged to download the free App on their phones or 
computers and all communication was provided in both English and Spanish; whichever parents indicated on their initial surveys. 
Efforts made to reach out to students and families when students were not meeting academic requirements or engaging in instruction 
while Distance learning, was also a challenge that resulted in a success for our students and teachers. Additional training and 
Professional Development for teachers was provided to support students in a Distance Learning model. Final challenges included 
students not "zooming" in for their scheduled appointments on-time, completion and submission of work and maintaining with fidelity, 
the submission of Daily Engagement Activity Records of "Green Sheets" as they are referred to by staff and students. To support 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 23 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


                
                    


                   
                       


                      
                      
                       


                  
                   


                       
              


                     
                    


                          
 


    
 


                
                      


                      
                           


 


these challenges, PTC implemented tiered reengagement strategies for students absent from distance learning. This included weekly, 
and sometimes daily if necessary, contact with students and parents, then an updated and accurate record of these interactions with 
students, families and sometimes Madera County Probation services. If students continued to be absent, there is a 3-step protocol 
embedding into the CAES contract that students and parents sign, that requires a Truancy letter and a "Level 3" meeting with the site 
administrator. At this meeting (Zoom) parents and students are able to discuss the reason for the high absences in an effort for 
students to get back on track. If this is unsuccessful, Administrative teams perform home visits or "Home runs" to meet with 10-15 
students and parents at their residence, from March to June 2021. At these home visits, the continuance of the student in the program 
was determined based on the reasons given during this informal visit and counseling session. Reasons for student disengagement 
included: lack of motivation, structure, supervision and/or students needing to work for their families or babysit for siblings while 
parents are working. If students were dropped from the I/S program, they are referred back to their district of residence. If they were 
retained, additional supports and follow-ups were conducted. For parent engagement, Parent-Teacher conferences were introduced 
this year to the CAES community. Parents were invited to attend a short conference with their child during their scheduled ATT 
meeting, to discuss their child's SEL status, academic progress and attendance. The focus of the meetings was to strengthen our 
school and community partnership and maintain a positive outreach to our students and families during the pandemic. 


Analysis of School Nutrition 


A description of the successes and challenges in providing school nutrition in the 2020-21 school year. 
Because PTC does not have its own food service and is subcontracted to MUSD, CUHSD and CEUSD for meals, students and 
parents were able to pick up breakfast and lunches provided by MUSD, CEUSD and CUHSD at designated times, sites and days. This 
information was shared with all PTC Madera and PTC Chowchilla parents on school websites, Parent Square and home mailers. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 24 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


     
 


        


    
  


 
 


 
 


     
 


                 
          


         
 


  
 


                  
         


                   
                      


                    
                      


                   
                   


                   
                    


                        
 


                     
  


                    
                     


                  
                    
                   


                  


Additional Actions and Plan Requirements 


Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan 


Section Description Total 
Budgeted Funds 


Estimated 
Actual 
Expenditures 


Contributing 


N/A N/A N/A 


A description of any substantive differences between the planned actions and budgeted expenditures for the additional plan 
requirements and what was implemented and expended on the actions. 
N/A 


Overall Analysis 


An explanation of how lessons learned from implementing in-person and distance learning programs in 2020-21 have informed the 
development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP. 
From the challenges and successes of distance learning and in-person models used at PTC in 2020-21 during the COVID-19 
pandemic, lessons informed greatly, the development of the goals and actions for the 2021–24 LCAP. As part of this analysis, PTC 
utilized its ongoing response to the COVID-19 pandemic, to ensure that health and safety considerations were of highest priority for 
students and staff returning to school in the Fall of 2021. Also during the distance learning model of 2019-20, students were monitored 
for engagement via Zoom and interactions, progress and engagement were documented in PowerSchool as a local indictor of student 
progress. Academics, social-emotional support and attendance, will continue to be the primary goals, for the upcoming school year, to 
ensure higher engagement, attendance and academic success. As a result, goals and actions were developed specifically to meet the 
needs of all students returning to in-person instruction in the Fall of 2021. Finally, as indicated from local indicators, engagement 
remains a high priority for PTC, as this area has proven traditionally low in the program. 


An explanation of how pupil learning loss continues to be assessed and addressed in the 2021–24 LCAP, especially for pupils with 
unique needs. 
To address pupil learning loss, PTC will include in the 2021-24 LCAP, the following best practices, programs and interventions. Similar 
to the 4/6/21 start, in-person learning is scheduled to continue the Fall of 2021. For this start, social-emotional supports will be 
provided for all pupils; particularly those with unique needs (including low income students, English learners, pupils with disabilities 
served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing homelessness.) In addition, 1:1 
student technology will also be continued for the 2021-22 school year, to allow all students to access content through technology-
driven instruction and have an accessible mode of communication (Zoom) if necessary. Finally, ongoing assessments of i-Ready and 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 25 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


                      
                      


 
                  


                   
  


                
                   


                   
                    


                     
                


                
               


 


LAS links will be utilized as local indicators and included in the 2021–24 LCAP, to diagnose loss learning, provide valuable data to 
drive instruction and appropriate accelerated interventions for students who are behind in grade level. 


A description of any substantive differences between the description of the actions or services identified as contributing towards 
meeting the increased or improved services requirement and the actions or services implemented to meet the increased or improved 
services requirement. 
Descriptions of the substantive differences between the actions and/or services identified as contributing towards meeting the 
increased or improved services requirement, pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496, and the 
actions and/or services that the LEA implemented to meet the increased or improved services requirement. Because of the COVID-19 
pandemic, all actions and services could not be fulfilled and therefore, supplemental and concentration funds will roll over into next 
year's budget to serve the needs of unduplicated pupils. PTC has provided a description of substantive differences to the actions 
and/or services identified as contributing towards meeting the increased or improved services requirement within the In-person 
Instruction, distance learning program, learning Loss, and additional actions sections of the annual update, therefore, these 
descriptions are part of the overall analysis. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 26 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


            
   


 
                    


            
                   
                   
                     
                  


                   
                   


                   
                        
                      


                    
                 


                      
                   
                 


                     
                  


                
               


                    
 


Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and
Attendance Plan 
A description of how the analysis and reflection on student outcomes in the 2019-20 LCAP and 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan have informed the development of the 21-22 through 23-24 LCAP. 
From the 2019-20 LCAP and 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan, an analysis and reflection on how student outcomes 
have informed the development of the 21-22 through 23-24 LCAP, is presented as follows. After extensive stakeholder input, Goals 
#1-3 from the 2019-20 LCAP remained the same as (1) Student achievement is a top priority (2) Student social-emotional support / 
safe school environment and (3) Parent engagement, to address the needs of students and our community. Because 2019-20 
CAASPP summative assessment and dashboard data were not available to support in the decision making process for the 2020-21 
schoolyear, the shift to our local indicator, i-Ready, as a diagnostic, progress monitor and summative assessment, became our local 
indicator. PTC students were still required to take the 2020-21 CAASPP summative assessments, to assist in providing baseline data 
for the writing of the 2021-23 LCAP. Based on PTC's last CAASPP results from 2018-19 in ELA and Math, these CORE areas, as well 
as ELD, will continue to be a focus of instructional development for staff professional growth and training for the 2021-22 school year. 
With the Distance Learning Model being implemented in the LCP of 2020-21, PTC will continue to provide 1:1 technology and 
connectivity to students to ensure students are successful academically for the Fall 2021. Additional Social-Emotional supports and 
training will continue to be provided to address the needs of students and staff as students transition back to a 100% in-person 
learning model for the school year 2021-22. Parent engagement and community partnerships will also be a continued focus and 
reflection of improvement as PTC struggles historically is maintaining high rates of parent participation and community involvement. 
Finally pupil learning loss will continue to be assessed and addressed in the 2021–24 LCAP, especially for pupils with unique needs 
(including low income students, English learners, pupils with disabilities served across the full continuum of placements, pupils in 
foster care, and pupils who are experiencing homelessness) with interagency collaboration, continued monitoring of student academic 
progress, attendance monitoring, SEL monitoring from CAES counselors and homeless liason, academic interventions based on 
interim i-Ready diagnostic assessments and regularly scheduled SSTs, IEPs and Section #504's. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 27 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


  
                    


                    
                    
                     


                  
 


           
 


  
                


                 
              


   
                   


                       
                     


              
 


                 
        


  
                    


 


                    
                    


                 
           


Annual Measurable Outcomes


Actions/Services


Instructions: Introduction 
The Annual Update Template for the 2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and the Annual Update for the 2020–21 
Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan must be completed as part of the development of the 2021-22 LCAP. In subsequent years, 
the Annual Update will be completed using the LCAP template and expenditure tables adopted by the State Board of Education. 
For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the LCAP template, please contact the local COE, or the 
California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at 
lcff@cde.ca.gov. 


Instructions: Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan
Year 
Annual Update 
The planned goals, state and/or local priorities, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the approved 2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). Minor typographical errors may be corrected. 
Duplicate the Goal, Annual Measurable Outcomes, Actions / Services and Analysis tables as needed. 


For each goal in 2019-20, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as compared to the expected annual measurable 
outcomes identified in 2019-20 for the goal. If an actual measurable outcome is not available due to the impact of COVID-19 provide a 
brief explanation of why the actual measurable outcome is not available. If an alternative metric was used to measure progress towards 
the goal, specify the metric used and the actual measurable outcome for that metric. 


Identify the planned Actions/Services, the budgeted expenditures to implement these actions toward achieving the described goal and 
the actual expenditures to implement the actions/services. 
Goal Analysis 
Using available state and local data and input from parents, students, teachers, and other stakeholders, respond to the prompts as 
instructed. 


 If funds budgeted for Actions/Services that were not implemented were expended on other actions and services through the end 
of the school year, describe how the funds were used to support students, including low-income, English learner, or foster youth 
students, families, teachers and staff. This description may include a description of actions/services implemented to mitigate the 
impact of COVID-19 that were not part of the 2019-20 LCAP. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 28 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


                  
                  


                


          
 


  
                 


       


       
                    


                


                
           


     


                  
                 


              


       
                    


                  


                
             


      


                  
                   


    
     
       


Analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings


Analysis of the Distance Learning Program


 Describe the overall successes and challenges in implementing the actions/services. As part of the description, specify which 
actions/services were not implemented due to the impact of COVID-19, as applicable. To the extent practicable, LEAs are 
encouraged to include a description of the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal. 


Instructions: Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance
Plan 
Annual Update 
The action descriptions and budgeted expenditures must be copied verbatim from the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance 
Plan. Minor typographical errors may be corrected. 


Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings 
 In the table, identify the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures to implement actions related to in-person instruction and 


the estimated actual expenditures to implement the actions. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 


 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for in-person instruction and 
what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable. 


 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in implementing in-person instruction in the 2020-21 school year, as applicable. If in-
person instruction was not provided to any students in 2020-21, please state as such. 


Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program 
 In the table, identify the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures to implement actions related to the distance learning 


program and the estimated actual expenditures to implement the actions. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 


 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the distance learning 
program and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable. 


 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in implementing distance learning in the 2020-21 school year in each of the following 
areas, as applicable: 


o Continuity of Instruction, 
o Access to Devices and Connectivity, 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 29 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


      
      
       
                  


             
                    


                


      
                    


                  


                
             


     


                  
                   


                    
                


  


         
                  


                 
           


        
                  


                 
                     
                 


   


    


Analysis of Pupil Learning Loss


o Pupil Participation and Progress, 
o Distance Learning Professional Development, 
o Staff Roles and Responsibilities, and 
o Supports for Pupils with Unique Needs, including English learners, pupils with exceptional needs served across the full 


continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing homelessness 
To the extent practicable, LEAs are encouraged to include an analysis of the effectiveness of the distance learning program to 
date. If distance learning was not provided to any students in 2020-21, please state as such. 


Actions Related to Pupil Learning Loss 
 In the table, identify the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures to implement actions related to addressing pupil learning 


loss and the estimated actual expenditures to implement the actions. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 


 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for addressing pupil learning 
loss and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable. 


 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in addressing Pupil Learning Loss in the 2020-21 school year, as applicable. To the 
extent practicable, include an analysis of the effectiveness of the efforts to address pupil learning loss, including for pupils who 
are English learners; low-income; foster youth; pupils with exceptional needs; and pupils who are experiencing homelessness, 
as applicable. 


Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being 
 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 


the successes and challenges experienced in monitoring and supporting Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being of 
both pupils and staff during the 2020-21 school year, as applicable. 


Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach 
 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 


the successes and challenges related to pupil engagement and outreach during the 2020-21 school year, including implementing 
tiered reengagement strategies for pupils who were absent from distance learning and the efforts of the LEA in reaching out to 
pupils and their parents or guardians when pupils were not meeting compulsory education requirements or engaging in 
instruction, as applicable. 


Analysis of School Nutrition 
Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 30 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


                  
                 


           


          
                     


                


                 
                 


          
                     


                  
             
                    


                  
              


                     
                 


              


                
                   


                   
                
               
                     


            
  


                      
      


                    
              


 


 Using available state and/or local data and feedback from stakeholders, including parents, students, teachers and staff, describe 
the successes and challenges experienced in providing nutritionally adequate meals for all pupils during the 2020-21 school 
year, whether participating in in-person instruction or distance learning, as applicable. 


Analysis of Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan 
 In the table, identify the section, the planned actions and the budgeted expenditures for the additional actions and the estimated 


actual expenditures to implement the actions, as applicable. Add additional rows to the table as needed. 


 Describe any substantive differences between the planned actions and/or budgeted expenditures for the additional actions to 
implement the learning continuity plan and what was implemented and/or expended on the actions, as applicable. 


Overall Analysis of the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan 
The Overall Analysis prompts are to be responded to only once, following an analysis of the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan. 


 Provide an explanation of how the lessons learned from implementing in-person and distance learning programs in 2020-21 
have informed the development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP. 


o As part of this analysis, LEAs are encouraged to consider how their ongoing response to the COVID-19 pandemic has 
informed the development of goals and actions in the 2021–24 LCAP, such as health and safety considerations, distance 
learning, monitoring and supporting mental health and social-emotional well-being and engaging pupils and families. 


 Provide an explanation of how pupil learning loss continues to be assessed and addressed in the 2021–24 LCAP, especially for 
pupils with unique needs (including low income students, English learners, pupils with disabilities served across the full 
continuum of placements, pupils in foster care, and pupils who are experiencing homelessness). 


 Describe any substantive differences between the actions and/or services identified as contributing towards meeting the 
increased or improved services requirement, pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496, and the 
actions and/or services that the LEA implemented to meet the increased or improved services requirement. If the LEA has 
provided a description of substantive differences to actions and/or services identified as contributing towards meeting the 
increased or improved services requirement within the In-Person Instruction, Distance Learning Program, Learning Loss, or 
Additional Actions sections of the Annual Update the LEA is not required to include those descriptions as part of this description. 


Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity and
Attendance Plan 
The Overall Analysis prompt is to be responded to only once, following the analysis of both the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 
Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan. 


 Describe how the analysis and reflection related to student outcomes in the 2019-20 LCAP and 2020-21 Learning Continuity and 
Attendance Plan have informed the development of the 21-22 through 23-24 LCAP, as applicable. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 31 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


    
  


 


California Department of Education 
January 2021 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 32 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


 


           
  


 
     


  
 


  
 


 
  


 
     


   
    
      


    
 
            


  


Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year
Expenditure Summary 


Total Expenditures by Funding Source 


Funding Source 
2019-20 


Annual Update
Budgeted 


2019-20 
Annual Update


Actual 
All Funding Sources 2,639,800.00 2,662,636.56 
LCFF 0.00 2,600.00 
LCFF Base 1,825,100.00 1,912,487.56 
LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 766,700.00 747,549.00 
Title I 48,000.00 0.00 


* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 33 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


     


  
 


  
 


 
  


 
     


   
      
      
      
        


 
            


  


Total Expenditures by Object Type 


Object Type 
2019-20 


Annual Update
Budgeted 


2019-20 
Annual Update


Actual 
All Expenditure Types 2,639,800.00 2,662,636.56 


265,300.00 0.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 2,210,500.00 2,490,259.56 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 75,700.00 97,455.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 25,100.00 23,600.00 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures 63,200.00 51,322.00 


* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 34 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


        


    
 


  
 


 
  


 
        


     
       
     


        
          
        
          
       
        
          
     


 
    


     
 


      


 
            


  


Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 


Object Type Funding Source 
2019-20 


Annual Update
Budgeted 


2019-20 
Annual Update


Actual 
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 2,639,800.00 2,662,636.56 


LCFF Base 200,600.00 0.00 
LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 16,700.00 0.00 
Title I 48,000.00 0.00 


1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 1,514,400.00 1,825,475.56 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 696,100.00 664,784.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries LCFF Base 33,000.00 38,000.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 42,700.00 59,455.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies LCFF 0.00 2,600.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies LCFF Base 24,600.00 21,000.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 500.00 0.00 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 


LCFF Base 52,500.00 28,012.00 


5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 


LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 10,700.00 23,310.00 


* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 35 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


    


 
 


  
 


 
  


 
    
    
    


 
            


Total Expenditures by Goal 


Goal 
2019-20 


Annual Update
Budgeted 


2019-20 
Annual Update


Actual 
Goal 1 2,419,100.00 2,465,631.56 
Goal 2 184,900.00 160,005.00 
Goal 3 35,800.00 37,000.00 


* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 36 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







    


          
  


 
    


     


     


     


     


       


          
 


        


     


     


     


     


       


          
 


       


     


     


     


     


       


          


Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan
Expenditure Summary 


Total Expenditures by Offering/Program 


Offering/Program 2020-21 Budgeted 2020-21 Actual 


In-Person Instructional Offerings $66,600.00 $66,300.00 


Distance Learning Program $128,606.00 $132,806.00 


Pupil Learning Loss $14,000.00 $16,400.00 


Additional Actions and Plan Requirements 


All Expenditures in Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan $209,206.00 $215,506.00 


Expenditures by Offering/Program (Not Contributing to Increased/Improved requirement) 


Offering/Program 2020-21 Budgeted 2020-21 Actual 


In-Person Instructional Offerings $12,000.00 $15,600.00 


Distance Learning Program 


Pupil Learning Loss 


Additional Actions and Plan Requirements 


All Expenditures in Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan $12,000.00 $15,600.00 


Expenditures by Offering/Program (Contributing to Increased/Improved requirement) 


Offering/Program 2020-21 Budgeted 2020-21 Actual 


In-Person Instructional Offerings $54,600.00 $50,700.00 


Distance Learning Program $128,606.00 $132,806.00 


Pupil Learning Loss $14,000.00 $16,400.00 


Additional Actions and Plan Requirements 


All Expenditures in Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan $197,206.00 $199,906.00 


Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control and Accountability Plan Page 37 of 37 
Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 







         
 


            


   


         
        


  
    


    


    


 
                  


          
    
      


     
    
    


    
 


         
      
       
           


      
 


           
             


           
 


      
         


        


 


   


       
      


       
          


             
          


         
           
         
 


 
 


2021-22 LCFF Budget Overview for Parents Data Input Sheet 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 


CDS Code: 20102072030229 


LEA Contact Information: Name: Mr. Scott Ellingson - Principal 
Position: Mr. Alan Macedo - Program Director 
Email: sellingson@mcsos.org 
Phone: amacedo@mcsos.org (559) 706-3095 


Coming School Year: 2021-22 


Current School Year: 2020-21 


*NOTE: The "High Needs Students" referred to in the tables below are Unduplicated Students for LCFF funding purposes. 


Projected General Fund Revenue for the 2021-22 School Year Amount 
Total LCFF Funds $4,011,137 


LCFF Supplemental & Concentration Grants $921,028 


All Other State Funds $611,482 


All Local Funds $105,076 


All federal funds $75,436 


Total Projected Revenue $4,803,131 


Total Budgeted Expenditures for the 2021-22 School Year Amount 
Total Budgeted General Fund Expenditures $4,606,330 


Total Budgeted Expenditures in the LCAP $3,804,764 


Total Budgeted Expenditures for High Needs Students in the LCAP $1,077,987 


Expenditures not in the LCAP $801,566 


Expenditures for High Needs Students in the 2020-21 School Year Amount 
Total Budgeted Expenditures for High Needs Students in the Learning Continuity Plan $209,206 


Actual Expenditures for High Needs Students in Learning Continuity Plan $244,117 


Funds for High Needs Students Amount 


2021-22 Difference in Projected Funds and Budgeted Expenditures $156,959 


2020-21 Difference in Budgeted and Actual Expenditures $34,911 


Required Prompts(s) Response(s) 


Briefly describe any of the General Fund
Budget Expenditures for the school year
not included in the Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP). 


Total General Fund Budget is $4,803,131 and of the total, $998,367 is not 
included due to general operations of charter such as expenditures 
include, but not limited to, operational, housekeeping services, building 
repairs, annual building rental fee, daily expenses of office and classroom 
supplies and fiscal expenditures. Operations and Facilities were not 
included. 







     
 


            


   


   


   
     
       


 
   


 
              


                 
                 


              
 


       


 
               


          
 


               
               


LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 


CDS Code: 20102072030229 


School Year: 2021-22 


LEA contact information: 
Mr. Scott Ellingson - Principal 
Mr. Alan Macedo - Program Director 
sellingson@mcsos.org 
amacedo@mcsos.org (559) 706-3095 


School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of 
funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based 
on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students). 


Budget Overview for the 2021-22 School Year 


This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 
expects to receive in the coming year from all sources. 


The total revenue projected for Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla is $4,803,131, of 
which $4,011,137 is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $611,482 is other state funds, $105,076 is 







                 
               


 
  


local funds, and $75,436 is federal funds. Of the $4,011,137 in LCFF Funds, $921,028 is generated 
based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income students). 







     
 


                 
                


              
 


 
                
                     


 
 


               
                  


                  
 


                 
             


               
               


 
              


  
 


               
              
                 
                


          
 
  
  


LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school 
districts must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students. 


This chart provides a quick summary of how much Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla 
plans to spend for 2021-22. It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the 


LCAP. 


Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla plans to spend $4,606,330 for the 2021-22 school 
year. Of that amount, $3,804,764 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and $801,566 is not included in 
the LCAP. The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the following: 


Total General Fund Budget is $4,803,131 and of the total, $998,367 is not included due to general 
operations of charter such as expenditures include, but not limited to, operational, housekeeping 
services, building repairs, annual building rental fee, daily expenses of office and classroom supplies and 
fiscal expenditures. Operations and Facilities were not included. 


Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2021-22 
School Year 


In 2021-22, Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla is projecting it will receive $921,028 
based on the enrollment of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Pioneer Technical 
Center - Madera and Chowchilla must describe how it intends to increase or improve services for high 
needs students in the LCAP. Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla plans to spend 
$1,077,987 towards meeting this requirement, as described in the LCAP. 







     
 


            


 
                


               
                


                 
  


 
             


               
                


     
 
 


LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2020-21 


This chart compares what Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla budgeted last year in the 
Learning Continuity Plan for actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for 


high needs students with what Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla estimates it has spent 
on actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students in the 


current year. 


In 2020-21, Pioneer Technical Center - Madera and Chowchilla's Learning Continuity Plan budgeted 
$209,206 for planned actions to increase or improve services for high needs students. Pioneer Technical 
Center - Madera and Chowchilla actually spent $244,117 for actions to increase or improve services for 
high needs students in 2020-21. 





		Agenda Item 5.3 Board of Education Informational Item June 8, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:



		Local Control Accountabili ty Plan

		Plan Summary [2021-22]

		General Information



		Reflections: Successes

		Reflections: Identified Need

		LCAP Highlights

		Comprehensive Support and Improvement

		Stakeholder Engagement

		Goals and Actions

		Goal



		Measuring and Reporting Results

		Actions

		Goal Analysis [2021-22]

		Goals and Actions

		Goal

		Measuring and Reporting Results

		Actions



		Goal Analysis [2021-22]

		Goals and Actions

		Goal

		Measuring and Reporting Results

		Goal Analysis [2021-22]





		Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students [2021-22]

		Required Descriptions

		Total Expenditures Table



		Annual Update Table Year 1 [2021-22]

		Instructions

		Introduction and Instructions

		Plan Summary

		Purpose

		Requirements and Instructions



		Stakeholder Engagement

		Purpose

		Requirements and Instructions

		Local Control and Accountability Plan:





		Goals and Actions

		Purpose

		Requirements and Instructions

		Focus Goal(s)

		Broad Goal

		Maintenance of Progress Goal

		Measuring and Reporting Results:





		Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students

		Purpose

		Requirements and Instructions

		For School Districts Only:

		Actions Provided on an LEA-Wide Basis:

		Actions Provided on a Schoolwide Basis:

		For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% enrollment of unduplicated pupils:





		Expenditure Tables



		DIVERSITY WITHIN UNITY

		Essential Principles for Teaching and Learning in a Multicultural Society

		Essential Principles for Teaching and Learning in a Multicultural Society

		EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

		Teacher Learning

		Student Learning

		Intergroup Relations

		School Governance, Organization, and Equity

		Assessment

		Essential Principles for Teaching and Learning in a Multicultural Society

		WHAT WE KNOW ABOUT DIVERSITY AND EDUCATION

		TEACHER LEARNING

		STUDENT LEARNING

		SCHOOL GOVERNANCE, ORGANIZATION, AND EQUITY

		ASSESSMENT

		CONCLUSION

		ACKNOWLEDGMENT





		Diversity Within Unity Essential Principles Checklist

		Multicultural CENTER FOR Education



		CTE Fact Sheet for School Leaders

		Conditions Of Learning

		Pupil Outcomes

		Engagement

		College and Career Readiness and Success

		Professional State Leadership in CTE



		DOES CLASS SIZE MATTER?

		DOES CLASS SIZE MATTER?

		DOES CLASS SIZE MATTER?



		Visible Learning250+ Infuences on Student Achievement

		Visible Learningplus 250+ Infuences on Student Achievement

		Raising Student Achievement Through Professional Development

		Digital divide persists even as lower-income Americans make gains in techadoption

		Annual Update for Developing the 2021-22 Local Control andAccountability Plan

		Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan Year

		Goal 1

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Goal Analysis

		Goal 2

		Goal Analysis



		Goal 3

		Goal Analysis





		Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan

		In-Person Instructional Offerings

		Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings

		Analysis of In-Person Instructional Offerings



		Distance Learning Program

		Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program

		Analysis of the Distance Learning Program



		Pupil Learning Loss

		Actions Related to the Pupil Learning Loss

		Analysis of Pupil Learning Loss

		Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being

		Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach

		Analysis of School Nutrition



		Additional Actions and Plan Requirements

		Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan

		Overall Analysis





		Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity andAttendance Plan

		Instructions: Introduction

		Instructions: Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability PlanYear Annual Update

		Instructions: Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and AttendancePlan Annual Update

		Actions Related to In-Person Instructional Offerings

		Actions Related to the Distance Learning Program

		Actions Related to Pupil Learning Loss

		Analysis of Mental Health and Social and Emotional Well-Being

		Analysis of Pupil and Family Engagement and Outreach

		Analysis of School Nutrition

		Analysis of Additional Actions to Implement the Learning Continuity Plan

		Overall Analysis of the 2019-20 LCAP and the 2020-21 Learning Continuity andAttendance Plan

		Annual Update for the 2019–20 Local Control and Accountability Plan YearExpenditure Summary



		Annual Update for the 2020–21 Learning Continuity and Attendance PlanExpenditure Summary

		2021-22 LCFF Budget Overview for Parents Data Input Sheet

		LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

		LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

		LCFF Budget Overview for Parents












 


  
 


 


      
 


  
 
 


 
 


  
  


 
 


      
     


 
  


   
    


    
 


    
   


 
   


 
     


 
 


    
    


  
 


  
    


  


Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


Agenda Item 5.4 


Board of Education 
Public Hearing for the Proposed Budget


Pioneer Technical Center 2021-2022 
June 8, 2021 


Topic:
The Pioneer Technical Center (PTC) Budget for the 2021-2022 school year 
along with the Estimated Actual Budget Projections for the 2020-2021 year. 


Background:
The attached Pioneer Technical Canter’s Proposed Budget for the 2021-
2022 school year, drawing from the Governor’s May Revision Budget 
information, is based upon the following assumptions: 


1. We assumed a 5.07% COLA (Cost-of-Living Adjustment) applied to 
the LCFF components 


2. ADA used in the budget is 265.66 and 22.97 


3. Step and Column adjustments are assumed at 1.5% for each of the 
next two years. 


4. PERS rate increase is anticipated to go from 20.7% to 22.91% for the 
2021-2022 year, then to 26.1% in the 2022-2023 year and then 
27.1% in the 2023-2024 year. 


5. STRS rate increase is anticipated to go from 16.15% to 16.92% for 
the 2021-2022 year, then to 19.1% in 2022-2023 and then 19.1% 
again in the 2023-2024 year. 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 



www.mcsos.org





 


 


 
  


  
    


     
 


        
   


 
 


  
  


     


 
 


 
 


 
 
  


  
 
 


6. Estimated supply, services and equipment budgets have been designed to meet 
program and operational needs and have been aligned to program goals. 
Additional staff development is envisioned to support students from lower income 
households, English Learners, and Foster youth. 


7. The budget as it now stands reflects an increase to the ending fund balance of 
$196,801.  


Legislative leadership and the Governor will be working out a plan to move forward with 
for next year.  Significant changes may be part of that and may require a 45-day budget 
revision. More information will be available once the State Budget is enacted. 


Financial Impact:
Outlined above. 


Resource: 
Julie DeWall 
Chief Officer 
Business & Administrative Services 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


 
 


      


      


       


       


      


 
 


      


      


      


       


         


      


           
          


           


      


    
        
            


   
 
      
          


          


       
         


         


     


        


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


A. REVENUES 


1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 3,828,407.00 4,011,137.00 4.8% 


2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 196,741.00 75,436.00 -61.7% 


3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 331,305.00 611,482.00 84.6% 


4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 105,115.00 105,076.00 0.0% 


5) TOTAL, REVENUES 4,461,568.00 4,803,131.00 7.7% 


B. EXPENDITURES 


1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 1,756,731.00 1,900,695.00 8.2% 


2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 350,118.00 365,703.00 4.5% 


3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,047,362.00 1,151,955.00 10.0% 


4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 303,309.00 199,976.00 -34.1% 


5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 717,718.00 921,181.00 28.3% 


6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 55,500.00 55,500.00 0.0% 


7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299, 
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 16,879.00 11,320.00 -32.9% 


9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 4,247,617.00 4,606,330.00 8.4% 


C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 213,951.00 196,801.00 -8.0% 


D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 


1) Interfund Transfers 
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


2) Other Sources/Uses 
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 1 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:14 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


     
        


   
 
       
              


          


                 


          


              


           
            
         
              


             


              


              


         


         
              


              


          
              


          
               


             


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + D4) 213,951.00 196,801.00 -8.0% 


F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 


1) Beginning Fund Balance 
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 


b) Audit Adjustments 


c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 


d) Other Restatements 


e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 


2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 
Components of Ending Fund Balance 
a) Nonspendable 


Revolving Cash 


Stores 


Prepaid Items 


All Others 


b) Restricted 


c) Committed 
Stabilization Arrangements 


Other Commitments 


d) Assigned 
Other Assignments 


e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 


Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 


9791 


9793 


9795 


9711 


9712 


9713 


9719 


9740 


9750 


9760 


9780 


9789 


9790 


1,250,878.00 1,464,829.00 17.1% 


0.0% 


17.1% 


0.0% 


17.1% 


13.4% 


0.00 0.00 


1,250,878.00 1,464,829.00 


0.00 0.00 


1,250,878.00 1,464,829.00 


1,464,829.00 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


1,661,630.00 


0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.0% 


0.0% 0.00 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


83,216.00 83,733.00 0.6% 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.0% 


0.0% 


0.0% 


14.2% 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


1,381,613.00 1,577,897.00 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 2 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:14 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


 
     
           


                   


          


            


           


           


     


      


        


        


     


      


       


     


    


        


       


 


      


        


        


      


      


     


    


        


       


  


        
          


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


G. ASSETS 
1) Cash 


a) in County Treasury 


1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 


b) in Banks 


c) in Revolving Cash Account 


d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 


e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 


2) Investments 


3) Accounts Receivable 


4) Due from Grantor Government 


5) Due from Other Funds 


6) Stores 


7) Prepaid Expenditures 


8) Other Current Assets 


9) TOTAL, ASSETS 


9110 


9111 


9120 


9130 


9135 


9140 


9150 


9200 


9290 


9310 


9320 


9330 


9340 


358,195.51 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


151,263.40 


0.00 


366,596.00 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


876,054.91 


H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 


1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 


2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 


9490 0.00 


0.00 


I. LIABILITIES 


1) Accounts Payable 


2) Due to Grantor Governments 


3) Due to Other Funds 


4) Current Loans 


5) Unearned Revenue 


6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 


9500 


9590 


9610 


9640 


9650 


49.75 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 


49.75 


J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 


1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 


2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 


9690 0.00 


0.00 


K. FUND EQUITY 


Ending Fund Balance, June 30 
(G9 + H2) - (I6 + J2) 876,005.16 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 3 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:14 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


 


   
        


           


        


   


         


           


            


      


         


    


 


    


     


     


    


    


     


      


        
   


        


       
   


        
   


       


         


  
  
  
  
  


   


     


      


    


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


LCFF SOURCES 


Principal Apportionment 
State Aid - Current Year 8011 2,690,498.00 2,873,228.00 6.8% 


Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 619,329.00 619,329.00 0.0% 


State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


LCFF Transfers 


Unrestricted LCFF Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other LCFF Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 518,580.00 518,580.00 0.0% 


Property Taxes Transfers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 3,828,407.00 4,011,137.00 4.8% 


FEDERAL REVENUE 


Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent 
Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction 4035 8290 15,646.00 25,286.00 61.6% 


Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student 
Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Title III, Part A, English Learner 
Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Public Charter Schools Grant Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other NCLB / Every Student Succeeds Act 


3020, 3040, 3041, 
3045, 3060, 3061, 
3150, 3155, 3180, 
3181, 3182, 3185, 
4037, 4124, 4126, 


4127, 4128, 5510, 5630 8290 158,395.00 50,150.00 -68.3% 


Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 22,700.00 0.00 -100.0% 


TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 196,741.00 75,436.00 -61.7% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 4 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:14 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


   


    


       
       


       


          


          


      


      


         


         


       


      


        


       


      


     


       


     


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


OTHER STATE REVENUE 


Other State Apportionments 


Special Education Master Plan 
Current Year 


Prior Years 


All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 


All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 


Child Nutrition Programs 


Mandated Costs Reimbursements 


Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 


After School Education and Safety (ASES) 


Charter School Facility Grant 


Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 


California Clean Energy Jobs Act 


Career Technical Education Incentive 


Grant Program 


Specialized Secondary 


All Other State Revenue 


TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 


6500 


6500 


All Other 


All Other 


6010 


6030 


6690, 6695 


6230 


6387 


7370 


All Other 


8311 


8319 


8311 


8319 


8520 


8550 


8560 


8590 


8590 


8590 


8590 


8590 


8590 


8590 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 


0.00 


0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.0% 


12,211.00 12,211.00 0.0% 


21,942.00 58,904.00 168.5% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


55,207.00 56,309.00 2.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


241,945.00 484,058.00 100.1% 


331,305.00 611,482.00 84.6% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 5 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:14 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


  


    
        


        


        


        


      


    


            


      


         


        
       


       


          


         


  


     


    
         
            


          


         


         
             


           


          


              


     


 


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 


Sales 
Sale of Equipment/Supplies 


Sale of Publications 


Food Service Sales 


All Other Sales 


Leases and Rentals 


Interest 


Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 


Fees and Contracts 


Child Development Parent Fees 


Transportation Fees From 
Individuals 


Interagency Services 


All Other Fees and Contracts 


All Other Local Revenue 


Tuition 


All Other Transfers In 


Transfers of Apportionments 
Special Education SELPA Transfers 


From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 


From County Offices 6500 


From JPAs 6500 


Other Transfers of Apportionments 
From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 


From County Offices All Other 


From JPAs All Other 


All Other Transfers In from All Others 


TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 


8631 


8632 


8634 


8639 


8650 


8660 


8662 


8673 


8675 


8677 


8689 


8699 


8710 


8781-8783 


8791 


8792 


8793 


8791 


8792 


8793 


8799 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


25,000.00 25,000.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


350.00 350.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


1,350.00 1,350.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


78,415.00 78,376.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


105,115.00 105,076.00 0.0% 


TOTAL, REVENUES 4,461,568.00 4,803,131.00 7.7% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 6 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:14 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


 
 


    


     


      


    


    


 
 


    


    


      


      


    


    


  
  


  


  


  


     


   


   


   


    


    


    


  
 


       


      


    


   


   


     


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


CERTIFICATED SALARIES 


Certificated Teachers' Salaries 


Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 


Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 


Other Certificated Salaries 


TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 


1100 


1200 


1300 


1900 


1,290,638.00 1,422,437.00 10.2% 


55,497.00 55,376.00 -0.2% 


383,098.00 394,034.00 2.9% 


27,498.00 28,848.00 4.9% 


1,756,731.00 1,900,695.00 8.2% 


CLASSIFIED SALARIES 


Classified Instructional Salaries 


Classified Support Salaries 


Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 


Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 


Other Classified Salaries 


TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 


2100 


2200 


2300 


2400 


2900 


17,357.00 21,935.00 26.4% 


39,909.00 39,330.00 -1.5% 


52,591.00 60,343.00 14.7% 


240,261.00 244,095.00 1.6% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


350,118.00 365,703.00 4.5% 


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 


STRS 


PERS 


OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 


Health and Welfare Benefits 


Unemployment Insurance 


Workers' Compensation 


OPEB, Allocated 


OPEB, Active Employees 


Other Employee Benefits 


TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 


3101-3102 


3201-3202 


3301-3302 


3401-3402 


3501-3502 


3601-3602 


3701-3702 


3751-3752 


3901-3902 


487,287.00 549,858.00 12.8% 


15.3% 


5.1% 


0.2% 


2533.5% 


-0.1% 


2.2% 


84,652.00 97,566.00 


29,252.00 30,731.00 


324,522.00 325,306.00 


990.00 26,072.00 


35,069.00 35,019.00 


84,058.00 85,871.00 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.0% 


10.0% 


1,532.00 1,532.00 


1,047,362.00 1,151,955.00 


BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 


Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 


Books and Other Reference Materials 


Materials and Supplies 


Noncapitalized Equipment 


Food 


TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 


4100 


4200 


4300 


4400 


4700 


71,700.00 36,700.00 -48.8% 


100.00 11,504.00 11404.0% 


178,495.00 127,652.00 -28.5% 


53,014.00 24,120.00 -54.5% 


0.00 0.00 0.0% 


303,309.00 199,976.00 -34.1% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 7 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:14 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


    


    


    


    


  


     


        


      


       


    
    


  


       


 


  


   


      


        
        


   


   


   


    


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 


Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Travel and Conferences 5200 23,227.00 31,938.00 37.5% 


Dues and Memberships 5300 4,894.00 5,770.00 17.9% 


Insurance 5400-5450 8,665.00 13,665.00 57.7% 


Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 88,565.00 88,565.00 0.0% 


Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 213,639.00 213,639.00 0.0% 


Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 217,554.00 210,984.00 -3.0% 


Professional/Consulting Services and 
Operating Expenditures 5800 155,834.00 349,780.00 124.5% 


Communications 5900 5,340.00 6,840.00 28.1% 


TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 717,718.00 921,181.00 28.3% 


CAPITAL OUTLAY 


Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 14,500.00 14,500.00 0.0% 


Books and Media for New School Libraries 
or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Equipment 6400 19,000.00 19,000.00 0.0% 


Equipment Replacement 6500 22,000.00 22,000.00 0.0% 


Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 55,500.00 55,500.00 0.0% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 8 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:14 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


      


  
        
        


         
           


         


        


    


      


          


   


       


        


         


      


     


        


         
 


 


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 


Tuition 
Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict 
Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments 
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other Transfers Out 


All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Debt Service 


Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 


Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 16,879.00 11,320.00 -32.9% 


TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 16,879.00 11,320.00 -32.9% 


TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 4,247,617.00 4,606,330.00 8.4% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 9 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:14 PM 







    
 


  
    


  
  


  


   
     


         


   


 
 


    
 


        


      


    
 


        


      


 
 


  
 


     


         
        


      


        


       


    


  
 


       
      


       


    


 


      


      


    
 


   
          


July 1 Budget 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 20 10207 0000000 
Madera County Expenditures by Object Form 09 


Description Resource Codes Object Codes 
2020-21 


Estimated Actuals 
2021-22 
Budget 


Percent 
Difference 


INTERFUND TRANSFERS 


INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 


Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 


Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


OTHER SOURCES/USES 


SOURCES 


Other Sources 


Transfers from Funds of 
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Long-Term Debt Proceeds 


Proceeds from Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


USES 


Transfers of Funds from 
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


CONTRIBUTIONS 


Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 
(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2021.1.0 
File: fund-b (Rev 02/25/2021) Page 10 Printed: 5/27/2021 3:14 PM 





		Agenda Item 5.4 Board of Education Public Hearing for the Proposed BudgetPioneer Technical Center 2021-2022 June 8, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:









